
Item 1Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Item 2Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CHARLES SCHWAB CORPORATION 

ECONOMIC INCENTIVES AGREEMENT 
 

1. Company:    Charles Schwab Corporation 

 

2. Location:   2309 Gracy Farms Austin TX 78758 

  Within Austin Desired Development Zone 

 

3. Project: Regional Office Consolidation 

  250,000-300,000 sq. ft. office space 

  50 acre site 

 

4. Investment: $196,711,000  

 

5. Term: 10 Years 

 Base Year:   2014 

 Effective Date:   August 15, 2014 

 Payment Term:  1/1/18 – 12/31/27 

 Construction Start: 12/31/2015 

 Phase I Construction: $111,790,018 investment by 12/31/16 

 Phase II Construction: $56,920,982 additional investment by 12/31/23 

 

6. Incentive: $100 million + investment 33.5% 

  823 new employees 15% 

  TOTAL 48.5 

 Bonus: Silver LEED 3% 

  TOTAL w/BONUS   51.5% 

 

7. Competitive Siting: Yes 

 

8. Jobs: 823 new jobs; maintain 1,683 existing jobs 

  Recruitment efforts – work with local non-profits 

  Good faith effort to hire residents 

 

9. Annual Compensation: Average: $79,602 

  Median: $69,032 

  Minimum:  $15/per hour 

 

10. Benefits: Health, 401K, wellness program, volunteer program 

  Extends benefits to an employee’s same sex domestic partners 

 

11. Construction: Minimum $11/ per hour 

  OSHA training on site 

  Follow Travis County HUB program for minority contracting 

 

12. LEED Certification: To be determined based on level achieved 

 

13. Recapture: Last 5 years of Agreement if Company fails to meet investment and new employee  

  requirements by the end of the term. 

 

14. Est. Grant* $3.3 to $3.6 million depending on bonus 

 

15. Est. County Revenue         $3.3 to $3.6 million 

 

*Estimate is based on investment information received from the Company.  Yearly grant amount will be based on actual 

taxes paid by the Company on the new facility each year of the agreement.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Item 5Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Item 6Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:    August 5, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Salazar 

Office of the Travis County Judge 
      512-854-9555 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON A REQUEST FROM THE DISTRICT 
ATTORNEY’S OFFICE TO USE THE COMMISSIONERS COURTROOM AT 700 LAVACA ON FRIDAY, 
AUGUST 22, 2014 FROM 1:00 TO 5:00 P.M. TO CONDUCT CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST  AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 7Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 
 
Meeting Date:    August 5, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Salazar 

Office of the Travis County Judge 
      512-854-9555 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON A REQUEST FROM THE TRAVIS CENTRAL 
APPRAISAL DISTRICT FOR BUDGET INCREASE. (THIS ITEM MAY BE TAKEN INTO EXECUTIVE 
SESSION UNDER THE CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY EXCEPTION) 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST  AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 8Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Sec. 6.06.  APPRAISAL DISTRICT BUDGET AND FINANCING.  (a)  Each year the chief appraiser shall 
prepare a proposed budget for the operations of the district for the following tax year and shall submit 
copies to each taxing unit participating in the district and to the district board of directors before June 
15.  He shall include in the budget a list showing each proposed position, the proposed salary for the 
position, all benefits proposed for the position, each proposed capital expenditure, and an estimate of 
the amount of the budget that will be allocated to each taxing unit.  Each taxing unit entitled to vote on 
the appointment of board members shall maintain a copy of the proposed budget for public inspection 
at its principal administrative office. 

(b)  The board of directors shall hold a public hearing to consider the budget.  The secretary of the board 
shall deliver to the presiding officer of the governing body of each taxing unit participating in the district 
not later than the 10th day before the date of the hearing a written notice of the date, time, and place 
fixed for the hearing.  The board shall complete its hearings, make any amendments to the proposed 
budget it desires, and finally approve a budget before September 15.  If governing bodies of a majority 
of the taxing units entitled to vote on the appointment of board members adopt resolutions 
disapproving a budget and file them with the secretary of the board within 30 days after its adoption, 
the budget does not take effect, and the board shall adopt a new budget within 30 days of the 
disapproval. 

(c)  The board may amend the approved budget at any time, but the secretary of the board must deliver 
a written copy of a proposed amendment to the presiding officer of the governing body of each taxing 
unit participating in the district not later than the 30th day before the date the board acts on it. 

(d)  Each taxing unit participating in the district is allocated a portion of the amount of the budget equal 
to the proportion that the total dollar amount of property taxes imposed in the district by the unit for 
the tax year in which the budget proposal is prepared bears to the sum of the total dollar amount of 
property taxes imposed in the district by each participating unit for that year.  If a taxing unit 
participates in two or more districts, only the taxes imposed in a district are used to calculate the unit's 
cost allocations in that district.  If the number of real property parcels in a taxing unit is less than 5 
percent of the total number of real property parcels in the district and the taxing unit imposes in excess 
of 25 percent of the total amount of the property taxes imposed in the district by all of the participating 
taxing units for a year, the unit's allocation may not exceed a percentage of the appraisal district's 
budget equal to three times the unit's percentage of the total number of real property parcels appraised 
by the district. 

(e)  Unless the governing body of a unit and the chief appraiser agree to a different method of payment, 
each taxing unit shall pay its allocation in four equal payments to be made at the end of each calendar 
quarter, and the first payment shall be made before January 1 of the year in which the budget takes 
effect.  A payment is delinquent if not paid on the date it is due.  A delinquent payment incurs a penalty 
of 5 percent of the amount of the payment and accrues interest at an annual rate of 10 percent.  If the 
budget is amended, any change in the amount of a unit's allocation is apportioned among the payments 
remaining. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



(f)  Payments shall be made to a depository designated by the district board of directors.  The district's 
funds may be disbursed only by a written check, draft, or order signed by the chairman and secretary of 
the board or, if authorized by resolution of the board, by the chief appraiser. 

(g)  If a taxing unit decides not to impose taxes for any tax year, the unit is not liable for any of the costs 
of operating the district in that year, and those costs are allocated among the other taxing units as if 
that unit had not imposed taxes in the year used to calculate allocations.  However, if that unit has made 
any payments, it is not entitled to a refund. 

(h)  If a newly formed taxing unit or a taxing unit that did not impose taxes in the preceding year 
imposes taxes in any tax year, that unit is allocated a portion of the amount budgeted to operate the 
district as if it had imposed taxes in the preceding year, except that the amount of taxes the unit 
imposes in the current year is used to calculate its allocation.  Before the amount of taxes to be imposed 
for the current year is known, the allocation may be based on an estimate to which the district board of 
directors and the governing body of the unit agree, and the payments made after that amount is known 
shall be adjusted to reflect the amount imposed.  The payments of a newly formed taxing unit that has 
no source of funds are postponed until the unit has received adequate tax or other revenues.(i)  The 
fiscal year of an appraisal district is the calendar year unless the governing bodies of three-fourths of the 
taxing units entitled to vote on the appointment of board members adopt resolutions proposing a 
different fiscal year and file them with the secretary of the board not more than 12 and not less than 
eight months before the first day of the fiscal year proposed by the resolutions.  If the fiscal year of an 
appraisal district is changed under this subsection, the chief appraiser shall prepare a proposed budget 
for the fiscal year as provided by Subsection (a) of this section before the 15th day of the seventh month 
preceding the first day of the fiscal year established by the change, and the board of directors shall 
adopt a budget for the fiscal year as provided by Subsection (b) of this section before the 15th day of the 
fourth month preceding the first day of the fiscal year established by the change.  Unless the appraisal 
district adopts a different method of allocation under Section 6.061 of this code, the allocation of the 
budget to each taxing unit shall be calculated as provided by Subsection (d) of this section using the 
amount of property taxes imposed by each participating taxing unit in the most recent tax year 
preceding the fiscal year established by the change for which the necessary information is available.  
Each taxing unit shall pay its allocation as provided by Subsection (e) of this section, except that the first 
payment shall be made before the first day of the fiscal year established by the change and subsequent 
payments shall be made quarterly.  In the year in which a change in the fiscal year occurs, the budget 
that takes effect on January 1 of that year may be amended as necessary as provided by Subsection (c) 
of this section in order to accomplish the change in fiscal years.(j)  If the total amount of the payments 
made or due to be made by the taxing units participating in an appraisal district exceeds the amount 
actually spent or obligated to be spent during the fiscal year for which the payments were made, the 
chief appraiser shall credit the excess amount against each taxing unit's allocated payments for the 
following year in proportion to the amount of each unit's budget allocation for the fiscal year for which 
the payments were made.  If a taxing unit that paid its allocated amount is not allocated a portion of the 
district's budget for the following fiscal year, the chief appraiser shall refund to the taxing unit its 
proportionate share of the excess funds not later than the 150th day after the end of the fiscal year for 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



which the payments were made.(k)  For good cause shown, the board of directors may waive the 
penalty and interest on a delinquent payment under Subsection (e). 

Acts 1979, 66th Leg., p. 2226, ch. 841, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1981.  Amended by Acts 1981, 67th Leg., 1st 
C.S., p. 122, ch. 13, Sec. 17, 18, eff. Aug. 14, 1981;  Acts 1985, 69th Leg., ch. 311, Sec. 1, eff. Aug. 26, 
1985;  Acts 1989, 71st Leg., ch. 796, Sec. 9, eff. Sept. 1, 1989;  Acts 1991, 72nd Leg., ch. 20, Sec. 16, eff. 
Aug. 26, 1991;  Acts 1993, 73rd Leg., ch. 347, Sec. 4.07, eff. May 31, 1993.Amended by: Acts 2007, 80th 
Leg., R.S., Ch. 87 (S.B. 948), Sec. 1, eff. May 14, 2007. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 Travis Central 

Appraisal District 
Fiscal Year 2015 Budget 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 
 

 

 

Travis Central Appraisal District 

Fiscal Year 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 
 

 

 

Ms. Marya Crigler 
Chief Appraiser

 

 

Board of Directors 

Mr. Richard Lavine, Chair 
Austin ISD 

 
Mr. Ed Keller, Secretary 

Austin ISD 
 

Ms. Shellda D. Grant 
Travis County 

 
Ms. Eleanor Powell 

City of Austin 
 

Ms. Blanca Zamora- Garcia 
City of Austin 

Mr. Kristoffer S. Lands, Vice Chair 
City of Austin/Austin ISD 

 
Mr. Tom Buckle 

West Travis County 
 

Dr. Denny Hamill 
Travis County 

 
Mr. Rico Reyes 

East Travis County 
 

Mr. Bruce Elfant 
Travis County Tax Assessor/Collector 

 
 

 
Prepared by the TCAD Finance Department

B

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



   FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

 
 

 

Travis Central Appraisal District 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our Mission 
 

The mission of the Travis 
Central Appraisal District 

is to provide accurate 
appraisal of all property in 

Travis County at one 
hundred percent market 

value, equally and 
uniformly, in a 

professional, ethical, 
economical and courteous 
manner, working to ensure 

that each taxpayer pays 
only their fair share of the 

property tax burden. 

Our Vision 
 

The Travis Central 
Appraisal District will act 

in accordance with the 
highest principals of 
professional conduct, 
ethics, accountability, 

efficiency, openness, skill 
and integrity.  We approach 

our activities with a deep 
sense of purpose and 

responsibility. 

Our Values 
 

 Appraise- fairly, efficiently, 
and effectively, balancing the 
needs of both taxpayers and 
the taxing units by adhering 
to the Texas Property Tax 
Code, USPAP, and generally 
accepted appraisal standards. 

 Educate- taxpayers of their 
rights, remedies and 
responsibilities. 

 Communicate- 
collaboratively with and 
encourage communication 
among the taxing units, 
taxpayer public, and the 
agency. 

 Service- provide exceptional 
customer service that is 
accessible, responsible and 
transparent. 

 Performance- demand 
integrity, accountability and 
high standards from all staff 
and strive continuously for 
excellence and efficiency. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 
Fiscal Year 2015 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Introductory Section: 

Budget Transmittal Letter 
Travis CAD Organizational Chart 
List of Key District Personnel 
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 
 

Budget Overview 
 
District Budget: 

Budget Comparison 
District Budget by Department 
Revenue Budget 
2014 Estimated Jurisdiction Liabilities 
Capital Improvement Program 
 

Department Budgets: 
Administration 
Information Technology 
Customer Service 
Appraisal Support 
Appeals 
Commercial Appraisal 
Land Appraisal 
Personal Property Appraisal 
Residential Appraisal 
Appraisal Review Board (ARB) 
 

Statistical Section: 
 

Appendix: 
 

Glossary:

 
i 
iv 
v 
vi 
 
1 
 
 
34 
37 
42 
45 
49 
 
 
56 
66 
75 
80 
84 
89 
94 
98 
102 
107 
 
110 
 
134 
 
174

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 
  
BOARD OFFICERS 
RICHARD LAVINE 
     CHAIRPERSON 
KRISTOFFER S. LANDS 
     VICE CHAIRPERSON 
ED KELLER 
     SECRETARY/TREASURER 

 
MARYA CRIGLER 
CHIEF APPRAISER 

BOARD MEMBERS 
TOM BUCKLE 

SHELLDA D. GRANT 
DENNY HAMILL 
BRUCE ELFANT 

ELEANOR POWELL 
RICO REYES 

BLANCA ZAMORA-GARCIA 

 

 

Introduction | i 
 

July 22, 2014 
 

Travis County Taxpayers,  
Travis CAD Board of Directors, and 
Presiding Officers of all Taxing Entities, and 
Ms. Marya Crigler, Chief Appraiser, 
Travis Central Appraisal District: 
 
 
I am pleased to present the proposed budget of the Travis Central Appraisal District (the 
District) for fiscal year 2015.  The proposed budget for 2015 totals $17,149,799, which 
represents a 20.38% increase over the 2014 budget.  The proposed and five previous year 
budget histories compare as follows: 
 

Year Budget Amount 
Percentage 

Increase 
2010 $12,595,720 6.23% 
2011 $12,689,610 0.75% 
2012 $12,914,797 1.77% 
2013 $13,375,023 3.56% 
2014 $14,246,848 6.52% 
2015 $17,149,799 20.38% 

 
The taxing units and taxpayers of Travis County have strongly voiced their concerns about the 
fairness of the property tax system, particularly in regards to equitable distribution of the 
property tax burden among residential and commercial property owners.  Both the Travis 
County Commissioners Court and the City of Austin considered, at public hearings in June 
2014, filing taxing unit challenges with the Appraisal Review Board over the level of appraisal of 
commercial property in Travis County.  While taxing unit challenges were not filed for 2014, both 
taxing units voted to study the matter further and potentially file challenges in 2015.  
 
 We have participated in numerous property taxpayer forums and meetings with taxing units.  In 
response to the concerns voiced, the Board of Directors of the Travis Central Appraisal District 
requested that the chief appraiser prepare recommendations to address taxpayer concerns and 
present an amended proposed 2015 budget that funds the recommendations.  While many of 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

Introduction | ii  
 

the concerns require a legislative solution, there are some immediate actions that the district 
can take to address the concerns: 
 

1. Property protests increased 6% in 2013 and 14% in 2014.  The district has 
recommended hiring additional appraisal staff to handle the increased volume of 
property tax protests. 

2. Texas is a non-disclosure state and sales prices, which are a fundamental data 
requirement for determining the fair market value of property, are not provided to the 
appraisal district.  The district has recommended hiring additional staff to research sales 
information, particularly for commercial properties where the district currently is only able 
to acquire 11% of known sales.  The district is also requesting additional funding for the 
purchase of national market reports. 

3. Testing and calibration of mass appraisal models is important to ensuring the accuracy 
and equity of appraisals.  The district has recommended purchasing fee appraisals for 
45 commercial and 20 high end residential properties to calibrate and/or validate the 
accuracy of the district’s appraisal models.  The district also recommends additional 
education of senior appraisal staff in advanced appraisal techniques. 

4. In the defense of commercial property values in litigation, a very high consideration for 
the appraisal district is the cost of litigation.  If the district loses at district court by just $1, 
the district is liable for the plaintiffs’ attorneys’ fees up to $100,000 per tax year in 
litigation.  Due to a limited budget, the District may consider settling a commercial 
property lawsuit through negotiations rather than risk losing at district court.  The district 
is recommending additional funds for litigation so that it may pursue market value on 
cases it feels it has a strong case and may prevail. 

 
The Austin economy continues to thrive fueled by exponential population growth and strong job 
market growth.  It is no secret that Austin has become a hotspot for businesses in a range of 
industries and people looking to work for those businesses.  “Austin is the fastest growing city 
in the U.S., and for good reason; it offers aspiring Austinites a fast growing economy and a cost 
of living that is 15 percent below the national average… The crime rates are low, the housing 
market is healthy, and Austin ranks as one of the fittest cities in the U.S., with a population that 
loves being outdoors and having a great time.” 1 Forbes recently ranked Austin among 
America’s coolest cities to live, and USA Today named Austin a top city for tech startups.  
According to Business Insider, Austin ranks ninth in the list of most innovative cities.  
Bloomberg News ranked Austin number 1 on its list of Top 12 American Boomtowns.1 
 
The Brookings report ranks Austin second overall in employment since the recession with a 9.6 
percent gain since the fourth quarter of 2009.  Austin ranks fourth in gross domestic product, 
with a 17.2 percent increase from the city’s low point in the third quarter of 2009.  Since the 
fourth quarter of 2009, unemployment has fallen 2.1 percent, putting the area well ahead of 
most of the nation. 2 Austin’s unemployment rate plateaued at around 5 percent throughout 
most of 2013- a full two points below the national average.  Austin’s employers added 
approximately 20,795 jobs between January 2013 and October 2013.3 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

Introduction | iii  
 

The apartment sector remains exceptionally strong with vacancy at or below 5.0% and 
continued demand outpacing available supply, despite 6,300 new units added in 2013.  
Apartment rental rates have increased 5.7 percent during 2013, with pre-1970s apartment 
rents jumping an average of 9.7%.  This is possibly due to the surging job growth in lower-
paying industries. 4 Austin will also see continued business investments as established 
businesses such as Samsung and Apple expand their presence in Austin.   
 
The residential housing market set a new record in 2013 as sales topped 27,000 plus- the 
highest number ever.  The Austin Board of Realtors reported that 27,298 home sales were 
recorded in the Austin Area in 2013, a 19 percent increase over 2012.  Travis County 
demographers estimate this number at 29,788.  The median sales price of a single-family 
home in the Austin area rose 9 percent to $223,890.  “The housing market in any area is a 
good indicator of the area’s economy.  A strong housing market serves as a stabilizing force, 
building wealth by preserving equity for homeowners and creating ripple effects throughout the 
economy.”5 
 
Should you have any questions about the District’s 2015 proposed budget or the budgeting 
process, please contact Leana H. Mann, the District’s Finance & Facilities Officer, at  
(512)834-9317 Ext. 405 or by e-mail at Lmann@tcadcentral.org. 
 
POLICY STATEMENT 
The Board of Directors of the Travis Central Appraisal District may transfer funds between line items of 
the 2015 budget if the action does not obligate the jurisdictions to additional payments. Any budget 
amendment requiring additional funds form the jurisdictions must be sent to each jurisdictions and a 
public hearing must be held before the Board of Directors can act on the amendment. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Leana H. Mann 
Finance & Facilities Officer 
Travis Central Appraisal District 
  
1 Theis, Michael. "Infographic: Why everyone is moving to Austin." . Austin Business Journal, 8 Jan. 2014. Web. 16 May. 2014. 
<http://www.bizjournals.com/austin /news/2014/01/08/infographic-why-everyone-is-moving-to.html>. 
2 Grattan, Robert. "Austin Area’s Recovery from recession among nation’s best." . Austin Business Journal, 5 APR. 2013. Web. 
16 May. 2014. <http://www.bizjournals.com/austin/print-edition/2013/04/05/austin-areas-recovery-from-recession.html>. 
3  Grattan, Robert. "2013: Austin unemployment rate sets the pace." . Austin Business Journal, 19 Dec. 2013. Web. 16 May. 
2014. <http://www.bizjournals.com/austin/news/2013/12/19/2013-austin-unemployment-rate-sets.html>. 
4 Buchholz, Jan. "Austin apartment market posts strong fundamentals." . Austin Business Journal, 17 Jan. 2014. Web. 16 May. 
2014. <http://www.bizjournals.com/austin/blog/real-estate/2013/11/austin-apartment-market-posts-strong.html?page=all>. 
5 Novak, Shonda. "Austin-area home sales hit all-time high in 2013." Austin American Statesman 17 Jan. 2014: n. pag. Print. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

Introduction | iv  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 
Organizational Chart 

Sharon Baxter
Sr. Litigation Attorney

Paul Snyder
Deputy Chief of Appraisal

Judi Beckham
Director

Customer Service

Marya Crigler
Chief Appraiser

Paula Fugate
Human Resource Director

Scott Griscom
Director

Information Systems

Open
Director Residential

Kay BissonDirector
Commercial

Board of Directors Don Rives
Taxpayer Liaison

Leana Hengst Mann
Finance and Facilities

Officer

Jack Miguez Director
Business Personal Property

Richard Michalski
Director Land/Ag

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

Introduction | v  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 
Key District Personnel 

 

 

 

Chief Appraiser Marya Crigler 
Deputy Chief of Appraisal Paul Snyder 
Director of Residential Appraisal Vacant 
Director of Commercial Appraisal Kay Bisson 
Director of Business Personal Property (BPP) Appraisal Jack Miguez 
Director of Land Appraisal Richard Michalski 
Director of Customer Service Judi Beckham 
Director of Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Jerry Oehler 
Director of Information Technology (IT) Scott Griscom 
Director of Human Resources Paula Fugate 
Finance & Facilities Officer Leana Mann 
Senior Litigation Attorney Sharon Baxter 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

Introduction | vi 
 

Certificate of Achievement 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
presented a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the Travis Central Appraisal 
District, Texas for its annual budget for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2014.  In order 
to receive this award, a governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets 
program criteria as a policy document, as an operations guide, as a financial plan, and as a 
communications device. 

This award is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our fiscal year 2015 
budget continues to conform to the program requirements, and we are submitting it to 
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another award. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2014 
Proposed Budget 

 

Travis Central Appraisal District 
Budget Overview 

There are three main parts to the property tax system in Texas: 

An appraisal district in each county sets the value of property each year. A chief 
appraiser is the chief administrator and operates the appraisal office.  
A citizen board, called the Appraisal Review Board (ARB), hears any 
disagreements between a property owner and the appraisal district about a 
property’s value. 
Local taxing units—city, county, school and special districts—decide how much 
money they will spend by adopting a budget. Next, the taxing units set tax rates 
that will raise the revenue necessary to fund their budgets. The adopted budgets 
and the tax rates set to fund the budgets determine the total amount of taxes that 
a person will pay.  

The property tax year has four stages: appraising taxable property, protesting the 
appraised values, adopting the tax rates and collecting the taxes. The following 
represents a summary of the process. 

1. A large part of each appraisal district's job is to estimate what your property is 
worth on January 1. What a property is used for on January 1, market conditions 
at that time and who owns the property on that date determine whether the 
property is taxed, its value and who is responsible for paying the tax. The 
appraisal district also processes applications for tax exemptions, agricultural 
appraisals and other tax relief. 

2. Around May 15, the appraisal review board begins hearing protests from property 
owners who believe their property values are incorrect or who did not get correct 
exemptions or agricultural appraisals. When the ARB finishes its work, the 
appraisal district gives each taxing unit a list of taxable property.  

3. In August or September, the elected officials of each taxing unit adopt tax rates 
for their operations and debt payments. Several taxing units tax each property. 

HOW DOES THE PROPERTY TAX SYSTEM WORK?

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Every property is taxed by the county and the local school district. You also may 
pay taxes to a city and to special districts such as hospital, junior college, water, 
fire and others.  

4. Tax collection starts around October 1 as tax bills go out. Taxpayers have until 
January 31 of the following year to pay their taxes. On February 1, penalty and 
interest charges begin accumulating on most unpaid tax bills. Tax collectors may 
start legal action to collect unpaid taxes on February 1.  

The Travis Central Appraisal District was created under the 66th Texas State Legislature 
in 1979 under the provisions of Senate Bill 621 known as the Property Tax Code.  The 
District is responsible for the appraisal of property subject to ad valorem taxation in 
Travis County, Texas.  The District is governed by a board of nine directors serving two 
year terms, plus a tenth statutorily designated non-voting member who is the County 
Tax Assessor-Collector.  Travis County appoints two board members, Austin ISD 
appoints two board members, City of Austin appoints two board members, and Austin 
ISD and City of Austin appoint one board member together.  The remaining two board 
members are appointed by a vote of the eastern and western taxing entities within 
Travis County. 

The District was formed in 1981 and formally began operations in 1982, pursuing its 
mission to provide accurate appraisal of all property in Travis County at one hundred 
percent of market value, equally and uniformly, in a professional, ethical, economical 
and courteous manner, working to ensure that each taxpayer pays only their fair share 
of the property tax burden.  As stipulated under the Texas Property Tax Code, the 
District serves the citizens and taxpayers of Travis County and the 120 taxing entities 
which lie within Travis County, including 21 cities, 15 school districts, 14 emergency 
districts, the county government, the hospital district, the junior college and 67 special 
districts. 

Travis County is located in Central Texas and is a part of the rapidly growing Austin 
area.  Travis County’s population, as of the 2010 census was 1,033,553 and continues 
to grow rapidly every year.  Since the previous census in 2000, the population of Travis 
County has grown 26.1%. 

The Travis Central Appraisal District was created unde

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

January 1

Appraisal districts are required to 
appraise property at its value on this 
date. A lien attaches to each 
taxable property to ensure property 
tax payment. 

January 1 – April 30 
Appraisal districts complete 
appraisal and process applications 
for exemption. 

January 31
Taxes due to local taxing units (or 
county tax assessor, if acting on 
their behalf) 

February 1
Local taxing units begin charging 
penalty and interest for unpaid tax 
bills. 

April – May Appraisal districts send notices of 
appraised value. 

May 1
Appraisal review boards begin 
hearing protests from property 
owners. 

July 25 Appraisal districts certify current 
appraised values to taxing units. 

August – September Local taxing units adopt tax rates. 

October 1 Local taxing units begin sending tax 
bills to property owners.

THE PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Each Texas county is served by an 
appraisal district that determines the value 
of all of the county’s taxable property. 
Generally, a local government that collects 
property taxes, such as a county, city and
school district, is a member of the 
appraisal district.  A board of directors 
appointed by the member governments 
presides over the appraisal district.  

The appraisal district is considered a political subdivision and must follow applicable 
laws such as Open Meetings and Public Information Acts.  Meetings are generally open 
to the public and information generated by the appraisal district is, in most cases, also 
available to the public.  

The appraisal district board of directors hires a chief appraiser, approves contracts and 
sets policies.  The chief appraiser is the chief administrator of the appraisal district.  The 
chief appraiser may employ and compensate professional, clerical and other personnel 
as provided by the appraisal district budget. The chief appraiser’s primary duty is to 
discover, list, review and appraise all taxable property in the appraisal district using 
generally accepted appraisal techniques.  

Accounting Basis 

The District reports its financial activities as a special-purpose government.  Special-
purpose governments are governmental entities which engage in a single government 
program.  Like most governments, special-purpose governments present two types of 
financial statements: (1) government-wide financial statements and (2) fund financial 
statements.   

The government-wide financial statements report information on all of the activities of 
the District.  Governmental activities generally are financed through charges for services 
and intergovernmental revenues.  The statement of activities reflects the revenues and 
expenses of the District.  The government-wide statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  The 
economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether 
current or non-current) are included on the statement of net position and the operating 

Each Texas county is served by an

THE ROLE OF THE APPRAISAL DISTRICT

Accounting Basis

ACCOUNTING BASIS AND CONTROLS

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net 
position.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned 
and expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incurred. 

The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s governmental 
funds.  The emphasis of fund financial statements is directed to specific activities of the 
District.  The District reports the general fund as its only major governmental fund.  It is 
the District’s primary operating fund.  This fund is used to account for the acquisition 
and use of the District’s expendable financial resources and the related liabilities.  The 
measurement focus is based on the determination of changes in financial position rather 
than upon net income determination.  Governmental fund financial statements are 
reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and are accounted 
for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they 
become both measurable and available and expenditures are recorded when the 
related fund liability is incurred. 

Internal Controls 

To provide a reasonable basis for making its representations, the District’s management 
team has established a comprehensive internal control framework.  This framework is 
designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss 
from unauthorized use or disposition and that accounting transactions are executed in 
accordance with management’s authorization and properly recorded so that the 
financial statements can be prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP).  The objective of the internal control framework is to provide 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of 
any material misstatements.  The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) 
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the 
evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.  
The design and operation of internal controls also ensures that all funds are expended 
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework.  During the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2013, the District reviewed its internal controls.  I believe that the 
District’s internal controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable 
assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

The Travis Central Appraisal District (the District) financial policies compiled below 
encompass the basic framework for the overall financial management of the District.  
These policies assist the Board of Directors and management with decision-making and 
provide guidelines for evaluating both the current and long-range financial activities.  
They are reviewed annually in conjunction with the budgetary process to verify 
continued applicability and benefit to the District. 

The primary objectives of these policies are to provide accountability for cost-effective 
stewardship of taxpayers’ funds through fairly presented financial statements supported 
by full disclosures. 

Revenue Policy 

Revenue Recognition- Revenues shall be recorded on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues 
are recognized when susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they become both 
measurable and available. 

1. Daily Deposits- In accordance with this finance policy, the District 
shall require weekly deposits of receipts only when the cash on hand 
amounts to at least $1,000.  Any funds not immediately deposited shall 
be appropriately safeguarded in a locked file cabinet in the Finance 
Officer’s office.

2. Monitoring Revenue- District finance staff shall monitor revenues as 
billed and collected and shall report to the Board of Directors no less 
than quarterly on any past due or uncollectible amounts. 

3. Authority- The Finance & Facilities Officer shall be responsible for 
designing, implementing, monitoring, and amending as necessary, 
accounting procedures, including internal controls, for the billing, 
recording, and reporting of all revenues of the District in compliance 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and applicable 
state laws.  Any changes to revenue procedures shall be reported to 
the Board of Directors at their next regularly scheduled meeting. 

Cash Disbursement Policy 

1. Centralized Purchasing- The District will operate under a centralized 
purchasing concept. 

The Travis Central Appraisal District (the Distric

FINANCIAL POLICIES & PROCEDURES

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

2. Payments- Local governments and state agencies are required to pay all 
bills owed within 30 calendar days.  The District adheres to this requirement.  
Any deviations from this requirement are reported to the Chief Appraiser. 

3. Monitoring- District finance staff shall monitor cash disbursements and 
report to the Board of Directors at each regularly scheduled meeting all 
capital asset purchases and any purchases over $25,000.   

4. Authority- The Finance & Facilities Officer shall be responsible for 
designing, implementing, monitoring, and amending (as necessary), 
accounting procedures including internal controls, for the requisitioning, 
purchasing and cash disbursement functions of the district in compliance 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and applicable state 
laws.  Any change to cash disbursement procedures shall be reported to the 
Board of Directors at their next regularly scheduled meeting. 

Operating Budget Policy 

1. Planning: The District will prepare a five-year operating budget projection 
annually, which will include projections of expenditures for the next five 
years. 

2. Performance Measures: The District will integrate performance measures 
and productivity indicators into its budgetary process whenever feasible. 

3. Periodic Reporting: The Finance and Facilities Officer shall present budget 
to actual financial reports to the Board of directors monthly (or at each board 
meeting) and bi-weekly to the Chief Appraiser. 

4. Balanced Budget: The District shall submit a balanced budget wherein 
budgeted expenditures shall equal budgeted revenues.   

Asset Management and Capital Improvement Policy 

1. Planning for Operational and Maintenance Costs: The District shall utilize 
an equipment replacement schedule to plan major operational and 
maintenance asset acquisitions on a systematic, comprehensive, and entity-
wide basis. 

2. Asset Condition: The District will maintain all assets at a level adequate to 
comply with all regulatory requirements and to minimize future replacement 
and maintenance costs.  

3. Planning: The District will annually update a ten-year capital improvement 
program, identifying and describing each capital project along with the 
estimated cost. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

4. Capitalization: The District will capitalize all asset cost which are $1,000 or 
more and whose useful life is more than one year. 

5. Reporting: The District will provide reports of expenditures by project to the 
Board of Directors no less than quarterly. 

Cash Management and Investment Policy 

1. Written Policy: The District’s investment policy must be written and in 
compliance with all applicable state and local laws.  The policy must be 
reviewed on an annual basis by the Board of Director’s and approved 
through a resolution. 

2. Objectives: The primary objectives of investment activities, in priority order, 
shall be preservation of principal, liquidity, and yield. 

3. Periodic Reporting: The District shall provide monthly investment reports to 
the Board of Directors. 

4. Treasury Services: The District shall prepare a Request for Proposal (RFP) 
for banking services every 2 years, with the option to renew the contract for 
an additional 2 years. 

Accounting Policy 

1. Authority for Accounting Procedures: The District will establish and 
maintain the accounting system according to Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) and all applicable state and local laws. 

2. Annual Audit: An annual audit will be performed by an independent public 
accounting firm, which will issue an official opinion on the annual financial 
statements, and a management letter indicating any suggestions for 
improvement or areas of concern. 

3. Transparency: Full disclosure will be provided in the financial statements. 

4. Financial Report: The District shall prepare a comprehensive annual 
financial report (CAFR) upon completion of the financial audit, which will be 
submitted to the Government Finance Officers’ Association (GFOA) for the 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting award. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Debt Policy 

1. Capital Financing: All financing of capital projects must be included in the 
current year’s proposed budget and approved by the Board of Directors.  
The District statutorily cannot issue debt to fund capital projects.  All 
financing of capital projects must be done through the budget process. 

2. Unfunded Liabilities: The District’s policy extends beyond capital financing 
and includes not knowingly entering into any contracts creating significant 
unfunded liabilities 

All policies referenced on the preceding pages can be found in the appendix section of 
this budget document. 

The District is provided very strict guidelines on the budgeting process in the Texas 
Property Tax Code.  This information can be found in Chapter 6.06 of the Texas 
Property Tax Code and in the appendix of this report.  A brief overview of the budgeting 
process is provided below. 

The District begins its annual budgeting process in February.  Discussions are held with 
the Chief Appraiser, the Finance Officer and the department directors to discuss what 
the department’s budget needs are for the upcoming fiscal year.  Once this information 
is gathered, the Finance Officer prepares the proposed budget based on the Chief 
Appraiser’s directives.  In May, the District holds a budget workshop with the Board of 
Directors, the Chief Appraiser and the Finance Officer where the budget is looked at in-
depth.  The District must send the proposed budget to the presiding officer of each 
taxing unit no later than 10 days before the board of director’s meeting where the 
proposed budget will be presented.  This allows any taxing unit to dispute all or part of 
the budget at that meeting.  The proposed budget must be presented no later than June 
15th.

During this meeting, the board of directors makes suggestions along with any taxing 
units that come to the meeting to discuss the proposed budget.  The District then takes 
the budget and revises it to include the changes made at the meeting.  The District must 
again send a copy of the budget to the presiding officer of each taxing unit no later than 
10 days before the board of director’s meeting where the budget will be adopted.  The 
board of directors must hold a public hearing to adopt the annual budget.  The secretary 
of the board must also post the notice of the public hearing in the county newspaper.  
The District posts this information in the Austin American Statesman. The budget must 
be adopted no later than September 15th.

BUDGET PROCESS & PROCEDURES

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Once the budget is adopted, the taxing units have 30 days to file a resolution with the 
board of director’s secretary to disapprove the budget. If governing bodies of a majority 
of the taxing units entitled to vote on the appointment of board members adopt 
resolutions disapproving the budget and file them with the secretary of the board within 
30 days after its adoption, the budget does not take effect, and the board shall adopt a 
new budget within 30 days of the disapproval. 

All budget amendments must be presented to the taxing units 30 days prior to the 
meeting where the board is set to approve the amendment.  A budget amendment 
changes the final amount due from the taxing unit.  The District can make line item 
transfers without notifying the taxing units.  The Chief Appraiser has the authority to 
approve or disapprove any line item transfers.  All line item transfers are then presented 
to the board for approval.  Budget line item transfers do not change the final amount of 
the budget, but simply move budgeted funds from one function or program to another.  
Budget line item transfers do not require any additional funds from the taxing units and 
they do not change the amount of any surplus credited back to the jurisdictions at year 
end. 

FEB 2014 

S M T W T F S DATE SUBJECT 
1 2/10/2014 Budget discussion with Chief Appraiser 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8     2/17-2/28 Meet with division directors  
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 

MAR 2014 
DATE SUBJECT 
3/14/2014 Budget requests due from division directors S M T W T F S
3/31/2014 First draft of budget to Chief Appraiser 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31 

BUDGET CALENDAR

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

APR 2014 

S M T W T F S DATE SUBJECT 
1 2 3 4 5 4/08/2014 First quarter line item transfers approved at 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Board of Directors meeting 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 4/14/2014 Second draft of budget to Chief Appraiser 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 4/30/2014 Final draft of proposed budget to Chief Appraiser 
27 28 29 30 for final approval 

MAY 2014 

DATE SUBJECT S M T W T F S
5/13/2014 Budget workshop with board or directors 1 2 3
5/28/2014 Final proposed budget to Chief Appraiser 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
5/30/2014 Mail budget to taxing jurisdictions 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

 

JUN 2014 

S M T W T F S DATE SUBJECT 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 6/10/2014 Present proposed budget to board of directors 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6/16/2014 Last day to present proposed budget 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 6/30/2014 First draft of adopted budget to Chief Appraiser 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 

JUL 2014 

DATE SUBJECT S M T W T F S
7/15/2014 2nd quarter line item transfers approved 1 2 3 4 5

at Board of Directors meeting 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
7/15/2014 Second draft of adopted budget 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

to Chief Appraiser 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
7/21/2014 Final draft of adopted budget 

to Chief Appraiser 27 28 29 30 31 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

AUG 2014 

S M T W T F S DATE SUBJECT 
1 2 8/01/2014 Mail out final budget to taxing entities 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
8/01/2014 Post public notice of budget in local 

newspaper 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 8/19/2014 Public budget hearing and adoption of budget 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23  

24 25 26 27 28 29 30  

 

31  

SEPT 2014 

DATE SUBJECT S M T W T F S
9/15/2014 Final day to adopt budget  1 2 3 4 5 6
9/30/2014 Tax rates are set by all taxing entities  7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 

OCT 2014 

S M T W T F S DATE SUBJECT 
1 2 3 4 10/06/2014 Mail out final calculation of jurisdiction liability 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 10/31/2014 Submit budget to GFOA for Distinguished 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 Budget Award 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 10/31/2014 Mail out end of year budget amendment to  
26 27 28 29 30 31 all taxing entities 

NOV 2014 

DATE SUBJECT S M T W T F S
11/11/2014 Board of Directors meeting to approve  1

final budget amendment 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
11/11/2014 Final line item transfers approved at  9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

Board of Directors meeting 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

 30 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

DEC 2014 

S M T W T F S DATE SUBJECT 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 12/31/2014 Fiscal year-end 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20  

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31  

In August of 2014, the directors of the Travis Central Appraisal District will hold their 
annual strategic planning director’s retreat for fiscal year 2015.  During the planning 
session, items for the upcoming fiscal year will be discussed.  A few of the items to be 
discussed are: 1) District goals for 2015, 2) division priorities for 2015, 3) training 
opportunities and recommendations from management, 4) personnel policy and 
updates/recommendations from management, and 5) implementation and leverage of 
field devices.  The Chief Appraiser has the ultimate decision making authority, but she 
considers input from each of the department directors when making decisions. 

Each year the Chief Appraiser sends out a survey to each manager and director so that 
input can be gathered from the management team on specific issues.  The District uses 
the following questions as a guide: 

o What worked well this past year? 
What surprised you? 
What frustrated you? 
How can this be improved? 

o What did not work well this past year? 
What surprised you? 
What frustrated you? 
How can this be improved? 

o Where do you think the District is most efficient? 
Can the processes be applied to other areas? 
How can this be improved? 

o Where do you think we are most inefficient? 
What was the major obstacle to efficiency? 
How can this be improved? 

In August of 2014, the directors 

STRATEGIC PLANNING

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

o How can we improve the accuracy and uniformity of the appraisals 
produced? 

o Is the appraisal district staff receiving pre-certification education sufficient 
to the responsibilities? 

Are the continuing education opportunities adequate to remain 
qualified? 
To improve skill set? 
How can staff education be improved? 

o Are customers satisfied with the service they receive from the appraisal 
district? 

Are the staff seen as educated, skilled, trustworthy and their service 
as valuable? 

o Is the District operating at a high level of transparency and accountability? 
o Is the District making good use of available technology to deliver its 

services? 
o Are there any additional services that the District should be providing to its 

customers? 
o  In 2012, we identified some items that did not work well.  Please rate how 

successful you feel we have been in addressing these issues: 
Field work? 
Processing intranet request? 
Training staff? 

o  Do you discuss the importance of good attendance with your employees? 
Do you believe that your staff has an understanding of good 
attendance habits? 
When was the last time you had a discussion with an employee 
about unscheduled absences or tardies? 
How does high absenteeism affect your department? 
How should unscheduled absences (excluding qualified FMLA) be 
considered in the annual performance reviews? 
Are there repercussions for those employees who are routinely 
tardy? 

o  What would you consider to be the top three priorities for your division 
next year? 

How have you communicated these goals to your employees? 
o  On average, how frequently do you give performance feedback to your 

employees? 
How do you most often give employees performance feedback? 

o How familiar are you with the District’s personnel policy?
How familiar are your employees with the District’s personnel 
policy? 
When a personnel question occurs in what order do you research 
an answer? 

o If you could change one policy or procedure, what would it be? 
o Are there any additional services that the District should be providing to its 

staff? 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Based on the strategic planning session discussions, the 2014-2015 strategic plan will 
be updated.  The current strategic goals for the District are presented on the following 
pages. 

Strategic 
Goal 

Planning 
Goal 

Objective Outcome Measure Strategy Output Measure Efficiency 
Measure 

De
ve

lo
p 

ap
pr

ais
als

 th
at

 re
fle

ct
 m

ar
ke

t v
alu

e a
nd

 en
su

re
 fa

irn
es

s 
an

d 
un

ifo
rm

ity
. 

Make better 
utilization of ratio 
studies when 
developing market 
appraisals.

Analyze ratio study statistics by 
neighborhood and school district weekly 
during valuation and equalization phases in 
2013/2014, and guarantee that sales ratio 
median levels and weighted mean are 
between 97 and 102 and COD are between 
5 and 15.

Median sales ratio Maintain an ongoing program of audit 
and verification activities in support of 
improved appraisal levels

Number of sales qualified Number of property 
protests 

Weighted mean sales 
ratio

Number of neighborhood 
profiles created

Number of value 
reductions

COD Number of school districts 
reviewed

Improve accuracy 
and reduce value 
changes to 5% or 
less.

Create evidence packets to be used at both 
information and formal level that support 
District values and require a higher standard 
of evidence for informal changes.  Train 
staff to make clear and concise arguments 
at the ARB to defend the District's values. 

Reduction in value 
changes at informal and 
formal by 50% from 
11% average to 5% or 
less.

Staff training on defending appraisal 
values and standards of evidence

Percent value change Number of property 
protests 
Number of value 
reductions

Improve quality 
and consistency 
of land values of 
lakefront property 

Correctly identify all lake front property to 
include lake cove and lake views and 
consistently apply appropriate land unit 
prices and modifiers.

Reduction in value 
formal challenges of 
land equity on lake front 
property.

In conjunction with field inspections, 
utilize aerial photography to identify 
lake front, lake cove and lake view 
properties.  Utilize GIS mapping and 
analysis to ensure consistent land 
values. 

Uniformity in COD 
measures of specific ratio 
studies

Number of land 
values updated

Number of property 
protests based on 
equity 

Update cost 
tables of main 
area and details. 

Create a program to regularly update cost 
tables based on nationally recognized 
publications adjusted for local economic 
conditions.

Timely and accurate 
cost tables

Staff training on use of national 
publications used to develop cost 
approach appraisals.  Create 
benchmark properties and test 
developed cost schedules against 
researched local cost information.  
Test land value assignments through 
allocation by abstraction against 
researched land values.  Create 
specific procedure manual to 
document steps taken to update and 
test cost tables. 

Accuracy of cost approach 
appraisals compared to 
researched local 
development costs.

Number of cost 
tables updated

Lower market segment 
adjustments

Number of 
benchmark 
properties tested

Software 
enhancements

Work cooperatively with software vendor 
True Automation and other PACS metro
appraisal district clients to enhance the 
software to provide greater appraisal and 
analysis capabilities.

Increased functionality 
in the PACS software 
modules

Create a coalition of PACS metro 
appraisal district clients to leverage 
the group dynamics to push for focus 
on Texas clients from True 
Automation.  Schedule and hold 
quarterly meetings with the metro 
clients and True Automation decision 
makers to focus on the common 
needs of the metro appraisal districts, 
and enhancements required to 
complete appraisal tasks and meet 
legislative requirements. 

Co-development 
commitments from metro 
clients and True 
Automation and group 
consensus on 
enhancement priorities

Number of co-
development projects 
approved 
Number of software 
requirement 
documents written 
and approved 
Number of 
enhancements 
included in each 
software release

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Strategic 
Goal 

Planning 
Goal 

Objective Outcome Measure Strategy Output Measure Efficiency 
Measure 

Be
 ef

fic
ien

t i
n 

bu
sin

es
s p

ro
ce

ss
es

 an
d 

en
su

re
 th

at
 m

iss
io

n 
cr

iti
ca

l t
as

ks
 ar

e c
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 a 
tim

ely
 m

an
ne

r w
ith

 a 
hi

gh
 le

ve
l o

f a
cc

ur
ac

y. 

Complete the 
top three 
mission critical 
tasks ahead of 
schedule.

Ensure that mission critical tasks of 
notices, certification and PTAD 
studies are completed at minimum 
one to two weeks prior to statutory 
deadline.

Percent of accounts 
noticed at each run date 

Improve Compliance by establishing formal 
plans, timelines, benchmarks, and monitoring 
programs to ensure that deadlines are met.  
Increase individual accountability

Completion date of 
mission critical tasks

Number of notices 
mailed at each run 
date 

Certification level of 90% 
as of July 18.

Number of protests 
completed

Local Value Findings or 
Exceeds Standards finding 

Complete 
protest as 
soon as 
possible after 
certification. 

Ensure that all protests are 
completed as soon as possible after 
certification to shift the annual 
calendar of events and provide more 
time to appraisal staff to perform 
discovery and valuation tasks. 
Increased time to perform discovery 
and valuation should result in higher 
accuracy in the appraisal roll and 
fewer property protests.   

Earlier start to discovery 
and valuation cycles

Select a target date of completion and 
communicate the date and objective with staff, 
ARB and agents.  Maintain consistency in 
scheduling of protests hearings to ensure that 
protests are completed by the target date

Date of completion and 
percent of open protest 

Number of informal 
hearings held per 
day
Number formal 
hearings per day

Complete 
fieldwork and 
eliminate field 
work overlap 
with valuation 
cycle

Ensure that all field inspections have 
been completed and that the data 
entry of the field cards has been 
completed by February 1

Timely start to valuation 
cycle

Develop a documented work plan to identify 
the scope of field work to be completed, 
evaluate field inspection productivity tasks 
times and develop a field work plan that 
recognizes the man hours available for the 
project.  Work plan should include refresher 
training for appraisers to ensure that work in 
completed in an accurate manner as well as 
communicating to the appraisers work 
productivity expectations. Completion 
benchmarks should be established to evaluate 
progress.  Regular meetings to ensure 
progress. Accountability consequences for 
failing to meet expectations and deadlines.  
Explore technological solutions such as Austin 
Energy data and field devices to increase 
efficiency in the field

Timely start to valuation 
cycle

Number of field 
inspections per day 

Number of field cards 
processed per day 

Complete 
valuation cycle 
and reduce 
the number of 
properties in 
NOAV runs 
after April 1st 

Ensure that properties are valued and 
notices are sent in the first NOAV run 
to be completed between April 1 and 
April 15

Fewer than 5% of 
properties noticed in 
subsequent NOAV runs 

Develop a documented work plan of valuation 
tasks to be completed. Work plan should 
include research and confirmation of sales 
data, review of neighborhood designations, 
assign senior staff to lead valuation teams and 
include refresher training for appraisers to 
ensure that work in completed in an accurate 
manner as well as communicating to the 
appraisers work productivity expectations. 
Completion benchmarks should be established 
to evaluate progress.  Regular meetings to 
ensure progress. Accountability consequences 
for failing to meet expectations and deadlines. 

Percent of properties 
noticed with each NOAV 
run

Number of 
neighborhood 
profiles completed 
each week

Complete 
homestead 
exemption 
processing 
within 30 days 
of receipt of 
application

Lack of taxpayer compliance with 
new homestead documentation 
requirements has become an 
obstacle to timely processing of the 
exemptions.  Provide more 
information and alerts to taxpayers to 
ensure that the appropriate 
documents are include with the 
application when first submitted so 
that staff may process applications 
upon receipt

Fewer than 5% of 
exemptions processed 
after 30 days of receipt

Create additional insert to be included with 
homestead application reminding taxpayers of 
the new documentation requirements.  Custom 
print return envelopes with a reminder on back 
of envelope to include additional 
documentation. Add additional information on 
website FAQ reminding taxpayers of additional 
requirements and create online video detailing 
requirements. 

Percent of exemption 
applications processed on 
first receipt

Number of additional 
documentation 
letters mailed to 
taxpayers

Number of 
exemption
applications 
processed

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Strategic 
Goal 

Planning 
Goal 

Objective Outcome Measure Strategy Output Measure Efficiency 
Measure 

Co
lle

ct
, c

re
at

e a
nd

 m
ain

ta
in

 ac
cu

ra
te

 d
at

a. 

Field work quality 
control

Ensure that consistent procedures 
are followed by all staff and that 
careful review and consideration is 
given to each tax parcel appraised 

Percent of field card 
returned for corrections

Improve quality of data collection by updating 
procedure manuals’ and training staff in 
procedures, performing quality assurance 
checks on returned field work, using GIS and 
other tools for data validation and holding staff 
accountable for errors discovered

Number of field cards 
processed

Average time to 
process field work 

Percent of accounts 
requesting 25.25(c) or (d) 
corrections

Number of errors 
identified

Accuracy of sales ratio 
studies

Neighborhood 
cleanup

Ensure that neighborhoods are 
appropriately defined and identified 
and address population and sample 
size issues caused by over 
stratification

Reduction in the number of 
neighborhoods and 
increased performance in 
sales ratio studies 

Develop procedures for the definition of 
neighborhoods and ensure consistent 
application of the procedures.  Procedures 
should identify characteristics to be 
considered in the creation of neighborhoods 
and establish population minimums.  Existing 
neighborhoods of insufficient population size 
should be combined where practicable.  
Procedures should also define a plan for 
annual review of neighborhoods

Number of neighborhoods 
with insufficient 
population and sample 
size

Number of 
neighborhoods 
reviewed

Property 
classification

Ensure that property classifications 
are uniform and consistent, and that 
procedures are followed by all staff 
and that careful review and 
consideration is given to each tax 
parcel appraised

Percent of field card 
returned for corrections 

Review existing property classification guides 
to determine applicability in current mass 
appraisal models and modify classification 
guide as necessary in context with model and 
cost tables developed. Create detailed 
standards manuals for the classification of 
property.  Conduct annual training with 
appraisers and utilize aerial photography and 
GIS for data validation and to ensure 
consistent application of standards and 
procedures. Develop work plan for quality 
assurance of property classifications which 
includes manager review of appraiser 
classification determinations

Percentage of properties 
incorrectly classified

Number of 
properties classified 

Percent of accounts 
requesting 25.25(c) or (d) 
corrections

Number of 
properties 
classifications 
corrected by 
manager 

Accuracy of sales ratio 
studies

Sketch 
Verification

Ensure that improvement size 
based on property sketches 
matched actual building footprint

Increased accuracy and 
consistency in property 
sketches and area 
calculations

Utilize aerial photography and GIS to overlay 
existing improvement sketches on top of 
current orthophotography to identify 
improvements where the sketch dimensions 
are incorrect or where property additions have 
been missed

Percentage of properties 
with size corrections

Number of sketches 
pinned to map

Number of changes 
or inspections 
identified

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Strategic 
Goal 

Planning 
Goal 

Objective Outcome 
Measure 

Strategy Output Measure Efficiency 
Measure 

En
su

re
 th

at
 th

e D
ist

ric
t m

ain
ta

in
s a

 h
ig

hl
y e

du
ca

te
d,

 m
ot

iva
te

d 
an

d 
sk

ille
d 

wo
rk

fo
rc

e. 

Increase 
training 
opportunities 

Ensure that district staff receives sufficient training in 
their mission critical duty skills to include customer 
service, exemption administration, programming and 
technology, record maintenance, mapping, and 
basic and advance training in appraisal theory and 
practice. In addition to attaining Registered 
Professional Appraiser certification appraisal staff 
should be encouraged to attain IAAO and Appraisal 
Institute certifications 

Increased 
number of 
appraisal staff 
with RPA, 
IAAO, AI 
certifications 

Increase training budget for external courses and 
provide more internal training opportunities

Percentage of 
employees attaining 
certifications

Number of 
classes attended 
Number of 
internal training 
sessions offered 
Number of 
certifications 
awarded

Management 
training

Provide management training program to increase 
effectiveness and efficiency of managers

Increased 
ability of 
managers to 
create 
functional 
teams, 
manage 
projects, meet 
deadlines, and 
handle 
employee 
relations 

Provide internal training on the following topics: 
Systems thinking, project management, delegating, 
teamwork, motivating staff, effective feedback, 
documenting discipline, and dealing with conflict

Number of 
internal training 
sessions offered 
Number of 
projects 
completed 
Number of 
employee 
coachings

Cross 
departmental 
training

Create a knowledgeable workforce that can assist 
each other and taxpayers without “governmental 
shuffle” by providing cross departmental training so 
that staff may answer basic questions and, if not 
able to answer,  will be able to re-direct questions to 
the appropriate resource

Increased 
knowledge and 
understanding 
by staff of all 
phases of 
appraisal
cycle, 
responsibilities, 
and district 
procedures 
and policies 

Provide opportunities for related departments to cross 
train staff to create a greater understanding amongst 
staff of the full requirements of the appraisal district and 
how each division plays a role.  Newly hired staff 
should spend at minimum one week on Customer 
Service and GIS divisions.  Clerical staff should go out 
in the field with appraisers to understand the field 
inspection process and appraisers should train on data 
entry to understand the importance of accurate and 
complete field card notes

Decreased the 
number of tasks and 
taxpayers transferred 
between 
departments

Employee 
retention

Ensure that the district is able to retain long term 
employees that have developed a lot of institutional 
knowledge and skills

Increased 
average length 
of 
employments 
and increase 
percentage of 
skilled workers 
retiring from 
the district 

Review employee salaries and benefit packages to 
ensure that the district can remain competitive in the 
market. Benefits would include retirement packages, 
health insurance, and sick and vacation time.  Review 
employee reward and recognition programs such as 
service awards and district sponsored morale events. 
Explore non-monetary rewards such as flexible work 
schedule and telecommuting 

Tenure of 
employees 
leaving district 
service

Successful 
planning

The population of the senior management is aging 
and several division directors in key positions are 
currently, or soon will be, eligible for retirement.  
Efforts first must be made to retain these employees 
as long as possible; however, the decision to retire 
is a personal choice and should be respected and 
treated with dignity. Regardless of retirement status 
institutional knowledge from key employees needs 
to be documented and transferred to the next 
generation of leaders 

A well informed 
and trained 
staff ready to 
assume 
leadership 
responsibilities 

Directors and managers should document annual work 
plans which include tasks and deadlines that may not 
be included in departments general procedure 
manuals.  Directors should identify staff with leadership 
potential and offer mentoring and training opportunities 
that will allow theses staff members to become 
prepared to assume leadership responsibilities in the 
future

Documented work 
plans

Technology 
and facilities 

Provide employees an appropriate work 
environment with adequate equipment and space to 
work efficiently

Create an equipment replacement schedule to ensure 
employees are given current technology and are able to work 
efficiently as possible. This schedule includes servers, SAN, 
network equipment, workstation, and peripheral equipment and 
software replacement. Employee workstations and office 
productivity software are scheduled to be replaced in 2013 and 
servers are scheduled for replacement in 2014.   District 
facilities were remodeled in 2009-2011 to provide ergonomic 
cubicle furniture; however, there is limited space for additional 
employee growth.  The district should research potential growth 
solutions such as additions to the existing building, satellite 
offices, or relocation to new facilities and develop 
recommendations based on growth projections

Documented work 
plans

Number of PCs 
replaced

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Strategic 
Goal 

Planning 
Goal 

Objective Outcome 
Measure 

Strategy Output Measure Efficiency 
Measure 

Pr
ov

id
e c

us
to

m
er

 se
rv

ice
 th

at
 is

 co
ur

te
ou

s, 
pr

of
es

sio
na

l a
nd

 ac
cu

ra
te

. 

Emphasize 
customer 
service

Providing excellent customer service should be a 
recognized goal of every employee in the district 

Percentage of 
surveyed 
customers 
expressing 
overall 
satisfaction 
with services 
received

Improve services delivered to our internal and external 
clients through employee training.  Annual and 
mandatory training for all staff in customer service shall 
be conducted.  Employees will be informed of 
expectations and phone calls, meetings and protest 
hearings will be audited by managers to ensure the 
highest level of customer service is attained

Number of customer 
complaints and 
compliments 
received

Number of 
customers 
assisted

Measure 
customer 
service 
feedback

Attain highest rating possible from those we serve 
as evidence by feedback provided through 
interviews, surveys, cards, letters or any other 
measuring device used in the agency

Percentage of 
surveyed 
customers 
expressing 
overall 
satisfaction 
with services 
received

Customer service cards will be placed at the reception 
desk in each department and customers will be 
encouraged to complete the surveys.  The cards will be 
designed to measure the type of assistance (phone, 
online, at office), who the customer interacted with 
(customer service representative, appraiser…) and the 
level of satisfaction with the staff members courtesy, 
professionalism, knowledge, communication, resolution 
of the issue and overall satisfaction 

Number of customers 
surveyed

Number of customers 
served

Provide 
additional 
online 
resources to 
taxpayers

Provide information and resources to taxpayers 
that will be educational and convenient

Percentage of 
surveyed 
customers 
expressing 
overall 
satisfaction 
with services 
received

Improve services delivered to our internal and external 
clients through the districts website, to include; better 
mapping and property search functionality, ability to file 
renditions, homesteads and fiduciary online, providing 
notices of appraised value, improved online protests 
including rescheduling capabilities, and a series of  
informational videos covering topics such as 
homestead applications, mass appraisal procedures, 
field inspections, and property protests

Percentage of 
customers getting 
information from 
website rather than 
phone call of office 
visit

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

The revenue budget for fiscal year 2015 is $17,232,799.  Since the District uses a 
balance budget policy, budgeted assessments to the taxing units must equal budgeted 
expenditures.  Budgeted assessments to the taxing units and budgeted expenditures 
both total $17,149,799.  The additional $83,000 in the revenue budget is for 
miscellaneous income.  This is income that the District is allowed to keep from year to 
year for charges for services, investment income, and other miscellaneous income 
items. 

If the District has a surplus of revenues over expenditures from the preceding year’s 
budget, the District must reduce the current budget allocation to each taxing unit 
proportionately for the year that the surplus is from.  This is shown as a refund of 
appraisal assessments and is a contra revenue account, which consequently reduces 
budgeted revenues required by the taxing units for that fiscal year.  For fiscal year 2015, 
the District does not have any surplus funds being credited back to the taxing units. 

The table and graph below show the total budgeted revenues by source for the fiscal 
year 2015 budget and the previous five years budget history. 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 
Budgeted Revenues: 

Appraisal Assessments  $  11,805,918   $  12,689,610   $  12,914,797   $  13,375,023   $  14,247,231   $17,149,799  
Less Refund/Credit  

of appraisal 
assessments                   -          (789,802)                   -                     -                     -                   -   

Other Miscellaneous 
Revenue                   -                     -                     -                     -              86,500           83,000  

Total Budgeted 
Revenues  $  11,805,918   $  11,899,808   $  12,914,797   $  13,375,023   $  14,333,731   $17,232,799  

Percentage Increase 
over  previous year’s

budget 6.23% 0.75% 1.77% 3.56% 7.17% 20.23% 

The revenue budget for fiscal year 2015 is $17 232 799 Sin

OVERVIEW OF SIGNIFICANT BUDGET ITEMS

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

On a high level view, expenditures are broken down by function.  The District uses four 
categories or functions of expenditures for budgeting purposes: (1) payroll related 
expenditures, (2) operating supplies expenditures, (3) service expenditures and (4) 
capital equipment and debt expenditures.  The chart and graph below outline the 
budgeted expenditures by functions for fiscal year 2015 and the previous five year’s 
budget histories. 

 2010   2011   2012   2013   2014   2015  
Expenditures by Function: 

Payroll  $  9,233,320   $  9,408,750   $  9,478,244   $  9,748,017   $10,327,816   $11,334,988  
Operating Supplies         605,260          630,790          732,163          718,448          665,354         649,159 
Service      2,381,780       2,308,620       2,570,477       2,726,395       2,870,880       4,559,652  
Capital Equipment & Debt         375,360          341,450          133,913          182,163          383,181         606,000  

Total Budgeted Expenditures  $12,595,720   $12,689,610   $12,914,797   $13,375,023   $14,247,231   $17,149,799  

 $10,000,000

 $11,500,000

 $13,000,000

 $14,500,000

 $16,000,000

 $17,500,000

 $19,000,000

Budgeted Revenues- Last Five Fiscal 
Years 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Three general ledger accounts combine to make the capital expenditures function: (1) 
capital equipment, (2) debt service- principal, and (3) debt service- interest.  Capital 
equipment is any fixed asset whose cost is over the capitalization threshold and has an  
useful life greater than one year.  The District has established a capitalization threshold 
of $1,000 or more.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, capital equipment is 
expensed in the period in which it is purchased.  When preparing government-wide 
financial statements, adjusting entries are calculated to account for the depreciation of 
capital equipment, since the government-wide statements use the full accrual basis of 
accounting. 

Debt service principal and interest are treated similar to the capital equipment account.  
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, all debts should be expensed in the 
period that they are incurred.  However, debt is typically a long-term liability and must 
be adjusted when converting to the government-wide statements, which use the full-
accrual basis of accounting. 

The table and graph below outline the capital expenditures & debt function for the fiscal 
year 2014 and the previous five fiscal years budget histories. 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 
Total Capital Expenditures: 

Capital Equipment  $   375,360   $    246,550   $   133,913   $   182,163   $    347,047   $   606,000  
Debt Service- Principal                     -            61,000                     -                      -            29,298                      -   
Debt Service- Interest                     -             33,900                      -                       -               6,836                      -   

Total Capital Expenditures  $   375,360   $    341,450   $   133,913   $   182,163   $    383,181   $   606,000  

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Expenditures by Function 

Payroll Replated Expenditures Operating Supplies Expenditures

Service Expenditures Capital Equip. & Debt

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

The following table provides a broad overview of the major revenue sources and major 
expenditure functions by fiscal year for fiscal year 2015 and the previous five fiscal 
years budget histories. 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 
Budgeted Revenues: 

Appraisal Assessments  $ 11,805,918  $12,689,610   $ 12,914,797   $ 13,375,023  $14,247,231  $17,149,799  
Less Refund/Credit of 
appraisal assessments - (789,802) - - - -
Other Miscellaneous 
Revenue                      -                      -                       -                       -            86,500          83,000  

Total Budgeted Revenues 11,805,918  11,899,808  12,914,797  13,375,023  14,333,731  17,232,799  

Expenditures by Function: 
Payroll      9,233,320      9,408,750       9,478,244       9,748,017    10,327,816   11,334,988  
Operating Supplies          605,260         630,790          732,163          718,448         665,354         649,159  
Service       2,381,780      2,308,620       2,570,477       2,726,395      2,870,880      4,559,652  
Capital Equipment & Debt          375,360         341,450          133,913           182,163        383,181         606,000  

Total Budgeted Expenditures  $ 12,595,720  $12,689,610   $ 12,914,797   $ 13,375,023  $14,247,231  $17,149,799  

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Capital Expenditures Function 

Capital Equipment Debt Service- Principal Debt Service- Interest

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

The fiscal year 2015 proposed budget for the District’s one and only fund, the general 
fund, is $17,149,799, a 20.38% increase from the fiscal year 2014 budget. 

FY 2014
Adopted 
Budget

FY 2015 
Proposed 

Budget $ Change % Change 
General Fund $      14,246,848  $      17,149,799   $    2,902,951  20.38% 

Information on significant budgetary increases and decreases are provided below. 

(The ARB expenditures have been removed from the totals and shown as a department 
total to compare fiscal year 2014 with fiscal year 2015.) 

Budget Category 2015 Budget 2014 Budget 
$ Change 14-

15 
% Change 14-

15 
Salaries 7,228,764 6,587,109 641,655 9.74% 
Auto Allowance 423,750 372,450 51,300 13.77% 
Medicare Tax 110,806 100,257 10,549 10.52% 
Retirement Contribution 1,375,522 1,249,598 125,924 10.08% 
Health Insurance 1,896,123 1,670,097 226,026 13.53% 
Disability Insurance 38,515 33,323 5,192 15.58% 
Books, Publications, Subscriptions & Databases 130,673 97,396 33,277 34.17% 
Training & Education 159,220 75,510 83,710 110.86% 
Legal & Attorney  1,285,000 535,000 750,000 140.19% 
Legal Fees- Expert Witness 250,000 75,000 175,000 233.33% 
Appraisal Services 659,820 68,700 591,120 860.44% 
Professional Services 268,250 115,350 152,900 132.55% 
Rental- Office Machines 47,200 34,900 12,300 35.24% 
Software Maintenance 665,174 578,720 86,454 14.94% 
Property Insurance 7,500 4,630 2,870 61.99% 
Liability Insurance 32,000 28,505 3,495 12.26% 
Capital Equipment 606,000 327,047 278,953 85.29% 

Total Significant Increases 15,241,017 12,004,006 3,237,011 26.97% 

Salaries:  The number of property protests increased 6% in 2013 and 14% in 2014.  
The District has recommended hiring additional appraisal staff to handle the increased 
volume of property tax protests.  The district has increased total position count from 
127.5 in 2014 to 132 in 2015.  The District also conducted a salary survey during the 
budgeting process and determined that the clerical staff and well as residential, land 

The fiscal year 2015 proposed budge

DETAIL BUDGETARY ITEMS

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

and personal property appraisers needed an adjustment to the salary grade to attract 
and retain qualified employees.  

Auto Allowance- The District will add 5 appraisers for fiscal year 2015, all of whom will 
get auto allowance of $6,600 per year. 

Medicare Expenditure- The net increase of 4.5 positions for fiscal year 2015 will 
increase the medicare expenditure as well.  The district pays 1.45% of gross salary to 
medicare for each employee. 

Retirement Expenditure- The district has elected to pay more than the required 
contribution rate to the Texas County & Districts Retirement System.  The District’s 
annual required contribution rate for 2015 is 12.65%.  The district has elected to 
continue paying the 18% elected rate that was chose in fiscal year 2014.  This is an 
additional elected contribution rate of 5.35% that will directly reduce the District’s
unfunded liability. 

Health Insurance- The health care industry is currently undergoing many changes.  
The District has budgeted for a 10% budget increase in 2015 in health care related 
expenditures (26% increase over 2014 actual costs).  The District will know the 2015 
rates late August 2014 or early September 2014. 

Disability Insurance- The District’s disability insurance policy is up for renewal in fiscal 
year 2015.  The district has included a 5% increase for the policy renewal.  The 
disability is paid monthly as a percentage of salary.  Therefore, when salaries increase, 
disability insurance will also increase. The district will receive their actual renewal rates 
in late August or early September. 

Books, Publications, Subscriptions & Databases- Texas is a non-disclosure state 
and sales prices, which are a fundamental data requirement for determining the fair 
market value of property are not provided to the appraisal district.  The district has 
recommended hiring additional staff to research sales information particularly for 
commercial properties where the district currently is only able to acquire 11% of known 
sales.  The district is also requesting additional funding for the purchase of national 
market reports. 

Training & Education- The District is requesting additional education for senior 
appraisal staff in advanced appraisal techniques. The District will also be offering the 
courses in-house that are necessary for appraisers to obtain the International 
Association of Assessing Officers (IAAO) certification.  The cost of each course is 
approximately $3,500, and the District will offer 8 courses during fiscal year 2015. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Legal & Attorney Fees- In the defense of commercial property values, a very high 
consideration for the appraisal district is the cost of litigation.  If the district loses at 
district court by just $1, the district is liable for the plaintiffs’ attorneys’ fees up to 
$100,000 per tax year in litigation.  Due to a limited budget, the District may consider 
settling a commercial property lawsuit through negotiations rather than risk losing at 
district court.  The district is recommending additional funds for litigation so that it may 
pursue market value on cases it feels it has a strong case and may prevail. 

Appraisal Services- The appraisal services account will increase for FY 2015 because 
of the contracted personal property appraisal performed by Capital Appraisal Group.  
This is a new contract that was signed during the 2014 fiscal year.  The testing and 
calibration of mass appraisal models is important to ensuring the accuracy and equity of 
appraisals.  The district has recommended purchasing fee appraisals of 45 commercial 
and 20 high end residential properties to calibrate and/or validate the accuracy of the 
district’s appraisal models. 

Professional Services- The district is requesting a $250,000 increase for the expert 
review of high value properties. 

Rental Office Equipment- Many of the district’s copy machines were at end of life.  
Instead of replacing the copy machines by purchasing numerous new machines, the 
District decided to enter into a rental agreement for this service.   

Software Maintenance- The District’s maintenance contract with True Automation, the 
provider of the District’s CAMA software, increased approximately $100,000 for fiscal 
year 2015.  This is primarily due to the new appraisal field devices that will be used 
during the field work season to improve the workflow and increase productivity. 

Property & Liability Insurance- The District was notified by Texas Municipal League 
(TML) that insurance rates would be increasing for fiscal year 2015.  The District 
estimated this total increase to be approximately $6,365.   

Capital Equipment- The increase in capital equipment is due to the following: 
 $175,000 for the replacement of the current Cisco switches and routers.  

These assets are at the end of their useful life and need to be replaced 
during FY 2015. 

 $70,000 for four additional VM host. These virtual machines will replace 
existing hardware and are able to host numerous server functions of the 
district and are deemed to be a more efficient and effective way of 
replacing this IT infrastructure. 

 $50,000 transfer to the reserve for computer equipment replacement.  
Every 5-7 years, the District must replace the desktop computers for each 
user at the District. This cost can range upwards of $200,000. The District 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

will be creating a reserve so this expenditure can be spread out over 
numerous fiscal years so the budgeting impact is not as burdensome to 
the taxing jurisdictions. 

*See Capital Improvement Project information on pages 49-55. 

Budget Category 2015 Budget 2014 Budget $ Change 14-15 % Change 14-15 
Workers Compensation 32,500 48,980 (16,480) -33.65% 
Paper 14,400 24,350 (9,950) -40.86% 
Operating Supplies- Equipment 40,900 72,600 (31,700) -43.66% 
Furniture & Equipment under $1000 5,000 10,000 (5,000) -50.00% 
Microfilm 1,000 1,200 (200) -16.67% 
Records Management 2,440 3,180 (740) -23.27% 
SOAH 1,500 3,000 (1,500) -50.00% 
Rental- Storage Space 20,450 29,000 (8,550) -29.48% 
Deed Copies 4,000 5,000 (1,000) -20.00% 
Vehicle Fuel 1,800 2,400 (600) -25.00% 
Vehicle Maintenance 600 1,200 (600) -50.00% 
Bank Fees 1,800 3,600 (1,800) -50.00% 
Appraisal Review Board 449,473 635,038 (185,565) -29.22% 
Debt Service-Principal - 34,012 (34,012) -100.00% 
Debt Service-Interest - 10,240 (10,240) -100.00% 
Total Significant Decreases 602,813 918,750 (315,937) (7) 

Workers’ Compensation- The District’s previous provider of workers’ compensation
insurance no longer provides services to special districts. The District was able to move 
the service to Texas Municipal League (TML), which saved the District approximately 
$16,480 annually. 

Paper- The District reduced this budget line item to be more in line with actual 
expenditures from 2013, which totaled $13,902. 

Operating Supplies- Equipment- In FY 2014, the District budgeted for the purchase of 
iPad field devices for all appraisers. The purchase was removed from the FY 2015 
budget. 

Furniture & Equipment under $1,000- The District reduced this budget line item to be 
more in line with actual expenditures from 2013, which totaled $3,250. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Microfilm & Records Management- In FY 2014, the District signed a professional 
services contract with a records management consultant. The District was able to save 
money based on some of the work completed by the consultant, so these line items 
were reduced to the estimate of what actual costs will be. 

SOAH- Since the cost of SOAH increased in FY 2013, the District has had few 
taxpayers choose the SOAH option. Therefore, the District reduced this from two SOAH 
arbitrations in fiscal year 2014 to one SOAH arbitration for fiscal year 2015. 

Rental Storage Space- The records management consultant was able to reduce the 
number of paper records that were previously stored at an offsite warehouse so that the 
District was able to decrease the warehouse size and budget for a cost decrease for FY 
2015. 

Deed Copies- The District reduced this budget line item to be more in line with actual 
expenditures from 2013, which totaled $2,000. 

Vehicle Fuel- The District reduced this budget line item to be more in line with actual 
expenditures from 2013, which totaled $1,515. 

Vehicle Maintenance- The District reduced this budget line item to be more in line with 
actual expenditures from 2013, which totaled $209. 

Bank Fees- The District reduced this budget line item to be more in line with actual 
expenditures from 2013, which totaled $1,466. 

Appraisal Review Board- The District monitored the number of hearing hours closely 
during the previous two fiscal years and were able to better budget this line item. The 
District estimated an average of 536 hours per appraisal review board member for FY 
2015, down from 610 average hours per appraisal review board member for FY 2014. 

Debt Service Principal- The District paid off the capital lease for the purchase of a 
production printer during FY 2013, and therefore, this budget line item was decreased to 
$0. 

Debt Service Interest- The District paid off the capital lease for the purchase of a 
production printer during FY 2013, and therefore, this budget line item was decreased to 
$0. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

In governmental accounting, an expenditure is considered to be a capital expenditure 
when the asset is a newly purchased capital asset or an asset improvement that 
extends the useful life of an existing capital asset.  The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) provides the following authoritative definition of a capital asset 
for state and local governments: 

 The term capital asset includes land, improvements to land, easements, 
buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery, equipment, works of art 
and historical treasures, infrastructure, and all other tangible or intangible assets 
that are used in operations and that have initial useful lives extending beyond a 
single reporting period. 

Per the District’s capitalization policy, if an asset’s cost is $1,000 or greater and the 
useful life of the asset is more than one year, the asset is a capital asset and should be 
capitalized; this requires the District to spread the cost of the expenditure over the 
useful life of the asset.  If, however, the expense is one that maintains the asset at its 
current condition, the cost is expensed fully in the year of the purchase. 

The table on the following page outlines the capital expenditures in the 2015 proposed 
budget.  The total dollar amount of the budgeted capital expenditures for FY 2015 is 
$606,000.  More in depth information on major capital projects can be found in the 
Capital Improvement Program section of this document on pages 49-55. 

Department Capital Asset to be Purchased   Budgeted 
Cost   

Administration (10) A/C Replacements  $         15,000  
TCAD Vehicle Purchase              25,000  
Partitions for Panel Rooms II & III              75,000  
Transfer to Reserve- Capital Expenditures            100,000  

IT (20) Servers               35,000  
Online Protest Expansion Storage                6,000  
Phone System Upgrades                5,000  
Cisco Switches & Routers            175,000  
VM Host (Total of 4)              70,000  
Transfer to Reserve- Computer Equipment Replacement               50,000  
Transfer to Reserves- Network Equipment Replacement              50,000  

                                   Total Capital Expenditures $        606,000 

In governmental accounting an expenditure

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES BUDGET

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

During fiscal year 2014, the District has focused on hiring and maintaining qualified, 
skilled employees.   

Year 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
# of 

Budgeted 
Personnel 110 108 107 112 113 119 128 129 130 128 127.5 132

Actual 
Personnel 93 102 110 103 111 119 120 123 117 116 114 N/A 

Variance 17 6 (3) 9 2 0 8 6 13 12 13.5 N/A 

Budgeted Employees by Function/Program: 

Function/Program 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Appraisal 65 63 61 64 65 69 78 78 79 80 81 89 
Information Systems 36 36 36 37 37 38 37 36 35 33 32 29 
Administration/Genera
l Operations 9 9 10 11 11 12 13 15 16 15 14.5 14 

Total 110 108 107 112 113 119 128 129 130 128 127.5 132 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

Personnel Comparison 

# of Budgeted
Personnel

Actual Personnel

During fiscal year

STAFFING

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) describes fund balance as “The 
net position of a governmental fund (difference between assets, liabilities, deferred 
outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources.”  There are five different 
components of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned) designed to indicate both: 

 Constraints on how resources of the fund can be spent, and  
 The sources of those constraints. 

For fiscal year ending December 31, 2013, the District had a total fund balance of 
$2,679,934 with $377,866 being nonspendable fund balance for prepaid items and 
$2,302,068 being unassigned.  The District anticipates having an excess of revenues 
over expenditures for fiscal year ending December 31, 2014 of approximately $300,000, 
which the District will request from the jurisdictions through a budget amendment to 
append this amount to the 2015 budget. 

The District’s fund balance is also increased by miscellaneous revenue that appraisal 
districts are allowed to exempt from the credit of surplus funds back to the jurisdictions.  

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

Budgeted FTE by Function 

Appraisal

Information Systems

Administration/General
Operations

PROJECTED CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

Miscellaneous revenue includes revenue from the sale of data produced by the District 
as well as any late payment rendition revenue that is split between the District and the 
county tax assessor-collector.  The District expects for the FY ending December 31, 
2014 to have approximately $86,500 in miscellaneous revenue that will increase the 
unassigned fund balance accordingly. 

Fund Balance, December 31, 2013  $      2,679,934  
Estimated Increases in Fund Balance: 

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures for 2014 300,000 
Miscellaneous Revenue 86,500 

Estimated Fund Balance, December 31, 2014 3,066,434 

   

The District is currently focusing on three major long-term financial plans: (1) the state 
of the TCDRS retirement plan, (2) IT replacements that need to be done every 3 to 5 
years, and (3) the need for a larger building in the near future.  

The District’s retirement system is currently 89.1% funded.  The District’s long-term goal 
is for the retirement system to be 95.0% funded.  The District has also implemented a 
new policy where approval letters are sent out to all of the taxing units to approve for the 
District to use surplus funds (the excess of revenues over expenditures) to satisfy the 
District’s future obligations.  Some of the excess funds will be applied to the District’s 
retirement plan to decrease the District’s unfunded liability. In FY 2013, the District was 
able to make a lump sum contribution to the retirement system of approximately $1.2 
million.  In FY 2014, the District was able to make sump sum contribution to the 
retirement system of approximately $1 million. The effect of that contribution is seen in 
the 2015 required contribution rate.  The District has also elected to pay a higher 
elected rate of 18.0% for FY 2015 instead of the required contribution rate of 12.65%.  
The excess payment directly reduces the District’s unfunded liability.

Every five to seven years the District’s needs to purchase new computer equipment as
well as new networking equipment that could cost upwards of $800,000. This a large 
expense to include in the budget for one year. The cost increases the budget 
significantly and increases the amount due from the taxing units significantly. This 
makes the expenditures of the District unpredictable for the taxing units and difficult for 
them to budget for. The District has decided to set up reserve accounts and budget for a 
portion of the total cost to be put in the reserve account each year. For FY 2015, the 

The District is currently focusing on three

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANS

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 
Proposed Budget 

 

District made a small step in implementing the plan by including approximately 
$100,000 in the administration budget for reserves for capital expenditures and 
$100,000 in the information technology budget for reserves for computer and network 
expenditures. 

The District continues to grow at a rapidly increasing rate. In the next three to five years, 
the District expects that we will outgrow the building that we are currently in. The District 
has begun making a plan on how to solve this problem (i.e. whether to purchase a new 
building, set up a satellite office, etc.), but no conclusion has been reached. 

CONTACT INFORMATION

Should you have any questions about the District’s FY 2015 budget or the budgeting 
process, please contact Leana H. Mann, Finance & Facilities Office for the Travis 
Central Appraisal District at (512)834-9317 Ext. 405 or by e-mail at 
Lmann@tcadcentral.org.

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

District Budget | 34  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Budget Comparison 

   
$ Change   

% 
Change 

  Budget Category 2015 Budget 2014 Budget 14-15 14-15 2013 Budget 2013 Actual 

REVENUES:             

  Assessments       17,149,799        14,246,848      2,902,951  20.38%       13,375,023        13,375,023  

  Refund of appraisal assessments                     -                  -    0.00%                   -                      -    

  Investment earnings              3,000               6,500           (3,500) -53.85%                   -                 5,231  

  Charges for services             20,000              20,000                -    0.00%                   -                23,673  

  Miscellaneous Revenue             60,000              60,000                -    0.00%                   -                69,909  

  
   

            

      Total Revenue       17,232,799        14,333,348      2,899,451  20.23%       13,375,023        13,473,835  

  
   

            

EXPENDITURES:             

  Payroll Expenditures             

  
 

Salaries        7,228,763         6,587,109        641,654  9.74%        5,843,152         5,982,039  

  
 

Auto Allowance           423,750            372,450          51,300  13.77%           365,850            342,148  

  
 

Overtime             56,700              50,414            6,286  12.47%             66,000              45,222  

  
 

Seasonal & Temporary             32,000              32,000                -    0.00%             73,700              58,056  

  
 

Medicare Tax           110,806            100,257          10,549  10.52%             98,446              84,959  

  
 

Retirement Contribution        1,375,522         1,249,598        125,924  10.08%        2,412,162         2,350,752  

  
 

Health Insurance        1,896,123         1,670,097        226,026  13.53%        1,215,379         1,083,395  

  
 

Dental Insurance             33,499              30,703            2,796  9.11%             46,080              29,716  

  
 

Life Insurance             22,405              20,537            1,868  9.10%             22,947              17,605  

  
 

Disability Insurance             38,515              33,323            5,192  15.58%             34,199              25,180  

  
 

Long Term Care             50,322              48,431            1,891  3.90%                   -                 4,510  

  
 

Employee Assistance Program              3,390               3,390                -    0.00%              3,390               3,390  

  
 

Workers Compensation             32,500              48,980         (16,480) -33.65%             48,980              40,213  

  
 

Unemployment Insurance             30,693              29,539            1,154  3.91%             24,616               2,636  

      Total Payroll Expenditures       11,334,988        10,276,828   1,058,160  10.30%       10,254,899        10,069,820  

  Operating Expenditures             

  
 

Printing           111,460            114,407           (2,947) -2.58%           134,046            100,032  

  
 

Paper             14,400              24,350           (9,950) -40.86%             22,300              13,902  

  
 

Postage & Freight- In House           103,500            103,500                -    0.00%           122,350            103,342  

  
 

Postage & Freight- Special Services           154,500            171,500         (17,000) -9.91%           143,000            136,745  

  
 

Operating Supplies             70,286              78,630           (8,344) -10.61%             69,840              52,036  

  
 

Operating Supplies- Equipment             40,900              72,600         (31,700) -43.66%             78,964            101,092  

  
 

Operating Supplies- Software             15,000              15,000                -    0.00%             27,000              26,646  

  
 

Furniture & Equipment under $1000              5,000              10,000           (5,000) -50.00%              3,250               3,250  

  
 

Books, Publications, Subscriptions 
& Databases           130,673              97,396          33,277  34.17%             90,222              80,799  

  
 

Microfilm              1,000               1,200             (200) -16.67%              1,000                    25  

    Records Management              2,440               3,180             (740) -23.27%              2,940               1,816  

      Total Operating Expenditures           649,159            691,763         (42,604) -6.16%           694,913            619,686  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

District Budget | 35  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Budget Comparison 

 
2015 2014 $ Change   

% 
Change 2013 

 Budget Category Budget Budget 14-15 14-15 Budget 2013 Actual 

  Service Expenditures             

  
 

Dues & Memberships             14,115              15,595          (1,480) -9.49%             15,500              14,368  

  
 

Travel, Meals & Lodging             19,630              19,910             (280) -1.41%             40,720              11,843  

  
 

Training & Education           159,220              75,510          83,710  110.86%             95,550              77,262  

  
 

Advertising & Legal Notices             34,000              31,250            2,750  8.80%             23,000              26,586  

  
 

Employee Recognition             17,000              17,000                -    0.00%             10,000               7,025  

  
 

Board of Directors             26,950              34,950           (8,000) -22.89%             25,000              18,139  

  
 

Utilities           102,960            102,720              240  0.23%             92,924              88,599  

  
 

Telephone             28,800              27,600            1,200  4.35%             32,800              26,833  

  
 

Wireless Internet             33,300              35,400           (2,100) -5.93%             16,400              15,429  

  
 

Internet Services             29,900              32,600           (2,700) -8.28%             44,860              43,279  

  
 

Legal & Attorney         1,285,000            535,000        750,000  140.19%           535,000              47,879  

  
 

Legal & Attorney- Personnel             40,000              40,000                -    0.00%             40,000              43,332  

  
 

SOAH              1,500               3,000           (1,500) -50.00%              2,100                    -    

  
 

Arbitration Refunds             28,125              28,125                -    0.00%             28,125               1,850  

  
 

Legal Fees- Expert Witness           250,000              75,000        175,000  233.33%             75,000              15,000  

  
 

Accounting & Audit             15,745              15,745                -    0.00%             15,500              15,215  

  
 

Appraisal Services           659,820              68,700        591,120  860.44%             67,700              67,700  

  
 

Professional Services           268,250            115,350        152,900  132.55%           189,600            132,700  

  
 

Professional Services- TA                   -                      -                  -    0.00%             10,000                    -    

  
 

Professional Services- Payroll             32,000              32,000                -    0.00%             28,000              29,044  

  
 

Rental- Office Machines             47,200              34,900          12,300  35.24%             15,200              16,190  

  
 

Rental- Storage Space             20,450              29,000           (8,550) -29.48%             27,800              27,737  

  
 

Repair & Maintenance- Equipment             77,800              72,970            4,830  6.62%             64,310              31,090  

  
 

Building Maintenance             62,700              62,700                -    0.00%             41,400              28,705  

  
 

Building Cleaning Service             41,700              41,700                -    0.00%             39,200              38,229  

  
 

Software Maintenance           665,174            578,720          86,454  14.94%           452,544            354,679  

  
 

Property Insurance              7,500               4,630            2,870  61.99%              5,250               3,978  

  
 

Liability Insurance             32,000              28,505            3,495  12.26%             26,600              26,562  

  
 

Security Services             22,900              22,900                -    0.00%             26,900              18,873  

  
 

Aerial Photography             78,240              78,240                -    0.00%             90,000              75,740  

  
 

Deed Copies              4,000               5,000           (1,000) -20.00%              4,000               2,000  

  
 

Vehicle Fuel              1,800               2,400             (600) -25.00%              2,400               1,515  

  
 

Vehicle Maintenance                 600               1,200             (600) -50.00%                 600                  209  

  
 

Bank Fees              1,800               3,600           (1,800) -50.00%              5,400               1,466  

  
 

Prompt Pay Discount                   -                      -                  -    0.00%                   -                     (53) 

    Appraisal Review Board           449,473            635,038       (185,565) -29.22%           629,646            500,221  

      Total Service Expenditures  $     4,559,652   $     2,906,958   $ 1,652,694  56.85%  $     2,819,029   $     1,809,223  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

District Budget | 36  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Budget Comparison 
 

 
2015 2014 $ Change   % Change 2013 

 Budget Category Budget Budget 14-15 14-15 Budget 2013 Actual 

  Capital Equipment and Debt:             

  
 

Capital Equipment           606,000            327,047        278,953  85.29%           615,949            370,516  

  
 

Debt Service-Principal                   -                34,012         (34,012) -100.00%             23,588              23,588  

    Debt Service-Interest                   -                10,240         (10,240) -100.00%             11,116              11,116  

  
  
 Total Capital & Debt  $      606,000   $       371,299   $    234,701  63.21%  $       650,653   $       405,220  

  
   

  
 

  
 

    

    Total Expenditures  $ 17,149,799   $  14,246,848   $ 2,902,951  20.38%  $   14,419,493   $   12,903,949  

  
   

  
 

  
 

    

  Net Change in Fund Balance             83,000              86,500           (3,500)               (0)       (1,044,470)           569,886  

  
   

  
 

  
 

    

  Fund Balance, beginning of year        2,572,909         2,572,909      2,572,909     2,572,909         2,107,909         2,107,909  

  
   

  
 

  
 

    

  Fund Balance, end of year  $   2,655,909   $    2,659,409   $ 2,569,409   $2,572,909   $     1,063,439   $     2,677,795  

 

 

 

2014 Total Budget   $   14,246,848  

2015 Total Budget   $   17,149,799  

  
 

  

$ Change in Total Budget   $     2,902,951  

% Change in Total Budget  20.38% 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

District Budget | 37  
 

Budget Admin Information Customer Tech Appeals Commercial Land Per Prop Residential ARB Total 

Category   Technology Service Support   Appraisal Appraisal Appraisal Appraisal   Budget 

# Personnel 8  12  17  21  6  10  6  12  40   NA 132  

Salaries            680,591            784,183            704,164                 834,112             507,057               648,089          346,908             655,159           2,068,501          425,778        7,654,541  

Auto Allowance              13,050  
   

             13,500                 57,600            31,200               66,000              242,400  
 

         423,750  

Overtime                4,000                8,200              10,000                   25,000                 2,000  
  

               2,500                  5,000  
 

           56,700  

Seasonal & Temporary                5,000  
  

                 27,000  
      

           32,000  

Medicare Tax                9,328              11,580              10,171                   12,554                 7,530                 10,214              5,464               10,457                33,508  
 

        110,806  

Retirement Contribution            115,799            143,749            126,267                 155,840               93,470               126,795            67,831             129,809              415,962  
 

  1,375,522  

Health Insurance            211,463            163,032            230,961                 285,305               81,516               135,860            81,516             163,032              543,439  
 

1,896,123  

Dental Insurance                2,267               3,022                4,282                     5,289                 1,511                   2,519              1,511                 3,022                10,075  
 

          33,499  

Life Insurance                1,516                2,022                2,864                     3,538                 1,011                   1,685              1,011                 2,022                 6,738  
 

     22,405  

Disability Insurance                3,242                4,025                3,535                     4,364                 2,617                   3,550              1,899                 3,635                11,647  
 

         38,515  

Long Term Care                3,405                4,540                6,432                     7,946                 2,270                   3,784              2,270                 4,540                15,134  
 

     50,322  

Employee Assistance Program                3,390  
         

      3,390  

Workers Compensation              32,500  
         

           32,500  

Unemployment Insurance                2,077                2,769                3,923                     4,846                 1,385                   2,308              1,385                 2,769                  9,231                30,693  

     Total Payroll Costs         1,087,628         1,127,121         1,102,601              1,365,794             713,867               992,404          540,995          1,042,944           3,361,635          425,778  
                

11,760,766  

Printing                1,500            108,610                   100                        100                     50                      150                 100                    200                     650                 100       111,560  

Paper                8,400                6,000  
        

      14,400  

Postage & Freight- In House            103,500  
         

         103,500  

Postage & Freight- Special Services             154,500  
        

     154,500  

Operating Supplies              18,260              35,336                5,734                     3,024                 1,440                      600                 900                    792                  4,200              1,020      71,306  

Operating Supplies- Equipment               40,900  
        

        40,900  

Operating Supplies- Software 
 

            15,000  
        

    15,000  

Furniture & Equipment under $1000                5,000  
         

      5,000  
Books, Publications, Subscriptions & 
Databases              46,806                3,920              12,115  

 
               5,735  

                
47,040                 700               10,492                  3,865  

 
      130,673  

Microfilm                1,000  
         

           1,000  

Records Management                2,440                          2,440  

     Total Operating Supplies 
            

186,906  
           

364,266              17,949                     3,124                 7,225  
                

47,790  
             

1,700               11,484                  8,715              1,120  
                         

650,279  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

District Budget | 38  
 

Budget Admin Information Customer Tech Appeals Commercial Land Per Prop Residential ARB Total 

Category   Technology Service Support   Appraisal Appraisal Appraisal Appraisal   Budget 

Dues & Memberships                8,000                     90                    45                          90                 3,030                      655                 225                    540                  1,440  
 

   14,115  

Travel, Meals & Lodging              18,130  
   

               1,500  
     

     19,630  

Training & Education             115,410                8,310                   250                     2,750                 2,000                   7,500               2,700                 3,500                 16,800  11,275     170,495  

Advertising & Legal Notices              31,500  
   

               2,500  
     

    34,000  

Employee Recognition              17,000  
        

    300       17,300  

Board of Directors              26,950  
         

      26,950  

Utilities             102,960  
         

102,960  

Telephone              28,800  
         

          28,800  

Wireless Internet              33,300  
         

         33,300  

Internet Services                29,900  
        

        29,900  

Legal & Attorney    
   

         1,285,000  
    

11,000         1,296,000  

Legal & Attorney- Personnel              40,000  
         

          40,000  

SOAH   
   

               1,500  
     

      1,500  

Arbitration Refunds   
   

             28,125  
     

            28,125  

Legal Fees- Expert Witness   
   

            250,000  
     

     250,000  

Accounting & Audit              15,745  
         

      15,745  

Appraisal Services             582,820               77,000  
        

  659,820  

Professional Services             268,250  
         

   268,250  

Professional Services- Payroll              32,000  
         

         32,000  

Rental- Office Machines              35,200               12,000  
        

      47,200  

Rental- Storage Space                8,450               12,000  
        

        20,450  
Repair & Maintenance- 
Equipment                8,700               67,300                1,800  

       
       77,800  

Building Maintenance              62,700  
         

         62,700  

Building Cleaning Service              41,700  
         

   41,700  

Software Maintenance              665,174  
        

 665,174  

Property Insurance                7,500  
         

       7,500  

Liability Insurance              32,000  
         

            32,000  

Security Services              22,900  
         

      22,900  

Aerial Photography                78,240  
        

        78,240  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

District Budget | 39  
 

 

Budget Admin Information Customer Tech Appeals Commercial Land Per Prop Residential ARB Total 

Category   Technology Service Support   Appraisal Appraisal Appraisal Appraisal   Budget 

Deed Copies   
 

              4,000  
       

             4,000  

Vehicle Fuel                1,800  
         

          1,800  

Vehicle Maintenance                   600  
         

           600  

Bank Fees                1,800  
         

         1,800  

Credit Card Fees   
         

                  -    

     Total Services          1,544,215             950,014                6,095                     2,840           1,573,655                   8,155               2,925                 4,040                 18,240  
          

22,575         4,132,754  

Capital Equipment             215,000             391,000  
        

   606,000  

Debt Service-Principal   
         

                -    

Debt Service-Interest                                    -    

   Total Capital & Debt             215,000             391,000                     -                            -                        -                          -                     -                        -                         -    
                 

-    
                         

606,000  

        Total Expenditure          3,033,749          2,832,401          1,126,645               1,371,758           2,294,747             1,048,349           545,620           1,058,468            3,388,590  
         

449,473  
                     

17,149,799  

    
   

    
   

    

 

$17,149,799   

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

District Budget | 40  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Departmental Budget Recap 
 

Department 
Number of 
Employees  2015 Budget  

% of TCAD 
Budget 

Administration 8  $3,033,749 17.69% 

Information Technology 12  $2,832,401 16.52% 

Customer Service 17  $1,126,645 6.57% 

Technical Support 21  $1,371,758 8.00% 

Appeals 6  $2,294,747 13.38% 

Commercial Appraisal 10  $1,048,349 6.11% 

Land/Ag Appraisal 6  $545,620 3.18% 

Personal Property Appraisal 12  $1,058,468 6.17% 

Residential Appraisal 40  $3,388,590 19.76% 

Appraisal Review Board *   $449,473 2.62% 

Total Appraisal District 132  17,149,799  100.00% 

        
 
 

* The ARB, while included in the district budget, is managed separately from the appraisal 
district. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

District Budget | 41  
 

Administration 
17.69% 

Information Technology 
16.52% 

Customer Service 
6.57% 

Technical Support 
8.00% 

Appeals 
13.38% 

Commercial Appraisal 
6.11% 

Land/Ag Appraisal 
3.18% 

Personal Property 
Appraisal 

6.17% 

Residential Appraisal 
19.76% 

ARB 
2.62% 

% of Total Budget by Department 

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

Payroll Cost by Department 

$

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

Total Expenditures by Department 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Departmental Budget Recap 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Revenue Budget | 42  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Revenue Budget 
 
The revenue budget for fiscal year 2015 is $17,232,799.  Since the District uses a balanced 
budget policy, budgeted assessments to the taxing units must equal budgeted expenditures.  
Budgeted assessments to the taxing units and budgeted expenditures both total $17,149,799.  
The additional $83,000 in the revenue budget is for miscellaneous income.  This is income that 
the District is allowed to keep from year to year for charges for services, investment income 
and other miscellaneous income items. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assessments to the taxing entities: Most of the District’s revenue comes from the taxing 

entities of Travis County.  The District serves the 120 taxing entities which lie within Travis 
County, including 21 cities, 15 school districts, 14 emergency districts, the county government, 
the hospital district, the junior college and 67 special districts.  Each taxing entity is allocated a 
portion of the budget equal to the proportion that the total dollar amount of property taxes 
imposed in the District by the unit for the tax year in which the budget proposal is prepared 
bears the sum of the total dollar amount of property taxes imposed in the District by each 
participating unit for that year.  The budget liability is then divided into four equal installments 
paid at the beginning of each quarter.  If a taxing unit decides not to impose taxes for any tax 
year, the unit is not liable for any costs of operating the District for that year, and those costs 
are then allocated amongst the other taxing entities.  The revenue budget for assessments 
from the taxing entities totals $17,149,799 for the 2015 fiscal year.  A chart showing each 

Assessments to the 
taxing entities 

99.51% 

Micellaneous Revenue 
0.35% 

Charges for Services 
0.12% 

Investment Income 
0.02% 

Other Income 
0.49% 

Where the Money Comes From... 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Revenue Budget | 43  
 

taxing unit and their proportionate share along with the information used to calculate their 
budget liability to the District is provided on pages XX-XX. 

If the District has a surplus of revenues over expenditures from the preceding year’s budget, 

the District must reduce the current budget allocation to each taxing unit proportionately for the 
year that the surplus is from.  This is shown as a refund of appraisal assessments and is a 
contra revenue account, which consequently reduces budgeted revenues required by the 
taxing units for that fiscal year.  For fiscal year 2015, the District does not have any surplus 
funds being credited back to the taxing units. 

Other Income: Other income, totaling 0.49% of the District’s revenue budget, is comprised of 

(1) charges for services, (2) investment income and (3) miscellaneous revenue. 

Investment Income $           3,000  3.61% 
Charges for Services             20,000  24.10% 
Miscellaneous Revenue             60,000  72.29% 

 
$         83,000  100.00% 

 

Investment Income: The District currently has two high-yield savings accounts that fluctuate 
between 0.05% and 0.15% yield.  The budgeted investment income for fiscal year 2015 was 
decreased due to the nationally low interest rates.  The total investment income of $3,000 is 
0.02% of the total revenue budget. 

Charges for Services: The District collects fees from taxpayers and other agencies for data 
provided.  Examples of data provided by the District for a fee are maps of the county and data 
exports from the Districts appraisal software.  The total budget for charges for services is 
$20,000 or 0.12% of the total revenue budget. 

Miscellaneous Revenue:  A large portion of miscellaneous revenue is from the rendition 
penalty collected for renditions not filed timely.  These penalties are collected by the county tax 
office and split between the tax office and the appraisal district.  The total budget for 
miscellaneous revenue is $60,000 or 0.42% of the total revenue budget. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Revenue Budget | 44  
 

 

The 

District makes the assumption each year when estimating revenues for the budget that all 
taxing entities will pay their liability in full.  The District’s amount of uncollected funds ranges 

from 99.96% to 100.00% of total budget liability collected.   

Fiscal Year 
Ended Dec. 

31, 
Total Assessments to 

Taxing Entities Amount Collected 

Surplus 
Credit/Refund- 
Reduction of 

Liability 
Amount Not 

Collected 

Percent of 
Assessment 

Collected 

2003 8,441,948 8,441,948  - 100.00% 

2004 8,164,660 8,164,660  - 100.00% 

2005 8,122,200 8,122,200  - 100.00% 

2006 8,325,763 8,325,763  - 100.00% 

2007 9,829,300 8,927,273 902,018 9 100.00% 

2008 10,674,750 10,674,750  - 100.00% 

2009 11,856,540 11,856,540  - 100.00% 

2010 12,595,720 11,801,483 789,802 4,435 99.96% 

2011 12,689,610 12,076,873 612,738 (1) 100.00% 

2012 12,914,797 11,655,130 1,259,667 - 100.00% 

2013 13,375,023 13,375,023  - 100.00% 

 

  

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

 $16,000,000

 $18,000,000

Budgeted Revenues- Last Five Fiscal Years 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Revenue Budget | 45  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

2015 Estimated Jurisdiction Liabilities 
 

Entity 
ID Entity Name 

Freeze Adj M&O 
Taxable Value 

2013 Tax 
Rate 2013 Total Levy 

Percent 
of 

Liability 2015 Budget Liability 
2015 Quarterly 

Payments 

01 AUSTIN ISD  $ 63,486,989,864   $  1.2420   $ 836,400,872.89  30.0381%  $            5,151,471.76   $ 1,287,867.94  

02 CITY OF AUSTIN     84,364,881,753      0.5027      424,102,260.57  15.2310%                2,612,085.77         653,021.44  

03 TRAVIS COUNTY   107,493,387,005      0.4946      531,662,292.13  19.0939%                3,274,558.14         818,639.53  

05 CITY OF MANOR         259,671,214      0.8095         2,102,038.48  0.0755%                    12,946.65            3,236.66  

06 DEL VALLE ISD       3,438,752,522      1.4700        51,698,818.76  1.8567%                  318,417.89           79,604.47  

07 LAKE TRAVIS ISD       6,240,177,180      1.4075        97,930,147.77  3.5170%                  603,161.00         150,790.25  

08 EANES ISD       9,248,156,379      1.2125      123,787,850.34  4.4457%                  762,421.03         190,605.26  

09 CITY OF WEST LAKE HILLS       1,369,070,244      0.0534            731,083.51  0.0263%                      4,502.81            1,125.70  

1A HAYS CONSOLIDATED ISD             7,583,290      1.4613            117,423.98  0.0042%                        723.23               180.81  

1C TRAVIS CO ESD NO 3       2,157,154,450      0.0964         2,079,496.89  0.0747%                    12,807.82            3,201.95  

1D TRAVIS CO MUD NO 5           84,942,517      0.8120            689,733.24  0.0248%                      4,248.13            1,062.03  

1F TANGLEWD FOREST LTD DIST         247,510,958      0.1930            477,696.15  0.0172%                      2,942.18               735.54  

1H COTTONWD CREEK MUD NO 1           44,381,939      1.0900            483,763.14  0.0174%                      2,979.54               744.89  

1J CYPRESS RANCH WCID NO 1           62,393,496      0.9000            561,541.46  0.0202%                      3,458.59               864.65  

10 TRAVIS CO WCID NO 10       2,700,334,507      0.0297            801,999.35  0.0288%                      4,939.59            1,234.90  

11 CITY OF ROLLINGWOOD         510,848,998      0.2264         1,156,562.13  0.0415%                      7,123.38            1,780.84  

12 VILLAGE OF SAN LEANNA           44,060,719      0.2498            110,063.68  0.0040%                        677.89               169.47  

16 LAGO VISTA ISD       1,027,610,091      1.3200        15,632,049.33  0.5614%                    96,279.26           24,069.82  

17 TRAVIS CO WCID NO 17       4,224,377,271      0.0575         2,429,016.93  0.0872%                    14,960.54            3,740.14  

18 TRAVIS CO WCID NO 18         459,064,103      0.2113            970,002.45  0.0348%                      5,974.34            1,493.58  

19 PFLUGERVILLE ISD       7,409,306,037      1.5400      119,204,863.34  4.2811%                  734,193.98         183,548.50  

2A ELGIN ISD         151,111,308      1.5400         2,509,086.61  0.0901%                    15,453.70            3,863.43  

2D TRAVIS CO MUD NO 6         152,776,344      0.4710            719,576.58  0.0258%                      4,431.94            1,107.98  

2F CITY OF ROUND ROCK         269,565,453      0.4195         1,130,800.12  0.0406%                      6,964.70            1,741.18  

2G WMSN CO WSID DIST 3           46,401,878      0.8150            378,175.31  0.0136%                      2,329.22               582.30  

2H NE TRAVIS CO UTILITY DIST         170,390,938      0.8993         1,532,325.71  0.0550%                      9,437.74            2,359.43  

2J 
TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTHCARE 
DISTRICT   107,599,319,620      0.1290      138,803,122.31  4.9849%                  854,901.50         213,725.38  

20 CITY OF PFLUGERVILLE       3,014,578,645      0.5736        17,291,623.11  0.6210%                  106,500.74           26,625.18  

21 CITY OF LAKEWAY       2,818,309,927      0.1748         4,926,405.75  0.1769%                    30,342.20            7,585.55  

22 COUPLAND ISD             2,799,009      1.0401              35,540.33  0.0013%                        218.90                 54.72  

23 
TRAVIS CO WCID POINT 
VENTURE         155,280,687      0.3991            619,725.22  0.0223%                      3,816.95               954.24  

25 HURST CREEK MUD         387,514,640      0.3950         1,530,682.83  0.0550%                      9,427.62            2,356.90  

26 LAKEWAY MUD         971,569,973      0.1963         1,907,191.86  0.0685%                    11,746.57            2,936.64  

27 LOST CREEK MUD         703,436,956      0.1150            808,952.50  0.0291%                      4,982.41            1,245.60  

3A MARBLE FALLS ISD         391,863,379      1.2800         5,976,007.02  0.2146%                    36,806.79            9,201.70  

3C 
TRAVIS CO WCID 17 STEINER 
RANCH (DA)       1,722,599,821      0.4498         7,748,253.99  0.2783%                    47,722.23           11,930.56  

3D TRAVIS CO MUD NO 7             1,694,479      0.9089              15,401.12  0.0006%                          94.86                 23.71  

3F CITY OF CEDAR PARK         321,326,930      0.4925         1,597,679.27  0.0574%                      9,840.26            2,460.06  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Revenue Budget | 46  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

2015 Estimated Jurisdiction Liabilities 
 

Entity 
ID Entity Name 

Freeze Adj M&O 
Taxable Value 

2013 
Tax Rate 2013 Total Levy 

Percent 
of 

Liability 
2015 Budget 

Liability 

2015 
Quarterly 
Payments 

3G TRAVIS CO MUD NO 14           64,489,408      0.9900            638,445.14  0.0229%                      3,932.24               983.06  

32 WELLS BRANCH MUD         756,183,101      0.4600         3,478,442.26  0.1249%                    21,424.05            5,356.01  

33 SHADY HOLLOW MUD         247,317,678      0.0500            123,658.84  0.0044%                        761.63               190.41  

34 MANOR ISD       2,427,707,195      1.5150        47,725,404.32  1.7140%                  293,945.26          73,486.32  

35 TRAVIS CO WCID NO 19         174,103,309      0.2600            452,668.60  0.0163%                      2,788.03               697.01  

37 TRAVIS CO WCID NO 20         337,716,824      0.2400            810,520.38  0.0291%                      4,992.07            1,248.02  

38 DRIPPING SPRINGS ISD             8,369,920      1.4900            157,877.97  0.0057%                        972.39               243.10  

39 TRAVIS CO ESD NO 9       5,556,395,178      0.0808         4,489,567.30  0.1612%                    27,651.67            6,912.92  

4A JOHNSON CITY ISD             9,194,934      1.1600            126,429.42  0.0045%                        778.69               194.67  

4D TRAVIS CO MUD NO 8           63,985,248      0.7213            461,525.59  0.0166%                      2,842.58               710.64  

4F TRAVIS CO MUD NO 10           93,444,439      0.7270            679,341.07  0.0244%                      4,184.13            1,046.03  

4H 
TRAVIS CO WCID 17 
FLINTROCK (DA)         227,450,347      0.4656         1,059,008.82  0.0380%                      6,522.54            1,630.63  

40 CITY OF CREEDMOOR           43,551,786      0.3873            168,676.07  0.0061%                      1,038.89               259.72  

41 TRAVIS CO ESD NO 1       2,096,412,221      0.1000         2,096,412.22  0.0753%                    12,912.00            3,228.00  

49 CITY OF LAGO VISTA         599,285,355      0.6500         3,895,354.81  0.1399%                    23,991.86            5,997.96  

5A ROUND ROCK ISD       5,051,763,262      1.3674        73,945,454.23  2.6556%                  455,437.02        113,859.25  

5D TRAVIS CO MUD NO 9             3,418,902      0.8756              29,935.91  0.0011%                        184.38                 46.09  

5E SENNA HILLS MUD         232,215,395      0.5490         1,274,862.52  0.0458%                      7,852.00            1,963.00  

5F CITY OF ELGIN           36,385,912      0.7539            274,313.39  0.0099%                      1,689.52               422.38  

5G VILLAGE OF VOLENTE         156,694,061      0.1300            203,702.28  0.0073%                      1,254.62               313.66  

5H VILLAGE OF WEBBERVILLE           17,371,126      0.2774              48,187.50  0.0017%                        296.79                 74.20  

50 CITY OF JONESTOWN         373,931,220      0.5750         2,150,104.52  0.0772%                    13,242.70            3,310.67  

51 TRAVIS CO ESD NO 11         754,559,551      0.1000            754,559.55  0.0271%                      4,647.40            1,161.85  

52 TRAVIS CO ESD NO 6       9,841,388,278      0.1000         9,841,388.28  0.3534%                    60,614.04          15,153.51  

55 VILLAGE OF BRIARCLIFF         203,065,945      0.1175            238,602.49  0.0086%                      1,469.58               367.39  

56 TRAVIS CO ESD NO 5         902,775,069      0.0978            882,914.02  0.0317%                      5,437.95            1,359.49  

57 TRAVIS CO ESD NO 4       1,423,541,887      0.0999         1,422,118.35  0.0511%                      8,758.96            2,189.74  

58 TRAVIS CO ESD NO 10       1,372,725,981      0.1000         1,372,725.98  0.0493%                      8,454.75            2,113.69  

59 RIVER PLACE MUD         452,135,460      0.3350         1,514,653.79  0.0544%                      9,328.90            2,332.22  

6E WEST TRAVIS CO MUD NO 3         190,899,564      0.2720            519,246.81  0.0186%                      3,198.09               799.52  

6F CITY OF LEANDER         307,032,012      0.6679         2,253,933.35  0.0809%                    13,882.19            3,470.55  

6G TRAVIS CO MUD NO 15         228,123,219      0.3325            758,509.70  0.0272%                      4,671.73            1,167.93  

6H WEST TRAVIS CO MUD NO 6         264,877,138      0.4500         1,191,947.12  0.0428%                      7,341.31            1,835.33  

6J WEST TRAVIS CO MUD NO 8         115,154,107      0.8400            967,294.50  0.0347%                      5,957.66            1,489.41  

61 CITY OF MUSTANG RIDGE           51,457,739      0.4188            215,505.01  0.0077%                      1,327.32               331.83  

68 AUSTIN COMM COLL DIST     95,274,208,806      0.0949        90,415,224.16  3.2471%                  556,875.88        139,218.97  

69 LEANDER ISD       5,834,402,501      1.5119        95,088,719.38  3.4150%                  585,660.38        146,415.09  

7A MOORES CROSSING MUD           67,726,265      0.9900            670,490.02  0.0241%                      4,129.61            1,032.40  

7D WEST TRAVIS CO MUD NO 5         204,454,513      0.2600            531,581.73  0.0191%                      3,274.06               818.52  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Revenue Budget | 47  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

2015 Estimated Jurisdiction Liabilities 
 

Entity 
ID Entity Name 

Freeze Adj M&O 
Taxable Value 

2013 
Tax 
Rate 2013 Total Levy 

Percent of 
Liability 

2015 Budget 
Liability 

2015 Quarterly 
Payments 

7E VILLAGE OF THE HILLS         346,356,914     0.0248              85,896.51  0.0031%                        529.04               132.26  

7F VILLAGE OF POINT VENTURE         158,797,844     0.1050            166,737.74  0.0060%                      1,026.95               256.74  

7G WILBARGER CRK MUD NO 1           20,265,579     0.9484            192,198.75  0.0069%                      1,183.77               295.94  

7H WILBARGER CRK MUD NO 2             3,589,887     0.9500              34,103.93  0.0012%                        210.05                 52.51  

70 TRAVIS CO MUD NO 2         113,905,534    0.9800         1,116,274.23  0.0401%                      6,875.24            1,718.81  

71 TRAVIS CO ESD NO 14         757,867,808     0.1000            757,867.81  0.0272%                      4,667.78            1,166.94  

72 TRAVIS CO ESD NO 12      1,129,613,472     0.1000         1,129,613.47  0.0406%                      6,957.40            1,739.35  

77 TRAVIS CO ESD NO 8      1,499,627,665     0.0998         1,496,628.41  0.0537%                      9,217.88            2,304.47  

78 NW TR CO RD DIST 3 GLDN TRI         466,303,449     0.1223            570,289.12  0.0205%                      3,512.46               878.12  

8C TRAVIS CO MUD NO 3         537,587,254     0.5000         2,687,936.27  0.0965%                    16,555.25            4,138.81  

8E RNCH @ CYPRSS CRK MUD  1           70,755,969     0.5128            362,836.61  0.0130%                      2,234.74               558.69  

8H BELLA VISTA MUD         100,658,831     0.5042            507,521.83  0.0182%                      3,125.87               781.47  

8I WMSN-TR CO WCID NO 1F           47,263,176     0.9000            425,368.58  0.0153%                      2,619.89               654.97  

8J WMSN-TR CO WCID NO 1G         229,684,288     0.5401         1,240,524.84  0.0446%                      7,640.51            1,910.13  

83 CITY OF BEE CAVE      1,047,778,824     0.0200            209,555.76  0.0075%                      1,290.67               322.67  

84 NORTHTOWN MUD         500,291,995     0.7500         3,752,189.96  0.1348%                    23,110.09            5,777.52  

9B TRAVIS CO ESD NO 2      6,343,776,009     0.1000         6,343,776.01  0.2278%                    39,071.91            9,767.98  

9C TRAVIS CO MUD NO 4           65,432,269     0.7296            477,393.83  0.0171%                      2,940.31               735.08  

9D LAKESIDE WCID NO 1         112,861,160     0.8500            959,319.86  0.0345%                      5,908.54            1,477.14  

9G LAKESIDE WCID NO 2A               162,298     0.9700               1,574.29  0.0001%                            9.70                  2.42  

9H LAKESIDE WCID NO 2B           71,251,000     0.9700            691,134.70  0.0248%                      4,256.76            1,064.19  

9I LAKESIDE WCID NO 2C           71,702,023     0.9700            695,509.62  0.0250%                      4,283.71            1,070.93  

9J LAKESIDE WCID NO 2D           69,290,034     0.9700            672,113.33  0.0241%                      4,139.61            1,034.90  

4J TRAVIS CO MUD NO 11         159,514,629     0.7725         1,232,250.51  0.0443%                      7,589.55            1,897.39  

4K TRAVIS CO MUD NO 12           14,398,476     0.7725            111,228.23  0.0040%                        685.07               171.27  

4L TRAVIS CO MUD NO 13           27,744,495     0.7725            214,326.22  0.0077%                      1,320.06               330.01  

5J KELLY LANE WCID NO 1           63,551,717     0.9500            603,741.31  0.0217%                      3,718.50               929.62  

5K KELLY LANE WCID NO 2             2,415,700     0.9500              22,949.15  0.0008%                        141.35                 35.34  

1K BELVEDERE MUD           89,336,629     0.4500            402,014.83  0.0144%                      2,476.05               619.01  

2K PRESIDENTIAL GLEN MUD           14,315,764     0.5019              71,850.82  0.0026%                        442.54               110.63  

7J LAKESIDE MUD NO 3           68,315,836     0.9000            614,842.52  0.0221%                      3,786.87               946.72  

8K TRAVIS CO ESD NO 13           50,051,515     0.1000              50,051.52  0.0018%                        308.27                 77.07  

1L 
BASTROP-TRAVIS COUNTIES 
ESD NO 1         102,473,268     0.0944              96,734.76  0.0035%                        595.80               148.95  

7K SUNFIELD MUD NO 1                   6,067     0.9000                    54.60  0.0000%                            0.34                  0.08  

8L 
TRAVIS CO BEE CAVE ROAD 
DIST NO 1         180,154,627     0.6285         1,132,271.83  0.0407%                      6,973.77            1,743.44  

2N NORTH AUSTIN MUD NO 1           75,223,847     0.3450            259,522.27  0.0093%                      1,598.42               399.61  

2L TRAVIS CO MUD NO 16           63,413,000     0.9500            602,423.50  0.0216%                      3,710.38               927.60  

5M LAZY NINE MUD NO 1B           26,879,309     1.0100            271,481.02  0.0097%                      1,672.08               418.02  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Revenue Budget | 48  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

2015 Estimated Jurisdiction Liabilities 
 

Entity 
ID Entity Name 

Freeze Adj M&O 
Taxable Value 

2013 
Tax 
Rate 2013 Total Levy 

Percent of 
Liability 

2015 Budget 
Liability 

2015 Quarterly 
Payments 

3M WILLIAMSON/TRAVIS MUD NO 1           89,092,409     0.6150            547,918.32  0.0197%                      3,374.68               843.67  

8N 
ANDERSON MILL LIMITED 
DISTRICT             7,611,842     0.1367              10,404.32  0.0004%                          64.08                 16.02  

9L 
TRAVIS CO WCID 17 SERENE 
HILLS (DA)             6,976,155     0.6500              45,345.01  0.0016%                        279.28                 69.82  

6L TRAVIS CO MUD NO 17               212,010     0.9500               2,014.10  0.0001%                          12.41                  3.10  

3N TRAVIS CO MUD NO 18             1,400,324     0.7500              10,502.43  0.0004%                          64.69                 16.17  

 
 Totals   564,635,020,281    2,784,467,726.29  100.0000%        $   17,149,799.00  $ 4,287,449.75  

 

Amount due from Jurisdictions  $         17,149,799  

Refund 2013 Surplus Funds  $                          -    

   
  

Total Revenue to TCAD 
 

 $         17,149,799  

     Cost of Service to Jurisdictions  0.6159% 

 

* Note: The liabilities shown above have been calculated based on the 2013 tax rate and the 2013 levy.  When the 2014 tax rates and 
levies are set, the numbers will be recalculated.  This will change individual liabilities depending upon the tax rates set, levy of each 
jurisdiction, and the taxable values established for each jurisdiction for 2014. 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Capital Improvement Program | 49  
 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Capital Improvement Program 
 
A capital asset, by definition, includes land, improvements to land, easements, buildings, 
building improvements, vehicles, machinery, equipment, works of art and historical treasures, 
infrastructure, and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations and that 
have initial useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period. The District’s capitalization 
threshold is $1,000 and a useful life of more than one year. The District’s finance department is 

responsible for the establishment, maintenance and safeguarding of all fixed assets. The 
District has the following asset classes: 
 

Asset Class Useful Life 

Land Inexhaustible 
Building 50 years 
Building Improvements 5-10 years 
Computer Equipment 3-5 years 
Furniture & Equipment 5-10 years 
Vehicles 5 years 

 

For fiscal year 2015, the District has budgeted for a total of $606,000 for capital asset 
expenditures.  The chart below shows the breakdown by department. 

Department Capital Asset to be Purchased  Budgeted Cost  

Administration A/C Replacement  $                 15,000  
 TCAD Vehicle Purchase                     25,000  
 Partitions for Panels II & III                     75,000  
 Transfer to Reserves- Capital Expenditures                   100,000  
IT Servers                     35,000  
 Online Protest Expansion Storage                        6,000  
 Phone System Upgrades                        5,000  
 Cisco Switches & Routers                   175,000  
 VM Host (Total of 4)                     70,000  
 Transfer to Reserves- Computer Equipment 

Replacement 
                    50,000  

  Transfer to Reserves- Network Equipment Replacement                     50,000  
 Total Capital Expenditures  $              606,000  

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Capital Improvement Program | 50  
 

Administration 
35.48% 

Information 
Technology 

64.52% 

Capital Asset Purchases by Department 

Administration

IT

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Total Cost Reoccurring 

Non-
reoccurring 

A/C Replacement  $        15,000   $      15,000  
 TCAD Vehicle Purchase            25,000  

 
          25,000  

Partitions for Panels II & III            75,000  
 

          75,000  
Transfer to Reserves- Capital Expenditures          100,000         100,000  

 Servers            35,000           35,000  
 Online Protest Expansion Storage              6,000              6,000  
 Phone System Upgrades              5,000              5,000  
 Cisco Switches & Routers          175,000  

 
        175,000  

VM Host (Total of 4)            70,000  
 

          70,000  
Transfer to Reserves- Computer Equipment 
Replacement            50,000           50,000  

 Transfer to Reserves- Network Equipment 
Replacement            50,000           50,000    
   $     606,000   $    261,000   $    345,000  
 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Capital Improvement Program | 51  
 

Asset 

Total 
Replacement 

Cost FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019-2026 

Vehicle 1- Male Clerk  $             25,000   $         25,000  
    Vehicle 2- Maintenance Tech                 25,000  

   
             25,000  

 TCAD Building            5,000,000  
    

       5,000,000  

Desktop Computers               120,000  
   

          120,000  
 Monitors               100,000  

 
          100,000  

   Laptops                 15,000  
 

               3,000                 3,000                 3,000               15,000  

Scanners               135,000  
  

             45,000               45,000               45,000  

Desktop Printers                 85,000  
 

               3,500                 3,500                 3,500               17,500  

Servers               300,000               35,000               20,000               20,000               20,000            100,000  

HAI Cameras                 30,000  
 

             10,000  
   ARB Audio Equipment                 15,000  

 
             15,000  

   SAN               800,000  
    

          800,000  

Phone System                 60,000  
    

             60,000  

APC Symettra UPS               125,000  
    

          125,000  

GIS Wide Format Printer                 20,000  
  

             20,000  
  Mail Machine                 25,000  

    
             25,000  

Inserting Machine                 45,000  
    

             45,000  

Leibert HVAC                 70,000  
    

             70,000  

Sprinkler System                 25,000  
 

             25,000  
   A/C Units               500,000               15,000               15,000               15,000               15,000               75,000  

Totals  $        7,520,000   $         75,000   $      191,500   $      106,500   $      231,500   $   6,377,500  

 

Project information sheets are presented on the following pages for all major non-reoccurring 
capital asset purchases budgeted for fiscal year 2015. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Capital Improvement Program | 52  
 

 

Project Name: TCAD Vehicle for Mail Clerk/Messenger

X

Statement of Need/Description:

Project Type: Vehicle Replacement Start Date: Sept. 1, 2015

Asset Category: TCAD Vehicles Completion Date: Oct. 31, 2015

Project Manager: Leana Mann

CAPITAL FUNDING: OPERATING IMPACT:

Fund/Account: General Fund (100)

Cap. Expenditures (40910)

Year Year

2015 2015

2016 2016

2017 2017

2018 2018

2019 2019

($1,400)

($1,000)

($750)

($400)

$0

$0

$0

$0

$25,000

$0

Project Information:

The Dis trict's  mai l  clerk/messenger i s  currently driving a  

2006 Ford Escape.  The mi leage on this  vehicle i s  over 

50,000 and the vehicle wi l l  soon reach the point where 

repairs  wi l l  be necessary.  The Dis trict would l ike to trade 

in this  vehicle for a  newer SUV with fewer mi les .

Financial Information:

Project Cost Operating Impact

Replacement will decrease maint costs as necessary maintenance 

needed on current vehicle is not needed; gas mileage on new SUVs 

are typically better than on older SUVs so we should save funds on 

vehicle fuel as long as the price of fuel does not increase.

Customer Service BPP Appraisal

Appeals Residential Appraisal

Capital Asset Expenditure Project

Responsible Department/Division:

Administration Commercial Appraisal

Information Technology Land/Ag Appraisal

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Capital Improvement Program | 53  
 

 

Project Name: Partitions for Panel Room II & III

X

Statement of Need/Description:

Project Type: Partition/Construction Start Date: Jan. 1, 2015

Asset Category: TCAD Building Completion Date: Dec. 31, 2015

Project Manager: Leana Mann

CAPITAL FUNDING: OPERATING IMPACT:

Fund/Account: General Fund (100)

Cap. Expenditures (40910)

Year Year

2015 2015

2016 2016

2017 2017

2018 2018

2019 2019$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

Financial Information:

There will be no operating impact due to the installation of the 

partitions.  The partitions will increase efficiency during the heavy 

summer protest seasons.

Project Cost Operating Impact

$75,000 $0

The Dis trict currently has  2 larger panel  rooms that are 

s igni ficantly larger than a l l  other panel  rooms.  Insta l l ing 

parti tions  in these two panel  rooms would a l low the 

Dis trict to add two more panels  for ARB hearing during 

the heavy summer months .

Capital Asset Expenditure Project

Responsible Department/Division:

Administration Commercial Appraisal

Information Technology Land/Ag Appraisal

Customer Service BPP Appraisal

Appeals Residential Appraisal

Project Information:

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Capital Improvement Program | 54  
 

  

Project Name: Cisco Switches & Routers

X

Statement of Need/Description:

Project Type: Equipment Replacement Start Date: Jan. 1, 2015

Asset Category: Network Equipment Completion Date: Dec. 31, 2015

Project Manager: Scott Griscom

CAPITAL FUNDING: OPERATING IMPACT:

Fund/Account: General Fund (100)

Cap. Expenditures (40910)

Year Year

2015 2015

2016 2016

2017 2017

2018 2018

2019 2019$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

Financial Information:

There will be no financial operating impact.  However, the new 

cisco switches and routers are more efficient.

Project Cost Operating Impact

$175,000 $0

The Dis trict needs  to replace i ts  current Cisco switches  

and routers  to make the equipment more efficient.

Capital Asset Expenditure Project

Responsible Department/Division:

Administration Commercial Appraisal

Information Technology Land/Ag Appraisal

Customer Service BPP Appraisal

Appeals Residential Appraisal

Project Information:

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Capital Improvement Program | 55  
 

 

Project Name: VM Host (1-3 Replacement plus 1 Additional)

X

Statement of Need/Description:

Project Type: Equipment Replacement Start Date: Jan. 1, 2015

Asset Category: Network Equipment Completion Date: Dec. 31, 2015

Project Manager: Scott Griscom

CAPITAL FUNDING: OPERATING IMPACT:

Fund/Account: General Fund (100)

Cap. Expenditures (40910)

Year Year

2015 2015

2016 2016

2017 2017

2018 2018

2019 2019$0 ($10,000)

$0 ($10,000)

$0 ($10,000)

$0 ($10,000)

Financial Information:

The District will recognize a positive financial operating impact 

because the VM host will no longer require the District to replace 

physical servers.  We estimated a savings of $10,000 per year, 

approximately 1/2 of what the District currently spends on servers.

Project Cost Operating Impact

$70,000 ($10,000)

The Dis trict IT department wi l l  be replacing the current 

VM hosts  1-3 and adding an additional  VM host for a  

tota l  of 4.  VM Host are a  more cost efficient way of server 

replacement.  One VM host can replace multiple servers  

making this  a  more cost effective replacement.

Capital Asset Expenditure Project

Responsible Department/Division:

Administration Commercial Appraisal

Information Technology Land/Ag Appraisal

Customer Service BPP Appraisal

Appeals Residential Appraisal

Project Information:

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 56  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Employee Position 

Number 
of 

Positions 
Position 
Grade Hourly Range 

Auto 
Allowance 

Total Employee 
Benefit 

Chief Appraiser 1 Exempt $74.23  $     8,250  $45,173 
Deputy Chief of Appraisal 1 Exempt $61.08  $     4,800  $37,503 
HR Director 1 15  $36.64  -  $51.32   $          -     $28,796   -   $34,445  
Finance & Facility Officer 1 15  $36.64  -  $51.32   $          -     $28,796   -   $34,445  
Records Coordinator 1 5  $20.46  -  $28.65   $          -     $22,568   -   $25,720  
Administrative Assistant 1 5  $20.46  -  $28.65   $          -     $22,568   -   $25,720  
Admin Clerk- PT 0.5 4  $17.89  -  $25.06   $          -     $21,578   -   $24,338  
Mail Clerk/Messenger 1 3  $15.34  -  $21.49   $          -     $20,597   -   $22,964  
Maint/Janitor- PT 0.5 2  $13.84  -  $19.38   $          -     $20,020   -   $22,152  
 

Pt. time Admin. Clerk
(½)

Records Coordinator
(1)

Chief Appraiser
(1)

Human Resource Director
(1)

Mail Clerk Messenger
(1)

Pt. time – Maint/Janitor
(½)

Deputy Chief of Appraisal
(1)

Finance & Facilities 
Officer (1)

Administrative Asst.
(1)

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 57  
 

Administration Department               

Mission Statement 

The mission of the Administration department, which includes human resources, finance, 
facilities’ maintenance, records management and the offices of the Chief Appraiser and the 

Deputy Chief of Appraisal is to provide timely, useful, and accurate information to all internal 
and external customers including but not limited to staff, division directors, the Board of 
Directors, the taxing jurisdictions of Travis County, and all taxpayers of Travis County, and to 
assure prudent control of the District’s cash and investments.  It is also the mission of the 
Administration department to oversee all mission critical tasks of the appraisal district to 
ensure completion and to meet all legislative requirements. 

Key Responsibilities 

The Administration Department’s function is to plan, organize, direct and control the business 
support functions related to human resources, budget, finance, purchasing, payroll, facilities 
maintenance, exemptions, records management and mail services.  The Administration 
department is comprised of the Chief Appraiser and her executive assistant, the Deputy Chief 
of Appraisal, the Human Resources department, the Finance department, the Records 
management officer, and the maintenance and mail staff for the District. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 58  
 

Administration 

  
 2015  

        Budget     Detail Description  

Salaries 
 

       
680,591  

 
Personnel Salaries 

      
Auto Allowance 

 

        
13,050  

 
See detailed personnel listing 

  
  

   Overtime 
 

         4,000  
   

  
  

   Seasonal & Temporary 
 

         5,000  
   

  
  

   Medicare Tax 
 

         9,328  
 

 District pays a matching 1.45% of gross wages  

  
  

   Retirement       115,799  

 

 18% Contribution rate (required contribution of 14.07%  plus 3.93% addtional 
contribution)  

  
  

   Health Insurance       211,463    122,274  Employer paid health insurance at $1,183.63 per employee 
per month 

        89,189  Direct pay funding 

      
Dental Insurance 

 

          
2,267  

 
 Employer paid dental insurance at $20.99 per employee per month  

  
  

   
Life Insurance 

 

          
1,516  

 
 Employer paid life insurance at $14.04 per employee per month  

  
  

   
Disability Insurance 

 

          
3,242  

 
 Employer paid long-term disability insurance at $.504% of base salary  

  
  

   
Long Term Care (LTC) 

 

          
3,405  

 
 Employer paid long-term care coverage at $31.53 per employee per month  

  
  

   Employee Assistance 
Program 

 3,390 

 

 District pays $282.50 per employee per month for EAP (Employee Assistance 
Program)   

  
  

   
Workers Compensation 

 

        
32,500  

 
 Estimate of $32,500 per year  

  
  

   
Unemployment Insurance 

 

          
2,077  

 
 Estimate of $30,000 per year  

            

     Total Payroll Costs   
   

1,087,628        

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 59  
 

Administration 

  
 2015  

        Budget     Detail Description  

Printing 
 

               1,500  
 

           300  A/P checks 

  
  

 
           250  ARB payroll checks 

  
  

 
           150  ARB direct deposit vouchers (Qty: 500) 

  
  

 
           250  Check request forms (Qty: 3000) 

  
  

 
           250   Chief appraiser's performance review  

  
  

 
           100  Business Cards, ID Badges & Name Plates 

  
  

 
           200  Miscellaneous print jobs 

  
  

   Paper 
 

               8,400  
 

Copy paper- 6 orders of 45 cts @ $1400 ea 

  
  

   Postage & Freight- In House 
 

           103,500  
 

    100,000  General mail postage 

  
  

 
           300  Federal express charges 

  
  

 
        1,200  PO box rental 

  
  

 
        2,000  Shipping charges 

  
  

   
Operating Supplies 

 
             18,260  

 
        5,760  Office Supplies $60 per EE per month 

  
  

 
        1,800  Records mgmt storage boxes 

  
  

 
        2,100  First aid supplies 

  
  

 
           300  Postage meter supplies 

  
  

 
           300  End of year tax forms 

  
  

 
           500  HAI door access cards 

  
  

 
        7,500  TCAD shirt order 

  
  

   Furniture and Equipment under $1,000 
 

               5,000  
 

        5,000  Non-capitalized furniture & equip 

  
  

   Books/Publ/Subs/Data Bases 
 

             46,806  
 

      18,000  Metro Study 

  
  

 
           450  Austin American Statesman 

  
  

 
           100  Austin Business Journal 

  
  

 
           800  GASB Subscription 

  
  

 
           200  Survey monkey 

  
  

 
           500  Miscellaneous publications 

  
  

 
           125  Property tax code 

  
  

 
           500  Online test for applicants 

  
  

 
      26,131  Additional Market Research Publications 

  
  

   Microfilm 
 

               1,000  
 

        1,000  Appraisal roll & permanent records 

  
  

    

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 60  
 

Administration 

  
 2015  

        Budget     Detail Description  

Records Management 
 

               2,440  
 

        1,440  Shredding- $120/mo. 

  
  

 
        1,000  Annual records destruction 

  
  

     
 

        

     Total Supplies              186,906        

  
  

   Dues & Memberships 
 

               8,000  
 

        2,800  Walnut Creek Imp. Assoc. ($700/qtr.) 

  
  

 
           100  Metro CAD 

  
  

 
           210  ARMA 

  
  

 
             90  TDLR (2 @ $45 ea) 

  
  

 
             35  TX Soc. Sec. Program (ERS) 

  
  

 
           360  GFOA 

  
  

 
             75  GTOT 

  
  

 
        1,800  TAAD 

  
  

 
           100  Comptroller's Coop Membership 

  
  

 
           400  IAAO 

  
  

 
             60  Chase credit card 

  
  

 
        1,500  Other 

  
  

 
             80  TAAO 

  
  

 
           210  IREM 

  
  

 
           180  SHRM 

  
  

   Travel/Meals/Lodging 
 

             18,130  
 

        1,800  TAAD Conference - 3 rooms @ $600 ea 

  
  

 
           540  TAAD Conference - Meals (4 days @ $45per EE per day) 

  
  

 
        4,500  IAAO Conference- Hotel Rooms & Meals (3 attend) 

  
  

 
        3,000  GIS/CAMA Conference- Hotel Rooms (3 rooms @ $1000/Room) 

  
  

 
        1,500  GIS/CAMA Conference- Flight to OK (3 @ $500/ea) 

  
  

 
           540  GIS/CAMA Conference- Meals (4 days @ $45/day/person) 

  
  

 
        1,000  Ad Valorem Taxation Seminar- Annual Legal Seminar (5 for 1 night) 

  
  

 
           750  TAAO Conference (3) 

  
  

 
        2,000  ESRI User Conference (2 rooms @ $1000 ea) 

  
  

 
        1,000  ESRI User Conference (2 Flights @ $500 ea) 

  
  

 
        1,500  TA Conference 

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 61  
 

Administration 

  
 2015  

        Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

   Training & Education 
 

           115,410  
 

        1,500  Chief Appraiser 

  
  

 
           500  Deputy Chief of Appraisal 

  
  

 
           500  HR Director 

  
  

 
           500  Finance & Facilities Officer 

  
  

 
           500  Records Coordinator 

  
  

 
           810  TAAD Courses 

  
  

 
        1,500  Angelou Economic Forecast Forum 

  
  

 
        2,300  Annual Legal Seminar (Sept.) 

  
  

 
           500  Certified Public Finance Officer- 2 of 5 Exams 

  
  

 
           300  Certified Public Finance Officer- Certification Materials 

  
  

 
        1,875  GIS/CAMA Conference (3) 

  
  

 
        1,500  IAAO Conference (3) 

  
  

 
      28,000  IAAO In-house Training Classes (8 Classes) 

  
  

 
      57,875  In-house Appraisal Institute Courses (5 classes; 25 students each) 

  
  

 
        1,500  IREM Economic Forecast Forum 

  
  

 
           600  Legislative Update (2) 

  
  

 
        5,000  Management Training 

  
  

 
           750  Open Government Conference (3) 

  
  

 
           600  Property Tax Institute (3) 

  
  

 
           675  TA Conference (3) 

  
  

 
           750  TAAD Conference (3) 

  
  

 
           900  TAAO Conference (3) 

  
  

 
           675  TCDRS Conference (3) 

  
  

 
        2,800  ESRI User Conference (2) 

  
  

 
        3,000  Tuition Reimbursement for TCAD Employees 

  
  

   Employee Recognition 
 

             17,000  
 

        5,000  Employee recognition 

  
  

 
        2,000  IAAO Designation Reward ($1000 per employee) 

  
  

 
      10,000  Fee Appraiser License Reward 

  
  

   Board of Directors 
 

             26,950  
 

      18,000  Taxpayer Liaison Officer 

  
  

 
        5,000  General Counsel ($500 per meeting for 10 meetings) 

  
  

 
           750  Annual TAAD Conference (3 BOD Members Attending) 

  
  

 
        1,200  Travel Expenses for BOD Members- TAAD Conference 

  
  

 
        2,000  Other costs associated with the BOD 

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 62  
 

Administration 

  
 2015  

        Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

   Advertising/Legal Notices 
 

             31,500  
 

        8,500  Property Tax Benefits 

  
  

 
      11,000  Property Tax Protest Procedures 

  
  

 
        3,750  ARB Notice Accepting Application 

  
  

 
        3,500  Notice of Budget 

  
  

 
        1,500  Notice of Reappraisal Plan 

  
  

 
           750  RFP/RFQ Postings 

  
  

 
        2,500  Employment Ads $125/month 

  
  

   Utilities 
 

           102,960  
 

      96,000  Electricity & Water - $8,000/Month 

  
  

 
        4,200  Trash Pickup - $350/Month 

  
  

 
           960  Recycling - $80/Month 

  
  

 
        1,800  Cable- $150 per month 

  
  

   Telephone & Communication 
 

             28,800  
 

 Local/Long Distance Telephone - $2,400/Month  

  
  

   
Wireless Internet 

 
             33,300  

 
      26,400  iPad Data Plan- $2,200/month 

  
  

 
        6,900   AT&T Mobility wireless data cards- $575/Month  

  
  

   Legal & Attorney- Personnel 
 

             40,000  
 

 Human resources legal costs  

  
  

   Accounting & Audit 
 

             15,745  
 

      15,000  Annual Audit Cost 

  
  

 
           745  CAFR & Budget Submission to GFOA 

  
  

   Appraisal Services 
 

           582,820  
 

    101,820  BPP Appraisal Services ($101,820) 

  
  

 
      11,000  Circuit of the America Appraisal ($11000) 

  
  

 
    470,000  Fee Appraisals for Commercial & High End Residential Properties 

  
  

   Rental Office Machines 
 

             35,200  
 

        1,000  Postage Security Devise Rental - Annual Charge 

  
  

 
      34,200  Copier Leases - $2,850/Month 

  
  

   Professional Services 
 

           268,250  
 

        8,000  Direct Pay Administrative Fee 

  
  

 
        4,000  Flex System Administrative Fee 

  
  

 
           500  Interpreter 

  
  

 
           750  Laminating Services 

  
  

 
        5,000  Miscellaneous 

  
  

 
    250,000  Expert review of high-value properties 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 63  
 

Administration 

  
 2015  

        Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

   Professional Services- Payroll 
 

             32,000  
 

      23,000  Payroll Processing Fees 

  
  

 
        9,000  Time Clocks (40543) 

  
  

   Rental Storage Space 
 

               8,450  
 

        4,200  Off-site warehouse & storage - $350/Month 

  
  

 
        4,250  Parking Lot Lease - $850/Month for 5 Months 

  
  

   Repair & Maintenance- Equipment 
 

               8,700  
 

        6,000  Pitney Bowes Mail Equipment 

  
  

 
           500  Fire Alarm System 

  
  

 
           500  Elevator Maintenance  

  
  

 
           200  Security System 

  
  

 
        1,000  Other Equipment 

  
  

 
           500  AED Machines 

  
  

   Building Repair/Maintenance 
 

             62,700  
 

      11,400  Grounds Maintenance - $950/Month 

  
  

 
      48,000  Building Maintenance - $4,000/Month 

  
  

 
        1,300  Leibert Maintenance 

  
  

 
        1,000  Quarterly Filter Changes 

  
  

 
        1,000  Quarterly Pest Control 

  
  

   Building Cleaning Service 
 

             41,700  
 

      33,000  Janitorial Services - ($2,000/Month+ Supplies) 

  
  

 
        2,000  Excess paper products during protest season 

  
  

 
        3,000  Carpet Cleaning twice a year 

  
  

 
        1,200  Tile scrubbing once a year 

  
  

 
        2,500  Special Cleaning 

  
  

   Property Insurance 
 

               7,500  
   

  
  

   Liability Insurance 
 

             32,000  
   

  
  

   Security Services 
 

             22,900  
 

        4,200  Building Patrol - $350/Month 

  
  

 
           300  Security System Monitoring 

  
  

 
           400  Fire Alarm Monitoring 

  
  

 
      18,000  Armed security officer (5 months) 

  
  

   Vehicle Fuel 
 

               1,800  
 

 Vehicle Fuel - $150/Month  

  
  

   Vehicle Maintenance 
 

                  600  
 

 Vehicle Maintenance - $50/Month  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 64  
 

Administration 

  
 2015  

        Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

   Bank Fees 
 

               1,800  
 

 Bank Charges - $150/Month  

        
  

  
  

 
    

Total Services           1,544,215        

  
  

   Capital Expenditures 
 

           215,000  
 

      15,000  A/C Replacement 
    

 
      25,000  TCAD Vehicle purchase 

    
 

      75,000  Partitions for Panels II & III 
    

 
    100,000  Transfer to reserves- Capital Expenditures 

        
  

  
  

 
    

Total Capital & Debt              215,000        

  
  

 
    

Total Operating Expenditures      $     3,033,749        

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 65  
 

Payroll 
Expenditures 

35.85% 

Supplies 
Expenditures 

6.16% 

Service 
Expenditures 

50.90% 

Capital & Debt 
Expenditures 

7.09% 

2015 Administration Expenditures 

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

Administration Expenditures 

2015 Budget

2014 Budget

2013 Budget

Administration Budget Comparison 

  
2015 Budget 2014 Budget $ Inc (Dec) % Inc (Dec) 2013 Budget 2013 Actual 

# of Personnel 
 

8 9 -1 -11.11% 9 
 Payroll Expenditures  1,087,628 1,146,102 -58,474 -5.10% 2,172,449 -58,474 

Supplies Expenditures  186,906 173,966 12,940 7.44% 55,953 12,940 

Service Expenditures  1,544,215 744,990 799,225 107.28% 597,452 799,225 

Capital & Debt Expenditures  215,000 168,752 46,248 27.41% 131,780 46,248 

 Total Expenditures    $     3,033,757   $     2,233,819   $        799,938  35.81%  $     2,957,643   $          799,948  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 66  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Position 

Number 
of 

Positions 
Position 
Grade Hourly Range 

Auto 
Allowance Total Employee Benefit 

Director Information Technology 1 Exempt $55.80  $          -    $36,316 
Network Support Manager 1 13  34.08  -  $47.72   $          -     $27,810   -   $33,059  
Data Base Analyst 1 12  $32.38  -  $45.34   $          -     $27,155   -   $32,143  
Software Analyst 1 10  $28.97  -  $40.56   $          -     $25,843   -   $30,304  
Systems Analyst 1 10  $28.97  -  $40.56   $          -     $25,843   -   $30,304  
Tech Support Specialist 1 4  $17.89  -  $25.06   $          -     $21,578   -   $24,338  
Help Desk Application Support 1 6  $21.83  -  $30.55   $          -     $23,095   -   $26,451  
Help Desk Tech Specialist 1 4  $17.89  -  $25.06   $          -     $21,578   -   $24,338  
GIS Manager 1 12  $32.38  -  $45.34   $          -     $27,155   -   $32,143  
Sr. GIS/PACS Technician 1 5  $20.46  -  $28.65   $          -     $22,568   -   $25,720  
GIS/PACS Technician 2 4  $17.89  -  $25.06   $          -     $21,578   -   $24,338  
 

Director
 Information Technology

(1)

Help Desk - Tech. Supt Spec
(1)

Network Support Manager
(1)

Database Analyst
(1)

Tech. Support Specialist
(1)

Help Desk - Appl. Support
(1)

Software Analyst
(1)

Systems Analyst
(1)

Manager GIS
(1)

Senior GIS/PACS Technician 
(1)

GIS/PACS Technician
(2)

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 67  
 

Information Technology Department             

Mission Statement 

The mission of the Information Technology department is to provide, develop, and maintain a 
highly effective, reliable, secure and innovative technology infrastructure which supports all 
facets of the district staff, division directors, Board of Directors, taxing jurisdictions of Travis 
County, and all taxpayers of Travis County in the most cost effective manner. 

Key Responsibilities 

The Information Technology department’s function is to manage the activities of the 

information technology environment including the network, security, database, and CAMA 
software administration.  This department is highly technical in all areas for troubleshooting, 
evaluating, and recommending changes to current and future network requirements to meet 
the District’s needs.  The IT department works closely with management and the District’s 

software vendor to help design and implement new software features and programming 
changes, including changes required by legislative mandate.  This department coordinates 
supplement processing with entities and district staff, works with various departments of the 
taxing units to electronically exchange information and provide data/information for all taxing 
units as requested. The IT department also processes record requests requiring computer 
generated information. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 68  
 

Information Technology 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

  

  

   Salaries 
 

        784,183  

 

  

  

  

 

  

Overtime 
 

            8,200  

 

  

  

  

 

  

Medicare Tax 
 

         11,580  

 
 District pays a matching 1.45% of gross wages  

  
 

 
                 -     

Retirement 
 

       143,749  

 
 18% Contribution rate (required contribution of 14.07%  plus 3.93% add'l contribution)  

  

  

 
                 -     

Health Insurance 
 

        163,032  

 
 Employer paid health insurance at $1,183.63 per employee per month  

  

  

 
                 -     

Dental Insurance 
 

            3,022  

 
 Employer paid dental insurance at $20.99 per employee per month  

  
 

 
                 -     

Life Insurance 
 

            2,022  

 
 Employer paid life insurance at $14.04 per employee per month  

  

  

 
                 -     

Disability Insurance 
 

            4,025  

 
 Employer paid long-term disability insurance at $.504% of base salary  

  

  

 
                 -     

Long Term Care (LTC) 
 

            4,540  

 
 Employer paid long-term care coverage at $31.53 per employee per month  

  

                    -     

Unemployment Insurance 
 

            2,769  

 
 Estimate of $30,000 per year  

  

  

 

    

            

     Total Payroll Costs        1,127,121        

  

  

   Printing 
 

        108,610  

 
       8,500  Protest season printing 

  

  

 
     12,000  Renditions 

  

  

 
     50,000  Notice of Appraised Value Printing 

  

  

 
     25,000  TCAD Envelopes 

  

  

 
          100  Business Cards 

  

  

 
            10  ID Badges 

  

  

 
       3,000  E-file Instructions 

  

  

 
     10,000  Homestead Applications for Audit 

  

  

   Paper 
 

            6,000  

 
       3,000  IT Paper 

  

  

 
       3,000  Paper for in-house mailings 

  

  

  

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 69  
 

Information Technology 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

  

 

Postage & Freight- Special Services 
 

          154,500  
 

   120,000  Notice of Appraised Values Postage 

  
  

 
       7,500  BPP Penalty & Waiver 

  
  

 
     15,000  Renditions Postage 

  
  

 
     12,000  Homestead Applications Postage 

  
  

   Operating Supplies 
 

            35,336  
 

     25,000  Printing Supplies 

  
  

 
     10,336  Office & PC Supplies 

  
  

   Operating Supplies- Equipment 
 

            40,900  
 

 See Operating Supplies- Equipment Details  

  
  

   Operating Supplies- Software 
 

            15,000  
 

 See Operating Supplies-Software Details  

  
  

   Books/Publ/Subs/Data Bases 
 

              3,920  
 

       2,400  NCOA/CASS- VariVerge 

  
  

 
          100  SQL Server Magazine 

  
  

 
          250  Training Manuals 

  
  

 
          370  Lynda Tutorial Subscription 

  
  

 
            50   Property Tax Code 2013- 2 @ $25 each  

  
  

 
          500  Various TrainSignal Publications 

  
  

 
          250 GIS databases, directories, and other subs 

            

  
  

        Total Supplies             364,266        

  
  

   Dues & Memberships 
 

                   90  
 

TDLR Registration 

  
  

 

  

Training & Education 
 

              8,310  
 

          810  TAAD Courses 

  
  

 
       7,500  Network Training 

  
  

  

 

Internet Services 
 

            29,900  
 

See telephone & communications details 

  
  

 

  

Professional Services 
 

            77,000  
 

     68,000  Services provided by Subvenion 

  
  

 
       5,000  Miscellaneous Contract Services 

  
  

 
       4,000  Voice Work for Phone System 

  
  

   Rental Storage Space 
 

            12,000  
 

Off-site storage for backups & perm records 

  
  

 
  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 70  
 

Information Technology 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

 
  

Hardware/Equipment Maintenance 
 

            67,300  
 

See hardware maintenance details 

  
  

 
  

Software Maintenance 
 

          665,174  
 

See software maintenance details 

  
  

 
  

Aerial Photography 
 

            78,240  
 

County-wide aerial photography 

  
  

 
  

            

     Total Services             938,014        

  
  

 
  

Capital Expenditures 
 

          391,000  
 

See Hardware/Software Capital Expenditure details 

($1,000 or more) 
 

  
 

  

  
  

 

  

            

     Total Capital Equipment             391,000        

            

Total Operating Expenditures    $      2,820,401        

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 71  
 

Operating Supplies- Equipment  2015  

(Less than $1,000)  Budget  

Hardware:   

Emergency Hard Drives (10 @ $150 each)                     1,500  

Monitors (10 @ $250 each)                     2,500  

Miscellaneous Parts & Supplies (Approx. $1,200 per month)                   14,400  

Backup Tapes/other equipment                   10,000  

UPS Battery Replacements (20 @ $500)                   10,000  

Microphone Replacement in Panel Rooms (For Panels II & III Remodel)                     2,500  

      

  
 

  

Total Operating Supplies- Equipment $                  40,900  

      

   Operating Supplies- Software  2015  

(Less than $1,000)  Budget  

Software:   

iPad Software/Applications                   10,000  

Miscellaneous Software Purchases                     5,000  

 
    

  
 

  

Total Operating Supplies- Software $                  15,000  

      

   Hardware Maintenance  2015  

     Budget  

CISCO Maintenance Contract                   20,000  

APC Maintenance                     4,200  

Printer Maintenance (Approx $450/mo)                     5,400  

Other Equipment & PC Maintenance                     7,500  

Pitney Bowes Inserter ($1,330 per Qtr)                     3,000  

Dell Gold Support for Servers                   20,000  

Vmware Support/Maintenance                     7,200  

      

  
 

  

     Total Hardware Maintenance $                  67,300  

      

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 72  
 

Software Maintenance  2015  

     Budget  

PACS Co-Development Programming:   

PACS Appraisal Maintenance            165,285  

Database Analyst Services              54,600.00  

GIS Mapping Contract                   75,000  

GIS Viewer Maintenance              13,000.00  

Pictometry Interface Maintenance                2,231  

iPACS Maintenance- Server/Site Maint.                5,000  

iPACS Maintenance- CAL Maintenance              24,000  

Cloud Hosting Fee                   16,000  

GIS Analyst                       2,750  

PACS Co-Development Programming                 200,000  

Amazon Cloud Fees                     5,000  

Commvault                   27,500  

ESRI 
 

                  37,500  

SPSS                     7,150  

Amicus                     2,000  

Barracuda                     5,000  

McAfee                     5,000  

Acronis                     1,500  

Sage Fund Accounting Annual Maintenance                     6,658  

Phone System Software/Support Maintenance                   10,000  

      

  
 

  

Total Software Maintenance $                665,174  

      

   Telephone & Communication  2015  

(Internet, Telephone & Data)  Budget  

Prismnet Co-Loc Servers                     7,200  

Prismnet FiberOptic ISP Services                   21,600  

Domain Registration                        300  

Domain Certificates                        800  

      

  
 

  

Total Internet & Data Services $                  29,900  

      

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 73  
 

Hardware/Software Capital Expenditures  2015  

($1,000 or more)  Budget  

Hardware:   

Servers                   35,000  

Online Protest Expansion Storage                     6,000  

Phone System Upgrades                     5,000  

Cisco Switches & Routers                 175,000  

VM Host (total of 4)                   70,000  

  
 

  

Transfer to reserves- Computer Equipment Replacement                   50,000  

Transfer to reserves- Network Equipment Replacement                   50,000  

      

  
 

  

Total Hardware/Software Capital Expenditures  $               391,000  

      

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 74  
 

Payroll 
Expenditures 

39.96% 

Supplies 
Expenditures 

12.92% 

Service 
Expenditures 

33.26% 

Capital & 
Debt 

Expenditures 
13.86% 

2015 IT Expenditures 

Information Technology Budget Comparison 

  2015 Budget   2014 Budget   $ Inc (Dec)   % Inc (Dec)  2013 Budget 2013 Actual 

 # of Personnel  12 6 6 100.00% 7  

Payroll Expenditures 1,127,121 1,035,831 91,290 8.81% 1,176,132 1,096,063 

Supplies Expenditures 364,266 433,455 -69,189 -15.96% 548,093 496,286 

Service Expenditures 938,014 842,630 95,384 11.32% 766,469 601,418 

Capital & Debt Expenditures 391,000 200,047 190,953 95.45% 475,289 273,440 

 Total Expenditures   $     2,820,413   $     2,511,969   $     308,444  12.28%  $  2,965,990   $ 2,467,215  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

IT Expenditures 

2015 Budget

2014 Budget

2013 Budget

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 75  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Position 

Number 
of 

Positions 
Position 
Grade Hourly Range 

Auto 
Allowance 

Total Employee 
Benefit 

Director Customer Service 1 15  $36.64  -  $51.32   $          -     $28,796   -   $34,445  
Customer Service Teamlead 1 8  $25.57  -  $35.79   $          -     $24,534   -   $28,468  
Exemptions Coordinator 1 3  $15.34  -  $21.49   $          -     $20,597   -   $22,964  
Customer Service/Deeds 4 3  $15.34  -  $21.49   $          -     $20,597   -   $22,964  
Customer Service Rep.  9 3  $15.34  -  $21.49   $          -     $20,597   -   $22,964  
Customer Service/Receptionist 1 2  $13.84  -  $19.38   $          -     $20,020   -   $22,152  
 

  

Team Leader
(1)

Director Customer Service
(1)

Exemptions Coord.
(1)

Receptionist/ CS
(1)

Cust. Service/ Deeds
(4)

Cust. Service Rep.
(9)

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 76  
 

Customer Service Department              

Mission Statement 

The mission of the customer service department is to provide assistance to the public in a 
professional and courteous manner in addition to ensuring that exemptions are fairly and 
consistently granted. 

Key Responsibilities 

The customer service department is responsible for representing the District in frequent 
contact with the public.  This department assists property owners, property tax professionals, 
attorneys and the general public with any request.  The customer service department 
administers homestead, veterans, disability and over-65 exemptions, as well as answering 
general questions received primarily from walk-in and telephone inquiries.  This department is 
responsible for ensuring that exemptions are fairly and consistently granted per the Texas 
Property Tax Code.  This department administers homestead, veterans, over 65, and absolute 
exemptions. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 77  
 

Customer Service 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

Salaries 
 

         704,164  
 

  

    

  

Overtime 
 

           10,000  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Medicare Tax 
 

           10,171  
 

 District pays a matching 1.45% of gross wages  

  
  

  

 

Retirement           126,267  

 

 18% Contribution rate (required contribution of 14.07%  plus 3.93% add'l 
contribution)  

  
  

  

 

Health Insurance 
 

         230,961  
 

 Employer paid health insurance at $1,183.63 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Dental Insurance 
 

             4,282  
 

 Employer paid dental insurance at $20.99 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Life Insurance 
 

             2,864  
 

 Employer paid life insurance at $14.04 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Disability Insurance 
 

             3,535  
 

 Employer paid long-term disability insurance at $.504% of base salary  

  
  

  

 

Long Term Care (LTC) 
 

             6,432  
 

 Employer paid long-term care coverage at $31.53 per employee per month  

  
   

 

 

Unemployment Insurance 
 

             3,923  
 

 Estimate of $30,000 per year  

  
  

 

    

    
 

      

     Total Payroll Costs         1,102,601        

  
  

   Printing 
 

                100  
 

Business cards, name plates & ID badges 

  
  

   Operating Supplies 
 

             5,734  
 

      1,734  Office Supplie- $8.50 per employee per month 

  
  

 
      4,000  Plotter Supplies- ink & paper 

  
  

 

  

Books/Publ/Subs/Data 
Bases 

 

             
12,115  

 

      
11,040  Accurint publication (8 users @ $115/ea/mo) 

  
  

 
         750  Death Data File 

  
  

 

         325  2013 Texas Prop. Tax Codes 

            

  
  

 

  

     Total Supplies              17,949        

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 78  
 

Customer Service 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

 

  

Dues & Memberships 
 

                    45  
 

TDLR Registration Appraisal Licenses 

  
  

 
  

Training & Education 
 

                  250  
 

Miscellaneous Training 

  
  

 
  

Repair & Maint. Contracts 
 

               1,800  
 

 KIPP 7100 Maintenance Agreement  

  
  

 
  

Deed Copies 
 

               4,000  
 

Deed Copies 

  
  

               

     Total Services                  6,095        

            

Total Operating Expenditures    $       1,126,645        

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 79  
 

Payroll 
Expenditures 

97.87% 

Supplies 
Expenditures 

1.59% 

Service 
Expenditures 

0.54% 

Capital & Debt 
Expenditures 

0.00% 

2015 Customer Service 
Expenditures 

Customer Service Budget Comparison 

  2015 Budget   2014 Budget   $ Inc (Dec)   % Inc (Dec)  2013 Budget 2013 Actual 

 # of Personnel  17 13 4 30.77% 13  

Payroll Expenditures        1,102,601          1,153,873             (51,272) -4.44%            647,770             591,327  

Supplies Expenditures              17,949                 7,543               10,406  137.96%              14,531                 2,697  

Service Expenditures                6,095                 7,755               (1,660) -21.41%                4,955                    180  

Capital & Debt Expenditures                       -                   2,500               (2,500) -100.00%                      -                         -    

 Total Expenditures   $    1,126,662   $    1,171,684   $         (45,022) -3.84%  $         667,269   $         594,204  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

Customer Service Expenditures 

2015 Budget

2014 Budget

2013 Budget

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 80  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Position 

Number 
of 

Positions 
Position 
Grade Hourly Range 

Auto 
Allowance 

Total Employee 
Benefit 

Appraisal Support Director 1 15  $36.64  -  $51.32   $          -    
 
$28,796  

 
-  

 
$34,445  

Appraisal Support Manager 1 8  $25.57  -  $35.79   $          -    
 
$24,534  

 
-  

 
$28,468  

Appraisal Support QC Specialist 1 3  $15.34  -  $21.49   $          -    
 
$20,597  

 
-  

 
$22,964  

ARB Administrative Assistant 1 4  $17.89  -  $25.06   $          -    
 
$21,578  

 
-  

 
$24,338  

Appraisal Support Specialist 17 3  $15.34  -  $21.49   $          -    
 
$20,597  

 
-  

 
$22,964  

 

  

Appraisal Support Director
(1)

Appraisal Support
 QC Specialist

(1)

Appraisal Support 
Manager

(1)

 Appraisal Support 
Specialist (17)

ARB 
Admin. Asst. (1)

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 81  
 

Technical Support Department              

Mission Statement 

The Appraisal Support Division endeavors to ensure data gathered supporting appraised 
values are entered accurately into district records and facilitate communication with customers 
during the protest season.   

 

Key Responsibilities 

The Appraisal Support Division is responsible for entering data accurately, ensuring protests 
are entered timely, and verifying all required forms are executed appropriately, scheduling 
protest hearings and ensuring that customer receive prompt attention and accurate 
information. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 82  
 

Technical Support 

 
 2015  

 

  

   Budget     Detail Description  

Salaries             834,112  
 

  

 
  

 

  

Overtime               25,000  
 

  

 
  

 

  

Temporary/Contract               27,000  
 

  

 
  

 

  

Medicare Tax               12,554  
 

 District pays a matching 1.45% of gross wages  

 
  

  

 

Retirement             155,840  

 

 18% Contribution rate (required contribution of 14.07%  plus 3.93% add'l 
contribution)  

 
  

  

 

Health Insurance             285,305  
 

 Employer paid health insurance at $1,183.63 per employee per month  

 
  

  

 

Dental Insurance                 5,289  
 

 Employer paid dental insurance at $20.99 per employee per month  

 
  

  

 

Life Insurance                 3,538  
 

 Employer paid life insurance at $14.04 per employee per month  

 
  

  

 

Disability Insurance                 4,364  
 

 Employer paid long-term disability insurance at $.504% of base salary  

 
  

  

 

Long Term Care (LTC)                 7,946  
 

 Employer paid long-term care coverage at $31.53 per employee per month  

 
   

 

 

Unemployment Insurance                 4,846  
 

 Estimate of $30,000 per year  

 
  

 

    

     Total Payroll Costs          1,365,794        

Printing                    100  
 

 Business cards, name plates & ID badges  

 
  

   Operating Supplies                 3,024  
 

Office Supplies- $12.00 per employee per month 

 
  

 

  

     Total Supplies                 3,124        

Dues & Memberships                      90  
 

 TDLR (2 @ $45 each)  

 
  

 

  

Training                 2,750  
 

   1,950   App. Support Manager TAAD Courses  

 
  

 
      800   App. Support Director Level IV Exam Fee & CEs  

          

     Total Services                 2,840        

 
  

 

  

Total Operating 
Expenditures 

           
$1,371,758    

    

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 83  
 

Payroll 
Expenditures 

99.56% 

Supplies 
Expenditures 

0.23% 

Service 
Expenditures 

0.21% 

Capital & Debt 
Expenditures 

0.00% 

2015 Technical Support Expenditures 

 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

 1,400,000

Payroll
Expenditures

Supplies
Expenditures

Service
Expenditures

Capital &
Debt

Expenditures

Technical Support Expenditures 

2015 Budget

2014 Budget

2013 Budget

Technical Support Budget Comparison 

  2015 Budget   2014 Budget   $ Inc (Dec)   % Inc (Dec)  2013 Budget 2013 Actual 

 # of Personnel  21                -    21 100.00%                -     

Payroll Expenditures   1,361,794                 -      1,361,794  100.00%                -                   -    

Supplies Expenditures          3,124                 -             3,124  100.00%                -                   -    

Service Expenditures          2,840                 -             2,840  100.00%                -                   -    

Capital & Debt Expenditures                -                   -                   -    100.00%                -                   -    

 Total Expenditures  $1,367,779  $            -    $1,367,779 100.00%  $            -     $            -    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 84  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Position 

Number 
of 

Positions 
Position 
Grade Hourly Range 

Auto 
Allowance 

Total Employee 
Benefit 

Sr. Litigation 
Attorney 1 Exempt $53.42  $     2,400  $35,825 
Sr. Litigation 
Appraiser 1 14  $35.79  -  $50.11   $     4,800  

 
$28,468  

 
-  

 
$33,979  

Litigation Attorney 1 13  $34.08  -  $47.72   $     2,400  
 
$27,810  

 
-  

 
$33,059  

Arbitration Appraiser 1 9  $27.27  -  $38.20   $     3,900  
 
$25,189  

 
-  

 
$29,395  

Paralegal 2 5  $20.46  -  $28.65   $          -    
 
$22,568  

 
-  

 
$25,720  

 

  

Sr. Litigation Attorney
(1)

Arbitration Appraiser
(1)

Sr. Litigation Appraiser
(1)

Litigation Attorney
(1)Paralegal

(2)

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 85  
 

Appeals Department                

Mission Statement 

In furtherance of the mission of the Travis Central Appraisal District, the Appeals division 
through its attorneys, paralegals and litigation appraisers, seek to provide legal analysis and 
property valuations for the District during informal and formal hearings, settlement 
conferences, mediations, arbitrations, SOAH hearings, and lawsuits filed in Travis County in 
accordance with the Texas Property Tax Code and appraisal practices and standards, and to 
carry out the duties in a professional, friendly, courteous and ethical manner. 

Key Responsibilities 

Key responsibilities of the legal staff include, but are not limited to:  managing lawsuits, 
arbitrations, SOAH hearings, mediations and settlement conferences (internally and those of 
outside counsel);  preparation and review of expert reports;  filing and answering lawsuits;  
preparing and answering discovery, motions, and judgments; and providing legal advice on 
day-to-day issues arising out of issues involving the Texas Property Tax Code, exemption 
application, contracts, open meetings, and public information requests.  Additional 
responsibilities include conducting staff training/CLE, legislative bill tracking and analysis, as 
well as notarizing and translating forms and documents.   The litigation appraisers handle all 
the arbitrations and coordinate valuation efforts for use in SOAH hearings, mediations and 
settlement conferences involving real property. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 86  
 

Appeals 

  
 2015  

 

    

     Budget     Detail Description  

Salaries 
 

         507,057  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Auto Allowances 
 

         13,500  
   

  
  

 

  

Overtime 
 

           2,000  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Medicare Tax 
 

           7,530  
 

 District pays a matching 1.45% of gross wages  

  
  

 

  

Retirement           93,470  

 
 18% Contribution rate (required contribution of 14.07%  plus 3.93% add'l contribution)  

  
  

 

  

Health Insurance 
 

         81,516  

 
 Employer paid health insurance at $1,183.63 per employee per month  

  
  

 

  

Dental Insurance 
 

           1,511  

 
 Employer paid dental insurance at $20.99 per employee per month  

  
  

 

  

Life Insurance 
 

           1,011  

 
 Employer paid life insurance at $14.04 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Disability Insurance 
 

           2,617  

 
 Employer paid long-term disability insurance at $.504% of base salary  

  
  

  

 

Long Term Care (LTC) 
 

           2,270  
 

 Employer paid long-term care coverage at $31.53 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Unemployment Insurance 
 

           1,385  

 
 Estimate of $30,000 per year  

            

  
  

        Total Payroll Costs          713,867        

Printing 
 

                 50  
 

 Business cards, Name Plates and ID Badges  

  
  

   Operating Supplies 
 

           1,440  
 

 $20 per employee per month -  office supplies  

  
  

   Books/Publ/Subs/Data Bases 
 

           5,735  
 

            3,300  West Payment Center Information Charges 

  
  

 
               375  Texas Cause of Action 2013 

  
  

 
               300  Texas Rules of Civil Trials 

  
  

 
               100  Texas Pretrial Deadline Calculator 

  
  

 

               125  Texas Civil Forms 

  
  

 

               200  Texas Rules of Evidence Handbook 

  
  

 

               425  Texas Practice Handbook on Discovery 

  
  

 

               500  Other Miscellaneous Publications 

  
  

 

               100  Texas Property Tax Code- 4 copies 

  
  

 
                 55  Property Assessment Valuation 

  
  

 
               140  Uniform System of Citation 

  
  

 

               115  Texas Practice V21 

            

  
  

        Total Supplies                7,225        

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 87  
 

Appeals 

  
 2015  

 

    

     Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

   Dues & Memberships 
 

               3,030  
 

            1,270  Appraisal Institute 

  
  

 
                 90  TDLR License Renewal 

  
  

 
               320  Paralegal Division Annual Membership 

  
  

 
               750  State Bar Dues 

  
  

 
               600  TX Brokers License Renewal 

  
  

   Travel/Meals/Lodging 
 

               1,500  
 

 For use in conjunction with appraisal courses & meetings  

  
  

 

  

Training & Education 
 

               2,000  
  

 

  
  

  

 

Advertising & Legal Notices 
 

               2,500  
 

 Online E-filing Charges  

  
  

  

 

Attorney & Court Costs 
 

        1,285,000  
 

     1,120,000   Outside Legal Council  

  
  

 

            5,000   Mediation Fees  

  
  

 

          10,000   Other Legal Costs  

  
  

 

        150,000   Legal Settlements  

  
  

 

  

SOAH 
 

               1,500  
 

 Estimated 1 per year at $1500 each  

  
  

 

  

Arbitration Refunds 
 

             28,125  
 

 Estimated 125 per year at $225 each  

  
  

 

  

Expert Witness Costs 
 

           250,000  
 

 Expert Witness Costs   

  
  

   
            

     Total Services           1,573,655        

  
  

 
    

Total Operating Expenditures     $    2,294,747        

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 88  
 

Payroll 
Expenditures 

31.11% 

Supplies 
Expenditures 

0.31% 

Service 
Expenditures 

68.58% 

Capital & Debt 
Expenditures 

0.00% 

2015 Appeals Expenditures 

 -
 200,000
 400,000
 600,000
 800,000

 1,000,000
 1,200,000
 1,400,000
 1,600,000

Appeals Expenditures 

2015 Budget

2014 Budget

2013 Budget

Appeals  Budget Comparison 

  2015 Budget   2014 Budget   $ Inc (Dec)   % Inc (Dec)  2013 Budget 2013 Actual 

 # of Personnel  6 6 - 0.00% 6  

Payroll Expenditures      713,867       681,979         31,888  4.68%      632,117       629,790  

Supplies Expenditures          7,225           8,755          (1,530) -17.48%          7,499           6,736  

Service Expenditures   1,573,655       650,155       923,500  142.04%      651,615         74,991  

Capital & Debt Expenditures                -                   -                   -    0.00%                -                   -    

 Total Expenditures  $2,294,753 $1,340,895  $  953,858  71.14% 1,291,237  $  711,517  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 89  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Position 

Number 
of 

Positions 
Position 
Grade Hourly Range 

Auto 
Allowance 

Total Employee 
Benefit 

Director Commercial Appraisal 1 15  $36.64  -  $51.32   $     4,800  
 
$28,796  

 
-  

 
$34,445  

Commercial Manager 2 10  $28.97  -  $40.56   $     6,600  
 
$25,843  

 
-  

 
$30,304  

Commercial Appraisal Support 1 6  $21.83  -  $30.55   $          -    
 
$23,095  

 
-  

 
$26,451  

Commercial Appraiser 6 6  $21.83  -  $30.55   $     6,600  
 
$23,095  

 
-  

 
$26,451  

 

  

Director
Commercial Appraisal 

(1)

Commercial Manager 
(2)

Commercial Appraiser
(6)

Commercial Appraisal 
Support Specialist

(1)

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 90  
 

Commercial Appraisal Department            

Mission Statement 

The mission of the Commercial Appraisal department of the Travis Central Appraisal District is 
to provide accurate appraisals of all commercial properties in Travis County at one hundred 
percent of market value, equally and uniformly, in a professional and ethical manner, according 
to the Texas Property Tax Code, USPAP, and generally adhered to IAAO standards but for 
jurisdictional exceptions. 

Key Responsibilities 

The Commercial Appraisal department is responsible for appraising all commercial properties 
within Travis County, including all multi-family properties of five units and larger, retail, office, 
industrial and lodging properties.  This department must gather data pertaining to quality, 
classification and value of complex commercial properties.  They are responsible for 
scheduling that allows for the systematic processing of commercial protests in a timely manner 
that will allow the District to certify timely as well as perform appraisals, data collection, sales 
analysis and estimates for construction costs for various types of commercial properties. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 91  
 

Commercial Appraisal 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

Salaries 
 

      648,089  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Auto Allowances 
 

        57,600  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Medicare Tax 
 

        10,214  
 

 District pays a matching 1.45% of gross wages  

  
  

  

 

Retirement 
 

      126,795  
 

 18% Contribution rate (required contribution of 14.07%  plus 3.93% add'l contribution)  

  
  

  

 

Health Insurance 
 

      135,860  
 

 Employer paid health insurance at $1,183.63 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Dental Insurance 
 

          2,519  
 

 Employer paid dental insurance at $20.99 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Life Insurance 
 

          1,685  
 

 Employer paid life insurance at $14.04 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Disability Insurance 
 

          3,550  
 

 Employer paid long-term disability insurance at $.504% of base salary  

  
  

  

 

Long Term Care (LTC) 
 

          3,784  
 

 Employer paid long-term care coverage at $31.53 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Unemployment Insurance 
 

          2,308  
 

 Estimate of $30,000 per year  

  
  

 

    

    
 

      

     Total Payroll Costs         992,404        

Printing 
 

             150  
 

Business cards, name plates & ID badges 

  
  

 

  

Operating Supplies 
 

             600  
 

$5 per employee per month 

  
  

 

  

Books/Publ/Subs/Data Bases 
 

        47,040  
 

       500  Austin Area Apartment Survey 

  
  

 
       500  Austin Office Market Survey 

  
  

 

       500  Austin Area Multi-tenant Retail Survey 

  
  

 
       325  Texas Property Tax Codes 2013 

  
  

 
  30,500  CoStar 

  
  

 
    2,500  Austin Investors Interest 

  
  

 
       130  Austin Business Journal 

  
  

 

    1,500  Other miscellaneous subscriptions 

  
  

 

       650  Valuation Services Book 

  
  

 
       350  Annual Trends PKF Consulting 

  
  

 
    6,400  Reis Services Subscription 

  
  

 
    1,230  M&S Commercial Cost Estimator 7 (1 seat) 

  
  

 
       840  Loopnet Commercial Sales Subscription 

  
  

 
       200  Robert G. Watts- Realtyrates.com 

  
  

 
       495  Hotel Horizons 

  
  

 
       420  Real Estate Research Corp. 

  
  

 

  

     Total Supplies           47,790        

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 92  
 

Commercial Appraisal 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

 

  

Dues & Memberships 
 

               655  
 

       450  TDLR Registration Appraisal Licenses  @ $55 each 

  
  

 

       205  IREM Membership for C. Brown 

  
  

  

 

Training & Education 
 

            7,500  
 

    6,500  TAAD Courses 

  
  

 

    1,000  Miscellaneous Seminars 

  
  

               

     Total Services               8,155        

            

Total Operating Expenditures   $     1,048,349        

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 93  
 

Payroll 
Expenditures 

94.66% 

Supplies 
Expenditures 

4.56% 

Service 
Expenditures 

0.78% 

Capital & Debt 
Expenditures 

0.00% 

2015 Commercial Appraisal Expenditures 

Commercial Appraisal  Budget Comparison 

  2015 Budget   2014 Budget   $ Inc (Dec)   % Inc (Dec)  2013 Budget 2013 Actual 

 # of Personnel  10 13 -3 -23.08% 13  

Payroll Expenditures         992,404       1,031,541          (39,137) -3.79%      1,023,324       1,006,287  

Supplies Expenditures           47,790            40,577              7,213  17.78%           38,695            40,082  

Service Expenditures             8,155              4,755              3,400  71.50%             9,760              7,738  

Capital & Debt Expenditures                   -                      -                      -    0.00%                   -                      -    

 Total Expenditures   $  1,048,359   $  1,076,886   $     (28,527) -2.65%  $  1,071,792   $  1,054,107  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

 1,400,000

Commercial Appraisal Expenditures 

2015 Budget

2014 Budget

2013 Budget

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 94  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Position 

Number 
of 

Positions 
Position 
Grade Hourly Range 

Auto 
Allowance 

Total Employee 
Benefit 

Director Land  1 15  $36.64  -  $51.32   $     4,800  
 
$28,796  

 
-  

 
$34,445  

Land Analyst 1 8  $25.57  -  $35.79   $     6,600  
 
$24,534  

 
-  

 
$28,468  

Land Appraiser 3 5  $20.46  -  $28.65   $     6,600  
 
$22,568  

 
-  

 
$25,720  

Ag Administrator 1 3  $15.34  -  $21.49   $          -    
 
$20,597  

 
-  

 
$22,964  

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 95  
 

Land/Ag Appraisal Department             

Mission Statement 

The mission of the Land/Ag appraisal department of the Travis Central Appraisal District is to 
provide market value appraisals of all taxable land parcels and to determine if the property is 
qualified for open space valuation in Travis County in a fair, equitable and cost effective 
manner, and to provide services and assistance to the public and taxing jurisdictions. 

Key Responsibilities 

The Land/Ag appraisal department is responsible for the fair and equitable appraisal of all land 
in Travis County.  This department is in charge of valuing all land, builder’s inventory and 

placing productivity (usually called Ag) values on properties.  The Land/Ag appraisal 
department coordinates with other appraisal departments to manage complex valuation and 
review of the land appraisal roll for ad valorem taxation in compliance with generally accepted 
appraisal methodology. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 96  
 

Land/Ag Appraisal 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

Salaries 
 

         346,908  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Auto Allowances 
 

           31,200  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Medicare Tax 
 

             5,464  
 

 District pays a matching 1.45% of gross wages  

  
  

  

 

Retirement 
 

           67,831  
 

 18% Contribution rate (required contribution of 14.07%  plus 3.93% add'l 
contribution)  

  
  

  

 

Health Insurance 
 

           81,516  
 

 Employer paid health insurance at $1,183.63 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Dental Insurance 
 

             1,511  
 

 Employer paid dental insurance at $20.99 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Life Insurance 
 

             1,011  
 

 Employer paid life insurance at $14.04 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Disability Insurance 
 

             1,899  
 

 Employer paid long-term disability insurance at $.504% of base salary  

  
  

  

 

Long Term Care (LTC) 
 

             2,270  
 

 Employer paid long-term care coverage at $31.53 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Unemployment Insurance 
 

             1,385  
 

 Estimate of $30,000 per year  

  
  

 

    

            

     Total Payroll Costs            540,995        

  
  

   Printing 
 

                100  
 

Business Cards, name plates & ID badges 

  
  

 

  

Operating Supplies 
 

                900  
 

Office Supplies- $12.50 per Employee per month 

  
  

 

  

Books / Publ / Subs 
 

                700  
 

       200  Texas Property Tax Codes 2013 

  
  

 

500  Loopnet Sales Subscription 

            

  
  

 

  

     Total Supplies                1,700        

  
  

 

  

Dues & Memberships 
 

                225  
 

TDLR Registration Appraisal Licenses  @ $45 each 

  
  

  

 

Training & Education 
 

             2,700  
 

    2,500  TAAD Courses 

  
  

 

       200  Property Tax Institute 

  
  

               

     Total Services                  2,925        

            
Total Operating 
Expenditures   

           
$545,620        

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 97  
 

Land/Ag Appraisal  Budget Comparison 

  2015 Budget   2014 Budget   $ Inc (Dec)   % Inc (Dec)  2013 Budget 2013 Actual 

 # of Personnel  7 7  0.00% 7  

Payroll Expenditures           540,995            523,041              17,954  3.43%           557,645            530,435  

Supplies Expenditures               1,700                2,729               (1,029) -37.71%               2,581                1,466  

Service Expenditures               2,925                3,885                  (960) -24.71%               5,105                2,975  

Capital & Debt Expenditures                     -                        -                        -    0.00%                     -                        -    

 Total Expenditures   $       545,627   $       529,662   $         15,965  3.01%  $       565,339   $       534,875  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Payroll 
Expenditures 

99.15% 

Supplies 
Expenditures 

0.31% 

Service 
Expenditures 

0.54% 

Capital & Debt 
Expenditures 

0.00% 

2015 Land/Ag Appraisal Expenditures 

 -

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

Land/Ag Appraisal Expenditures 

2015 Budget

2014 Budget

2013 Budget

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 98  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Position 

Number 
of 

Positions 
Position 
Grade Hourly Range 

Auto 
Allowance 

Total Employee 
Benefit 

Director Personal Property 1 15  $36.64  -  $51.32   $     6,600  
 
$28,796  

 
-  

 
$34,445  

Personal Property Appraiser 1 8  $25.57  -  $35.79   $          -    
 
$24,534  

 
-  

 
$28,468  

Personal Property Appraiser 9 5  $20.46  -  $28.65   $     6,600  
 
$22,568  

 
-  

 
$25,720  

Administrative Asst. 1 3  $15.34  -  $21.49   $          -    
 
$20,597  

 
-  

 
$22,964  

 

  

Business Personal 
Property Appraiser

(10)

Director  
Business Personal Property 

Appraisal (1)

Administrative Assist
(1)

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 99  
 

Personal Property Appraisal 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

   Salaries 
 

         655,159  
 

  

    

  

Auto Allowances 
 

           66,000  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Overtime 
 

            2,500  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Medicare Tax 
 

          10,457  
 

 District pays a matching 1.45% of gross wages  

  
  

  

 

Retirement 
 

        129,809  
 

 18% Contribution rate (required contribution of 14.07%  plus 3.93% add'l 
contribution)  

  
  

  

 

Health Insurance 
 

         163,032  
 

 Employer paid health insurance at $1,183.63 per employee per month  

     

 

Dental Insurance 
 

             3,022  
 

 Employer paid dental insurance at $20.99 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Life Insurance 
 

             2,022  
 

 Employer paid life insurance at $14.04 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Disability Insurance 
 

             3,635  
 

 Employer paid long-term disability insurance at $.504% of base salary  

  
  

  

 

Long Term Care (LTC) 
 

             4,540  
 

 Employer paid long-term care coverage at $31.53 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Unemployment Insurance 
 

             2,769  
 

 Estimate of $30,000 per year  

  
  

 

    

            

     Total Payroll Costs         1,042,944        

  
  

   Printing 
 

                200  
 

 Business cards, name plates & ID badges  

  
  

  

 

Operating Supplies 
 

                792  
 

Office Supplies- $5.50 per employee per month 

  
  

 

  

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 100  
 

Personal Property Appraisal 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

   Books / Publ / Subs / Data Bases 
 

             10,492  
 

         150   Aircraft Bluebook  

  
  

 
         500  NADA Guides 

  
  

 
         375  BUC Used Boat Guide 

  
  

 
         445  Orion Blue Book Publications 

  
  

 
         190  Truck blue books & other publications 

  
  

 
      1,100  Guide for Construction Equipment 

  
  

 
           12  American Hospital Association 

  
  

 
         150  City of Austin Electric Utility Meter Database 

  
  

 
           60  Texas Parks and Wildlife 

  
  

 
         100  Austin Business Journal 

  
  

 
         105  Used Car Guide 

  
  

 
           25  Van/Conv/Limousine 

  
  

 
         425  2013 Texas Property Tax Codes 

  
  

 
      6,200  Tax Guide- Infonation, Inc. 

  
  

 
           55  Property Assessment Valuation 

  
  

 
         600  Vehicle Inquiries 

  
  

               

     Total Supplies                11,484        

  
  

   Dues & Memberships 
 

                  540  
 

TDLR Registration Appraisal Licenses  @ $45 each 

  
  

 

  

Training & Education 
 

               3,500  
 

 TAAD Courses  

  
  

 

    

            

     Total Services                  4,040        

            

Total Operating Expenditures         $  1,058,468        

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 101  
 

Payroll 
Expenditures 

98.53% 

Supplies 
Expenditures 

1.08% 

Service 
Expenditures 

0.38% 

Capital & Debt 
Expenditures 

0.00% 

2015 Personal Property Appraisal 
Expenditures 

 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

Payroll
Expenditures

Supplies
Expenditures

Service
Expenditures

Capital &
Debt

Expenditures

Personal Property Expenditures 

2015 Budget

2014 Budget

2013 Budget

Personal Property Appraisal  Budget Comparison 

  2015 Budget   2014 Budget   $ Inc (Dec)   % Inc (Dec)  2013 Budget 2013 Actual 

 # of Personnel  12 17 -5 -29.41% 17  

Payroll Expenditures        1,042,944            885,935            157,009  17.72%        1,181,357         1,171,888  

Supplies Expenditures             11,484              11,357                   127  1.12%             19,522              10,011  

Service Expenditures               4,040                3,505                   535  15.26%               8,250                4,127  

Capital & Debt Expenditures                     -                        -                        -    0.00%                     -                        -    

 Total Expenditures   $    1,058,480   $       900,814   $       157,666  17.50%  $    1,209,146   $    1,186,026  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 102  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Position 

Number 
of 

Positions 
Position 
Grade Hourly Range 

Auto 
Allowance 

Total Employee 
Benefit 

Director Residential Appraisal 1 15  $36.64  -  $51.32   $     4,800  
 
$28,796  

 
-  

 
$34,445  

Residential Manager 3 10  $28.97  -  $40.56   $     6,600  
 
$25,843  

 
-  

 
$30,304  

Appraisal Research Specialist 1 9  $27.27  -  $38.20   $          -    
 
$25,189  

 
-  

 
$29,395  

Residential Appraiser 33 5  $20.46  -  $28.65   $     6,600  
 
$22,568  

 
-  

 
$25,720  

Administrative Asst. 1 3  $15.34  -  $21.49   $          -    
 
$20,597  

 
-  

 
$22,964  

Support Specialist 1 5  $20.46     $28.65   $          -    
 
$22,568  

 
-  

 
$25,720  

Director Residential 
Appraisal 

(1)

Residential Appraisal 
Manager (3)

Admin. Asst
 (1)

Support Specialist
 (1)

Residential Apprsiser
(33)

Appraisal Research 
Specialist

 (1)

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 103  
 

Residential Appraisal Department            

Mission Statement 

The mission of the Residential Appraisal department of the Travis Central Appraisal District is 
to incorporate best practices to provide accurate appraisals of all residential properties in 
Travis County at market value, equally and uniformly in a professional and ethical manner 
within the framework of the Texas Property Tax Code and USPAP, subject to jurisdictional 
exceptions, and within the guidelines and standards of IAAO. 

Key Responsibilities 

The Residential Appraisal department is responsible for the fair and equitable appraisal of all 
residential property in Travis County, including houses, mobile homes, duplexes, triplexes, 
fourplexes and residential condominiums.  This department is responsible for applying the 
generally accepted appraisal methods to estimate the value of all residential property in Travis 
County and producing an accurate residential appraisal roll.  This department is also 
responsible for the scheduling that allows for the systematic processing of residential protests 
in a timely manner that will allow the District to certify timely. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 104  
 

Residential Appraisal 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

   Salaries 
 

      2,068,501  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Auto Allowances 
 

         242,400  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Overtime 
 

             5,000  
 

  

  
  

 

  

Medicare Tax 
 

           33,508  
 

 District pays a matching 1.45% of gross wages  

  
  

  

 

Retirement 
 

         415,962  
 

 18% Contribution rate (required contribution of 14.07%  plus 3.93% add'l contribution)  

  
  

  

 

Health Insurance 
 

         543,439  
 

 Employer paid health insurance at $1,183.63 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Dental Insurance 
 

           10,075  
 

 Employer paid dental insurance at $20.99 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Life Insurance 
 

             6,738  
 

 Employer paid life insurance at $14.04 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Disability Insurance 
 

           11,647  
 

 Employer paid long-term disability insurance at $.504% of base salary  

  
  

  

 

Long Term Care (LTC) 
 

           15,134  
 

 Employer paid long-term care coverage at $31.53 per employee per month  

  
  

  

 

Unemployment Insurance 
 

             9,231  
 

 Estimate of $30,000 per year  

  
  

 

    

            

     Total Payroll Costs         3,361,635        

  
  

   Printing 
 

                650  
 

            250  Business cards, name plates & ID badges 

  
  

 
            400  Residential Forms 

  
  

 

  

Operating Supplies 
 

             4,200  
 

Approximately $10 per employee per month 

  
  

 

  

Books/Publ/Subs/Data Bases 
 

             3,865  
 

            115  Austin Business Journal Subscription 

  
  

 

            500  Miscellaneous Publications 

  
  

 

         1,500  Manufactured Housing Guide 

  
  

 

         1,100  2013 Texas Property Tax Code 

  
  

 

            400  Residential Cost Handbook 

  
  

 

            250  Property Assessment Valuation 

  
  

 

  

            

     Total Supplies                8,715        

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 105  
 

Residential Appraisal 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

   Dues & Memberships 
 

               1,440  
 

TDLR Registration Appraisal Licenses  @ $45 each 

  
  

   Training & Education 
 

             16,800  
 

 TAAD Courses  

  
  

 

  

            

     Total Services                18,240        

  
  

   Total Operating Expenditures     $      3,388,590        

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 106  
 

Payroll 
Expenditures 

99.20% 

Supplies 
Expenditures 

0.26% 

Service 
Expenditures 

0.54% 

Capital & Debt 
Expenditures 

0.00% 

2015 Residential Appraisal 
Expenditures 

Residential Appraisal Budget Comparison 

  2015 Budget   2014 Budget   $ Inc (Dec)   % Inc (Dec)  2013 Budget 2013 Actual 

 # of Personnel  40 44 -4 -9.09% 42  

Payroll Expenditures       3,361,635        2,550,108           811,527  31.82%       2,851,407        2,871,582  

Supplies Expenditures              8,715             14,953              (6,238) -41.72%            17,918               6,454  

Service Expenditures            18,240             14,245               3,995  28.04%            21,045             20,123  

Capital & Debt Expenditures                    -                       -                       -    0.00%              7,160                     -    

 Total Expenditures   $   3,388,630   $   2,579,350   $      809,280  31.38%  $   2,897,571   $   2,898,159  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

Residential Appraisal Expenditures 

2015 Budget

2014 Budget

2013 Budget

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 107  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 108  
 

Appraisal Review Board 

  
 2015  

 

  

     Budget     Detail Description  

  
  

   Personnel 
 

        425,778  
 

   400,660  Hearing Costs (Average of 537 hours per member) 

  
  

 
     10,983  Committee Work (Total of 500 hours) 

  
  

 
       1,755  Pay during Comptroller training 

  
  

 
       6,400  Pay during In-House training 

  
  

 
       5,980  Pay during Property Tax Institute 

  
  

   Printing 
 

               100  
 

 Business cards, name plates & ID badges  

  
  

   Operating Supplies 
 

            1,020  
 

 Office Supplies- $85 per month  

  
  

   Training/Education 
 

          11,275  
 

       1,755  Comptroller Training 

  
  

 
       2,500  In House Training 

  
  

 
       7,020  Property Tax Institute 

  
  

   Employee/Member Appreciation 
 

               300  
 

 6th Year Member Appreciation Gift  

  
  

   Attorney/Legal Costs 
 

          11,000  
 

 Outside attorneys' fees, court costs, arbitrations & legal settlements  

            

  
  

        Total ARB Budget           449,473        

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 

Department Budgets | 109  
 

Payroll 
Expenditures 

94.73% 

Supplies 
Expenditures 

0.25% 

Service 
Expenditures 

5.02% 

Capital & Debt 
Expenditures 

0.00% 

2015 Appraisal Review Board 
Expenditures 

 -
 100,000
 200,000
 300,000
 400,000
 500,000
 600,000
 700,000

Appraisal Review Board Expenditures 

2015 Budget

2014 Budget

2013 Budget

Appraisal Review Board Budget Comparison 

  2015 Budget   2014 Budget   $ Inc (Dec)   % Inc (Dec)  2013 Budget 2013 Actual 

 # of Personnel  36 36                       -    0.00% 36  

Payroll Expenditures         425,778              606,670            (180,893) -29.82%         612,216          485,359  

Supplies Expenditures             1,120                  2,183                (1,063) -48.69%             3,000                 789  

Service Expenditures           22,575                26,185                (3,610) -13.79%           14,430            14,072  

Capital & Debt Expenditures                   -                          -                          -    0.00%                   -                      -    

 Total Expenditures   $     449,473   $         635,038   $       (185,566) -29.22%  $     629,646   $     500,221  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 110 

 

Demographic & Economic Statistics   FY 2004-2013  

Fiscal 

Year   

Population 

Estimates   

Personal 

Income in 

Thousands   

Per Capita 

Income   

Single 

Family 

Home Sales 

in Austin   

Average 

Home 

Price in 

Austin   

Unemploy-

ment Rate 

                          
2004 

 
     874,065  

 
    $   31,902,096  

 
     $   36,499  

 
      $  21,935  

 
  $ 199,788  

 
4.9% 

            
  

2005 
 

     893,295  
 

        34,530,234  
 

         38,655  
 

         26,010  
 

    206,290  
 

4.5% 

            
  

2006 
 

     920,544  
 

        37,985,310  
 

         41,264  
 

         29,806  
 

    226,614  
 

3.9% 

            
  

2007 
 

     948,160  
 

        39,250,649  
 

         41,397  
 

         29,263  
 

    243,112  
 

3.8% 

            
  

2008 
 

     978,976  
 

        42,894,280  
 

         43,815  
 

         23,973  
 

    245,068  
 

4.6% 

            
  

2009 
 

  1,008,345  
 

        41,324,095  
 

         40,982  
 

         19,511  
 

    237,314  
 

7.0% 

            
  

2010 
 

  1,033,553  
 

        43,286,456  
 

         42,261  
 

         20,837  
 

    244,131  
 

6.6% 

            
  

2011 
 

  1,049,873  
 

      48,041,333 
 

         45,759  
 

         20,644  
 

    252,575  
 

7.3% 

            
  

2012     1,076,119     50,733,585    47,145             24,295        260,583    5.3% 
             

2013  1,108,403  INA  INA  29,788  283,473  5.3% 
 

Sources: 1 City of Austin Demographer 
  2 Bureau of Economic Analysis, Department of Commerce 
  3 Texas A&M University, Real Estate Research Center 
  4 Texas Workforce Commission  
  INA= Information not available      
 

 

  

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 111 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

Average Home Price in 
Austin, TX 800

900

1,000

1,100

1,200

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

s 
Travis County Population 

Growth 

0%

3%

5%

8%

10%

Unemployment Rate in 
Travis County 

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

Per Capita Income 

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

Single Family Home Sales 
in Austin, TX 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 112 

 

Top Ten Travis County Employers 

  

State of Texas 
6.05% 

University of Texas 
4.00% 

Dell, Inc. 
2.21% 

City of Austin 
2.15% 

Seton Family of 
Hospitals 

1.99% 

Austin ISD 
1.90% 

HEB Grocery Co. 
1.78% 

Federal Government 
1.59% 

St. David's 
Healthcare 

1.25% 

IBM Corporation 
0.94% 

Travis County Principal 

Employers 

Employer Employees 
Percentage of Total 
County Employment 

State of Texas 38,399 6.05% 
University of Texas 25,414 4.00% 
Dell, Inc. 14,000 2.21% 
City of Austin 13,622 2.15% 
Seton Family of Hospitals 12,609 1.99% 
Austin ISD 12,059 1.90% 
HEB Grocery Co. 11,277 1.78% 
Federal Government 10,121 1.59% 
St. David's Healthcare 7,950 1.25% 
IBM Corporation 6,000 0.94% 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 113 

 

Top Ten Taxpayers in Travis County 

Top Ten 2012 Ad Valorem Taxpayers in Travis County 

 
Taxpayer Name*  Taxable Value  

% of Total County 
Taxable Value 

1 
 

Samsung Austin Semiconductor $2,301,939,381  1.86% 

2 
 

TPG- Thomas Property Group $705,803,174  0.57% 

3 
 

Columbia/St Davids Healthcare $482,548,088  0.39% 

4 
 

Circuit of the Americas, LLC $285,393,660  0.00% 

5 
 

Brandywine Acquisition Partners $252,922,130  0.20% 

6 
 

I B M Corporation $231,562,615  0.19% 

7 
 

Freescale Semiconductor Inc $223,424,809  0.18% 

8 
 

Simon Property Group/Shopping Center at Gateway $214,852,216  0.17% 

9 
 

HEB Grocery Co. $212,136,148  0.17% 

10 
 

IMT Capital II Riata LP $211,437,260  0.17% 

 
* Sum of all properties/accounts for the principal taxpayer 

  

 

   

   

   

  

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 114 

 

Travis County Demographics     

Travis County is located in south central Texas astride the Balcones Fault, the boundary 
between the Edwards Plateau to the west and the Blackland Prairies to the east.  Its 
County seat, Austin, is also the capital of Texas. 

Entity 
ID 

Entity 
Cd 

Entity Name M&O Tax 
Rate 

I&S Tax 
Rate 

Total Tax 
Rate 

1003 03 TRAVIS COUNTY 0.4190 0.0756 0.4946 

 

 

 Travis County Demographics 

 Established:           January 25, 1840 

 County Seat:         Austin 

 2011 Population:  1,063,130 

 Square Miles:        1,023 

 Jurisdictions:          15 Schools 

                               22 Cities 

                               80 Special Districts 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 115 

 

Travis County School Districts 

Travis County has 6 school districts wholly contained within its boundaries and 9 school 
districts which are shared across county lines.  Austin ISD is the largest school district in 
Travis County and the third largest school district in the State.  

Entity 
ID 

Entity 
Cd 

Entity Name 
M&O Tax 

Rate 
I&S Tax 

Rate 
Total Tax 

Rate 

1001 01 AUSTIN ISD 1.07900 0.16300 1.24200 
1005 06 DEL VALLE ISD 1.04000 0.43000 1.47000 
1006 07 LAKE TRAVIS ISD 1.04000 0.36750 1.40750 
1007 08 EANES ISD 1.04000 0.17250 1.21250 
1009 1A HAYS CONSOLIDATED ISD * 1.04000 0.42130 1.46130 
1023 16 LAGO VISTA ISD 1.04000 0.28000 1.32000 
1026 19 PFLUGERVILLE ISD * 1.04000 0.50000 1.54000 
1027 2A ELGIN ISD * 1.17000 0.37000 1.54000 
1037 22 COUPLAND ISD * 1.04005 0.00000 1.04005 
1042 3A MARBLE FALLS ISD * 1.05330 0.22670 1.28000 
1053 34 MANOR ISD 1.04000 0.47500 1.51500 
1057 38 DRIPPING SPRINGS ISD * 1.04000 0.45000 1.49000 
1059 4A JOHNSON CITY ISD * 1.04000 0.12000 1.16000 
1072 5A ROUND ROCK ISD * 1.04000 0.3274 1.36740 
1098 69 LEANDER ISD * 1.04000 0.47187 1.51187 

 
*Split boundary districts 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 116 

 

 

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 117 

 

Travis County Cities 

Travis County has 22 cities within its boundaries including the State capital Austin. 
Austin is the fourth largest city in the state and the 34th largest metropolitan statistical 
area in the United States.  Residents of the area represent a diverse mixture of 
government employees, college students and staff, musicians, high-tech workers and 
business people.   

 

Entity ID 
Entity 

Cd 
Entity Name 

M&O Tax 
Rate 

I&S Tax 
Rate 

Total Tax 
Rate 

1004 05 CITY OF MANOR 0.39400 0.41550 0.80950 
1075 5F CITY OF ELGIN 0.39771 0.35619 0.75390 
1090 6F CITY OF LEANDER 0.43142 0.23650 0.66792 
1071 49 CITY OF LAGO VISTA 0.31510 0.33490 0.65000 
1035 20 CITY OF PFLUGERVILLE 0.38510 0.18850 0.57360 
1078 50 CITY OF JONESTOWN 0.52910 0.04590 0.57500 
1002 02 CITY OF AUSTIN 0.38560 0.11710 0.50270 
1048 3H CITY OF AUSTIN/HAYS CO 0.38560 0.11710 0.50270 
1046 3F CITY OF CEDAR PARK 0.25284 0.23966 0.49250 
1031 2F CITY OF ROUND ROCK 0.28003 0.13946 0.41949 
1065 40 VILLAGE OF CREEDMOOR 0.38730 0.00000 0.38730 
1096 61 CITY OF MUSTANG RIDGE 0.41880 0.00000 0.41880 
1077 5H VILLAGE OF WEBBERVILLE 0.21960 0.05780 0.27740 
1019 12 VILLAGE OF SAN LEANNA 0.24980 0.00000 0.24980 
1018 11 CITY OF ROLLINGWOOD 0.14290 0.08350 0.22640 
1036 21 CITY OF LAKEWAY 0.15530 0.01950 0.17480 
1076 5G VILLAGE OF VOLENTE 0.13000 0.00000 0.13000 
1083 55 VILLAGE OF BRIARCLIFF 0.05140 0.06610 0.11750 
1103 7F VILLAGE OF POINT VENTURE 0.10500 0.00000 0.10500 
1008 09 CITY OF WEST LAKE HILLS 0.05340 0.00000 0.05340 
1102 7E VILLAGE OF THE HILLS 0.02480 0.00000 0.02480 
1122 83 CITY OF BEE CAVE 0.02000 0.00000 0.02000 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 118 

 

 

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 119 

 

Property Taxes at Work 

Property taxes are local taxes that are assessed locally, collected locally, and used 
locally. You pay your property taxes to the local tax collector. The tax collector 
distributes the funds to schools, cities and other local governments. Local governments 
spend the funds on schools, roads, hospitals, police departments, fire departments and 
other programs.  

 

In Travis County property taxes support 120 local government agencies including 21 
cities, 14 emergency districts, the county, the hospital district, the junior college, 45 
municipal utility districts, 2 road districts, 15 school districts, and 20 water control 
improvement districts.  For 2012 the projected tax levy for all taxing units in Travis 
County is $2,,784,465,115.  

DISTRIBUTION OF PROPERTY TAXES 

 

City 
16.63% Emergency 

District 
1.18% 

County 
19.09% 

Hospital District 
4.98% 

Junior College 
3.25% Municipal Utility 

1.24% 

Road District 
0.06% 

School District 
52.80% 

Water Control 
Improvement 

0.76% 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 120 

 

20 Year History of Appraisal Roll Values 

2012 was the second consecutive year of appraisal roll growth, lead mainly by new 
construction and commercial property appreciation.  
 

Year Total Appraisal Roll Change from Prior Year Percent Change 

1994  $          28,484,964,782   $                 3,856,599,349  15.66% 

1995  $          31,846,464,842   $                 3,361,500,060  11.80% 

1996  $          40,692,879,260   $                 8,846,414,418  27.78% 

1997  $          43,211,077,759   $                 2,518,198,499  6.19% 

1998  $          48,341,550,509   $                 5,130,472,750  11.87% 

1999  $          53,722,801,958   $                 5,381,251,449  11.13% 

2000  $          64,972,952,588   $               11,250,150,630  20.94% 

2001  $          76,239,618,525   $               11,266,665,937  17.34% 

2002  $          79,728,635,115   $                 3,489,016,590  4.58% 

2003  $          76,469,882,023   $               (3,258,753,092) -4.09% 

2004  $          77,781,604,025   $                 1,311,722,002  1.72% 

2005  $          82,382,024,670   $                 4,600,420,645  5.91% 

2006  $          95,944,913,424   $               13,562,888,754  16.46% 

2007  $        108,864,821,998   $               12,919,908,574  13.47% 

2008  $        121,862,719,729   $               12,997,897,731  11.94% 

2009  $        125,914,741,050   $                 4,052,021,321  3.33% 

2010  $        120,248,329,220   $               (5,666,411,830) -4.50% 

2011  $        123,153,712,684   $                 2,905,383,464  2.42% 

2012  $        128,662,239,389   $                 5,508,526,705  4.47% 

2013  $        137,028,880,292   $                 8,366,640,903  6.50% 
 

 

$0

$20,000,000,000

$40,000,000,000

$60,000,000,000

$80,000,000,000

$100,000,000,000

$120,000,000,000

$140,000,000,000

$160,000,000,000

V
al

u
e 

in
 B

ill
io

n
s 

Roll Years 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 121 

 

 

Appraisal District Finances 

Local taxing units pay the District’s expenses 

according to their share of the total property tax 
levy of all the taxing units in the District. Each 
taxing unit participating in the District is allocated a 
portion of the budget equal to the proportion that 
the total dollar amount of property taxes imposed in the District by the unit for the tax 
year in which the budget proposal is prepared bears to the sum of the total dollar 
amount of property taxes imposed in the District by each participating unit for that year.  
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

City 
16.63% 

Emergency District 
1.18% 

County 
19.09% 

Hospital District 
4.98% Junior College 

3.25% 

Municipal Utility 
1.24% 

Road District 
0.06% 

School District 
52.80% 

Water Control 
Improvement 

0.76% 

Budget by Taxing Unit Type 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 122 

 

 

A useful statistic is comparing the CAD budget to the total taxes levied by the taxing 
entities. It reflects how much it costs to generate a dollar of property tax revenue which, 
in turn, indicates appraisal and operating efficiencies. 

 

  
2013 Tax Levy 2014 Budget % of Levy 

CAD 

Dallas CAD      4,626,607,251   $  21,872,977  0.47% 

Travis CAD      2,675,913,923   $  14,246,848  0.53% 

Bexar CAD      2,694,004,935   $  15,016,438  0.56% 

Tarrant CAD      3,361,502,971   $  21,059,373  0.63% 

Harris CAD      8,566,961,611   $  68,676,380  0.80% 

 

 

  

33% 

21% 

17% 

5% 

5% 

5% 
4% 

4% 
3% 3% 

Top 10 Contributing Taxing Units 
AUSTIN ISD

TRAVIS COUNTY

CITY OF AUSTIN

TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

EANES ISD

PFLUGERVILLE ISD

LAKE TRAVIS ISD

LEANDER ISD

AUSTIN COMM COLL DIST

ROUND ROCK ISD

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 123 

 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Net Position by Component 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Accrual Basis of Accounting- Unaudited) 

 

     
2004 

 
2005 

 
2006 

 
2007 

Governmental Activities 
        

 
Net investment in capital 

        
  

assets 
 

 $3,121,623  
 

 $3,132,908  
 

 $3,190,120  
 

 $2,646,972  

 
 Unrestricted  

 
       313,152  

 
       552,905  

 
       357,061  

 
       755,021  

             Total Governmental Activities  

        
 

 Net Position   

 
    3,434,775  

 
    3,685,813  

 
    3,547,181  

 
    3,401,993  

             Total Primary Government  

        
 

 Net Position  

 
 $3,434,775  

 
 $3,685,813  

 
 $3,547,181  

 
 $3,401,993  

 

 

 

 

SOURCE: Audited Financial Statements 2004-2010 
  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 2011-2013   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 124 

 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Net Position by Component 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Accrual Basis of Accounting- Unaudited) 
 
 

2008 
 

2009 
 

2010 
 

2011 
 

2012 
 

2013 

           
            $3,164,662  

 
 $3,688,647  

 
 $3,749,926  

 
 $4,423,085  

 
 $4,094,873  

 
 $3,982,958  

       889,886  
 

    1,611,684  
 

    1,895,825  
 

    1,640,950  
 

    1,431,888  
 

    3,312,787  

           
               4,054,548  

 
    5,300,331  

 
    5,645,751  

 
    6,064,035  

 
    5,526,761  

 
    7,295,745  

           
            $4,054,548  

 
 $5,300,331  

 
 $5,645,751  

 
 $6,064,035  

 
 $5,526,761  

 
 $7,295,745  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 125 

 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Change in Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Accrual Basis of Accounting- Unaudited) 

 

    
2004 

 
2005 

 
2006 

 
2007 

Expenses 

       
 

Governmental Activities 
       

  
 Appraisal services   $ 8,184,693  

 
 $ 8,080,916  

 
 $ 8,625,489  

 
 $ 9,237,366  

  
 Interest on long-term debt            38,531  

 
          28,947  

 
          20,883  

 
          12,687  

           
  

 Total Governmental   

       
   

 Activities Expenses      8,223,224  
 

    8,109,863  
 

    8,646,372  
 

    9,250,053  

           
  

 Total Primary   

       
   

 Government Expenses      8,223,224  
 

    8,109,863  
 

    8,646,372  
 

    9,250,053  

            Program Revenues  

       
 

 Governmental Activities  
       

  
 Fees, fines, and charges for services      8,274,665  

 
    8,297,105  

 
    8,412,252  

 
    9,008,393  

           
  

 Total Governmental Activities  

       
   

 Program Revenues      8,274,665  
 

    8,297,105  
 

    8,412,252  
 

    9,008,393  

           
  

 Total Primary Government  

       
   

 Program Revenues      8,274,665  
 

    8,297,105  
 

    8,412,252  
 

    9,008,393  

           
  

 Net Revenue (Expense)            51,441  
 

        187,242  
 

      (234,120) 
 

      (241,660) 

   
 Interest income            17,887  

 
          63,796  

 
          95,488  

 
          96,472  

           
   

 Change in net position            69,328  
 

        251,038  
 

      (138,632) 
 

      (145,188) 

           
  

 Net position- beginning of year      3,365,447  
 

    3,434,775  
 

    3,685,813  
 

    3,547,181  

           
  

 Net position- end of year   $ 3,434,775  
 

 $ 3,685,813  
 

 $ 3,547,181  
 

 $ 3,401,993  
 

  

SOURCE: Audited Financial Statements for 2004-2010 
   Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 2011-2013 
 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 126 

 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Change in Net Position 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Accrual Basis of Accounting- Unaudited) 

 

2008 
 

2009 
 

2010 
 

2011 
 

2012 
 

2013 

           
            $ 10,136,925  

 
 $ 10,688,920  

 
 $ 11,527,480  

 
 $ 11,702,337  

 
 $ 12,278,520  

 
 $ 11,693,736  

              4,064  
 

                      -    
 

                      -    
 

            35,233  
 

                      -    
 

            11,116  

           
               10,140,989  

 
    10,688,920  

 
    11,527,480  

 
    11,737,570  

 
    12,278,520  

 
    11,704,852  

           
               10,140,989  

 
    10,688,920  

 
    11,527,480  

 
    11,737,570  

 
    12,278,520  

 
    11,704,852  

           
           
               10,744,086  

 
    11,932,726  

 
    11,872,153  

 
    12,151,322  

 
    11,735,080  

 
    13,468,605  

           
               10,744,086  

 
    11,932,726  

 
    11,872,153  

 
    12,151,322  

 
    11,735,080  

 
    13,468,605  

           
               10,744,086  

 
    11,932,726  

 
    11,872,153  

 
    12,151,322  

 
    11,735,080  

 
    13,468,605  

                     603,097  
 

       1,243,806  
 

          344,673  
 

          413,752  
 

        (543,440) 
 

       1,763,753  
            49,458  

 
               1,977  

 
                  747  

 
               4,532  

 
               6,166  

 
               5,231  

                     652,555  
 

       1,245,783  
 

          345,420  
 

          418,284  
 

        (537,274) 
 

       1,768,984  

                  3,401,993  
 

       4,054,548  
 

       5,300,331  
 

       5,645,751  
 

       6,064,035  
 

       5,526,761  

            $   4,054,548  
 

 $   5,300,331  
 

 $   5,645,751  
 

 $   6,064,035  
 

 $   5,526,761  
 

 $   7,295,745  
 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 127 

 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Fund Balances- Governmental Fund 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 (Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting- Unaudited) 

 

  
2004 

 
2005 

 
2006 

 
2007 

General Fund 

       
 

 Reserved   $             -    
 

 $    122,318  
 

 $    68,657  
 

 $ 186,390  

 
 Unreserved       736,401  

 
        929,780  

 
     800,120  

 
     601,017  

 
 Nonspendable                  -    

 
                   -    

 
                -    

 
                -    

 
 Restricted                  -    

 
                   -    

 
                -    

 
                -    

 
 Committed                  -    

 
                   -    

 
                -    

 
                -    

 
 Assigned                  -    

 
                   -    

 
                -    

 
                -    

 
 Unassigned                  -    

 
                   -    

 
                -    

 
                -    

         
 

 Total General Fund   $ 736,401  
 

 $ 1,052,098  
 

 $ 868,777  
 

 $ 787,407  
 

 

 

SOURCE: Audited Financial Statements 2004-2010 
  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 2011-2013 
 
 
NOTE: The District implemented GASB Statement No. 54 during the fiscal year ended 

December 31, 2011.  This statement eliminated the previous fund balance categories 
(reserved and unreserved), and replaced them with the five new categories 
(nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned).  Fund balance 
amounts for fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 and thereafter reflect the new 
categories; however, all previous fiscal years are presented using the old categories. 

 

 

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 128 

 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Fund Balances- Governmental Fund 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting- Unaudited) 

 

2008 
 

2009 
 

2010 
 

2011 
 

2012 
 

2013 

            $    120,040  
 

 $    145,062  
 

 $       82,376  
 

 $                -    
 

 $                -    
 

 $                -    
    1,197,759  

 
    1,971,252  

 
    2,340,265  

 
                   -    

 
                   -    

 
                   -    

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

        101,849  
 

        174,147  
 

        377,866  
                   -    

 
                   -    

 
                   -    

 
                   -    

 
                   -    

 
                   -    

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

                   -    
                   -    

 
                   -    

 
                   -    

 
                   -    

 
                   -    

 
                   -    

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

    2,135,141  
 

    1,933,761  
 

    2,302,068  

            $ 1,317,799  
 

 $ 2,116,314  
 

 $ 2,422,641  
 

 $ 2,236,990  
 

 $ 2,107,908  
 

 $ 2,679,934  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 129 

 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Changes in Fund Balance- Governmental Fund 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 (Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

 
 

  
 

 
2004 

 
2005 

 
2006 

 
2007 

Revenues 
        

 
 Assessments  

 
 $   8,164,660  

 
 $   8,122,200  

 
 $   8,325,763  

 
 $   9,829,291  

 
 Less: Refunds  

 
                      -    

 
                      -    

 
                      -    

 
        (902,018) 

     
       8,164,660  

 
       8,122,200  

 
       8,325,763  

 
       8,927,273  

            
 

 Investment earnings  
 

            17,887  
 

            63,796  
 

            95,488  
 

            96,472  

 
 Charges for services  

 
            32,724  

 
            37,380  

 
            29,740  

 
            23,436  

 
 Miscellaneous income  

 
               2,836  

 
          137,525  

 
            56,749  

 
            57,684  

            
  

 Total Revenue  
 

       8,218,107  
 

       8,360,901  
 

       8,507,740  
 

       9,104,865  

             Expenditures  
        

 
 Appraisal Services  

        
  

 Payroll and related expenses  
 

       5,371,086  
 

       5,441,943  
 

       6,220,542  
 

       7,390,215  

  
 Data processing  

 
          156,189  

 
          139,599  

 
          160,035  

 
          126,682  

  
 Transportation  

 
          161,310  

 
          169,701  

 
          207,456  

 
               8,640  

  
 Operating supplies  

 
                      -    

 
                      -    

 
                      -    

 
                      -    

  
 Rentals  

 
            34,430  

 
            36,522  

 
            55,987  

 
            43,804  

  
 Legal & professional  

 
          982,947  

 
          755,167  

 
          525,704  

 
          377,307  

  
 Utilities and telephone  

 
          130,949  

 
          136,180  

 
          137,470  

 
          121,473  

  
 Building and equipment  

        
   

 maintenance  
 

                      -    
 

                      -    
 

                      -    
 

          119,560  

  
 Other services  

 
          937,748  

 
          808,732  

 
          869,148  

 
          646,216  

 
 Debt Service  

        
  

 Principal   
 

          358,924  
 

          262,476  
 

          270,540  
 

          278,409  

  
 Interest  

 
            38,531  

 
            28,947  

 
            20,883  

 
            12,687  

 
 Capital outlay  

 
       1,626,236  

 
          265,937  

 
          223,296  

 
            61,242  

            
  

 Total Expenditures  
 

       9,798,350  
 

       8,045,204  
 

       8,691,061  
 

       9,186,235  

             Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues  
        

 
 Over (Under) Expenditures  

 
     (1,580,243) 

 
          315,697  

 
        (183,321) 

 
           (81,370) 

 Other Financing Sources (Uses)  
 

          127,354  
 

                      -    
 

                      -    
 

                      -    
 Net Change in Fund Balance  

 
 $  (1,452,889) 

 
 $       315,697  

 
 $     (183,321) 

 
 $       (81,370) 

            Ratio of Debt Service Expenditures 
        

 
to total noncapital expenditures 

 
4.86% 

 
3.75% 

 
3.44% 

 
3.19% 

 

 

 

SOURCE: Audited Financial Statements 2003-2010 
  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 2011-2013 

 
  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 130 

 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

Changes in Fund Balances- Governmental Fund 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

 (Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

 

2008 
 

2009 
 

2010 
 

2011 
 

2012 
 

2013 

            $ 10,674,750  
 

 $ 11,856,540  
 

 $ 12,591,285  
 

 $ 12,689,611  
 

 $ 12,914,797  
 

 $ 13,375,023  
                      -    

 
                      -    

 
        (789,802) 

 
        (612,738) 

 
     (1,259,667) 

 
                      -    

    10,674,750  
 

    11,856,540  
 

    11,801,483  
 

    12,076,873  
 

    11,655,130  
 

    13,375,023  

                       49,458  
 

               1,977  
 

                  747  
 

               4,532  
 

               6,166  
 

               5,231  
            21,325  

 
            17,998  

 
            19,171  

 
            19,474  

 
            20,424  

 
            23,673  

            48,011  
 

            58,188  
 

            51,499  
 

            54,975  
 

            59,526  
 

            69,909  

               10,793,544  
 

    11,934,703  
 

    11,872,900  
 

    12,155,854  
 

    11,741,246  
 

    13,473,836  

           
           
                  7,918,880  

 
       8,182,739  

 
       9,148,307  

 
       9,120,313  

 
       9,053,018  

 
    10,553,042  

          137,141  
 

          165,309  
 

          187,233  
 

          106,912  
 

          440,591  
 

          354,679  
            10,641  

 
            13,872  

 
            12,663  

 
               7,296  

 
            20,074  

 
            11,843  

                      -    
 

                      -    
 

                      -    
 

                      -    
 

          371,123  
 

          180,563  
            47,536  

 
            46,032  

 
            40,234  

 
            34,433  

 
            39,291  

 
            44,724  

          558,867  
 

          568,315  
 

          406,230  
 

          684,615  
 

          759,231  
 

          363,566  
          133,819  

 
          143,229  

 
          150,150  

 
          138,279  

 
          143,741  

 
          174,140  

                     197,766  
 

          286,939  
 

          211,398  
 

          117,758  
 

          127,552  
 

            98,024  
          668,060  

 
          771,590  

 
          916,974  

 
          916,028  

 
          658,387  

 
          716,010  

                     263,134  
 

                      -    
 

                      -    
 

          743,612  
 

                      -    
 

            23,588  
               4,064  

 
                      -    

 
                      -    

 
            35,233  

 
                      -    

 
            11,116  

          323,244  
 

          958,163  
 

       1,236,996  
 

          437,026  
 

          257,319  
 

          370,516  

               10,263,152  
 

    11,136,188  
 

    12,310,185  
 

    12,341,505  
 

    11,870,327  
 

    12,901,811  

           
                     530,392  

 
          798,515  

 
        (437,285) 

 
        (185,651) 

 
        (129,081) 

 
          572,025  

                      -    
 

  
 

  
 

                      -    
 

                      -    
 

                      -    
 $       530,392  

 
 $       798,515  

 
 $     (437,285) 

 
 $     (185,651) 

 
 $     (129,081) 

 
 $       572,025  

           
           2.69% 

 
0.00% 

 
0.00% 

 
6.54% 

 
0.00% 

 
0.28% 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 131 

 

Grade Step 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

Hourly $12.59 $12.84 $13.10 $13.36 $13.63 $13.90 $14.18 $14.46 $14.75 $15.05 $15.35 $15.66 $15.97 $16.29 $16.62 $16.95 $17.29 $17.64

Exempt $1,007.20 $1,027.20 $1,048.00 $1,068.80 $1,090.40 $1,112.00 $1,134.40 $1,156.80 $1,180.00 $1,204.00 $1,228.00 $1,252.80 $1,277.60 $1,303.20 $1,329.60 $1,356.00 $1,383.20 $1,411.20

Annual $26,187.20 $26,707.20 $27,248.00 $27,788.80 $28,350.40 $28,912.00 $29,494.40 $30,076.80 $30,680.00 $31,304.00 $31,928.00 $32,572.80 $33,217.60 $33,883.20 $34,569.60 $35,256.00 $35,963.20 $36,691.20

Hourly $13.84 $14.12 $14.40 $14.69 $14.98 $15.28 $15.59 $15.90 $16.22 $16.54 $16.87 $17.21 $17.55 $17.90 $18.26 $18.63 $19.00 $19.38

Exempt $1,107.20 $1,129.60 $1,152.00 $1,175.20 $1,198.40 $1,222.40 $1,247.20 $1,272.00 $1,297.60 $1,323.20 $1,349.60 $1,376.80 $1,404.00 $1,432.00 $1,460.80 $1,490.40 $1,520.00 $1,550.40

Annual $28,787.20 $29,369.60 $29,952.00 $30,555.20 $31,158.40 $31,782.40 $32,427.20 $33,072.00 $33,737.60 $34,403.20 $35,089.60 $35,796.80 $36,504.00 $37,232.00 $37,980.80 $38,750.40 $39,520.00 $40,310.40

Hourly $15.34 $15.65 $15.96 $16.28 $16.61 $16.94 $17.28 $17.63 $17.98 $18.34 $18.71 $19.08 $19.46 $19.85 $20.25 $20.66 $21.07 $21.49

Exempt $1,227.20 $1,252.00 $1,276.80 $1,302.40 $1,328.80 $1,355.20 $1,382.40 $1,410.40 $1,438.40 $1,467.20 $1,496.80 $1,526.40 $1,556.80 $1,588.00 $1,620.00 $1,652.80 $1,685.60 $1,719.20

Annual $31,907.20 $32,552.00 $33,196.80 $33,862.40 $34,548.80 $35,235.20 $35,942.40 $36,670.40 $37,398.40 $38,147.20 $38,916.80 $39,686.40 $40,476.80 $41,288.00 $42,120.00 $42,972.80 $43,825.60 $44,699.20

Hourly $17.89 $18.25 $18.62 $18.99 $19.37 $19.76 $20.16 $20.56 $20.97 $21.39 $21.82 $22.26 $22.71 $23.16 $23.62 $24.09 $24.57 $25.06

Exempt $1,431.20 $1,460.00 $1,489.60 $1,519.20 $1,549.60 $1,580.80 $1,612.80 $1,644.80 $1,677.60 $1,711.20 $1,745.60 $1,780.80 $1,816.80 $1,852.80 $1,889.60 $1,927.20 $1,965.60 $2,004.80

Annual $37,211.20 $37,960.00 $38,729.60 $39,499.20 $40,289.60 $41,100.80 $41,932.80 $42,764.80 $43,617.60 $44,491.20 $45,385.60 $46,300.80 $47,236.80 $48,172.80 $49,129.60 $50,107.20 $51,105.60 $52,124.80

Hourly $20.46 $20.87 $21.29 $21.72 $22.15 $22.59 $23.04 $23.50 $23.97 $24.45 $24.94 $25.44 $25.95 $26.47 $27.00 $27.54 $28.09 $28.65

Exempt $1,636.80 $1,669.60 $1,703.20 $1,737.60 $1,772.00 $1,807.20 $1,843.20 $1,880.00 $1,917.60 $1,956.00 $1,995.20 $2,035.20 $2,076.00 $2,117.60 $2,160.00 $2,203.20 $2,247.20 $2,292.00

Annual $42,556.80 $43,409.60 $44,283.20 $45,177.60 $46,072.00 $46,987.20 $47,923.20 $48,880.00 $49,857.60 $50,856.00 $51,875.20 $52,915.20 $53,976.00 $55,057.60 $56,160.00 $57,283.20 $58,427.20 $59,592.00

Hourly $21.83 $22.27 $22.72 $23.17 $23.63 $24.10 $24.58 $25.07 $25.57 $26.08 $26.60 $27.13 $27.67 $28.22 $28.78 $29.36 $29.95 $30.55

Exempt $1,746.40 $1,781.60 $1,817.60 $1,853.60 $1,890.40 $1,928.00 $1,966.40 $2,005.60 $2,045.60 $2,086.40 $2,128.00 $2,170.40 $2,213.60 $2,257.60 $2,302.40 $2,348.80 $2,396.00 $2,444.00

Annual $45,406.40 $46,321.60 $47,257.60 $48,193.60 $49,150.40 $50,128.00 $51,126.40 $52,145.60 $53,185.60 $54,246.40 $55,328.00 $56,430.40 $57,553.60 $58,697.60 $59,862.40 $61,068.80 $62,296.00 $63,544.00

Hourly $23.85 $24.33 $24.82 $25.32 $25.83 $26.35 $26.88 $27.42 $27.97 $28.53 $29.10 $29.68 $30.27 $30.88 $31.50 $32.13 $32.77 $33.43

Exempt $1,908.00 $1,946.40 $1,985.60 $2,025.60 $2,066.40 $2,108.00 $2,150.40 $2,193.60 $2,237.60 $2,282.40 $2,328.00 $2,374.40 $2,421.60 $2,470.40 $2,520.00 $2,570.40 $2,621.60 $2,674.40

Annual $49,608.00 $50,606.40 $51,625.60 $52,665.60 $53,726.40 $54,808.00 $55,910.40 $57,033.60 $58,177.60 $59,342.40 $60,528.00 $61,734.40 $62,961.60 $64,230.40 $65,520.00 $66,830.40 $68,161.60 $69,534.40

Hourly $25.57 $26.08 $26.60 $27.13 $27.67 $28.22 $28.78 $29.36 $29.95 $30.55 $31.16 $31.78 $32.42 $33.07 $33.73 $34.40 $35.09 $35.79

Exempt $2,045.60 $2,086.40 $2,128.00 $2,170.40 $2,213.60 $2,257.60 $2,302.40 $2,348.80 $2,396.00 $2,444.00 $2,492.80 $2,542.40 $2,593.60 $2,645.60 $2,698.40 $2,752.00 $2,807.20 $2,863.20

Annual $53,185.60 $54,246.40 $55,328.00 $56,430.40 $57,553.60 $58,697.60 $59,862.40 $61,068.80 $62,296.00 $63,544.00 $64,812.80 $66,102.40 $67,433.60 $68,785.60 $70,158.40 $71,552.00 $72,987.20 $74,443.20

Hourly $27.27 $27.82 $28.38 $28.95 $29.53 $30.12 $30.72 $31.33 $31.96 $32.60 $33.25 $33.92 $34.60 $35.29 $36.00 $36.72 $37.45 $38.20

Exempt $2,181.60 $2,225.60 $2,270.40 $2,316.00 $2,362.40 $2,409.60 $2,457.60 $2,506.40 $2,556.80 $2,608.00 $2,660.00 $2,713.60 $2,768.00 $2,823.20 $2,880.00 $2,937.60 $2,996.00 $3,056.00

Annual $56,721.60 $57,865.60 $59,030.40 $60,216.00 $61,422.40 $62,649.60 $63,897.60 $65,166.40 $66,476.80 $67,808.00 $69,160.00 $70,553.60 $71,968.00 $73,403.20 $74,880.00 $76,377.60 $77,896.00 $79,456.00

Hourly $28.97 $29.55 $30.14 $30.74 $31.35 $31.98 $32.62 $33.27 $33.94 $34.62 $35.31 $36.02 $36.74 $37.47 $38.22 $38.98 $39.76 $40.56

Exempt $2,317.60 $2,364.00 $2,411.20 $2,459.20 $2,508.00 $2,558.40 $2,609.60 $2,661.60 $2,715.20 $2,769.60 $2,824.80 $2,881.60 $2,939.20 $2,997.60 $3,057.60 $3,118.40 $3,180.80 $3,244.80

Annual $60,257.60 $61,464.00 $62,691.20 $63,939.20 $65,208.00 $66,518.40 $67,849.60 $69,201.60 $70,595.20 $72,009.60 $73,444.80 $74,921.60 $76,419.20 $77,937.60 $79,497.60 $81,078.40 $82,700.80 $84,364.80

Hourly $30.68 $31.29 $31.92 $32.56 $33.21 $33.87 $34.55 $35.24 $35.94 $36.66 $37.39 $38.14 $38.90 $39.68 $40.47 $41.28 $42.11 $42.95

Exempt $2,454.40 $2,503.20 $2,553.60 $2,604.80 $2,656.80 $2,709.60 $2,764.00 $2,819.20 $2,875.20 $2,932.80 $2,991.20 $3,051.20 $3,112.00 $3,174.40 $3,237.60 $3,302.40 $3,368.80 $3,436.00

Annual $63,814.40 $65,083.20 $66,393.60 $67,724.80 $69,076.80 $70,449.60 $71,864.00 $73,299.20 $74,755.20 $76,252.80 $77,771.20 $79,331.20 $80,912.00 $82,534.40 $84,177.60 $85,862.40 $87,588.80 $89,336.00

Hourly $32.38 $33.03 $33.69 $34.36 $35.05 $35.75 $36.47 $37.20 $37.94 $38.70 $39.47 $40.26 $41.07 $41.89 $42.73 $43.58 $44.45 $45.34

Exempt $2,590.40 $2,642.40 $2,695.20 $2,748.80 $2,804.00 $2,860.00 $2,917.60 $2,976.00 $3,035.20 $3,096.00 $3,157.60 $3,220.80 $3,285.60 $3,351.20 $3,418.40 $3,486.40 $3,556.00 $3,627.20

Annual $67,350.40 $68,702.40 $70,075.20 $71,468.80 $72,904.00 $74,360.00 $75,857.60 $77,376.00 $78,915.20 $80,496.00 $82,097.60 $83,740.80 $85,425.60 $87,131.20 $88,878.40 $90,646.40 $92,456.00 $94,307.20

Hourly $34.08 $34.76 $35.46 $36.17 $36.89 $37.63 $38.38 $39.15 $39.93 $40.73 $41.54 $42.37 $43.22 $44.08 $44.96 $45.86 $46.78 $47.72

Exempt $2,726.40 $2,780.80 $2,836.80 $2,893.60 $2,951.20 $3,010.40 $3,070.40 $3,132.00 $3,194.40 $3,258.40 $3,323.20 $3,389.60 $3,457.60 $3,526.40 $3,596.80 $3,668.80 $3,742.40 $3,817.60

Annual $70,886.40 $72,300.80 $73,756.80 $75,233.60 $76,731.20 $78,270.40 $79,830.40 $81,432.00 $83,054.40 $84,718.40 $86,403.20 $88,129.60 $89,897.60 $91,686.40 $93,516.80 $95,388.80 $97,302.40 $99,257.60

Hourly $35.79 $36.51 $37.24 $37.98 $38.74 $39.51 $40.30 $41.11 $41.93 $42.77 $43.63 $44.50 $45.39 $46.30 $47.23 $48.17 $49.13 $50.11

Exempt $2,863.20 $2,920.80 $2,979.20 $3,038.40 $3,099.20 $3,160.80 $3,224.00 $3,288.80 $3,354.40 $3,421.60 $3,490.40 $3,560.00 $3,631.20 $3,704.00 $3,778.40 $3,853.60 $3,930.40 $4,008.80

Annual $74,443.20 $75,940.80 $77,459.20 $78,998.40 $80,579.20 $82,180.80 $83,824.00 $85,508.80 $87,214.40 $88,961.60 $90,750.40 $92,560.00 $94,411.20 $96,304.00 $98,238.40 $100,193.60 $102,190.40 $104,228.80

Hourly $36.64 $37.37 $38.12 $38.88 $39.66 $40.45 $41.26 $42.09 $42.93 $43.79 $44.67 $45.56 $46.47 $47.40 $48.35 $49.32 $50.31 $51.32

Exempt $2,931.32 $2,989.60 $3,049.60 $3,110.40 $3,172.80 $3,236.00 $3,300.80 $3,367.20 $3,434.40 $3,503.20 $3,573.60 $3,644.80 $3,717.60 $3,792.00 $3,868.00 $3,945.60 $4,024.80 $4,105.60

Annual $76,214.32 $77,729.60 $79,289.60 $80,870.40 $82,492.80 $84,136.00 $85,820.80 $87,547.20 $89,294.40 $91,083.20 $92,913.60 $94,764.80 $96,657.60 $98,592.00 $100,568.00 $102,585.60 $104,644.80 $106,745.60

13

14

15

7

8

9

10

11

12

6

1

2

3

4

5

Travis Central Appraisal District 

Step & Grade System 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 132 

 

Visit or Contact Us 

Office Location:  
Travis Central Appraisal District  
8314 Cross Park Drive 
Austin, TX 78754  
 
Mailing Address: 
P.0. Box 149012 
Austin, TX 78714-9012 
 
Customer Inquiries and Assistance: 
Phone: (512) 834-9138 
Fax: (512) 835-5371 
Email: tcad_info@tcadcentral.org 
Website: www.traviscad.org 
 
Business Hours:  
Monday - Friday 
7:45am-4:45pm 
 
Directions: 
 
From North Austin:  
 
From north Austin go south on IH 35 and take the 183 Lockhart/Lampasas exit which 
will be exit number 240A - 239. Turn left at the light onto highway 183 South staying on 
frontage road approximately 3/4 miles. Turn left onto Cameron Rd. Continue for 
approximately one mile and turn right at the second stop light onto Cross Park Drive. 
Proceed 3/4 mile and our office at 8314 Cross Park will be on the right. If you have 
reached the post office on the left you have gone too far. 

From South Austin:  
 

From south Austin go north on IH 35 take the 183 Lockhart/Lampasas exit which will be 
exit number 240A - 239. At the second stop light turn right on Hwy 183 staying on 
frontage road approximately 3/4 miles. Turn left onto Cameron Rd. Continue for 
approximately one mile and turn right at the second stop light onto Cross Park Drive. 
Proceed 3/4 mile and our office at 8314 Cross Park will be on the right. If you have 
reached the post office on the left you have gone too far. 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto:tcad_info@tcadcentral.org
http://www.traviscad.org/


FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Statistical Section | 133 

 

From East Austin: 
 

From east Austin, heading west on Hwy 183 take the Cameron Road Exit, turn right 
onto Cameron Rd. Continue for approximately one mile and turn right at the second 
stop light onto Cross Park Drive. Proceed 3/4 mile and our office at 8314 Cross Park will 
be on the right. If you have reached the post office on the left you have gone too far. 

From West Austin:  
 

From west Austin, heading east on Hwy 183 take the Cameron Road exit. Turn left onto 
Cameron Rd. Continue for approximately one mile and turn right at the second stop light 
onto Cross Park Drive. Proceed 3/4 mile and our office at 8314 Cross Park will be on 
the right. If you have reached the post office on the left you have gone too far. 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 134 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 
Texas Property Tax Code 

Section 6.06 

Appraisal District Budget and Financing 

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 135 

 

SECTION 6.06 PROPERTY TAX CODE, APPRAISAL DISTRICT BUDGET AND FINANCING 

 

(a) Each year the Chief Appraiser shall prepare a proposed budget for the operations of the 
district for the following tax year and shall submit copies to each of the taxing units participating 
in the district and to the district board of directors before June 15th.   He shall include in the 
budget a list showing each proposed position, the proposed salary for the position, all benefits 
proposed for the position, each proposed capital expenditure, and an estimate of the amount of 
the budget that will be allocated to each taxing unit.  Each taxing unit entitled to vote on the 
appointment of board members shall maintain a copy of the proposed budget for public 
inspection at its principal administrative office. 
 
(b) The board of directors shall hold a public hearing to consider the budget.  The secretary of 
the board shall deliver to the presiding officer of the governing body of each taxing unit 
participating in the district not later than the 10th day before the hearing.  The board shall 
complete its hearings, make any amendments to the proposed budget it desires, and finally 
approve a budget before September 15.  If governing bodies of a majority of the taxing units 
entitled to vote on the appointment of board members adopt resolutions disapproving a budget 
and file them with the secretary of the board within 30 days after its adoption, the budget does 
not take effect, and the board shall adopt a new budget within 30 days of the disapproval. 
  

(c) The board may amend the approved budget at any time, but the secretary of the board must 
deliver a written copy of the proposed amendment to the presiding officer of the governing body 
of each taxing unit participating in the district not later than the 30th day before the date the 
board acts on it. 
 
(d) Each taxing unit participating in the district is allocated a portion of the amount of the budget 
equal to the proportion that the total dollar amount of property taxes imposed in the district by 
the unit for the tax year in which the budget proposal is prepared bears to the sum of the total 
dollar amount of property taxes imposed in the district by each participating unit for that year.  If 
a taxing unit participates in two or more districts, only the taxes imposed in a district are used to 
calculate the unit’s cost allocations in the district.  If the number of real property parcels in the 

district and the taxing unit imposes in excess of 25 percent of the total amount of the property 
taxes imposed in the district by all of the participating taxing units for a year, the unit’s allocation 

may not exceed a percentage of the appraisal district’s budget equal to three times the unit’s 

percentage of the total number of real property parcels appraised by the district. 
 
(e) Unless the governing body of a unit and the chief appraiser agree to a different method of 
payment, each taxing unit shall pay its allocation in four equal payments to be made at the end 
of each calendar quarter, and the first payment shall be made before January 1 of the year in 
which the budget takes effect.  A payment is delinquent if not paid on the date it is due.  A 
delinquent payment incurs a penalty of 5 percent of the amount of the payment and accrues 
interest at an annual rate of 10 percent.  If the budget is amended, any change in the amount of 
a unit’s allocation is apportioned among the payments remaining. 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 136 

 

(f) Payments shall be made to a depository designed by the district board of directors.  The 
district’s funds may be disbursed only by a written check, draft, or order signed by the chairman 
and secretary of the board or, if authorized by resolution of the board, by the chief appraiser. 
 
(g) If a taxing unit decides not to impose taxes for any tax year, the unit is not liable for any of 
the costs of operating the district in that year, and those costs are allocated among the other 
taxing units as if that unit had not imposed taxes in the year used to calculate allocation.  
However, if that unit has made any payments, it is not entitled to a refund. 
 
(h)  If a newly formed taxing unit or a taxing unit that did not impose taxes in the preceding year 
imposes taxes in any tax year, that unit is allocated a portion of the amount budgeted to operate 
the district as if it had imposed taxes in the preceding year, except that the amount of taxes the 
unit imposes in the current year is used to calculate its allocation.  Before the amount of taxes to 
be imposed for the current year is known, the allocation may be based on an estimate to which 
the district board of directors and the governing body of the unit agree, and the payments made 
after that amount is know shall be adjusted to reflect the amount imposed.  The payments of a 
newly formed taxing unit that has no source of funds are postponed until the unit has received 
adequate tax or other revenues. 
 
(i) The fiscal year of an appraisal district is the calendar year unless the governing bodies of 
three-fourths of the taxing units entitled to vote on the appointment of board members adopt 
resolutions proposing a different fiscal year and file them with the secretary of the board not 
more than 12 and not less than eight months before the first day of the fiscal year proposed by 
the resolutions.  If the fiscal year of an appraisal district is changed under this subsection, the 
chief appraiser shall prepare a proposed budget for the fiscal year as provided by Subsection 
(a) of this section before the 15th day of the seventh month preceding the first day of the fiscal 
year established by the change, and the board of directors shall adopt a budget for the fiscal 
year as provided by Subsection (b) of this section before the 15th day of the fourth month 
preceding the first day of the fiscal year established by the change.  Unless the appraisal district 
adopts a different method of allocation under Section 6.061 of this code, the allocation of the 
budget to each taxing unit shall be calculated as provided by Subsection (d) of this section using 
the amount of property taxes imposed by each participating taxing unit in the most recent tax 
year preceding the fiscal year established by the change for which the necessary information is 
available.  Each taxing unit shall pay its allocation as provided by Subsection (e) of the section, 
except that the first payment shall be made before the first day of the fiscal year established by 
the change and subsequent payments shall be made quarterly.  In the year in which a change in 
the fiscal year occurs, the budget that takes effect on January 1 of that year may be amended 
as necessary as provided by Subsection (c) of this section in order to accomplish the change in 
fiscal years. 
 
(j) If the total amount of the payments made or due to be made by the taxing units participating 
in an appraisal district exceeds the amount actually spent or obligated to be spent during the 
fiscal year for which the payments were made, the chief appraiser shall credit the excess 
amount against each taxing unit’s allocation payments for the following year in proportion to the 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 137 

 

amount of each unit’s budget allocation for the fiscal year for which the payments were made.  If 

a taxing unit that paid its allocated amount is not allocated a portion of the district’s budget for 

the following fiscal year, the chief appraiser shall refund to the taxing unit its proportionate share 
of the excess funds not later than the 150th day after the end of the fiscal year for which the 
payments were made. 
 
SECTION 6.062 PROPERTY TAX CODE, PUBLICATION OF BUDGET 

 

(a) Not later than the 10th day before the date of the public hearing at which the board of 
directors considers the appraisal district budget, the chief appraiser shall give notice of the 
public hearing by publishing the notice in a newspaper having general circulation in the county 
for which the appraisal district is established.  The notice may not be smaller than one-quarter 
page of a standard-size or tabloid-size newspaper and may not be published in the part of the 
paper in which legal notices and classified advertisements appear. 
 
(b) The notice must set out the time, date, and place of the public hearing and must set out a 
summary of the proposed budget.  The summary must set out as separate items: 
  

(1) The total amount of the proposed budget; 
(2) The amount of increases proposed from the budget adopted for the current year; and  
(3) The number of employees to be compensated under the current budget and the 

number of employees to be compensated under the proposed budget. 
 
(c) The notice must state that the appraisal district is supported solely by payments form the 
local taxing units served by the appraisal district.  The notice must also contain the following 
statement: “If approved by the appraisal district board of directors at the public hearing, this 

proposed budget will take effect automatically unless disapproved by the governing bodies of 
the county, school districts, cities, and towns served by the appraisal district.  A copy of the 
proposed budget is available for public inspection in the office of each of those governing 
bodies.” 
 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 138 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 
Travis Central Appraisal District 

Finance Policy 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 139 

 

FINANCIAL POLICIES & PROCEDURES MANUAL 

TRAVIS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT 

FEBRUARY 2012 

SECTION I: INTRODUCTION 

A.  PURPOSE 

This Financial Policies & Procedures Manual is to be used as the central sources of reference to establish policies 

and delineate procedures for the effective and consistent management of financial operations of the Travis Central 

Appraisal District, herein after referred to as the District.  This manual is intended to be general in some areas so that 

managers will have the flexibility to modify workflow responsibilities without constant revision of this manual. 

 

B. MAINTENANCE 

Recommendations for changes and modifications should be submitted in writing to the Finance & Facilities Officer.  

The recommendations that are approved by the Finance & Facilities Officer will then be reviewed by the Chief 

Appraiser.  If approved by both the Chief Appraiser and the Finance & Facilities Officer, the recommended revision 

will be submitted to the District’s Board of Directors for approval. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 140 

 

SECTION II: POLICY OVERVIEW 

A. REVENUE POLICY 

 

 Specific information about the revenue policy can be found in the Revenue Policy section of this finance 

policy. 

 

1. Revenue Recognition- Revenues shall be recorded on the modified accrual basis of 

accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when 

susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they become both measurable and available. 

2. Daily Deposits- In accordance with this finance policy, the District shall require weekly 

deposits of receipts only when the moneys on hand amount to at least $1,000.  Any funds not 

immediately deposited shall be appropriately safeguarded in a locked file cabinet in the 

Finance Officer’s office. 

3. Monitoring Revenue- District finance staff shall monitor revenues as billed and collected and 

shall report to the Board of Directors no less than quarterly on any past due or uncollectible 

amounts. 

4. Authority- The Finance & Facilities Officer shall be responsible for designing, implementing, 

monitoring, and amending as necessary, accounting procedures, including internal controls, 

for the billing, recording, and reporting of all revenues of the District in compliance with 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and applicable state laws.  Any changes to 

revenue procedures shall be reported to the Board of Directors at their next regularly 

scheduled meeting. 

B. CASH DISBURSEMENT POLICY 

Specific information about purchasing, requisitions, competitive bidding, encumbrances & accounts payable 

can be found in the cash disbursement section of this finance policy. 

1. Centralized Purchasing- The District will operate under a centralized purchasing concept. 

2. Payments- Local governments and state agencies are required to pay all bills owed within 30 

calendar days.  The District adheres to this requirement.  Any deviations from this requirement 

are reported to the Chief Appraiser. 

3. Monitoring- District finance staff shall monitor cash disbursements and report to the Board of 

Directors at each regularly scheduled meeting all capital asset purchases and any purchases 

over $25,000.  Specific purchasing limitations are outlined in the cash disbursements section 

of this finance policy. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 141 

 

4. Authority- The Finance & Facilities Officer shall be responsible for designing, implementing, 

monitoring, and amending as necessary, accounting procedures including internal controls, for 

the requisitioning, purchasing and cash disbursement functions of the district in compliance 

with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and applicable state laws.  Any 

change to cash disbursement procedures shall be reported to the Board of Directors at their 

next regularly scheduled meeting. 

C. OPERATING BUDGET POLICY 

 

1. Planning: The District will prepare a five-year operating budget projection annually, which will 

include projections of expenditures for the next five years. 

 

2. Performance Measures: The District will integrate performance measures and productivity 

indicators into its budgetary process whenever feasible. 

 

3. Periodic Reporting: The Finance and Facilities Officer shall present budget to actual financial 

reports to the Board of directors monthly (or at each board meeting) and bi-weekly to the Chief 

Appraiser. 

 

4. Balanced Budget: The District shall submit a balanced budget wherein budgeted 

expenditures shall equal budgeted revenues.   

 

D. ASSET MANAGEMENT & CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT POLICY 

 

Additional information on asset management and capital improvements can be found in the capital assets 

section of this finance policy. 

 

1. Planning for Operational and Maintenance Costs: The District shall utilize an equipment replacement 

schedule to plan major operational and maintenance asset acquisitions on a systematic, comprehensive, 

and entity-wide basis. 

 

2. Asset Condition: The District will maintain all assets at a level adequate to comply with all regulatory 

requirements and to minimize future replacement and maintenance costs.  

 

3. Planning: The District will annually update a ten-year capital improvement program, identifying and 

describing each capital project along with the estimated cost. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 142 

 

4. Capitalization: The District will capitalize all asset cost which are $1,000 or more and whose useful life is 

more than one year. 

 

5. Reporting: The District will provide reports of expenditures by project to the Board of Directors no less than 

quarterly. 

 

E. CASH MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY 

 

1. Written Policy: The District’s investment policy must be written and in compliance with all applicable state 

and local laws.  The policy must be reviewed on an annual basis by the Board of Director’s and approved 

through a resolution. 

 

2. Objectives: The primary objectives of investment activities, in priority order, shall be preservation of 

principal, liquidity, and yield. 

 

3. Periodic Reporting: The District shall provide monthly investment reports to the Board of Directors. 

 

4. Treasury Services: The District shall prepare a Request for Proposal (RFP) for banking services every 2 

years, with the option to renew the contract for an additional 2 years. 

 

F. ACCOUNTING POLICY 

 

1. Authority for Accounting Procedures: The District will establish and maintain the accounting system 

according to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and all applicable state and local laws. 

 

2. Annual Audit: An annual audit will be performed by an independent public accounting firm, which will issue 

an official opinion on the annual financial statements, and a management letter indicating any suggestions 

for improvement or areas of concern. 

 

3. Transparency: Full disclosure will be provided in the financial statements. 

 

4. Financial Report: The District shall prepare a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) upon 

completion of the financial audit, which will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers’ Association 

(GFOA) for the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting award. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 143 

 

SECTION III: REVENUE POLICY 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 

 

A.  PAYMENTS RECEIVED 

The procedures for processing payments received by the District for assessments or other accounts 

receivable shall be in the manner prescribed by the cash receipts policy.  Each individual cash receipt item 

shall be recorded in the appropriate subsidiary ledger and the general ledger. Revenues shall be recorded 

on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 

recognized when susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they become both measurable and available. The District 

requires weekly deposits of receipts only when the moneys on hand amount to at least $1,000.  Any funds 

not immediately deposited shall be appropriately safeguarded in a locked file cabinet in the Finance and 

Facilities Officer’s office. 

 

B. REPORTING OF OPEN BALANCES 

 

A report of all open balances shall be prepared at the end of each reporting period.  This report shall balance with the 

period ending balance of the general ledger.  The monthly billing of outstanding assessments receivable or other 

accounts receivable shall be processed on or before the end of each reporting period. 

 

C. RECORDS AND FILING PROCEDURES 
 

A file shall be created for each taxing unit and other accounts receivable items.  The files shall be maintained in the 

Finance Division.  Copies of statements and other correspondence relating to these accounts shall be kept in these 

files while the account is active.  Inactive files and records may be transferred to the Records Management Officer in 

accordance the TCAD Records Retention Policy. 

 

ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

 

A. GENERAL 

 

Funds of the District are provided by the taxing jurisdictions within the boundaries of the District as prescribed by 

Chapter 6, Property Tax Code.    Under the authority of the Property Tax Code and other statutes, the District shall 

establish assessments receivable (from taxing jurisdictions). 

 

B. ASSESSMENTS 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 144 

 

 
1. CALCULATION OF TAXING UNIT CONTRIBUTIONS- Each taxing unit participating in the District shall be allocated 

a portion of the total amount of the District’s budget.  This portion is equal to the proportion that the total 

dollar amount of property taxes imposed in the district by the unit for the tax year in which the budget 

proposal is prepared bears to the sum of the total dollar amount of property taxes imposed in the district by 

each participating unit for that year.  If a taxing unit participates in two or more appraisal districts, only the 

taxes imposed in a district are used to calculate the unit’s cost allocations in that district.    If the number of 

real property parcels in a taxing unit is less than 5 percent of the total number of real property parcels in the 

district and the taxing unit imposes in excess of 25 percent of the total amount of the property taxes 

imposed in the district by all of the participating taxing units for a year, the unit’s allocation may not exceed a 

percentage of the appraisal district’s budget equal to three times the unit’s percentage of the total number of 

real property parcels appraised by the district (Sec. 6.06 (c), Property Tax Code). 

 

2. QUARTERLY BILLINGS- The billing of assessments of the current year’s budget shall be made in four 

installments inclusive of adjustments.  Each taxing unit shall be mailed a statement of account showing the 

amount to be paid.  The statement shall be mailed at least thirty days before the due date.  The due dates 

are as prescribed by law in the Property Tax Code, Sec. 6.  All amounts received in the District’s office shall 

be forwarded to the District’s depository. 

 

3. ASSESSMENTS DUE DATE- Unless the governing body of a unit and the Chief Appraiser agree to a different 

method of payment, each taxing unit shall pay its allocation in four equal payments, payable prior to the 

beginning of each calendar quarter.  The first payment is to be made before January 1 of the year in which 

the budget takes effect.  A payment shall be delinquent if not paid on the last day of the quarter in which it is 

due.  All delinquent payments incur a penalty of 5 percent of the amount of the quarterly assessment and 

accrue interest at an annual rate of 10 percent during the period the assessment remains unpaid. 

 

4. ASSESSMENT RECEIVABLE SUBSYSTEM- An assessments receivable subsystem within the District’s 

accounting system shall be established in which all taxing unit budget assessments are controlled.  The 

subsystem shall contain the name and jurisdiction code of the taxing unit, amount of the assessment, 

balance forward, penalty and interest incurred and total amount due.  The subsystem shall also contain the 

taxing unit master file listing the presiding officer, tax assessor/collector (if applicable) and mailing address.  

Changes to the taxing unit master file shall be in writing and shall be approved by the Finance & Facilities 

Officer before changes are made.  It is the responsibility of the Finance & Facilities Officer to maintain the 

subsystem. 

 

5. STATEMENT OF ASSESSMENT- Upon recording the calculated amounts of the taxing unit assessments in the 

assessments receivable subsystem, statements for each taxing unit shall be produced in duplicate.  Unless 

otherwise requested by the taxing unit, the original shall be mailed to the presiding officer of the unit and a 

copy will be placed in the assessments receivable file. 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 145 

 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

 

The District also receives funds from other sources such as from the sale of data and the sale of surplus supplies and 

equipment. 

C. OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

 
Certain District expenses such as copies of public records, computer time and sale of surplus equipment are 

reimbursable to the District.  These expenditures are considered outside the governmental function of the District. 

 

1. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES- Payment shall be made before services are provided by the District.  In those 

cases where the actual cost of services cannot be determined until after the services are performed, an 

estimate of costs shall be prepared and a deposit shall be secured from the buyer.  Before delivery of the 

final product, any amount due from the buyer shall be collected. 

 

2. EXCEPTIONS TO PAYMENT IN ADVANCE- In certain circumstances, services are provided whereby deposits or 

payments in advance are not practical or lawful.  For example, payments for selection of health benefits 

under the provisions of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) may be made after 

services are provided.  Payments from taxing units for special services may be deferred until revenues 

become available to the taxing unit. 

 

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE- In circumstances where payments for services are not made in advance, the 

unpaid item becomes a receivable for the District immediately.   

 

4. OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SUBSYSTEM- The District shall establish a separate accounts receivable 

subsystem within the District’s accounting system for other accounts receivable items as defined above. 

 

5. STATEMENTS FOR OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE- The Finance & Facilities Officer shall cause statements to 

be printed and delivered to the person or organization responsible for the receivable on a monthly basis. 

 

Please see the Accounting Training and Procedures Manual, Exhibit A, for a detail listing of accounts receivable 

procedures. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 146 

 

SECTION IV: CASH DISBURSEMENTS POLICY 

PURCHASING: 

 

A. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

The District will operate under a centralized purchasing concept.  The Finance & Facilities Officer shall direct all 

purchasing activities and is responsible for the acquisition and distribution of equipment, supplies, materials and 

services.  Purchases shall be made in accordance with these policies and procedures as well as all applicable state 

and federal laws. 

 

B. PURCHASING LIMITATIONS 

 

Purchases made by the District are governed by Section 6.11, Property Tax Code and Chapter 252 of the Local 

Government Code, as well as these policies and procedures. 

 

1. PURCHASES GREATER THAN $50,000- All purchases exceeding the amount as specified by Sec. 

6.11 (a) Property Tax Code ($50,000) require approval by the District’s Board of Directors.  The 

District may not enter into a contract requiring expenditure greater than the maximum amount as 

specified by Sec. 6.11 (b), unless the proposed contract is submitted to competitive bidding 

requirements or alternate competitive proposal procedures as prescribed by state law. 

 

2. PURCHASES BETWEEN $1,000 AND $50,000- Purchases between $1,000 and the minimum amount 

required to go through the competitive bid process ($50,000) require at least three competitive 

quotations (three bidders).  These quotes must be submitted in writing to the Finance & Facilities 

Officer. 

a. Normal and routine items with a value less than $100 and an aggregate value less than 

$500 may be authorized by the division heads. 

b. Items with a value between $100 and $499 and an aggregate value less than $1,000 may 

be authorized by Department Directors. 

c. Items with a value between $500 and $999 must be authorized by both the Department 

Director and the Finance & Facilities Officer. 

d. Items with a value of $5,000 up to the minimum amount specified by Sec. 6.11 (b) 

($50,000) may be authorized only by the Chief Appraiser. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 147 

 

3. EMERGENCY PURCHASES- Exceptions to the above limitations are permissible only in emergencies 

where delay would endanger the public or employee welfare, such as sewer, water or power 

failure, fuel shortage, transportation delay, or fire and health hazards.  Purchases under this 

provision require approval by the Chief Appraiser. 

 

4. CAPITAL EQUIPMENT- Purchases of Capital Equipment shall be approved by the Finance & 

Facilities Officer and the Chief Appraiser, and if otherwise required, the Board of Directors.  

Requisitions for purchases of capital equipment requiring approval by the Board of Directors must 

reference the board meeting minutes for the meeting at which the purchase was approved. 

 

5. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES- Purchases of professional services shall be approved by the Chief 

Appraiser and if otherwise required, the Board of Directors.  Requisitions for purchases of 

professional services requiring approval by the Board of Directors must reference the board 

meeting minutes for the meeting at which the purchase was approved. 

 

Please see the Accounting Training and Procedures Manual, Exhibit A, for a detailed description of the purchasing 

process. 

 

C. REQUISITIONS 
 

All purchases must be requisitioned.  The requisition form shall be completed by the requesting TCAD department or 

division and must be approved by the department Director.  For normal and routine items, the department Director 

may appoint one person in the division to make purchase requisitions. 

 

1. SPECIFICATIONS AND SAMPLES- A completed requisition shall include detailed specification to detail 

the type and quality of the supplies or materials requested.  If the requesting department requires 

assistance in preparing specifications, the Finance & Facilities Officer or his/her designee shall 

consult with the requester to provide any needed assistance. 

 

2. ACTION ON REQUISITION- The purchasing agent receiving the requisition shall determine if the form 

has been properly completed and approved and is in accordance with this policy and any 

applicable state or federal laws.   

 

D. PURCHASE ORDERS 

 

A purchase order form is a numerically controlled form used by the District as a document of fund encumbrance and 

control.  Purchase orders are issued in response to an approved requisition or action by the Board of Directors.  It 

must be completed in full and approved by the Finance & Facilities Officer, and in certain instances, the Chief 

Appraiser.  All purchase orders more than $500 ($2,500 for Information Technology purchases) must be approved by 

the Finance & Facilities Officer.  All purchases  over $1,000 ($5,000 for Information Technology Purchases) must be 

approved by the Finance & Facilities Officer and the Chief Appraiser. 

 

1. FORM AND DISTRIBUTION- A purchase order is a two-part form.  When properly completed, it is distributed as 

defined below. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 148 

 

a. The original shall be delivered to the vendor by mail or any electronic means. 

b. The hard copy is placed in a master file and a photocopy will become the receiving report and shall 

be delivered to the employee who will be receiving and accepting the delivered goods or services.  

A space shall be provided next to each item ordered for the receiving employee to mark the 

number of each item actually received.  

 

2. REGISTER OF PURCHASE ORDERS- The Finance & Facilities Officer shall maintain a register of all purchase 

orders issued.  The register may be kept using electronic media.  The register shall include the purchase 

order number, name of vender, amount, date issued and any other information as required.  If the register is 

kept in electronic form, a separate listing shall be produced at least monthly by the purchase order number 

and by vendor name alphabetically. 

 

3. SPLITTING PURCHASE ORDERS- Splitting orders to avoid the competitive bidding requirements is strictly 

prohibited 

 

 

Please see the Accounting Training and Procedures Manual, Exhibit A, for a detailed listing of purchasing 

procedures. 

 

COMPETITIVE BIDDING 

 

Purchases subject to competitive bidding as required by Section 6.11, Property Tax Code and Chapter 252, 

Subchapter B of the Local Government Code shall be approved by the District’s Board of Directors. 

 

1. PREPARATION OF BID SPECIFICATIONS- Bid specifications shall be prepared by the requesting department in 

consultation with the Finance & Facilities Officer.  Specifications shall be delivered to the Chief Appraiser for 

approval before being placed on the Board of Director’s meeting agenda. 

 

2. ACTION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS- To proceed with the bidding process, the Board of Directors must 

make any changes to the specifications, if desired, approve the specifications, and authorize the publication 

of a notice of the time and place where the proposals shall be submitted. 

 

3. NOTICE REQUIREMENTS- The notice shall be published once a week for two consecutive weeks in a 

newspaper of general circulation.  The date of the first publication shall be at least 14 days before the date 

set for the receipt of bids.  The notice shall state the time and place where bids will be received, a brief 

description of the purchase contract, the time and place where the proposals shall be submitted, the name 

and telephone number of the person to contact for copies of the specifications, and a statement that the bids 

shall be sealed.  Information about the bid can be discussed with those who have submitted proposal and 

who are determined to be reasonably qualified for the award of the contract.  Offerors shall be treated fairly 

and equally with respect to any opportunity for discussion and revision of proposals.  To obtain the best final 

offers, revisions will not be permitted after the submission deadline. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 149 

 

4. RECEIPT OF BIDS- Bids shall be received up to the time as provided in the specifications and notice.  Bid 

envelopes shall be date and time stamped by the employee responsible for receiving the sealed bids.  The 

envelopes shall remain sealed until the time provided for opening bids. 

 

5. OPENING BIDS- Bids shall be opened in an open session with at least the Chief Appraiser, Finance & 

Facilities Officer, and an employee from the requesting department, unless specified otherwise by the 

Chairman of the Board of Directors.  Any vendor or other person shall be permitted to attend the bid 

opening.  At the bid opening session, all bids timely received shall be read aloud.  Bids received after the 

time provided in the specifications shall not be opened or read and shall be returned to the person or firm 

submitting the bid. 

 

6. BID TABULATION- As soon as practicable after the bid opening, the bids shall be reviewed and tabulated by 

the Finance & Facilities Officer or his/her designee and the requesting department head. 

 

7. BID RECOMMENDATION- Upon completion of the bid review and tabulation, the requesting department head 

shall prepare a report to the Chief Appraiser stating the nature of the bid, the tabulation of the bids and a 

recommendation as to the lowest, and most responsible bidder or the bidder who provides goods or 

services at the best value for the District.  The report and recommendation shall be placed upon the Board 

of Directors meeting agenda for board consideration. 

 

8. AWARD OF CONTRACT- The Board of Directors shall review the bids received and the report prepared by the 

Finance & Facilities Officer and, if action is desired, award a contract to the lowest, most responsible bidder 

or the bidder who provides goods or services at the best value for The District.  In determining the best 

value for the District, the District may consider:  

a. The purchase price; 

b. The reputation of the bidder and of the bidder’s goods or services; 

c. The quality of the bidder’s goods or services; 

d. The extent to which the goods or services meet the District’s needs; 

e. The bidder’s past relationship with the District; 

f. The impact on the ability of the District to comply with laws and rules relating to contracting with 

historically underutilized businesses and nonprofit organizations employing persons with 

disabilities; 

g. The total long-term cost to the District to acquire the bidder’s goods or services; and/or 

h. Any relevant criteria specifically listed in the request for bids or proposals. 

 

Before awarding a contract under the above criteria considerations, the District must indicate in the bid 

specifications that the contract may be awarded either to the lowest bidder or the bidder who provides 

goods or services at the best value to the District.  The Board shall have the right to award contract to one 

or more bidders for all or part of the purchase.  The Board shall have the right to reject all bids. 

 

9. CHANGE ORDERS- The Board of Directors shall be authorized to approve change orders to increase or 

decrease the total contract. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 150 

 

10. EXCEPTIONS- Sections 252.022 of the Local Government Code contain numerous exceptions to the 

competitive bidding requirements.  The Chief Appraiser, in consultation with the Board of Directors and 

Finance & Facilities Officer, shall determine whether a proposed exempt contract shall be submitted to 

voluntary competitive bidding. 

 

11. EFFECT OF NON-COMPLIANCE- A contract awarded in violation with these policies and procedures or in 

violation of applicable statutes will be considered null and void. 

 

12. OPEN RECORDS- All bid documents, specifications and contracts are public records and shall be open to 

public inspection during and after the time bids are opened.  Bids and proposals submitted under the 

competitive proposal procedures shall be open for public inspection after the time a contract is awarded. 

 

F. CAPITAL PURCHASES 
 

Purchases for capital equipment shall be approved by the Finance & Facilities Officer and the Chief Appraiser 

 

1. REQUEST AND APPROVAL- A request for capital purchases shall be completed and approved by the 

requesting Department Director, the Finance & Facilities Officer, and the Chief Appraiser. 

 

2. BUDGETARY IMPACT- Capital items requested which are not budgeted will require a budget line item transfer 

of funds approved in another line item.  If approved, the funds shall be transferred for the capital acquisition.  

 

3. REPORTS- The Finance & Facilities Officer shall report monthly all capital items purchased to the Chief 

Appraiser.  The report shall list each capital item acquired, the date of acquisition, amount of purchase and 

the budget balance remaining for each department and division. 

 

4. INVENTORY AND CONTROL- The Finance & Facilities Officer shall establish a capital asset subsystem to 

inventory and control capital assets.  The subsystem shall be maintained in accordance with the Capital 

Assets section of the Financial Policies & Procedures Manual. 

 

Please see the Accounting Training and Procedures Manual, Exhibit A, for a detailed listing of purchasing 

procedures. 

 

G. RECEIPT OF EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES, MATERIALS AND SERVICES 

 

The Finance Department is responsible for equipment, supplies, materials and services. 

 

1. RECEIVING REPORT- The employee responsible for receiving equipment, supplies, materials and services for 

a division shall make a count of all items or services received.  The employee shall sign the receiving report, 

indicate the date the items or services were received, and indicate the serial numbers on all equipment.  

The receiving report shall be immediately returned to the Finance & Facilities Officer or his/her designee. 

 

2. PARTIAL SHIPMENTS- If a partial shipment is received, a copy of the receiving report shall be returned to the 

Finance & Facilities Officer, indicating which items were received. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 151 

 

 

3. AUTHORITY TO PAY INVOICES- The receiving reports are used as the authority to pay the invoice. The original 

purchase order information and authorization from Department Directors or division heads should also be 

attached to the receiving report.  This also is used as authority to pay the invoice.  Payment shall be made 

only for items or services actually received. 

 

ENCUMBRANCES & ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: 

A. GENERAL 

 
This section details the procedures for establishing encumbrances and processing payments for vendor invoices.  

The purchase order shall be the authority to encumber the District’s funds.  The check request form must accompany 

the purchase order for payment of invoices as outlined below. 

 

B. VENDOR PAYMENT MASTER RECORDS 

 

The Finance & Facilities Officer shall maintain permanent records for all encumbered items and vendor payments.  In 

addition, a complete listing of all approved TCAD vendors shall be maintained and shall be known as the Vendor 

Master Files.  All records shall be kept in both electronic and hard copy forms.  Authority to disburse the District’s 

funds shall be the check request form approved by the Finance & Facilities Officer, Chief Appraiser, and if applicable, 

the District’s Board of Directors.  Proof of receipt of goods or services, such as a packing list or a receiving report, 

should also accompany the check request and purchase order. 

 

C. ENCUMBRANCES 

 

1. Encumbering funds is the process of recording approved District obligations in the District’s accounting 

system to reflect lawful indebtedness.  The cycle of recording these obligations establishes reserves for 

encumbrances and is the accounting of approved purchase orders and contracts for expenditures. 

 

2. It is the responsibility of the Finance & Facilities Officer to maintain the accounting system.  Accounting for 

and changes to encumbrances shall be reported monthly. 

 

3. The authority to encumber funds is the District’s purchase order form.  The accounting copy of an approved 

purchase order is delivered to the Finance & Facilities Officer, where it is reviewed for accuracy and 

compliance with the District’s policies and procedures.  No encumbrance order shall be posted to the 

encumbrance subsystem unless proper approvals are affixed.  The accounting copy of the encumbrance 

order is held for later processing through the accounts payable function. 

 

Please see the Accounting Training and Procedures Manual, Exhibit A, for a detail listing of encumbrance 

procedures. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 152 

 

D. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

 
The District adheres to the Prompt Pay Act.  The Act is designed to encourage Texas governmental units to take 

advantage of discounts which may be offered for paying bills promptly.  It requires all local governments and state 

agencies to pay all bills owed within 30 calendar days.  The count for the 30 day payment period starts on the day 

after receipt of goods or services, or the day after the invoice is received, whichever is later. 

 

The accounts payable function relates to the receipt and recording of vendor invoices, preparation and processing of 

accounts payable vouchers, and printing checks to pay the District’s indebtedness. 

 

1. The accounting copy of the purchase order (and/or encumbrance order) shall be kept in an open purchase 

order file. 

 

2. Upon receipt of a vendor invoice, the following documents shall be gathered and reviewed prior to 

preparation of an accounts payable voucher (check request): 

a. Accounting copy of the purchase order; 

b. A copy of the receiving report which shall contain a listing of the items received from the vendor, 

time and date of the receipt, and signature of the District’s employee who received the goods or 

services; 

c. The invoice from the vendor (original invoice); and 

d. Any other documentation related to the transaction 

 

3. The gathered documents are matched and audited as to their accuracy.  The following actions shall be 

taken to ensure accuracy and proper payment: 

a. The vendor name and address appearing on the invoice shall be matched to the vendor name and 

address appearing on the purchase order and matched to the master vendor list. 

b. The quantity and unit price of the goods or services appearing on the invoice shall be matched to 

the purchase order and to the receiving report. 

c. The vendor’s terms of payment on the invoice shall be reviewed for any possible discounts or late 

payment penalties. 

 

4. If any data is found to be different or incorrect during the matching and auditing process, the document shall 

be reviewed by the Finance & Facilities Officer, who shall take the necessary action to correct any 

discrepancies discovered prior to authorizing payment to any vendor. 

 

5. Upon conclusion of the matching and auditing process and correcting discrepancies, a check request form 

shall be prepared.  The check request form establishes the vendor invoice and related documentation as an 

accounts payable item.  The Finance & Facilities Officer shall review and approve each invoice and voucher 

before payment is made to the vendor.  The Finance & Facilities Officer will review the check request for 

accuracy in the following items: 

a. Invoice amount; 

b. Effective date of the invoice to make sure the invoice is being posted to the correct accounting 

period; 

c. Invoice number; 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 153 

 

d. General ledger account that the cost will be posted to; 

e. Department code that the cost will be posted to; and  

f. Applicable 1099 information including if the vendor is a 1099 recipient and the taxable 1099 

amount of the invoice. 

 

6. The approved invoice-voucher shall be entered into the accounting system for processing as an accounts 

payable item. 

 

7. Processing of checks for payment of accounts payable vouchers shall be accomplished through the 

accounting system.  The system shall produce a “hard-copy” audit trail of all payments to vendors and 

update encumbrances and expenditures.  The system shall produce a listing of all checks written.  Checks 

written shall be compared to the printed check listing and to the voucher and vendor invoices for accuracy. 

 

8. All paid vouchers, invoices, checks and supporting documentation shall be scanned into the District’s 

finance folder on the network.  All documentation shall then be filed by vendor name.  The hard-copy files 

shall be emptied and restarted each fiscal year.  The files are to be turned over to the Records Management 

Officer at the end of the second year.  The electronic copies of the documentation shall be kept on the 

network for three years.  At the end of the third year, a CD shall be burned with the entire year’s electronic 

copies of invoices.  This CD shall be kept in the Finance & Facilities Officer’s office for a minimum of five 

years. 

 

9. An original check and a second check stub of each check shall be produced and shall be distributed as 

follows: 

a. The original shall be distributed according to the cash disbursement procedures; 

b. The second stub copy shall be attached to and filed with the paid vouchers, invoice and supporting 

documents; 

 

10. The original of any voided checks shall be filed in a numerical file by fiscal year.  These voided checks shall 

be cancelled by writing the word “VOID” on the face.  These voided checks shall be kept in a locked file 

cabinet. 

 

11. At the end of each accounting period, all edit listings or reports produced by the accounting system shall be 

preserved.  This may be done as an electronic copy, however, these will need to be burned to a CD at the 

end of each fiscal year and kept in the Finance & Facilities Officer’s office. 

 

Please see the Accounting Training and Procedures Manual, Exhibit A, for a detail listing of accounts payable 

procedures. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 154 

 

SECTION V: OPERATING BUDGET POLICY 

A. GENERAL 

 

The District’s annual budget shall be prepared and adopted in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 6, Property 

Tax Code. The fiscal year for the District is the calendar year. A budget process that is well-integrated with other 

activities of the District, such as the planning and management functions, will provide better financial and program 

decisions and lead to improved governmental operations.  The District’s budget is considered a management control 

and planning tool and, as such, is incorporated into the accounting system of the District. An annual budget is legally 

adopted for the General Fund, and other funds if necessary, and shall be prepared in accordance with Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).  The District follows a balanced budget policy, meaning operating 

expenditures shall not exceed operating revenues. The District also prepares a five-year budget forecast.  This 

document is reviewed quarterly to make sure the District’s current goals and objectives are aligned with the long-term 

goals and objectives.  The District will integrate performance measures and productivity indicators into its budgetary 

process whenever feasible. 

 

A good budget process: 

 Incorporates a long-term perspective, 

 Establishes linkages to broad organizational goals, 

 Focuses budget decisions on results and outcomes, 

 Involves and promotes effective communication with stakeholders, and 

 Provides incentives to government management and employees. 

 

B. PROCEDURE FOR PREPARATION AND ADOPTION 

 

Each year the Chief Appraiser shall prepare a proposed budget for each of the operations of the District for the 

following fiscal year. 

 

1. CONTENT- The proposed budget shall include a list showing each proposed position, the proposed 

salary for the position, all benefits proposed for the position, each proposed capital expenditure, and 

the estimate of the amount of the budget that will be allocated to each taxing unit.  The district may 

also include any other additional information that they feel is beneficial. 

2. SUBMISSION TO TAXING UNITS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS - The Chief Appraiser shall submit copies to 

each taxing unit participating in the district and to the Board of Directors before June 15. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 155 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARING-The Board of Directors shall hold a public hearing to consider the budget. The 

Secretary of the Board shall deliver to the presiding officer of the governing body of each taxing unit 

participating in TCAD not later than the 10th day before the date of the hearing a written notice of the 

date, time and place fixed for the hearing. The Board shall complete its hearings, make any 

amendments to the proposed budget it desires, and finally approve a budget before September 15. 

4. DISAPPROVAL BY TAXING UNITS- If governing bodies of a majority of the taxing units entitled to vote on 

the appointment of board members adopt resolutions disapproving a budget and file them with the 

Secretary of the Board within 30 days after its adoption, the budget does not take affect, and the 

board shall adopt a new budget within 30 days of the disapproval. 

5. AMENDING THE BUDGET-The Board may amend the approved budget at any time, but the Secretary of 

the Board must deliver a written copy of a proposed amendment to the presiding officer of the 

governing body of each taxing unit participating in the District not later than the 30th day before the 

date the Board acts on it. 

Please see the Accounting Training and Procedures Manual, Exhibit A, for a detail listing of budgeting procedures. 

 

C. LINE ITEM TRANSFERS 

 

The purpose of line item transfers is to allow flexibility within the budget to provide for changes in the District’s 

operating plan for the current year. These changes may include variances in actual workload or supplies and 

equipment costs from levels projected when the budget was planned. Line item transfers, which do not increase or 

decrease the total amount of the budget, are not considered budget amendments as described above. 

 

1. AUTHORITY-The Chief Appraiser is authorized to transfer funds from one budget line item account to 

another with the approval of the Board of Directors. 

2. PROCESS OF IDENTIFICATION- Periodically, the Finance & Facilities Officer shall prepare reports which 

reflect the total amount of expenses, encumbrances and projections for expenses through the end of 

the fiscal year. If any one line item account demonstrates an unfavorable variance, funds equal to the 

variance may be transferred from another account demonstrating a favorable budget variance. 

3. METHOD OF TRANSFER- Prior to any transfer among line item accounts, the Finance & Facilities 

Officer shall prepare a report for the Chief Appraiser for presentation to the Board of Directors 

identifying the budget account from which the proposed transfer will be made and the need or 

justification for the transfer. Upon approval of the Board of Directors, the proposed transfers shall be 

entered into the District’s accounting system. 

4. OTHER TRANSFERS- For additional regular positions, contracts or other purchases requiring approval 

of the Board of Directors for which funds are not available in the appropriate budget line item 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 156 

 

account, the particular Board action approving such purchase shall also include authority to transfer 

funds. If funds are not available from another line item, the purchase shall not be approved without 

amending the budget. 

5. SCHEDULE OF TRANSFERS-The Finance & Facilities Officer shall keep a schedule of each transfer 

authorized and approved by the Board of Directors. The schedule shall contain the amount of the 

transfer between accounts, the account numbers, the Department and Division affected, the date of 

approval, and the date the entries were made to the District’s accounting system. Each transfer shall 

be numerically numbered demonstrating the year and the number of transfers for each budget year. 

D. REPORTING 

 

The Finance & Facilities Officer shall prepare reports which demonstrate budget performance. These reports shall be 

prepared monthly: 

 

1. BALANCE SHEET- A balance sheet shall be prepared monthly to present recorded assets, liabilities and fund 

equity of the governmental funds. 

2. STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- This statement for the 

governmental funds shall be prepared monthly to present the period’s revenues and expenditures.  This 

statement also outlines the change in fund balance and the ending fund balance. 

3. FUND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY- A fund expenditure summary for the general fund shall be prepared monthly to 

present the general fund budget, the period expenditures, encumbrances, year-to-date expenditures, and 

the available balance for each account. 

4. DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE SUMMARY- A fund expenditure summary for each of the District's operating 

departments and divisions shall be prepared monthly. These reports shall include the account status as 

presented by the Fund Expenditure Summary. 

5. REPORT DISTRIBUTION- Each of the above four reports shall be distributed to the Chief Appraiser and each 

Department Director each month.  

Please see the Accounting Training and Procedures Manual, Exhibit A, for a detail listing of reporting procedures. 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 157 

 

SECTION VI: CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

A. GENERAL 

A capitalization policy is vital to the accounting and record keeping functions of the District.  Adequate and accurate 

records not only provide a basis for conformity in reporting, control and accountability, but also aid in determining 

insurance values, maintenance costs and replacement schedules. The purpose of the District’s Fixed Asset Policy is 

to set forth guidelines for the physical and reporting control of the District’s assets, including accountability over the 

assets, meeting financial reporting needs, and generating asset management information. 

 

B. DEFINITION 
 

Capital Assets, also known as fixed assets or capital outlay items, are tangible, have a useful life of more than one 

year and have an acquisition value of $1,000 or more.  Additions or improvements to capital assets that extend the 

useful life of the asset shall be capitalized if the addition has a value of more than $1,000 and/or increases the useful 

life by more than one year. 

 

 

C. REASON 

This document is intended to describe the standard policies required for recording new fixed assets, updating or 

changing existing assets and disposing of fixed assets.  In addition, it is intended to provide the necessary steps to 

assist District personnel in the safeguarding, accounting for and disposal of District assets. 

 

D.  ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

The major responsibilities each party has in connection with the Fixed Asset Policy and Procedures are as follows: 

1.  FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

The Finance Department is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of an adequate 

fixed asset accounting system that allows for the proper presentation of fixed assets in the financial 

statements and the overall safeguarding of fixed assets.   

2.  FINANCE & FACILITIES OFFICER 

The Finance & Facilities Officer is responsible for ensuring the fixed asset accounting system is 

being properly maintained, including the identification of capital assets, accurate use of codes, 

determination of useful lives, reconciliation to the general ledger, and financial reporting.  More 

specifically, the Finance & Facilities Officer is responsible for: 

1. Effective administration and maintenance of the property accountability and 

control system (Sage MIP Fixed Asset Software); 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 158 

 

2. The proper tagging of all movable equipment; 

3. Preparing an annual listing of all moveable equipment; 

4. Providing department directors with current records of the property for which they 

are responsible; 

5. Physical inventories taken on an annual basis verifying existence and condition 

of all fixed assets to ensure the accuracy of the District’s accounting records; 

6. Updating the fixed asset inventory based on inspections reports; 

7. Evaluating loss, damage, destruction, disposal, theft, trade-ins, sale and/or 

transfer of District assets and providing recommendations with regard to the 

disposition of these assets; 

8. Review and posting of depreciation through the Fixed Asset Module on an 

annual basis 

9. Reconciliation of the fiscal year additions in the Fixed Asset Module to the 

general ledger in a timely basis (at least quarterly); 

 

3.  PURCHASING/ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

The purchasing/accounts payable staff is responsible for ensuring that account codes are classified correctly for 

capital assets on purchase requisitions and invoices. 

 

4.  DEPARTMENT DIRECTORS 

All department directors are responsible for: 

1. Reading and understanding the Fixed Asset Policy; 

2. Assuring that District property is given proper care and protection and is used for official purposes 

only; 

3. Notifying the Finance & Facilities Officer whenever fixed assets are transferred, destroyed, stolen, 

or lost. 

4. Identifying and reporting to the Finance & Facilities Officer any surplus property which is useable 

but not needed in his/her area, or which is beyond economic repair and therefore should be 

disposed of; 

5. At no point in time are the department directors to dispose of any property of the District without 

proper approval from the Director of Finance; 

6. Assisting in taking physical inventories 

 

 

E.  CAPITALIZATION POLICY 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 159 

 

A capitalized fixed asset is property, such as equipment, buildings and land, etc., with a cost of $1,000 or more at the 

date of acquisition, with an expected useful life of more than one year.  Capitalized fixed assets are acquired for the 

use in normal operations and are not for resale.  All capitalized fixed assets are entered into the Sage MIP Fixed 

Asset Module for inventory and financial reporting purposes. 

 

Assets costing less than $1,000 (inventory assets) are expensed in the period for which the expense in incurred, 

typically the fiscal year of purchase and are not capitalized. Inventory assets costing more than $100 are to be 

tagged and maintained as an inventory item with a zero book value in the Sage MIP Fixed Asset Module.  Inventory 

assets costing less than $100 will not be maintained through the Sage MIP Fixed Asset Software. 

 

Costs incurred to keep a capital asset in its normal operating condition that do not extend the original useful life of the 

asset or increase the asset’s future service potential are not capitalized.  These costs are expensed as repairs or 

maintenance.  Any cost that improves the assets will be capitalized.  These costs either (1) increase the service 

capacity of the asset (i.e., effectiveness or efficiency) or (2) extends the estimated useful life of the assets.  

Improvements to capital assets will be treated as direct adjustments to the related asset. 

 

F.  CLASSIFICATION OF CAPITAL FIXED ASSETS 

 

Capital fixed assets are assets that are: 

1) Permanent in nature, tangible, durable; 

2) Economic useful life is greater than one year; 

3) Held for purposes other than investment or real; and 

4) Have a cost which equals or exceeds the capitalization threshold of $1,000 established by the District. 

 

Capital fixed assets fall into many categories.  The District has decided to classify their capital fixed assets into the 

following categories: 

 

1) Building and Improvements 

2) Land and Improvements 

3) Computer Equipment 

a. Computer Equipment 

b. Network Equipment 

4) Furniture & Fixtures 

5) Vehicles 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 160 

 

Building and Building Improvements: 

Buildings are roofed structures used for the permanent or temporary shelter of persons or equipment.  The building 

account includes the value of all buildings at purchase or price or construction price.  When buildings are 

constructed, all identifiable direct costs are included in the valuation.  Direct costs include labor, materials, and 

professional services to construct the building, along with any other direct cost incurred during the period of 

construction to ready the building for its intended use.  Building improvements are improvements made to an existing 

building.  Any renovation or alteration to an existing building that adds useful space to the structure or extends the 

building’s useful life will be considered a capital asset.  Conversely, improvements that do not add useful space to the 

structure, or extend the building’s useful life will be considered maintenance and repair. 

 

Land and Land Improvements: 

Land is the solid part of the earth’s surface whether improved or unimproved.  The land account should include all 

land purchased, leased, donated, or otherwise acquired by the District.  Purchased land should be carried on the 

records at cost.  Donated land should be recorded at the appraised market value of the land at the time of its 

donation.  Land improvements include excavation, fill and grading, removal, relocation or reconstruction or property 

of other such as railroads, and telephone and power lines, and the construction of retaining walls. 

 

Computer Equipment: 

Computer equipment consists of long-live capital assets that normally are technological in nature and are the basis of 

the District’s information/connectivity infrastructure.  Technology equipment includes all hardware, software, and 

cabling associated with the District’s systems.  Computer equipment includes both computer equipment (such as 

computer, printers, scanners, etc.) and network equipment (SAN storage devices, servers, etc.).  The initial purchase 

of software will be capitalized if it meets the requirements under the capitalization policy; however, maintenance for 

the software will not be capitalized. 

 

Furniture and Fixtures: 

Furniture and fixtures consists of property that does not lose its identity when removed from its location and is not 

changed materially or expended in use.  Subclasses in this account include cameras, partitions or dividers, furniture, 

mail equipment, maintenance equipment, microfiche equipment, miscellaneous equipment, office equipment and 

storage equipment. 

 

Vehicles: 

Vehicles include any car, truck, SUV, delivery van etc. owned by the District.  The purchase cost of the vehicle will be 

capitalized if it meets all requirements of the capitalization policy; however, maintenance and repair of the vehicles 

will be expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 161 

 

 

G. OTHER CAPITAL ASSETS 

Construction in Progress (CIP):   

CIP is the cost of buildings or other capital projects that are under construction as of the balance sheet date.  CIP 

represents a temporary capitalization of labor, materials, and equipment of a construction project.  When the 

constructed asset is substantially complete, costs in the CIP account are classified to one or more of the major asset 

categories and corresponding reductions must be made to the CIP account. 

 

H.  ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 

 

The acquisition of fixed assets starts with the creation of the purchase order. All orders for fixed assets 

must be submitted to the Purchasing Department on a purchase requisition request. A purchase order 

number can only by obtained by submitting a requisition. The purchase order should itemize the equipment 

being requested.  Purchases are subject to fund availability and budget limitations.  

Special requirements do exist for certain types of movable equipment. For example, furniture purchases 

must conform to the standards developed by Purchasing and the Office of Interior Design. Additionally, 

Computer IT equipment purchases must be approved by Director of IT.  

 

When the item is received and the invoice is sent to Accounts Payable for processing, the capital expense code used 

to record the purchase in the Sage MIP Purchasing Module automatically generates an entry in the Sage MIP 

Accounts Payable Module. The invoice sent to Accounts Payable should clearly indicate the Purchase Order number 

it is attached to, particularly for items that arrive in various stages with separate invoices. The Finance & Facilities 

Officer reviews the accounts payable invoice and the fixed asset addition created and decides whether the asset 

should be capitalized. 

 

I.  OWNERSHIP OF CAPITALIZED ASSETS 

 

Generally, the District owns all fixed assets purchased with District funds (includes restricted and unrestricted funds).  

Title to the asset purchased with federal funds vests in the District upon acquisition unless exceptions are noted in 

the specific contract.  At no point in time will ownership of an asset belong to employees if the asset was purchased 

with District funds. 

 

J.  TAGGING FIXED ASSETS 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 162 

 

 

Maintaining positive identification of assets is the primary purpose of tagging.  Tagging is important to: 

 Provide an accurate method of identifying individual assets, 

 Aid in the annual physical inventory, 

 Control the location of all physical assets, 

 Aid in the maintenance of fixed assets, and 

 Provide a common ground of communication for both the Finance Department and the assets’ 

users. 

 

Generally, all fixed assets meeting the capitalization criteria are tagged when received by the purchasing department.  

IT equipment is usually tagged by the IT department and the information is sent via e-mail to the Finance & Facilities 

Officer. 

 

Even though non-movable, capitalized assets are not tagged, the asset number is still recorded in the Fixed Assets 

Module but not physically attached to the asset.  Tags for capitalized assets that are not tagged are placed in the 

Sage MIP Fixed Asset Module.  A description of the asset is recorded, including location details. 

 

Assets not needing a tag are: 

 Buildings 

 Land 

 Land Improvements 

 Some building improvements 

 Large network computer equipment 

 

Again, these items, even though they are not tagged, are still entered into the Sage MIP Fixed Asset Module. 

 

CAUTION: Do not tag artwork, sensitive technical equipment, or other items where tagging will affect its function, 

value, or the ability to return it under warranty.  A file for all untaggable capital assets must be maintained by the 

Finance & Facilities Officer. 

 

K.  DEPRECIATION POLICY 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 163 

 

Depreciation is the allocation of the total acquisition cost of a capital fixed asset over its estimated useful life.  Land, 

certain land improvements, construction-in-progress, inexhaustible works of art, historical treasure and similar assets 

are not depreciated.  Land is considered to have an unlimited useful life and its salvage value is unlikely to be less 

than its acquisition cost.  Certain land improvements may be considered to have an unlimited useful life and therefore 

are not to be depreciated. 

 

Depreciation of fixed assets is computed on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (capitalized cost 

divided by useful life) as follows: 

 Building     30-50 years 

 Building Improvements   10-50 years 

 Land Improvements   10-50 years 

 Furniture & Fixtures   3-10 years 

 Computer Equipment   3-10 years 

 Vehicles     5-10 years 

The Finance & Facilities Officer, under the direction of the Chief Appraiser, will assign a useful life based on the type 

of asset.  The useful lives described above are just guidelines.  A determination of useful life will be made by the 

Finance & Facilities Officer for each specific capital fixed asset purchased based on past experience.  The District 

uses a monthly depreciation convention.  Depreciation of the asset begins the month after purchase. 

 

L.  ACCOUNTING FOR CAPITAL FIXED ASSET 

 

The Fixed Asset module requires periodic updating (annual inventory) and maintenance, including reconciliation to 

the general ledger, to remain current and valuable.  The District will perform a physical inventory in October of every 

year.  The ultimate responsibility of the physical inventory falls with the Finance & Facilities Officer, but all department 

directors should assist in the process.  The Finance & Facilities Officer will provide the Department directors with a 

listing of all reportable property by department each year.  Using the listing as a basis, a joint inventory will be 

conducted by the department director and the Finance & Facilities Officer.  Advance notice will be given to individual 

departments regarding dates.  The purpose of a physical inventory is to verify the existence and condition of fixed 

assets and ensure the accuracy of District accounting records. 

 

All fixed asset acquisitions, transfers, sale of surplus, disposal and corrections must be entered into the system in a 

timely manner (weekly).  It is imperative that those responsible comply with this document to establish and maintain 

accurate fixed asset records. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 164 

 

 

M. DISPOSITION OF FIXED ASSETS 

 

The Finance & Facilities Officer is responsible for changing the status of records when the disposition or disposal of 

an asset occurs.  In general, surplus or obsolete equipment may be disposed of by transferring to another 

department, discarding/scrapping, trading-in, donating, or selling the asset. When selling, donating, or disposing of 

assets, the department responsible for the asset must complete the Property Disposal Form. This form should be 

sent to the Finance & Facilities Officer notifying the Finance Office of the department’s disposition of the asset. The 

Finance Office will provide the approvals necessary to proceed with the disposition of the asset by sending a copy of 

the form back to the department with the appropriate signatures. 

 

In the event an asset is to be moved from one location to another or from one department to another, a Property 

Movement Form must be completed and submitted to the Finance & Facilities Officer. Under no circumstances 

should any District owned property be moved without prior consent. Once the form has been received by the Finance 

& Facilities Officer, the Fixed Asset Module will be updated with the change. Submitting this form will ensure that 

inventory listings provided to the Departments are accurate. The Finance & Facilities Officer will provide the 

approvals necessary to proceed with the movement of the asset by sending a copy of the form back to the 

department with the 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 165 

 

SECTION VII: CASH MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY 

 

A. GENERAL 
 

Funds received by the District shall be deposited with the District’s depository and may be disbursed only by written 

check, draft, or order signed as required by this policy.  Checks issued for the payroll system may contain one 

facsimile signature of the Secretary of the District’s Board of Directors.  The District’s depository shall be designated 

in the manner prescribed by Section 6.09, Property Tax Code. 

 

B. THE DISTRICT’S DEPOSITORY 

 

As required by Section 6.09, Property Tax Code, the District’s Board of Directors shall solicit bids for the purpose of 

establishing the District’s depository.  The depository shall serve as the depository for all or part of the District’s 

funds.  The depository shall also perform various banking functions for the District. 

 

1. DEPOSITORY CONTRACT- The District shall execute a written depository contract agreement with the selected 

depository.  The depository agreement may be for a period of two years with the option to renew an 

additional two years. 

 

2. PLEDGED SECURITIES- Upon selection and execution of the depository contract, the depository shall pledge 

an amount equal to the estimated highest daily balance of the District’s funds in the previous year and in no 

event shall the market value of the securities be less than 100% of the amount of funds on deposit at any 

time.  To the extent that funds in the depository are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 

Corporation or the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, they shall be secured in the manner 

provided by law for the security of funds of municipalities.  Pledge securities shall be held for safekeeping in 

a Federal Reserve Bank with safekeeping receipts issued to and held by the District. 

 

3. RELEASE OR SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES- The District may release or allow substitutions of required 

securities as prescribed by Section 116.082 of the Local Government Code. 

 

4. RESPONSIBILITY- The Finance & Facilities Officer is responsible for and is authorized to require, release or 

allow substitutions of pledged securities unless otherwise prescribed. 

 

C. CASH RECEIPTS 
 

Funding for the District is provided by taxing units within the boundaries of the District as prescribed by Chapter 6, 

Property Tax Code.  The District also receives funds from other sources such as the sale public data, providing 

certified estimates of value and the sale of surplus equipment. 

 

1. RECEIPTS- Quarterly assessment receipts from taxing units and cash collected from other departments shall 

be forwarded to the Finance & Facilities Officer.  The Finance & Facilities Officer or his/her designee shall 

log the week’s receipts, endorse all checks and bank drafts with a closed endorsement, prepare a deposit 

ticket and forward the completed deposit to the District’s depository. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 166 

 

 

2. POSTING TO LEDGERS- The individual items of the deposit shall be posted to the appropriate accounts 

receivable sub ledger in the general ledger.  Posting to the general ledger shall only be performed by the 

Finance & Facilities Officer. 

 

3. UN-DEPOSITED CASH AND CHECKS- Any cash, checks or drafts received throughout the week shall be 

secured in a locked area under the custody and control of the Finance & Facilities Officer.  Un-deposited 

items shall be deposited at the end of every week. 

 

D. INVESTMENT POLICY 

 

The District’s investment policy is provided as Exhibit A in the appendix section of this report. 

 

Please see the Accounting Training and Procedures Manual, Exhibit B, for a detail listing of cash receipt procedures 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 167 

 

SECTION VIII: ACCOUNTING POLICY 

GENERAL LEDGER, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND CHART OF ACCOUNTS 

 

A. GENERAL 

This section details the procedures for recording data to the general ledger and reporting the financial activities of the 

District. The general ledger is the record of the financial activities of the District. Financial statements summarize the 

general ledger and subsidiary ledgers for a given period. The District shall demonstrate, through the use of financial 

statements and schedules, how the resources of the District are being used. 

 

B. FISCAL YEAR AND REPORTING PERIODS 

The District’s fiscal year shall begin on January 1 and end on December 31 of a calendar year. Interim financial 

statements shall be prepared by the Finance & Facilities Officer monthly and presented to the Board of Directors at 

the regular monthly meeting. 

 

C. FINANCIAL AUDIT 

The District’s annual financial statements shall be audited by a public accounting firm annually as provided by state 

law. The examination shall be in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. The examination shall 

include tests of the accounting records necessary to render an opinion of whether the financial statements fairly 

represent the District’s financial position. The public accounting firm shall prepare a Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principals as published by the Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board. 

 

1.  LIMITATIONS ON AUDITOR- No accounting firm or individual practitioner may perform the audit more than 

six consecutive years. The firm or individual practitioner that has completed six consecutive years must 

wait at least three years before proposing to perform the audit again. 

 

D. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF OPERATIONS 

Presentation of the District’s operation shall be the fund accounting method.  Accounts are organized on the basis of 

funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity.  The operations of a fund are 

accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues 

and expenditures.  The following fund types and account groups shall be included in the financial statements: 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 168 

 

 

1. GOVERNMENTAL FUND- A governmental fund is one through which all governmental functions of the District 

are financed.  The acquisition and uses of the District’s expendable financial resources and the related 

liabilities are accounted for in the General Fund, a governmental fund.  All proceeds of specific revenue 

sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for a specified purpose (other than debt-service or 

capital projects) are reported in the Special Revenue Fund, a governmental fund.  All financial resources 

that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays should be accounted for in the 

Capital Projects Fund, a governmental fund.  All financial resources that are restricted, committed, or 

assigned to expenditures for principal and interest should be accounted for in the Debt-Service Fund, a 

governmental fund.  The governmental funds will use a modified accrual basis of accounting.  The 

measurement focus is based upon determination of changes in financial position, rather than upon net 

income determination.  The creation and closing of all funds must be approved by the District’s Board of 

Directors. 

 

2. FIDUCIARY FUND- A fiduciary fund is used to account for assets held by TCAD in a trustee capacity or as an 

agent for individuals.  TCAD shall account for the activities of the deferred compensation plan as an agency 

fund.  An agency fund is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of 

results of operation. 

 

3. ACCOUNT GROUPS- Account groups are used to establish accounting control and accountability for the 

District’s fixed assets and long-term obligations.  The following are the District’s account groups: 

 

a. General Fixed Assets- This group of accounts is established to account for all fixed assets of the 

District. 

b. General Long-term Debt- This group of accounts is established to account for all long-term 

obligations of TCAD. 

 

E. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used to account for governmental funds operations. Under this method of 

accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available. Available 

means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current 

period. Expenditures, other than interest on long-term obligations, are recorded when the liability is incurred, if 

measurable. 

 

F. GENERAL LEDGER AND SUBSIDIARY LEDGERS 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 169 

 

All financial transactions of the District are recorded in the general ledger. A detailed listing of the accounts within the 

general ledger shall be prepared on a monthly basis. Subsidiary ledgers for cash, accounts receivable, accounts 

payable, payroll, and fixed assets shall be reconciled to the general ledger on a monthly basis.  (For specific policies 

and procedures on reconciliations of subsidiary ledgers, see month-end reporting policies and procedures and year-

end reporting policies and procedures below.) 

 

G. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS 

 

The following interim financial statements and reports (management operating statements and reports) shall be 

prepared from the general ledger at least once a month or on a more frequent basis as required. The Director of 

Finance is responsible for preparation of the statements and report. 

1. BALANCE SHEET- A balance sheet shall be prepared monthly to present recorded assets, liabilities and fund 

equity of the governmental funds 

2. STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE- This statement for the 

governmental funds shall be prepared monthly to present the period’s revenues and expenditures.  This 

statement also outlines the change in fund balance and the ending fund balance. 

3. FUND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY- A fund expenditure summary for the general fund shall be prepared monthly to 

present the general fund budget, the period expenditures, encumbrances, year-to-date expenditures, and 

the available balance for each account. 

4. DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE SUMMARY- A fund expenditure summary for each of the District's operating 

departments and divisions shall be prepared monthly. These reports shall include the account status as 

presented by the Fund Expenditure Summary. 

5. AGED RECEIVABLES --A monthly report listing the delinquent taxing unit receivables shall be prepared. This 

report shall present the name of the jurisdiction, amount delinquent, the days past due and whether the 

amount is a regular quarterly payment or penalty and interest. 

6. OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE- A monthly report shall be prepared presenting a listing of all receivables and 

amounts due TCAD. 

7. OTHER REPORTS- Other reports may be prepared or required for management control 

H. CHART OF ACCOUNTS 

 

The following account number ranges and account groups shall be used to establish the chart of accounts. The 

detailed chart of accounts may be changed from time to time to be more descriptive of transactions recorded in the 

general ledger. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Appendix | 170 

 

 

10110-10390 Cash & Cash Equivalents 

10410-10490  Accounts Receivables 

10510-10690 Fixed Assets & Accumulated Depreciation 

20110-20290 Accounts Payable  

30110  Fund Balance 

40101-40190 Salary Related Expenditures  

40210-40290 Printing, Paper and Office Supplies  

40310-40390 Education, Training and Travel 

40410-40490 Utilities 

40510-40590 Legal and Professional Service 

Expenditures 

40610-40790 Other Miscellaneous Expenditures 

40910-40990 Capital Expenditures & Long Term 

Debt 

50110-50290 Revenue 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2014 

Adopted Budget 
 

Appendix | 171 

 

MONTH END CLOSING PROCESS: 

 

A. GENERAL 

The month end closing process is an accounting procedure undertaken at the end of every month to close out the 

current posting period.  The purpose of this process is to have a snap shot of transactional activity at the end of a 

month.  This snap shot is used as a planning tool for the remaining part of the year.  The month being closed remains 

open until the 15th day of the following month in order to process all prior month transactions.  The month end closing 

process should be completed by the Finance & Facilities Officer. 

 

1) BANK STATEMENT RECONCILIATION- The first necessary step is the complete the reconciliation for all bank 

accounts.  Some common adjustments needed to be made at the end of the month are any EFT payments that 

were not previously recorded and all monthly banking fees.  The bank statements are available on the 5th 

business day of the preceding month.  The District’s reconciliation of all bank accounts should be completed no 

later than the 7th business day of the following month. 

2) TRANSACTIONS NOT YET ENTERED- All accounts payable transactions must be completed for the month that is 

being closed.  Invoices for the closing month should be collected through the 15th of the following month and 

processed before the month end closing process can continue. 

3) GENERAL LEDGER CORRECTIONS- After all accounts payable invoices have been processing, the expenditure 

accounts in the general ledger shall be printed and reviewed for any posting to incorrect accounts.  All necessary 

adjustments and corrections should be made before continuing with the month end closing process.  

4) CURRENT ASSETS RECONCILIATIONS- All current asset accounts (i.e. accounts receivable, employee insurance 

receivables, COBRA Premiums Receivable, Prepaid Expenditures, etc.) should be reconciled.  The 

reconciliation shall be saved to the Month End Closings folder on the network and then printed to be included in 

the Chief Appraiser’s month end closing documentation packet. 

5)  CURRENT LIABILITY RECONCILIATIONS-  All current liability accounts (i.e. accounts payable, Accrued 

Expenditures, Accrued Payroll, FIT Payable, Medicare Taxes Payable, TCAD Retirement Payable, Employee 

Payroll Deductions Payable, etc.) should be reconciled.  The reconciliation shall be saved to the Month End 

Closing folder on the network and then printed to be included in the Chief Appraiser’s month end closing 

documentation packet. 

6) OTHER RECONCILIATIONS- Any other accounts that appear in the fund statements should be reconciled.  The 

reconciliation shall be saved to the Month End Closing folder on the network and then printed to be included in 

the Chief Appraiser’s month end closing documentation packet. 

7) CHIEF APPRAISER’S DOCUMENTATION PACKET- Once all fund statement accounts have been reconciled, the Chief 

Appraiser’s Documentation Packet should be completed.  The cover sheet below should be the first page.  This 

is the page that the Chief Appraiser will sign off on all balances of the fund statement assets and liabilities.  The 

reconciliations for all accounts should be included behind the sign off sheet.  Each account should have a 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2014 

Adopted Budget 
 

Appendix | 172 

 

number that corresponds to the number on the sign off sheet for easy understanding.  The Chief Appraiser’s 

Documentation Packet should be completed and provided to the Chief Appraiser by the 18th of the following 

month.  If the 18th falls on a weekend, then the documentation should be provided on the next business day.  

Once the Chief Appraiser signs off on all fund statement accounts, the Chief Appraiser’s Documentation packet 

should be scanned into the Month End Closing folder on the network. 

8) Reports- After all reconciliations have been completed and the Chief Appraiser has reviewed the reconciliations, 

the Mont End Reports can be generated.  The following month end reports should be generated: 

a) Balance Sheet for the General Fund 

b) Balance Sheet for any other Governmental Fund 

c) Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance for the General Fund 

d) Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance for any other Governmental Fund 

e) Budget to Actual for the General Fund 

f) Budget to Actual for any other Governmental Fund 

g) Any other report that is helpful in making future decisions should be printed and distributed to the requesting 

person. 

9) DISTRIBUTION- The reports above should be distributed to the Chief Appraiser, the District’s Board of Directors, 

any Director who requests the statements, and any taxpayer who completes an open records request.  The 

month end financial statement should be provided to the Board of Directors at their next meeting after the month-

end closing process is completed. 

YEAR END CLOSING PROCESS: 

 

A. General 

The Year End closing process is conducted much like the month end closing process.  However, at year end, the 

long term accounts are also reconciled for the preparation of the combining statements such as the Statement of Net 

Assets and the Statement of Activities.  This is also done for the preparation of audit materials for the Fiscal Year 

End audit.  This information will be supplied to the auditors when they are conducting fieldwork. 

 

1. MONTH END CLOSING- The December month end closing should be completed before the year end closing 

process can begin.  Complete the steps above before beginning the year end closing process. 

2. LONG-TERM ASSETS- All long-term asset accounts (i.e. Fixed Asset accounts including depreciation on the 

fixed assets) should be reconciled.  The reconciliation shall be saved to the Year End Closings folder on the 

network and then printed to be included in the Chief Appraiser’s year end closing documentation packet. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2014 

Adopted Budget 
 

Appendix | 173 

 

3. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES- All long-term liability accounts (i.e. Compensated Balances, Net Pension 

Obligation, etc.) should be reconciled.  The reconciliation shall be saved to the Year End Closings folder on 

the network and then printed to be included in the Chief Appraiser’s year end closing documentation packet. 

4. CHIEF APPRAISER’S DOCUMENTATION PACKET- Once all accounts have been reconciled, the Chief 

Appraiser’s Documentation Packet should be completed.  The sign off sheet should be the first page of the 

packet.  The reconciliations for all accounts should be included behind the sign off sheet.  Each account 

should have a number that corresponds to the number on the sign off sheet for easy understanding.  The 

Chief Appraiser’s Year End Documentation packet should be completed and provided to the Chief Appraiser 

by the 31st of January of the following year.  If the 31st falls on a weekend, then the documentation packet 

should be provided on the next business day.  Once the Chief Appraiser signs off on all year end account 

reconciliations, the documentation packet should be scanned into the Year End Closing folder on the 

network and provided to the auditors when they are doing the audit.  

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Glossary | 174 

 

GLOSSARY 

 
Accrual Basis of Accounting- Method of accounting that recognizes the financial 
effect or transactions, events, and interfund activity when they occur, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. 
 
Ad Valorem- According to value 
 
Ad Valorem Taxation- A tax levied in proportion to the value of the ting(s) being taxed.  
Exclusive of exemptions, use-value assessment provisions, and the like, the property 
tax is an ad valorem tax. 
 
Ad-hoc Reports- A report generated dynamically at the information consumer’s 
request. These reports are created due to unplanned information requests in which 
information is gathered to support a non-routine decision. 
 
ArcGIS- A geographic information system (GIS) by ESRI for working with maps and 
geographic information.  It is used for: creating and using maps; compiling geographic 
data; analyzing mapped information; sharing and discovering geographic information; 
using maps and geographic information in a range of applications; and managing 
geographic information in a database. 
 
Assigned Fund Balance- The portion of the net position of a government fund that 
represents resources set aside (“earmarked”) by the government for a particular 
purpose. 
 
Balanced Budget Policy- The District’s policy that requires the total sum of money a 
government will collect in a fiscal year equal the amount it spends on goods, services, 
and capital expenditures. 
 
Basic Financial Statements- Minimum combination of financial statements and not 
disclosure required for fair presentation in conformity with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP). 
 
Basis of Accounting- Timing of recognition for financial reporting purposes (when the 
effects of transaction or events should be recognized in financial statements) 
 
Basis of Budgeting- Method used to determine when revenues and expenditures are 
recognized for budgetary purposes. 
 
Budget Amendment- A proposal to change the dollar amount of an activity or project 
or to add an activity of project after the budget has already been adopted.  A budget 
amendment changes the final dollar amount of the budget, requiring the jurisdictions to 
contribute more money to the District. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Glossary | 175 

 

Capital Asset- Land, improvement to land, easements, buildings, building 
improvements, vehicles, machinery, equipment, works of art and historical treasures, 
infrastructure, and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations and 
that have initial useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period. 
 
Capital Equipment- Equipment that you use to manufacture a product, provide a 
service or use to sell, store and deliver merchandise.  Such equipment will not be sold 
in the normal course of business, but will be used and worn out or consumed in the 
normal course of business. 
 
Capital Equipment Policy (Capitalization Threshold)- Dollar value at which a 
government elects to capitalize tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations 
and that have initial useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period.  Generally, 
capitalization thresholds are applied to individual items rather than groups of items 
unless the result would be to exclude items that in the aggregate would clearly be 
material to the financial statements. 
 
Capital Expenditure- Funds used by a company to acquire or upgrade physical assets 
such as property, building, or equipment.  This type of outlay is made by companies to 
maintain or increase the scope of their operations and falls within their capitalization 
threshold.  These expenditures can include everything from repairing a roof to building a 
brand new building. 
 
Cash Management Controls- Controls which promote positive cash management.  
Cash management is the financial management technique used by treasurers to 
accelerate the collection of receivables, control payments to vendors/creditors, and 
efficiently manage cash. 
 
Certification of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting- Program 
sponsored by the GFOA to encourage and assist state and local governments to 
prepare high-quality CAFRs.  The program has been in continuous operation since 
1946.  The program originally was known as the certificate of Conformance Program. 
 
Committed Fund Balance- The portion of the net position of a governmental fund that 
represents resources whose use is subject to a legally binding constraint that is 
imposed by the government itself at its highest level of decision-making authority and 
that remains legally binding unless removed in the same manner. 
 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) - Financial report that contains, at a 
minimum, three sections: 1) introductory, 2) financial, and 3) statistical, and whose 
financial sections provide information on each individual fund and component unit. 
 
Contra Revenue Account- A revenue account that is expected to carry a debit balance 
instead of the usual credit balance.  A contra revenue account reduces the amounts 
reported in a company’s revenue accounts. 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Glossary | 176 

 

Current Financial Resources Measurement Focus- Measurement focus where the 
aim of a set of financial statements is to report the near-term (current) inflows, outflows, 
and balances of expendable financial resources.  The current financial resources 
measurement focus is unique to accounting and financial reporting for state and local 
governments and is used solely for reporting the financial position and results of 
operations of governmental funds. 
 
Debt Service- The cash that is required for a particular time period to cover the 
repayment of interest and principal on a debt. 
 
Deposition- A verbal or written testimony of a party or witness in a civil or criminal 
proceeding taken before trial, usually in an attorney’s office. 
 
Depreciate- A reduction in the value of an asset with the passage of time, due in 
particular to wear and tear. 
 
Discovery- A category of procedural devices employed by a party to a civil or criminal 
action, prior to trial, to require the adverse party to disclose information that is essential 
for the preparation of the requesting party’s case and that the other party alone knows 
or possesses. 
 
Economic Development Abatement- A tax abatement is a local agreement between a 
taxpayer and a taxing unit that exempts all or part of the increase in value of the real 
property and/or tangible personal property from taxation for a period not to exceed 10 
years.  These tax abatements are an economic development tool available to cities, 
counties and special districts to attract new industries and to encourage the retention 
and development of existing businesses through property tax exemptions or reductions. 
 
Economic Resources Measurement Focus- Measurement focus where the aim of a 
set of financial statements is to report all inflows, outflows, and balances affecting or 
reflecting an entity’s net position.  The economic resources measurement focus is used 
for proprietary and trust funds, as well as for government-wide financial reporting.  It 
also is used by business enterprise and nonprofit organizations in the private sector. 
 
Elected Contribution Rate- The board of directors may take a vote to increase the 
percentage of gross payroll paid to the Texas Counties and District Retirement System 
(TCDRS) above that of the required rate. 
 
Employer Contributions- A term used in the context of pension benefits and OPEB to 
describe actual payments made by the employer as compared to the employer’s annual 
required contribution.  Only amounts paid to trustees and outside parties qualify as 
contributions. 
 
Exemption- The District grants exemptions to certain organizations, persons, or 
property that may provide complete relief from tax, tax at a reduced rate or tax on only a 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Glossary | 177 

 

portion of the items subject to tax.  Examples include the homestead exemption and the 
over 65 exemption. 
 
Expenditure- Under the current financial resources measurement focus, decreases in 
net financial resources not properly classified as other financing uses. 
 
Formal Hearing- When a taxpayer protests their property value, a formal hearing 
before the Appraisal Review Board (ARB) is the final step before the appeals process.  
The formal hearing is conducted with a panel of three ARB members (unless special 
circumstances exist). 
 
Fund- Fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash 
and other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or 
balances, and changes therein, that are segregated for the purpose of carrying on 
specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, 
restrictions, or limitations. 
 
Fund Balance- Net position of a governmental fund (difference between assets, 
liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources). 
 
Fund Financial Statements- Basic financial statements presented for funds, in contrast 
to government-wide financial statements. 
 
General Fund- Main operating account for a nonprofit entity, such as a government or 
government agency. 
 
Governmental Financial Reporting Model- Minimum combination of financial 
statements, notes, and required supplementary information prescribed for state and 
local governments by the GASB. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements- Financial statements that incorporate all of a 
government’s governmental and business-type activities, as well as its nonfiduciary 
component units.  There are two basic government-wide financial statements: the 
statement of net position and the statement of activities. 
 
Homestead- A building occupied by the owner of the freehold and his or her family, with 
the primary intention of making it their home, together with the parcel of land on which it 
stands and the other improvements attached to it. 
 
Improvement- Building, other structures, and attachments or annexations to land that 
are intended to remain so attached or annexed, such as sidewalks, trees, drives, 
tunnels, drains, and sewers. 
 
Internal Control Framework- Integrated set of policies and procedures designed to 
assist management to achieve its goals and objectives.  To be truly comprehensive, a 
government’s internal control framework must 1) provide a favorable control 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Glossary | 178 

 

environment, 2) provide for the continuing assessment of risk, 3) provide for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective control-related policies and procedures, 
4) provide for the effective communication of information, and 5) provide for the ongoing 
monitoring of the effectiveness of control-related policies. 
 
Jurisdiction (Taxing Entity) - The right and power to interpret and apply the law; also, 
the power to tax and the power to govern.  The territorial range of authority of control. 
 
Line Item Transfer- A proposal to change the dollar amount of an activity or project or 
to add an activity of project after the budget has already been adopted.  A budget line 
item transfer does not change the final dollar amount of the budget, and does not 
require the jurisdictions to contribute more money to the District. 
 
Mediation- A negotiation to resolve differences that is conducted by some impartial 
third party. 
 
Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting- Basis of accounting used in conjunction with 
the current financial resources measurement focus that modifies the accrual basis of 
accounting in two important ways: 1) revenues are not recognized until they are 
measurable and available and 2) expenditures are recognized in the period in which 
governments in general normally liquidate the related liability rather than when that 
liability is first incurred (if earlier).. 
 
Net Position- The residual of all other financial statement elements presented in a 
statement of financial position. 
 
Nonspendable Fund Balance- The portion of the net position of a governmental fund 
that cannot be spent either because the underlying resources are not in spendable form 
or because the government is legally or contractually required to maintain the resources 
intact. 
 
Oblique Photography- A photograph acquired with the camera axis intentionally 
directed between the horizontal and vertical orientations. 
 
Open Meetings Act- Rules that guarantee access to data held by the state or local 
government.  This act establishes a “right-to-know” legal process by which requests 
may be made for government-held information, to be received freely or at minimal cost, 
barring standard exceptions. 
 
Orthophotography- An aerial photograph in which the displacement of images have 
been removed and may also form the base map for many GIS programs. 
 
Parcel- A contiguous area of land described in a single legal description or as one of a 
number of lots on a plat; separately owned, either publicly or privately; and capable of 
being separately conveyed. 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Glossary | 179 

 

Personal Property- Moveable property; belongings exclusive of land and buildings. 
 
Real Property- Consists of the interests, benefits, and rights inherent in the ownership 
of land plus anything permanently attached to the land or legally defined as immovable; 
also called “realty”. 
 
Rendition- A form that provides information about property that one owns.  The 
appraisal district uses the information the taxpayer provides to appraise that property for 
taxation. 
 
Request for Proposal- Referred to as an RFP, is an early state in a procurement 
process, issuing an invitation for suppliers, often through the bidding process, to submit 
a proposal on a specific commodity or service.  The RFP process brings structure to the 
procurement decision and is meant to allow the risks and benefits to be identified clearly 
upfront. 
 
Request for Qualification- A document distributed by a customer seeking delineation 
of credentials for suppliers of specific types of services.  Also known as an RFQ. 
 
Required Contribution Rate- The amount (typically express as a percentage of the 
contribution base) that is required to be paid into the pension fund. 
 
Restricted Fund Balance- The portion of the net position of a governmental fund that 
represents resources subject to externally enforceable constraints. 
 
Retention Policy- A set of guidelines that a company follows to determine how long it 
should keep certain records.  The policy is important for many reasons, including legal 
requirements that apply to some documents. 
 
Shapefile- A popular geospatial vector data format for geographic information systems 
software.  It is developed and regulated by ESRI as a (mostly) open specification for 
data interoperability among ESRI and other software products. 
 
Special Purpose Government- Governments that are not general-purpose 
governments and have a more limited range of purposes.  This often includes 
townships, park districts, sanitation district, and appraisal districts. 
 
Statement of Activities- A government-wide financial statement that reports the 
financial activity of the organization by function over a period of time.  Also known as the 
income statement or profit and loss statement in the for-profit world. 
 
Statement of Net Assets- A government-wide financial statement that reports the 
difference between assets and liabilities as net assets, not fund balances or equity.  
Assets are reported in order of liquidity, or how readily they are expected to be 
converted to cash and whether restrictions limit the government’s ability to use the 
resources.  Liabilities are reported based on their maturity, or when cash is expected to 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY 2015 

Proposed Budget 
 

Glossary | 180 

 

be used to liquidate them.  Net assets are displayed in three components- invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. 
 
Unassigned Fund Balance- The difference between the total fund balance in a 
governmental fund and its nonspendable, restricted, committed, and assigned 
components. 
 
 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Item 9Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

gonzalj
Text Box
REVISED 7-31-14



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



County
CSCD

Juvenile Probation
Corporations

TOTAL

FY 2015

County
CSCD

Juvenile Probation
Corporations

TOTAL

FY 2016

County
CSCD

Juvenile Probation
Corporations

TOTAL

FY 2017

County
CSCD

Juvenile Probation
Corporations

TOTAL

FY 2018

County
CSCD

Juvenile Probation
Corporations

TOTAL 290,220.00 $295,300.00 $232,000.00

266,650.00

30,560.00 550.00 28,250  (expenses included)

281,050.00

18,775  (expenses included)

18,710.00 500.00 17,850  (expenses included) 13,600  (expenses included)

29,360.00 525.00 27,575  (expenses included) 22,000  (expenses included)

12,800  (expenses included)

20,000  (expenses included)
190,280.00
25,680.00

8,480.00 N/A 8,375  (expenses included) 13,800  (expenses included)

18,000.00 500.00

172,200  (expenses included)

220,000.00

210,000.00

168,650  (expenses included)

18,300  (expenses included) 14,000  (expenses included)

215,000.00

12,250  (expenses included)

218,170.00 1,100.00 233,575  (expenses included) 176,200  (expenses included)

17,420  (expenses included) 13,250  (expenses included)

7,775  (expenses included)

243,080.00 267,495.00

7,120.00

165,000  (expenses included)1,000 216,900 (expenses included)

7,580  (expenses included) 11,750  (expenses included)

500.00

N/A

25,595  (expenses included)

198,660.00 1,000.00 222,325  (expenses included)

RFQ No. 1403-006-ML, Annual Independent Audit Services

Best and Final Offer Pricing

FY 2014

ATCHLEY EXPENSES GRANT THORNTON WEAVER

19,720.00 525.00
7,800.00 N/A 7,975  (expenses included)

253,540.00

208,840.00 1,100.00

274,200.00

28,140.00

26,760.00 500.00 26,250  (expenses included)

525.00

20,500  (expenses included)

7,410.00

227,875  (expenses included)

N/A

278,320.00 288,075.00 226,000.00

21,360.00 550.00 19,250  (expenses included) 15,000  (expenses included)

227,520.00 1,200.00 239,425  (expenses included) 180,200  (expenses included)
23,000  (expenses included)

8,130.00 N/A 8,150  (expenses included) 13,300  (expenses included)
20,510.00 525.00 14,500  (expenses included)

26,900  (expenses included) 21,000  (expenses included)

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

TRAVIS COUNTY

AND

ATCHLEY & ASSOCIATES, LLP

FOR

EXTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES

CONTRACT NO. 4400002058

Travis County Purchasing Office

.OF7s

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

EXTERNAL AUDITING CONTRACT  
BETWEEN ATCHLEY & ASSOCIATES, LLP AND 

TRAVIS COUNTY AND 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY SUPERVISION  

AND CORRECTIONS DEPARTMENT AND 
TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION BOARD 

FOR FISCAL YEARS 2014-2018 
 

 This contract is entered into by the following parties:   
 
Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas ("County"), and  
 
Travis County Community Supervision and Corrections Department ("CSCD"), and 
 
Travis County Juvenile Probation Board, ("Juvenile Probation"), and  
 
Atchley & Associates, LLP, a firm of certified public accountants, which is a registered 
limited liability partnership under the laws of the State of Texas ("Contractor").  
 
 RECITALS  

 County, through the Commissioners Court desires Contractor to express an 
opinion on the fair presentation of its basic financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted for governments in the United States of America 
(“GAAP”).   

 As required under the Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256, Public Funds 
Investment Act, County, through the Commissioners Court also desires Contractor, in 
conjunction with the annual financial audit, to report on the County’s internal control over 
financial reporting including investments and on its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements.  

 County is entering into this contract with Contractor to audit its financial 
statements for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2014, and for each of the four 
subsequent fiscal years.   

 CSCD is entering into this contract with Contractor to audit the financial 
statements of the Texas Criminal Justice Assistance Division (“CJAD”) Grant Funds as 
administered and managed by CSCD in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards as prescribed by CJAD, to determine 
compliance with the provisions of “Financial Management Manual for CJAD Funding” for 
the year ended August 31, 2014, and for each of the four subsequent fiscal years.    

 Juvenile Probation is entering into this contract with Contractor to audit the 
financial statements of the Texas Juvenile Justice Department Grant Funds as 
administered and managed by Juvenile Probation in accordance with generally accepted 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 1 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards as prescribed by the Texas 
Juvenile Justice Department, to determine compliance with the provisions of the Texas 
Juvenile Justice Department State Financial Assistance Contract for the year ended 
August 31, 2014, and for each of the four subsequent fiscal years.   

    Commissioners Court may exempt personal and professional services from 
complying with the competitive procurement process under TEX. LOC. GOV'T CODE ANN., § 
262 et seq.  Except as otherwise provided herein, Contractor will provide professional 
services. 
 
 AGREEMENT 
 
 The parties agree to the terms and conditions stated in this contract. 

1. GENERAL DEFINITIONS 
1.1. “Adequate disclosure criterion” means that in determining whether 

financial statements prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles or an OCBOA satisfy the adequate disclosure 
criterion, the Contractor should consider the following concepts 
established in SAS-69:  

1.1.1. The accounting principles selected and applied should have general 
acceptance. 

1.1.2. The accounting principles should be appropriate in the 
circumstances. 

1.1.3. The financial statements, including the related notes, should be 
informative of matters that may affect their use, understanding, and 
interpretation. 

1.1.4. The information presented in the financial statements should be 
classified and summarized in a reasonable manner; that is, it should 
be neither too detailed nor too condensed. 

1.1.5. The financial statements should reflect the underlying events and 
transactions (in a manner that satisfies the purpose of the financial 
statements) within a range of acceptable limits; that is, limits that are 
reasonable and practicable to attain in financial statements.  

1.2. “Additional Services” means the work described in any amendment to this 
contract for Annual Audit services. 

1.3.  “Annual Audit Services” means the work related to the annual audit of the 
Contracting Entities which includes the following: 

1.3.1. preparation, direction and assistance in the completion of a yearly 
external audit of the financial condition of the Contracting Entity in 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 2 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

the manner described in Attachment A Specific Audit  Requirements 
and in Attachment D Contractor’s Proposal; 

1.3.2. a compliance audit of management controls on investments without 
need for an additional report related to this audit;  

1.3.3. audit of up to eight Major Funds for County for Fiscal Years ending 
September 30, 2014, September 30, 2015, September 30, 2016, 
September 30, 2017, and September 30, 2018;  

1.3.4. audit of up to twelve Major Grant Programs for County;  

1.3.5. compliance with the timelines stated in Attachment A Specific Audit 
Requirements, subsection 6 Implementation; 

1.3.6. compliance with generally accepted auditing standards and generally 
accepted government auditing standards; and  

1.3.7. compliance with standards established by the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Department as stated in the state aid agreement; and  

1.3.8. compliance with standards established by the Texas Department of 
Criminal Justice as stated in its “Financial Management Manual for 
CJAD Funding”.  

1.4.  “Auditor” means the Travis County Auditor or her designee. 

1.5. “Commissioners Court” means Travis County Commissioners Court. 

1.6. “Contract” means this document and all attachments and exhibits to it 
referred to section 15.5.  

1.7. “Contracting Entity” means one or more of the following: Travis County, 
Travis County Juvenile Board, and Travis County Community Supervision 
and Corrections Department. 

1.8. “Contracting Entity Building” means any building owned by a Contracting 
Entity and does not include buildings leased by a Contracting Entity. 

1.9. “Contractor” means Atchley & Associates, LLP. 

1.10.  “County” means Travis County, Texas. 

1.11. “CSCD” means the Travis County Community Supervision and 
Corrections Department. 

1.12. “Day” means calendar day. 

1.13. “GAAP” means accounting principles generally accepted for governments 
in the United States of America.  

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 3 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

1.14. “Historically Underutilized Business” or “HUB” means any entity or 
association formed to make a profit in which one (1) or more persons who 
are educationally or economically disadvantaged because of their 
identification as members of one of the following groups: African 
Americans, Hispanic Americans, Asian Pacific Americans, Native 
Americans or Women of any ethnicity have the following rights: 

1.14.1. own at least fifty-one percent (51%) of all classes of shares or 
other equitable securities and have incidents of ownership, including 
an interest in profit and loss, equivalent to the percentage of capital, 
equipment or expertise contributed to the business where 
ownership is measured as though the community property interest 
of a spouse is the separate property of that spouse, if both spouses 
certify in writing that the non-participating spouse relinquishes 
control over his or her spouse, and his or her community property, 
and not as if it is subject to the community property interest of the 
other spouse;  and 

1.14.2. have a proportionate interest and demonstrated active 
participation in the control, operation and management of the 
business's affairs; where control means having recognized ultimate 
control over all day-to-day decisions affecting the business, and is 
be known to, and at least tacitly acknowledged in day-to-day 
operations by employees of the business and by those with whom 
business is conducted, and holding a title commensurate with that 
control.    

1.15. “Juvenile Board” means the Travis County Juvenile Board. 

1.16. “Major Fund” means a governmental or enterprise fund reported as a 
separate column in the basic fund financial statements.   

1.17. “Major Grant Program” has the definition in OMB Circular A-133 and the 
State of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards and the related 
State Single Audit circular and any circulars that revise or replace those 
circulars. 

1.18. “Notice” means a written statement delivered in compliance with section 
14.0 Notice. 

1.19. “Other Comprehensive Basis of Accounting” or “OCBOA” means a basis 
of accounting that complies with the provisions of SAS-122. 

1.20. “Project Manager” means the Travis County Auditor 

1.21. “Purchasing Agent” means the Travis County Purchasing Agent or her 
designee.  

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 4 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

1.22. “Services” means the Annual Audit Services and Additional Services and 
the activities, obligations, and deliverables described in the Description of 
Services in Attachment A. 

1.23. “TJJD” means the Texas Juvenile Justice Department 

1.24. “Working Day” means Monday through Friday except for days that County 
has designed as holidays. 

2. TERM 

2.1. This Contract commences on July 1, 2014, and continues until the 
Services have been performed unless earlier terminated as provided in 
this Contract.  The term crosses the county fiscal years.  If 
Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this contract during the 
adoption of budget for a fiscal year, the County may terminate the 
contract as provided in section 13 –Termination. 

2.2. Subject to continued funding by the Commissioners Court, this contract 
automatically renews on July 1, for succeeding terms of one year for a 
maximum total term of five years unless sooner terminated by either party 
as provided in it. 

2.3. Each Contracting Entity is purchasing audit services related to the 
Contracting Entity's fiscal year.  If this contract expires, its provisions and 
conditions continue in full force and effect until the initiated audit services 
are complete.   

3. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 

3.1. Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner in compliance 
with the assurances, certifications, and all other statements made by 
Contractor in Contractor’s Proposal and all subsequent proposals for 
Additional Services which are incorporated into this contract. 

3.2. Cooperation and Coordination.  Contractor shall cooperate and coordinate 
with staff of the Contracting Entities and other entities as reasonable and 
necessary and as required by the Project Manager.  

3.3. Requests For Direction. Contractor shall communicate all requests for 
direction, factual or statistical information relating to Services to Project 
Manager.  However, Project Manager shall not serve as the agent of 
Travis County or the Commissioners Court or CSCD or Juvenile Board for 
any purpose other than conveying factual or statistical information. 
Contractor may rely on all factual or statistical information supplied by 
Project Manager in response to these requests. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 5 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

3.4. Records. 

3.4.1. Maintenance and Retention. Contractor shall create and maintain  all 
necessary and appropriate information and documentation (including 
accounting records) related to the Services and payment for them for 
at least three (3) years after providing the Services, or until any audit 
of records or litigation concerning any Services has been 
satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. 

3.4.2. Access.  At reasonable times and on reasonable notice, Contractor 
shall make available to any Contracting Entity or its duly authorized 
representatives and to their regulatory entities such as TDCJ-CJAD 
and TJJD any information and documentation in Contractor’s 
possession or control, which directly pertains to Services for reviews, 
inspections, audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions for as 
long as Contractor has access to the information and documentation. 

3.4.3. Duplication of information and documentation.  Contractor shall 
provide copies of information and documentation to County upon 
written request to Contractor at a cost based on the rates applicable 
to copies provided pursuant to the Texas Public Information Act 

3.4.4. Subcontractor Compliance.  Contractor shall include provisions 
stated in 3.4.1, 3.4.2, and 3.4.3 in all subcontracts. 

3.5. Right to Contractual Material.  All work products created or produced by 
Contractor for delivery to a Contracting Entity as a result of Services, 
including programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended 
documentation to any responses, inquiries, correspondence, and related 
material are the property of the County at the time of receipt; provided that 
Contractor shall have the right to retain copies of all work products. Any 
intellectual property rights granted to the County survive the termination of 
this Contract and endure for the useful life of the contractual material and 
other intellectual property rights provided.  Contractor shall deliver all 
Deliverables in both human readable and computer readable form to the 
Project Manager.  The computer readable form for text must be in 
Microsoft Word 2007 or more recent release.  The computer readable 
form for other deliverable items, such as charts, must be in Microsoft 
Excel 2007 or more recent release. 

3.6. Rights to Contractor’s Work Products.  Upon full payment, Contractor 
assigns to County any and all rights, title and interest, including, without 
limitation, copyrights, trade secrets and proprietary rights to the work 
products developed or prepared specifically for County under this 
Contract.  The work products exclude all third party works and products 
whether or not included or embedded in the Contractor’s work products.  
The work products are deemed to be “works made for hire” under the 
federal copyright laws.  Contractor shall give County reasonable 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 6 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

assistance, at County's expense, to perfect this assignment of these 
rights, title and interest.  However, if the work products include intellectual 
property owned or developed by Contractor before and independent from, 
its obligations under this Contract, Contractor retains all rights to that 
previous and independent product. In addition, Contractor retains the right 
to use its knowledge, experience, and know-how, including processes, 
ideas, concepts and techniques developed in the course of performing the 
Services. 

3.7. Standard of Care.  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, 
Contractor shall perform all Services using at least the standard of care 
that a reasonably prudent person in that profession in Travis County, 
Texas would use in similar circumstances. Contractor shall perform the 
Services and other obligations in this Contract in a good and professional 
manner.  This Contract shall not be interpreted to relieve Contractor of this 
duty. 

3.8. Ethical Standards.  Contractor shall perform the Services and exercise all 
discretionary powers in a manner consistent with applicable standards of 
professional conduct and ethics and Contractor’s best professional 
judgment, including: 

3.8.1. Contractor shall give the Contracting Entity written notice of any 
professional relationships entered into during the term of this 
contract with the officers and key employees in the financial 
operations of the Contracting Entity, and all of the component units 
and related organizations of Contracting Entity, as defined by 
generally accepted auditing standards and the U.S. Government 
Accountability Office’s Government Auditing Standards.  

3.8.2. Contractor shall expressly advise the Commissioners Court or 
Juvenile Board, or CSCD, whichever is applicable, of any direct or 
indirect benefit to Contractor or any member or employee of 
Contractor that is likely to result from any actions recommended by 
Contractor. 

3.9. Confidential Information.  To the extent that Contractor comes into 
possession of any proprietary or confidential information of Contracting 
Entity in connection with the Services, Contractor shall not disclose that 
information to any third party without the Contracting Entity’s consent, 
except in the following circumstances: 

3.9.1. as may be required by law, regulation, judicial or administrative 
process, or in accordance with applicable professional standards, or 
in connection with litigation pertaining to this contract, or  

3.9.2. to the extent that information otherwise becomes publicly available 
(including any information filed with any governmental agency and 
available to the public) other than as the result of  

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 7 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

3.9.3. a disclosure by Contractor in breach of this provision, 

3.9.4. a disclosure by Contracting Entity to a third party without 
substantially the same restrictions,  

3.9.5. a disclosure to Contractor on a non-confidential basis from a source 
other than Contracting Entity which Contractor believes is not 
prohibited from disclosing the information to Contractor by obligation 
to Contracting Entity,  

3.9.6. knowledge by Contractor before its receipt from Contracting Entity 
without any obligation of confidentiality with respect to it, or  

3.9.7. development by Contractor independently of any disclosures made 
by Contracting Entity to Contractor of that information. 

3.10. Civil Rights/ADA Compliance.  In performing the Services, Contractor 
shall not discriminate against any applicant, employee, patient or other 
person on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin or 
disability and shall provide reasonable accommodations for disabilities as 
required by the Americans with Disabilities Act as amended. 

3.11. Physical Presence in County.  Contractor shall maintain accessibility to 
the Contracting Entity through a continuing physical presence in Travis 
County either through its own office or the office of its subcontractor so 
that this physical presence is at least approximately the same size as its 
current operations in Travis County, which is an office with at least 30 
professional staff who have college degrees in areas related to accounting 
or other business related areas.  In addition, Contractor shall provide 
access to persons assigned to perform Services through a toll free 
telephone number or other service that is cost free to the Contracting 
Entity. 

3.12. Return of County Equipment and Access Keys.  At the end of this 
Contract, Contractor shall return property of any kind, including all keys, 
access cards and other means of access to county buildings and other 
property that have been provided to it or its staff.    Contractor shall not 
permit its staff to take or retain any property of any Contracting Entity or 
any property of any employees of any Contracting Entity. 

3.13. Legal Compliance.  Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and 
local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the 
performance of all Services. 

3.14. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire.  If required, Contractor shall complete, 
file and update a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire in compliance with 
Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code. Contractor 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 8 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

acknowledges that the law requires the County to provide access to this 
questionnaire on the official Travis County website. 

3.15. Certification Regarding Debarment. Contractor shall complete and update 
a Certification Regarding Debarment on the form in Attachment G 
whenever there is a change in status. 

3.16. HIPAA Business Associate Agreement. Contractor shall execute and 
deliver to County the Business Associate Agreement in the form in 
Attachment H simultaneously with the execution of this Contract. 

4. CONTRACTOR STAFFING REQUIREMENTS 
4.1. Personnel Used.  Contractor expressly acknowledges that, in entering into 

this Contract, County has relied on the representations of Contractor 
about the training and experience of persons who will perform the 
Services. Contractor shall ensure that all work is done by the persons that 
Contractor represented as performing the Services in its proposal and 
who are listed with their qualifications in Attachment D or persons with 
equivalent qualifications. 

4.2. Professional Qualifications.  At all times during Contract, Contractor shall 
maintain in good standing its professional license and accreditations 
applicable to Services. Contractor shall perform all acts reasonably 
necessary to maintain and improve its professional competence and 
training.  Contractor shall Notify County within two (2) Working Days if any 
adverse action related to its professional license and accreditations occurs. 

4.3. Manager Qualifications.  Each year Contractor shall provide a resume 
identifying the qualifications of the Audit Manager, who is a key person on 
the audit engagement and shall certify his/her availability to the 
Contracting Entity on a full-time basis during the audit.  

4.4. Staff Qualifications.   Assigned key staff outlined for this audit should have 
technical skills and experience in auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards and at least two or 
more of the following areas: GAAP, governmental accounting, grant 
accounting, integrated financial systems, OCBOAs, business process 
analysis, knowledge of the Texas Department of Criminal Justice 
Financial Management Manual for CJAD Funding and TJJD grant 
agreements, and the provisions of U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Circular A-133.     

4.5. Requirement to Use Qualified Staff. Contractor shall be responsible for 
staffing the audit with professional staff capable of performing the Annual 
Audit Services and acceptable to the Contracting Entity.  Each year 
Contractor shall identify the size and makeup of the engagement team 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 9 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

from the partner to the staff level including any supervisors and/or 
specialists 

4.6. Continuity of Personnel.  Engagement partners, managers, supervisory 
staff and specialists may be changed if those personnel leave Contractor, 
are promoted or are assigned to another office.  These personnel may 
also be changed for other reasons with the express prior written 
permission of Contracting Entity. However, in either case, Contracting 
Entity retains the right to approve or reject replacements.  Other audit 
personnel may be changed at the discretion of Contractor provided that 
replacements have substantially the same or better qualifications or 
experience. 

4.7. County Right to Reject Personnel.  Contractor grants County, CSCD, and 
Juvenile Board the right to reject personnel working on their respective 
audits at any time. If Contracting Entity is dissatisfied with the 
performance of the persons regularly assigned to work for Contracting 
Entity due to performing substandard work or having a personality conflict 
with County staff, CSCD staff, Juvenile Board staff, or other Contractor 
personnel, this person shall be replaced by a person acceptable to 
Contracting Entity. If Contractor requests changes in assigned personnel, 
changes must be approved by the Contracting Entity prior to implementing 
the changes.  Contractor shall allow Contracting Entity a ten (10) day 
acceptance period for any individual assigned.  During this period, if the 
individual proves not to be capable of fulfilling the tasks assigned, and 
Contractor receives notice from the Contracting Entity, Contractor shall 
remove that person.  

4.8. Use of Subcontractors.  If Contractor includes one or more subcontractors 
in its proposal, Contractor must perform Annual Audit Services with an 
integrated team approach that makes any relationship between Contractor 
and all subcontractors appear as if all staff members who are assigned to 
provide services for this contract are part of an integrated whole so that all 
portions of the Annual Audit Services are performed by a combination of 
persons associated with Contractor and persons associated with the 
subcontractor.  Contractor shall not assign any portion of the Annual Audit 
Services solely to persons associated with a subcontractor.   

5. CONTRACTOR ANNUAL AUDIT SERVICES 

5.1. Completion Timing Requirements. Contractor shall perform all Annual 
Audit Services in a prompt and efficient manner.  Contractor shall perform 
the Annual Audit Services in compliance with the timelines stated in 
Attachment A Specific Audit Requirements, section 6 Implementation 
which are required performance conditions of this contract, and in 
compliance with Contractor’s assurances, certifications, and all other 
statements made in the portions of Attachment D Contractor’s Proposal. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 10 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

Timing of performance of the Services and of delivery of all deliverables is 
of the essence. If delivery or completion dates cannot be met, Contractor 
must inform the Project Manager immediately. Providing this information 
does not change the delivery or completion dates unless this Contract is 
amended. 

5.2. County Audit Completion Timing.  Each timeline listed in Attachment A 
Specific Audit Requirements, subsection 6 Implementation is a required 
performance and condition of this contract.  Contractor shall perform all 
Annual Audit Services in a prompt and efficient manner. 

5.3. CSCD Audit Completion Timing.  Contractor must make all reports to be 
prepared for CSCD available to CSCD at least thirty (30) Days before 
CSCD is required by its contract with TDCJ-CJAD to submit the report to 
TDCJ-CJAD.  At execution of this Contract, Contractor must make the 
reports available to CSCD no later than February 28 of each year for 
submission to TDCJ-CJAD no later than March 31 of that year as 
currently required by the contract with TDCJ-CJAD.  Because time is of 
the essence in this Contract, Contractor acknowledges that failure to 
comply with this timing requirement could result in a refusal by TDCJ-
CJAD to continue its grants to the CSCD and result in damages to Travis 
County and CSCD. 

5.4. Juvenile Audit Completion Timing.  Contractor must make all reports to be 
prepared for Juvenile Board available to the Juvenile Board at least seven 
(7) Days before the Juvenile Board is required by its contract with TJJD to 
submit the report to TJJD if the date for submission is February 28 or 
earlier and at least thirty (30) Days before the Juvenile Board is required 
by its contract with TJJD to submit the report to TJJD if the date for 
submission is later than February 28.  At execution of this Contract, 
Contractor must make the reports available to the Juvenile Board no later 
than February 21 of each year for submission to TJJD no later than March 
1 of that year as required by the contract with TJJD. Because time is of 
the essence in this Contract, Contractor acknowledges that failure to 
comply with this timing requirement could result in a refusal by TJJD to 
continue the grants to the Juvenile Board and result in damages to Travis 
County and the Juvenile Board. 

5.5. Basis of Audits.  It is required that the audit and the required reports be 
performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller of 
the United States, the provisions of U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit 
Organizations, the State of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards 
(“UGMS”) issued by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Budget, the 
State of Texas Single Audit Circular, the independent audit guidelines 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 11 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

issued by Texas Juvenile Justice Department and Texas Department of 
Criminal Justice – Community Justice Assistance Divisions (TDCJ-CJAD), 
and any other standards or requirements established during the term of the 
contract by any of these organizations that relate to the funds being audited 
under the contract.  These audits are requested pursuant to Texas Local 
Government Code Section 115.045 and other applicable State and 
Federal Laws.  

6. CONTRACTOR REPORTING 

6.1. Regularly Scheduled Meetings.  Upon request of the Contracting Entity, 
Contractor shall report at regularly scheduled meetings of the 
Commissioners Court, Juvenile Board, District Judges, or CSCD, 
whichever is applicable, on the status, progress, and general nature of the 
work performed to date pursuant to this contract. 

6.2. Individual Representative Meetings.  Contractor shall be available to the 
Travis County Commissioners Court (or its voted designees), Travis 
County District Judges (or its voted designees), Juvenile Board (or its 
designee), CSCD (or its designee), or County Auditor at any time for 
questions with respect to that Contracting Entity’s Annual Audit Services. 

7. CONTRACTOR EXPRESS ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS, AND 
WARRANTIES 

7.1. Contractor acknowledges that no officer, agent, employee, or 
representative of County has any authority to change this 
Contract, to approve assignment of any part of it, or to waive 
any provision of it unless expressly granted that specific 
authority by Commissioners Court. 

7.2. Independent Contractor. Contractor expressly acknowledges that 
Contractor is an independent contractor, operating solely in that capacity, 
and assumes all of the rights, obligations and liabilities applicable to it as 
an independent contractor.  Contractor acknowledges that neither it nor 
the employees of Contractor and its subcontractors are employees of any 
Contracting Entity and they do not gain any rights against any Contracting 
Entity pursuant to any Contracting Entity's personnel policies and 
procedures.   

7.3. No Agency Relationship.  Contractor acknowledges that it does not have 
the authority to enter into any contract in the name of any Contracting 
Entity or otherwise bind any Contracting Entity in any way without the 
express written consent of that Contracting Entity.   No Contracting Entity 
has the authority to enter into any contract in the name of Contractor or 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 12 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

otherwise bind Contractor in any way without the express written consent 
of Contractor. 

7.4. Professional Representations.  Contractor makes the following 
representations: 

7.4.1. Contractor has financial strength, technical depth, and a proven track 
record in auditing political subdivisions with populations of 350,000 
or more but less than 3 million.   

7.4.2. Contractor and all assigned key professional staff are properly 
registered or licensed to practice professional public accounting in 
Texas. 

7.4.3. Contractor is a certified public accounting firm which has principals 
and staff with demonstrated experience and expertise who offer: 

7.4.3.1. Licensed certified public accountants (CPA) who are 
knowledgeable of generally accepted accounting and 
auditing principles (GAAP & GAGAS), other 
comprehensive basis of accounting (OCBOAs), and all 
relevant governmental accounting standards (GASB); 

7.4.3.2. An Audit Manager who is a licensed CPA who has a 
minimum of 5-7 years of experience in double-entry 
accounting systems and government auditing of political 
subdivisions with populations of 350,000 or more but 
less than 3 million; 

7.4.3.3. Experience in auditing integrated financial systems; 

7.4.3.4. Documented experience in governmental accounting, 
federal/state grant accounting, financial reporting, 
OCBOAs and government auditing for political 
subdivisions with populations of 350,000 or more but 
less than 3 million;  

7.4.3.5. Documented experience in such areas as arbitrage 
reporting, pension benefit obligation reporting, economic 
gain or loss on defeasance of debt reporting, auditing of 
actuarially determined risk reserves, and conduit debt 
obligations reporting for political subdivisions with 
populations of 350,000 or more but less than 3 million; 

7.4.3.6. Thorough understanding of the state and local 
government statutes as they relate to counties with 
populations of 350,000 or more but less than 3 million; 

7.4.3.7. Thorough understanding of the financial laws of Texas; 

7.4.3.8. Thorough understanding of the internal controls that 
need to be in place to safeguard the County’s assets; 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 13 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

7.4.3.9. Documented external quality control reviews (provide 
the two most recent peer review reports);  

7.4.3.10. No significant litigation or disciplinary actions by the 
SEC or others (provide a statement disclosing any such 
items).  

7.5. Independence Representation.  Contractor is and will remain independent 
of all Contracting Entities, their officers, and key employees in their financial 
operations, as defined by generally accepted auditing standards and the 
U.S. Government Accountability Office’s Government Auditing Standards. 
This independence applies to both the personal and professional levels. 

7.6. Independence Representation—Component Units.  Contractor is 
independent of all of the component units and related organizations of all 
Contracting Entities, as defined by generally accepted auditing standards 
and the U.S. Government Accountability Office’s Government Auditing 
Standards, the AICPA and the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

7.7. Continuity of Staff.  Contractor is committed to providing continuity of staff; 
however, any Contracting Entity may request longer assignments for staff 
members whom Contractor has identified for transfer to other projects. 

7.8. Reliance on Staffing Proposed. Contractor expressly acknowledges that, 
in entering this Contract, all Contracting Entities have relied on the 
representations of Contractor about the persons who will be performing 
the Services and their qualifications and that any other person except staff 
must be approved by the Contracting Entity before providing Services, 
which approval the Contracting Entity shall not unreasonably withhold.  
Contractor warrants that all work done will be done by the employees or 
members of Contractor or of the subcontractors named in Contractor’s 
Proposal who are presented as performing the Annual Audit Services.  

7.9. Truth of Proposal.  Contractor warrants that all of the information provided 
in Contractor’s Proposal is true and correct  

7.10. Copyrights, Patents, and Licenses.  Contractor warrants that all applicable 
copyrights, patents, licenses and other proprietary or intellectual property 
rights which may exist on materials used by Contractor in performance of 
Services have been adhered to and warrants that the Contracting Entity is 
not liable for any infringement by Contractor of those rights and any rights 
granted to the Contracting Entity by Contractor shall apply for the duration 
of the Contract. 

7.11. Applicability of Public Information Act. Contractor acknowledges that each 
Contracting Entity is subject to the Texas Public Information Act and the 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 14 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

Services are for a public governmental purpose and deliverables are for 
the information purposes of the Contracting Entity. 

7.12. Limit on Compensation.  Contractor expressly acknowledges that the sum 
stated in Attachment B is the maximum amount to be paid by any 
Contracting Entity to Contractor for the Services unless this Contract is 
amended for Additional Services. 

7.13. Federal Funds.  Contractor warrants that Contractor has not paid and will 
not pay, and no one else has paid or will pay on behalf of Contractor, any 
federally appropriated funds  to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, 
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of 
Congress in connection with awarding of any federal contract, the making 
of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of 
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 

7.14. Payment of Property Taxes.  Contractor warrants that Contractor is not 
currently delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax 
Assessor–Collector.   

7.15. Financial Stability.  Contractor warrants that Contractor is not in 
receivership and does not contemplate going into it, and has not filed for 
bankruptcy. 

8. CONTRACTING ENTITY RESPONSIBILITIES AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

8.1. Reasonable Cooperation.  Contracting Entity shall provide reasonable 
cooperation with Contractor in Contractor’s performance of the Services 
including, without limitation, providing Contractor with reasonable facilities 
and timely access to data, information and personnel of Contracting 
Entity.  Contracting Entity is responsible for the performance of its 
personnel and for the accuracy and completeness of all data and 
information provided to Contractor for the purposes of the performance of 
Services by Contractor.  

8.2. Document Preparation.  For County, the County Auditor and her staff 
prepare confirmation letters, examine bank reconciliations for the official 
fees accounts held by the elected officials, prepare working trial balances 
and supporting documentation, and pull invoices and checks. 

8.3. Confidential Information.  Contracting Entity acknowledges that any 
confidential information that comes to the attention of Contractor in the 
course of performing the Services may be considered and used by 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 15 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

Contractor in responding to its professional obligations as the independent 
accountants for Contracting Entity. 

8.4. Public Information.  County is subject to the Texas Public Information Act, 
as well as other regulations and statutes which set standards for use and 
accessibility of taxpayer purchased property, services, and information.  
County makes no agreement that might limit public access, limit the public 
purpose for which the services were procured, or that might contravene 
state or federal law. 

8.5. No Notice to Consent.  County has no contractual or statutory obligation 
to provide notice or obtain Contractor’s consent when County financial 
statements, which include the Contractor’s report on the audited sections 
of the financial statements, are referenced or otherwise reproduced.  
County will make reasonable efforts to provide a draft copy to Contractor 
of any Offering Statement which references the Contractor’s report or 
audited financial statement, or in which material changes have been 
identified that would reasonably affect the Contractor’s report even if the 
report is not directly referenced. 

8.6. Dissemination of Financial Statements. County acknowledges that the 
dissemination of its financial statements, in part or in full, does not 
constitute an agreement by the Contractor to be associated with or 
approval of the dissemination. 

8.7. Budgeting Contract Funds.  County is responsible for budgeting the 
contract amount according to periods in which work is performed.  County 
acknowledges that failure to fund additional procedures necessary to fulfill 
the normal financial statement audit due to the existence of more than 8 
major funds or more than twelve major grant programs or changed 
circumstances requiring additional review of controls and testing may 
result in the Contractor's inability to issue an acceptable opinion. 
Contracting Entity shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances 
rendered by Contractor before or after the contract period.  

9. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT FOR CONTRACTING ENTITY SERVICES  

9.1. In Attachment B, “Expenses” means long distance telephone, facsimile, 
photocopies, and supplies and does not include costs of travel.   

9.2. Taxpayer Identification Number. Contractor shall provide County with an 
Internal Revenue Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number 
and Certification that is completed in compliance with the Internal 
Revenue Code, its rules and regulations before any Contract funds are 
payable. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 16 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

9.3. Fees and Invoicing.  In consideration of the satisfactory performance of 
the Services by Contractor and Contractor’s compliance with this 
Contract, the Contracting Entities shall pay Contractor in accordance with 
the Fee Rates and Payment Schedule in Attachment B after Contractor 
invoices the Contracting Entity in compliance with Attachment B.  
Contractor shall not invoice any Contracting Entity in advance and 
Contracting Entity is not liable for any advance payments. 

9.4. Acceptance of Services.  Contracting Entity is not responsible for the cost 
of any Services until Contracting Entity has accepted the Services.  
Contracting Entity shall accept Services when Contracting Entity 
determines, in its sole discretion,  that the Services have been performed 
and completed in a good and timely manner to Contracting Entity’s 
satisfaction and at a standard acceptable in Contractor’s profession.  
Contracting Entity shall not unreasonably withhold acceptance. 

9.5. Delayed Payment to Contractor with Outstanding Debt. 

9.5.1. In section 9.5, “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees owing to 
the state or a Contracting Entity, and indebtedness arising from 
written agreements with Texas or Contracting Entity for which a 
notice with evidence has been filed with the County Auditor or Travis 
County Treasurer. 

9.5.2. Section 154.045 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes 
County not to draw a check on any County fund in favor of the 
Contractor, or its agent or assignee until the Debt is paid after the 
Travis County Treasurer notifies Contractor in writing that the Debt is 
outstanding. 

9.5.3. If the Treasurer’s notice states that any amount owed by the County 
to Contractor may be applied to reduce the outstanding Debt, County 
may apply any amount County owes Contractor to the outstanding 
balance of the Debt. 

9.6. Unauthorized Invoicing.  Contracting Entity is not liable for any of the 
following: 

9.6.1. costs incurred or performances rendered by Contractor before or 
after the Contract term, 

9.6.2. expenses not billed to a Contracting Entity within the applicable time 
limits in this Contract, or 

9.6.3. any costs for activities not included as Services. 

9.7. Return of Overpayment. Contractor is liable to Contracting Entity if and 
when Contracting Entity determines that a payment has resulted in 
overpayment. Contractor shall repay the overpayment to Contracting 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 17 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

Entity within thirty (30) Days after Contracting Entity requests a 
repayment. If Contractor does not repay the overpayment within thirty (30) 
Days, Contracting Entity may offset the amount of any overpayment 
against the next amount payable to Contractor under this or any other 
contract. 

10. RISK ALLOCATION 

10.1. Definition of Claim  In this  section 10 “Claim” means any negligence, 
cause of action, suit, proceeding before any administrative agency, loss, 
damages, or liability of any kind, including all expenses of litigation, court 
costs and attorney’s fees 

10.2. Indemnification  

10.2.1. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless County, its 
officers, agents, and employees, from all Claims for injury 
to or death of any person, for any act or omission by 
Contractor, or for damage to any property, arising out of or 
in connection with the Services. 

10.2.2. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the County, 
its officers, agents, and employees from all Claims for 
damages to any person or property arising in connection 
with any alleged or actual infringement of existing patents, 
licenses, copyrights or other intellectual property rights 
applicable to materials used in and work products arising 
from this Contract. 

10.3. Claims Notification.  If Contractor receives notice or becomes aware of 
any Claim against Contractor or County, without regard to who brought it, 
Contractor shall give County Notice within three (3) Working Days after 
Contractor becomes aware of the Claim or threat of Claim. Unless 
otherwise directed, Contractor shall furnish County copies of all pertinent 
papers received by Contractor regarding the Claim. Contractor’s Notice 
shall include: 

10.3.1. a written description of the Claim; 

10.3.2. the name and address of whoever made or threatened to make the 
Claim; 

10.3.3. the basis of the Claim; 

10.3.4. the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the Claim was 
instituted; and 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 18 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

10.3.5. the name of any other persons against whom this Claim is being 
made or threatened. 

10.4. Requirement for Insurance. Contractor shall have and maintain at least 
the minimum types of insurance listed in Attachment C throughout the 
term of this Contract.  Contractor’s insurance must be sufficient to cover 
the needs of Contractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted 
business standards related to the risks associated with providing the 
Services, but not less than the minimum coverage limits stated in 
Attachment C. Depending on services provided by Contractor, 
supplemental insurance requirements or alternate insurance options may 
apply in addition to those stated in Attachment C. If County authorizes 
Contractor to subcontract Services under this Contract, Contractor shall 
either maintain insurance that covers all subcontractors and complies with 
10.5 and Attachment C throughout the term of the Contract or ensure that 
all subcontractors have and maintain insurance for the work related to the 
Services that is performed by them and that their insurance complies with 
sections 10.4 and 10.5 and Attachment C while performing work related to 
the Services.  

10.5. General Insurance Requirements.  Contractor shall comply with the 
following requirements related to insurance: 

10.5.1. Contractor shall obtain insurance written by companies licensed in 
Texas with an A.M. Best rating of B+ VIII or higher.  If Contractor 
wants to use surplus carriers, these carriers are subject to County 
approval. 

10.5.2. Before Contractor begins Services, Contractor shall have at least the 
required insurance in force. Contractor shall not allow any insurance 
to be cancelled or lapse and shall not permit the minimum limits of 
coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced during this Contract. 
Contractor is responsible for all premiums, deductibles, and self-
insured retention. 

10.5.3. Contractor shall submit a Certificate of Insurance written on the 
state-approved form and signed by the writing agent or the carrier to 
County Purchasing Agent  within ten (10) Working Days  after the 
earlier of execution of the Contract by both parties, or the effective 
date of the Contract.  The Certificates must include the following: 

10.5.3.1. the Travis County contract number, 

10.5.3.2. all deductibles and self-insured retention, 

10.5.3.3. an endorsement that names Travis County as 
additional insured where County’s interest may lie, 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 19 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

10.5.3.4. an endorsement which makes the insurance primary 
for all claims, 

10.5.3.5. a Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) endorsement, 

10.5.3.6. a Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601) 
endorsement. 

10.5.4. On its request, County is entitled to receive certified copies of 
policies and endorsements at no additional expense to County. 

10.5.5. Contractor acknowledges that County has the right to review 
insurance requirements during any term of the Contract and to 
require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the 
Services have changed or expanded. 

10.5.6. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will 
not be interpreted to limit the responsibility or liability of the 
Contractor. 

11. CHANGES TO CONTRACTOR’S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

11.1. General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Contract, any 
change to this Contract must be in writing and signed by each party.   

11.2. Requests for Changes.  Contractor shall submit requests for changes to 
this Contract to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Project Manager. 

11.3. Purchasing Agent Authority.  The Purchasing Agent has certain limited 
authority to approve changes subject to Chapter 262 of the Texas Local 
Government Code and County policy approved by the Commissioners 
Court such as changing any aspect of contract to correct errors of a 
general administrative nature or other mistakes, the correction of which 
does not affect the scope of the Contract and does not result in expense 
to the Contractor.  Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may 
approve certain requests to change this Contract.  At any time, the 
Purchasing Agent may submit any request to the Commissioners Court 
for approval, regardless of the authority of the Purchasing Agent to 
approve the change. 

11.4. Change of Name.  If Contractor’s actions require County to recognize a 
change of Contractor’s name, Contractor must notify the Purchasing 
Agent immediately.  County does not recognize any change in its 
Contractor’s obligations until Commissioners Court approves the change. 

11.5. Assignment. The parties may not assign any rights or duties in this 
Contract without the prior written approval of the other party. Contractor 
may submit a written request for an assignment to the Purchasing Agent 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 20 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

with a copy to Project Manager.  The Purchasing Agent shall submit 
requests to the Commissioners Court for appropriate action.  If Contractor 
fails to obtain approval, County may delay payment or exercise other legal 
or equitable rights.  If Contractor assigns this Contract in compliance with 
this section, all aspects of this Contract are binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of its successors in interest and assigns.  If County assigns this 
Contract in compliance with this section, all aspects of this Contract are 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of its successors in interest and 
assigns.  

11.6.  Subcontracting.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this 
Contract, Contractor may not subcontract with any other person to 
perform any of the Services or other obligations under this Contract.  If 
subcontracting is allowed, Contractor must provide for insurance for 
subcontracts as stated in section 10.4 and require subcontractors to 
complete and update a Certification Regarding Debarment on the form in 
Attachment G whenever there is a change in status and provide the 
Purchasing Agent with copies of these certifications. 

12. DISPUTE RESOLUTION  

12.1. Procedure. 

12.1.1. In this section 12.1, “Correspondence” means any notice, document, 
letter, email, or other tangible transfer of information related to an 
issue and “Dispute Manager” means the Purchasing Agent or other 
representative authorized by Commissioners Court. 

12.1.2. Notice of Dispute. If the Contractor and the Project Manager have 
been unable to resolve any issue related to this Contract, Contractor 
may submit a Notice of the dispute to the Dispute Manager.  The 
Notice should contain specific details about the issues and 
Contractor’s preferred resolution of the dispute, including mediation, 
if desired. The Contractor may include any other relevant 
information. 

12.1.3. Flow of Information. After the Dispute Manager receives the 
Contractor’s Notice, the Dispute Manager represents the Contracting 
Entity in the administration of the dispute. After this Notice, any 
additional Correspondence is not effective unless it is directed to or 
sent by the Dispute Manager.  If Contractor disagrees with any 
Correspondence issued by the Dispute Manager, Contractor may 
submit a written response detailing its reasons for disagreement with 
the Correspondence to the Dispute Manager and the Project 
Manager within ten (10) Days after receipt of the Correspondence. 

12.1.4. Proposed Resolution. Within thirty (30) Days after the Dispute 
Manager receives Contractor’s response, the Dispute Manager must 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 21 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

send a final written proposal for resolution of the dispute to 
Contractor. 

12.1.5. Appeal. If the final written proposal does not resolve the dispute to 
Contractor’s satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written appeal to 
the governing body of the Contracting Entity involved through the 
Dispute Manager within ten (10) Days after receipt of the 
unsatisfactory proposal. The Dispute Manager forwards a copy of 
the appeal to the Project Manager for it to be placed on the agenda 
of governing body of the Contracting Entity involved. The governing 
body of the Contracting Entity involved hears the appeal.  Contractor 
may make a presentation at that hearing. 

12.2. Mediation.  When mediation is acceptable to both parties, the parties may 
use a mutually acceptable mediator, or a mediator appointed by a court of 
competent jurisdiction. Mediation is conducted in compliance with Chapter 
154 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. Unless both parties 
are satisfied with the mediated resolution, the mediation is not a final and 
binding resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of 
the mediation must remain confidential in compliance with section 
154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code, unless both 
parties agree in writing to waive confidentiality. 

12.3. Suspension.  After Notice to Contractor, County may suspend this 
Contract in whole or in part and withhold further payments to Contractor 
until County and Contractor resolve the issues causing the suspension. 
Contractor shall not incur additional obligations of Contract funds after 
receipt of a Notice of suspension until Contractor receives a Notice from 
County that the issues supporting suspension are resolved to County’s 
satisfaction. 

12.4. Non-Waiver of Default. The Contracting Entities expressly reserve all their 
rights under this Contract.  Any action that a Contracting Entity takes to 
exercise any right or remedy shall not be interpreted as a waiver of any 
other rights or remedies or preclude the exercise of any other right or 
remedy under this Contract or under any law.  A payment, act, or 
omission by a Contracting Entity shall not impair or prejudice any of its 
rights or remedies. 

13. TERMINATION  

13.1. Termination for Convenience.  Either party may terminate this Contract at 
any time by giving the other party Notice of termination at least sixty (60) 
Days before the effective date of the termination. If a Contracting Entity 
terminates this Contract, the Contracting Entity is not liable for any loss of 
profits anticipated by Contractor. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 22 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

13.2. Termination for Default.  Either party may terminate this Contract for the 
failure of the other party to perform any material provision of this Contract 
by delivering Notice of termination for default. A party may not terminate 
for default if the party was a contributing cause of the failure to perform. 
The Contract terminates immediately when the defaulting party receives 
that Notice. If a Contracting Entity terminates this Contract, County is not 
liable for any loss of profits anticipated by Contractor. 

13.3. Funding Out.  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if the 
Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract during the 
budget planning and adoption process for the next County fiscal year, 
County may terminate this Contract after giving Contractor twenty (20) 
Days Notice that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

13.4. Gratuities.  Contracting Entity may terminate this contract if it is found that 
gratuities of any kind including entertainment, or gifts were offered or given 
by the Contractor or any agent or representative of the Contractor, to any 
official, agent or employee of any Contracting Entity with a view toward 
securing favorable treatment with respect of this Contract.  If this contract is 
terminated by the Contracting Entity pursuant to this provision, Contracting 
Entity shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to 
recover from the Contractor at least three times the cost incurred by 
Contractor in providing these gratuities. 

14. NOTICE 

14.1. Written Notice.  All notices between the parties and related to this Contract 
shall be given to the other party in writing. If a notice is delivered in person 
to the address in this section 14. for the party to whom the notice is given, 
that notice deemed to have been given immediately, or on the third day 
following mailing If a notice is placed in the United States Mail, postage 
prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, 
addressed to the address in this section 14. for the party to whom the 
notice is given, that notice is deemed to have been given on the third 
Working Day following mailing. 

14.2. The address of County for all purposes and Notices except invoicing under 
this contract shall be: 

   
 Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or her successor) 

Purchasing Agent 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 
 
 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 23 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

14.3. The address of CSCD for all purposes and Notices except invoicing under 
this contract shall be: 

   
 Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or her successor) 

Purchasing Agent 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 

With copies to (registered or certified mail is not required): 
 Honorable Judge Julie Kocurek (or her successor in office) 

Presiding District Judge, CSCD 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 
and to: 
Charles Robinson 
Director of CSCD 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 

14.4. The address of Juvenile Board for all purposes and Notices except invoicing 
under this contract shall be: 

   
 Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO (or her successor) 

Purchasing Agent 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 

With copies to (registered or certified mail is not required): 
 Honorable Judge Rhonda Hurley (or her successor in office) 

Chair, Travis County Juvenile Board 
P.O. Box 1748  
Austin, Texas 78767-1748  

14.5 The address of the Contractor for all purposes under this contract and for all 
notices hereunder is: 

 
 Atchley & Associates, LLP 

6850 Austin Center Blvd, Suite 180 
Austin, Texas 78731  

14.6 Change of Address.  Each party may change its address for notice by giving 
Notice of the new address. Each party shall give Notice to each other party 
of any change in its address, including a change in the person to whom 
attention is directed, within fifteen (15) Days of the change. 

 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 24 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

15. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

15.1. Definitions for Forfeiture Of Contract.   In section 15.3 and Attachment F,  

15.1.1. “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean: 

15.1.1.1. Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or 
other valuable thing with a value of more than $250 per 
calendar year in the aggregate in exchange for personal 
services or for purchase or use of any property or property 
 interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; 
or 

15.1.1.2. Loaning or receiving a loan of money or goods or 
otherwise creating or having in existence any legal 
obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the 
aggregate in a calendar year; 

15.1.1.3. but do not include: 

15.1.1.3.1. any retail transaction for goods or 
services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a 
posted, published, or marked price available 
to the general public, 

15.1.1.3.2. any financial services product sold to a 
Key Contracting Person for personal, family, 
or household purposes in accordance with 
pricing guidelines applicable to similarly 
situated individuals with similar risks as 
determined by Contractor in the ordinary 
course of its business; and 

15.1.1.3.3. if Contractor is a national or multinational 
corporation, any transaction for a financial 
service or insurance coverage made on behalf 
of Contractor by its agent, employee, or other 
representative who does not know and is not 
in a position that he or she should have known 
about the Contract. 

15.1.2. “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in 
Exhibit A to the Ethics Affidavit attached to this Contract and marked 
Attachment F.  

15.2. Forfeiture of Contract.  Contractor shall forfeit all benefits of this Contract 
and Contracting Entity retains all performance by Contractor and recovers 
all considerations, or the value of all consideration, paid to Contractor 
pursuant to this Contract if Contractor: 

15.2.1. was doing business when Contractor submitted its proposal, 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 25 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

15.2.2. had done business with a Key Contracting Person during the year 
immediately before to the date on which its proposal was due; or.  

15.2.3. does business with a Key Contracting Person after submitting its 
proposal and before full performance of this  Contract. 

15.3. If Contractor does business with any Key Contracting Person at any time 
after execution of this Contract and before full performance of it, 
Contractor shall give County notice within twenty (20) Days after 
Contractor begins doing business. 

15.4. Force Majeure.  “Force Majeure” means any cause generally recognized 
under Texas law as constituting impossible conditions. Neither party is 
financially liable to the other party for delays or failures in Contract 
performance caused by Force Majeure. These delays or failures to 
perform extend the period of performance for a period of time equal to the 
subsistence of the impossible conditions.  If Force Majeure conditions 
exist, the party affected by them shall give the other party Notice within 
five (5) Working Days after the conditions begin.  If timely Notice is 
impractical due to the Force Majeure conditions, then the party must 
provide Notice in as timely a manner as practicable.  If Notice is not 
provided timely, the party experiencing Force Majeure waives it as a 
defense. 

15.5. Entire Agreement.  This Contract contains the entire agreement between 
County and Contractor related to the subject matter of this Contract.  If 
County and Contractor made any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, 
or representations that County and Contractor have not expressly stated in 
this Contract, those prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or 
representations are of null and void.  The following attachments are hereby 
made a part of this Contract:   

15.5.1 Attachment A Specific Audit Requirements, 
15.5.2 Attachment B, Fee Rates, Payment Schedule and Invoicing 

Requirements 
15.5.3 Attachment C, Minimum Coverage for Insurance 
15.5.4 Attachment D, Proposed Audit and Staffing Plan for Travis County  
15.5.5 Attachment E, Description of Travis County Government 
15.5.6 Attachment F, Ethics Affidavit and  
15.5.7 Attachment G, Debarment Certification 
15.5.8 Attachment H, HIPAA Business Associate Agreement  

15.6. If there is a conflict between the terms of this document and the 
Attachments to it, section 6 of Attachment A overrides all other statements 
that relate to required completion dates.  In relation to all matters unrelated 
to required completion dates: 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 26 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

 15.6.1  The terms of this document override all Attachments and 
 15.6.2  Attachments  A, B, and C override Attachment D.   

15.7. Authority 

15.7.1. The Purchasing Agent acts County’s overall contract administrator. 
The Purchasing Agent may designate representatives to transmit 
instructions and receive information 

15.7.2. Project Manager has been designated as County’s primary 
representative on the project and acts on behalf of County with 
respect to Services. Project Manager has the authority to interpret 
and define County policies and decisions regarding Services. 

15.7.3. Project Manager may designate representatives to transmit 
instructions and receive information. Project Manager reviews, 
inspects and examines Contractor’s performance of Services. 

15.8. Law and Venue.  This Contract is governed by the laws of the United 
States and the State of Texas and all obligations under this Contract are 
performable in Travis County, Texas. 

15.9. Binding Contract.  Despite any other provision in this Contract, this 
Contract is binding upon each Contracting Entity and Contractor and their 
respective successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. 

15.10. Non-Exclusivity.  As a part of this Contract, the parties understand that 
Contractor may provide services outside this Contract as it sees fit at 
those times when Contractor is not obligated to a Contracting Entity and 
there is no conflict with a Contracting Entity’s interests.  The parties also 
understand that each Contracting Entity is free to have more than one 
contractor providing the type of services included in this Contract. 

15.11. Survival.  Conditions and covenants of this Contract which by their terms 
are performable after the termination of this Contract shall survive such 
termination and remain fully performable. These provisions include at 
least sections 10.2 Contractor Indemnifications, 3.16 HIPAA Business 
Associate Agreement, 3.4 Records, and 15.1 through 15.3 Forfeiture of 
Contract. 

15.12. Interpretational Guidelines 

15.12.1. Sovereign Immunity and Affirmative Defenses.  This Contract shall 
not be interpreted to include anything that is effective as a waiver of 
sovereign immunity or any affirmative defenses available to County. 

15.12.2. Severability.  If any portion of this Contract is ruled invalid by a court 
of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Contract shall remain 
valid and binding. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 27 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

15.12.3. HIPAA Compliance.  Any ambiguity in this Contract and any conflict 
between this Contract and the Business Associate Agreement 
created in compliance with it shall be resolved to permit the 
Contracting Entity to comply with the provisions of the 45 Code of 
Federal Regulations, Part 164 which forms a portion of the 
regulations issued under the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the Health Information 
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009 (HITECH). 

15.12.4. Computation of Time.  In computing a time period under this 
Contract, exclude the first Day and include the last Day. If the last 
Day does not occur on a Working Day, the period is extended until 
the next Working Day after the last Day.  Commissioners Court 
usually designates the following Days as holidays: 

New Year's Day (January 1),  
Martin Luther King's Birthday (3rd Monday in January),  
Presidents' Day (3rd Monday in February),   
Memorial Day (fourth Monday in May),  
Independence Day (July 4),  
Labor Day (first Monday in September),  
Veterans' Day (November 11),  
Thanksgiving (last Thursday and Friday in November),  
Christmas Day plus one Day before or after to allow a 
four days weekend (December 25 plus one) 

 

15.12.5. Gender and Number.  Unless the context in the contract clearly 
requires otherwise, words of any gender are interpreted to include 
the other two genders and words in singular and plural are 
interpreted to include the other. 

15.12.6. Headings.  Headings and titles throughout this Contract are included 
only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that 
section or subsection and are not to be used in interpreting this 
contract. 

15.13. Exemption from County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to Section 262.024 of 
the Texas Local Government Code, the Commissioners Court hereby 
orders this Contract exempt from the requirements established by Section 
262.023 of the Texas Local Government Code because it is a contract for 
the purchase of personal or professional services. 

15.14. Duplicate Originals. This Contract will be executed in duplicate originals 
and be effective when executed by both parties. 

 
 
 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract  Page 28 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 29 of 96 

16. SIGNATURES 

16.1. Those signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, or representing him 
or her or themse~es as signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, 
warrant and guarantee that he, she or they have been duly authorized by 
Contractor to sign this Contract on behalf of Contractor and to bind 
Contractor validly and legally to all terms, performances, and provisions in 

·this Contract. 

ATCHLEY &ASSOCIATES, LLP 

By: 
Its Duly Authorized Signatory 

Date: 

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY 
SUPERVISION AND CORRECTIONS 
DEPARTMENT (CSCD) 

By: 

Date: 

Charles Robinson 
Director, Travis County 
Community Supervision and 
Corrections Department 

----------------------

PURCHASING ACT COMPLIANCE: 

County Purchasing Agent 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

County Attorney 

TRAVIS COUNTY 

By: 

Date: 

Samuel T. Biscoe 
Travis County Judge 

TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE BOARD 
for TRAVIS COUNTY 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT 

By: 

Date: 

Rhonda Hurley 
District Judge 
Travis County Juvenile Board 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS CONFIRMED: 

County Auditor 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

Attachment A 
Specific Audit Requirements 

 

1. PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES 

The TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS desires the Contractor to express an opinion on the 
fair presentation of its basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP.     

As required under the Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256, Public Funds 
Investment Act, Travis County Commissioners Court also desires the Contractor, in 
conjunction with the annual financial audit, to perform a compliance audit of 
management controls on investments and adherence to Travis County’s established 
investment policies.   

The Travis County Commissioners Court also desires the Contractor to express an 
opinion on the fair presentation, in all material respects, of the financial position of the 
governmental activities, of each major fund and aggregate remaining fund information of 
the County and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund in 
conformity with GAAP.  The Contractor is also required to express an opinion on the fair 
presentation, in all material respects, on the combining and individual fund financial 
statements and budgetary comparison schedules that are used to prepare the basic 
financial statements.  The Contractor is not required to audit the introductory section and 
the statistical data which are also presented for the purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the County.  The Contractor 
will apply limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the 
budgetary comparison information, which consist principally of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary 
information.  This information is not required to be audited, and an opinion is not required 
on this information.   

The Contractor is not required to audit the schedule of expenditures of federal and state 
awards. However, the Contractor is required to audit the compliance of Travis County with 
types of compliance procedures required in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget 
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of the County’s 
Federal and State programs and to express an opinion on County’s compliance. 

The TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE BOARD (“Juvenile Board”) desires the Contractor to 
express an opinion on the fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with 
a comprehensive basis of accounting consistent with the accounting practices and audit 
requirements established annually by the Texas Juvenile Justice Department. 

The TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY SUPERVISION AND CORRECTIONS DEPARTMENT (“CSCD”) 
desires the Contractor to express an opinion on the fair presentation of the combined 
balance sheet and related statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund 
balances of the supervision, diversion, community corrections and TAIP programs in 
conformity with standards established by the Texas Department of Criminal Justice as 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 30 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

set forth in its “Financial Management Manual for CJAD Funding”.  The Contractor will 
perform tests of the CSCD programs to ensure compliance with the Texas Department 
of Criminal Justice - Community Justice Assistance Division’s “Independent Audit 
Guidelines, Compliance Requirements and Standard Reporting Formats” applicable for 
the fiscal year under audit. 

2. AUDITING STANDARDS TO BE FOLLOWED  
To meet the requirements of this Contract, the audit and the required reports must be 
performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller of the United States, the provisions of 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, the State of Texas Uniform Grant 
Management Standards (“UGMS”) issued by the Governor’s Office of Planning and 
Budget, the State of Texas Single Audit Circular, the independent audit guidelines issued 
by Texas Juvenile Justice Department and Texas Department of Criminal Justice – 
Community Justice Assistance Divisions (TDCJ-CJAD), and any other standards or 
requirements established during the term of the contract by any of these organizations 
that relate to the funds being audited under the contract.  These audits are requested 
pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 115.045 and other applicable State 
and Federal Laws. 

3. REPORTS TO BE ISSUED 

TRAVIS COUNTY ANNUAL AUDIT 
Following the completion of the audit of the fiscal year’s financial statements, the 
Contractor shall issue all reports that are required by the County for compliance with 
law, professional accounting standards, or the funding contracts related to the funds 
being audited that are in effect for the fiscal year being audited, which include the 
following for fiscal year ended September 30, 2014 and may change in subsequent 
fiscal years audited under the contract: 

1. A report to express an opinion on the fair presentation of the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the County, and the respective changes in financial position and, 
where applicable, cash flows thereof in accordance with GAAP. 

2. A report to express an opinion on whether the supplementary information that 
accompanies the basic financial statements, including the schedule of expenditures 
of federal and state awards, are presented fairly, in all material respects, in relation 
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

3. A report on the internal control over financial reporting and compliance with 
applicable laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters based 
on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards.  The firm 
will report results to the Travis County Commissioners Court and to the District 
Judges upon the completion of the assessment. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 31 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

4. A report on the management controls on investments and adherence to Travis 
County’s established investment policies (even though a separate report is not 
required under the Public Funds Investment Act), 

5. A report on the internal controls used in administering federal and state awards, and 
compliance with the requirements of the laws and regulations applicable to major 
federal and state awards 

6. A report on the County’s compliance with requirements applicable to each major 
program and on internal control over compliance in accordance with U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement . 

In the required report(s) on internal controls, the Contractor is required to communicate 
any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses found during the audit.  A control 
deficiency that is considered a significant deficiency or material weakness shall be 
defined as a significant deficiency in the design or operation of the internal controls 
found during the audit, which could adversely affect the organization’s ability to record, 
process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of 
management in the financial statements. 

Those control deficiencies that are not significant or material weaknesses discovered by 
the Contractor are required to be reported in a separate letter to management, which 
will be referred to in the report(s) on internal controls.  The reports on compliance are 
required to include all instances of noncompliance that must be reported to be in 
compliance with the law, professional standards and the funding contract requirements.  
The Contractor shall describe its method and extent of research and review to reach its 
findings about control deficiencies. 

Fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements or abuse.  
The Contractor is required to make an immediate, written report of any material errors 
and any known or likely fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements of which they become aware to Travis County Commissioners Court and to 
the District Judges. 

Reporting to the Commissioners Court and District Judges.  The Contractor will assure 
themselves that the Travis County Commissioners Court and the District Judges are 
informed of each of the following: 

1. The responsibility of the Contractor under auditing standards generally accepted 
in the U.S. and government auditing standards issued by the comptroller general 
of the U.S. 

2. Management judgments and accounting estimates 
3. Audit adjustments and uncorrected misstatements 
4. Significant accounting policies 
5. Critical accounting policies and practices 
6. Alternative accounting treatments 
7. Other information in the Basic Financial Statements 
8. Disagreements with management 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 32 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

9. Management consultation with other accountants 
10. Major issues discussed with management prior to retention 
11. Significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit 
12. Other material written communications 
13. Control-related matters 

  
JUVENILE BOARD AUDIT 
Following the completion of the audit of the fiscal year’s financial statements, the 
Contractor shall issue all reports that are required by Juvenile Board for compliance 
with law, professional accounting standards, or the funding contracts related to the 
funds being audited that are in effect for the fiscal year being audited, which include the 
following for fiscal year ended August 31, 2014 which may change in subsequent fiscal 
years audited under the contract: 
1. A report on the fair presentation of the financial statements in compliance with 

requirements under the state aid agreement with the Texas Juvenile Justice 
Department, 

2. A report on internal control over financial reporting and compliance with laws, 
regulations and provisions of contracts or grant agreements – and other matters 
based upon an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with 
government auditing standards, 

3. A schedule of findings and questioned costs, 
4. A report of deficiencies in internal control, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions 

of contracts or grant agreements, and abuse. 

In the required report(s) on internal controls, the Contractor is required to communicate 
any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses found during the audit.  A control 
deficiency that is considered a significant deficiency or material weakness shall be 
defined as a significant deficiency in the design or operation of the internal control 
structure found during the audit, which could adversely affect the organization’s ability 
to record, process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions 
of management in the financial statements. 

Those control deficiencies that are not significant or material weaknesses discovered by 
the Contractor are required to be reported in a separate letter to management, which 
will be referred to in the report(s) on internal controls.  The reports on compliance are 
required to include all instances of noncompliance that must be reported to be in 
compliance with the law, professional standards and the funding contract requirements.  
The Contractor shall describe its method and extent of research and review to reach its 
findings about control deficiencies. 

Fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements or abuse.  
The Contractor is required to make an immediate, written report of any material errors 
and any known or likely fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements of which they become aware to the Juvenile Board.   

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 33 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

Reporting to the Juvenile Board. The Contractor will assure themselves that the 
Juvenile     Board are informed of: 

1. The responsibility of the Contractor under auditing standards generally accepted 
in the U.S. and government auditing standards issued by the comptroller general 
of the U.S. 

2. Management judgments and accounting estimates 
3. Audit adjustments and uncorrected misstatements 
4. Significant accounting policies 
5. Critical accounting policies and practices 
6. Alternative accounting treatments 
7. Other information in the Combined Financial Statements 
8. Disagreements with management 
9. Management consultation with other accountants 
10. Major issues discussed with management prior to retention 
11. Significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit 
12. Other material written communications 
13. Control-related matters 

COMMUNITY SUPERVISION AND CORRECTIONS DEPARTMENT AUDIT 
Following the completion of the audit of the fiscal year’s financial statements, the 
Contractor shall issue all reports that are required by CSCD for compliance with law, 
professional accounting standards, or the funding contracts related to the funds being 
audited that are in effect for the fiscal year being audited, which include the following for 
fiscal year ended August 31, 2014 and may change in subsequent fiscal years audited 
under the contract: 

1. A report on the fair presentation of the financial statements in compliance with 
requirements under grant agreements with the Texas Department of Criminal 
Justice - Community Justice Assistance Division, 

2. A report on internal control over financial reporting and compliance with laws, 
regulations and provisions of contracts or grant agreements – and other matters 
based upon an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with 
government auditing standards, 

3. A schedule of findings and questioned costs, 
4. A report of deficiencies in internal control, fraud, illegal acts, violations of 

provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and abuse. 

In the required report(s) on internal controls, the Contractor is required to communicate 
any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses found during the audit.  A control 
deficiency that is considered a significant deficiency or material weakness shall be 
defined as a significant deficiency in the design or operation of the internal controls 
found during the audit, which could adversely affect the organization’s ability to record, 
process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of 
management in the financial statements. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 34 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

Those control deficiencies that are not significant or material weaknesses discovered by 
the Contractor are required to be reported in a separate letter to management, which 
will be referred to in the report(s) on internal controls.  The reports on compliance are 
required to include all instances of noncompliance that must be reported to be in 
compliance with the law, professional standards and the funding contract requirements.  
The Contractor shall describe its method and extent of research and review to reach its 
findings about control deficiencies. 

Fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements or abuse.  
The Contractor is required to make an immediate, written report of any material errors 
and any known or likely fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements of which they become aware to the Travis County District Judges and the 
Community Supervision and Corrections Department. 

Reporting to District Judges and CSCD.  The Contractor will assure itself that the Travis 
County Community Supervision and Corrections Department and District Judges are 
informed of each of the following:  

1. The responsibility of the Contractor under auditing standards generally accepted 
in the U.S. and government auditing standards issued by the comptroller general 
of the U.S. 

2. Management judgments and accounting estimates 
3. Audit adjustments and uncorrected misstatements 
4. Significant accounting policies 
5. Critical accounting policies and practices 
6. Alternative accounting treatments 
7. Other information in the Combined Financial Statements 
8. Disagreements with management 
9. Management consultation with other accountants 
10. Major issues discussed with management prior to retention 
11. Significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit 
12. Other material written communications 
13. Control-related matters 

4. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS  
 
4.1  Official Statements 
Travis County currently anticipates it will prepare one or more official statements in 
connection with the sale of debt securities which will contain the basic financial 
statements and the report of the Contractor on these statements.  The Contractor is 
required, if requested by the fiscal advisor or the underwriter, to issue a letter of 
“agreement for inclusion" as the auditor and any necessary “comfort letters”. 

The County has no contractual or statutory obligation to provide notice or obtain the 
consent of the Contractor when County financial statements, which include the report of 
the Contractor on the audited sections of the financial statements, are referenced or 
otherwise reproduced.  The County will make reasonable efforts to provide a draft copy to 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 35 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

the Contractor of any Offering Statement which references the report of the Contractor or 
an audited financial statement, or in which material changes have been identified that 
would reasonably affect the report of the Contractor even if the report is not directly 
referenced.  
 
The County is subject to the Texas Public Information Act, as well as other regulations 
and statutes which set standards for use and accessibility of taxpayer purchased 
property, services, and information.  As such, the County will make no agreement that 
might limit public access, limit the public purpose for which the services were procured, or 
that might contravene state or federal law. 
 
Travis County acknowledges that the dissemination of its financial statements, in part or 
in full, does not constitute an agreement by the Contractor to be associated with or to 
constitute approval of the dissemination.   

4.2  The schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards and related auditor’s 
report, as well as the reports on the internal control over reporting and compliance with 
laws, regulations and provisions of contracts or grant agreements and other matters are 
not to be included in the comprehensive annual financial report, but are to be issued 
separately.   

4.3  The report to the Juvenile Board and the Texas Juvenile Justice Department 
should be issued separately.   

4.4  The report to CSCD and the Texas Department of Criminal Justice should be 
issued separately.  

5. WORKING PAPER RETENTION & ACCESS TO WORKING PAPERS  
All working papers and reports must be retained, at the expense of the Contractor, for a 
minimum of three (3) years, unless the Contractor is notified in writing by the 
Contracting Entity of the need to extend the retention period.  The Contractor will be 
required to make working papers available, upon written request, to the following parties 
or their designees: 

• The Contracting Entity 
• U.S. Government Accountability Office (GAO) 
• Parties designated by the federal or state governments or by the Contracting 

Entity as part of an audit quality review process. 
• Auditors of entities of which the Contracting Entity is a subrecipient of grant 

funds 
• Auditors of entities of which Contracting Entity is a recipient of grant funds 

 
In addition, the Contractor is required to respond to the reasonable inquiries of 
successor auditors and allow successor auditors to review working papers relating to 
matters of continuing accounting significance, to the extent required by appropriate 
professional standards. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 36 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

6. IMPLEMENTATION 

             6.1 PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AUDIT 

The Contractor will initiate an invitation to the appropriate official(s) for each of the 
conferences listed below.  Schedule for the 2014 Fiscal Year Audit (a similar schedule 
will be developed for audits of future fiscal years if Travis County exercises its option for 
additional audits): 

Interim Work - The Contractor is required to complete all interim work by 
September 30, 2014. 
Detailed Audit Plan - The Contractor is required to provide Travis County, by 
September 30, 2014, both a detailed audit plan and a list of all schedules to 
be prepared by Travis County.  For those schedules to be prepared by the 
County for interim work, the Contractor is required to provide the list by August 
8, 2014. 
Field Work - The Contractor is required to complete all fieldwork by February 
13, 2015.  Final fieldwork can commence no earlier than January 5, 2015. 
Draft Reports - The Contractor is required to provide drafts of Report to 
Management to the County Auditor by February 20, 2015. 
Entrance Conferences - at a minimum, the following conferences should be 
held by the dates indicated on the schedule: 
• Entrance conference with the Travis County Commissioners Court (or its 

voted designees) as scheduled by the Commissioners Court.  The 
purpose of the meeting will be to discuss the independent auditor’s 
responsibilities (as stated in Government Auditing Standards Chapter 
4.05-4.08) in performing this contract, including their responsibilities for 
testing and reporting on internal controls and compliance with laws and 
regulations. 

• Entrance conference with the County Auditor by August 8, 2014 for 
preliminary field work and on January 2, 2015 for commencement of 
year-end audit work. 

• Entrance conference with all key County Auditor’s Office personnel by 
August 15, 2014.  The purpose of this meeting will be to discuss prior 
audit problems and the interim work to be performed.  This meeting will 
also be used to establish overall liaison for the audit and to make 
arrangements for work space and other needs of the Contractor. 

• Entrance conference with the Travis County District Judges (or its voted 
designees) if requested by the District Judges. 

Progress Conferences - at a minimum, the following conferences should be 
held by the dates indicated on the schedule: 
• Progress conference with the County Auditor by November 30, 2014.  

The purpose of this meeting will be to summarize the results of the 
preliminary review and to identify the key internal controls or other 
matters to be tested. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 37 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

• Progress conference with the Travis County Commissioners Court (or its 
voted designees) as scheduled by the Commissioners Court. 

• Progress conference with the Travis County District Judges (or its voted 
designees) if requested by the District Judges. 

• Progress conference with the County Auditor and key Auditor’s Office 
personnel no later than January 16, 2015.  The purpose of this meeting 
will be to discuss the year-end audit work. 

Exit Conference   
• Exit conference with the Travis County Commissioners Court (or its voted 

designees) as scheduled by the Commissioners Court and with the 
District Judges (or its voted designees) if requested by the District 
Judges.  The purpose of these meetings will be to discuss significant 
audit findings, deficiencies in internal controls, and other significant 
issues discussed with management. 

• Exit conference with the County Auditor no later than February 13, 2015. 
 The purpose of this meeting will be to summarize the results of the field 
work and to review significant findings. 

Final Report - The County Auditor will prepare draft financial statements, 
notes and all required supplementary schedules (and statistical data) by 
January 5, 2015. The Contractor is required to provide all recommendations, 
revisions and suggestions for improvement for the draft financial statements to 
the County Auditor by January 30, 2015.  A revised report, including a draft 
auditor’s report is required to be delivered to the County Auditor by February 
27, 2015.  The County Auditor will discuss the report at a posted meeting of 
Commissioners Court.  The Contractor will provide copies of its final audit 
report, management letter (including County’s responses) and other reports, 
and recommendations to the County Auditor for distribution to the Travis 
County Commissioners Court and the District Judges. 

6.2 SINGLE AUDIT REPORT 
Schedule for the 2014 Fiscal Year Audit (a similar schedule will be developed for audits 
of future fiscal years if Travis County exercises its option for additional audits): 

Interim Work - The Contractor is required to complete all interim work by 
September 30, 2014. 

Detailed Audit Plan - The Contractor is required to provide Travis County, by 
September 30, 2014, both a detailed audit plan and a list of all schedules to 
be prepared by Travis County.  For those schedules to be prepared by the 
County for interim work, the Contractor is required to provide the list by August 
8, 2014. 

Field Work - The Contractor is required to complete all fieldwork by February 
13, 2015.  Final fieldwork can commence no earlier than January 5, 2015. 
 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 38 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

Draft Reports - The Contractor is required to provide draft of Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards to the County Auditor by February 
20, 2015. 
Entrance/Progress/Exit Conferences – These should be part of the 
conferences stated in Section 6.1. 
Final Report - The County Auditor will prepare draft financial statements, 
notes and all required supplementary schedules by January 5, 2015.  The 
Contractor is required to provide all recommendations, revisions and 
suggestions for improvement for the draft financial statements to the County 
Auditor by January 30, 2015. 

6.3 JUVENILE BOARD 
Interim Work - The Contractor is required to complete all interim work by 
September 30, 2014. 

Detailed Audit Plan - The Contractor is required to provide Travis County, by 
September 30, 2014, both a detailed audit plan and a list of all schedules to 
be prepared by the County.  For those schedules to be prepared by the 
County for interim work, the Contractor is required to provide the list by August 
8, 2014. 

Field Work - The Contractor is required to complete all fieldwork by February 
13, 2015.  Final fieldwork can commence no earlier than January 5, 2015. 

Entrance/Progress/Exit Conferences - Conferences with the Travis County 
Juvenile Board (or designee) if requested by the Juvenile Board. 
Final Report - The report should be delivered to the Juvenile Board by 
February 20, 2015. 

6.4 COMMUNITY SUPERVISION & CORRECTIONS 
DEPARTMENT (CSCD) 

Interim Work - The Contractor is required to complete all interim work by 
September 30, 2014. 
Detailed Audit Plan - The Contractor is required to provide Travis County, by 
September 30, 2014, both a detailed audit plan and a list of all schedules to 
be prepared by the County.  For those schedules to be prepared by the 
County for interim work, the Contractor is required to provide the list by August 
8, 2014. 
Field Work - The Contractor is required to complete all fieldwork by February 
13, 2015.  Final fieldwork can commence no earlier than January 5, 2015. 
Entrance/Progress/Exit Conferences - Conferences with the Travis County 
Community Supervision and Corrections Department (or its designee) if 
requested by the Community Supervision and Corrections Department. 
Final Report - The report should be delivered to the Community Supervision 
and Corrections Department by February 27, 2015. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 39 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

7. ASSISTANCE TO BE PROVIDED TO THE AUDITOR & REPORT 
PREPARATION 

7.1 Auditor’s Office and Clerical Assistance 
The County Auditor’s staff and responsible management personnel will be available 
during the audit to assist the Contractor by providing information, documentation and 
explanations.  Contractor shall detail its approach to using the staff of the County 
Auditor’s Office, describe the work it expects the County Auditor’s Office Revenue & 
Internal Controls Auditing division to perform, and list workpapers, schedules, and other 
reasonable preparations that the Contractor will require of the County Auditor’s staff for 
the primary government, CSCD, and Juvenile Probation. 

7.2 Work Area, Telephones, Internet, Photocopying and Fax Machines 
Travis County will provide the Contractor with reasonable work space, desks and 
chairs.  The Contractor will also be provided with access to telephone lines for local 
calls, internet, photocopying facilities and Fax machines. 

7.3 Report Preparation 

Preparation, editing and printing of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report will be 
done by the County Auditor’s Office.  Reproduction of the report will be done by the 
Travis County Administrative Operations - Printing Section.  Printing of the single audit 
report, CSCD report, and Juvenile Probation report will be done by Contractor.  The 
Contractor must also provide the reports in pdf format. 

8. REPRESENTATION FROM MANAGEMENT 

At the conclusion of the engagement, the Travis County Commissioners Court and 
County Auditor will provide to the Contractor with a representation letter that, among other 
things, will confirm management’s responsibility for the preparation of the financial 
statements in conformity with GAAP; the availability of financial records and related data; 
disclosure of related-party transactions; disclosure of unrecorded transactions; all material 
liabilities or loss contingencies have been accrued or disclosed as required by GASB; the 
completeness and availability of all minutes of the governing body meetings; 
management’s responsibility for the entity’s compliance with laws and regulations; the 
identification and disclosure to the Contractor of all laws and regulations that have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts and, to the best 
of their knowledge and belief, the absence of irregularities involving management or those 
employees who have significant roles in internal controls. Additionally, representations will 
be requested as to the financial reporting entity’s financial statements to be audited; the 
inclusion of all component units; the proper classification of funds; the proper approval of 
reserves or designations of fund balances; compliance with laws and regulations, 
including budget laws or ordinances; and identification of all federal and state awards, 
and compliance with all related legal, regulatory, contractual and grant requirements. 

Community Supervision and Corrections Department’s management, in addition to the 
above, will provide to the Contractor in their representation letter a confirmation of 
management’s responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements in conformity 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 40 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

with CJAD’s accounting standards.  The Contractor must comply with the "Independent 
Audit Guidelines, Compliance Requirements and Standard Reporting Formats" that CJAD 
publishes for each fiscal year that corresponds to the fiscal year in which an audit is to be 
competed under the terms of this agreement.  These requirements may differ from year 
to year as determined by CJAD.   The Contractor shall provide a draft copy of the audit 
report to CSCD at least thirty (30) working days before the deadline for submission of the 
audit report set by the TDCJ-CJAD. 

The Juvenile Board’s management, in addition to the above, will provide to the 
Contractor in their representation letter a confirmation of management’s responsibility 
for the preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Juvenile Justice 
Department’s accounting standards.  The Contractor must comply with the "Texas 
Juvenile Justice Department Audit Requirements" that TJJD publishes for each fiscal year 
that corresponds to the fiscal year in which an audit is to be competed under the terms of 
this agreement.  These requirements may differ from year to year as determined by TJJD. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 41 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

ATTACHMENT B 

FEE RATES, PAYMENT SCHEDULE AND INVOICING REQUIREMENTS 
 

1.0 FEE RATES AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

1.1 Expense Reimbursement.  For all Contracting Entities and related to all 
Services, Out-of-pocket expenses for items like long distance telephone, 
facsimile, photocopies, and supplies are reimbursed at the cost of the 
expenses or the rates of reimbursement used by the Contracting Entity, 
whichever is lower. 

1.2 Travis County. In consideration of full performance of Annual Audit 
Services for Travis County, Travis County shall pay Contractor the 
following total dollar amount for fees and reimburse Contractor in an 
amount not to exceed the following amount for Expenses for the audit of 
the fiscal year ending September 30 of that year 

 
 Fiscal Year  Fee  Expenses 
 2014  $ 190,280  $ 1,000 
 2015  $ 198,660  $ 1,000 
 2016  $ 208,840  $ 1,100 
 2017  $ 218,170  $ 1,100 
 2018  $ 227,520  $ 1,200 

1.3 Major Funds.   If there are more than eight Major Funds for any Fiscal 
Year ending during this Contract, County will notify Contractor and County 
shall pay an additional fee for each Major Fund in excess of eight. The 
amount payable for the additional Major Funds must be stated in an 
amendment to this Contract that is approved by Commissioners Court 
before work is commenced.  The additional fee for each additional Major 
Fund is the amount shown below for the audit of the Fiscal Year ending 
that September 30: 

 
 Fiscal Year  Additional Fee 
 2014  $ 3,025 
 2015  $ 3,125 
 2016  $ 3,235 
 2017  $ 3,350 
 2018  $ 3,475 

 
 
 
 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 42 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

1.3 Major Grant Programs.  If there are more than twelve Major Grant 
Programs, Contractor shall identify additional Major Grant Programs for 
which additional fees are payable.  In any fiscal year if County has more 
than twelve Major Grant Programs, County shall pay an additional fee for 
each Major Grant Program in excess of twelve. County will notify 
Contractor if there are more than twelve Major Grant Programs and the 
amount payable for the additional Major Grant Programs must be stated in 
an amendment to this Contract that is approved by Commissioners Court. 
The additional fee for each additional Major Grant Program is the amount 
shown below for the audit of the fiscal year ending that September 30:  

 
 Fiscal Year  Additional Fee 
 2014  $ 4,450 
 2015  $ 4,600 
 2016  $ 4,750 
 2017  $ 4,925 
 2018  $ 5,075 

1.5 Reissue—Additional Services.  If County requests Contractor to reissue its 
reports, to consent to their inclusion or incorporation by reference in an 
offering or other document, Contractor may request an additional fee if 
Additional Services would need to be performed in connection with the 
request. Contractor shall not be compensated for the additional work 
unless the work and total compensation applicable to it is set forth in a 
written modification of this contract approved by the Commissioners Court 
and signed by Contractor before additional work is commenced. Any 
additional work agreed to between County and Contractor is required to 
be performed at the rates in the schedule of fees in 2.10. 

1.6 Travis County Juvenile Board.  In consideration of full performance of 
Annual Audit Services for Travis County Juvenile Board, Travis County 
Juvenile Board shall pay Contractor the following total dollar amount for 
fees and reimburse Contractor in an amount not to exceed the following 
amount for Expenses for the audit of the fiscal year ending September 30 
of that year. 

 
 Fiscal Year  Fee  Expenses 
 2014  $ 18,000  $ 500 
 2015  $ 18,710  $ 500 
 2016  $ 19,720  $ 525 
 2017  $ 20,510  $ 525 
 2018  $ 21,360  $ 550 

 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 43 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

1.7 Travis County Community Supervision and Corrections Department. In 
consideration of full performance of Annual Audit Services for Travis 
County Community Supervision and Corrections Department, Travis 
County Community Supervision and Corrections Department shall pay 
Contractor the following total dollar amount for fees and reimburse 
Contractor in an amount not to exceed the following amount for Expenses 
for the audit of the fiscal year ending September 30 of that year. 

 
 Fiscal Year  Fee  Expenses 
 2014  $ 25,680  $ 500 
 2015  $ 26,760  $ 500 
 2016  $ 28,140  $ 525 
 2017  $ 29,360  $ 525 
 2018  $ 30,560  $ 550 

1.8 Changed Circumstances Requiring Additional Services.  Contracting 
Entities acknowledge that the Contracting Entities’ operations may change 
from time to time.  The fees in Attachment B do not include additional 
review of controls and testing that may result from these changes or 
contingencies.  If Contractor is required to perform additional procedures 
due to operational changes or these contingencies, either at the request 
of any Contracting Entity or to fulfill the original scope of the contract, 
Contractor shall not be compensated for the additional work unless the 
work and total compensation applicable to it is stated in a written 
modification of this contract approved by the Commissioners Court or 
CSCD, or Juvenile Board, whichever is applicable, and signed by 
Contractor before additional work is commenced.  Any additional work 
agreed to between Contracting Entity and Contractor is required to be 
performed at the rates in the schedule of fees in Attachment B, section 
1.10. 

 
 
 

1.9 Requested Additional Services. If Contracting Entity requests that 
Contractor render any Additional Services, Contractor shall not be 
compensated for the Additional Services unless the work and total 
compensation applicable to it is set forth in a written modification to this 
contract approved by the Commissioners Court or CSCD, or Juvenile 
Board, whichever is applicable and signed by Contractor before additional 
work is commenced.  Any Additional Services agreed to between 
Contracting Entity and Contractor must be performed at the rates in the 
schedule of fees in this paragraph.  In consideration of full performance of 
the Additional Services, Contracting Entity shall pay Contractor fees at the 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 44 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

following hourly rates for work done in relation to following fiscal years by 
staff at the following staffing levels: 

 
 Fiscal Year

 ⇒ 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

 ⇓   Staffing Level      
 Partner $300 $300 $325 $325 $340 
 Manager $185 $195 $205 $215 $225 
 Senior Staff $140 $147 $154 $162 $170 
 Staff $110 $115 $120 $126 $130 

2.0 INVOICING AND PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS 

2.1 Invoicing Partial Payment for Field Work.  For field work, within 30 days 
after completion, and for issuance of reports, within 30 days after 
completion and acceptance of all reports for the fiscal year, Contractor 
shall invoice each Contracting Entity separately for Annual Audit Services 
at the amount resulting from multiplying the total fee for the applicable 
fiscal year by the percentage applicable to the level of service completed. 

 
 Fiscal Year ⇒ 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
 ⇓ Contracting 

Entity 
     

 County $190,280 $ 198,660 $ 208,840 $ 218,170 $  227,520 
 CSCD $  25,680 $   26,760 $   28,140 $   29,360 $   30,560 
 Juvenile Board $  18,000 $   18,710 $   19,720 $   20,510 $   21,360 

 
Level of Service Completed  Applicable Percentage Rate 

 Interim Field Work   up to 20% based on audit progress 
 End of Final Field Work  60% (or up to 80% of contract fee) 
 Issuance of All Reports due  20% 

2.2 Invoicing Major Funds and Programs.  For additional Major Funds and 
additional Major Grant Programs incurred as a result of Annual Audit 
Services, Contractor shall invoice each Contracting Entity separately as 
part of the invoices for Annual Audit Services.  

2.3 Invoicing  Expenses.  For reimbursement of any Expenses incurred as a 
result of Annual Audit Services, Contractor shall invoice each Contracting 
Entity separately as part of the invoices for Annual Audit Services.  

 
 
 
 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 45 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

2.4 General Contents of Invoice.  All invoices shall include at least the 
following information:   
2.4.1 Name, address, and telephone number of Contractor and similar 

information if payment is to be made to a different address,  
2.4.2 Contracting Entity Contract Number and Purchase Order Number 

assigned by the County Purchasing Office,  
2.4.3 identification of Expenses or Services,  
2.4.4 quantity or portion of fee of each; unit prices, if applicable; total price 

per item, and total amount of invoice, and  
2.4.5 any additional payment information which may be called for by the 

contract. 

2.5 Contents of Invoice: Additional Services.  In addition, invoices for 
Additional Services, if payable on an hourly basis, shall include at least 
the following information: 
2.5.1 the name and payment category of the person performing the 

Services,  
2.5.2 the number of hours worked,  
2.5.3 the applicable hourly rate,  
2.5.4 the total for each person and  
2.5.5 the total amount due on that invoice. 

2.6 Contents of Invoice: Expenses.  In addition, invoices for reimbursement of 
expenses shall also include at least the following: 
2.6.1 A detailed description of the expenses to be reimbursed,  
2.6.2 the cost of the expense for each item to be reimbursed,  
2.6.3 the total amount of reimbursement due on that invoice. 

2.7   Contents of Invoice: Expenses re: Additional Services.  For 
reimbursement of any expenses incurred as a result of Additional 
Services, invoices shall include at least the following in addition to the 
information in 2.6:  

2.7.1 the name of the person incurring the expense,  
2.7.2 the reason for the expense,  
2.7.3 the total for each person and 
2.7.4 receipts or supporting documentation for all expenses to be 

reimbursed if County requests them. 
 
 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 46 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

2.8   Address for Invoices.   Contractor shall submit invoices for Services to 
the following address: 

 

Travis County Auditor  
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

2.9   Copies of Invoices.  Contractor shall also provide a copy of the invoice to 
the Travis County Judge for the County at the following address: 

 
Samuel T. Biscoe, or his successor in office 
County Judge  
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 

Contractor shall also provide a copy of the invoice to the Director of 
CSCD for the CSCD audits.  Contractor shall also provide a copy of the 
invoice to the Chairman of the Juvenile Board for the Juvenile audits.  All 
of these officials are at the address in the primary contract document 
Section 14. 

2.10    Payment of Invoices.  Contracting Entity shall pay accurate invoices upon 
satisfactory delivery and acceptance of Services and submission of an 
accurate invoice in compliance with this Attachment. 

2.11     Late Payment Procedures.  Contracting Entity must pay Contractor these 
amounts, in compliance with the Texas Prompt Payment Act and any 
accurate invoice that is not paid within thirty (30) days of receipt bears 
interest in compliance with the Prompt Payment Act. TEX. GOV'T CODE 
ANN., ch. 2251.  Invoices must include all information required in 
Attachment B section 2.1 through 2.7, as applicable, and be mailed to 
the address in Attachment B section 2.8.  For compliance with the 
Prompt Payment Act, time does not begin unless or until all invoicing 
instructions in Attachment B section 2.1 through 2.7, as applicable have 
been complied with or proper delivery or performance has been made 
satisfactorily, whichever is later.  

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 47 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

ATTACHMENT C 
 

MINIMUM COVERAGE FOR INSURANCE 

  

1.0 Minimum Coverage. Contractor shall maintain each type of insurance coverage 
described in Attachment C with liability limits at least as great as the minimum 
insurance coverage in this Attachment C and this insurance shall be applicable 
to both Contractor and any subcontractor performing work related to Services.  
Minimum insurance coverage may be written as combined single limits or 
structured using primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form 
of the primary policy.  

1.1 Workers’ compensation and employers’ liability insurance that meets the 
following minimum requirements: 

1.1.1 Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the 
Texas Workers’ Compensation Act. 

1.1.2 Employers’ liability with minimum coverage limits as follows: 

1.1.2.1 $500,000 bodily injury each accident, 

1.1.2.2 $500,000 bodily injury by disease, and 

1.1.2.3 $500,000 aggregate policy limit. 

1.1.3 These policies shall be subject to the laws of Texas and include the 
following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

1.1.3.1 Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304), and 

1.1.3.2 Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601). 

1.2 Commercial general liability insurance that meets the following minimum 
requirements: 

1.2.1 Minimum limits for coverage: 

1.2.1.1 $500,000 per occurrence for coverage A for Bodily Injury 
and Property Damage,   

1.2.1.2 $500,000 per occurrence for coverage B Personal Injury 
and Advertisement, and  

1.2.1.3 $1,000,000 aggregate policy limit. 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 48 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

1.2.2 The Policy shall be subject to the laws of Texas and include the 
following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

1.2.2.1 Blanket contractual liability for this Contract, 

1.2.2.2 Independent Contractor Coverage, 

1.2.2.3 Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404), 

1.2.2.4 Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205), 
and 

1.2.2.5 Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 
2010). 

1.3 Business automobile liability insurance that meets the following minimum 
requirements: 

1.3.1 If Contractor provides any form of transportation for county 
personnel or clients, minimum limits for coverage for all owned, 
non-owned, and hired vehicles shall have a combined single limit of 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. 

1.3.2 The Policy shall be subject to the laws of the State of Texas and 
include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County:  

1.3.2.1 Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A), 

1.3.2.2 Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A), 
and 

1.3.2.3 Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 
9901B). 

1.3.3 Alternative Automobile Insurance Requirement. If Contractor 
provides no transportation services of any type, and Contractor’s 
use of motor vehicles is strictly limited to travel to and from work or 
work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of 
$100,000 / $300,000 / $50,000 may be provided instead of 
Business Automobile Liability Insurance in sections 1.3.1 and 1.3.2. 

1.3.4 Any policy Contractor provides in compliance with section 1.3.3 
shall be subject to the laws of Texas and include the following 
endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

1.3.4.1 Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404), 

1.3.4.2 Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205), 
and 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 49 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
   

1.3.4.3 Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 
2010). 

1.4 Professional liability / Errors & Omissions insurance that meets the 
following minimum requirements: 

1.4.1 Minimum limit for coverage for malpractice, negligent acts, errors, 
or omissions and sexual harassment:  

1.4.1.1 $1,000,000 per claim, and 

1.4.1.2 $3,000,000 aggregate policy limit. 

1.4.2 The Policy shall be subject to the laws of Texas and include the 
following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

1.4.2.1 Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404), and 

1.4.2.2 Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205). 

1.4.2.3 Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 
2010) 

1.4.3 If this coverage is written on a claims made basis, the retroactive 
date must be prior to the earlier of the date this Contract is signed 
or its effective date and include a three (3) year extended reporting 
period from the date this Contract ends.  The Certificate of 
Insurance must state whether the coverage is claims made and, if 
so, contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended 
reporting date. 

1.4.4 Any subcontractor who is not covered under Contractor’s 
professional liability insurance shall provide Contractor with current 
certificates of insurance on the state approved form annually on the 
renewal date of their insurance policy. 

 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 50 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Attachment D 
 

Proposed Audit and Staffing Plan 
for Travis County 

Atchley & Associates, LLP 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 51 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 52 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 53 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 54 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 55 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 56 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 57 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 58 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 59 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 60 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 61 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 62 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 63 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 64 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 65 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 66 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 67 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 68 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 69 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 70 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 71 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 72 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Attachment E 
 

Description of 
Travis County Government 

 

1. FUND STRUCTURE as of September 30, 2013 
 
  

 
  

Fund Type 
Number of 

Individual Funds 
Annual Budgets 
Adopted per law 

 Major Funds   
 General Fund 1 1 
 Operating Grants Fund 1  
 General Purpose Debt Service Funds 1 1 
 Capital Permanent Improvement Bonds 1  
 Capital Certificates of Obligation 1  
 Capital Road & State Highway Bonds and 

Certificates of Obligation 
Capital Grants 

1 
 
1 

 

 Non-Major Funds   
 Special Revenue Funds 49 38 
 Blended Component Units With Activity (total 6) 6  
 Debt Service Funds 2  
 Capital Projects Funds 3 2 
 Permanent Funds 1  
 Other Reported Funds   
 Internal Service Funds 2 2 
 Fiduciary/Agency Funds 16  
    
    

2. BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
Travis County prepares its budgets on a basis consistent with GAAP.  Travis County 
maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions in the annual 
appropriated budget approved by the Commissioners Court.  The level of budgetary 
control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated 
amount) is set by state statute.   
 
State law provides that the Commissioners Court “may amend the budget to transfer an 
amount budgeted for one item to another budgeted item.”  While the law states that 
expenditures may not exceed the amount appropriated, control in Travis County 
actually takes place at the office/department level. The County’s elected/appointed 
officials, county executives, and department heads may make transfers of 
appropriations within an office/department as specified in the Commissioners Court-
approved annual budget rules. Transfers of appropriations between 
offices/departments, as specified in the budget rules, require the specific pre-approval 
of the Commissioners Court.  The County maintains an encumbrance accounting 
system as a method to accomplish budgetary control.   

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 73 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



MAGNITUDE OF FINANCE OPERATIONS 
 
The Travis County Auditor’s Office is headed by Nicki Riley, CPA, County Auditor, and 
consists of 87 employees.  The principal divisions of the County Auditor’s Office are as 
follows: 
 

                                     

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 74 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



3. FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
 

During the most recent fiscal year, Travis County received the following assistance: 
 
 

 Grantors & Program Titles CFDA # Pass thru Grantor 
 Federal Grants   

 U.S. Department of Agriculture   
    School Lunch Program 

   School Breakfast Program    
   Commodities Program                                                   

10.555 
10.553 
10.550 

Tx Dept of Agriculture 
 

    
 U.S. Department of Energy   
    Weatherization Assistance Program (DOE/ Exxon) 81.042 Tx Dept of Housing & 

Community Affairs 
 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development   
 * Community Development Block Grant 14.218 Direct 
    Neighborhood Stabilization (A Travis County Housing 

   Finance Corp. Program) 
14.228 Tx Dept of Housing & 

Community Affairs 
   Tenant Based Rental Assistance (A Travis County Housing 

   Finance Corp. Program) 
14.239 Tx Dept of Housing & 

Community Affairs 
 

    
 U.S. Department of Interior   
    Manor Historic Resources Survey 

   Webberville Corridor Cultural Resources Survey in Eastern       
                Travis County 
   Williams Farmstead Outreach 

15.904 
15.904 

 
15.904 

Texas Historical Commission 

    
 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services   
    Travis County Juvenile Drug Treatment Court 93.243 Direct 
 *  Parenting In Recovery 93.087 Direct 
    Travis County Adult Probation DWI Court 93.243 Direct 
    SVCI Immunization Awareness 93.268 Tx Dept of State Health Services 

then UNT 
    Children’s Mental Health Program 93.104 Tx Dept of Health & Human 

Services then A/TC MHMR 

    Non-Title IV-D Child Support Reimbursement 93.563 Tx Ofc of Attny General 

    Integrated Child Support System 93.563 Tx Ofc of Attny General 
    Title IV-D Child Support Enforcement 93.563 Tx Ofc of Attny General 
    Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program (CEAP) 93.568 Tx Dept of Housing & 

Community Affairs 
    Enhanced Weatherization Assistance Program (LIHEAP) 93.568 Tx Dept of Housing & 

Community Affairs 
 * Title IV-E Foster Care Maintenance 93.658 Tx Dept of Family & Protective 

Services 
 *  Title IV-E Legal 93.658 Tx Dept of Family & Protective 

Services 
 *  Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658 Tx Dept of Protective & 

Regulatory Services then Tx 
Juvenile Justice Department 

  
 
 

  

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 75 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 Grantors & Program Titles CFDA # Pass thru Grantor 
 U.S. Department of Justice   
 *  State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.606 Direct 
    Federal Forfeited Property 16.922 Direct 
 *  Family Drug Treatment Court Children’s Continuum 16.585 Direct 
    Safe Havens: Save Visitation and Exchange Program 16.527 Direct 
 *  Travis County Juvenile Treatment Drug Courts 16.585 Direct 
 *  Co-Occurring Re-entry Services 16.812 Direct 
 *  Domestic Violence Accountability Management Program 16.812 Direct 
        Federal Grants (continued)   
    Family Violence Protection Team 16.590 City of Austin 
    Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 City of Austin 
    ARRA – Justice Assistance Grant 16.804 City of Austin 
    A Culture of Excellence: PREA Training and Education 16.735 National Council on Crime and 

Delinquency 
    Drug Court and In Home Family Services Expansion  16.523 

 
Tx Ofc of Governor - Criminal 

Justice Division 
    Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant  16.523 Tx Ofc of Governor - Criminal 

Justice Division 
    Travis County Eagle Resource Project  16.540 Tx Ofc of Governor - Criminal 

Justice Division 
 *  Family Violence Accelerated Prosecution Program 16.588 Tx Ofc of Governor - Criminal 

Justice Division 
    Leadership Academy 16.593 Tx Ofc of Governor - Criminal 

Justice Division 
    Child Abuse Victim Services 16.575 Tx Ofc of Governor - Criminal 

Justice Division 
    TCSO Command & Support Vessel 16.738 Tx Ofc of Governor - Criminal 

Justice Division 
    
 U.S. Department of Transportation   
    Youth Alcohol Project 20.600 National Sheriffs Association 
    Frate Barker Road Improvements 20.205 Tx Dept of Transportation 
    McKinney Falls Pedestrian Way 20.205 Tx Dept of Transportation 
    TXDOT Impaired Driving Mobilization 20.601 Tx Dept of Transportation 
    Underage Drinking Prevention Program 20.601 Tx Dept of Transportation 
    
 U.S. Department of Homeland Security   
    Emergency Food and Shelter National Program 97.024 Emergency Food and Shelter 

National Board 
    Urban Area Security Initiative Grant (UASI) 97.008 Tx Dept of Public Safety 
    Emergency Management Assistance (SLA-50) 97.042 Tx Dept of Public Safety 
 *  FEMA 2957 – 2011 Hodde Fire 97.046 Tx Dept of Public Safety 
 *  FEMA 2959 – 2011 Pedernales Bend Fire 97.046 Tx Dept of Public Safety 
 *  FEMA 2960 – 2011 Steiner Ranch Fire 97.046 Tx Dept of Public Safety 
    
 Corporation for National and Community Service   
    Retired Senior Volunteer Program 94.002 Direct 
    Retired Senior Volunteer Program 94.002 Tx Dept on Aging and Disability 

Services 
    AmeriCorps 94.006 One Star Foundation 
    
    
    
    

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 76 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
 Grantors & Program Titles CFDA # Pass thru Grantor 
 

 State Grants   
 Texas Department of Motor Vehicles   
    Sheriff’s Combined Auto Theft Task Force   
    
 Texas Department of Criminal Justice – Criminal Justice Assistance 

Division (CJAD)   
     CSCD – Basic Supervision   
     CSCD - CCP and DP Grants   
     CSCD – TAIP   
    
 Texas Juvenile Justice Department                                                                                          
     Various TJJD Grants   
    
 Texas Department of Parks and Wildlife   
 *   Travis County Onion Creek Greenway   
    
 Texas Office of Court Administration - Task Force on Indigent Defense   
     Indigent Defense – Formula Grant   
    
 Texas Department of Transportation   
     Howard Lane @ SH130   
    
 Texas Commission on Environmental Quality    
     TC Environmental Crime Prosecutors   
     LIP – Transportation Management Association   
     Low Income Repair, Retrofit & Replacement Assist Program   
    
 Office of the Attorney General   
     Victim Coordinator Liaison Grant   
     Statewide Automated Victim Notification Service   
     Other Victim Assistance Grant   
    
 Texas Department of State Health Services   
 

    Children’s Mental Health  
Austin Travis County Integral 

Care 
 

    Community Partners for Children  
Austin Travis County Integral 

Care 
 

    Capital Area Regional Advisory Council  
Capital Area Regional Advisory 

Council 
    
 Office of the Governor – Criminal Justice Division   
     Drug Diversion Court   
     Family Drug Treatment Court   
     Indigent Defense Evaluation Project   
     TCSO Vision Summit Reentry Conference   
 *   Trauma Informed Assessment & Response   
     Travis County Adult Probation DWI Court   
     Travis County Eagle Resource Project   
 *   Veterans Court Program   
     State Forfeited Property   
    
 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 77 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 Grantors & Program Titles  Pass thru Grantor 

 Other Grants   
    Texas Gas - Project Care   
    TXU Energy Aid Program   
    RSVP Advisory Council   
    Capital Metro – Regional Mobility Grants   
    Targeted Low Income Weatherization Program   
    Casey Family Programs   
    ATMOS Energy Aid Program   
     Milburn Trust Grant   
    Travis County Psychology Internship Program   
    Arnold Foundation Justice Reinvestment Initiative (JRI)   
    Meadows Foundation Pre-Doctoral Psychology Internship   
    Preservation of Historical Documents   

*  Designates Major Programs in FY 2013 
 

4. COMPUTER SYSTEMS 
There are many and varied application servers installed in Travis County to support 
both County-wide and departmental/office specific applications.  

COUNTY-WIDE FINANCIAL SYSTEM 
The County uses Systems Applications and Products (SAP) ERP as its main financial 
system. The key SAP modules and functions in use are: 

• Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP 6.0 EHP6) for the functions Accounts 
Payable, Asset Management, Cash Receipting, Employee Self-Service, 
Funds Management, General Ledger, Grants Management, Human 
Capital Management, Manager Self-Service, Payroll, Project Accounting, 
and Travel Management 

• Supplier Resource Management (SRM 7.0 EHP2) for the functions 
catalog management, contract management, and self-service 
procurement 

• OpenText Vendor Invoice Management along with OpenText Invoice 
Capture Center for invoice processing and auditing 

• SAP Business Information Warehouse (BW 7.0) for financial reporting 
and analysis 

• SAP Business Objects Business Intelligence (SBOP BI Platform 4.0) for 
operational and management reporting  

The SAP landscape consists of the four environments prototype, development, quality 
assurance and production.  The server platform is based on IBM rack mounted M3 Intel 
servers running Microsoft Windows 2008 R2 and Microsoft SQL Server 2008 R2. 
VMware 5.1 is used to virtualize all the servers except for the production database 
server.  

 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 78 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



The major County-wide applications and servers include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

a. H.T.E. Legacy Financial System (IBM RS-6000 P670) 
b. EZTax (IBM iSeries) and eTax (web-based) 
c. EZVote and EZVIP IBM iSeries 
d. The Travis County Integrated Justice Systems (IJS) 
e. Case Management and Benefit Administration System (CABA)-

Microsoft Windows Server 
f. The Fully Automated Courts Tracking System (FACTS) 
g. Odyssey (Tyler Technologies) 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 79 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 80 of 96

Attachment F

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 81 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 82 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 83 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 84 of 96

Attachment G  
 

Debarment Certification 
From Atchley & Associates, LLP 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 85 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Attachment H 
 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN ATCHLEY & ASSOCIATES LLP AND  

TRAVIS COUNTY AND 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY SUPERVISION  

AND CORRECTIONS DEPARTMENT AND 
TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT 

 
This Business Associate Agreement ("BAA") is executed by the following parties: 

Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas (“County”) and  
Travis County Community Supervision and Corrections Department ("CSCD"), and 
Travis County Juvenile Probation Department, ("Juvenile Probation"), and  
Atchley & Associates LLP, a firm of certified public accountants, which is a 
registered limited liability partnership under the laws of the State of Texas 
("Contractor"). 

 
RECITALS 

Effective July 1, 2014, County and Contractor entered into an independent 
auditing  contract entitled External Auditing Contract Between Atchley & 
Associates, Llp And Travis County And Travis County Community Supervision 
And Corrections Department And Travis County Juvenile Probation Department 
For Fiscal Years 2014-2018 ("External Audit Contract") so that County may 
obtain external auditing services related to all County operations including it 
health related activities.  These services include the audit of the operation of the 
County employee benefit health plans, the Wellness Clinics, aeromedical 
emergency medical transport services, medical services provided in correctional 
facilities, and counseling services (the “Services”) 

County and Contractor are entering into this BAA to provide County with 
satisfactory assurances, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.314(a), that 
Contractor and its subcontractors will appropriately safeguard any electronic 
protected health information that Contractor or its subcontractors create, receive, 
maintain or transmit on County’s behalf.  45 CFR 164.308 (b). 

AGREEMENT 
NOW, THEREFORE, County and Contractor mutually agree to the following 
terms and conditions: 

I.  TERM. 
1.1 This BAA commences on the date on which it is signed by the last party to 
sign it.  This BAA continues in force until all protected health information is 
destroyed or returned to County.  

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 86 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



II.  CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY   

2.1. Directly Regulated  Contractor acknowledges that it is directly regulated by 
HIPAA and HITECH and Part 164. 

2.2. Contractor Compliance with Part 164.  Contractor shall comply with the 
applicable requirements of Part 164.  45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(A).  Contractor shall 
use appropriate safeguards and comply, where applicable, with Part 164 to 
prevent use or disclosure of electronic protected health information other than as 
provided for in this BAA.  45 CFR 164.504 (e)(2)(ii)(B). 

2.3. Subcontractor Compliance with Part 164.  Contractor shall ensure that 
any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit electronic protected 
health information on behalf of Contractor agree to comply with the applicable 
requirements of Part 164 by entering into a contract with the subcontractor that 
complies with 45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(B).  If Contractor knows of a pattern of 
activity or practice of a subcontractor that constitutes a material breach or 
violation of the subcontractor's obligation under that contract, Contractor shall 
take reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation, as applicable, and, 
if such steps were unsuccessful, terminated the contract, if feasible.  45 CFR 
164.502(e)(1)(iii). 

2.4. Notice of Security Incident to County  Contractor shall report to County 
any security incident of which it becomes aware, including breaches of County’s 
unsecured protected health information as required by 45 CFR § 164.410.  
Contractor shall report to County any successful security incident in detail as 
promptly as possible and no later than 2 business days after Contractor 
becomes aware of it. The parties acknowledge the ongoing existence and 
occurrence of attempted but Unsuccessful Security Incidents which include pings 
and other broadcast attacks on Contractor's firewall, port scans, unsuccessful 
log-on attempts, denials of service and any combination of the above, that do not 
result in unauthorized access, use or disclosure of County’s electronic protected 
health information. Contractor may report to County unsuccessful security 
incidents in the aggregate at least once each quarter.  County determines if there 
has been a data breach for County protected health information and whether 
County protected health information has been compromised.  45 CFR 164.314 
(a)(2)(C).   

2.5. Policies and Training  Contractor shall implement, maintain and enforce 
procedures and policies consistent with the applicable requirements of HIPAA, 
HITECH and Part 164.  Contractor shall provide its directors, partners, and 
employees with appropriate regular training in these policies and procedures and 
compliance with the applicable requirements of HIPAA, HITECH and Part 164.  
Contractor shall ensure that its directors, partners, employees, and 
subcontractors comply with these procedures and policies.   

2.6. Notice of Breach.  Following the discovery of a breach of unsecured 
protected health information, Contractor shall notify County of the breach without 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 87 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



unreasonable delay and no later than 60 calendar days after discovery of a 
breach.    Contractor also shall provide to Client any other available information 
Client is required to include in its notification to affected Individual  This notice 
shall include, to the extent possible, a brief description of what happened, 
including the date of occurrence and the date of the discovery by Contractor; a 
description of the protected health information affected, including the identity of 
each individual whose unsecured protected health information has been, or is 
reasonably believed by Contractor to have been accessed, acquired, used, or 
disclosed during the breach and the types of protected health information 
involved (such as full name, social security number, date of birth, home address, 
account numbers, etc.); any other available information that County is required to 
include in its notice to the individual under 45 CFR § 164.404(c) and a brief 
description of what Contractor has done to investigate the breach, to mitigate 
harm to individuals, and to protect against any further breaches.  For purposes of 
this paragraph, a breach shall be treated as discovered by Contractor as of the 
first day on which that breach is known to Contractor or would have been known 
to Contractor by exercising reasonable diligence. Contractor shall be deemed to 
have knowledge of a breach if the breach is known, or would have been known 
by exercising reasonable diligence, to any person, other than the person 
committing the breach, who is a director, partner, employee, officer, or other 
agent of Contractor. 45 CFR 164.410. 

2.7. Permitted Uses and Disclosures  Contractor may use protected health 
information provided to Contractor by County for the following activities: 

2.7.1. Conducting external auditing functions and  

2.7.2. Contractor’s proper management and administration (including use 
and disclousure as required by Contractor to comply with 
applicable professional standards and obligations) or to carry out 
its legal responsibilities. 

2.8. Required Uses and Disclosures.  Contractor shall disclose protected 
health information and make its internal practices, books, and records relating to 
the use and disclosure of protected health information received from, or created 
or received by Contractor available to the Secretary of the Department of Health 
and Human Services for purposes of determining Contractor or County’s 
compliance with Part 164.  Contractor also shall disclose protected health 
information to County when requested by an individual or the individual's 
designee, as necessary to satisfy County’s obligations to provide the individual 
with access to inspect and obtain a copy of his or her protected health 
information in a designated record set, subject to the exclusions in § 
164.524(a)(1), in the electronic format requested if it is readily producible in such 
form and format; or, if not, in a readable electronic form and format as agreed to 
by the covered entity and the individual in compliance with Part 164. 

2.9. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures  Contractor shall not use or further 
disclose genetic information for underwriting purposes or sell protected health 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 88 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



information or use or disclose protected health information other than as 
permitted or required by the BAA or the External Audit Contract or as required by 
law.  For purposes of this paragraph, sale of protected health information means 
a disclosure of protected health information by Contractor where Contractor 
directly or indirectly receives remuneration from or on behalf of the recipient of 
the protected health information in exchange for the protected health information 
but does not include disclosure of protected health information as specifically 
limited in 45 CFR § 164.502(5). 

2.10. Accounting of Disclosures  Except as otherwise permitted or required by 
this BAA, Contractor shall report to County any use or disclosure of the 
information of which it becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured 
protected health information.  45 CFR § 164.410 and 45 CFR 164.504 
(e)(2)(ii)(C). 

2.11 Return or Destruction of Data  At termination of the BAA, if feasible, 
Contractor shall return or destroy all protected health information received from, 
or created or received by Contractor on behalf of County that Contractor still 
maintains in any form and retain no copies of such information. If such return or 
destruction is not feasible, Contractor shall extend the protections of the BAA to 
the information and limit further uses and disclosures to those purposes that 
make the return or destruction of the information infeasible. 

2.12 Compliance with Laws.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, 
rules and regulations in the performance of this BAA.  

III. COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

3.1 County shall not request Contractor to use or disclose protected health 
information in any manner that would not be permissible under Part 164 if done 
by County. 

3.2  County shall not provide Contractor with more protected health 
information than minimally necessary for Contractor to provide the Services and, 
where possible, County shall provide any protected health information needed by 
Contractor to perform the Services in the form of a Limited Data Set, in 
accordance with Part 164. 

3.3 County acknowledges that neither this BAA nor the External Audit 
Contract requires Contractor to make any disclosure for which an accounting 
would be required under Part 164.  County shall be solely responsible for 
tracking and providing individuals with an accounting of any disclosures made by 
County to Contractor. 
 
 

 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 89 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



IV. LIABILITY 
 

4.1 County is not liable for and Contractor assumes full risk of any claims, 
damages or attorney’s fees of every kind for injury to or death of any person and 
for damages to or loss of property arising in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, 
as a result of the operations, including acts and omissions, of the Contractor 
under this BAA.  County does not waive, nor shall it be deemed to waive, any 
right, defense, or immunity that County may have. 

4.2 Contractor is not liable for and County assumes full risk of any claims, 
damages or attorney’s fees of every kind for injury or death of any person and for 
damages to or loss of property arising in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, as 
a result of the operations, including acts or omissions, of the County under this 
BAA.   

V.  LIMIT ON AGENTS 
 

5.1 No agent, official, employee, or representative of County has the authority 
to amend  or assign this BAA or waive violations of it unless expressly granted 
this specific authority by the Commissioners Court.   

VI.  BREACH 
 

           6.1     The failure of either party to comply with the terms and conditions of this 
BAA is a breach of this BAA.  

VII.  MEDIATION 
 

          7.1     When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising 
under this BAA, the parties agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, 
Texas as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in the TEX. CIV. 
PRAC. AND REM. CODE ANN., §154.023.  Unless both parties are satisfied with the 
result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding 
resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation 
must remain confidential as described in TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE ANN.,  
§154.073, unless both parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality.  

VIII.  TERMINATION 
 

8.1 County for Cause Termination.  County has the right to terminate this BAA 
and the BAA, in whole or in part, for one or more of the following reasons at any 
time in compliance with 8.2:  

 

8.1.1 Contractor fails to cease violations of this BAA or HIPAA or HITECH 
or Part 164,  

8.1.2 Contractor has violated its policies and procedures arising from 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 90 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



compliance with HIPAA or HITECH or Part 164 one or more times, 

8.1.3 Contractor has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 
BAA, or 

8.1.4 Contractor is unable to conform to changes required by federal, state 
or local laws or regulations related to performance under this BAA. 

 
8.2 Procedure.  At least  thirty (30) days before the effective date of termination, 
County must notify Contractor in compliance with Article XIV of the decision to 
terminate this BAA, the existence and nature of the breach, the effective date of 
termination and, in the case of a partial termination, the portion of the BAA to be 
terminated.  Contractor may avoid termination of this BAA pursuant to 8.1.1, 8.1.2, 
and 8.1.3 if Contractor cures the breach to the satisfaction of County within thirty 
(30) days of receipt of notice of breach.  The time to cure may be extended, at the 
sole discretion of County, as long as the Contractor diligently continues to work 
toward completion of the cure. If the breach is not cured to the satisfaction of 
County prior to the effective date of termination or any extension of the date 
allowed by County in writing, the Contractor is in default and the participation of the 
Contractor is automatically terminated on that date.  
 
8.3 Contractor for Cause Termination.  Contractor may terminate this BAA, in 
whole or in part, at any time for any of the following reasons in compliance with 
8.4:  

8.3.1 County fails to cease violations of this BAA or HIPAA or HITECH or 
Part 164,  

8.3.2 County has violated its policies and procedures arising from 
compliance with HIPAA or HITECH or Part 164 or both one or more times, 

8.3.3 County has failed to comply with any term or condition of this BAA, 
or 

8.3.4 County is unable to conform to changes required by federal, state or 
local laws or regulations related to performance under this BAA. 

8.4 Procedure.  At least thirty (30) days before the date of termination, 
Contractor must notify County in compliance with Article XIV of the decision to 
terminate this BAA, the reasons for termination, the effective date of termination 
and in the case of a partial termination, the portion of the BAA to be terminated.  
County may avoid termination of this BAA pursuant to 8.3.1 or 8.3.2 or 8.3.3 if 
County corrects the causes of the reasons for termination stated in the notice to 
the satisfaction of the Contractor prior to the effective date of termination. 

 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 91 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



IX. NON-WAIVER AND RESERVATION OF REMEDIES 

9.1 Non-Waiver.  Any act of forbearance by either party to enforce any 
provision of this BAA shall not be interpreted as a modification of this BAA or as 
a waiver of any breach or default of the other party which then exists or may 
subsequently exist.  The failure of either party to exercise any right or privilege 
granted in this BAA shall not be interpreted as a waiver of that right or privilege.  
In this BAA, County and Contractor do not waive any immunity or defense that 
would otherwise be available to them against claims arising in the exercise of 
their governmental powers and functions.  

9.2 Reservation of Rights and Remedies.  All rights of both parties under this 
BAA are specifically reserved.  Any payment, act or omission by a party must not 
impair or prejudice any remedy or right of that party under this BAA.  Any right or 
remedy stated in this BAA must not preclude the exercise of any other right or 
remedy under this BAA, the law or at equity, nor must any action taken in the 
exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or 
remedies.  

X.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

10.1  Agreement All Inclusive.  All oral and written agreements between the 
parties to this BAA relating to the subject matter of this BAA that were made prior 
to the execution of this BAA have been reduced to writing and are contained in 
this document.  

XI.  ASSIGNABILITY  

11.1 Neither party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this BAA 
without the prior written approval of the other party.  It is acknowledged by 
Contractor that no officer, agency, employee or representative of County has any 
authority to grant such assignment unless expressly granted that authority by the 
Commissioners Court.  

XII.  AMENDMENTS 

12.1 Amendment of BAA. Any change to the provisions of this BAA must be 
made in writing and signed by both parties: County and Contractor.  It is 
acknowledged by Contractor that no officer, agency, employee or representative 
of County has any authority to change the provisions of this BAA unless 
expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court.  

12.2 Contractor Request.  Contractor must submit all requests for changes to 
this BAA to Benefits Manager. The Benefits Manager must present the 
Contractor’s requests to Commissioners Court for consideration.  

12.3 County Request.  County must submit all requests for changes to this 
BAA to the Contractor.   

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 92 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



XIII. NOTICES  

13.1 Written Notice.  All notices sent pursuant to this BAA shall be in writing 
and either hand delivered or sent by registered or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested. 

13.2 County Address.  Notice sent pursuant to this BAA may be delivered or 
mailed to County.  If delivered, notice shall be delivered at the following address: 

 Benefits Manager  
Human Resources Management Department 

 700 Lavaca, Suite 420  
 Austin, Texas  78701  
13.3 If mailed, notice shall be mailed to the following address: 

Benefits Manager  
Human Resources Management Department 
P. O. Box 1748,  
Austin, Texas  78767  

Whether hand delivered or mailed with mailed copies also to the following 
(registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 

Rosie Ramon-Duran (or her successor in office) 
Director, CSCD 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 

and to: 
Honorable Judge Lora Livingston (or his successor in office) 
Presiding District Judge 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 

and to: 
  Estela Medina (or her successor in office)  

Chief Juvenile Probation Officer 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 

and to: 
Honorable Judge Rhonda Hurley (or her successor in office) 
Presiding Judge, Travis County Juvenile Board 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748   
 
 
 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 93 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



13.5 Contractor Addresses.  Notice sent pursuant to this BAA may be delivered 
or mailed to County.  If delivered, notice shall be delivered at the following 
address: 
 Atchley & Associates, LLP 

6850 Austin Center Blvd, Suite 180 
Austin, Texas 78731  

13.6 Time of Delivery.  When notices sent are hand delivered, notice is 
effective upon delivery.  When notices are mailed by registered or certified mail, 
notice shall be deemed effective three days after deposit in a U.S. mail box or at 
a U.S. post office. 

13.7 Change of Address.  Both parties may change their address for notice 
under this contract by providing a notice of the change to the other party in 
compliance with this Article XII. 

XIV.   INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT 

14.1. Independent Contractors.  Contractor and County are independent 
contractors and this BAA will not establish any relationship of partnership, joint 
venture, employment, franchise or agency between Contractor and County.  
Neither Contractor nor County will have the power to bind the other or incur 
obligations on the other party’s behalf without the other party’s prior written 
consent, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement.  

14.2. Conflicts.  If any terms of this BAA are inconsistent with the terms of the 
External Audit Contract, then the terms of this BAA shall control. 

14.3. Law.  This BAA is governed by the laws of the United States of America 
and the laws of Texas.  This BAA is performable in Travis County, Texas.  

14.4. Severability.  If any portion of this BAA is ruled invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of it must be construed as if that portion 
were not included in the BAA and the remainder remains valid and binding.  

14.5. Definitions.   In this BAA, all words and phrases used in this BAA and 
defined in 45 CFR Parts 160 through 164 inclusive have the same meaning in 
this BAA as they have in 45 CFR Parts 160 through 164 inclusive.  In addition, in 
this BAA 

14.5.1 Business Day.  “Business Day” means Monday through Friday 
unless County has designated one of these days as a County holiday.  

14.5.2 Commissioners Court. "Commissioners Court" means the Travis 
County Commissioners Court.  

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 94 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



14.5.3 HIPAA“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996. 

14.5.4 HITECH  “HITECH” means the Health Information Technology for 
Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009. 

14.5.5 Part 164.  “Part 164” means 45 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 
164 which forms a portion of the regulations issued under HIPAA and 
HITECH.  

14.5.6 Benefits Manager. “Benefits Manager " means the individual 
designated by the Commissioners Court to perform the management and 
administrative duties of the County under this BAA or his designee. 

14.6. Computation of Time.  When any period of time is stated in this BAA, the 
time must be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the 
period.  If the last day of any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a day that 
County has declared a holiday for its employees, these days must be omitted 
from the computation.  

14.7. Number and Gender.  Words of any gender in this BAA must be 
construed to include any other gender and words in either number must be 
construed to include the other unless the context in the BAA clearly requires 
otherwise.  

14.8. Headings.  The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this 
BAA have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter 
covered by that section or subsection and are not to be used in construing this 
BAA.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 95 of 96Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



FY2014-2018 Audit Contract Page 96 of 96 

XV. DUPLICATE ORIGINALS 

15.1. This document is executed in duplicate originals. 

ATCHLEY & ASSOCIATES LLP 

By: 

Title: P A-((_ l)Jtl-
lts Duly Authorized Signatory 

Date: 7/ ~'f /2014 

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY 
SUPERVISION AND CORRECTIONS 
DEPARTMENT 

By: 

Date 

Charles Robinson 
Director, Travis County 
Community Supervision and 
Corrections Department 

By: 

TRAVIS COUNTY 

Samuel T. Biscoe 
Travis County Judge 

Date: 

TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION 
DEPARTMENT 

By: 

Date 

Judge Rhonda Hurley 
Chairperson 
Travis County Juvenile Probation 
Board 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  August 5, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Lori Clyde/44205 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 2 to Contract No. 
4400001067, Mentis Technology Solutions, LLC, for 
Purchase/Maintenance of the Courtroom Docket Management System. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 
 
In August 2012, Commissioners Court approved a contract with Mentis 
Technology Solutions for a courtroom docket management system 
which is also known as Judge’s workbench or aiSmartbench.  We 
currently have an interface with Tiburon FACTS and Vista SG, the 
document management system (DMS) currently used by the District 
Clerk’s office.  The County Clerk’s office is in the process of 
implementing the OnBase DMS.   
 
Currently Mentis does not have an interface created with OnBase.  At 
this time, the Civil Courts recommend approving this modification for a 
proof of concept (POC) interface between the Mentis aiSmartBench 
product and OnBase.  The goal of this POC is to compare the 
performance of real-time access of images by aiSmartbench users from 
the County OnBase DMS system against the performance provided to 
an aiSmartbench user accessing images from the aiSmartbench image 
repository.  At the conclusion of the POC, Mentis will provide a report 
detailing the comparative results of the two environments. This report 
will allow the County to determine if this type of real-time DMS 
integration will meet the response time needs of the judges and other 
judicial staff using aiSmartbench in the courtroom and chambers.     
 
The cost of this POC project is $12,000.  If this POC is successful and 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 10Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

the County chooses to use the real-time integration there will be an 
additional cost estimated at $10,000. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:   $12,000.00 
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:  Beginning August 5, 2014 

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 1000063143 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Office of the District Judges 
    Heman Marion Sweatt Courthouse 

     P.O. Box 1748 

 Austin, Texas 78767 

     (512) 854-4727 

 

 

June 6, 2014 

 

 

 

Dear purchasing: 

 

The Civil Courts are requesting a modification to the Mentis contract for the aiSmartBench 

product to prototype a specific type of integration with OnBase.  Our current contract does 

specify integrations in general terms with DMS systems but since this particular type of 

integration is a specific kind of request from the County Clerk, it requires a different statement of 

work.  We would like to investigate if this particular type of integration can be effectively 

performed and still maintain a speed which is workable in the courtroom.  We requested and 

were granted $25,000 in the Civil Courts budget for special requests and additional 

functionality.   

 

The requested contract modification is for a statement of work on a per project for this prototype 

at a cost of $12,000 

 

The Shopping Cart number is: SC 1000066131 

 

 

 

 

 

Thank you, Mark Erwin 

Technology Manager, Travis County Courts 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400001067 Purch/Maint Courtroom Docket Mgmt System       

                                                                                 PAGE 1 OF  4  PAGES 
 
ISSUED BY:    PURCHASING OFFICE 

700 LAVACA, SUITE 800 

AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST:   Lori Clyde 

TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9700 

FAX NO:   (512) 854-9185 

 
DATE PREPARED: 

July 10, 2014 

 
ISSUED TO: 
Mentis Technology Solutions, LLC 

8005 S. Chester, Suite 400 

Centennial, Colorado 80112 

Attn: Leo LaCascia 

 

MODIFICATION NO.:  

 

2 

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 
CONTRACT:  

 

August 7, 2012 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: August 7, 2012 – August 6, 2013 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  August 7, 2013 – December 6, 2014 

 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:        

Original Contract Amount: $245,350.00   Current Modified Amount $302,547.00 . 

 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore 

modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above referenced contract is modified per the attached Statement of Work. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note to Vendor:  

[ X  ] Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[   ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
 

LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:        

 
     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 

 
     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 

 
TITLE:            

            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            
      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT 

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            
      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  
 

 
DATE: 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



4400001067  Page 2 of 4 Pages 

Statement of Work 
 
This Statement of Work (“SOW”) is by and between Mentis Technology Solutions, LLC (“Mentis”) 
and Travis County, Texas (“County”).  This SOW is incorporated by reference in Section 4 and 
Exhibit A of the Software License, Services and Maintenance Agreement (“Agreement”). Each 
capitalized term herein shall have the meaning assigned to it in the Agreement.  The effective 
date is ________________________. 

A. Project Scope and Goal: 

The scope of this project involves creating a prototype aiSMARTBENCH document image 
integration to test and prototype real-time image access by an aiSmartBench User from Travis 
County OnBase DMS (the “Project”).  The Project does not include any changes to the existing 
aiSmartBench Integration.   
 
The goal of this Project is to compare the performance of real-time access of images (Tiffs and 
PDFs) by aiSMARTBENCH Users from the County OnBase DMS System against the performance 
provided to an aiSMARTBENCH User accessing images from the aiSMARTBENCH Image Repository. 
 
Mentis will create two test environments on hardware provided by the County each having 
connectivity to a test instance of the OnBase DMS system.  Each test environment will be 
configured to access a representative sampling of at least 5,000 County document images, using 
the OnBase API set described in section D below.  Each test environment will perform the standard 
aiSMARTBENCH backfile process for each of the sample images.  One environment will retain each 
original document image and reference that retained image whenever it is subsequently needed 
by a aiSmartBench User.  The second environment will discard the original document image, and 
re-request the image from the OnBase DMS system whenever it is subsequently needed by an 
aiSmartBench User. 
 
Using pre-defined scripts, the relative performance of the two environments will be compared in a 
series of semi-automated tests emulating typical aiSMARTBENCH usage (specifically, viewing 
documents in a case and reviewing results of word-search across cases) both by a single user or 
multiple users.  Performance and network traffic during the tests will be monitored by a third-
party profiling tool (e.g.  Fiddler) and by aiSMARTBENCH internal metrics.   
 
As the test scripts are executed, Mentis will simultaneously monitor server properties (CPU, 
memory and network usage) on the server hosting the OnBase test environment using Microsoft 
Resource Monitor toolset. 
 
At the conclusion of the tests, Mentis will provide a report detailing the comparative results of the 
two environments.  This report will allow the County to determine if this type of real-time DMS 
integration will meet the response time needs of the judges and other judicial staff using 
aiSMARTBENCH in the courtroom and chambers. 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



4400001067  Page 3 of 4 Pages 

Mentis makes no representation or guarantee that the prototype integration to be developed 
during this Project will meet the performance criteria of the County or will provide equivalent 
performance to that of the existing aiSmartBench integration.  
  
B. Fees – Project: 

The Project fee for the following tasks is $12,000.  Any other tasks will be considered out of scope. 

 creating the prototype integration,  

 setting up the two test environments,  

 pre-processing the sample set of a minimum of 5,000 representative documents  

 developing appropriate scripted tests, 

 conducting the tests, and 

 preparing the report. 

C. Project Timeline: 

The estimated Project start date is four (4) weeks from the date of execution of this SOW and will 
take two-four weeks from the time the Project prerequisites in Section D are completed.       

D. Project Prerequisites: 

 County will provide Mentis the OnBase API set with documentation and test environment 
which will allow Mentis to develop and test the prototype integration into the County 
OnBase DMS.  

 If requested by Mentis, County or its vendor will provide assistance in identifying the APIs 
that will allow the integration to retrieve selected document images or specific pages in a 
document image using a unique document identifier and page number for a case and/or 
docket.  These OnBase APIs need to support retrieving PDF’s and Tiff’s.   

 The County will set up a properly configured OnBase Test Environment for Mentis’ 
development and testing efforts and provide Mentis remote connectivity to it. 

 Mentis will validate the OnBase test environment and remote connectivity. 

 The parties will develop a mutually agreed upon test plan. 
 
E.  Other Terms 
County will designate and provide one (1) County employee or representative as the primary point 
of contact who will be responsible for the Project management and one (1) IT support resource for 
responding to Mentis’ questions and issues relating to the Project. In addition, the County IT 
resources skill set should include the following: 

 Network administrator: responsible for managing user accounts and access to supplied test 
environment via remote VPN access. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



4400001067  Page 4 of 4 Pages 

 Subject Matter Experts (SMEs): required to have software development and programming 
experience using the OnBase API set and knowledge on how OnBase is implemented at the 
County.    

 
Scope Change. County may modify the scope or specifications of the Project upon written notice 
to Mentis.  If such modifications would add to Mentis’ obligations under this SOW, or extend the 
time needed and/or increase the cost to complete the Project, the parties will mutually sign an 
amendment to this SOW modifying the scope of the Project accordingly.  
 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Item 11Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Item 12Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Item 13Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Item 14Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  August 5, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett, MSSW 854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human Services & 
Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on items related to the final draft of Program Year 
2014-2018 Consolidated Plan and Program Year 2014 Action Plan: 
A. Approve the final draft and related project budgets, including the comment received, 

response provided and final edits;  
B. Authorize the County Judge to sign the certifications and Standard Form 424; and  
C. Authorize submission to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, 

San Antonio Field Office, Region VI. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 
(42 USC 5301), the Federal government through the U.S Department of Housing 
sponsors a program that provides Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) to 
cities and counties to develop viable urban communities by providing decent housing 
and a suitable living environment and by expanding economic opportunities for low and 
moderate income persons.  Since 2006, Travis County has received CDBG funds from 
HUD on an annual basis.  Community engagement and participation is an essential goal 
of this program. 
 
The County is required to prepare a Consolidated Plan that includes data on community 
needs and strategic goals for program.  The County is currently working under a three 
year Consolidated Plan spanning from program years 2011-2013.  The next 
Consolidated Plan spans 5 years, taking effect on October 1, 2014 and ends September 
30, 2019. The Consolidated Plan includes an Action Plan for the next program year 
(PY14) that outlines the projects and goals for the program year.  
 
As required by HUD regulation identified in 24 Code of Federal Regulations Part 91 and 
the Travis County Citizen Participation Plan, a 30-day comment period and two public 
hearings were held on the draft document prior to submission.  The public hearings 
were held to receive comment on July, 1 and July 8, 2014 at the Travis County 
Commissioners Court.  Advertisements and information dissemination regarding the 
public comment period and public hearing dates were sent out during the week of June 
9, 2014.  During the comment period, held from June 27, 2014 through July 28, 2014, 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 15Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

staff received 1 public comment during the public hearings held at Commissioners 
Court.  For a summary of comments received, see Exhibit A.  

 
Travis County’s CDBG allocation for Program Year 2014 is $997,649. The required 
Action Plan to inform HUD on how Travis County intends to spend its allocation is due 
August 15, 2014. A minimum of 65% of the allocation must be spent on Housing and 
Community Development projects.  Funds for Administration and Planning projects are 
capped at 20% and Public Services at fifteen percent.  On June 10, 2014 the Travis 
County Commissioners Court approved all proposed projects for Program Year 2014 
funding. On June 24, 2014, the Travis County Commissioner’s Court approved the draft 
for public review.   
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends the approval of the final draft of Travis County’s Program Year 2014-
2018 Consolidated Plan and Program Year 2014 Action Plan including the final edits 
completed by staff. From the last draft presented to the Court on June 24, 2014, staff 
made several changes including: 
 

 grammatical and wording changes to improve clarity and readability, 
 the addition of updated data on public housing residents received from the 

Housing Authority of Travis County, 
 LMI maps were updated with HUD data, effective July 1, 2014,  that was 

not available for inclusion in the public comment draft, 
 tables that were not required and contained no data were removed, 
 the addition of public comment received and related response, and 
 minor content revisions, including notes on data and sources. 

 
For a full list of content revision and public comments received, please refer to Exhibits 
A and B.   
 
Staff also recommends authorizing the County Judge as the Certifying Official to sign 
the grant related documents (Exhibits C and D) and authorizing the on-time submission 
of the Plans.   The final Plans are attached after Exhibits D.   
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
The CDBG grant brings funds to the County that provide the ability to augment existing 
programs or develop new programs that support the mutual goals of HUD and Travis 
County.  For Program Year 2014, the total allocation of federal dollars available is 
$997,649.  The Program has achieved timely spending this year and does not anticipate 
any issues with the amount of the grant award for PY14.   
 
The projects contained within the PY 2014 Action Plan include the funding for several 
FTEs.  They are as follows: 
.25 FTE Senior Engineer in TNR through the Administrative and Planning project 
.25 FTE Senior Engineer in TNR through the Forest Bluff Street Improvements 
1.4 FTE Planners (2 planners one .4 and one 1.0) in HHS through the Administrative 
and Planning project and Home Rehabilitation project 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

1.0 FTE Social Worker in HHS through the Social Work Expansion project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
The funding of recommended projects for Program Year 2014 follows the allocation 
guidelines established by HUD.  No matching funds are required, however the County 
has elected to fund part of CDBG personnel costs with Travis County General funds 
dollars.  Staff anticipates that the grant funds will be available by mid-October 2014.  
The annual contract period is from October 1st through September 30th.  
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
None. 
 
 
cc: 
 
Kathleen Haas, HHS    Yvette Rugley-Craig, HHS 
Nancy Goodman-Gil, HHS   Kendra Tolliver, HHS    
Mary Etta Gerhardt, County Attorney Jim Lehrman, HHS 
Laura Sovine, HHS    Steve Manilla, TNR 
Lee Turner, TNR     Cynthia McDonald, TNR 
Aerin Toussain, PBO    Leroy Nellis, PBO 
Jessica Rios, PBO    Nicki Riley, Auditor’s Office 
DeDe Bell, Auditor’s Office   Janice Cohoon, Auditor’s Office 
Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Office  Jason Walker, Purchasing Office 
  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
EXHIBIT A: PUBLIC COMMENT RESULTS 

 
After presentation to Travis County Commissioners Court, the draft PY14-18 
Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan was posted for comment for thirty days prior to 
the final approval by the Travis County Commissioners Court.  Comments could be 
received in writing via email or regular mail to the Travis County Health and Human 
Services and Veterans’ Service CDBG staff or could be given at the public hearings at 
Commissioners Court.  The drafts were posted on the Travis County website and copies 
were located at the seven Travis County Community Centers for public review. 
 
The public comment period began on June 27, 2014 and ended on July 28, 2014.  The 
public hearings were held at the Travis County Commissioners Courtroom at 9 am on 
Tuesday, July, 1, 2014 and Tuesday, July 8, 2014.  
 
Summary of Public Comments Received for Draft of PY14-18 Consolidated Plan 
and PY14 Action Plan 
 

• One comment was received at the public hearing at Travis County 
Commissioners Court on July 1, 2014.  

• The individual requested information on program eligibility requirements. 
 
Response to Comment Received  
CDBG staff provided the following written response to the resident.  An income eligibility 
table was also provided, but is not included here.  

 
Dear Mr. Kim: 
 
This letter is in response to your request for information about eligibility 
requirements for programs funded by the Travis County Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program, which you submitted during the 
public hearing at Travis County Commissioners Court on July 1, 2014. Below you 
will find a chart detailing the current programs and eligibility requirements.  
 
If you have any questions you can contact me at 512-854-3460 or 
christy.moffett@co.travis.tx.us.  
 
Christy Moffett, MSSW 
CDBG Planning Manager 

 
 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
 
CDBG Program Requirements  

Project 
Program Description 

 
Eligibility 

 

Fair Housing Project 

Fair housing and tenant’s 
rights services including 

telephone counseling and 
in-person mediation. 

Tenant must live in the unincorporated areas 
of Travis County or the Village of Webberville.  

Social Work Services  Outreach and case 
management services. 

Clients must live in the unincorporated areas 
of Travis County or the Village of Webberville 
and earn less than 80% of Median Family 
Income (see attached chart.)  

Homeowner 
Rehabilitation 

Minor home repair services 
up to $24,999 per property 
under a deferred loan, 
forgivable after five (5) 
years.   

Participants must own their home, live in the 
unincorporated areas of Travis County or the 
Village of Webberville and earn less than 80% 
of Median Family Income (see attached 
chart.) Additionally, the property must qualify 
based on type of repair needed and 
environmental review.  

Land Acquisition for 
Affordable Housing 

Development 

CDBG acquired 31 lots for 
affordable housing 

development by Austin 
Habitat for Humanity. 

For 17 of the lots, homebuyer must earn 
between 25%-50% of Median Family Income; 
for the remaining 14 lots homebuyer must 
earn below 80% of Median Family Income 
(see attached chart.) Homebuyer must 
currently have a housing problem and must 
meet all of Austin Habitat for Humanity’s 
participation requirements. Note: eight 
homes have been completed with several lots 
currently under construction.   

Street Improvements Improvements to 
substandard roads. 

The neighborhood being served by the project 
must qualify as an eligible area, based on 
income levels of residents and must be 
located in the CDBG service area. 

 
  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

EXHIBIT B: 
SUMMARY OF CHANGES MADE DURING COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Below is a summary of major changes made to the Action Plan draft during the public 
comment period.  These changes do not include small changes to spelling, grammar, 
formatting, clarity, readability, etc. 
 

Change Reason 

Maps containing Low-to-Moderate Income data 
were updated using new data from HUD. 

The updated data was not 
available in time for inclusion in the 
public comment draft. 

Tables and other questions relating to Public 
Housing residents were updated with current data 
from the Housing Authority of Travis County. 

The data was received after the 
public comment draft had been 
approved by TCCC.  

Tables that are not HUD required, and no data 
was available were removed from the draft. 

Empty tables were removed for 
improved clarity and readability.  

Public comments and responses were added to 
the Public Engagement Section of draft and as an 
appendix.  

Comments were received during 
the public comment period 

 
 
 
 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Signature/Authorized Official     Date 

CERTIFICATIONS 

In accordance with the applicable statutes and the regulations governing the consolidated 
plan regulations, the jurisdiction certifies that: 

Affirmatively Further Fair Housing -- The jurisdiction will affirmatively further fair housing, which 
means it will conduct an analysis of impediments to fair housing choice within the jurisdiction, take 
appropriate actions to overcome the effects of any impediments identified through that analysis, and 
maintain records reflecting that analysis and actions in this regard. 

Anti-displacement and Relocation Plan -- It will comply with the acquisition and relocation 
requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 
as amended, and implementing regulations at 49 CFR 24; and it has in effect and is following a 
residential antidisplacement and relocation assistance plan required under section 104(d) of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, in connection with any activity 
assisted with funding under the CDBG or HOME programs. 

Anti-Lobbying -- To the best of the jurisdiction's knowledge and belief: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of it, to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal 
grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement; 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person 
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, it will complete 
and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its 
instructions; and 

3. It will require that the language of paragraph 1 and 2 of this anti-lobbying certification be 
included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, 
subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all 
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

Authority of Jurisdiction -- The consolidated plan is authorized under State and local law (as 
applicable) and the jurisdiction possesses the legal authority to carry out the programs for which it 
is seeking funding, in accordance with applicable HUD regulations. 

Consistency with plan -- The housing activities to be undertaken with CDBG, HOME, ESG, and 
HOPWA funds are consistent with the strategic plan. 
 
            

 
Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
 
 
 
 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

moffetc
Typewritten Text
Exhibit C

moffetc
Typewritten Text



Specific CDBG Certifications 

The Entitlement Community certifies that: 

Citizen Participation -- It is in full compliance and following a detailed citizen participation plan that 
satisfies the requirements of 24 CFR 91.105. 

Community Development Plan -- Its consolidated housing and community development plan identifies 
community development and housing needs and specifies both short-term and long-term community 
development objectives that provide decent housing, expand economic opportunities primarily for 
persons of low and moderate income. (See CFR 24 570.2 and CFR 24 part 570) 

Following a Plan -- It is following a current consolidated plan (or Comprehensive Housing Affordability 
Strategy) that has been approved by HUD. 

Use of Funds -- It has complied with the following criteria: 

1. Maximum Feasible Priority. With respect to activities expected to be assisted with CDBG funds, 
it certifies that it has developed its Action Plan so as to give maximum feasible priority to 
activities which benefit low and moderate income families or aid in the prevention or 
elimination of slums or blight. The Action Plan may also include activities which the grantee 
certifies are designed to meet other community development needs having a particular 
urgency because existing conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or 
welfare of the community, and other financial resources are not available); 

2. Overall Benefit. The aggregate use of CDBG funds including section 108 guaranteed loans 
during program year(s) ___2014__ , ______(a period specified by the grantee consisting of 
one, two, or three specific consecutive program years), shall principally benefit persons of 
low and moderate income in a manner that ensures that at least 70 percent of the amount 
is expended for activities that benefit such persons during the designated period; 

3. Special Assessments. It will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements 
assisted with CDBG funds including Section 108 loan guaranteed funds by assessing any amount 
against properties owned and occupied by persons of low and moderate income, including any 
fee charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to such public improvements. 

However, if CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of a fee or assessment that relates to 
the capital costs of public improvements (assisted in part with CDBG funds) financed from 
other revenue sources, an assessment or charge may be made against the property with 
respect to the public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds. 

The jurisdiction will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted 
with CDBG funds, including Section 108, unless CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of 
fee or assessment attributable to the capital costs of public improvements financed from other 
revenue sources. In this case, an assessment or charge may be made against the property with 
respect to the public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds. Also, in the 
case of properties owned and occupied by moderate-income (not low-income) families, an 
assessment or charge may be made against the property for public improvements financed by 
a source other than CDBG funds if the jurisdiction certifies that it lacks CDBG funds to cover 
the assessment. 

Excessive Force -- It has adopted and is enforcing: 

1. A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations; and 

2. A policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws against physically barring entrance to or 
exit from a facility or location which is the subject of such non-violent civil rights 
demonstrations within its jurisdiction; 

Compliance With Anti-discrimination laws -- The grant will be conducted and administered in 
conformity with title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000d), the Fair Housing Act (42 USC 
3601-3619), and implementing regulations. 

Lead-Based Paint -- Its activities concerning lead-based paint will comply with the requirements of 24 
CFR Part 35, subparts A, B, J, K and R; 

Compliance with Laws -- It will comply with applicable laws. 

 
            
Signature/Authorized Official     Date 
      
Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

 
 

APPENDIX TO CERTIFICATIONS 

INSTRUCTIONS CONCERNING LOBBYING: 

A. Lobbying Certification 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 
or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who 
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and 
not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 

 
            
Signature/Authorized Official     Date 

Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

moffetc
Typewritten Text

moffetc
Typewritten Text



  
OMB Number: 4040-0004 

Expiration Date: 04/31/2012 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424                                                                              Version 02 
*1.  Type of Submission 
  

  Preapplication 
  

  Application 
  

  Changed/Corrected Application 

*2. Type of Application            *If Revision, select appropriate letter(s): 
  

  New                                           
  

  Continuation                        * Other (Specify) 
  

  Revision                                     
*3.  Date Received:                                    4.  Application Identifier: 
                                                                
5a. Federal Entity Identifier:  
      
  

*5b. Federal Award Identifier: 
      
  

State Use Only: 
6.  Date Received by State:          7. State Application Identifier:        
8. APPLICANT INFORMATION: 
* a. Legal Name:          
* b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): 
      

*c.  Organizational DUNS: 
      

d. Address: 
*Street1:         
  Street 2:        
*City:             
  County:        
*State:            
  Province:        
  Country:                                                                        *Zip/ Postal Code:        
e. Organizational Unit: 
Department Name: 
      
  
  

Division Name: 
      

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application: 
  Prefix:                                                                     First Name:       
  Midd le N a me:       
*Last Name:       
  Suffix:       
 Title:  
      
 Organizational Affiliation: 
      
  
  
  
  
*Telephone Number:                                                            Fax Number:       
*Email:       

  
  
  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

gcornwel
Typewritten Text

moffetc
Typewritten Text
Exhibit D

moffetc
Typewritten Text



  
OMB Number: 4040-0004 

Expiration Date: 04/31/2012 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424                                                                              Version 02 
9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type: 
      
  
Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type: 
      
  
Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type: 
      
  
*Other (specify): 
      
*10. Name of Federal Agency: 
      
11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number: 
  
      
CFDA Title: 
  
      
  
*12.  Funding Opportunity Number: 
      
*Title: 
      
  
  
   
13.  Competition Identification Number: 
      
Title: 
      
  
  
  
14.  Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.): 
      
  
  
  
  
  
*15.  Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project: 
      
  
  
  
  
Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions. 

  
  
  
  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  
OMB Number: 4040-0004 

Expiration Date: 04/31/2012 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424                                                                              Version 02 
16. Congressional Districts Of: 
  
*a. Applicant                                                                    *b.  Program/Project:        
  
Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed. 
      
  
17. Proposed Project: 
  
*a. Start Date:                                                           *b. End Date:       
18. Estimated Funding ($): 
*a. Federal       
*b. Applicant       
*c. State       
*d. Local       
*e. Other       
*f. Program Income       
*g. TOTAL        
*19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process? 
  

 a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on       
 b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review. 
 c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372 

*20.  Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?  (If “Yes”,  provide explanation.) 
 Yes             No                      

  
21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements 
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply 
with any resulting terms if I accept an award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject 
me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001) 
  

  **I AGREE 
  

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or 
agency specific instructions. 
Authorized Representative: 
Prefix:                                                          *First Name:        
  
Midd le N ame:          
  
*Last Name:            
  
Suffix:                     
*Title:          
  
*Telephone Number:                                                                                    Fax Number:        
*Email:        
*Signature of Authorized Representative:                                                         Date Signed:        

  
  
  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

moffetc
Cross-Out



  
OMB Number: 4040-0004 

Expiration Date: 04/31/2012 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424                                                                              Version 02 
*Applicant Federal Debt Delinquency Explanation 
  

The following field should contain an explanation if the Applicant organization is delinquent on any Federal Debt. Maximum 
number of characters that can be entered is 4,000. Try and avoid extra spaces and carriage returns to maximize the availability of 
space. 
  
      
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Travis County HHS/VS
CDBG Office

502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.
P.O. Box 1748

Austin, TX 78767

Travis County HHS/VS
CDBG Office

502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.
P.O. Box 1748

Austin, TX 78767

Travis County HHS/VS
CDBG Office

502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.
P.O. Box 1748

Austin, TX 78767

Consolidated Plan
& aCtion Plan

Travis CounTy, Texas

Py 2014-2018Py 2014-2018Py 2014-2018
Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Travis County HHS/VS
CDBG Office
502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, TX 78767

Contributing Community Partners
Caritas of Austin

City of Austin Neighborhood Housing & Community Development (NHCD)
Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO)

Housing Authority of Travis County
Travis County Department of Transportation & Natural Resources

Travis County Health & Human Services and Veterans Service/Family Support Services

Contributing Writers
Travis County Department of Transportation and Natural Resources: Lee Turner

HHS/VS Research & Planning Division: Blanca Tapia Leahy/Division Director
Tara Carmean

Rachel Coff
Koren Darling

Courtney Bissonnet Lucas
Lawrence Lyman

Lori Miranda
Brook Son

Sandra Valenzuela
Elizabeth Vela

Questions or Comments?
Please contact the CDBG Office at cdbg@co.travis.tx.us

County Executive
Sherri E. Fleming

Lead Writers
Christy Copeland Moffett
Martha Brown
Elena Rivera

Travis County, Texas 
Consolidated Plan & Action Plan

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Travis County HHS/VS
CDBG Office
502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, TX 78767

Prepared by:
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service (HHS/VS)

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
Office of the County Executive

Approved by the TCCC on:
August 5, 2014

Consolidated Plan 
Program Years 2014-2018

Annual Action Plan 
Program Year 2014

An In-Depth Look At The Unincorporated Areas of Travis County

Travis County, Texas 
Consolidated Plan & Action Plan

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Ron Davis
County Commissioner

Precinct One

Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

Travis County, Texas 
Commissioners Court

Bruce Todd
County Commissioner

Precinct Two

Margaret Gómez
County Commissioner

Precinct Four

Gerald Daugherty
County Commissioner

Precinct Three

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

NOTE ON THE DRAFT 
 
 

Starting in 2012, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) required all 
jurisdictions to draft and submit Consolidated Plans using an automated tool called the eCon Planning 
Suite.  This is the first cycle for Travis County to use the tool. The Consolidated Plan created using the 
eCon Planning Suite will be organized differently than the past Consolidated Plans.  As with any new 
tool, glitches and problems occur.   
 

Many of the tables in the draft were auto-populated with data, and specifically all the tables relating to 
housing problems were auto-populated using a data set referred to as CHAS data. CHAS data is a 
special data set that HUD creates using cross tabulations of Census data relating to household type and 
housing problems.  The total number of households in the CHAS data tables varies widely across the 
required tables.  This makes it difficult to provide accurate analysis or comparison with prior year’s 
data. 
 
Additionally, in some cases data points appear as zeroes, when a number should be provided. When 
possible CDBG staff found an alternate source of data and added it to tables, but in certain cases no 
alternate was available and a zero still appears in the table, which may also result in inaccurately 
calculated percentages.   
 
Other formatting errors, such as reversal of column headings also occurred.  Staff made every attempt 
to correct these errors in the draft, but some errors may still remain. Should any such errors be 
identified they will be corrected in the final draft.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

ACRONYMS 
Throughout this report, the reader will note the following acronyms: 
 
 

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act 

AI Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice 

AP Action Plan 

CAPER Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report  

CDBG   Community Development Block Grant 

CFR Code of Federal Regulation 

Con Plan Consolidated Plan (governs CDBG Programs) 

CPD Community Planning and Development (part of HUD) 

CPP Citizen Participation Plan 

EA Environmental Assessment 

ESG  Emergency Shelter Grant 

FHA Federal Housing Administration (part of HUD) 

FSS Family Support Services (a Travis County Social Service Program) 

HACT Housing Authority of Travis County 

HHS/VS Travis County Department of Health & Human Service and Veteran Services 

HOME  HOME Investment Partnership Program (HUD’s Program) 

HOPWA Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HUD’s Program) 

HTE Accounting Software used by Travis County 

HUD United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

IDIS Integrated Disbursement Information System  
(HUD's Financial Management System) 

LMI Low- and Moderate-Income (80% or below median household income) 

MFI Median Family Income 

OMB Office of Management and Budget 

PY Program Year 

PY14 Program Year 2014 

RFP Request for Proposals 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

TC Travis County 

TCHFC Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 

TxDOT Texas Department of Transportation  

TNR Travis County Department of Transportation and Natural Resources 

URA Uniform Relocation Act 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .............................................................................................................................. 1     
 
SECTION II: THE PROCESS ........................................................................................................................................... 4 
  

II.A. Lead and Responsible Agencies ............................................................................................................. 4 

II.B. Consultation      ......................................................................................................................................  5 

II.C. Citizen Participation   ...........................................................................................................................  23 

 
SECTION III: NEEDS ASSESSMENT ............................................................................................................................. 30 
 

III.A. Housing Needs Assessment ................................................................................................................ 32 

III.B. Homeless Needs Assessment .............................................................................................................. 52 

III.C. Non-Homeless Special Needs Assessment .......................................................................................... 57 

III.D. Non-Housing Community Development Needs .................................................................................. 61 

 
SECTION IV: HOUSING MARKET ANALYSIS ............................................................................................................... 66 
 

IV.A. Number of Housing Units ................................................................................................................... 67 
IV.B. Cost of Housing ................................................................................................................................... 71 

IV.C. Condition of Housing ........................................................................................................................... 74 

IV.D. Public and Assisted Housing ............................................................................................................... 77 

IV.E. Homeless Facilities and Services ......................................................................................................... 79 

IV.F. Special Needs Facilities and Services ................................................................................................... 82 

IV.G. Barriers to Affordable Housing ........................................................................................................... 85 

IV.H. Non-Housing Community Development Assets ................................................................................. 87 

 
SECTION V: STRATEGIC PLAN ................................................................................................................................... 97 
 

V.A.  Geographic Priorities........................................................................................................................... 98   
V.B.  Anticipated Resources ....................................................................................................................... 106 

V.C.  Institutional Delivery Structure ......................................................................................................... 108 

V.D.  Goals Summary  ................................................................................................................................ 111 

V.E.  Barriers to Affordable Housing .......................................................................................................... 114 

V.F.  Homelessness Strategy ...................................................................................................................... 116 

V.G.  Lead-Based Paint Hazards ................................................................................................................. 118 

V.H.  Anti-Poverty Strategy ........................................................................................................................ 119 

V.I.  Monitoring       ................................................................................................................................  120 

 
SECTION VI: ANNUAL ACTION PLAN     ................................................................................................................... 122 
 

VI.A.  Expected Resources ......................................................................................................................... 122   
VI.B.  Annual Goals and Objectives............................................................................................................ 124 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

VI.C.  Projects  ...................................................................................................................................... 126 

VI.D.  Geographic Distribution ................................................................................................................... 133 

VI.E.  Affordable Housing ........................................................................................................................... 134 

VI.F.  Public Housing   ................................................................................................................................ 135 

VI.G.  Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities ................................................................................. 136 

VI.H.  Barriers to Affordable Housing ........................................................................................................ 137 

VI.H.  Other Actions    ................................................................................................................................ 138 

VI.I.  Program Specific Requirements .......................................................................................................  140 

 

APPENDICES 

 
A. Public Participation ............................................................................................................................. 144  

B. Maps                    .................................................................................................................................. 184  

C. Housing Inventory ............................................................................................................................... 193  

D. Additional Text for Public Services...................................................................................................... 204 

E. PY14 Projects                    ..................................................................................................................... 212  

F. Key Findings from the Needs Assessment .......................................................................................... 247 

  

 

 
 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     1 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

I.  Executive Summary 

Introduction 

Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 5301), 

the Federal government, through the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), 

sponsors a program that provides Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) to cities and counties 

to develop viable urban communities by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment and 

by expanding economic opportunities for low- and moderate-income persons. Since 2006, Travis County 

has received CDBG funds from HUD on an annual basis. 

Designated as the lead agency by the Travis County Commissioners Court, the Health and Human 

Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) prepares and submits this Consolidated Plan to 

HUD. HHS/VS oversees the public notification process, approval of projects, and the administration of 

these grants. 

The Consolidated Plan for Program Years 2014 to 2018 (PY 2014–2018) presents a coordinated approach 

for addressing Travis County’s housing and community development needs for the next five years. A 

new Consolidated Plan is prepared every three to five years. It combines, in one report, important 

information about Travis County demographics, as well as detailed information on the housing and 

other community development needs of its residents, focusing on the unincorporated areas and the 

Village of Webberville. For each succeeding year, the County is required to prepare a one-year Action 

Plan to notify the public and HUD of the County’s intended actions during that fiscal year. 

The Action Plan for Program Year 2014 (PY14) is the County’s strategy for addressing the community’s 

critical housing and community development needs in the CDBG service area. This Plan is developed 

under the guidelines established by HUD. The Plan allocates a total of $997,649 for PY14, which will 

assist low- and moderate-income Travis County households in the unincorporated areas with 

infrastructure improvements, home rehabilitation, and public services. 

Community engagement and participation is an essential goal of this program and the residents of Travis 

County were instrumental in developing this Plan. County staff drew on a variety of data sources to 

provide a quantitative analysis of community needs and provided multiple opportunities to collect 

public input. The draft Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan will be available for public review and 

additional comments will be received at two public hearings and considered in the final preparation of 

the Plan. 

At the end of each fiscal year, the County must also prepare a Consolidated Annual Performance 

Evaluation Report (CAPER) to provide information to HUD and the public to evaluate the County’s 

performance and to determine whether the activities undertaken during the program year helped to 

meet the County’s three-year goals and to address priority needs identified in the Consolidated Plan and 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     2 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

the Annual Action Plan. This annual performance report, prepared with public review and comment, 

must be submitted to HUD annually, no later than December 31.  

Summary of the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan Needs Assessment Overview 

The following table summarizes the priorities for the Consolidated Plan period. For a detailed discussion 

of priorities and objectives for the Consolidated Plan period, please refer to the Strategic Plan. For a 

detailed discussion of projects, please refer to the Action Plan. 

After considering the housing, community development, and public service needs of Travis County’s 

low- to moderate-income residents in the Needs Section of this Plan, along with public engagement 

efforts, Travis County Commissioners Court identified the following priorities as the focus for the five-

year consolidated planning period. 

Category Ranking 

Infrastructure High 

Housing High 

Community Services High 

Populations with Specialized Needs High 

Public Buildings and Facilities Low 

Business and Jobs Low 

            Table 1 - Priorities for the PY14-PY18 Consolidated Plan 

Based on these priorities, the following projects were approved by the Commissioners Court for PY14: 

Project Allocation 

Acquisition of Land to Support New Rental Housing $343,010 

Street Improvements: Forest Bluff $125,000 

Owner Occupied Housing:  Home Rehabilitation $200,000 

Social Work Expansion $80,110 

Tenants’ Rights & Fair Housing Counseling $ 50,000 

Administration & Planning $199,529 

      Table 2 - PY14 Projects 

Evaluation of past performance 

Program Year 2013 (PY13) marked the eighth year Travis County has received CDBG funds. Funds from 

PY08-PY13 are currently being spent. As projects are implemented, internal monitoring is taking place to 

assure grant compliance and project effectiveness. HUD monitored Travis County’s CDBG program in 

April 2010 and June 2013 with no findings and one concern related to timely spending of funds. The 

County's external auditor also reviewed the program in 2013 and had no findings. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     3 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

As part of the mandate from Congress to administer the CDBG program, each year HUD determines 

whether each CDBG entitlement is carrying out its activities “in a timely manner.” HUD conducts an 

analysis of each entitlement’s timeliness of spending 10 months into each grant year. For Travis County, 

the test occurs every August. The threshold for compliance with timeliness is having no more than 1.5 

times the current year’s allocation unspent. While the County's CDBG program has struggled to achieve 

timeliness throughout its history, it is on track to achieve compliance this year. 

Since timeliness has been a key issue for the Program, strategic decisions were made with the PY14 

projects as well as the PY14-18 goals. Projects and funding amounts were influenced by the following 

four decisions: 1) create a list of alternative street improvements projects which do not have to be 

designed and can be implemented by County employees (this allows the County to swap out a slow 

project as late as April or May and still achieve timeliness); 2) fully fund administration and planning to 

increase the half time planner to three quarter time, increasing capacity to administer the program; 3) 

fund projects in smaller pieces; and 4) restrict the amount of funding to any particular project to less 

than $400,000 resulting in the program not being dependent on one project's success to achieve 

timeliness. 

Summary of citizen participation process and consultation process 

For the PY 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, information on community needs was 

gathered through a variety of mechanisms. During the months of February and March 2014, the public 

and service providers had the opportunity to provide input by: 1) attending one of six public hearings, 2) 

completing a Needs Assessment survey, 3) completing a project proposal form, and/or 4) attending a 

forum for service providers. As a result of the public participation process: 

 22 people attended the public hearings, 

 65 responses were received for the Needs Assessment Survey, 

 7 project proposals were received, and 

 19 individuals representing 17 agencies attended the Service Providers Forum.   

For more details and the full results of the process, please refer to "Appendix A: Public Participation." 

After presentation to the Commissioners Court, the draft of the Consolidated Plan was posted for public 

comment for thirty days.  

Summary of public comments 

Comments received during the public engagement hearings in February and March and during the 

public comment period can be found in Appendix A. 

Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them 

All comments were accepted.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     4 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

II.  The Process 

II.A.  Lead & Responsible Agencies 

Describe agency/entity responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those 

responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source 

The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those 

responsible for administration of each grant program and funding source. 

Agency Role Name Department/Agency 

CDBG Administrator TRAVIS COUNTY Health and Human Services and Veterans Services 

Table 3 – Responsible Agencies 

 
Narrative 

The HHS/VS Department is the lead county agency responsible for the administration of the County’s 

CDBG funding. This Department has the primary responsibility of assessing community needs, 

developing the Consolidated Plan and annual Action Plans, managing project activities in conjunction 

with other county departments and community partners, administering the finances, and monitoring 

and reporting. The CDBG office is located in the Office of the County Executive within HHS/VS. The 

Department reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court for oversight authority. 

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information 

Christy Copeland Moffett, MSSW  

CDBG Planning Manager 

Office of the County Executive 

Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 

P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX  78767 

P: 512.854.3460 F: 512.854.7140 

www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     5 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

II.B.  Consultation  

Introduction 

For the PY 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, service providers had the opportunity to 

provide input by 1) attending a forum, 2) completing a Needs Assessment survey, and 3) and providing 

data and information through individual consultations with CDBG staff.  

To assist in determining the spending priorities for PY14-18, service providers were asked to rank six 

categories on a scale of 1 to 6, with 1 being the most important issue area to address and 6 being the 

least important. Providers were also asked to rank specific activities within each category, with 1 being 

the most important need to address.   

To assist in determining the spending priorities for PY14, service providers were asked to rank three of 

the six categories  as “most urgent” “urgent” and “important” needs for the PY14 period. Additionally, 

Project Proposals were solicited from residents, nonprofits and Travis County departments to identify 

potential projects for PY14 and help determine community needs for the PY 2014-2018 Consolidated 

Plan. 

Finally, a forum for service providers was held to help identify needs and gaps in service in the 

unincorporated areas, and opportunities for coordination over the Consolidated Planning period. As 

needed, individual consultations were conducted with specific agencies to collect necessary data and 

information.   

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between 

public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health 

and service agencies (91.215(I)) 

On March 21, 2014, Travis County Health & Human Services, CDBG Program staff held a public forum for 

service providers and agencies whose current or planned service area includes, or potentially includes, 

communities in need within the CDBG service area. The forum was held at the Del Valle Community 

Center, which is located in the unincorporated area. Since the need for services outside the urban core 

is increasing as our population continues to be displaced outside the urban core, especially due to rising 

housing prices and lack of affordable housing, this location was specifically selected to get service 

providers out into the CDBG service area. 

The overall goal of the forum was to help identify potential opportunities for collaboration or 

coordination to supplement or expand existing services within the CDBG service area over the next five 

years. More specifically, the forum sought to determine which services are available and which are 

lacking in the CDBG service area, in order to help service providers determine what services they can 

provide in these outlying areas; and to discuss how the County’s CDBG Program staff can help support 

this shift to extending services into the unincorporated areas. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     6 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

As a result of this forum, CDBG staff plan to undertake several actions that will assist providers in 

extending services into the unincorporated areas.  These actions include: producing a document that 

can be used by service providers that includes information on specific neighborhoods including maps, 

demographics, and currently available services; van tours of neighborhoods to familiarize providers with 

the area and its conditions; and the ongoing provision of information about the unincorporated areas 

and advocacy for its residents.  

Between direct invitations via email and indirect invitations via email and/or newsletters sent out by 

Community Action Network (CAN) and/or OneVoice Central Texas (coalitions that bring together 

government, non-profit, private and faith-based organizations who provide services in Central Texas), 

over 100 agencies were invited to the forum. Nineteen providers attended the forum, representing 17 

agencies. 

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of 

homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with 

children, veterans, and unaccompanied youth) and persons at risk of homelessness 

The CDBG funded Social Work project will assist in piloting the Coordinated Assessment system in areas 

outside the urban core.  Additionally, HHS/VS staff participate on the Independent Review Team, 

Membership Council, Housing Committee, and the Family Support Services Division provide 

homelessness prevention services.  Finally, HHS/VS staff provide general fund dollars to variety of 

agencies that work on homelessness issues through its social service contract investments. 

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction's area in 

determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards and evaluate 

outcomes, and develop funding, policies and procedures for the administration of HMIS 

The jurisdiction does not have ESG funds.  However, CDBG staff participate in ECHO's Membership 

Council which serves as a liaison between the ECHO Board and the ECHO Members. The Council 

oversees and coordinates for homeless planning, housing, events and activities in addition to working 

with the Board to address policy, communication, and funding issues. 

Describe Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process and 

describe the jurisdictions consultations with housing, social service agencies and other 

entities 

See the table below. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     7 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

1 Agency/Group/Organization Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homelessness Strategy 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Market Analysis 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

CDBG staff worked directly with ECHO staff to 

complete sections of the plan related to 

homelessness.  ECHO staff provided data and language 

for inclusion and reviewed sections drafted by CDBG. 

Additionally, ECHO staff attended the Forum for 

Providers and completed the Needs Assessment 

Survey. CDBG staff anticipate working with ECHO over 

the Consolidated Planning period to bring the 

coordinated assessment system outside the urban 

core. 

2 Agency/Group/Organization Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type PHA 

Other government - Local 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Public Housing Needs 

Market Analysis 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

CDBG staff worked directly with HATC staff to 

complete sections of the plan related to public 

housing.  HATC staff provided data and language for 

inclusion and reviewed sections drafted by CDBG. 

CDBG and HATC will look for opportunities to create 

Multi-family housing units outside of the urban core 

and work together to implement goals identified in 

the Fair Housing Plan. 

3 Agency/Group/Organization Vaughn House 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Persons with Disabilities 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     8 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

4 Agency/Group/Organization Ascend Center for Learning 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Education 

Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

5 Agency/Group/Organization Easter Seals of Central Texas 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Services-Employment 

Service-Fair Housing 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

6 Agency/Group/Organization AIDS Services of Austin 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 

Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     9 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. The agency also completed the Needs 

Assessment survey which is used to help identify 

strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 

period and areas of investment for the next program 

year. 

7 Agency/Group/Organization Austin Community College 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

8 Agency/Group/Organization Boys and Girls Club of the Austin Area 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. The agency also completed the Needs 

Assessment survey which is used to help identify 

strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 

period and areas of investment for the next program 

year. 

9 Agency/Group/Organization Volunteer Healthcare Clinic 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Health Agency 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     10 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

10 Agency/Group/Organization Austin ISD 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. The agency also completed the Needs 

Assessment survey which is used to help identify 

strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 

period and areas of investment for the next program 

year. 

11 Agency/Group/Organization Austin's Colony HOA 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Civic Leaders 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The organization completed the Needs Assessment 

survey which is used to help identify strategic 

priorities for the Consolidated Planning period and 

areas of investment for the next program year. 

12 Agency/Group/Organization Jeremiah Program 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-homeless 

Services-Education 

Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     11 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

13 Agency/Group/Organization Groups United Advocating Responsible Development 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

14 Agency/Group/Organization Out Youth 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 

Services-homeless 

Services-Education 

Child Welfare Agency 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

15 Agency/Group/Organization Caritas of Austin 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-homeless 

Services-Education 

Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     12 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

16 Agency/Group/Organization Wright House Wellness Center 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

17 Agency/Group/Organization Child Protective Services 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

Child Welfare Agency 

Other government - Local 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

18 Agency/Group/Organization Capital IDEA Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     13 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

19 
Agency/Group/Organization 

City of Austin – Neighborhood Housing Community 

Development 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Other government - Local 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Market Analysis 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

CDBG staff worked with COA staff to identify units for 

the affordable housing inventory.  Additionally, COA 

staff completed the Needs Assessment survey which is 

used to help identify strategic priorities for the 

Consolidated Planning period and areas of investment 

for the next program year. 

20 Agency/Group/Organization Planned Parenthood of Greater Texas 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Health Agency 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. The agency also completed the Needs 

Assessment survey which is used to help identify 

strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 

period and areas of investment for the next program 

year. 

21 Agency/Group/Organization Any Baby Can 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     14 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. The agency also completed the Needs 

Assessment survey which is used to help identify 

strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 

period and areas of investment for the next program 

year. 

22 Agency/Group/Organization YWCA of Greater Austin 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Mental Health 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. The agency also completed the Needs 

Assessment survey which is used to help identify 

strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 

period and areas of investment for the next program 

year. 

23 Agency/Group/Organization Workers Assistance Program 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 

Services-Health 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

24 Agency/Group/Organization TX Dept. of State Health Services 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Health Agency 

Other government - State 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     15 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

25 Agency/Group/Organization Seedling Foundation 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

26 Agency/Group/Organization Sustainable Food Center 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Food Insecurity, Food Resources 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

27 Agency/Group/Organization The Arc of the Capital Area 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Persons with Disabilities 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     16 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

28 Agency/Group/Organization Workforce Solutions 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

29 Agency/Group/Organization Communities in Schools 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

Services-Education 

Publicly Funded Institution/System of Care 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

30 Agency/Group/Organization Pflugerville ISD 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

31 Agency/Group/Organization Goodwill of Central Texas 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

Services-homeless 

Services-Education 

Services-Employment 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     17 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

32 Agency/Group/Organization Skillpoint Alliance 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Education 

Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. The agency also completed the Needs 

Assessment survey which is used to help identify 

strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 

period and areas of investment for the next program 

year. 

33 Agency/Group/Organization Family Eldercare 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

34 Agency/Group/Organization Big Brothers Big Sisters of Central Texas 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     18 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

35 Agency/Group/Organization Capital Area Food Bank of Texas 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. The agency also completed the Needs 

Assessment survey which is used to help identify 

strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 

period and areas of investment for the next program 

year. 

36 Agency/Group/Organization H.A.N.D. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Health 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. The agency also completed the Needs 

Assessment survey which is used to help identify 

strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 

period and areas of investment for the next program 

year. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     19 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

37 Agency/Group/Organization Child Inc. Early Development 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. The agency also completed the Needs 

Assessment survey which is used to help identify 

strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 

period and areas of investment for the next program 

year. 

38 Agency/Group/Organization Austin Tenants’ Council 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Service-Fair Housing 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. The agency also completed the Needs 

Assessment survey which is used to help identify 

strategic priorities for the Consolidated Planning 

period and areas of investment for the next program 

year. 

39 Agency/Group/Organization SafePlace 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     20 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

40 Agency/Group/Organization City of Round Rock 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Other government - Local 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency completed the Needs Assessment survey 

which is used to help identify strategic priorities for 

the Consolidated Planning period and areas of 

investment for the next program year. 

41 Agency/Group/Organization Green Doors 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services - Housing 

Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. 

42 Agency/Group/Organization Austin Travis County Integral Care (ATCIC) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Publicly Funded Institution/System of Care 

Services-Mental Health 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     21 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

43 Agency/Group/Organization Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services - Housing 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Market Analysis 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

CDBG staff consulted with MOWAM staff to assist in 

the assessment of the need for home repairs in the 

unincorporated areas.  Additionally, the agency 

attended the Provider's Forum.  It is anticipated that 

CDBG staff and the agency will be able to coordinate 

efforts to expand service provision outside the urban 

core over the Consolidated Planning period. 

44 Agency/Group/Organization American YouthWorks 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. 

45 Agency/Group/Organization Community Action Network (CAN) 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Regional organization 

Planning organization 

What section of the Plan was addressed 

by Consultation? 

Needs Assessment 

How was the 

Agency/Group/Organization consulted 

and what are the anticipated outcomes 

of the consultation or areas for improved 

coordination? 

The agency attended the Provider's Forum.  It is 

anticipated that CDBG staff and the agency will be 

able to coordinate efforts to expand service provision 

outside the urban core over the Consolidated Planning 

period. 

Table 4 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     22 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting 

The invitation to attend the Provider's Forum and complete the Needs Assessment survey was sent 

through a variety of channels, including the Community Action Network (CAN) newsletter.  Business 

leaders were included in the invitation list, however none chose to participate.   

Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan 

Name of Plan Lead Organization 
How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with 

the goals of each plan? 

Continuum of Care ECHO No specific goals are included for Federal funding, 

however non-Federal sources of funding are 

coordinated. 

COA Consolidated 

Plan 

COA NHCD Housing is a high priority for both plans 

Table 5 – Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 

 

Describe cooperation and coordination with other public entities, including the State and any 

adjacent units of general local government, in the implementation of the Consolidated Plan 

(91.215(l)) 

CDBG staff will work with the Housing Authority of Travis County and the Travis County Housing Finance 

Corporation to implement the actions outlined in the Fair Housing Plan.  CDBG staff will also work to 

coordinate efforts with the transportation agencies Capital Metro and CARTS to expand access to 

transportation to residents of the unincorporated areas.   

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     23 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

II.C.  Citizen Participation 

Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation - 

Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal-setting 

For the PY 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, information on community needs was 

gathered through a variety of mechanisms. During the months of February and March 2014, the public 

and service providers had the opportunity to provide input by 1) attending one of six public hearings, 2) 

completing a survey, 3) completing a project proposal form, and 4) attending a forum for service 

providers.  

To assist in determining the spending priorities for PY14–18, residents and service providers were asked 

to rank six categories on a scale of 1 to 6, with 1 being the most important issue area to address and 6 

being the least important.  Residents and providers were also asked to rank specific activities within 

each category, with 1 being the most important need to address.   

To assist in determining the spending priorities for PY14, residents and service providers were asked to 

rank three of the six categories  as “most urgent” “urgent” and “important” needs for the PY14 

period.  Additionally, Project Proposals were solicited from residents, nonprofits and Travis County 

departments to identify potential projects for PY14 and help determine community needs for the PY 

2014-2018 Consolidated Plan. 

Finally, a forum for service providers was held to help identify needs and gaps in service in the 

unincorporated areas, and opportunities for coordination over the Consolidated Planning period.  

After presentation to the Commissioners Court, the draft of the Consolidated Plan was posted for public 

comment for thirty days.   

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     24 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Citizen Participation Outreach 

 
Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of 
Outreach 

Summary of 
response/attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of 
comments 

not accepted 
and reasons 

URL 
(if applicable) 

1 Public 

Hearing 

Non-

targeted/ 

broad 

community 

Two meetings were held at Travis 

County Commissioners Court to 

gather information for the Needs 

Assessment.  These public hearings 

were held in the traditional public 

hearing format with oral testimony. 

Two individuals provided 

comments. Two additional hearings 

were held to receive comments on 

the draft of the Consolidated Plan 

during the public comment period. 

One individual provided comments 

at the first of these hearings. 

Two individuals commented at the 

Needs Assessment public hearings. 

One individual requested information 

on the amount of the CDBG grant, 

number of beneficiaries and 

qualifications for the program.  One 

individual stated that he thought 

ECHO's 2014 Point-In-Time count did 

not accurately reflect the homeless 

population of Austin/Travis County. 

One individual commented at the first 

hearing during the public comment 

period. This individual requested 

information on CDBG eligibility 

requirements. Please refer to the 

Appendix, "Public Participation" for a 

full transcript of comments received. 

    

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     25 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 
Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of 
Outreach 

Summary of 
response/attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of 
comments 

not accepted 
and reasons 

URL 
(if applicable) 

2 Public 

Meeting 

Non-

targeted/ 

broad 

community 

A total of 20 people attended one of 

the four community meetings held 

in each of the four precincts. 

Participants were asked for input 

regarding their housing, community 

development and public service 

needs. These meetings were 

structured as an information session 

regarding the uses of CDBG, with 

facilitated discussion and decision-

making for meaningful, 

comprehensive input from 

participants regarding their housing, 

community development and public 

service needs. For detailed results 

please refer to the Appendix "Public 

Participation." 

Not applicable   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     26 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 
Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of 
Outreach 

Summary of 
response/attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of 
comments 

not accepted 
and reasons 

URL 
(if applicable) 

3 Newspaper 

Ad 

Minorities 

  

Non-

English 

Speaking - 

Specify 

other 

language: 

Spanish 

  

Non-

targeted/ 

broad 

community 

An advertisement for the 

community meetings appeared in 

the following newspapers of general 

circulation: The Austin Chronicle, 

Pflugerville Pflag, Hill Country News, 

Oak Hill Gazette, and The Villager. 

To reach the Spanish speaking 

population the advertisement 

appeared in the Spanish language 

newspaper Ahora Sí. The invitation 

to comment on Draft of the 

Consolidated Plan was released 

through all the same channels. For 

copies of the ads please refer to the 

appendix "Public Participation." 

Not applicable Not applicable   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     27 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 
Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of 
Outreach 

Summary of 
response/attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of 
comments 

not accepted 
and reasons 

URL 
(if applicable) 

4 Internet 

Outreach 

Non-

English 

Speaking - 

Specify 

other 

language: 

Spanish 

  

Non-

targeted/ 

broad 

community 

The advertisement for community 

meetings was placed on the Travis 

County CDBG website in both 

English and Spanish and a link to the 

ads was placed on the main page of 

the Travis County website.  

Additionally, the public participation 

form was available on the Travis 

County CDBG website in both 

English and Spanish. Finally, an 

email with information about the 

community meetings was sent to 

the general CDBG email list which 

includes residents, service providers 

and other entities that have 

indicated an interest in receiving 

information on the CDBG program. 

The invitation to comment on Draft 

of the Consolidated Plan was 

released through all the same 

channels. 

Not applicable Not applicable http://www.co.tr

avis.tx.us/health_

human_services/

cdbg/participate.

asp 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     28 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 
Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of 
Outreach 

Summary of 
response/attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of 
comments 

not accepted 
and reasons 

URL 
(if applicable) 

5 Survey Non-

English 

Speaking - 

Specify 

other 

language: 

Spanish 

  

Non-

targeted/ 

broad 

community 

A total of 59 surveys were 

completed by representatives from 

nonprofit agencies and units of local 

government. A total of 6 residents 

completed surveys to provide input 

on the Consolidated Plan. The 

resident survey was available in 

English and Spanish. 

Residents ranked "Infrastructure," 

"Community Services," and "Housing" 

as the most important needs for the 

Consolidated Planning period.  

Providers ranked "Housing," 

"Community Services," and 

"Populations with Specialized Needs" 

as the most important needs for the 

period. Residents ranked 

"Infrastructure," "Housing," and 

"Community Services" as the most 

urgent needs for the PY14 Action Plan 

period.  Providers ranked "Housing," 

"Community Services," and 

"Populations with Specialized Needs" 

as the most urgent needs for the 

period. For detailed results please 

refer to the appendix "Public 

participation." 

Not applicable   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     29 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 
Mode of  
Outreach 

Target of 
Outreach 

Summary of 
response/attendance 

Summary of 
comments received 

Summary of 
comments 

not accepted 
and reasons 

URL 
(if applicable) 

6 Mailing Non-

English 

Speaking - 

Specify 

other 

language: 

Spanish 

  

Non-

targeted/ 

broad 

community 

The notice advertising the 

community meetings (in English and 

Spanish) was mailed to the general 

CDBG mailing list which includes 

residents, service providers and 

other entities that have indicated an 

interest in receiving information on 

the CDBG program. The invitation to 

comment on the Draft Consolidated 

Plan was mailed to the same list. 

Not applicable Not applicable   

7 Social 

Media 

Non-

targeted/ 

broad 

community 

Information about all public 

hearings, the Needs Assessment 

survey and the invitation to 

comment on the draft document 

were posted to the CDBG Facebook 

page and Twitter account. 

Not applicable Not applicable https://twitter.co

m/TravisCoCDBG 

8 Television Non-

targeted/ 

broad 

community 

Information about the public 

hearings scheduled during the 

public comment period, and the 

invitation to comment on the draft 

ran on the Travis County Television 

station throughout the public 

comment period. 

Not applicable Not applicable   

Table 6 – Citizen Participation Outreach 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     30 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

III.  Needs Assessment 

Overview 

The following section provides an analysis of the needs of the residents of the CDBG service area. It is 

based on a variety of data sources and information gathered during the public participation process and 

surveys.  A brief summary of key findings follows, for a more detailed summary of data please refer to 

"Appendix F: Key Findings from the Needs Analysis."   

Housing 

 Rapid population growth in the Austin area has resulted in an imbalance between supply and 

demand in the housing market, the most recent data shows a historically low housing inventory. 

 Housing prices and rents have been steadily increasing in Travis County, while median incomes 

have not increased at the same rate. 

 Cost burden (paying more than 30% of income towards housing costs) is the most prevalent 

housing problem facing Travis County residents.  

 Residents of the unincorporated areas indicate that the most urgent need related to housing is 

repairs for owner occupied housing.  

Infrastructure 

 Residents consistently rank Infrastructure as the highest priority need in the unincorporated 

area. 

 Precincts 1, 3, and 4, in particular, have a high need for water/wastewater improvements. 

 Many residents of unincorporated areas rely on septic systems, many of which are in need of 

repair or replacement, which can be very costly. 

 There are approximately 400 miles of roadway in unincorporated areas that are not on the 

County maintained system. 

 Neighborhoods may apply to the County’s Substandard Road Program for funds; however, the 

only option for low and moderate income neighborhoods may be through the CDBG program. 

 Due to recent severe flood events, significant flood drainage improvements and/or repairs are 

needed, especially in the E/SE parts of the county. 

Community Services 

 Residents and Social Service Agencies both rank Community Services as the second highest 

priority for the planning period. 

 Of the current social service contract investments made by the Department, approximately 5% 

of the services are being provided to persons living in the unincorporated areas, and another 

25% to residents in areas that are mixed incorporated and unincorporated. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     31 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Public Buildings and Facilities 

 Residents, primarily from E/SE and W/SW Travis County, have requested the following types of 

public facilities: neighborhood parks (including playgrounds and walking trails), recreational 

centers, community centers, health facilities, and childcare centers 

 Some of these types of public facilities, in particular, parks and community centers, are available 

in the unincorporated areas, even these public facilities may not be accessible to residents 

without, or with limited, access to personal or public transportation 

Populations with Specialized Needs 

 Approximately 5% of clients receiving services for the elderly, persons with disabilities, victims 

of domestic violence, or persons living with HIV/AIDS were from the unincorporated areas of the 

county.  Another 24% live in areas that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated.  

Business and Jobs 

 According to the Texas Workforce Commission, in 2013, there was an increase in the number of 

jobs in every major industry in Texas. 

 And as of December 2013, the unemployment rate for Travis County (4.5%) has consistently 

remained lower than the state (5.6%) and national (6.5%) rates.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     32 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

III.A.  Housing Needs Assessment 

Summary of Housing Needs 

The following section assesses the housing needs and problems faced by residents of Travis County.  A 

variety of data sets are used including U.S. Census data, information gathered through the public 

outreach process and a special tabulation of Census data prepared by the U.S. Department of Housing 

and Urban Development (HUD), referred to as CHAS data.  Please note that there appear to be 

discrepancies between the totals reported in the various CHAS data tables.  At the time of report 

drafting, the Travis County CDBG office has requested clarification from HUD regarding these 

discrepancies but has not yet received a response.  Analysis is based on the data that is available, but 

comparisons cannot be made across all tables. 

Housing problems are defined as a household having any one of the following: a cost burden greater 

than 30% of income, overcrowding and/or housing without complete kitchen or plumbing 

facilities.  According to CHAS data, a total of 15,468 households in the unincorporated areas of Travis 

County have at least one housing problem. 

Very Low Income households are defined as earning less than 30% of Area Median Income (AMI); Low 

Income households are defined as earning between 30% and 50% of AMI; Moderate Income Households 

are defined as earning between 50% and 80% AMI.  AMI is calculated annually by the U.S. Department 

of Housing and Urban Development. Very low income and low income households face housing 

problems at the highest rates:  89% of very low income households and 82% of low income households 

face at least one housing problem.  By comparison, 57 % of moderate income households face one or 

more housing problem. 

Having a cost burden is the most prevalent housing problem for residents of the unincorporated 

areas.  Thirty-four percent of households report paying more than 30% of income toward housing 

costs.  By contrast, only 1% of households report the next most common problem - overcrowding. 

 

Demographics Base Year:  2000 Most Recent Year:  2010 % Change 

Population 124,153 163,923 32% 

Households 44,681 58,685 31% 

Median Income $46,761.00 $54,074.00 14% 

Table 7 - Housing Needs Assessment Demographics 
Data Source: 2000 Census (Base Year), 2006-2010 ACS (Most Recent Year) 

 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     33 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Number of Households Table 

 0-30% 
HAMFI 

>30-50% 
HAMFI 

>50-80% 
HAMFI 

>80-100% 
HAMFI 

>100% 
HAMFI 

Total Households * 4,649 5,195 9,445 5,220 34,170 

Small Family Households * 1,654 2,238 4,419 2,445 21,010 

Large Family Households * 345 714 1,159 640 3,459 

Household contains at least one 

person 62-74 years of age 644 644 1,098 645 4,519 

Household contains at least one 

person age 75 or older 338 430 535 175 1,155 

Households with one or more 

children 6 years old or younger * 1,050 1,453 2,339 1,160 7,078 

* the highest income category for these family types is >80% HAMFI 
Table 8 - Total Households Table 

Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     34 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Housing Needs Summary Tables 

Housing Problems (Households with one of the listed needs) 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Substandard 

Housing - 

Lacking 

complete 

plumbing or 

kitchen facilities 30 15 40 0 85 130 40 70 0 240 

Severely 

Overcrowded - 

With >1.51 

people per room 

(and complete 

kitchen and 

plumbing) 35 35 10 0 80 35 0 69 15 119 

Overcrowded - 

With 1.01-1.5 

people per room 

(and none of the 

above problems) 65 113 50 24 252 60 120 250 55 485 

Housing cost 

burden greater 

than 50% of 

income (and 

none of the 

above problems) 1,984 1,175 200 50 3,409 1,200 1,169 1,145 379 3,893 

Housing cost 

burden greater 

than 30% of 

income (and 

none of the 

above problems) 164 1,070 1,344 320 2,898 299 544 2,219 945 4,007 

Zero/negative 

Income (and 

none of the 

above problems) 195 0 0 0 195 129 0 0 0 129 

Table 9 – Housing Problems Table 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     35 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Housing Problems 2 (Households with one or more Severe Housing Problems: Lacks kitchen or 

complete plumbing, severe overcrowding, severe cost burden) 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
Having 1 or more 

of four housing 

problems 2,119 1,334 300 74 3,827 1,425 1,329 1,545 449 4,748 

Having none of 

four housing 

problems 254 1,295 3,039 1,910 6,498 534 1,234 4,574 2,795 9,137 

Household has 

negative income, 

but none of the 

other housing 

problems 195 0 0 0 195 129 0 0 0 129 

Table 10 – Housing Problems 2 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Cost Burden > 30% 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 

Small Related 944 1,030 660 2,634 570 912 1,869 3,351 

Large Related 135 163 129 427 190 260 395 845 

Elderly 204 270 110 584 479 357 414 1,250 

Other 975 875 645 2,495 400 210 795 1,405 

Total need by 

income 

2,258 2,338 1,544 6,140 1,639 1,739 3,473 6,851 

Table 11 – Cost Burden > 30% 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Cost Burden > 50% 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 

Small Related 840 615 35 1,490 500 642 530 1,672 

Large Related 120 113 45 278 110 190 135 435 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     36 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-50% 
AMI 

>50-80% 
AMI 

Total 

Elderly 179 165 10 354 290 174 230 694 

Other 955 360 100 1,415 375 185 285 845 

Total need by 

income 

2,094 1,253 190 3,537 1,275 1,191 1,180 3,646 

Table 12 – Cost Burden > 50% 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Crowding (More than one person per room) 

 Renter Owner 

0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 0-30% 
AMI 

>30-
50% 
AMI 

>50-
80% 
AMI 

>80-
100% 
AMI 

Total 

NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 

Single family 

households 50 62 60 24 196 50 100 135 15 300 

Multiple, unrelated 

family households 45 85 0 0 130 45 15 209 55 324 

Other, non-family 

households 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total need by 

income 

95 147 60 24 326 95 115 344 70 624 

Table 13 – Crowding Information – 1/2 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Describe the number and type of single person households in need of housing assistance 

The CHAS data does not provide an estimate of single person households, and no other data set 

has been identified to estimate this number.  Based on information gathered through the social 

work program, it is likely that these types of households experience the same level of cost 

burden and other housing problems as other types of households in the unincorporated areas.  

Estimate the number and type of families in need of housing assistance who are disabled or 

victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking 

Children under age 18 comprise about 24% (260,108) of Travis County's total population. This segment 

of the population has grown by 3% from 2008 to 2012. In 2012, there were 13,211 alleged victims of 

child abuse/neglect in Travis County, with 3,045 confirmed victims and 478 children removed from their 

homes. In the same year there were 8,893 incidents of family violence in Travis County, an increase from 

7,777 incidents of family violence in 2011. Additionally, the 2014 Point-In-Time Homeless Count found 

there were 416 are homeless victims of domestic violence, 305 sheltered and 111 unsheltered.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     37 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Analysis done by Mullin & Lonergan shows that the most common type of disability among persons ages 

18 to 64 was ambulatory, referring to difficulty moving from place to place that makes it impossible or 

impractical to walk as a means of transportation. Of County residents between ages 18 and 64, 23,690 

(3.4%) reported this type of difficulty, which translates to a need for accessible housing options.  

What are the most common housing problems? 

Having a cost burden is the most prevalent housing problem for residents of the unincorporated 

areas.  Thirty-four percent of households report paying more than 30% of income toward housing 

costs.  By contrast, only 1% of households report the next most common problem - overcrowding. 

Information gathered over several years of public outreach and through the implementation of the 

home repair and social service programs have identified a high level of need for home repair in the 

unincorporated areas.  As part of the needs assessment for the Consolidated Plan, residents ranked 

"Home Repair" as the most urgent need among housing activities.   

Are any populations/household types more affected than others by these problems? 

Very low-income households are most likely to face a severe cost burden, with 68% of these households 

paying more than 50% of income towards housing costs.   

According to 2012 ACS data, there are slightly more homeowners (51% of population) in Travis County 

than renters (49% of population.) Although owner costs skew higher than renter costs, renter incomes 

tend to be lower than owner incomes. The difference is striking: Travis County’s owner-occupied median 

household income is $84,477, while the renter-occupied median household income is $38,273. 

A large percentage of both renters and owners in Travis County experience a housing cost burden, 

However, the percentage of households that are cost burdened is much higher among renters than 

owners: 49% of renter households in Travis County spend 30% or more of their income on rent, and 25% 

of them spend at least half of their income on rent. Comparatively, 28% of owner households spend 30% 

or more of their income on housing costs and 12% spend at least half. Since 2006, the percentage of 

cost burdened renter households has increased from 44% to 49%. Conversely the percentage of cost 

burdened owner households has declined slightly from 32% to 28%. The percentage of severely cost 

burdened renter and owner households has remained relatively consistent over this same time period. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     38 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Describe the characteristics and needs of Low-income individuals and families with children 

(especially extremely low-income) who are currently housed but are at imminent risk of 

either residing in shelters or becoming unsheltered 91.205(c)/91.305(c)). Also discuss the 

needs of formerly homeless families and individuals who are receiving rapid re-housing 

assistance and are nearing the termination of that assistance 

Low income individuals and families with children comprise a large percentage of extremely cost 

burdened households in Travis County. Each has different housing and supportive service needs. Youth 

who have no supervision at home after-school, and who lack after-school activities, may become at-risk. 

Young children from low-income families can be at risk of nutrition deficits, vocabulary and other 

learning delays and undiagnosed or untreated health, behavioral, or developmental issues. 

Formerly homeless families and individuals receiving rapid re-housing assistance or are nearing the 

termination of temporary assistance may have difficulty transitioning to self- sufficiency and providing 

for their families. It is important to maintain processes that help families or individuals identify their 

needs and prepare short- and long-term plans for action. 

Specify particular housing characteristics that have been linked with instability and an 

increased risk of homelessness 

The most fundamental characteristic shared by the homeless and at risk populations is their extreme 

poverty. From a financial standpoint, the housing characteristic most linked with instability would 

include the higher housing cost burden, including higher housing plus transportation cost    burden as 

discussed above, inability to pay rent, as well as defaulting on a mortgage or a foreclosure. Some of the 

factors leading to instability are the loss of a parent through death, divorce, separation, or incarceration; 

serious illness; job loss; and mental illness.   At risk groups include youth aging out of foster care, 

persons who have previously experienced homelessness, single female headed households, individuals 

paying more than 50% of their income for housing (including utilities).  Risk factors can include 

unemployment history/lack of job skills, rent/mortgage arrears, transportation problems, doubled up, 

lack of education, language barriers, and eviction/foreclosure. 

Discussion 

Travis County has undergone rapid population growth that is currently outpacing a commensurate 

increase in the housing supply.  As a result, housing costs are rising and there is considerable demand 

for available housing. As demonstrated above, housing cost burden affects a significant number of Travis 

County households. A majority (68%) of very-low income households pay more than 50% of their 

income towards housing and nearly half (49%) of renter households pay more than 30% of their income 

towards housing.   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     39 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

The results of public outreach for the Consolidated Plan, confirm that housing ranks as a significant need 

for Travis County households.  Service providers ranked "Housing" as the most urgent need for the 

Consolidated Planning period, and residents ranked it as the third most urgent need.   

Population is projected to continue to grow over the Consolidated Planning period, and while builders 

are increasing new housing starts in response to demand, it is unlikely that enough new housing will be 

produced to significantly alleviate cost burden for very low income households.   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     40 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Problems 

Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 

the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction 

Housing problems are defined as a household having any one of the following: a cost burden greater 

than 30% of income, more than one person per room, and/or housing without complete kitchen or 

plumbing facilities. Disproportionately greater need exists when the percentage of persons in a category 

of need, who are members of a particular racial or ethnic group, is at least ten percentage points higher 

than the percentage of persons in the category as a whole.   

0%-30% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems 
Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has no/negative 
income, but none of the 
other housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 44,360 3,765 4,045 

White 19,120 1,580 2,000 

Black / African American 5,620 900 500 

Asian 2,490 105 550 

American Indian, Alaska Native 160 50 0 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Hispanic 16,590 1,105 960 

Table 14 - Disproportionally Greater Need 0 - 30% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

*The four housing problems are: 1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing 
facilities, 3. More than one person per room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30%  
 

30%-50% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems 
Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the four 
housing problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, 
but none of the other 

housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 36,095 8,570 0 

White 15,995 3,715 0 

Black / African American 3,985 985 0 

Asian 1,660 300 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 55 25 0 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Hispanic 13,680 3,390 0 

Table 15 - Disproportionally Greater Need 30 - 50% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     41 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

*The four housing problems are: 1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing 
facilities, 3. More than one person per room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30%  
 

50%-80% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems 
Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the four 
housing problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, 
but none of the other 

housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 32,665 36,980 0 

White 18,075 18,115 0 

Black / African American 3,235 4,480 0 

Asian 1,010 1,280 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 30 230 0 

Pacific Islander 90 15 0 

Hispanic 9,745 12,040 0 

Table 16 - Disproportionally Greater Need 50 - 80% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

*The four housing problems are: 1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing 
facilities, 3. More than one person per room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30% 
 

80%-100% of Area Median Income 

Housing Problems 
Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the four 
housing problems 

Household has 
no/negative income, 
but none of the other 

housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 10,565 29,165 0 

White 6,335 16,975 0 

Black / African American 645 2,435 0 

Asian 500 1,135 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 0 45 0 

Pacific Islander 10 0 0 

Hispanic 3,020 8,230 0 

Table 17 - Disproportionally Greater Need 80 - 100% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

*The four housing problems are: 1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing 
facilities, 3. More than one person per room, 4.Cost Burden greater than 30% 
 

Discussion 

According to the CHAS data the only categories that experience disproportionately greater need are 

Pacific Islanders in the income brackets of 50-80% and 80%-100% of median income. While 47% of 

households earning 50-80% MFI report one or more housing problem, 85% of Pacific Islander 

households do. Twenty-seven percent of households earning 80-100% MFI report a housing problem 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     42 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

and 100% of Pacific Islander households in this bracket do.  It should be noted, that Pacific Islander 

households represent a very small sample of total households, with 105 out of 69,645 households at 50-

80% MFI and 10 out of 39,730 at 80-100% MFI. While the margin of error is not available for this data 

set, based on analysis of other ACS data sets, it is possible that data points this small may not be 

statistically reliable.   

Additionally, while this data set does not differentiate between owner and renter households by race 

and ethnicity, analysis done for the previous Consolidated Plan showed that among Owner Households, 

a disproportionate percentage of Hispanic and African American Households have a housing problem, at 

42% and 40% respectively, compared to 30% for the County as a whole. It is unlikely that this has 

changed significantly in the intervening years.   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     43 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Disproportionately Greater Need: Severe Housing Problems 

Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 

the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction 

Severe housing problems are defined as a household having any one of the following: a cost burden 

greater than 50% of income, more than 1.5 persons per room, and/or housing without complete kitchen 

or plumbing facilities.  

0%-30% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* 
Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has no/negative 
income, but none of the 
other housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 39,580 8,540 4,045 

White 17,600 3,100 2,000 

Black / African American 4,915 1,600 500 

Asian 2,285 315 550 

American Indian, Alaska Native 160 50 0 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Hispanic 14,255 3,435 960 

Table 18 – Severe Housing Problems 0 - 30% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

*The four severe housing problems are: 1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing 
facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  
 

30%-50% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* 
Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has no/negative 
income, but none of the 
other housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 16,770 27,895 0 

White 7,365 12,345 0 

Black / African American 1,640 3,330 0 

Asian 700 1,255 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 10 65 0 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 

Hispanic 6,655 10,415 0 

Table 19 – Severe Housing Problems 30 - 50% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

*The four severe housing problems are: 1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing 
facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     44 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

50%-80% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* 
Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has no/negative 
income, but none of the 
other housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 10,100 59,545 0 

White 5,080 31,115 0 

Black / African American 930 6,790 0 

Asian 440 1,850 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 15 245 0 

Pacific Islander 90 15 0 

Hispanic 3,400 18,380 0 

Table 20 – Severe Housing Problems 50 - 80% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

*The four severe housing problems are: 1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing 
facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  
 

80%-100% of Area Median Income 

Severe Housing Problems* 
Has one or more 
of four housing 

problems 

Has none of the 
four housing 

problems 

Household has no/negative 
income, but none of the 
other housing problems 

Jurisdiction as a whole 2,765 36,965 0 

White 1,610 21,700 0 

Black / African American 70 3,005 0 

Asian 160 1,470 0 

American Indian, Alaska Native 0 45 0 

Pacific Islander 0 10 0 

Hispanic 915 10,330 0 

Table 21 – Severe Housing Problems 80 - 100% AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

*The four severe housing problems are: 1. Lacks complete kitchen facilities, 2. Lacks complete plumbing 
facilities, 3. More than 1.5 persons per room, 4.Cost Burden over 50%  
 
 

Discussion 

According to the CHAS data the only category that experiences disproportionately greater need are 

Pacific Islanders in the income bracket of 50-80% MFI. While 15% of households earning 50-80% MFI 

report one or more severe housing problem, 85% of Pacific Islander households do. It should be noted, 

that Pacific Islander households represent a very small sample of total households, with 105 out of 69, 

645 households. While the margin of error is not available for this data set, based on analysis of other 

ACS data sets, it is possible that data points this small may not be statistically reliable.   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     45 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Cost Burdens 

Assess the need of any racial or ethnic group that has disproportionately greater need in comparison to 

the needs of that category of need as a whole. 

Introduction:  

Cost burden is defined as paying more than 30% of income towards housing costs.  As discussed in 

sections above, cost burden is the most prevalent housing problem experienced by households in Travis 

County.   

Housing Cost Burden 

Housing Cost Burden <=30% 30-50% >50% 
No / negative income 

(not computed) 

Jurisdiction as a whole 243,500 72,240 60,125 4,355 

White 158,205 39,310 31,135 2,125 

Black / African American 16,405 6,615 7,085 540 

Asian 11,680 3,125 3,330 600 

American Indian, Alaska Native 810 100 190 0 

Pacific Islander 160 45 50 0 

Hispanic 52,730 22,070 17,470 1,040 

Table 22 – Greater Need: Housing Cost Burdens AMI 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

Discussion 

According to the CHAS data, African Americans experience a disproportionate cost burden.  While 35% 

of the jurisdiction as whole has a cost burden, 45% of African Americans do.   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     46 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Disproportionately Greater Need: Discussion 

Are there any Income categories in which a racial or ethnic group has disproportionately 

greater need than the needs of that income category as a whole? 

According to the CHAS data the income categories that experience disproportionately greater need are 

Pacific Islanders in the income brackets of 50-80% and 80%-100% of median income.  It should be noted, 

that Pacific Islander households represent a very small sample of total households. While the margin of 

error is not available for this data set, based on analysis of other ACS data sets, it is possible that data 

points this small may not be statistically reliable. 

It is worth noting that there are disparities in income across racial and ethnic groups in Travis County 

that may contribute to higher need among certain categories. According to analysis done by Mullin & 

Lonergan, Whites had the highest Median Household Income (MHI) at $60,809. The MHI for Asian 

households was $59,690. It was substantially lower for Blacks and Hispanics, at $36,227 and $40,948, 

respectively. As suggested by the lower median incomes among these groups, minority residents in 

Travis County experienced poverty at greater rates than White residents. Less than 13% of White 

residents were living in poverty in 2010, compared with 24.7% of Hispanics and 24.6% of Blacks. Asian 

households reported poverty at a rate of 16.1%. 

If they have needs not identified above, what are those needs? 

The following section is excerpted from the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, conducted 

for Travis County by Mullin & Lonergan.  

HOME OWNERSHIP 

Historically, minorities tend to have lower home ownership rates than Whites. In 2010 in Travis County, 

Whites had a home ownership rate of 57.4%. By comparison, Asians owned their homes at a rate of 

47.9%; Hispanics at 40.6% and Blacks at a rate of 38.1%. Ownership was higher across all racial and 

ethnic groups in unincorporated areas of the County, where about eight in every 10 White or Asian 

households were homeowners. Outside of city and village borders, two-thirds of Hispanic households 

and 51.8% of Black households owned homes. 

As previously noted, the median income for Black and Hispanic households in Travis County is drastically 

lower than the median for Whites. This is one among several factors that contribute to the generally 

lower rates of home ownership among minority families. 

CROWDING 

In the Urban County, minorities were more likely than Whites to live in households with three or more 

people. In 2010, 45.2% of White households had three or more people. By comparison, 49% of Black 

households, 64.7% of Asian households and 67% of Hispanic households were considered to be large. 

To adequately house larger families, a sufficient supply of larger dwelling units consisting of three or 

more bedrooms is necessary. In the Urban County, there are fewer options to rent a unit to 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     47 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

accommodate large families. Of the 14,711 rental units in 2010, only 41.5% had three or more 

bedrooms, compared to 90.7% of the owner housing stock. 

AFFORDABILITY 

The maximum affordable home purchase prices for Whites and Asians was substantially higher than the 

affordable home prices for Black and Hispanic homebuyers. The maximum affordable purchase price at 

the median household income for Blacks was 45.4% of the median sales price and only 47.7% of the 

maximum affordable purchase price for the County overall. 

Are any of those racial or ethnic groups located in specific areas or neighborhoods in your 

community? 

For a discussion of the geographic concentration of racial and ethnic categories refer to section MA-50 

of the Consolidated Plan.  Please refer to "Appendix B: Maps" for maps that display the distribution of 

racially and/or ethnically concentrated block groups in the unincorporated areas of Travis County.   

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     48 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Public Housing 

Introduction 

The Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) manages three public housing sites, a Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, and three 

Shelter Plus Care Projects. 

 

Totals in Use 

Program Type 

 Certificate 
Mod-
Rehab 

Public 
Housing 

Vouchers 

Total 
Project-
based 

Tenant-
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 

Veterans Affairs 
Supportive Housing 

Family Unification 
Program 

Disabled* 

# of units vouchers in use 0 0 104 567 33 459 0 0 75 

Table 23 - Public Housing by Program Type 
*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition  

Alternate Data Source Name: Housing Authority of Travis County Data 

 

Please note that the data provided in the table above refers to units that are located outside the Travis County CDBG service area. There are 

currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area. 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     49 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Characteristics of Residents 

Program Type 

 Certificate 
Mod-
Rehab 

Public 
Housing 

Vouchers 

Total 
Project-
based 

Tenant-
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 

Veterans Affairs 
Supportive Housing 

Family Unification 
Program 

Average Annual Income 0 0 11,713 14,375 9,033 14,685 0 0 

Average length of stay 0 0 4 6 2 6 0 0 

Average Household size 0 0 2 3 1 3 0 0 

# Homeless at admission 0 0 1 31 14 17 0 0 

# of Elderly Program Participants 

(>62) 0 0 15 94 15 79 0 0 

# of Disabled Families 0 0 18 222 24 198 0 0 

# of Families requesting accessibility 

features 0 0 104 563 17 543 0 0 

# of HIV/AIDS program participants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

# of DV victims 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 2 – Characteristics of Public Housing Residents by Program Type  
Alternate Data Source Name: Housing Authority of Travis County Data 

 

Please note that the data provided in the table above refers to units that are located outside the Travis County CDBG service area. There are 

currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     50 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Race of Residents 

Program Type 

Race Certificate 
Mod-
Rehab 

Public 
Housing 

Vouchers 

Total 
Project-
based 

Tenant-
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 

Veterans Affairs 
Supportive Housing 

Family Unification 
Program 

Disabled* 

White 0 0 34 182 17 165 0 0 27 

Black/African American 0 0 68 381 14 367 0 0 47 

Asian 0 0 2 2 0 2 0 0 1 

American Indian/Alaska 

Native 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 

Pacific Islander 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 3 – Race of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 
Alternate Data Source Name: Housing Authority of Travis County Data 

 

Ethnicity of Residents 

Program Type 

Ethnicity Certificate 
Mod-
Rehab 

Public 
Housing 

Vouchers 

Total 
Project-
based 

Tenant-
based 

Special Purpose Voucher 

Veterans Affairs 
Supportive Housing 

Family Unification 
Program 

Disabled* 

Hispanic 0 0 25 97 1 96 0 0 5 

Not Hispanic 0 0 79 469 30 439 0 0 70 

*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 4 – Ethnicity of Public Housing Residents by Program Type 
Alternate Data Source Name: Housing Authority of Travis County Data 

 

Please note that the data provided in the table above refers to units that are located outside the Travis County CDBG service area. There are 

currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     51 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Section 504 Needs Assessment - Describe the needs of public housing tenants and applicants 

on the waiting list for accessible units 

The most immediate needs of public housing residents include employment, affordable childcare and 

financial management education.   

Most immediate needs of residents of Public Housing and Housing Choice voucher holders 

The most immediate needs of public housing residents include employment, affordable childcare and 

financial management education.   

How do these needs compare to the housing needs of the population at large? 

These needs are more severe for the residents than for the population at large.   

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     52 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

III.B.  Homeless Needs Assessment 

Introduction 

The Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) in Austin/Travis County, defines what it means 

to be homeless as: 

 An individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence meaning: 

(1) Has a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not meant for human 

habitation (cars, parks, sidewalks, abandoned buildings); or 

(2) Is living in a publicly or privately operated shelter designated to provide temporary living 

arrangements (including congregate shelters[1], transitional housing, and hotels and motels 

paid for by charitable organizations or by federal, state, and local government programs); or 

(3) Is exiting an institution where s/he has resided for 90 days or less and who resided in an 

emergency shelter or place not meant for habitation immediately before entering that 

institution. 

The primary causes of homelessness in the U.S. are poverty and the lack of affordable housing. Some 

other major factors that can contribute to homelessness include: economic factors such as insufficient 

income or loss of employment, domestic violence, mental illness, and substance abuse. Additionally, 

release from incarceration without sufficient transitional assistance and aging out of foster care may 

also contribute to homelessness for specific populations. Homelessness can be short-term or long-term, 

or even a chronic condition. 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     53 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Homeless Needs Assessment  

Population Estimate the # of persons 
experiencing homelessness 

on a given night 

Estimate the # 
experiencing 

homelessness 
each year 

Estimate the 
# becoming 
homeless 
each year 

Estimate the # 
exiting 

homelessness 
each year 

Estimate the # 
of days persons 

experience 
homelessness Unsheltered Sheltered 

Persons in Households with Adult(s) and 

Child(ren) 4 696 2,706 0 447 0 

Persons in Households with Only 

Children 2 11 50 0 817 0 

Persons in Households with Only Adults 442 832 4,947 0 8 0 

Chronically Homeless Individuals 169 177 1,444 0 217 0 

Chronically Homeless Families 35 4 160 0 26 0 

Veterans 49 127 1,221 0 115 0 

Unaccompanied Child 2 11 240 0 8 0 

Persons with HIV 7 6 50 0 8 0 

Table 5 - Homeless Needs Assessment  
Alternate Data Source Name:  Community Data on Shelter, Housing and Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     54 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Indicate if the homeless population is: Partially Rural Homeless 

 

Rural Homeless Needs Assessment 

Population 

Estimate the # of persons 
experiencing homelessness 

on a given night 

Estimate the # 
experiencing 

homelessness 
each year 

Estimate the 
# becoming 
homeless 
each year 

Estimate the 
# exiting 

homelessness 
each year 

Estimate the # 
of days persons 

experience 
homelessness Unsheltered Sheltered 

Persons in Households with Adult(s) and 

Child(ren) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Persons in Households with Only 

Children 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Persons in Households with Only Adults 91 0 353 0 0 0 

Chronically Homeless Individuals 56 0 217 0 0 0 

Chronically Homeless Families 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Veterans 19 0 73 0 0 0 

Unaccompanied Youth 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Persons with HIV 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table 6 - Homeless Needs Assessment  
Alternate Data Source Name:  Community Data on Shelter, Housing and Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     55 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

For persons in rural areas who are homeless or at risk of homelessness, describe the nature 

and extent of unsheltered and sheltered homelessness with the jurisdiction 

The majority of homeless individuals in rural areas are single men living in make-shift campsites. Based 

on anecdotal interactions during the Point-In-Time count, it seems that most of these individuals choose 

isolation rather than shelter housing as it is not socially feasible. As discussed in the Market Analysis, 

there are currently no units of shelter housing in the unincorporated areas.   

If data is not available for the categories "number of persons becoming and exiting 

homelessness each year," and "number of days that persons experience homelessness," 

describe these categories for each homeless population type (including chronically homeless 

individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their families, and 

unaccompanied youth) 

Estimates for "number exiting homeless" and "number of days that persons experience homelessness," 

are new metrics that have not been tracked by the Continuum of Care before and a methodology for 

providing a reliable estimate was not available at time of report drafting.  The County will work with the 

CoC to develop a means to track these metrics over the planning period.   

Nature and Extent of Homelessness:  

Race: Sheltered: Unsheltered (optional) 

White 7,357 0 

Black or African American 4,691 0 

Asian 324 0 

American Indian or Alaska Native 109 0 

Pacific Islander 65 0 

Ethnicity: Sheltered: Unsheltered (optional) 

Hispanic 4,282 0 

Not Hispanic 9,144 0 

Table 29 – Nature and Extent of Homelessness  

 

Estimate the number and type of families in need of housing assistance for families with 

children and the families of veterans 

Please refer to the chart above for an estimate of families with children and veterans experiencing 

homelessness.   

Describe the Nature and Extent of Homelessness by Racial and Ethnic Group 

Available data shows that in 2013 a disproportionate percentage of people receiving homeless services 

in Austin/Travis County were African American. While approximately 8% of the total population of Travis 

County is African American, 33% of people receiving services were African American. Conversely, the 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     56 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

percentages of  White (52%) and Asian (2%) people receiving homeless services were lower than the 

percentages of these populations for the county as a whole (72% and 6% respectively.)  The percentage 

of Hispanic that received services is roughly the same as the total percentage for the county (30% versus 

33%.)     

Describe the Nature and Extent of Unsheltered and Sheltered Homelessness 

The 2014 Annual Homelessness Count provided a point-in-time snapshot of the Austin area homeless 

population, at a total of 1,987 homeless individuals.  Seventy-seven percent (1,539) of these individuals 

were sheltered at the time of the count and 23% (448) were unsheltered. It should be noted that there 

are individuals without permanent housing who do not fall within traditional definitions of 

homelessness and who may not be included in the point-in-time count (for example, families who have 

lost their homes but are residing with friends or relatives). Therefore the point-in-time number gives us 

an indication of the size of the homeless population, but may not demonstrate the extent of a 

community’s homelessness needs. 

A fuller picture of homelessness needs may be gained by looking at the total number of individuals 

receiving some type of service related to homelessness. Homelessness services encompass a spectrum 

that may include rental assistance, case management, shelter stays and permanent supportive housing, 

as well as programs that provide job search training, substance abuse counseling, and mental health 

care services. During 2013, a total of 14,147 people received homelessness services in Travis County. It is 

important to note that this number includes not only individuals who are currently homeless, but also 

those at-risk for homelessness, and formerly homeless individuals who are currently sheltered. Of those 

served, 8,109 individuals were sheltered. 

Additionally, among those receiving services, the following subpopulations were tracked: chronically 

homeless (1,602), chronic substance abusers (1,142), Veterans (1,220), people with severe mental illness 

(2,617), and unaccompanied children (240). The co-occurrence of two or more of these issues for many 

homeless individuals is part of what makes homelessness a very complex issue to address, requiring an 

array of services and interventions. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     57 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

III.C.  Non-Homeless Special Needs Assessment 

Introduction 

This section describes the characteristics of special needs populations in Travis County and their needs. 

In particular, the needs of the following populations are discussed: elderly, persons with one or more 

disability, persons living with HIV/AIDS, and victims of domestic violence. 

During the public outreach for the Consolidated Plan, residents ranked the need for supportive services 

as follows: elderly, disabled, victims of domestic violence, homeless, special housing needs, substance 

abuse, mental health, and HIV/AIDS supportive services. 

Describe the characteristics of special needs populations in your community 

ELDERLY 

Based on 2012 American Community Survey (ACS) 1-year data, there were 85,458 people 65 years of 

age in all of Travis County in 2012, or 7.8% of the total population. The 65 and over population in Travis 

County grew by 36% between 2000 and 2010. During the same time period, the Austin-Round Rock 

metropolitan area had the fastest growing “pre-senior” population (age 55 to 64) in the nation, with a 

110% change from 2000 to 2010, and was ranked second in senior population (age 65 and over) growth, 

with a 53% change. Given this substantial growth, and as the population ages, it is likely that individuals 

65 and over will comprise a larger percentage of the total population in the future. 

DISABLED 

As the population in Travis County continues to grow, so will the number of people living with a 

disability who may need services and supports. Per 2012 ACS 1-yr data, in 2012, 97,251 people in Travis 

County or approximately 9% of the Travis County population had one or more disabilities. This figure 

jumps to about one in five (22%) for individuals age 65 to 74 and more than half (51%) of individuals age 

75 and over, per 2008-2012 ACS 5-yr data. 

PERSONS LIVING WITH HIV/AIDS 

The Austin Transitional Grant Area (TGA) covers 4,281 square miles in Central Texas and comprises 

Bastrop, Caldwell, Hays, Travis and Williamson counties. In 2011, the Austin TGA population was 1.8 

million, with the majority (57.3%) of residents living within Travis County boundaries. 

According to the “Austin Area Comprehensive HIV Planning Council 2012, Comprehensive PLAN: 3-Year 

HIV/AIDS Services Plan (2012-14),” at the end of 2010, there were 1,791 individuals living with HIV and 

2,561 living with AIDS in the Austin TGA. Relative to growth in the general population, the number of 

Persons Living With HIV/AIDS (PLWHA) in the Austin TGA continues to increase each year. The Texas 

Department of State Health Services (DSHS) estimates the number of PLWHA (living in the Austin TGA) 

with unmet need at 1,095 persons or 25.2% of the entire PLWHA population. 

Half of PLWHA are White non-Hispanic (49.1%), and 84.4% are males, but African Americans bare the 

highest burden of disease. Of particular note, the HIV infection among African American males is 2.5 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     58 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

times higher than White males. Likewise, the rate among African American females is eleven times 

higher than among white females. 

VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

Children who are abused or neglected, including those who witness domestic violence, often exhibit 

emotional, cognitive, and behavioral problems, such as depression, low self-esteem, poor school 

performance, and lack of conflict resolution skills. These children are also more likely to have a higher 

tolerance for and use of violence in relationships and enter into violent relationships as teens and adults 

or abuse their own children.  

Children under age 18 comprise about 24% (260,108) of Travis County’s total population. This segment 

of the population has grown by 3% from 2008 to 2012. In 2012, there were 13,211 alleged victims of 

child abuse/neglect in Travis County, with 3,045 confirmed victims and 478 children removed from their 

homes. In the same year there were 8,893 incidents of family violence in Travis County, an increase from 

7,777 incidents of family violence in 2011. 

Per ECHO, the 2014 Point-In-Time Homeless Count found there were 1,987 persons in Travis County - 

1,539 were sheltered and 448 were unsheltered. Of these, 416 are homeless victims of domestic 

violence, 305 sheltered and 111 unsheltered. According to the nonprofit Greendoors, 18% of homeless 

individuals in Travis County have experienced domestic violence.   

What are the housing and supportive service needs of these populations and how are these 

needs determined?    

ELDERLY & DISABLED PERSONS 

Travis County funds services for the elderly such as in-home care services, bill payer services, meals, and 

case management. Services for persons with physical disabilities center on employment and job-

readiness, case management, early childhood intervention, basic needs assistance, and 

social/recreational opportunities. 

Based on 2008-2012 ACS 5-year data, the majority, 77%, of elderly households in Travis County reside in 

owner-occupied housing. More than half (54.1%) of all Elderly Renter households pay more than 30% of 

income towards housing compared to 49.5% of all Renter households. Whereas, only 27.1% of Elderly 

Owner-Occupied households pay more than 30% of income toward housing, which is slightly lower than 

the percentage for all Travis County households (28.6%). 

According to CHAS data, a higher percentage of households with one or more members with a disability 

experience a housing problem, than all Travis County Households. This is true for both renter and 

owner-occupied households. Due to changes in data reporting, the most recent available CHAS data is 

from 2005-2007.  However more current data shows that disabled households have a lower median 

income than all Travis County households and that housing costs throughout the county have increased. 

It is therefore likely that disabled households continue to experience housing problems at a higher rate.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     59 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

PERSONS LIVING WITH HIV/AIDS 

Travis County funded services for persons living with HIV/AIDS center around advocacy, crisis 

management, emergency shelter, transitional housing, counseling, case management, primary medical 

care retention, client advocacy, medication adherence assistance, food bank assistance, nutritional 

counseling, home health, prevention, and support groups. 

The Austin Area Comprehensive HIV/AIDS Planning Council (HIV PC) is responsible for planning services 

that support the use of HIV medical care among people living with HIV/AIDS (PLWHA) in the Austin 

Transitional Grant Area (TGA). Significant service gaps reported in the Austin Area Comprehensive HIV 

Planning Council’s 2012 Comprehensive Plan: 3-Year HIV/AIDS Services Plan include non-medical case 

management, AIDS drug assistance, transportation, and oral health services. The Texas Department of 

State Health Services (DSHS) estimates the number of PLWHA (living in the Austin TGA) with unmet need 

at 1,095 persons or 25.2% of the entire PLWHA population. 

According to the 2010 Austin Transitional Grant Area Comprehensive Needs Assessment (by  Dr. Jemel 

P. Aguilar, University of Texas at Austin), the top five needs of PLWHA were ranked as follows: 1) 

emergency financial assistance, 2) transportation, 3) housing services, 4) legal assistance, and 5) food 

bank and home-delivered meals. 

Currently, two agencies provide housing services under the City of Austin’s HOPWA Program; however, 

Project Transitions (PT) is the only organization in the Austin area that provides HIV/AIDS specific 

housing. PT provides assistance to clients at three sites in the unincorporated areas, but there is no 

dedicated HIV/AIDS housing in the unincorporated areas. 

VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

Travis County funds services for victims of domestic violence such as advocacy, crisis management, 

emergency shelter, transitional housing, counseling, life-skills training, and childcare. Safe Place is the 

principal service provider for victims of domestic violence in Travis County. Safe Place maintains an 

emergency shelter with assistance from the Salvation Army, along with some transitional housing, all in 

incorporated areas of Travis County. 

Discuss the size and characteristics of the population with HIV/AIDS and their families within 

the Eligible Metropolitan Statistical Area 

Not applicable since Travis County is not a HOPWA Grantee. However, see the discussion on the services 

and needs of persons living with HIV or AIDs under the previous question titled “Describe the 

characteristics of special needs populations in your community.” 

Discussion 

An analysis of Travis County HHS/VS social service contracts reveals that, overall, 64% of services 

specifically directed to the elderly, disabled, victims of domestic violence, and/or persons with HIV/AIDS 

were provided to residents living in the incorporated areas of the county, 24% to those living in areas 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     60 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated, and only 7% to residents living in primarily in the 

unincorporated areas of the county. As the population of Travis County continues to grow, it is likely 

that people will increasingly move outside the urban core.  CDBG staff are working with service 

providers to strategically expand services into unincorporated areas of the county.   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     61 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

III.D.  Non-Housing Community Development Needs 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Facilities 

During the public outreach for the Consolidated Plan, Travis County residents ranked parks, health 

clinics, recreational, neighborhood and/or community centers, and child care centers and most 

important. Whereas some of these types of public facilities, in particular, parks and community centers, 

are available in the unincorporated areas, residents that live further out and/or who have limited or no 

access to public or other types of transportation have difficulty accessing these. 

PARKS 

According to Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) Department’s Travis County 

Parks and Natural Areas Master Plan, approximately 12% of land in Travis County consists of publicly 

owned parks and natural areas. This includes land and parks owned by municipalities, the Lower 

Colorado River Authority (LCRA), the State of Texas, and Travis County. The Travis County park system is 

managed by Travis County’s Department of Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR), and includes 

approximately 11,000 acres of land.    

A higher percentage of park land is located on the western side of the county. Much of this land consists 

of the Balcones Canyonlands Preserve (BCP), an area that preserves the habitat of a number of 

endangered species. At this time, the Preserve consists of approximately 28,000 acres. When preserve 

land (which is not available for recreation purposes) is excluded, the discrepancy between the eastern 

and western side of the county is less dramatic.   

As development continues to push into eastern Travis County, agricultural and rural land is increasingly 

converted to developed land. Additionally, as discussed elsewhere in this report, the demographics of 

the eastern part of the county include higher concentrations of low income households who may rely on 

public facilities for recreational activities. Finally, as the population of the county grows it is likely that 

existing facilities will have to support increased usage. Taken together, these factors may indicate the 

need for expanded recreation areas or activities in eastern Travis County.  

COMMUNITY CENTERS 

In addition to park facilities, residents of the unincorporated areas have access to seven community 

centers located throughout the county that are managed by Travis County Health and Human Services & 

Veterans Service (HHS/VS). The community centers house a variety of programs including senior 

luncheon program, utility and rent/mortgage assistance, food assistance and medical care. The centers 

also offer the following types of social services: case management services, including referrals for 

employment, housing, medical, and mental health needs; goal planning and assessment; brief 

counseling sessions, including crisis intervention, individual/family counseling, and youth services; and 

community outreach services. 

These centers are important to the unincorporated community as they provide centralized locations—

five outside of the urban core—for residents to access social services and community meeting rooms. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     62 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

However, as the population continues to be pushed further out in the unincorporated area, even these 

public facilities may not be accessible to residents without, or with limited, access to personal or public 

transportation.  

How were these needs determined? 

Each year, the CDBG program engages the public to solicit needs and feedback on the CDBG proposed 

projects and performance. As a result of that work, the Program has a good data set of the needs and 

interests of those living in and serving the unincorporated areas. Since 2006, a consistent message of 

the need for increased access to services, quality infrastructure facilities, and safe and decent housing 

has been voiced.  

The need for recreational and other public facilities in eastern Travis County is supported by comments 

received during the CDBG Public Engagement process. Through public meetings and surveys, residents, 

primarily from east/southeast and west/southwest Travis County, have requested public facilities such 

as neighborhood parks, recreational centers, health facilities, and childcare centers. 

Overall, needs are determined through analyzing census data and social service contract data, and 

through information obtained through our public engagement (e.g., public hearings and surveys), 

collaboration forums with service providers, and individual consultations within other Travis County 

departments, and other agencies and organizations. For more information, please refer to the sections 

on Public Engagement and Consultation. 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Improvements 

Many areas of unincorporated Travis County are in need of infrastructure improvements. In the most 

recent public engagement effort, residents ranked infrastructure as the top priority, with water and 

sewer, streets, and drainage improvements as the top three priorities. 

WATER & WASTEWATER 

Water demand in Travis County is expected to increase over the next fifty years, doubling by 2060. A 

prolonged drought has put a strain on existing water supplies, particularly in the most economically 

depressed areas of eastern Travis County. 

While residents of towns and cities have access to the infrastructure of the municipalities in which they 

reside, residents of the unincorporated areas instead rely on wells or they pay to connect to the nearest 

municipal water line, which can be a significant financial burden for low and moderate income residents. 

Since the inception of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program, there has been strong 

interest in water and wastewater projects from residents in the unincorporated areas. To date, the 

Travis County CDBG office has received public requests for $16 million in water infrastructure projects 

and $12 million in wastewater infrastructure projects. In particular, residents in economically 

disenfranchised areas communicated that they lacked access to running water, had wells running dry, 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     63 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

and were without infrastructure and/or funding to access the area water utility. Many of these residents 

rely on onsite septic systems that need costly repairs to be brought to current standards. 

Travis County does not have a local mechanism for funding water or wastewater infrastructure projects. 

The cost of must be borne by either the immediate beneficiaries of the improvements or the customers 

of the system as a whole. CDBG may therefore play a vital role for low to moderate income residents. 

ROADWAYS 

Local roadways in Travis County that are outside of any municipal jurisdiction fall under the jurisdiction 

of the county’s Department of Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR). Unmaintained roads may 

make it difficult for property owners, school buses, and emergency service providers to access 

properties. Bringing these roads to standard to qualify for the county’s maintenance program may 

require environmental and geotechnical review; roadway drainage, surface, and signage improvements; 

surveying; and more. This is a competitive program and projects that include funds from the 

Neighborhood Homeowner’s Association receive preference. Typically low income neighborhoods will 

not be able to contribute these resources; therefore, these neighborhoods may rely on the CDBG funds 

for assistance. The total estimated cost for all CDBG requests for roadway projects is approximately $18 

million. 

FLOOD DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 

The Travis County, Texas: 2011 Hazard Mitigation Plan, which covers the unincorporated areas of the 

county, and three of the municipalities located in the county, assessed eight hazards and concluded that 

the county is at greatest risk for floods. Between 1950 and 2009 Travis County experienced 113 floods. 

As of spring of 2010, there were 96 properties in unincorporated Travis County that were categorized as 

“Repetitive loss” with respect to flood. 

On October 31, 2013, a major flood event caused damage to homes, streets, water quality structures, 

and parks within Travis County. Subsequently, the County Judge provided a flood disaster declaration, 

which was followed by a State Disaster Proclamation by the Governor, and a Presidential Major Disaster 

Declaration in December 2013. Several parks and drainage facilities were affected by the flood. All but 

two of the facilities are used by and/or benefit primarily low-to-moderate income households. Estimates 

for restoring these damaged areas to their pre-flood state are in excess of $1.5 million. 

How were these needs determined? 

Each year, the CDBG program engages the public to solicit needs and feedback on the CDBG proposed 

projects and performance. As a result of that work, the Program has a good data set of the needs and 

interests of those living in and serving the unincorporated areas. Since 2006, a consistent message of 

the need for increased access to services, quality infrastructure facilities, and safe and decent housing 

has been voiced.  

The need for public improvements in Travis County is supported by comments received during the CDBG 

Public Engagement process. Public Engagement efforts with residents of Travis County revealed a high 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     64 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

need for community infrastructure implementation or improvements. Through recent public meetings 

and surveys, residents, primarily from east/southeast and west/southwest Travis County, have 

expressed the need for road improvements and repairs, and utility infrastructure, such as water and 

wastewater systems. 

Overall, needs are determined through analyzing census data and social service contract data, and 

through information obtained through our public engagement (e.g., public hearings and surveys), 

collaboration forums with service providers, and individual consultations within other Travis County 

departments, and other agencies and organizations. For more information, please refer to the sections 

on Public Engagement and Consultation. 

Describe the jurisdiction’s need for Public Services 

Public services, traditionally called social or community services, meet an array of community needs, 

from basic needs and children and youth programs through workforce development and public health. 

Public services, referred to as social services in the remainder of this section, are funded through public 

and private dollars and are provided by nonprofits, faith-based organizations and local government. 

The Travis County Commissioners Court, through Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans 

Service Department (HHS/VS), annually invests over $15 million in community-based contracted social 

service programs. Annually, investments in direct service and contracted services total approximately 

$18 million and $15 million respectively, resulting in an investment over the next five years of 

approximately $165 million in direct and contracted services. 

On an annual basis, HHS/VS Department’s Research and Planning Division (R&P) produces a report, 

Community Impact Report 2013 (CIR 2013), on a subset ($8.8 million in 2013) of the contracted 

investments. The information in this section is based on this report, with additional analysis by CDBG 

staff that focuses on conditions in the unincorporated areas, and information from other local, state, 

federal, institutional, academic, and nonprofit agencies. 

Economics, demographics, as well as social structures and systems, all influence the level of need within 

a community and the resources available to successfully address community needs. Most social service 

programs and needs described below pertain to Travis County residents who live in or near poverty. 

Some programs assist vulnerable populations, such as those experiencing abuse and neglect, regardless 

of their income. Other current conditions that elevate the need for social services for Travis County 

residents include the following: 

 The Travis County population continues to grow rapidly. According to Census estimates, the 

county’s growth rate of 33% from 2000 to 2012 is faster than the state overall (24%).The county 

population in the unincorporated areas has grown even more rapidly, up 73% from 2000 to 

2012. 

 In 2012, 7.8% of Travis County residents were aged 65 and older. By 2020, that figure is 

expected to rise to 10.4%. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     65 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 Based on 2012 census data, about 18% of Travis County residents live in poverty, while more 

than one-third live in households with incomes at or below 200% of the poverty level. The 

poverty rate among children under 18 (26%) is higher than the overall poverty rate for Travis 

County. 

 Of all the persons served in 2013 for whom demographics data was obtained (73-99% of 

persons), close to half (42%) had incomes below 50% of the Federal Poverty Income Guidelines 

(FPIG) and 26% had incomes between 50 and 100% of FPIG. 

An analysis of our social service contracts reveals that, overall, 56% of services specifically directed to 

social services addressing basic needs, behavioral health, child and youth development, education, 

public health, and workforce development were provided to residents living in the incorporated areas of 

the county, 30% to those living in areas that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated, and only 7% 

to residents living primarily in the unincorporated areas of the county. 

For additional information please refer to "Appendix D: Additional Text for Public Services."  

How were these needs determined? 

Each year, the CDBG program engages the public to solicit needs and feedback on the CDBG proposed 

projects and performance. As a result of that work, the Program has a good data set of the needs and 

interests of those living in and serving the unincorporated areas. Since 2006, a consistent message of 

the need for increased access to services, quality infrastructure facilities, and safe and decent housing 

has been voiced.  

During the current Consolidated Planning process, the message continues to resonate with social service 

providers and residents alike. In a survey of community need, both residents and providers ranked 

public services (identified as community services in the survey) as the 2nd highest priority need. 

However, residents ranked youth programs and services for seniors and disabled as their top priorities, 

while providers identified case management and outreach for both adults and youth along with job 

training as top priorities within the community (public) services category. 

Based on public input received throughout the life of the Travis County CDBG Program, lack of 

transportation is an ongoing concern for low income residents of the unincorporated areas. Lack of 

transportation can make it difficult for residents to access both public services and basic needs such as 

food stores, which tend to be located in more densely populated urban areas. In order to help meet this 

need the CDBG Program funds a home-based social worker program, to help link residents to existing 

services.  

Overall, needs are determined through analyzing census data and social service contract data, and 

through information obtained through our public engagement (e.g., public hearings and surveys), 

collaboration forums with service providers, and individual consultations within other Travis County 

departments, and other agencies and organizations. For more information, please refer to the sections 

on Public Engagement and Consultation. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     66 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

IV.  Housing Market Analysis 

Overview 

Housing Market Analysis Overview 

Both the economy and housing market of the Austin Metropolitan region have outperformed the nation 

over the course of the recent recession and the ongoing economic recovery. The strength of the regional 

economy supports ongoing in-migration which has resulted in rapid population growth in Travis County. 

According to the Real Estate Center at Texas A&M University, in February 2014 the Austin area had the 

nation's highest growth rate among metro areas with more than 1 million people at 2.6 percent, with an 

estimated 4,000 people a month moving to Austin.  This population growth has resulted in increased 

demand in the housing market, driving up both local housing prices and rents. In February 2014, both 

the level of sales in the Austin MSA and home prices reached historic highs with the average home price 

reaching $293,746; and the situation is no better for renter households with rents in Austin rising by 8% 

in 2013 (TAMU Real Estate Center.)  A recent report by the Austin Board of Realtors showed that in 

February 2014, there were only two months of housing inventory in the market. All data indicates that 

the regional housing market is likely to remain extremely competitive over the next year. 

One likely result of the increasing housing costs is that lower income population will move farther 

outside the urban core and into the unincorporated areas and smaller towns in Travis County. Housing 

development in the unincorporated areas is strongly influenced by development in the incorporated 

areas, and reflects many of the trends observable in the county as a whole.  However, there are unique 

conditions in the unincorporated areas that allow for different patterns to emerge. Most of the rural 

land and land dedicated to agriculture in Travis County can be found in the unincorporated areas. The 

value of rural land is significantly affected by proximity to urban areas, with values generally declining as 

the distance from Austin increases.  Land values to the west of Austin tend to be stronger than land 

values to the east.  Over the last ten years rural land values generally increased.  The vast majority of 

housing in the unincorporated area consists of single family owner-occupied housing, as compared to 

the urban areas of the county which are more evenly distributed between single and multi-family units. 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     67 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

IV.A.  Number of Housing Units 

Introduction 

Seventy two percent of the housing supply of unincorporated Travis County consists of one-unit 

structures, while 15% of the housing supply consists of 2 or more units. The unincorporated areas have a 

higher proportion of one-unit structures than the county as a whole, which is more evenly split between 

one-unit structures (56%), and multi-unit structures (40%).   This difference can be accounted for by the 

lack of densely populated urban areas in the unincorporated areas, as well as a large student population 

in the City of Austin which may skew housing towards multi-unit structures. Additionally, the 

unincorporated areas have a much higher proportion of mobile homes and other types of housing (RVs, 

boats, etc.) with 12% of the housing supply, versus 3% for the county as a whole. 

This difference in the distribution of unit types is confirmed by an analysis of housing permits over the 

last 10 years. As indicated by the number of housing permits issued, the vast majority of housing 

development in the unincorporated areas has been single unit structures.  No permits for multi-unit 

structures were issued for the unincorporated areas from 2009-2013.  

Owner occupied housing structures in the unincorporated areas consist primarily of units with 3 or more 

bedrooms.  This is a much higher percentage than rental units which are more evenly divided between 

1-,2- and 3-bedroom units.  

All residential properties by number of units 

Property Type Number Percent 

1-unit detached structure 45,409 71% 

1-unit, attached structure 831 1% 

2-4 units 1,792 3% 

5-19 units 4,344 7% 

20 or more units 3,692 6% 

Mobile Home, boat, RV, van, etc 7,920 12% 

Total 63,988 100% 
Table 30 – Residential Properties by Unit Number 

Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

 
Texas Travis County Unincorporated Travis County 

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

1 Unit 6,621,453 68% 240,831 56% 46,240 72% 

2 or more units 2,333,546 24% 172,677 40% 9,828 15% 

Mobile Home, 

RV, Boat, etc. 

763,471 8% 14,083 3% 7,920 12% 

Table 31 - Housing Unit by Type 
Data Source: U.S. Census, 2006-2010 American Community Survey 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     68 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Unit Size by Tenure 

 Owners Renters 

Number Percent Number Percent 

No bedroom 116 0% 118 1% 

1 bedroom 512 1% 4,444 30% 

2 bedrooms 3,465 8% 4,046 28% 

3 or more bedrooms 39,881 91% 6,103 41% 
Total 43,974 100% 14,711 100% 

Table 7 – Unit Size by Tenure 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

Program 

Type 
Year Development Name 

Population 

Served 

Total 

Units 

LIHTC 

Units 

Disabled 

Units 

9% HTC 1998 The Lodge at 

Merrilltown 

Elderly 204 204 33 

4% 2000 Southwest Trails General 160 160 12 

4% 2002 Eagle's Landing 

Apartments 

General 240 240 0 

4% 2004 Rosemont at Old 

Manor 

General 250 250 18 

9% 2013 Windy Ridge 

Apartments 

General 120 120 0 

Table 33 – Tax Credit Properties of Unincorporated Travis County 
Data Source: TDHCA HTC Property Inventory, Current as of April 10, 2014 

 

Describe the number and targeting (income level/type of family served) of units assisted with 

federal, state, and local programs 

The majority of housing units in Travis County that target low and moderate income households are 

located within the City of Austin, which is not part of the Travis County CDBG service area. The CDBG 

program has worked to identify projects in the unincorporated areas to assist in increasing the number 

of affordable housing units.  In partnership with Austin Habitat for Humanity, the County provided CDBG 

funds for the purchase of 31 single-family home lots in eastern Travis County. Austin Habitat for 

Humanity will build affordable single-family housing, of which 17 units will be dedicated to low-income 

families (25-50% Median Family Income) and 14 units will be dedicated to moderate-income families (up 

to 80% Median Family Income). Construction of the homes will be complete by July 2016.  Financing for 

the lots is available to homeowners as a 10-year forgivable loan.  

There are five tax credit multifamily projects located in unincorporated Travis County.  Please refer to 

the table above for number of units and population served.   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     69 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

For a full inventory of affordable housing in Travis County please refer to the "Appendix C: Housing 

Inventory."   

Provide an assessment of units expected to be lost from the affordable housing inventory for 

any reason, such as expiration of Section 8 contracts 

No units are expected to be lost from the affordable housing inventory over the Consolidated Planning 

period.  

Does the availability of housing units meet the needs of the population? 

The historically low housing market inventory and rapidly increasing cost of housing indicates that the 

housing market in Travis County is currently out of balance and becoming increasing unaffordable.  For 

moderate and especially low-income households this results in a scarcity of affordable housing units for 

both renters and homebuyers. Additionally, there are a limited number of rental units at any price point 

in the unincorporated area.   

Describe the need for specific types of housing 

According to analysis done by Mullin & Lonergan, in 2010 a household earning median income in Travis 

County could afford to purchase less than half of homes on the market. Housing prices have only 

increased since that time, while median income has increased only slightly indicating the need for more 

homes affordable to moderate and low income income households.   

A recent report by the Urban Institute estimates that for every 100 extremely low income residents of 

Travis County (defined as a household of four that earns less than $22,750) there are only 13 units of 

affordable rental housing.  This translates into a gap of 43,508 units of affordable rental housing. The 

population of the unincorporated areas of Travis County represents approximately 18% of the total 

population. Eighteen percent of the total gap in rental housing calculated by the Urban Institute 

translates into a gap of at least 7,831 affordable rental units in the unincorporated areas.  Given that the 

majority of units in the unincorporated areas are owner occupied, and there are relatively few rental 

units at any price level, the gap may be even greater. 

Discussion 

Demand for housing in Travis County currently outpaces supply, and this is driving up housing costs in 

both the owner occupied and rental markets.  Builders are responding to the demand with an increase 

in new housing starts. According to a report released by the housing consulting firm Metrostudy, 9,400 

new homes were built in the MSA in 2013, the highest level in six years and an additional 10,000 - 

10,500 houses are forecast to be built in 2014.  During the first quarter of 2014, new housing starts were 

up 16% from the same period in 2013. Analysis of building permits issued in Travis County, show that 

this trend applies to the unincorporated areas as well.  During the first quarter of 2013, 187 building 

permits were issued in the unincorporated, while during the first quarter of 2014, 254 permits were 

issued.  Additionally, 24 of these permits were issued for multi-family structures, while no permits for 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     70 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

multi-family structures were issued from 2009-2013. However, population growth is also forecast to 

continue throughout the region, so it is unclear to what degree the increase in the housing supply will 

alleviate the current pressure on housing costs.   

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     71 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

IV.B.  Cost of Housing 

Introduction 

Over the last decade, Austin’s owner housing market has become increasingly expensive, as the price 

distribution of available housing stock has skewed towards higher-priced housing.  For example, in 2003, 

41% of the homes sold in Austin were priced below $140,000; in 2013 year-to-date, only 17% of the 

homes sold were in this price range. Conversely, in 2003, 13% of the homes sold in Austin were priced at 

$300,000 or more; in 2013, 31% of all homes sold were in this range. 

Austin’s housing market also remains expensive as compared to other markets in the state of Texas.  In 

2013 (year-to-date), the Austin MLS had the fourth-highest median home price ($222,400) and the 

highest average home price ($285,600) of the 48 Texas MLS areas tracked by the Real Estate Center at 

Texas A&M University.  

Cost of Housing 

 2000 2010 Percent Change 

Median Home Value $134,700 $200,300 48.7% 

Median Contract Rent $727 $891 22.6% 

Table 34 – Cost of Housing, Travis County 
Data Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2000 Census and 2006-2010 American Community Survey 

 

 
Rent Paid Number Percent 

Less than $500 1,531 10.4% 

$500-999 9,418 64.0% 

$1,000-1,499 2,618 17.8% 

$1,500-1,999 702 4.8% 

$2,000 or more 442 3.0% 

Total 14,711 100.0% 
Table 35 - Rent Paid 

Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

For the county as a whole, the median value of houses has increased by 48.7% since 2000, and the 

median value of rent has increased by 22.6%.  

 
 
 
 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     72 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Housing Affordability 

% Units affordable  
to Households earning 

Renter Owner 

30% HAMFI 178 No Data 

50% HAMFI 2,082 2,095 

80% HAMFI 8,585 7,771 

100% HAMFI No Data 11,413 
Total 10,845 21,279 

Table 36 – Housing Affordability 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 

 
Monthly Rent  

Monthly Rent ($) 
Efficiency  

(no bedroom) 
1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom 4 Bedroom 

Fair Market Rent 696 853 1,074 1,454 1,762 

Table 37 – Monthly Rent 
Data Source Comments:  

 
 

Is there sufficient housing for households at all income levels? 

Demand for housing in the Austin area is currently outpacing the housing supply, and this is driving up 

housing costs and resulting in a shortage of affordable housing. According to analysis done by Mullin & 

Lonergan, between 1990 and 2010, median housing value (adjusted for inflation to 2010 dollars using 

BLS indices) increased 55.2% across Travis County, while real median income rose only 17.7% in real 

dollars. In 2010, a household earning median income could afford less than half of the homes on the 

market, and housing prices have only increased since that time.   

Median gross rent increased a comparable 52.8% over the same timeframe. Between 2000-2010 the 

number of affordable rental units declined and the number of units renting for less than $500 fell by 

more than half (55.6%). During the same time, the number of units renting for more than $1,000 per 

month increased from 2,403 to 6,666, or 177%. While these conditions affect households at all income 

levels, escalating housing costs and low inventory impacts moderate and especially low-income 

households more severely. 

How is affordability of housing likely to change considering changes to home values and/or 

rents? 

Austin Business Journal summary reporting of real estate research firm data indicates an estimated 94-

95% apartment occupancy rate in the Austin metro area during 2013 and 2014. During the first quarter 

of 2014, (apartment) occupancy rates came in at 94 percent, a drop of 0.85 percent from the previous 

quarter. That puts the annual decrease at 1.14 percent, which is the largest drop since 2009. The 

average of 4.7 percent apartment vacancy rates may be due in part to the delivery of new inventory in 

the far south Austin submarket, as well as Cedar Park, San Marcos and the downtown 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     73 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

submarkets. While vacancy rates are increasing, this has not yet resulted in lower rents. During the first 

quarter of 2014, rental rates increased 1.44 percent to an average of $1.20 per square foot across all 

classes of properties. 

It is likely that demand for housing in Travis County will continue to be extremely competitive over the 

Consolidated Planning period and the affordability gap for both renters and owner households will only 

become more severe. As housing prices continue to rise, particularly in the centrally located 

neighborhoods in Austin, it is likely that low- and moderate-income residents will increasingly look for 

housing outside of the City.  

How do HOME rents / Fair Market Rent compare to Area Median Rent? How might this 

impact your strategy to produce or preserve affordable housing? 

In the Austin area rental market, fair market rents (the federal standard for what is considered 

affordable), have shown a general upward trend since 2009, with the exception of efficiency apartments 

which saw a slight decline in FY 2014 from prior years. For FY 2014, Austin’s fair market rents for one-

bedroom, two-bedroom, three-bedroom and four-bedroom units are the highest of all Texas 

metropolitan areas, and fair market rents for efficiency apartments are the second highest. 

American Community Survey data confirm that actual rent costs in Travis County are rising. Between 

2008 and 2012, median contract rent rose 13%, from $744 to $839. The Austin area also has high 

occupancy rates, at 94% for the first quarter of 2014. These conditions create a tight rental market, 

especially for those seeking more affordable housing. 

Given the need for more affordable rental housing, the Travis County CDBG program would consider 

funding a multi-family rental project during the Consolidated Planning period if a feasible project is 

proposed.  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     74 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

IV.C.  Condition of Housing 

Introduction 

Information gathered over several years of public outreach and through the implementation of the 

home repair and social service programs have identified a high level of need for home repair in the 

unincorporated areas.  As part of the needs assessment for the Consolidated Plan, residents ranked 

"Home Repair" as the most urgent need among housing activities.  While housing in the unincorporated 

areas is generally newer than housing in the county as a whole, there are also fewer standards that 

builders in the unincorporated areas have to meet and this may result in housing of poor quality.   

Definitions 

The quality of some of the housing in the unincorporated housing is very poor.  Housing in substandard 

condition is a house that cannot have the health and safety repairs addressed through the resources 

available.  Any other home is considered substandard condition, but suitable for rehabilitation.  

Condition of Units 

Condition of Units 
Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 

Number Percent Number Percent 

With one selected Condition 12,894 29% 6,726 46% 

With two selected Conditions 281 1% 271 2% 

With three selected Conditions 56 0% 28 0% 

With four selected Conditions 0 0% 0 0% 

No selected Conditions 30,743 70% 7,686 52% 
Total 43,974 100% 14,711 100% 

Table 38 - Condition of Units 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 
 

Year Unit Built 

Year Unit Built 
Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 

Number Percent Number Percent 

2000 or later 16,931 39% 5,409 37% 

1980-1999 19,930 45% 6,662 45% 

1950-1979 6,458 15% 2,266 15% 

Before 1950 655 1% 374 3% 
Total 43,974 100% 14,711 100% 

Table 39 – Year Unit Built 
Data Source: 2006-2010 CHAS 

 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     75 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Risk of Lead-Based Paint Hazard 

Risk of Lead-Based Paint Hazard 
Owner-Occupied Renter-Occupied 

Number Percent Number Percent 

Total Number of Units Built Before 1980 7,113 16% 2,640 18% 

Housing Units built before 1980 with children present 4,195 10% 23,781* 162%* 

Table 40 – Risk of Lead-Based Paint 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS (Total Units) 2006-2010 CHAS (Units with Children present) 

*Note: This a HUD-required table and was auto-populated with CHAS data. The data point “Number of 

Renters: Housing Units built before 1980 with children present” appears to be based on an estimate for 

the entire county, while the other data points in the table are for the unincorporated areas alone, 

resulting in an inaccurate estimate and percentage.  At time of publication an alternate data point was 

not available.   

Need for Owner and Rental Rehabilitation 

The need for owner rehabilitation is high due to the poor condition of housing in the service 

area.  Mobile homes makes up a large majority of the housing stock as well as housing built in the early-

to-mid 1990s.  Many of the low to moderate income homeowners are cost burdened making home 

maintenance difficult to finance.  Unaddressed, routine maintenance becomes major 

repairs.  While multi-family rental properties do not make up a vast majority of the rental housing stock 

in the service area, rental of single family homes and manufactured housing does.  Renters experience 

similar issues as owners.  

Estimated Number of Housing Units Occupied by Low or Moderate Income Families with LBP 

Hazards 

Lead was banned from residential paint in 1978, prior to which it was a major ingredient in most interior 

and exterior oil-based house paint.  Housing built before 1978, therefore, may present a lead hazard if 

any coat of paint contains lead.  The older the home, the more likely it is to contain lead based 

paint.  Eighty-three percent of private housing and 86% of public housing built prior to 1980 contain 

some lead-based paint.  

House paints peel, chip, chalk and crack as they deteriorate.  Exterior paints can contaminate soil, and 

interior paints can contaminate dust when dry scraped or sanded or when paint surfaces rub 

together.  Young children most frequently become exposed by inadvertently ingesting dust or soil 

containing lead through the course of normal play and hand-to-mouth activities, or during the 

remodeling or the repair of older homes.  Small children may also be exposed to lead by touching or 

chewing on high-use surfaces such as windows, doors, stairs, porches and fences.  Older plumbing 

fixtures, painted toys and furniture, and lead-glazed ceramic ware or pottery are less common sources 

of lead hazards found in homes. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     76 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Lead is poisonous and exposure is hazardous to anyone, but children ages six and younger are at the 

highest risk, because their bodies are growing rapidly, and because they tend to put things in their 

mouths.  For these children, low-level exposure to lead can cause nervous and kidney system damage, 

reduction in IQ, reading and learning disabilities, increased hyperactivity and behavioral problems, poor 

muscle coordination, decreased muscle and bone growth, and hearing damage.  High-level exposure for 

children can cause seizures, unconsciousness, and death.  For adults exposed to lead, effects can include 

increased chance of illness during pregnancy, harm to a fetus, fertility problems in men and women, 

high blood pressure, digestive problems, nerve disorders, memory and concentration problems, and 

muscle and joint pain. 

Lead poisoning affects children of every demographic group. Low-income families, however, are 

disproportionately affected. Housing that has not been adequately maintained is potentially the most 

hazardous to young children due to the likelihood of chipping, peeling, or flaking paint. Much of the 

older housing stock available to low-income families is likely to be in deteriorated condition. 

According to ACS data, 16% of the Owner Occupied housing units and 18% of Renter households were 

built prior to 1980, and therefore at risk of containing lead based paint. Most of these older housing 

units in Travis County are located within city or town limits.    

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     77 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

IV.D.  Public and Assisted Housing 

Introduction 

The Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) manages three public housing sites, a Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, three Shelter 

Plus Care Projects, and a Lease-Purchase program. 

There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area. The three public housing sites have a total of 105 housing 

units and are located within the City of Austin. Additionally, HATC manages 33 units of Senior Housing in Manor, and 16 duplex units in Del Valle. 

The Housing Authority's affiliated entity, Strategic Housing Finance Corporation, is the general partner in  three tax credit multifamily properties, 

including 208 units of Senior Housing  in Pflugerville, 70 units of  senior housing in Austin, and a 192-unit family property in Austin. 

The Shelter Plus Care projects provide rental assistance for homeless people with chronic disabilities in the Austin-Travis County area. The 

program utilizes integrated rental housing and flexible and intensive support services to promote community tenure and independence. 

In the unincorporated areas, HATC administers the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, assisting very low income, disabled and elderly 

families or individuals. 

Totals Number of Units 

Program Type 

 Certificate 
Mod-
Rehab 

Public 
Housing 

Vouchers 

Total 
Project-
based 

Tenant-
based 

 

Special Purpose Voucher 

Veterans Affairs 
Supportive Housing 

Family 
Unification 

Program 
Disabled* 

# of units vouchers 

available 
0 0 210 1,136 46 1,015 0 0 582 

*includes Non-Elderly Disabled, Mainstream One-Year, Mainstream Five-year, and Nursing Home Transition 

Table 8 – Total Number of Units by Program Type 
Alternate Data Source Name: Housing Authority of Travis County Data 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     78 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Please note that the data provided in the table above refers to units that are located outside the Travis 

County CDBG service area. There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG 

service area.  

Describe the supply of public housing developments 

Please refer to Appendix C – Housing Inventory. 

Describe the number and physical condition of public housing units in the jurisdiction, 

including those that are participating in an approved Public Housing Agency Plan 

There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area.  

 

Public Housing Condition 

Public Housing Development Average Inspection Score 

No data provided No data provided 
Table 9 - Public Housing Condition 

 

Describe the restoration and revitalization needs of public housing units in the jurisdiction 

There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area.  

Describe the public housing agency's strategy for improving the living environment of low- 

and moderate-income families residing in public housing 

There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     79 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

IV.E.  Homeless Facilities and Services  

Introduction 

The following table summarizes the units available to various types of homeless households.  All of these facilities are located in incorporated 

areas of Travis County. For a full inventory of units please refer to "Appendix C: Housing Inventory."  

Facilities and Housing Targeted to Homeless Households 

 

Emergency Shelter Beds 
Transitional 

Housing Beds 
Permanent Supportive  

Housing Beds 

Year Round Beds 
(Current & New) 

Voucher / 
Seasonal / 

Overflow Beds 
Current & New Current & New 

Under 
Development 

Households with Adult(s) and 

Child(ren) 280 40 404 453 25 

Households with Only Adults 364 124 58 645 5 

Chronically Homeless Households 0 0 0 369 0 

Veterans 26 0 32 428 58 

Unaccompanied Youth 20 0 16 0 0 

Table 10 - Facilities and Housing Targeted to Homeless Households 
Data Source Comments:  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     80 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Describe mainstream services, such as health, mental health, and employment services to the 

extent those services are used to complement services targeted to homeless persons 

Services provided include those that help to meet basic needs such as food and housing, as well as the 

provision of other services to meet the critical needs of the homeless and to assist them in becoming 

self-sufficient.  Supportive services include assistance with health and substance abuse issues, 

employment, education, childcare, transportation, case management, and counseling in areas such as 

life skills and mental health. Outreach services including mortgage, rental and utilities assistance, 

counseling and advocacy, and legal assistance are also available. 

Annual ECHO sponsored SOAR training (SSI/SSDI Outreach Assistance & Recovery) trainings ensure 

personnel in every CoC funded program are trained to assist clients in accessing SSI and SSDI.  ECHO CoC 

Work Group sponsors a meeting with TANF representatives and programs that serve homeless or 

formerly homeless families to identify ways to streamline communication and successfully complete the 

application process.  Homeless services providers work closely with ATCIC, the local mental health 

authority to ensure homeless persons get needed mental health services, this includes having ATCIC 

staff located at the primary homeless day resource center, the ARCH.  Goodwill employment specialists 

are located across the city but have co-located staff on site at the ARCH and The Salvation Army in 

addition to partnering with PSH programs.  Homeless Service Providers work closely with 

CommUnityCare Health Centers providing services at 23 locations across the county.    CommUnityCare 

provides outpatient primary healthcare, dental care, limited specialty care, behavioral health services, 

and care for the homeless at the ARCH. These services are provided to Travis County residents whose 

incomes and lack of private health insurance qualify them for enrollment. 

List and describe services and facilities that meet the needs of homeless persons, particularly 

chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their 

families, and unaccompanied youth. If the services and facilities are listed on screen SP-40 

Institutional Delivery Structure or screen MA-35 Special Needs Facilities and Services, 

describe how these facilities and services specifically address the needs of these populations 

Emergency Shelter can be defined as "any facility with overnight sleeping accommodations, the primary 

purpose of which is to provide temporary shelter for the homeless in general or for specific populations 

of homeless persons. The length of stay can range from one night up to as much as three months." 

According to the 2013 homeless housing inventory, there were 828 emergency shelter beds in 

Austin/Travis County.  Currently there are no emergency shelter housing units in the unincorporated 

areas of the county. 

HUD defines transitional housing as "a project that is designed to provide housing and appropriate 

support services to homeless persons to facilitate movement to independent living within 24 months. In 

2013, there were a total of 478 units of transitional housing in Travis County. 

The Austin Community has a wide variety of Permanent Housing units serving the needs of the homeless 

and chronically homeless communities. In 2013, there were a total of 1,128 units of Permanent 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     81 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Supportive Housing constructed or under development in the community. Many of these PSH programs 

also include additional services that help to meet basic and critical needs, such as food and housing, as 

well as other services to assist the homeless population in becoming self- sufficient.  Supportive services 

include assistance with health and substance abuse issues, employment, education, childcare, 

transportation, case management, and counseling in areas such as life skills and mental health. 

Outreach services including mortgage, rental and utilities assistance, counseling and advocacy, and legal 

assistance are also available. Many of these services are available to participants on the same site as 

their housing. 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     82 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

IV.F.  Special Needs Facilities and Services 

Introduction 

This section describes the supportive housing needs for a variety of populations including the elderly, 

disabled persons, persons living with HIV/AIDS and Victims of Domestic Violence.  Additionally, it 

includes information on services available to persons being discharged from health care settings.  For 

more information on units available for elderly and disabled persons, Nursing and Assisted Living 

facilities, and Permanent Supportive Housing please refer to "Appendix C: Housing Inventory."  

Including the elderly, frail elderly, persons with disabilities (mental, physical, developmental), 

persons with alcohol or other drug addictions, persons with HIV/AIDS and their families, 

public housing residents and any other categories the jurisdiction may specify, and describe 

their supportive housing needs 

 

ELDERLY & DISABLED PERSONS 

Travis County funds services for the elderly such as in-home care services, bill payer services, meals, and 

case management. Services for persons with physical disabilities center on employment and job-

readiness, case management, early childhood intervention, basic needs assistance, and 

social/recreational opportunities. 

Based on 2008-2012 ACS 5-year data, the majority, 77%, of elderly households in Travis County reside in 

owner-occupied housing. More than half (54.1%) of all Elderly Renter households pay more than 30% of 

income towards housing compared to 49.5% of all Renter households. Whereas, only 27.1% of Elderly 

Owner-Occupied households pay more than 30% of income toward housing, which is slightly lower than 

the percentage for all Travis County households (28.6%). 

According to CHAS data, a higher percentage of households with one or more members with a disability 

experience a housing problem, than all Travis County Households. This is true for both renter and 

owner-occupied households. Due to changes in data reporting, the most recent available CHAS data is 

from 2005-2007.  However more current data shows that disabled households have a lower median 

income than all Travis County households and that housing costs throughout the county have increased. 

It is therefore likely that disabled households continue to experience housing problems at a higher rate.  

PERSONS LIVING WITH HIV/AIDS 

Travis County funded services for persons living with HIV/AIDS center around advocacy, crisis 

management, emergency shelter, transitional housing, counseling, case management, primary medical 

care retention, client advocacy, medication adherence assistance, food bank assistance, nutritional 

counseling, home health, prevention, and support groups. 

According to the 2010 Austin Transitional Grant Area Comprehensive Needs Assessment (by  Dr. Jemel 

P. Aguilar, University of Texas at Austin), the top five needs of PLWHA were ranked as follows: 1) 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     83 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

emergency financial assistance, 2) transportation, 3) housing services, 4) legal assistance, and 5) food 

bank and home-delivered meals. 

Currently, two agencies provide housing services under the City of Austin’s HOPWA Program; however, 

Project Transitions (PT) is the only organization in the Austin area that provides HIV/AIDS specific 

housing. PT provides assistance to clients at three sites in the unincorporated areas, but there is no 

dedicated HIV/AIDS housing in the unincorporated areas. 

VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

Per ECHO, the 2014 Point-In-Time Homeless Count found there were 1,987 persons in Travis County - 

1,539 were sheltered and 448 were unsheltered. Of these, 416 are homeless victims of domestic 

violence, 305 sheltered and 111 unsheltered. According to the nonprofit Greendoors, 18% of homeless 

individuals in Travis County have experienced domestic violence.  Travis County funds services for 

victims of domestic violence such as advocacy, crisis management, emergency shelter, transitional 

housing, counseling, life-skills training, and childcare. Safe Place is the principal service provider for 

victims of domestic violence in Travis County. Safe Place maintains an emergency shelter with assistance 

from the Salvation Army, along with some transitional housing, all in incorporated areas of Travis 

County. 

Describe programs for ensuring that persons returning from mental and physical health 

institutions receive appropriate supportive housing 

ECHO members have taken a two pronged approach to ensuring that persons are not routinely 

discharged from health care settings into homelessness. The Central Texas Recuperative Care Program 

identifies clients who are homeless and too sick to be discharged to a shelter or the streets, but not sick 

enough to warrant acute hospital placement. They are placed in a nursing home for the duration of their 

illness. Front Steps provides intensive case management to address income, housing, & self-care needs. 

The EMS ER Community Collaboration Coalition meets monthly. Providers discuss “high alert” patients 

and identify safety net services and plans. Seton hospital identifies individuals who are homeless during 

the intake process and flags them as high alert. Case managers are trained in service and housing 

options. Front Steps collaborates with the high alert program at Seton and contacts them when it is felt 

there have been “unsafe” discharges to the shelter to review where the breakdown occurred. 

The Central Texas Recuperative Care Program is a collaboration between Front Steps, Central Health, 

and The Religious Coalition for the Homeless. The EMS ER Community collaboration includes Seton 

UMCB hospital, the Salvation Army, Austin Travis County Integral Care, Front Steps, Safe Place (domestic 

violence shelter), St. David’s hospital, Community Care (local clinic system), Central Health (the local 

healthcare district), Foundation for the Homeless, Department of Family and Protective Services, and 

the Austin Travis County Emergency Medical Services. Also, ECHO and Catholic Charities are in 

discussion to see how their involvement might bring resources to the system. The State of Texas & 

Austin Travis County Integral Care (ATCIC), the local mental health authority, developed a discharge 

planning policy protocol to prevent or reduce the number of persons identified as homeless upon entry 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     84 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

or exit from the Austin State Hospital (ASH), a state-funded psychiatric hospital, from being released into 

homelessness. Austin Travis County Integral Care is a key ECHO member and staff provides leadership to 

the Housing Work Group. ECHO and ATCIC are joint applicants in a state grant focused on increasing 

housing and support services for the chronically homeless with mental illness. 

ECHO provides advocacy to ensure that housing and services are available when leaving ASH. At 

discharge, an individual is offered treatment at the Inn, a 16 bed facility providing short-term 

community based residential crisis treatment. The Inn is open 24/7 and is co-located with Psychiatric 

Emergency Services, the Mobile Crisis Outreach Team and the 24/7 Crisis Hotline. If individuals need 

more time to recover and stabilize, they can stay at ATCIC's crisis respite program, Next Step, which 

provides short-term psychiatric respite services for adults recovering from a psychiatric crisis. Those who 

choose not to participate are provided options for boarding homes and transitional living facilities. The 

Housing Work Group provides Mental Health First Aid training for landlords to mitigate and prevent 

evictions and reviews the implementation and effectiveness of discharge planning policies. ECHO 

advocated for an 1115 waiver that will provide more PSH options for individuals with severe mental 

illness.  

Specify the activities that the jurisdiction plans to undertake during the next year to address 

the housing and supportive services needs identified in accordance with 91.215(e) with 

respect to persons who are not homeless but have other special needs. Link to one-year 

goals. 91.315(e) 

The CDBG program will fund the Home Repair and Social Work projects over the next year.  The Home 

Repair project helps address the housing needs of elderly and disabled populations through the 

implementation of repairs that improve accessibility of housing units.  The Social Work project provides 

supportive services to a range of populations.   

For entitlement/consortia grantees: Specify the activities that the jurisdiction plans to 

undertake during the next year to address the housing and supportive services needs 

identified in accordance with 91.215(e) with respect to persons who are not homeless but 

have other special needs. Link to one-year goals. (91.220(2)) 

The CDBG program will fund the Home Repair and Social Work projects over the next year.  The Home 

Repair project helps address the housing needs of elderly and disabled populations through the 

implementation of repairs that improve accessibility of housing units.  The Social Work project provides 

supportive services to a range of populations. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     85 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

IV.G.  Barriers to Affordable Housing 

Negative Effects of Public Policies on Affordable Housing and Residential Investment 

 

LACK OF FUNDING FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

Funding for affordable housing requires many different products to achieve the desired 

affordability levels needed in a community. Funding mechanisms including the HOME Investment 

Program, tax credits, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Federal Housing Administration 

loans, and down-payment assistance are key to increasing the affordable housing stock. Currently, Travis 

County does not receive a HOME formula allocation, which is a major funding source for many 

entitlement communities to develop affordable housing.  

UTILITY COSTS 

The cost of utilities may make homeownership unaffordable for low-income households in the 

unincorporated areas. The Public Utility of Commission of Texas has limited ability to regulate these 

rates.  

The following section is excerpted from the AI, prepared by the consulting firm Mullin & Lonergan. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING AND LAND USE AUTHORITY   

A community’s comprehensive plan is a statement of policies relative to new development and 

preservation of existing assets. In particular, the land use element of the comprehensive plan defines 

the location, type and character of future development. The housing element of the comprehensive 

plan expresses the preferred density and intensity of residential neighborhoods within the 

county. Taken together, the land use and housing elements of the comprehensive plan define a vision of 

the type of place that a community wishes to become. 

Travis County has not adopted a comprehensive plan or similar document that contains broad objectives 

for land use or housing. Like all Texas counties, Travis County is limited by state law in the extent of its 

land use authority. In unincorporated areas, Texas counties may approve the subdivision of land, 

construct and maintain subdivision roads and assess costs to landowners, and may specify 

minimum standards for road construction and drainage.  

BUILDING STANDARDS 

Texas, a Dillon’s rule state, does not allow counties to adopt home rule; therefore, the powers they 

may exercise are limited to those explicitly granted by state government. For Texas counties, this 

does not include the authority to adopt building codes. What applies outside of incorporated boundaries 

are the standards of the International Building Code, which has been effectively adopted by the state. 

The responsibility for compliance is on builders, who submit construction reports to county 

governments. Even if such a report indicates that a builder has not met an aspect of the code, however, 

counties do not wield direct enforcement power. Therefore, Travis County’s authority over 

new residential construction projects concerns only the issuance of three permits: driveway (if the 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     86 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

property is on a county-maintained road), floodplain and septic system. The absence of meaningful local 

control over the design and construction of new residential structures is one possible reason for 

reported instances of noncompliance with federal and state accessibility requirements.  

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     87 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

IV.H.  Non-Housing Community Development Assets  

Introduction 

Nearly two-thirds of all jobs in the U.S., and the majority of jobs paying a living wage, require education beyond high school and/or additional 

training. Programs aimed at job training, education, and job placement can help generate high taxpayer returns by increasing employment, 

revenue, and families’ economic security. Increasing opportunities for higher education and for building skills are important for making increased 

earnings and employment stability attainable and creating a workforce that meets the demands. Despite the benefits to individuals and 

employers, and to the community as a whole, workforce development investments, federal and state funding for employment and training 

services, including adult and technical education, have been declining. In order to remain competitive in today’s global economy, a trained, 

skilled workforce is needed. 

Travis County has been consistently outperforming the state and nation in terms of jobs. The unemployment rate for Travis County went from 

5.7% in January 2013 to 4.5% in December 2013. This is the lowest unemployment rate for Travis County since 2007. By comparison, state and 

national rates were 5.6% and 6.5%, respectively. 

Economic Development Market Analysis 

Business Activity 

Business by Sector Number of 
Workers 

Number of 
Jobs 

Share of  
Workers % 

Share of  
Jobs % 

Jobs less  
Workers % 

Agriculture, Mining, Oil & Gas Extraction 515 332 1 1 0 

Arts, Entertainment, Accommodations 7,319 3,419 13 13 0 

Construction 3,901 6,753 7 27 20 

Education and Health Care Services 8,435 1,998 15 8 -7 

Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate 5,016 1,796 9 7 -2 

Information 1,984 673 4 3 -1 

Manufacturing 5,242 2,086 9 8 -1 

Other Services 2,517 880 4 3 -1 

Professional, Scientific, Management Services 7,571 2,007 13 8 -5 

Public Administration 149 130 0 1 1 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     88 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Business by Sector Number of 
Workers 

Number of 
Jobs 

Share of  
Workers % 

Share of  
Jobs % 

Jobs less  
Workers % 

Retail Trade 7,554 2,242 13 9 -4 

Transportation and Warehousing 1,541 696 3 3 0 

Wholesale Trade 4,831 2,314 9 9 0 

Total 56,575 25,326 -- -- -- 

Table 44 - Business Activity 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS (Workers), 2010 Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics (Jobs) 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     89 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Labor Force 

Total Population in the Civilian Labor Force 87,516 

Civilian Employed Population 16 years and over 82,373 

Unemployment Rate 5.88 

Unemployment Rate for Ages 16-24 15.67 

Unemployment Rate for Ages 25-65 3.92 

Table 45 - Labor Force 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

Occupations by Sector Number of People 

Management, business and financial 26,523 

Farming, fisheries and forestry occupations 3,846 

Service 6,382 

Sales and office 13,088 

Construction, extraction, maintenance and repair 6,827 

Production, transportation and material moving 3,667 

Table 46 – Occupations by Sector 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

Travel Time 

Travel Time Number Percentage 

< 30 Minutes 40,709 55% 

30-59 Minutes 29,277 39% 

60 or More Minutes 4,275 6% 
Total 74,261 100% 

Table 47 - Travel Time 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

Education 

Educational Attainment by Employment Status (Population 16 and Older) 

Educational Attainment 
In Labor Force  

Civilian Employed Unemployed Not in Labor Force 

Less than high school graduate 5,791 474 2,814 

High school graduate (includes 

equivalency) 12,686 737 3,902 

Some college or Associate's degree 20,089 1,086 5,237 

Bachelor's degree or higher 32,760 1,375 6,508 

Table 48 - Educational Attainment by Employment Status 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     90 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Educational Attainment by Age 

Educational Attainment 
Age 

18–24 yrs 25–34 yrs 35–44 yrs 45–65 yrs 65+ yrs 

Less than 9th grade 350 1,169 1,094 1,585 985 

9th to 12th grade, no diploma 2,421 1,775 1,465 1,991 814 

High school graduate, GED, or 

alternative 3,864 4,802 4,527 8,096 2,545 

Some college, no degree 4,440 5,679 5,249 8,976 2,180 

Associate's degree 268 1,683 1,996 2,904 473 

Bachelor's degree 1,024 6,435 8,450 11,276 2,217 

Graduate or professional degree 74 2,146 4,653 7,699 1,510 

Table 49 - Educational Attainment by Age 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

Educational Attainment – Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 

Educational Attainment Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 

Less than high school graduate 0 

High school graduate (includes equivalency) 0 

Some college or Associate's degree 0 

Bachelor's degree 0 

Graduate or professional degree 0 

Table 50 – Median Earnings in the Past 12 Months 
Data Source: 2006-2010 ACS 

 

 

Based on the Business Activity table above, what are the major employment sectors within 

your jurisdiction? 

According to data for 2006-2010 in the Business Activity table above, the major employment sectors 

within Travis County in terms of the number of jobs are Construction (27%); Arts, Entertainment, 

Accommodations (13%); and Wholesale Trade (9%). 

According to data from the Texas Workforce Commission for the 3rd quarter of 2013, federal, state, and 

local government together comprise the largest industry sector in Travis County, providing 20% of 

634,831 total jobs. Other leading industries for the same time period include Professional and Business 

Services (18%) and Trade, Transportation, and Utilities (15%). 

Describe the workforce and infrastructure needs of the business community 

According to the Business Activity table above, there is a shortage of workers in the Construction 

industry and a shortage of jobs primarily in the Education and Health Care Services; Professional, 

Scientific, Management Services; and Retail Trade sectors in Travis County. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     91 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Based on 5-year estimates (2006-2010), as shown in the Labor Force table above, the unemployment 

rate in the 16-24 age group (15.67%) is almost four times that of the 25-65 age group (3.92%). The 

majority (94%) of those working (not including military workers) in Travis County are at least 16 years 

old. 

Of the occupations sectors listed in Table 3 above, more people worked in Management, Business and 

Financial than in any other sector, with Sales and Office and Construction, Extraction, Maintenance, and 

Repair being the next two sectors employing the most people in Travis County. 

According to Table 3, based on data averaged over the 2006-2010 time period, the majority (55%) of 

workers had travel times to work under 30 minutes, while 39% had travel times that ranged between 30 

and 59 minutes, and a small percentage (6%) took an hour or more to travel to work. 

Describe any major changes that may have an economic impact, such as planned local or 

regional public or private sector investments or initiatives that have affected or may affect 

job and business growth opportunities during the planning period. Describe any needs for 

workforce development, business support or infrastructure these changes may create 

Travis County experienced an increase in the number of jobs within every major industry over 2013. 

Industries adding the largest number of jobs between 2012 and 2013 (according to third quarter figures) 

include professional and business services, leisure and hospitality, and trade, transportation and 

utilities. 

Unemployment rates in Travis County dropped from 5.2% in March 2013 to 4.3% in March 2014. 

Historically, since at least 2004, the unemployment rates in Travis County have remained lower than the 

state rates (5.3% in March 2014). 

Construction jobs are expected to continue to increase in the Travis County area, in particular in the 

Austin MSA, to meet the increasing housing demand and the City of Austin’s new comprehensive plan, 

Imagine Austin, which includes the City’s extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ) and which aims to invest in a 

compact Austin. 

Current minimum wage in Texas is $7.25 per hour. According to the Center for Public Policy Priorities 

Family Budget Estimator project, a single adult with employer-sponsored health insurance and no 

children must earn $10.81 per hour, almost one-and-a-half times the minimum wage, to live in the 

Austin-Round Rock MSA without relying on public assistance. For a two-parent, two-child household 

without employer-sponsored health insurance, the required wage increases up to $31.51 per hour, 

more than four times the minimum wage. 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     92 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

How do the skills and education of the current workforce correspond to employment 

opportunities in the jurisdiction? 

According to the Texas Workforce Commission’s Projected Labor Market Structure for 2016, more than 

one-quarter (26%) of jobs will be high-skilled, high-wage jobs that require a bachelor’s degree or more; 

nearly 30% of jobs in 2016 will require technical skills, like trade construction or health care skills; and 

almost one-half (45%) of the labor market will require short-term training. These projected percentages 

highlight the need for short-term and long-term training, as well as efforts to increase enrollment in 

postsecondary education. 

According to Labor Market & Career Information data from the Texas Workforce Commission, a job 

listings search for the last 90 days of 2013 in the Austin MSA revealed that the top 15 jobs, more than 

half (53%) required an associate or bachelor degree, 20% provided some degree of on-the-job training, 

and the remaining 27% required related experience. Six (40%) of the listings were for 

computer/information technology positions, and the rest for a variety ranging from sales to customer 

service to food prep. And among the 18 projected fastest growing occupations in Texas for the 2010-

2010 time period, 50% require an associate’s or higher degree; 33% require a high school diploma or 

GED; and the remaining 17% do not require a high school diploma. 

A powerful correlation between educational attainment and earnings persists. Among Travis County 

residents 25 and over with earnings in 2012, those who graduated high school earn 42% more per year 

than those who did not; those with some college or an associate’s degree earn 25% more than those 

whose formal education stopped after high school; those with a bachelor’s degree earned 47% more 

than those with some college or an associate’s degree; and those with a graduate or professional degree 

earn 39% more than those with a bachelor’s degree. Overall, those with a bachelor’s degree earned 84% 

more than those with only a high school degree. Among Travis County workers between the ages of 25 

and 64, almost one-half (48%) have a bachelor’s degree or higher, and another one-quarter (25%) have 

some college or an associate’s degree. High school graduates comprise 16% of the labor force. For Travis 

County overall, 2012 median earnings were $36,029. However, median earnings for men ($40,767) were 

30% higher than those for women ($31,432). 

Workforce trends generally predict that as education levels increase, unemployment rates decrease. In 

Travis County, those with the highest educational levels have the lowest unemployment (less than 4% 

unemployment for those with a bachelor’s degree or higher), and those with the lowest educational 

levels have the highest unemployment (about 12% for those with less than a high school degree). 

Describe any current workforce training initiatives, including those supported by Workforce 

Investment Boards, community colleges and other organizations. Describe how these efforts 

will support the jurisdiction's Consolidated Plan 

The County’s investments in workforce development can be divided into two broad categories based on 

service length: short-term and long-term. Investments in short-term (under 12 months) training tend to 

produce substantial improvement for participants immediately after receiving services; however, those 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     93 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

benefits fade over time, indicating a need for more ongoing support and continued skill development to 

increase stability and advancement. Longer-term training (12 months or greater) results in significant 

improvement in earnings over time, as well as a reduction in public assistance benefits that constitutes a 

significant return on investment to taxpayers; however, among residents in need, jobs and income are 

an immediate requirement, so a commitment to long-term training prior to employment may not be a 

viable option. This indicates a need for pathways that integrate long-term training concurrent with 

employment so that residents do not have to forgo needed earnings in the present to secure greater 

earnings in the future. 

Does your jurisdiction participate in a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 

(CEDS)? 

No 

If so, what economic development initiatives are you undertaking that may be coordinated 

with the Consolidated Plan? If not, describe other local/regional plans or initiatives that 

impact economic growth 

On January 14, 2014 the Commissioners Court adopted the "Travis County Economic Development 

Program Policy Guidelines and Criteria." The purpose of this Policy includes the following: 

i) to encourage economic stimulation and prosperity by attracting new businesses to the County; 

ii) to enhance the County tax base by attracting new businesses that will make significant investments 

in new construction; 

iii) to assist with workforce development in the County by attracting companies that offer significant 

numbers of new jobs and/or training to current residents who are unemployed or under-employed; 

iv) to encourage diversity of the County's economy by attracting businesses that will contribute to the 

economy by broadening the scope of business and industry within the County; and 

v) to attract significant new businesses that also help promote the growth of other new businesses 

needed to provide supporting services or supplies, particularly small companies. 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     94 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Needs and Market Analysis Discussion  

Are there areas where households with multiple housing problems are concentrated? 

(include a definition of "concentration") 

Information gathered over several years of public outreach and through the implementation of the 

home repair and social service programs have identified neighborhoods throughout the jurisdiction that 

have high levels of housing in need of repair, as well as a lack of neighborhood infrastructure. Because 

these are small neighborhoods that are geographically dispersed throughout the county, it would be 

more accurate to describe them as scattered areas with multiple housing problems rather than a 

concentration.  Staff are planning to produce a supplement to the Consolidated Plan in the fall of 2014 

which will provide a more in-depth analysis of specific neighborhoods in the unincorporated areas.  

Are there any areas in the jurisdiction where racial or ethnic minorities or low-income 

families are concentrated? (include a definition of "concentration") 

The following section is excerpted from The Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, conducted 

for Travis County by Mullin & Lonergan.   

A concentrated area is any in which the percentage of a single ethnic or minority group is at least 10 

percentage points higher than across the County overall. Across Travis County in 2010, Blacks comprised 

8.5% of the population. Therefore, an area of Black concentration would include any block group where 

the percentage of Black residents is 18.5% or higher. Of the 87 block groups across the Urban County, 

seven (8%) met this criterion, all of which were also areas of Hispanic concentration. An area of Asian 

concentration, by the same definition, would include any tract where the percentage of Asian residents 

is 15.9% or higher. Of the 87 block groups in the Urban County, two met this criterion. In Hispanic-

concentrated block groups, at least 43.5% of the population is Hispanic. Of 87 total unincorporated 

block groups, 20 (23%) met this definition. 

The CDBG program includes a statutory requirement that at least 70% of funds invested benefit low and 

moderate income (LMI) persons. As a result, HUD provides the percentage of LMI persons in each 

census block group for entitlements such as Travis County. Travis County invests its CDBG funds 

primarily in areas where the percentage LMI persons is 45.14% or higher (LMI areas). Generally, the LMI 

percentage required for CDBG eligibility is 51%. However, due to a more affluent population in some 

areas of the County, HUD has established an “exception criteria” that lowers the LMI percentage 

requirement for Travis County to 45.14%. Block groups where at least 45.14% of persons are considered 

low- or moderate-income by HUD standards and are racially/ethnically concentrated are referred to as 

impacted block groups.   

Please refer to the "Appendix C: Maps" for maps that display the distribution of racially and/or ethnically 

concentrated block groups and impacted block groups in the unincorporated areas of Travis county.   

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     95 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

What are the characteristics of the market in these areas/neighborhoods? 

The following section is excerpted from The Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, conducted 

for Travis County by Mullin & Lonergan.   

To describe the variation in neighborhood opportunity across metropolitan regions, the Kirwan Institute 

for the Study of Race and Ethnicity at The Ohio State University has developed the “Communities of 

Opportunity” model, a fair housing and community development framework that assigns each 

neighborhood a score reflecting the degree to which its residents have access to determinants of 

positive life outcomes, such as good schools, jobs, stable housing, transit and the absence of crime and 

health hazards. The Communities of Opportunity model is highly spatial and is therefore map-based, 

representing the geographic footprint of inequality. The process of creating opportunity maps involves 

building a set of potential indicators of high and low opportunity, reflecting local issues as well as 

research literature validating connections between indicators and opportunity. Data is collected at the 

smallest geographic unit possible for each indicator and organized into sectors (education, mobility, 

etc.), which are then combined to create a composite opportunity map. The resulting maps allow 

communities to analyze opportunity “comprehensively and comparatively, to communicate who has 

access to opportunity-rich areas and who does not; and to understand what needs to be remedied in 

opportunity-poor communities.”  

The Kirwan Institute applied this methodology to produce opportunity index distributions for the 

Greater Austin region. Five dimensions were identified, consistent with research best practices and 

issues of local relevance: education, economic, mobility/transportation, health/environment and 

neighborhood quality. Each dimension includes a collection of variables describing conditions for each 

census tract in the region.  

On the basis of the composite index, combining all identified dimensions, the study found that higher-

opportunity areas were primarily concentrated west of I-35, with the most opportunity-rich areas in the 

entire region located directly west of the highway in Travis County. Concentrations of lower-income 

minorities are most prevalent in the eastern crescent outside of Austin and the majority of impacted 

block groups are concentrated in low- and moderate-opportunity neighborhoods. The report also found 

that more than half of linguistically isolated people were located in very-low- or low-opportunity 

tracts.  These areas of lower opportunity are characterized by higher poverty and unemployment rates, 

lower median income, fewer transit options and longer commute times, and worse educational 

outcomes, among other indicators. Please refer to "Appendix C: Maps" for a map that shows impacted 

block groups and areas of opportunity.    

Are there any community assets in these areas/neighborhoods? 

Most of the areas are in proximity to one of the Travis County Community Centers, and to Travis County 

parks.  Staff are planning to produce a supplement to the Consolidated Plan in the fall of 2014 which will 

provide a more in-depth analysis of specific neighborhoods in the unincorporated areas and will include 

identification of community assets.   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     96 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Are there other strategic opportunities in any of these areas? 

In consultation with non-profit service providers, CDBG staff are looking for ways to strategically expand 

services into the unincorporated areas of the county.  As the first step in this process, staff are preparing 

a supplement to the Consolidated Plan that will provide non-profits with an in-depth analysis of specific 

neighborhoods that includes community conditions and identification of services currently available 

and/or gaps in service.  

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     97 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

V.  Strategic Plan 
Overview 

The priority needs for housing and non-housing community development efforts were determined using 

data presented in the Needs and Housing Market Analysis of this Plan, and through public hearings, 

surveys, consultation with County staff and consultation with service providers serving low and 

moderate income residents of Travis County.  Key factors affecting the determination of the three-year 

priorities included: 1) the types of target income households and populations with the greatest need for 

assistance; 2) those activities that will best address their needs; 3) the limited amount of funding 

available to meet those needs.  Activities to be undertaken over the consolidated planning period were 

organized into six broad categories as follows: Infrastructure, Housing, Community Services, Populations 

with Specialized Needs, Public Facilities and Business and Jobs.  The categories were ranked, as High or 

Low Priorities, which indicate the following:  

High Priority: Travis County plans to use funds made available for activities that address this unmet 

need during the period of time designated in the Strategic Plan.  

Low Priority:  If funds are available, activities to address this unmet need may be funded by Travis 

County during the period of time designated in the Strategic Plan.  Also, Travis County will take actions 

to locate other sources of funds to address this identified unmet need.  

The table below summaries the priorities for the next five years.  

Category Priority 

Infrastructure High 

Housing High 

Community Services High 

Populations with Specialized Needs and Services High 

Public Facilities Low 

Business & Jobs Low 

          Table 50 - Prioritization of Categories for the PY 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     98 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

V.A.  Geographic Priorities  

General Allocation Priorities 

Describe the basis for allocating investments geographically within the jurisdiction (or within the EMSA 

for HOPWA) 

The jurisdiction of the County's CDBG program is the unincorporated areas of the County and the Village 

of Webberville.  While the program does not specifically target geographic areas within the jurisdiction, 

geography is a consideration when evaluating different types of projects.  In impacted areas, primarily in 

the Southeastern parts of the jurisdiction, projects that improve access to services and improve 

neighborhood quality are prioritized.  New housing development projects are prioritized in non-

impacted areas of high opportunity that would further fair housing goals.  Infrastructure projects are 

considered in areas of need throughout that jurisdiction and are typically located in neighborhoods 

characterized by isolated pockets of poverty.   

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     99 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Priority Needs  

1 Priority Need 

Name 

Infrastructure 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Non-housing Community Development 

Geographic 

Areas 

Affected 

Not applicable 

Associated 

Goals 

Street Improvements 

Description Residents of the unincorporated areas have consistently indicated a need for 

water/wastewater systems and roads. In particular, residents in economically 

disenfranchised areas lack access to running water and are without infrastructure 

or funding to access the area water utility. Request for water and wastewater over 

the last five years totals an estimated $28 million. Requests for street 

improvements over the last five years total an estimated $18 million. Drainage 

improvements often are associated with other street improvement work. Bike 

paths and sidewalks as an added benefit can provide more livable, sustainable 

neighborhoods. 

Basis for 

Relative 

Priority 

Since the inception of the CDBG program, infrastructure has been at the forefront 

of the program. It is the project type that caused communities to organize and 

request funds, and still remains the most requested project by neighborhoods. 

During the Public Participation process, Residents ranked "Infrastructure" as the 

most urgent need for the Consolidated Planning period and for the next program 

year. Over the last three years, almost $1 million of CDBG funds has been invested 

in improving substandard roads. 

2 Priority Need 

Name 

Community Services 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Non-housing Community Development 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     100 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Geographic 

Areas 

Affected 

Not applicable 

Associated 

Goals 

Tenants’ Rights and Fair Housing Counseling 

Expansion of Social Work Services 

Description Travis County is home to over 180,000 school-age children between the ages of 5 

and 17. The poverty rate among children is higher than the overall poverty rate for 

all residents of Travis County. Recent data shows that most students in low income 

areas of Travis County were not served by afterschool programs although: - 

Research shows that afterschool and other youth programs have positive impacts 

on student behavior and performance, and - A 2011 survey of high school students 

points to a greater risk for poor outcomes among Texas students, compared to 

youth nationally, due to greater risky behaviors that threaten the health and safety 

of youth. Elderly: In 2012, there were 85,458 adults aged 65 and older living in 

Travis County, comprising 7.8% of the population. By 2020, that figure is expected 

to rise to 10.4% of the county population, and with it the need for services. 

Basis for 

Relative 

Priority 

Since the inception of the CDBG program, access to social services for residents of 

the unincorporated areas has been an issue. While 18% of Travis County residents 

live in the unincorporated areas, during 2013, 5% of services funded through Travis 

County's social service contracts were provided in the unincorporated areas (with 

an additional 25% provided to residents of areas that include both incorporated and 

unincorporated geographies.) During the Public Participation process, both 

residents and social service providers confirm the need for Community Services, 

with both groups ranking it as the second most urgent need for the Consolidated 

Planning period. Over the last three years, over $377,000 of CDBG funds has been 

invested in improving access to case management, fair housing and tenants’ rights 

counseling and other needed services. 

3 Priority Need 

Name 

Housing 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Elderly 

Frail Elderly 

Persons with Physical Disabilities 

Geographic 

Areas 

Affected 

Not applicable 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     101 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Associated 

Goals 

Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Creation of New Rental Units 

Description Rapid population growth in the Austin area has resulted in an imbalance between 

supply and demand in the housing market, the most recent data shows a 

historically low housing inventory. Housing prices and rents have been steadily 

increasing in Travis County, while median incomes have not increased at the same 

rate. Cost burden (paying more than 30% of income towards housing costs) is the 

most prevalent housing problem facing Travis County residents. 

Basis for 

Relative 

Priority 

Housing costs have become increasingly expensive in Travis County over the last 

several years, and there is a scarcity of housing affordable to low-income 

households. This trend is likely to continue over at least the next year. Housing was 

ranked as the highest need among service providers and the third highest need by 

residents during the public input process. Residents of the unincorporated areas 

indicate that the most urgent need related to housing is repairs for owner occupied 

housing. 

4 Priority Need 

Name 

Populations with Specialized Needs and Services 

Priority Level High 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Non-housing Community Development 

Geographic 

Areas 

Affected 

Not applicable 

Associated 

Goals 

None 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     102 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Description  Approximately 5% of clients receiving services for the elderly, persons with 

disabilities, victims of domestic violence, or persons living with HIV/AIDS 

were from the unincorporated areas of the county.  Another 24% live in 

areas that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated. Currently, there is 

no housing in the unincorporated areas that is specifically for disabled 

persons. 

 Elderly renter households are more likely to have a housing problem than 

either owner-occupied households or non-elderly households. In 2012, 

about 8% of the Travis County population consisted of adults aged 65 and 

older, and close to a quarter of individuals aged 65 to 74 and over half of 

individuals 75 and older had a disability. Since the elderly population is 

expected to rise and the rate of disability is known to increase with age, the 

needs for services for the elderly and disabled is expected to grow as well. 

 

Basis for 

Relative 

Priority 

Data indicates that elderly and disabled households, in particular, are in need of 

more directed services. Due to the high demand for services in the unincorporated 

areas, whether the person is considered part of a special population or not, specific 

program targeting only to a particular population is not a best practice.  Through 

sub recipient contracts, staff will direct sub recipients to develop specific marketing 

strategies to ensure inclusion and access for these populations to the more 

generalist program funding as they relate to housing and community services. 

5 Priority Need 

Name 

Public Facilities and Buildings 

Priority Level Low 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Non-housing Community Development 

Geographic 

Areas 

Affected 

Not applicable 

Associated 

Goals 

None 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     103 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Description Parks: 

 Eastern Travis County currently has less park acreage than western parts of 

the county, and the need for additional recreational areas in the eastern 

parts of the county is likely to increase. 

 As development continues to push into eastern Travis County, agricultural 

and rural land is increasingly converted to developed land. 

 Additionally, the demographics of the eastern part of the county include 

higher concentrations of low income households who may rely on public 

facilities for recreational activities. 

 Finally, as the population of the county grows, it is likely that existing 

facilities will have to support increased usage. Taken together, these factors 

may indicate the need for expanded recreation areas or activities in eastern 

Travis County. 

Community Centers: 

 Community centers are important to the unincorporated community as 

they provide centralized locations—five outside of the urban core—for 

residents to access social services and community meeting rooms. 

However, as the population continues to be pushed further out in the 

unincorporated area, even these public facilities may not be accessible to 

residents with limited transportation options. 

 

Basis for 

Relative 

Priority 

While public interest for these types of facilities is high it is often in conjunction 

with expanded community services.  Access to funding from other sources is better 

suited to address this type of capital expansion. CDBG staff recommends providing 

advocacy and communication about the interests expressed by the public during 

the public comment periods rather than prioritizing funding during this strategic 

planning period. 

 Residents, primarily from E/SE and W/SW Travis County, have requested 

the following types of public facilities: neighborhood parks (including 

playgrounds and walking trails), recreational centers, community centers, 

health facilities, and childcare centers.   Often times, the discussion around 

public facilities also centers on access to community services, which 

residents rank as a more pressing need. 

 Whereas some of these types of public facilities, in particular, parks and 

community centers, are available in the unincorporated areas, even these 

public facilities may not be accessible to residents without, or with limited, 

access to personal or public transportation. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     104 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

6 Priority Need 

Name 

Business and Jobs 

Priority Level Low 

Population Extremely Low 

Low 

Moderate 

Non-housing Community Development 

Geographic 

Areas 

Affected 

Not applicable 

Associated 

Goals 

None 

Description According to the Texas Workforce Commission, in 2013, there was an increase in 

the number of jobs in every major industry in Texas. And as of December 2013, the 

unemployment rate for Travis County (4.5%) has consistently remained lower than 

the state (5.6%) and national (6.5%) rates. Approximately 7% of the services related 

to workforce development reach the residents of the unincorporated areas of the 

county, and another 30% reach residents in areas that are a mix of incorporated 

and unincorporated. This shows that residents throughout the unincorporated 

areas are in need of improved access to workforce development and jobs. Programs 

and services within this issue area provide employment and training services to help 

individuals improve workplace skills, obtain employment, succeed in the workplace, 

and help employers secure a skilled workforce. 

Basis for 

Relative 

Priority 

Having job centers disbursed throughout the County is preferable to reduce traffic 

and promote sustainable living. The development of job centers has not paced with 

the sprawl and growth of the unincorporated areas. Due to the high cost and 

economic development tools needed to attract businesses to particular locations, it 

may be preferable that CDBG focuses on linking clients from the community 

services projects and housing projects to current workforce programs. 

Table 51 – Priority Needs Summary 

 

 

Influence of Market Conditions 
Affordable Housing 

Type 
Market Characteristics that will influence  

the use of funds available for housing type 
Tenant-Based Rental 

Assistance (TBRA) 

The County is not planning to use CDBG funds for TBRA over the Consolidated 

Planning period.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     105 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Affordable Housing 
Type 

Market Characteristics that will influence  
the use of funds available for housing type 

TBRA for Non-

Homeless Special 

Needs 

The County is not planning to use CDBG funds for TBRA over the Consolidated 

Planning period.  

New Unit Production The increasing cost of housing in Travis County supports production of new 

affordable housing units. Additionally, the scarcity of affordable rental units in 

the unincorporated areas supports development of multifamily housing.   

Rehabilitation The scarcity of affordable housing units and increasing housing costs supports 

the need to preserve existing housing for low and moderate income 

households through rehabilitation of homes.    

Acquisition, including 

preservation 

There is a scarcity of rental units in the unincorporated areas. Since most 

existing units are not in the jurisdiction, market conditions support the 

acquisition of land that could be used for the construction of new units.   

Table 52 – Influence of Market Conditions 

 

 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     106 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

V.B.  Anticipated Resources  

Introduction  

For the Consolidated Planning period, the County anticipates receiving an estimated 4.9 million dollars.  This estimate is based off the County 

receiving increased allocation over the last couple of years in spite of reduced or level funding at the federal level.  The increased funding occurs 

due to the increased growth of population and poverty in the CDBG service area.  Due to tightening domestic spending, the CDBG allocation is 

expected to remain level or likely decrease over the next four years, however, staff believe the population growth will offset an allocation 

reduction. In Program Year 2014, the County expects to receive $997,649.  Additionally, three projects from prior years will continue to be 

implemented: 1) Lake Oak Estates Street Improvement Project; 2) Land Acquisition to Support Affordable Single Family Home Development; and 

3) Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation Project.  

Anticipated Resources 

Program 
Source of 

Funds 
Uses of Funds 

Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected Amount 
Available Reminder 

of ConPlan 

Narrative 
Description 

Annual 
Allocation 

Program 
Income 

Prior Year 
Resources 

Total 

CDBG 
public - 

federal 

Acquisition 

Admin and Planning 

Economic Development 

Housing 

Public Improvements 

Public Services 

$997,649 $0 $0 
$997,

649 
$3,990,596 

CDBG Funding for 

Program Year 

2014. 

Table 53 - Anticipated Resources 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     107 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local 

funds), including a description of how matching requirements will be satisfied 

No matching requirements exist for CDBG funding, however, several projects expect to use private, state 

or local funds. 

If appropriate, describe publically owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that 

may be used to address the needs 

identified in the plan 

Not applicable. 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     108 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

V.C.  Institutional Delivery Structure  

Explain the institutional structure through which the jurisdiction will carry out its 

consolidated plan including private industry, non-profit organizations, and public institutions. 

 

Responsible Entity Responsible Entity Type Role Geographic Area Served 

Travis County HHS/VS Government Planning Other 

Travis County 

Commissioners Court 

Government Planning Other 

Travis County 

Transportation and 

Natural Resources 

Government Planning 

neighborhood 

improvements 

Other 

Travis County Auditor's 

Office 

Government Planning Other 

Travis County 

Purchasing Office 

Government Planning Other 

Travis County Housing 

Finance Corporation 

Government Ownership 

Rental 

Other 

Housing Authority of 

Travis County (HATC) 

Government Public Housing Other 

Ending Community 

Homelessness Coalition 

(ECHO) 

Non-profit organizations Homelessness Region 

Table 54 - Institutional Delivery Structure 

 

Assess of Strengths and Gaps in the Institutional Delivery System 

The CDBG Program is concluding its eighth year now and with time and experience, its capacity to 

implement programs and work within the institutional structure has grown.  Staff know where to push 

in the system to increase the speed with which projects are implemented.  Furthermore, the same staff 

in various Departments have been implementing CDBG so most everyone else in a supportive role to 

CDBG understands the program as well.  

Within the community, ECHO, the Housing Authority of Travis County and the Housing Finance 

Corporation has grown and strengthened as well.  ECHO became a 501 (c) (3), taken on the oversight of 

HMIS, has begun to implement the changes the HEARTH Act requires as well as supports the changes to 

the Continuum of Care program.  The Housing Authority of Travis County has moved from a troubled 

designation at the time of our last Consolidated Plan to no longer having that designation associated 

with it.  The Travis County Housing Finance Corporation had a complete in staff four years ago, and has 

gained the experience in the last three years to become a strong partner in housing development again.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     109 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

As far as gaps in the institutional delivery system, there is a lack of resources to meet the demand for 

services.  The CDBG program cannot currently fund all the projects, particularly infrastructure projects, 

for which there is a demonstrated need.  Additionally, service providers are also working with limited 

funds and have indicated that pushing services out into the unincorporated area has challenges that 

may be cost prohibitive.   

During the Providers Forum conducted as part of the Needs Assessment for the Consolidated Plan, 

service providers indicated that a primary barrier to serving the unincorporated areas was a lack of 

information about the demographics, income levels and needs of the residents. Service providers also 

indicated that they were unclear on the boundaries of the service and the services that are currently 

available. Additional barriers that were identified include a lack of space to provide services and the lack 

of transportation options for clients. 

Availability of services targeted to homeless persons and persons with HIV and mainstream 

services 

Homelessness Prevention 
Services 

Available in the 
Community 

Targeted to 
Homeless 

Targeted to People 
with HIV 

Homelessness Prevention Services 

Counseling/Advocacy X X X 

Legal Assistance X X X 

Mortgage Assistance X     

Rental Assistance X X X 

Utilities Assistance X     

Street Outreach Services 

Law Enforcement         

Mobile Clinics X       

Other Street Outreach Services X       

Supportive Services 

Alcohol & Drug Abuse X       

Child Care X       

Education X       

Employment and Employment 

Training X       

Healthcare X       

HIV/AIDS X    X 

Life Skills X       

Mental Health Counseling X       

Transportation X       

Table 55 - Homeless Prevention Services Summary 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     110 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Describe how the service delivery system including, but not limited to, the services listed 

above meet the needs of homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and 

families, families with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) 

The Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) is a collaborative funding and planning nonprofit 

that is the lead agency for the Austin/Travis County continuum of care. The organization is charged with 

bringing together other nonprofit resources and making them accessible to the homeless 

population. ECHO utilizes a system of outreach to assess and determine the needs of men, women, 

children, veterans and families who are homeless or at-risk of becoming homeless. Working with a 

group of nonprofits, homeless individuals are connected to resources including prevention strategies, 

emergency shelters, rapid re-housing and permanent housing. 

As detailed in the Market Analysis, there are units of emergency and transitional housing specifically 

targeted to families with children, veterans and unaccompanied youth in which each of these groups 

can be housed and receive appropriate services.   

Describe the strengths and gaps of the service delivery system for special needs population 

and persons experiencing homelessness, including, but not limited to, the services listed 

above 

ECHO is outreaching to the County to ensure that coordinated assessment is occurring outside the urban 

core.  The Travis County Community Centers play a key role in providing a location for service delivery . 

There are not sufficient resources to meet the demand for services.  Additionally, there is a need for a 

coordinated system for intake and assessment of clients.  The community has acknowledged the great 

need for services as demonstrated by the support for the creation of additional Permanent Supportive 

Housing (PSH) units.   

Provide a summary of the strategy for overcoming gaps in the institutional structure and 

service delivery system for carrying out a strategy to address priority needs 

The initial goal to create 350 units of PSH, is close to being met and the community is continuing to work 

together to create additional units of PSH.  Additionally, collaborative work is currently underway to 

improve coordination and create a coordinated intake and assessment system.    

To address the lack of capacity to administer federal funds among subrecipients and contractors, CDBG 

staff will create additional materials and provide training and technical assistance related to reporting 

requirements, income determination and other issues involved in administration of the program.   

To address the need for information that was identified during the Service Providers Forum, CDBG staff 

will create a document that can be used by service providers and includes zip code level maps and data 

on neighborhoods in the unincorporated areas as well as an inventory of services currently being 

provided to residents.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     111 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

V.D.  Goals Summary 

 
Sort 

Order 
Goal Name Start 

Year 
End 
Year 

Category Needs 
Addressed 

Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Street Improvements 2014 2018 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Infrastructure CDBG: 

$1,000,000 

Public Facility or Infrastructure Activities 

other than Low/Moderate Income 

Housing Benefit: 

6106 Persons Assisted 

2 Owner Occupied 

Home Rehabilitation 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Housing CDBG: 

$2,000,000 

Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated: 

72 Household Housing Unit 

3 Creation of New 

Rental Units 

2014 2016 Affordable Housing Housing CDBG: 

$343,000 

Rental units constructed: 

192 Household Housing Unit 

4 Tenants’ Rights and 

Fair Housing 

Counseling 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Community 

Services 

CDBG: 

$250,000 

Public service activities other than 

Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit: 

340 Persons Assisted 

5 Expansion of Social 

Work Services 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Community 

Services 

CDBG: 

$400,000 

Public service activities other than 

Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit: 

2000 Persons Assisted 

Table 56 – Goals Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     112 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Goal Descriptions 

1 Goal Name Street Improvements 

Goal Description Improve streets in low to moderate income areas to improve sustainability and quality of neighborhoods.  

2 Goal Name Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Goal Description Provide needed repairs to low to moderate income homeowners to improve and/or maintain affordable housing stock.  

3 Goal Name Creation of New Rental Units 

Goal Description Land Acquisition to support the creation of new, affordable multi-family housing rental units.  

4 Goal Name Tenants’ Rights and Fair Housing Counseling 

Goal Description Increase access for tenants’ rights and fair housing counseling.  

5 Goal Name Expansion of Social Work Services 

Goal Description Provides increased access to social work services in the CDBG service area, a traditionally underserved area.  

Table 57 – Goal Descriptions 

 

Estimate the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income families to whom the jurisdiction will provide 

affordable housing as defined by HOME 91.315(b)(2) 

One project is slated to provide affordable housing during the strategic planning period: Creation of New Rental Housing.  This project will focus 

on rental housing (1 to 3 bedroom units) for people living at or below 60% of Median Family Income.  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     113 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Public Housing Accessibility and Involvement  

Need to Increase the Number of Accessible Units (if Required by a Section 504 Voluntary 

Compliance Agreement)  

N/A There are currently no units of public housing the CDBG jurisdiction. 

Activities to Increase Resident Involvements 

N/A There are currently no units of public housing the CDBG jurisdiction. 

Is the public housing agency designated as troubled under 24 CFR part 902? 

No 

Plan to remove the ‘troubled’ designation  

N/A 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     114 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

V.E.  Barriers to affordable housing 

LACK OF FUNDING FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

Funding for affordable housing requires many different products to achieve the desired 

affordability levels needed in a community. Funding mechanisms including the HOME Investment 

Program, tax credits, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Federal Housing Administration 

loans, and down-payment assistance are key to increasing the affordable housing stock. Currently, Travis 

County does not receive a HOME formula allocation, which is a major funding source for many 

entitlement communities to develop affordable housing.  

UTILITY COSTS 

The cost of utilities may make homeownership unaffordable for low-income households in the 

unincorporated areas. The Public Utility of Commission of Texas has limited ability to regulate these 

rates.  

The following section is excerpted from the AI, prepared by the consulting firm Mullin & Lonergan. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING AND LAND USE AUTHORITY   

A community’s comprehensive plan is a statement of policies relative to new development and 

preservation of existing assets. In particular, the land use element of the comprehensive plan defines 

the location, type and character of future development. The housing element of the comprehensive 

plan expresses the preferred density and intensity of residential neighborhoods within the 

county. Taken together, the land use and housing elements of the comprehensive plan define a vision of 

the type of place that a community wishes to become. 

Travis County has not adopted a comprehensive plan or similar document that contains broad objectives 

for land use or housing. Like all Texas counties, Travis County is limited by state law in the extent of its 

land use authority. In unincorporated areas, Texas counties may approve the subdivision of land, 

construct and maintain subdivision roads and assess costs to landowners, and may specify 

minimum standards for road construction and drainage. 

BUILDING STANDARDS 

Texas, a Dillon’s rule state, does not allow counties to adopt home rule; therefore, the powers they 

may exercise are limited to those explicitly granted by state government. For Texas counties, this 

does not include the authority to adopt building codes. What applies outside of incorporated boundaries 

are the standards of the International Building Code, which has been effectively adopted by the state. 

The responsibility for compliance is on builders, who submit construction reports to county 

governments. Even if such a report indicates that a builder has not met an aspect of the code, however, 

counties do not wield direct enforcement power. Therefore, Travis County’s authority over 

new residential construction projects concerns only the issuance of three permits: driveway (if the 

property is on a county-maintained road), floodplain and septic system. The absence of meaningful local 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     115 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

control over the design and construction of new residential structures is one possible reason for 

reported instances of noncompliance with federal and state accessibility requirements.  

Strategy to Remove or Ameliorate the Barriers to Affordable Housing 

To address the rising cost of housing in Travis County, The CDBG program will fund land acquisition for 

the development of affordable rental housing and will continue investment in the rehabilitation of 

owner-occupied housing. The County will encourage the Housing Finance Corporation to continue its 

efforts to provide down payment assistance to income-eligible households and work with developers to 

create affordable units through the single-family and multi-family bond programs.  

The CDBG Office will consult with Travis County Office of Intergovernmental Relations to explore any 

policy options that may apply to the issue of utility rates. Additionally, the CDBG office will provide data 

and other resources to neighborhoods that request information relating to housing costs and utility 

rates.    

To offset the lack of land use authority, the County will develop a comprehensive Affordable Housing 

Policy for Travis County that includes siting recommendations. The County will continue its legislative 

advocacy efforts in the interest of gaining increased land-use authority and the ability to adopt and 

enforce a building code. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     116 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

V.F.  Homelessness Strategy 

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their 

individual needs 

For the five year period covered in this Plan, Travis County does not intend to target CDBG funds toward 

efforts to address homelessness. Travis County is a member of the Ending Community Homelessness 

Coalition (ECHO) whose mission is to identify specific strategies and oversee ongoing planning and 

implementation of a plan to end chronic homelessness in Austin and Travis County.  ECHO’s The Plan to 

End Community Homelessness in Austin-Travis County, outlines a model of homeless services 

continuum, intended to address the needs of all persons from those at immediate risk of becoming 

homeless to the chronically homeless.  In accordance with this plan, Travis County invests over $300,000 

in general fund dollars in contracts with social service providers targeting the homeless. 

Over the five year period, CDBG staff will participate in ECHO committees to assist in selection of 

projects for the Continuum of Care grant, point in time count and other planning functions to advocate 

for homeless needs identified in the unincorporated areas of the county. Additionally, staff will review 

the investments of general fund dollars in the homelessness issue area and advocate that investments 

increase or remain at level funding. 

Addressing the emergency and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

For the five year period covered in this Plan, Travis County does not intend to target CDBG funds toward 

efforts to address homelessness. For information on the County's strategies relating to homelessness 

issues please see the response to the first question in this section.  

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 

with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 

permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 

individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 

and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 

recently homeless from becoming homeless again 

For the five year period covered in this Plan, Travis County does not intend to target CDBG funds toward 

efforts to address homelessness.  For information on the County's strategies relating to homelessness 

issues please see the response to the first question in this section.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     117 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Help low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 

low-income individuals and families who are likely to become homeless after being 

discharged from a publicly funded institution or system of care, or who are receiving 

assistance from public and private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 

employment, education or youth needs 

For the five year period covered in this Plan, Travis County does not intend to target CDBG funds toward 

efforts to address homelessness.  For information on the County's strategies relating to homelessness 

issues please see the response to the first question in this section.  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     118 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

V.G.  Lead-Based Paint Hazards 

Actions to address LBP hazards and increase access to housing without LBP hazards 

Travis County plans to partner with the City of Austin to expand the City's Lead Based Paint Remediation 

program outside of the City's boundaries. Additionally, the CDBG funded Home Repair Project will 

continue to assess homes for lead based paint hazards as part of intake into the program and any work 

performed on homes will be according to the program's prescribed lead based paint standards.   

How are the actions listed above related to the extent of lead poisoning and hazards? 

There are a limited number of homes with lead based paint hazards in the unincorporated areas. The 

strategy outlined above allows lead to be addressed when it is found.  

How are the actions listed above integrated into housing policies and procedures? 

The CDBG program has established Lead Based Paint Guidelines that conform to HUD standards. The 

guidelines are integrated into the program guidelines for any CDBG funded housing project and are 

included in subrecipient manuals that are created by CDBG staff for subrecipients implementing housing 

projects.  

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     119 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

V.H.  Anti-Poverty Strategy  

Jurisdiction Goals, Programs and Policies for reducing the number of Poverty-Level Families 

Travis County's lead agency for administering CDBG funds is the Health and Human Services & Veterans 

Service Department. The goal of the department is to address community needs through internal and 

external investments and services. The department strives to accomplish the following: Maximize 

quality of life for all people in Travis County; Protect vulnerable populations; Invest in social and 

economic well-being; Promote healthy living: physical, behavioral, and environmental; and Build a 

shared understanding of our community. Travis County operates a number of anti-poverty programs 

that assist individuals and families on multiple fronts in transitioning from crisis to self-sufficiency. The 

County carries out its anti-poverty programs both through the direct delivery of services managed by 

HHS/VS and by purchasing services from private and not-for-profit agencies in the community. In 

addition to the provision of direct services, Travis County continually assesses the poverty and basic 

needs of county residents, works with stakeholders in facilitating anti-poverty efforts, and supports 

public policy initiatives that prevent and ameliorate conditions of poverty. For more information on 

specific social service contract investments please refer to Section NA-45, Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Assessment. 

How are the Jurisdiction poverty reducing goals, programs, and policies coordinated with this 

affordable housing plan? 

The CDBG program intends to continue to fund a social work program to assist residents of the CDBG 

service area. The program anticipates serving 400 people during PY14. As identified in the needs 

assessment of this plan, 5% of social service contract investments made by the Department in 2013 

were provided to persons living in the unincorporated areas (and an additional 25% to residents of areas 

that include a mix of incorporated and unincorporated geographies,) while 18% of the population lives 

in these areas. This program's aim is to improve access to social services to residents of the 

unincorporated areas. Over the entire Consolidated Planning period, CDBG staff intends to review 

investments and participate in planning efforts to address poverty to advocate for services in the 

unincorporated areas. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     120 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

V.I.  Monitoring  

Describe the standards and procedures that the jurisdiction will use to monitor activities 

carried out in furtherance of the plan and will use to ensure long-term compliance with 

requirements of the programs involved, including minority business outreach and the 

comprehensive planning requirements 

As the lead agency for development and implementation of the CDBG Consolidated Plan, the Travis 

County HHS/VS department implements standard policies and procedures for monitoring the 

implementation of CDBG activities. These monitoring activities ensure compliance with program 

regulations and compliance with financial requirements. Federal guidelines that must be followed 

include: OMB A-110, OMB A-122, 24 CFR Part 570.603 (CDBG Labor Standards), 570.901-906 (CDBG), 

the Davis Bacon Act and Contract Work Hours and the Safety Standards Act (CDBG). HHS/VS provides 

contract administration for community development activities in conjunction with the Transportation 

and Natural Resources Department, including but not limited to contract negotiations, compliance 

monitoring, and payment and contract closeout. Travis County's Purchasing Department administers the 

Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Program to ensure that minority and woman-owned 

businesses receive a fair and equal opportunity to participate in the county's procurement process. 

Subrecipient agreements will be used to conduct housing, community development and public service 

activities. The subrecipient agreement will be the foundation for programmatic monitoring. 

Subrecipients will be monitored for programmatic compliance onsite or remotely in the following 

manner: 1) All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by 

financial services and the Auditor's Office. 2) All new subrecipients will be desk-audited monthly, and 

quarterly reports will be reviewed and monitored at least annually. 

Financial monitoring will be completed as necessary and as directed by the subrecipient fiscal 

performance and the external monitoring needs of the Travis County Auditor's office. Programmatic and 

fiscal monitoring may not occur concurrently. CDBG staff will utilize HUD checklists to conduct 

monitoring, as appropriate. Contractors may be used to provide some housing, community development 

and public services. Contractors will submit periodic reimbursement requests that document and verify 

expenditures. The contract agreement will be used as the primary basis for monitoring. The following 

steps are an integral part of the monitoring process for each contract: 1) Onsite or remote reviews at an 

established periodic interval (prior to project commencement) will occur to ensure compliance with 

terms of the contract, HUD guidelines, state/local building and construction standards, and review of 

engineering plans and specifications. 2) If a contractor is found to be out of compliance, a notice is sent 

stating their contractual obligation and required action. Failure to comply may result in loss of current 

and/or future contracts as well as a hold on any payments. 3) All HHS/VS invoices and HHS/VS and TNR 

Contactor reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by financial services and 

the Auditor's Office. Internal Travis County projects will be monitored through Travis County HHS/VS 

CDBG staff. Monitoring activities will include documentation and tracking mechanisms, such as review of 

invoices prior to being paid, regular meetings with project management staff, and review of eligibility 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     121 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

files, if applicable. Travis County HHS/VS staff will maintain files to document each project and meet its 

respective compliance with HUD and related regulations. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     122 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

VI.  Annual Action Plan 

VI.A.  Expected Resources 

Introduction 

For the Consolidated Planning period, the County anticipates receiving an estimated 4.9 million dollars.  This estimate is based off the County 

receiving increased allocation over the last couple of years in spite of reduced or level funding at the federal level.  The increased funding occurs 

due to the increased growth of population and poverty in the CDBG service area.  Due to tightening domestic spending, the CDBG allocation is 

expected to remain level or likely decrease over the next four years, however, staff believe the population growth will offset an allocation 

reduction. In PY14, the County expects to receive $997,649.  Additionally, three projects from prior years will continue to be implemented: 1) 

Lake Oak Estates Street Improvement Project; 2) Land Acquisition to Support Affordable Single Family Home Development; and 3) Owner 

Occupied Home Rehabilitation Project.  

Anticipated Resources 

Program 
Source of 

Funds 
Uses of Funds 

Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected Amount 
Available Reminder 

of ConPlan 

Narrative 
Description 

Annual 
Allocation 

Program 
Income 

Prior Year 
Resources 

Total 

CDBG 
public - 

federal 

Acquisition 

Admin and Planning 

Economic Development 

Housing 

Public Improvements 

Public Services 

$997,649 $0 $0 $997,649 $3,990,596 

CDBG Funding for 

Program Year 

2014. 

Table 58 - Expected Resources – Priority Table 

 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     123 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local 

funds), including a description of how matching requirements will be satisfied 

No matching requirements exist for CDBG funding, however, several projects expect to use private, state 

or local funds. 

If appropriate, describe publically owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that 

may be used to address the needs identified in the plan 

Not applicable. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     124 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

VII.B.  Annual Goals and Objectives 
 

Goals Summary Information  

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Needs 
Addressed 

Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Street 

Improvements 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Infrastructure CDBG: 

$125,000 

Public Facility or Infrastructure Activities 

other than Low/Moderate Income 

Housing Benefit: 564 Persons Assisted 

2 Owner Occupied 

Home Rehabilitation 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Housing CDBG: 

$200,000 

Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated: 8 

Household Housing Unit 

3 Creation of New 

Rental Units 

2014 2016 Affordable Housing Housing CDBG: 

$343,010 

Rental units constructed: 192 

Household Housing Unit 

4 Expansion of Social 

Work Services 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Community 

Services 

CDBG: 

$80,110 

Public service activities other than 

Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit: 

400 Persons Assisted 

5 Tenants’ Rights and 

Fair Housing 

Counseling 

2014 2018 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Community 

Services 

CDBG: 

$50,000 

Public service activities other than 

Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit: 

68 Persons Assisted 

Table 59 – Goals Summary 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     125 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Goal Descriptions 

1 Goal Name Street Improvements 

Goal Description Street improvements to bring road up to County standards.  

2 Goal Name Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Goal Description  Provide needed repairs to low to moderate income homeowners to improve and/or maintain affordable 

housing stock. 

3 Goal Name Creation of New Rental Units 

Goal Description Land acquisition to support a new multi-family housing complex. 

4 Goal Name Expansion of Social Work Services 

Goal Description  Provides increased access to social work services in the CDBG service area, a traditionally underserved area. 

5 Goal Name Tenants’ Rights and Fair Housing Counseling 

Goal Description Increase access for tenants’ rights and fair housing counseling.  

Table 60 – Goal Description 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     126 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

VI.C.  Projects  

Introduction  

Travis County residents, services providers and County departments had the opportunity to present 

potential CDBG projects through a variety of mechanisms: 

By participating in any of the six public hearings held during the months of February and March, 2014. 

Two hearings were held at the Travis County Commissioners Court and the other four were held 

throughout each of the four County precincts. 

Through the completion of a Needs Assessment Survey or a Project Proposal Form. Those that were not 

able to attend public hearings had the choice of filling out these two forms by accessing it on the Travis 

County Website or by requesting it from Travis County CDBG staff. 

The following projects for PY14 were approved by Travis County Commissioners Court on June 10, 2014. 

For a full description of projects, including relevant maps, please refer to the "PY14 Projects Appendix." 

# Project Name 

1 PY14 New Rental Housing Units 

2 PY14 Street Improvements 

3 PY14 Owner Occupied Housing 

4 PY14 FSS Social Work Services Expansion Project 

5 PY14 Tenants’ Rights and Fair Housing Counseling 

6 PY14 Administrative & Planning 

Table 11 – Project Information 

 
Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved 

needs 

Travis County CDBG staff considered and weighed all potential projects identified by the public. First, the 

CDBG Office staff assessed whether potential projects met one of HUD’s national objectives, were 

eligible CDBG activities, and were feasible to complete in a timely manner.  

Second, CDBG staff further evaluated the projects according to the following criteria: 

Addresses a high priority goal of the Strategic Plan: Projects addressing one of the high priority 

categories identified in the strategic (consolidated) plan are given a priority. 

Feasibility of project: Projects that have the ability to be implemented and completed within 18 months 

receive a more favorable review. Phased projects for which 12-18 months of work would leave an 

incomplete project with little to no impact are considered with less priority. 

Impacts a significant number of households: Project scope and the number of persons benefiting are 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     127 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

considered to determine the level of project impact. 

Benefit to low/moderate-income persons: Projects that benefit low- and moderate-income households 

receive a more favorable review. 

Leverages/matches with funding from another source: Projects that utilize other funds (federal, state, 

local, private) and public/private joint efforts receive a more favorable review. 

In addition, the Action Plan includes approved alternate projects. This allows for the pre-planning of 

unforeseen incidents, and allows the CDBG program to utilize the funds in a timely manner toward pre-

identified alternate projects. Resources, including time and money, that would otherwise be used to add 

or delete projects through the customary Substantial Amendment process described in the Citizen 

Participation Plan can be saved. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     128 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Project Summary 

1 Project Name PY14 New Rental Housing Units 

Target Area Not applicable 

Goals Supported Creation of New Rental Units 

Needs Addressed Housing 

Funding CDBG: $343,010 

Description This project is a proposed 192-unit affordable multifamily housing development. The apartments 

will feature well-appointed one-, two-, and three- bedroom apartment homes. 

Target Date 9/30/2016 

Estimate the number and type of 

families that will benefit from the 

proposed activities 

The project will consist of 192 units and will serve low- to moderate-income individuals at or below 

60% of Area Median Income.  

Location Description The project will be located at either 12701 Lowden Lane or 727 FM 1626 in Manchaca or an 

alternate location still to be determined. 

Planned Activities Land Acquisition will occur on or about January 2015.  Completion of construction and rental of 

units to be expected on or about March 2016. 

2 Project Name PY14 Street Improvements 

Target Area Not applicable 

Goals Supported Street Improvements 

Needs Addressed Infrastructure 

Funding CDBG: $125,000 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     129 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Description Forest Bluff is located in eastern Travis County, Precinct 1. Most of the roads in the subdivision 

have been accepted by Travis County as maintained right-of-way. Several streets were not 

accepted by the County. Lack of regular maintenance has caused the roadway to deteriorate. This 

project would serve to bring the roadway up to Travis County standards and have it accepted for 

future maintenance as a Travis County roadway and make any necessary drainage improvements. 

Target Date 9/30/2016 

Estimate the number and type of 

families that will benefit from the 

proposed activities 

The improvements impact 564 persons (94 households), of which 94.1% are low-to-moderate 

income. 

Location Description Forest Bluff, Precinct 1 of Travis County. Please refer to the "PY14 Projects Appendix" for a map of 

the neighborhood.  

Planned Activities The project will be broken up into three phases and will include improvement to sections of: 

Arizona Oak Lane, Stave Oak Lane, Bigelow Drive, Catsby Court, English Avenue, and Delta Post 

Drive. The first phase of the project, funded with PY14 funds, will include: 1) design services; 2) 

land surveying services; 3) geo-technical services; 4) drainage design services; 5) utility location and 

relocation coordination services; 6) environmental review and related regulatory permits; and 7) 

project management time. Construction will be phased over two years. 

3 Project Name PY14 Owner Occupied Housing 

Target Area Not applicable 

Goals Supported Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation 

Needs Addressed Housing 

Funding CDBG: $200,000 

Description This project funds minor home repair services for low- and moderate-income homeowners in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of Webberville, to move homes towards 

Housing Quality Standards. 

Target Date 9/30/2015 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     130 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Estimate the number and type of 

families that will benefit from the 

proposed activities 

These funds are targeted toward homeowners at or below 80% MFI in the CDBG service area. Eight 

households will be served with PY14 funds.  

Location Description Households can be located anywhere in the unincorporated areas of Travis County or the Village of 

Webberville.   

Planned Activities The program seeks to improve the energy efficiency, physical living conditions, and safety in 

owner-occupied homes. A 0% interest, forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required 

annual or monthly payments is available. The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each 

year of home ownership. Some of the allocation will be used for project delivery costs of the 

project and some of the allocation may partially fund a CDBG Planner position to complete 

environmental paperwork, final inspections and sign off and any other needed project delivery 

related costs. 

4 Project Name PY14 FSS Social Work Services Expansion Project 

Target Area Not applicable 

Goals Supported Expansion of Social Work Services 

Needs Addressed Community Services 

Funding CDBG: $80,110 

Description This program is an internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service expansion 

of existing services. The program increases program capacity to provide case management, 

information and referral, non-clinical counseling, crisis intervention and outreach in all four 

precincts of the unincorporated areas. 

Target Date 9/30/2015 

Estimate the number and type of 

families that will benefit from the 

proposed activities 

The project will serve 400 individuals who are at or below 80% MFI.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     131 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Location Description Households can be located anywhere in the unincorporated areas of Travis County or the Village of 

Webberville.   

Planned Activities The project will fund the equivalent of one FTE social worker who works at a Travis County HHS/VS 

facility, however, to reduce transportation barriers; the social worker provides the majority of 

service provision through home visits. Additionally, part of the funds may be used for 9 Homeless 

Management Information System (HMIS) licenses to provide access for a new HUD requirement 

through the Continuum of Care called coordinated assessment, which evaluates the vulnerability of 

homeless or people at-risk of homelessness to more rapidly house them. Furthermore, operating 

expenses necessary to provide home based services, mileage, and training, among others may be 

funded.   

5 Project Name PY14 Tenants’ Rights and Fair Housing Counseling 

Target Area Not applicable 

Goals Supported Tenants’ Rights and Fair Housing Counseling 

Needs Addressed Community Services 

Funding CDBG: $50,000 

Description The funds are allocated for Tenants' Rights and Fair Housing Counseling for residents of the 

unincorporated areas and the Village of Webberville. 

Target Date 9/30/2015 

Estimate the number and type of 

families that will benefit from the 

proposed activities 

The project will serve 68 individuals. At least 51% of the recipients will be at or below 80% of the 

Median Family Income (MFI). Because housing discrimination occurs at all income levels, the 

project will be allowed to service up to 33 households above 80% MFI.  

Location Description Households may be located anywhere in the unincorporated areas of Travis County or the Village 

of Webberville.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     132 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Planned Activities Tenants’ Rights services include: telephone counseling and in-person mediation, as needed. Fair 

housing services include: fair housing counseling, fair housing complaint processing and testing in 

support of an individual complainant. Additionally, part of the funds will be used for allowable 

program delivery costs such as outreach and marketing.  

6 Project Name PY14 Administrative & Planning 

Target Area Not applicable 

Goals Supported   

Needs Addressed   

Funding CDBG: $199,529 

Description The funds allocated for administration and planning will pay for the administration expenses 

associated with the grant. 

Target Date 9/30/2015 

Estimate the number and type of 

families that will benefit from the 

proposed activities 

Not Applicable 

Location Description Not Applicable 

Planned Activities The funds allocated for administration will pay for the operating expenses associated with the 

grant including office supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, fair housing activities, 

membership, Action Plan, annual report, reporting and other business related 

expenses. Additionally, the funds will pay for a portion (100% and 60%) of the salaries for the two 

CDBG Planners (one full time and one 3/4 time), and a portion (25%) of the salary of a TNR Senior 

Engineer.  These positions are responsible for project development, action plan and annual report 

development, monitoring, and reporting and other tasks relating to administration and planning.  

Table 62 – Project Summary 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     133 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

VI.D.  Geographic Distribution  

Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and 

minority concentration) where assistance will be directed  

The jurisdiction of the County's CDBG program is the unincorporated areas of the County and the Village 

of Webberville.  Projects are located in eligible areas throughout the jurisdiction.   

Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  

While the program does not specifically target geographic areas within the jurisdiction, geography is a 

consideration when evaluating different types of projects.  In impacted areas, primarily in the 

Southeastern parts of the jurisdiction, projects that improve access to services and improve 

neighborhood quality are prioritized. New housing development projects are prioritized in non-impacted 

areas of high opportunity that would further fair housing goals.  Infrastructure projects are considered in 

areas of need throughout that jurisdiction and are typically located in neighborhoods characterized by 

isolated pockets of poverty.   

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     134 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

VI.E.  Affordable Housing 

Introduction 

During PY14, the CDBG program will fund acquisition of land for new construction of 192 units of 

affordable rental housing. The project will serve low- to moderate-income individuals at or below 60% of 

Area Median Income. The ongoing Home Repair project is anticipated to repair 8 homes during PY14. 

While there are no specific goals associated with assisting Disabled and Elderly households, the Home 

Repair project does target these populations.   

 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households Supported Through 

Rental Assistance 0 

The Production of New Units 192 

Rehab of Existing Units 8 

Acquisition of Existing Units 0 

Total 200 

Table 63 - One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Type 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     135 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

VI.F.  Public Housing  

Introduction 

There are no public housing units in the jurisdiction. Therefore there are no actions related to public 

housing for the CDBG program in PY14.   

Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing 

There are no public housing units in the jurisdiction. Therefore there are no actions related to public 

housing for the CDBG program in PY14.   

Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and 

participate in homeownership 

There are no public housing units in the jurisdiction. Therefore there are no actions related to public 

housing for the CDBG program in PY14.   

If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be 

provided or other assistance  

The Housing Authority of Travis County is not designated as troubled.  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     136 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

VI.G.  Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities 

Describe the jurisdictions one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness 

including - Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing 

their individual needs 

The CDBG funded Social Work project will assist in piloting the Continuum of Care's Coordinated 

Assessment system in areas outside the urban core.  In PY14, the project includes funding for 9 HMIS 

licenses for the social workers and their supervisor.   

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

HHS/VS provides general fund dollars to variety of agencies that work on homelessness issues through 

its social service contract investments. No federal funds will by used in PY14 for emergency or 

transitional housing.   

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 

with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 

permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 

individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 

and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 

recently homeless from becoming homeless again 

The social work team, which is partially funded by the CDBG program, holistically assist individuals and 

families in gaining or maintaining housing stability.  Additionally, HHS/VS provides general fund dollars 

to variety of agencies that work on homelessness issues through its social service contract investments. 

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 

low-income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly 

funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, 

foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving 

assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 

employment, education, or youth needs 

The social work team, which is partially funded by the CDBG program, holistically assist individuals and 

families in gaining or maintaining housing stability.  Additionally, HHS/VS provides general fund dollars 

to variety of agencies that work on homelessness issues through its social service contract investments. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     137 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

VI.H.  Barriers to affordable housing 

Introduction 

Texas, a Dillon’s rule state, does not allow counties to adopt home rule; therefore, the powers they 

may exercise are limited to those explicitly granted by state government. For Texas counties, this 

does not include the authority to adopt building codes. What applies outside of incorporated boundaries 

are the standards of the International Building Code, which has been effectively adopted by the 

state. Additionally, Travis County is limited by state law in the extent of its land use authority. In 

unincorporated areas, Texas counties may approve the subdivision of land, construct and maintain 

subdivision roads and assess costs to landowners, and may specify minimum standards for road 

construction and drainage.  

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve 

as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning 

ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the 

return on residential investment 

To offset the lack of land use authority, the County will develop a comprehensive Affordable Housing 

Policy for Travis County that includes siting recommendations. 

During the 2015 Texas Legislative Session, the County will continue its legislative advocacy efforts in the 

interest of gaining increased land-use authority and the ability to adopt and enforce a building code. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     138 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

VI.H.  Other Actions 

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 

The CDBG program will continue its advocacy efforts on behalf of the low income residents of the 

unincorporated areas.  These efforts include sponsoring tours of the unincorporated areas for non 

profits and other Travis County departments to raise awareness of need in these neighborhoods, and 

participation in forums where these needs may be discussed. 

To assist providers in strategically moving services into the unincorporated areas, CDBG staff will create 

a document that includes zip code level maps and demographic data on neighborhoods in the 

unincorporated areas as well as an inventory of services currently being provided to residents.  

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 

During PY14, the CDBG program will fund land acquisition for a proposed 192-unit affordable 

multifamily housing development to be located at either 12701 Lowden Lane or 727 FM 1626 in 

Manchaca or an alternate location to be determined. The project will serve low- to moderate-income 

individuals at or below 60% of Area Median Income, a population that will benefit as rental rates in the 

Austin/Round Rock MSA continue to increase. At time of lease-up, 100% of the units will be occupied by 

low- to moderate- income households, and 51% of the units will have an affordability period of 30 years.  

The Home Repair program will be funded in PY14, which will assist in maintaining owner occupied 

homes for low- and moderate- income households.  Finally, Street Improvement projects will help 

maintain neighborhood quality, thereby helping to preserving home values of low- and moderate- 

income households.  

Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards 

During PY14, Travis County will partner with the City of Austin to expand the City's Lead Based Paint 

Remediation program outside of the City's boundaries. Additionally, the CDBG funded Home Repair 

Project will continue to assess homes for lead based paint hazards as part of intake into the program 

and any work performed on homes will be according to the program's prescribed lead based paint 

standards.   

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families 

Travis County's lead agency for administering CDBG funds is the Health and Human Services & Veterans 

Service Department. The goal of the department is to address community needs through internal and 

external investments and services. The department strives to accomplish the following: Maximize 

quality of life for all people in Travis County; Protect vulnerable populations; Invest in social and 

economic well-being; Promote healthy living: physical, behavioral, and environmental; and Build a 

shared understanding of our community. Travis County operates a number of anti-poverty programs 

that assist individuals and families on multiple fronts in transitioning from crisis to self-sufficiency. The 

County carries out its anti-poverty programs both through the direct delivery of services managed by 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     139 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

HHS/VS and by purchasing services from private and not-for-profit agencies in the community. In 

addition to the provision of direct services, Travis County continually assesses the poverty and basic 

needs of county residents, works with stakeholders in facilitating anti-poverty efforts, and supports 

public policy initiatives that prevent and ameliorate conditions of poverty. For more information on 

specific social service contract investments please refer to Section NA-45, Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Assessment. 

Actions planned to develop institutional structure  

During PY14, CDBG staff capacity will be increased by changing one planner position from .5 FTE to .75 

FTE.  Both CDBG staff and staff from partner departments will attend HUD trainings to increase 

expertise, and CDBG staff will continue internal cross training to enhance capacity in the event of staff 

turnover.   

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social 

service agencies 

To assist service providers in extending services into the unincorporated areas, CDBG staff will create a 

document that can be used by service providers and includes zip code level maps and data on 

neighborhoods in the unincorporated areas as well as an inventory of services currently being provided 

to residents.  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     140 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

VI.I.  Program Specific Requirements 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) 

Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(1) 

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the 

Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in 

projects to be carried out.  

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next 

program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed 0 

2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year 

to address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan. 0 

3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements 0 

4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has 

not been included in a prior statement or plan 0 

5. The amount of income from float-funded activities 0 

Total Program Income: 0 

 

Other CDBG Requirements 
1. The amount of urgent need activities 0 

2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit persons 

of low and moderate income.Overall Benefit - A consecutive period of one, two or three years 

may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70% of CDBG funds is used to 

benefit persons of low and moderate income. Specify the years covered that include this 

Annual Action Plan. 100% 

 
 
  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     141 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Appendix - Alternate/Local Data Sources  

1 Data Source Name 

State of the Cities Data Systems, Building Permits 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

Building Permits Database 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

To show trends in the distribution of housing units in the unincorporated areas. 

How comprehensive is the coverage of this administrative data? Is data collection concentrated in one 

geographic area or among a certain population? 

Data is provided for Travis County and the unincorporated areas of Travis County 

What time period (provide the year, and optionally month, or month and day) is covered by this data set? 

2003-2012 

What is the status of the data set (complete, in progress, or planned)? 

Complete 

2 Data Source Name 

2014 Point In Time Count 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

An annual point-in-time count of homeless population in Travis County.  

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

To provide a snapshot of the size and composition of the homeless population.  

How comprehensive is the coverage of this administrative data? Is data collection concentrated in one 

geographic area or among a certain population? 

Data is collected throughout the county.  

What time period (provide the year, and optionally month, or month and day) is covered by this data set? 

The count took place on January 24, 2014. 

What is the status of the data set (complete, in progress, or planned)? 

The data set is complete for 2014. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     142 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

3 Data Source Name 

Homeless Housing Inventory, 2013 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Ending Community Homelessness Coalition 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

An inventory of shelter beds for homeless households and individuals 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

To inventory shelter beds by type 

How comprehensive is the coverage of this administrative data? Is data collection concentrated in one 

geographic area or among a certain population? 

Data is for Austin/Travis County 

What time period (provide the year, and optionally month, or month and day) is covered by this data set? 

Data is provided for existing shelter beds in 2013 

What is the status of the data set (complete, in progress, or planned)? 

Complete 

4 Data Source Name 

Community Data on Shelter, Housing and Services 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECH0) 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

Numbers of people served, numbers of individuals in shelter, and individuals served by 

subpopulation 

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

To provide data on homelessness 

  

How comprehensive is the coverage of this administrative data? Is data collection concentrated in one 

geographic area or among a certain population? 

Sheltered individuals by a variety of subpopulations in City of Austin/Travis County 

What time period (provide the year, and optionally month, or month and day) is covered by this data set? 

Calendar Year 2013 

What is the status of the data set (complete, in progress, or planned)? 

Complete 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  Consolidated Plan TRAVIS COUNTY     143 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

5 Data Source Name 

Housing Authority of Travis County Data 

List the name of the organization or individual who originated the data set. 

Housing Authority of Travis County 

Provide a brief summary of the data set. 

Public Housing Vouchers  

What was the purpose for developing this data set? 

Updating data that autopopulated data table 

How comprehensive is the coverage of this administrative data? Is data collection concentrated in one 

geographic area or among a certain population? 

Data for Housing Authority of Travis County 

What time period (provide the year, and optionally month, or month and day) is covered by this data set? 

Current as of May 30, 2014 

What is the status of the data set (complete, in progress, or planned)? 

Complete 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Public 
Participation

Public Participation Process
Summary of Participation Process

Detailed Results of Participation Process
Testimonies Received During Public Hearing At Commissioners Court

Needs Assessment Survey
Public Participation Ads

APPENDIX A
Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Participation Process 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

Public engagement occurs throughout CDBG activities for four main purposes: needs gathering, 
approval of proposed actions, the substantial amendment process (if applicable), and the annual 
report (see chart below).  

 

 

The Consolidated Plan is a Strategic Plan that identifies needs and sets priorities, outcomes, and 
objectives for the CDBG program for a three-, five- or six-year period. Travis County’s Consolidated 
Plan is developed through a collaborative process and Public Engagement is a critical component. The 
Annual Action Plan is a document that outlines needs and projects that will guide how the upcoming 
year’s funding will be allocated. In the year that the Consolidated Plan is developed, the public 
hearings for input on the Annual Action Plan and Consolidated Plan are held at the same time. 

 
 
 
  
   

Timeline: 
February/March 

Public 
Engagement:  
5 public hearings 
(1 at Travis 
County 
Commissioners 
Court and 1 at 
each of the 4 
precincts 

Needs 
Gathering 

Process 

Timeline: 
June/July 

Public 
Engagement:  
30-day comment 
period 

2 public hearings 
at Travis County 
Commissioners 
Court 

Proposed 
Activities 
Process 

Timeline:  
Varies 

Public 
Engagement:  
30-day comment 
period 

1 public hearing 
at Travis County 
Commissioners 
Court 

Substantial 
Amendment 

Timeline: 
December 

Public 
Engagement:  
15-day comment 
period 

1 public hearing 
at Travis County 
Commissioners 
Court 

Annual 
Report 

Figure 1: Public Engagement Process 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



SUMMARY OF PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
For the Program Year (PY) 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, information on 
community needs was gathered through a variety of mechanisms. During the months of February and 
March 2014, the public and service providers had the opportunity to provide input by 1) attending 
one of six public hearings, 2) completing a survey, 3) completing a project proposal form, and 4) 
attending a forum for service providers.  

 
Community Meetings 

Community meetings were held at several locations throughout the County in two different formats: 
public hearings and facilitated discussions. Information was collected to help determine priorities for 
the PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, as well as projects for PY14. 
 
Two meetings were held at Travis County Commissioners’ Court during the normally scheduled voting 
session. These public hearings were held in the traditional public hearing format with oral testimony. 
Public hearings were also held in each of the four precincts. Participants were asked for input 
regarding their housing, community development and public service needs. These meetings were 
structured as an information session regarding the uses of CDBG, with facilitated discussion and 
decision-making for meaningful, comprehensive input from participants regarding their housing, 
community development and public service needs.   
 
Public hearings, where information was gathered for the Consolidated Plan and Action, were held 
according to the schedule below. 

Location of Hearings Dates / Times 

Community-
Wide Hearing 

Travis County Commissioners Court,  
700 Lavaca 

Tuesday, February 18, 2014, 9:00 am 
Tuesday March 11, 2014, 9:00 am 

Precinct 1 
 

Travis County Community Center at 
Manor 

Wednesday, February 19, 2014, 6:30 
pm 

Precinct 2 
 Westside Meeting Hall, Austin Thursday, February 20, 2014, 6:30 

pm 

Precinct 3 Travis County Community Center at Oak 
Hill Wednesday, March 5, 2014, 6:30 pm 

Precinct 4 Travis County Community Center at Del 
Valle Thursday, March 6, 2014, 6:30 pm 

 
A total of 22 people attended public hearings to provide input on the Consolidated Plan and Action 
Plan. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Summary of Public Comments Received at February 18th & March 11th Public Hearings 

• Two comments were received at the public hearing at Travis County Commissioners Court on 
February 18, 2014. 

• One individual requested information on the amount of the CDBG grant, the number of 
beneficiaries, and qualifications for the program. 

• One individual stated that he believed ECHO’s Point in Time Homeless count for 2014 was too 
low.  

• No comments were received at the March 11, 2014 hearing.   
 
Advertising  

The opportunity to participate was advertised on the Travis County website 
(www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG), the seven community centers, and the television channel of Travis 
County. The advertisement appeared in the following newspapers of general circulation: Austin 
Chronicle, Pflugerville Pflag, Hill Country News, Oak Hill Gazette, and The Villager. To reach the 
Spanish speaking population the advertisement was placed in the Spanish language newspaper Ahora 
Sí. In addition, notifications by mail and e-mail were sent to service providers via list serves, county 
residents who had previously attended public hearings, community liaison departments of schools 
districts, and neighborhood associations; and were posted on the CDBG Facebook and Twitter pages.   

 
Surveys 

Resident surveys were available online or by postal mail from February 18-March 31, 2014 and were 
offered in English and Spanish. Written surveys were available at public hearings and upon request 
for those without access to a computer or the internet. A total of six residents completed surveys to 
provide input on the Consolidated Plan. 
 
A provider survey was also available to gather input. The survey was available from February 18-
March 31, 2014 and was offered in English only. Several list-serves, including the County’s contracted 
social service providers, were used to send out the link to the online survey through email. A total of 
59 surveys were completed by agencies. 
 

DETAILED RESULTS OF PARTICIPATION PROCESS 
Consolidated Plan Summary of Results  

To assist in determining the spending priorities for PY2014-18, residents and service providers were 
asked to rank six categories on a scale of 1 to 6, with 1 being the most important issue area to 
address and 6 being the least important.   
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Residents 

In total 26 responses were gathered from the public hearings and resident surveys. The table below 
provides the rankings of the categories for investment over the next five years. Infrastructure was 
ranked highest category of need. This was the case during the last Consolidated Planning period as 
well, and resident comments during the meetings confirm a high level of need in this category. 
 

Ranking of Service Categories  
by Residents 

Service Category Ranking 

Infrastructure 1 

Community Services 2 

Housing 3 

Populations with Specialized Needs/Services 4 

Business & Jobs 5 

Public Buildings & Facilities 6 
 
Social Service Providers 

In total, 59 responses were gathered from service provider agencies. Fifty-two of these agencies were 
non-profit organizations, and seven were units of local government. Respondents were asked to rank 
the same six categories as the residents. Providers ranked Housing as the most important for 
investment for PY2014-18. 
 

Ranking of Service Categories  
by Social Service Providers 

Service Category Ranking 

Housing 1 

Community Services 2 

Populations with Specialized Needs/Services 3 

Business & Jobs 4 

Infrastructure 5 

Public Buildings & Facilities 6 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Comparison of Resident and Service Provider Priority Rankings of Service Categories 

Both residents and service providers reported similar priorities with regard to the rankings of 
Housing, (third and first respectively), and Community Services (second for both). However, while 
residents ranked Infrastructure as the most important need over the Consolidated Planning Period, 
providers ranked it fifth. This difference is likely due to residents having more direct experience of the 
infrastructure, or lack thereof, in the unincorporated areas, while service providers may not be aware 
of the degree of need in this area.   

 
Activity Rankings 

Residents and providers were also asked to rank specific activities within each category, with 1 being 
the most important need to address. The results are detailed in the tables that follow.   

 

Business & Jobs Resident 
Ranking  

Provider 
Ranking 

Small Business Loans 1 1 
Commercial Exterior Repair 2 3 

Microenterprise Loans 3 2 
 

Community Services Resident 
Ranking  

Provider 
Ranking 

Youth Supports or Programs 1 4 
Senior or Disabled Services 2 N/A* 

Homebuyer Assistance/Foreclosure Prevention 3 8 
Transportation Service 4 3 

Literacy/ABE 5 6 
Case Management and Outreach for Adults and Youth 6 1 

Job Training 7 2 
Housing Discrimination, Outreach, Education and Legal Services 8 7 

Interim Housing Assistance 9 5 
*The category “Senior or Disabled Services” was not ranked since it was not included on the  
service provider survey. 
 

Housing Resident 
Ranking  

Provider 
Ranking 

Repair of Single Family Homes 1 5 
Homeownership Assistance 2 3 

Repair of Rental Housing 3 4 
Creation of New Single Family Homes 4 2 

Creation of New Rental Housing 5 1 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

Infrastructure Resident 
Ranking  

Provider 
Ranking 

Water and Sewer Improvements 1 4 
Street Improvements 2 1 

Drainage Improvements 3 5 
Other Infrastructure (e.g. sidewalks, curb and gutter, etc.) 4 2 

Slum/Blight Removal 5 3 
 

Public Buildings & Facilities Resident 
Ranking  

Provider 
Ranking 

Parks 1 6 
Health Clinics 2 1 

Recreational Facilities 3 7 
Neighborhood or Community Centers 4 4 
Child Care Centers/Day Care Centers 5 5 

Homeless Facilities 6 2 
Senior Citizen Centers 7 N/A* 

Building Accessibility/Architectural Barrier Removal 8 5 
*The category “Senior Citizen Centers” was not ranked since it was not included on the service  
provider survey.   

 

Populations With Specialized Needs Resident 
Ranking  

Provider 
Ranking 

Domestic Violence Supportive Services 1 5 
Homeless Outreach and Supportive Services 2 2 

Special Needs Housing 3 3 
Substance Abuse Supportive Services 4 4 

Mental Health Supportive Services 5 1 
HIV/AIDS Supportive Services 6 6 

 
Comparison of Resident and Service Provider Priority Rankings of Activities 

It is interesting to note that while residents and service providers generally agreed on two of the 
three most urgent categories of need (Housing and Community Services) there was less agreement 
between the two groups on what were the most important activities within each of the categories.  
The only top priority ranking that matched was Small Business Loans under the Business and Jobs 
category. Both groups ranked Homeless Outreach and Supportive Services second in the Populations 
with Specialized Needs category, and residents ranked Street Improvements (Infrastructure) and 
Health Clinics (Public Buildings & Facilities) second, both of which were the providers’ highest ranked 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



activities in their respective categories. But in several cases there was an inversion in the activities 
that residents perceived as most important compared to the service providers’ ranking. For instance, 
in the Housing category, residents ranked Repair of Single Family Homes as the most important 
activity and Creation of Rental Housing as the least important, whereas service providers ranked 
Creation of Rental Housing as most important, and Repair of Single Family Homes as least important. 
Similarly, residents ranked Water and Wastewater (Infrastructure) as the most important priority, 
while providers ranked it fourth; and residents ranked Parks (Public Buildings & Facilities) as most 
important, while providers ranked it sixth.   

 
Action Plan Summary of Results 

To assist in determining the spending priorities for PY14, residents and service providers were asked 
to rank three of the six categories as “most urgent,” “urgent,” and “important” needs for the PY14 
period.   

 
Residents 

In total 26 responses were gathered from the public hearings and resident surveys. The table below 
provides the rankings of the categories for PY14. Residents’ top three rankings for PY14 were similar 
to the rankings for the Consolidated Planning period, with Infrastructure ranked as the most urgent 
need, but Housing replaced Community Services as the second most urgent need. Additionally, while 
Public Buildings & Facilities was ranked sixth for the Consolidated Plan period, it was ranked fourth 
for PY14.   
 

Ranking of Categories of Need 
by Residents 

Service Category Ranking 

Infrastructure 1 

Housing 2 

Community Services 3 

Public Buildings & Facilities 4 

Populations with Specialized Needs/Services  5 

Business & Jobs 6 
  
Social Service Providers 

In total, 59 responses were gathered from service provider agencies. Fifty-two of these agencies were 
non-profit organizations, and seven were units of local government. Respondents were asked to rank 
the same six categories as residents for the PY14 period. Providers’ rankings of categories for the 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Action Plan period were the same as their rankings for the Consolidated Planning period, with 
Housing ranked as the most important area for investment in PY14. 
 

Ranking of Categories of Need 
by Social Service Providers 

Service Category Ranking 

Housing 1 

Community Services 2 

Populations with Specialized Needs/Services 3 

Business & Jobs  4 

Infrastructure 5 

Public Buildings & Facilities 6 
 
Project Proposals 

Project proposals which identified a community need and provided specific project ideas are 
accepted throughout the year. However, only project proposals received by March 31, 2014 will be 
considered for funding in the next program year. Project proposals can be submitted by Travis County 
Departments, neighborhoods, individuals, and service providers. Proposals can identify potential 
projects for PY14 and helped determine community needs for the PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan. A 
total of seven project proposals were received during the time specified. 
 

Public Comment to Solicit Feedback on Consolidated Plan  

After presentation to Travis County Commissioners Court, the draft PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan was 
posted for written comment for thirty days, prior to the final approval by the Travis County 
Commissioners Court. Comments on the Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan were received 
simultaneously and were accepted in writing via email or regular mail to the Travis County Health and 
Human Services and Veterans’ Service CDBG staff. The Draft Plan was posted on the Travis County 
website and copies were located at the seven Travis County Community Centers for public review. 
During the 30-day comment period, two public hearings were held to inform and enable the 
community to comment on the proposed PY2014-18 priorities and uses of PY14 CDBG funds. These 
two public hearings were held at the Travis County Commissioners’ Court during the normally 
scheduled voting session, and were held in the traditional public hearing format with oral testimony.  

Location of Hearings Dates / Times 

Travis County Commissioners Court,  
700 Lavaca 

Tuesday, July 1, 2014, 9:00 am 
Tuesday July 8, 2014, 9:00 am 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Summary of Public Comments Received at during Public Comment Period 
• One comment was received at the public hearing at Travis County Commissioners Court on July 1, 

2014. The individual requested information on eligibility requirements for the CDBG funded 
programs.  

• No comments were received at the July 8, 2014 hearing.  
• No comments were received in writing.  

 
Service Providers Forum 

On March 21, 2014, Travis County Health & Human Services, CDBG Program staff held a public forum 
for service providers and agencies whose current or planned service area includes, or potentially 
includes, communities in need within the CDBG service area. The forum was held at the Del Valle 
Community Center, which is located in the unincorporated area. Since the need for services outside 
the urban core is increasing as our population continues to be displaced outside the urban core, 
especially due to rising housing prices and lack of affordable housing, this location was specifically 
selected to get service providers out into the CDBG service area. 
 
The overall goal of the forum was to help identify potential opportunities for collaboration or 
coordination to supplement or expand existing services within the CDBG service area over the next 
five years. More specifically, the forum sought to determine which services are available and which 
are lacking in the CDBG service area, in order to help service providers determine what services they 
can provide in these outlying area, and to discuss how the County’s CDBG Program staff can help 
support this shift to extending services into the unincorporated areas. 
 
Between direct invitations via email and indirect invitations via email and/or newsletters sent out by 
Community Action Network (CAN) and/or OneVoice Central Texas (coalitions that bring together 
government, non-profit, private and faith-based organizations who provide services in Central Texas), 
over 100 agencies were invited to the forum. Nineteen providers attended the forum, representing 
17 agencies. 

 

TESTIMONIES RECEIVED DURING PUBLIC HEARINGS  
AT COMMISSIONERS COURT 
Two people testified at the February 18, 2014 public hearing. The full transcription of testimony 
received at Commissioners Court follows: 
 

Judge Biscoe: This is a public hearing on item number one, the community development block grant 
funds from HUD. If you would like to give comments, please come forward and give us your name. 
We would be happy to get your comments. Dr. Kim. 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

javascript:SetPosition(1323.262)
javascript:SetPosition(1323.262)
javascript:SetPosition(1323.262)
javascript:SetPosition(1323.262)
javascript:SetPosition(1325.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1325.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1325.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1325.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1326.365)
javascript:SetPosition(1326.365)
javascript:SetPosition(1326.365)
javascript:SetPosition(1326.365)
javascript:SetPosition(1326.365)
javascript:SetPosition(1326.365)
javascript:SetPosition(1326.365)
javascript:SetPosition(1326.365)
javascript:SetPosition(1327.266)
javascript:SetPosition(1327.266)
javascript:SetPosition(1327.266)
javascript:SetPosition(1327.266)
javascript:SetPosition(1329.167)
javascript:SetPosition(1329.167)
javascript:SetPosition(1329.167)
javascript:SetPosition(1329.167)
javascript:SetPosition(1330.268)
javascript:SetPosition(1330.268)
javascript:SetPosition(1330.268)
javascript:SetPosition(1330.268)
javascript:SetPosition(1331.369)
javascript:SetPosition(1331.369)
javascript:SetPosition(1331.369)
javascript:SetPosition(1331.369)
javascript:SetPosition(1332.971)
javascript:SetPosition(1332.971)
javascript:SetPosition(1332.971)
javascript:SetPosition(1332.971)
javascript:SetPosition(1335.373)
javascript:SetPosition(1335.373)
javascript:SetPosition(1335.373)
javascript:SetPosition(1335.373)
javascript:SetPosition(1336.207)
javascript:SetPosition(1336.207)
javascript:SetPosition(1336.207)
javascript:SetPosition(1336.207)


Koo-hyun Kim: Thank you, thank you, I really appreciate you all. How much benefit will receive each 
person of Travis County if qualified and what is the qualification? And how much total will you receive 
from federal government? 
 
Christy Moffett: We're not sure yet how much we're going to receive from the federal government. 
We received an estimate. We should know in March our final amount. They are still working out the 
numbers. It will be somewhere around $900,000. In terms of individual benefit, it depends on the 
project. But I'm happy to talk with you more about the eligibility criteria. It's all project dependent. 
After the public hearing, I'm happy to talk with you. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: What are the qualifications to be eligible to receive the benefits? 
 
Christy Moffett: Again, it depends upon the program. I can explain it so…most people have to be at 
80% of median family income which for a family of four is close to $59,000--sorry, I don't have it 
memorized. It's around $59,000 for a family of four. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: How can I contact you? 
 
Christy Moffett: Call me at (512)854-3460. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: 3460. 
 
Christy Moffett: Uh-huh. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: May I ask the office number? 
 
Christy Moffett: I'm not in this office. I'm in a different building. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: Okay. Thank you. 
 
Christy Moffett: You're welcome. 
 
Judge Biscoe: Mr. Pena 
 
Gus Pena: Good morning, Judge, Commissioners, Gus Pena. I grew up in East Austin, 2327 East 5th St., 
proud graduate of Johnston High School. I don't know how many years you have been here and 
listening to what I said about the homelessness population. Well, I'm going to leave it at that, but this 
starts the dialogue, positive dialogue. Just had an article in the newspaper, and thank you very much 
Austin American Statesman, “Austin Fewer Homeless” Do I have dumb written on my face? I think it 
calls for a number—it says 1,987 people, a 5% decrease from the year before. All I'm trying to do is 
establish a foundation and basis for dialogue and how some of this funding can be used for housing 
the homeless. This is a serious issue. This is a serious problem in Austin and Travis County. I know this 
has to do with Travis County, but this relates to the funding from HUD. I have spoken to Secretary 
Donovan's office, Chief of Staff of HUD. I'm going to tell you, I don't know what mechanism ECHO is 
using or other organizations to count the homeless population in Austin and Travis County, but it ain't 
this. This is not a correct number of homelessness. Come on now, you go on the streets like I do, you 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

javascript:SetPosition(1339.877)
javascript:SetPosition(1339.877)
javascript:SetPosition(1339.877)
javascript:SetPosition(1339.877)
javascript:SetPosition(1343.482)
javascript:SetPosition(1343.482)
javascript:SetPosition(1343.482)
javascript:SetPosition(1343.482)
javascript:SetPosition(1346.251)
javascript:SetPosition(1346.251)
javascript:SetPosition(1346.251)
javascript:SetPosition(1346.251)
javascript:SetPosition(1349.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1349.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1349.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1349.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1349.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1349.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1349.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1349.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1353.191)
javascript:SetPosition(1353.191)
javascript:SetPosition(1353.191)
javascript:SetPosition(1353.191)
javascript:SetPosition(1356.494)
javascript:SetPosition(1356.494)
javascript:SetPosition(1356.494)
javascript:SetPosition(1356.494)
javascript:SetPosition(1359.631)
javascript:SetPosition(1359.631)
javascript:SetPosition(1359.631)
javascript:SetPosition(1359.631)
javascript:SetPosition(1360.432)
javascript:SetPosition(1360.432)
javascript:SetPosition(1360.432)
javascript:SetPosition(1360.432)
javascript:SetPosition(1360.432)
javascript:SetPosition(1360.432)
javascript:SetPosition(1360.432)
javascript:SetPosition(1360.432)
javascript:SetPosition(1361.933)
javascript:SetPosition(1361.933)
javascript:SetPosition(1361.933)
javascript:SetPosition(1361.933)
javascript:SetPosition(1363.868)
javascript:SetPosition(1363.868)
javascript:SetPosition(1363.868)
javascript:SetPosition(1363.868)
javascript:SetPosition(1365.236)
javascript:SetPosition(1365.236)
javascript:SetPosition(1365.236)
javascript:SetPosition(1365.236)
javascript:SetPosition(1366.104)
javascript:SetPosition(1366.104)
javascript:SetPosition(1366.104)
javascript:SetPosition(1366.104)
javascript:SetPosition(1367.138)
javascript:SetPosition(1367.138)
javascript:SetPosition(1367.138)
javascript:SetPosition(1367.138)
javascript:SetPosition(1369.407)
javascript:SetPosition(1369.407)
javascript:SetPosition(1369.407)
javascript:SetPosition(1369.407)
javascript:SetPosition(1370.041)
javascript:SetPosition(1370.041)
javascript:SetPosition(1370.041)
javascript:SetPosition(1370.041)
javascript:SetPosition(1371.909)
javascript:SetPosition(1371.909)
javascript:SetPosition(1371.909)
javascript:SetPosition(1371.909)
javascript:SetPosition(1372.343)
javascript:SetPosition(1372.343)
javascript:SetPosition(1372.343)
javascript:SetPosition(1372.343)
javascript:SetPosition(1374.545)
javascript:SetPosition(1374.545)
javascript:SetPosition(1374.545)
javascript:SetPosition(1374.545)
javascript:SetPosition(1375.145)
javascript:SetPosition(1375.145)
javascript:SetPosition(1375.145)
javascript:SetPosition(1375.145)
javascript:SetPosition(1376.815)
javascript:SetPosition(1376.815)
javascript:SetPosition(1376.815)
javascript:SetPosition(1376.815)
javascript:SetPosition(1378.049)
javascript:SetPosition(1378.049)
javascript:SetPosition(1378.049)
javascript:SetPosition(1378.049)
javascript:SetPosition(1378.550)
javascript:SetPosition(1378.550)
javascript:SetPosition(1378.550)
javascript:SetPosition(1378.550)
javascript:SetPosition(1380.118)
javascript:SetPosition(1380.118)
javascript:SetPosition(1380.118)
javascript:SetPosition(1380.118)
javascript:SetPosition(1384.355)
javascript:SetPosition(1384.355)
javascript:SetPosition(1384.355)
javascript:SetPosition(1384.355)
javascript:SetPosition(1384.856)
javascript:SetPosition(1384.856)
javascript:SetPosition(1384.856)
javascript:SetPosition(1384.856)
javascript:SetPosition(1385.856)
javascript:SetPosition(1385.856)
javascript:SetPosition(1385.856)
javascript:SetPosition(1385.856)
javascript:SetPosition(1387.892)
javascript:SetPosition(1387.892)
javascript:SetPosition(1387.892)
javascript:SetPosition(1387.892)
javascript:SetPosition(1388.893)
javascript:SetPosition(1388.893)
javascript:SetPosition(1388.893)
javascript:SetPosition(1388.893)
javascript:SetPosition(1390.460)
javascript:SetPosition(1390.460)
javascript:SetPosition(1390.460)
javascript:SetPosition(1390.460)
javascript:SetPosition(1393.096)
javascript:SetPosition(1393.096)
javascript:SetPosition(1393.096)
javascript:SetPosition(1393.096)
javascript:SetPosition(1393.464)
javascript:SetPosition(1393.464)
javascript:SetPosition(1393.464)
javascript:SetPosition(1393.464)
javascript:SetPosition(1395.033)
javascript:SetPosition(1395.033)
javascript:SetPosition(1395.033)
javascript:SetPosition(1395.033)
javascript:SetPosition(1395.366)
javascript:SetPosition(1395.366)
javascript:SetPosition(1395.366)
javascript:SetPosition(1395.366)
javascript:SetPosition(1397.335)
javascript:SetPosition(1397.335)
javascript:SetPosition(1397.335)
javascript:SetPosition(1397.335)
javascript:SetPosition(1399.470)
javascript:SetPosition(1399.470)
javascript:SetPosition(1399.470)
javascript:SetPosition(1399.470)
javascript:SetPosition(1399.470)
javascript:SetPosition(1399.470)
javascript:SetPosition(1399.470)
javascript:SetPosition(1399.470)
javascript:SetPosition(1401.238)
javascript:SetPosition(1401.238)
javascript:SetPosition(1401.238)
javascript:SetPosition(1401.238)
javascript:SetPosition(1404.908)
javascript:SetPosition(1404.908)
javascript:SetPosition(1404.908)
javascript:SetPosition(1404.908)
javascript:SetPosition(1406.810)
javascript:SetPosition(1406.810)
javascript:SetPosition(1406.810)
javascript:SetPosition(1406.810)
javascript:SetPosition(1408.078)
javascript:SetPosition(1408.078)
javascript:SetPosition(1408.078)
javascript:SetPosition(1408.078)
javascript:SetPosition(1408.078)
javascript:SetPosition(1408.078)
javascript:SetPosition(1408.078)
javascript:SetPosition(1408.078)
javascript:SetPosition(1409.513)
javascript:SetPosition(1409.513)
javascript:SetPosition(1409.513)
javascript:SetPosition(1409.513)
javascript:SetPosition(1410.113)
javascript:SetPosition(1410.113)
javascript:SetPosition(1410.113)
javascript:SetPosition(1410.113)
javascript:SetPosition(1417.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1417.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1417.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1417.454)
javascript:SetPosition(1418.622)
javascript:SetPosition(1418.622)
javascript:SetPosition(1418.622)
javascript:SetPosition(1418.622)
javascript:SetPosition(1419.823)
javascript:SetPosition(1419.823)
javascript:SetPosition(1419.823)
javascript:SetPosition(1419.823)
javascript:SetPosition(1421.558)
javascript:SetPosition(1421.558)
javascript:SetPosition(1421.558)
javascript:SetPosition(1421.558)
javascript:SetPosition(1421.892)
javascript:SetPosition(1421.892)
javascript:SetPosition(1421.892)
javascript:SetPosition(1421.892)
javascript:SetPosition(1423.026)
javascript:SetPosition(1423.026)
javascript:SetPosition(1423.026)
javascript:SetPosition(1423.026)
javascript:SetPosition(1424.828)
javascript:SetPosition(1424.828)
javascript:SetPosition(1424.828)
javascript:SetPosition(1424.828)
javascript:SetPosition(1425.529)
javascript:SetPosition(1425.529)
javascript:SetPosition(1425.529)
javascript:SetPosition(1425.529)
javascript:SetPosition(1426.029)
javascript:SetPosition(1426.029)
javascript:SetPosition(1426.029)
javascript:SetPosition(1426.029)
javascript:SetPosition(1427.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1427.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1427.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1427.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1452.189)
javascript:SetPosition(1452.189)
javascript:SetPosition(1452.189)
javascript:SetPosition(1452.189)
javascript:SetPosition(1454.191)
javascript:SetPosition(1454.191)
javascript:SetPosition(1454.191)
javascript:SetPosition(1454.191)
javascript:SetPosition(1459.128)
javascript:SetPosition(1459.128)
javascript:SetPosition(1459.128)
javascript:SetPosition(1459.128)
javascript:SetPosition(1463.867)
javascript:SetPosition(1463.867)
javascript:SetPosition(1463.867)
javascript:SetPosition(1463.867)
javascript:SetPosition(1463.867)
javascript:SetPosition(1463.867)
javascript:SetPosition(1463.867)
javascript:SetPosition(1463.867)
javascript:SetPosition(1465.702)
javascript:SetPosition(1465.702)
javascript:SetPosition(1465.702)
javascript:SetPosition(1465.702)
javascript:SetPosition(1466.136)
javascript:SetPosition(1466.136)
javascript:SetPosition(1466.136)
javascript:SetPosition(1466.136)
javascript:SetPosition(1466.803)
javascript:SetPosition(1466.803)
javascript:SetPosition(1466.803)
javascript:SetPosition(1466.803)
javascript:SetPosition(1467.704)
javascript:SetPosition(1467.704)
javascript:SetPosition(1467.704)
javascript:SetPosition(1467.704)
javascript:SetPosition(1469.439)
javascript:SetPosition(1469.439)
javascript:SetPosition(1469.439)
javascript:SetPosition(1469.439)
javascript:SetPosition(1471.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1471.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1471.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1471.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1472.876)
javascript:SetPosition(1472.876)
javascript:SetPosition(1472.876)
javascript:SetPosition(1472.876)
javascript:SetPosition(1474.544)
javascript:SetPosition(1474.544)
javascript:SetPosition(1474.544)
javascript:SetPosition(1474.544)
javascript:SetPosition(1474.544)
javascript:SetPosition(1474.544)
javascript:SetPosition(1474.544)
javascript:SetPosition(1474.544)
javascript:SetPosition(1476.112)
javascript:SetPosition(1476.112)
javascript:SetPosition(1476.112)
javascript:SetPosition(1476.112)
javascript:SetPosition(1478.881)
javascript:SetPosition(1478.881)
javascript:SetPosition(1478.881)
javascript:SetPosition(1478.881)
javascript:SetPosition(1479.649)
javascript:SetPosition(1479.649)
javascript:SetPosition(1479.649)
javascript:SetPosition(1479.649)
javascript:SetPosition(1483.153)
javascript:SetPosition(1483.153)
javascript:SetPosition(1483.153)
javascript:SetPosition(1483.153)
javascript:SetPosition(1483.153)
javascript:SetPosition(1483.153)
javascript:SetPosition(1483.153)
javascript:SetPosition(1483.153)
javascript:SetPosition(1486.089)
javascript:SetPosition(1486.089)
javascript:SetPosition(1486.089)
javascript:SetPosition(1486.089)
javascript:SetPosition(1486.489)
javascript:SetPosition(1486.489)
javascript:SetPosition(1486.489)
javascript:SetPosition(1486.489)
javascript:SetPosition(1488.858)
javascript:SetPosition(1488.858)
javascript:SetPosition(1488.858)
javascript:SetPosition(1488.858)
javascript:SetPosition(1488.858)
javascript:SetPosition(1488.858)
javascript:SetPosition(1488.858)
javascript:SetPosition(1488.858)
javascript:SetPosition(1491.928)
javascript:SetPosition(1491.928)
javascript:SetPosition(1491.928)
javascript:SetPosition(1491.928)
javascript:SetPosition(1494.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1494.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1494.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1494.297)
javascript:SetPosition(1495.164)
javascript:SetPosition(1495.164)
javascript:SetPosition(1495.164)
javascript:SetPosition(1495.164)
javascript:SetPosition(1496.465)
javascript:SetPosition(1496.465)
javascript:SetPosition(1496.465)
javascript:SetPosition(1496.465)
javascript:SetPosition(1497.766)
javascript:SetPosition(1497.766)
javascript:SetPosition(1497.766)
javascript:SetPosition(1497.766)
javascript:SetPosition(1499.135)
javascript:SetPosition(1499.135)
javascript:SetPosition(1499.135)
javascript:SetPosition(1499.135)
javascript:SetPosition(1500.370)
javascript:SetPosition(1500.370)
javascript:SetPosition(1500.370)
javascript:SetPosition(1500.370)
javascript:SetPosition(1502.472)
javascript:SetPosition(1502.472)
javascript:SetPosition(1502.472)
javascript:SetPosition(1502.472)
javascript:SetPosition(1502.472)
javascript:SetPosition(1502.472)
javascript:SetPosition(1502.472)
javascript:SetPosition(1502.472)
javascript:SetPosition(1505.108)
javascript:SetPosition(1505.108)
javascript:SetPosition(1505.108)
javascript:SetPosition(1505.108)
javascript:SetPosition(1507.476)
javascript:SetPosition(1507.476)
javascript:SetPosition(1507.476)
javascript:SetPosition(1507.476)
javascript:SetPosition(1508.110)
javascript:SetPosition(1508.110)
javascript:SetPosition(1508.110)
javascript:SetPosition(1508.110)
javascript:SetPosition(1509.311)
javascript:SetPosition(1509.311)
javascript:SetPosition(1509.311)
javascript:SetPosition(1509.311)
javascript:SetPosition(1509.311)
javascript:SetPosition(1509.311)
javascript:SetPosition(1509.311)
javascript:SetPosition(1509.311)
javascript:SetPosition(1510.412)
javascript:SetPosition(1510.412)
javascript:SetPosition(1510.412)
javascript:SetPosition(1510.412)
javascript:SetPosition(1512.281)
javascript:SetPosition(1512.281)
javascript:SetPosition(1512.281)
javascript:SetPosition(1512.281)
javascript:SetPosition(1516.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1516.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1516.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1516.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1517.787)
javascript:SetPosition(1517.787)
javascript:SetPosition(1517.787)
javascript:SetPosition(1517.787)
javascript:SetPosition(1518.655)
javascript:SetPosition(1518.655)
javascript:SetPosition(1518.655)
javascript:SetPosition(1518.655)
javascript:SetPosition(1521.357)
javascript:SetPosition(1521.357)
javascript:SetPosition(1521.357)
javascript:SetPosition(1521.357)
javascript:SetPosition(1523.159)
javascript:SetPosition(1523.159)
javascript:SetPosition(1523.159)
javascript:SetPosition(1523.159)
javascript:SetPosition(1524.060)
javascript:SetPosition(1524.060)
javascript:SetPosition(1524.060)
javascript:SetPosition(1524.060)
javascript:SetPosition(1525.060)
javascript:SetPosition(1525.060)
javascript:SetPosition(1525.060)
javascript:SetPosition(1525.060)
javascript:SetPosition(1525.761)
javascript:SetPosition(1525.761)
javascript:SetPosition(1525.761)
javascript:SetPosition(1525.761)
javascript:SetPosition(1527.196)
javascript:SetPosition(1527.196)
javascript:SetPosition(1527.196)
javascript:SetPosition(1527.196)
javascript:SetPosition(1527.529)
javascript:SetPosition(1527.529)
javascript:SetPosition(1527.529)
javascript:SetPosition(1527.529)
javascript:SetPosition(1529.164)
javascript:SetPosition(1529.164)
javascript:SetPosition(1529.164)
javascript:SetPosition(1529.164)
javascript:SetPosition(1529.832)
javascript:SetPosition(1529.832)
javascript:SetPosition(1529.832)
javascript:SetPosition(1529.832)
javascript:SetPosition(1532.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1532.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1532.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1532.901)


go to Salvation Army, you go to Front Steps, you go to any other agency that helps out the homeless, 
it's going to be more than 4,000 people. You know, I don't have a doctorate, I don't have a master's, 
but darn it, I have common sense and my god gave me common sense and  my mom and dad too, 
god rest in peace, I understand it's about $900,000 from them and I understand and I appreciate, but 
one of the things we also need to do is redefine the median family income quotient. It is antiquated. 
We've been saying this for many years. I'll leave it at that. I'll leave it at that. If you listened to 
anything I said and $900,000, thank you very much, but it ain't what it calls for in the paper. 1,900 
homeless people, wrong. That's all I have to say, Judge, but good lord willing, I'll be able to attend the 
public hearings on the county side. On the city side I think I've educated them enough. I have known 
homelessness myself and it ain't healthy, it ain't good the family. I'll say this and you might get 
embarrassed, Judge, Judge Biscoe has been one of the people on the forefront to help out people. I 
want to thank you, Judge, and I'm going to say I hope you don't think it's political, I wish you would 
run for election. I would vote for you. I love you as a friend. Anyway, listen to the people. It's more 
than 1,987 homeless people here. Thank you, Judge. 
 
Judge Biscoe: Thank you Mr. Pena.  Anybody else? For this public hearing? Move the public hearing 
be closed.  

 

One person testified at the July 1, 2014 public hearing. The full transcription of testimony received at 
Commissioners Court follows: 
 
Judge Biscoe: This is a public hearing. If you would like to give comment on item number 2, please 
come forward, your name, then your comment. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: my name is Koo-hyun Kim. I ask you the same information, who is qualified to receive 
this help? 
 
Christy Moffett:  Oh, each program is different and what we can do is provide you information in a 
letter like we did last year. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: After I read that letter, I contacted -- I did not get the response I wanted. Let me know 
who is qualified to receive benefit? 
 
Christy Moffett:  Okay. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: And those only persons who has a house or must have a house? People do not have a 
house is not qualified? 
 
Christy Moffett:  For some of the programs, right. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: Some? 
 
Christy Moffett:  It depends on the program, but we'll provide very clear indication so that you 
understand – 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: Some people who have no house is qualified?  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

javascript:SetPosition(1532.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1532.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1532.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1532.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1535.037)
javascript:SetPosition(1535.037)
javascript:SetPosition(1535.037)
javascript:SetPosition(1535.037)
javascript:SetPosition(1536.705)
javascript:SetPosition(1536.705)
javascript:SetPosition(1536.705)
javascript:SetPosition(1536.705)
javascript:SetPosition(1537.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1537.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1537.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1537.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1539.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1539.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1539.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1539.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1539.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1539.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1539.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1539.508)
javascript:SetPosition(1541.610)
javascript:SetPosition(1541.610)
javascript:SetPosition(1541.610)
javascript:SetPosition(1541.610)
javascript:SetPosition(1543.479)
javascript:SetPosition(1543.479)
javascript:SetPosition(1543.479)
javascript:SetPosition(1543.479)
javascript:SetPosition(1545.614)
javascript:SetPosition(1545.614)
javascript:SetPosition(1545.614)
javascript:SetPosition(1545.614)
javascript:SetPosition(1547.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1547.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1547.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1547.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1547.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1547.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1547.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1547.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1551.487)
javascript:SetPosition(1551.487)
javascript:SetPosition(1551.487)
javascript:SetPosition(1551.487)
javascript:SetPosition(1553.489)
javascript:SetPosition(1553.489)
javascript:SetPosition(1553.489)
javascript:SetPosition(1553.489)
javascript:SetPosition(1556.291)
javascript:SetPosition(1556.291)
javascript:SetPosition(1556.291)
javascript:SetPosition(1556.291)
javascript:SetPosition(1556.291)
javascript:SetPosition(1556.291)
javascript:SetPosition(1556.291)
javascript:SetPosition(1556.291)
javascript:SetPosition(1557.793)
javascript:SetPosition(1557.793)
javascript:SetPosition(1557.793)
javascript:SetPosition(1557.793)
javascript:SetPosition(1559.361)
javascript:SetPosition(1559.361)
javascript:SetPosition(1559.361)
javascript:SetPosition(1559.361)
javascript:SetPosition(1560.696)
javascript:SetPosition(1560.696)
javascript:SetPosition(1560.696)
javascript:SetPosition(1560.696)
javascript:SetPosition(1560.696)
javascript:SetPosition(1560.696)
javascript:SetPosition(1560.696)
javascript:SetPosition(1560.696)
javascript:SetPosition(1563.165)
javascript:SetPosition(1563.165)
javascript:SetPosition(1563.165)
javascript:SetPosition(1563.165)
javascript:SetPosition(1565.500)
javascript:SetPosition(1565.500)
javascript:SetPosition(1565.500)
javascript:SetPosition(1565.500)
javascript:SetPosition(1566.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1566.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1566.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1566.901)
javascript:SetPosition(1569.038)
javascript:SetPosition(1569.038)
javascript:SetPosition(1569.038)
javascript:SetPosition(1569.038)
javascript:SetPosition(1570.339)
javascript:SetPosition(1570.339)
javascript:SetPosition(1570.339)
javascript:SetPosition(1570.339)
javascript:SetPosition(1572.141)
javascript:SetPosition(1572.141)
javascript:SetPosition(1572.141)
javascript:SetPosition(1572.141)
javascript:SetPosition(1573.575)
javascript:SetPosition(1573.575)
javascript:SetPosition(1573.575)
javascript:SetPosition(1573.575)
javascript:SetPosition(1573.575)
javascript:SetPosition(1573.575)
javascript:SetPosition(1573.575)
javascript:SetPosition(1573.575)
javascript:SetPosition(1575.010)
javascript:SetPosition(1575.010)
javascript:SetPosition(1575.010)
javascript:SetPosition(1575.010)
javascript:SetPosition(1575.010)
javascript:SetPosition(1575.010)
javascript:SetPosition(1575.010)
javascript:SetPosition(1575.010)
javascript:SetPosition(1577.379)
javascript:SetPosition(1577.379)
javascript:SetPosition(1577.379)
javascript:SetPosition(1577.379)
javascript:SetPosition(1579.948)
javascript:SetPosition(1579.948)
javascript:SetPosition(1579.948)
javascript:SetPosition(1579.948)
javascript:SetPosition(1582.884)
javascript:SetPosition(1582.884)
javascript:SetPosition(1582.884)
javascript:SetPosition(1582.884)
javascript:SetPosition(1584.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1584.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1584.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1584.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1584.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1584.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1584.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1584.319)
javascript:SetPosition(1586.388)
javascript:SetPosition(1586.388)
javascript:SetPosition(1586.388)
javascript:SetPosition(1586.388)
javascript:SetPosition(1588.123)
javascript:SetPosition(1588.123)
javascript:SetPosition(1588.123)
javascript:SetPosition(1588.123)
javascript:SetPosition(1589.057)
javascript:SetPosition(1589.057)
javascript:SetPosition(1589.057)
javascript:SetPosition(1589.057)
javascript:SetPosition(1591.026)
javascript:SetPosition(1591.026)
javascript:SetPosition(1591.026)
javascript:SetPosition(1591.026)
javascript:SetPosition(1591.326)
javascript:SetPosition(1591.326)
javascript:SetPosition(1591.326)
javascript:SetPosition(1591.326)
javascript:SetPosition(1593.061)
javascript:SetPosition(1593.061)
javascript:SetPosition(1593.061)
javascript:SetPosition(1593.061)
javascript:SetPosition(1595.663)
javascript:SetPosition(1595.663)
javascript:SetPosition(1595.663)
javascript:SetPosition(1595.663)
javascript:SetPosition(1597.298)
javascript:SetPosition(1597.298)
javascript:SetPosition(1597.298)
javascript:SetPosition(1597.298)
javascript:SetPosition(1597.298)
javascript:SetPosition(1597.298)
javascript:SetPosition(1597.298)
javascript:SetPosition(1597.298)
javascript:SetPosition(1599.967)
javascript:SetPosition(1599.967)
javascript:SetPosition(1599.967)
javascript:SetPosition(1599.967)
javascript:SetPosition(1601.669)
javascript:SetPosition(1601.669)
javascript:SetPosition(1601.669)
javascript:SetPosition(1601.669)
javascript:SetPosition(1603.372)
javascript:SetPosition(1603.372)
javascript:SetPosition(1603.372)
javascript:SetPosition(1603.372)
javascript:SetPosition(1605.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1605.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1605.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1605.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1605.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1605.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1605.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1605.540)
javascript:SetPosition(1606.374)
javascript:SetPosition(1606.374)
javascript:SetPosition(1606.374)
javascript:SetPosition(1606.374)
javascript:SetPosition(1607.809)
javascript:SetPosition(1607.809)
javascript:SetPosition(1607.809)
javascript:SetPosition(1607.809)
javascript:SetPosition(1608.576)
javascript:SetPosition(1608.576)
javascript:SetPosition(1608.576)
javascript:SetPosition(1608.576)
javascript:SetPosition(1610.044)
javascript:SetPosition(1610.044)
javascript:SetPosition(1610.044)
javascript:SetPosition(1610.044)
javascript:SetPosition(1610.044)
javascript:SetPosition(1610.044)
javascript:SetPosition(1610.044)
javascript:SetPosition(1610.044)
javascript:SetPosition(1612.413)
javascript:SetPosition(1612.413)
javascript:SetPosition(1612.413)
javascript:SetPosition(1612.413)
javascript:SetPosition(1615.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1615.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1615.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1615.783)
javascript:SetPosition(1617.251)
javascript:SetPosition(1617.251)
javascript:SetPosition(1617.251)
javascript:SetPosition(1617.251)
javascript:SetPosition(1618.252)
javascript:SetPosition(1618.252)
javascript:SetPosition(1618.252)
javascript:SetPosition(1618.252)
javascript:SetPosition(1619.587)
javascript:SetPosition(1619.587)
javascript:SetPosition(1619.587)
javascript:SetPosition(1619.587)
javascript:SetPosition(1621.790)
javascript:SetPosition(1621.790)
javascript:SetPosition(1621.790)
javascript:SetPosition(1621.790)
javascript:SetPosition(1623.758)
javascript:SetPosition(1623.758)
javascript:SetPosition(1623.758)
javascript:SetPosition(1623.758)
javascript:SetPosition(1623.758)
javascript:SetPosition(1623.758)
javascript:SetPosition(1623.758)
javascript:SetPosition(1623.758)
javascript:SetPosition(1624.325)
javascript:SetPosition(1624.325)
javascript:SetPosition(1624.325)
javascript:SetPosition(1624.325)
javascript:SetPosition(1624.859)
javascript:SetPosition(1624.859)
javascript:SetPosition(1624.859)
javascript:SetPosition(1624.859)
javascript:SetPosition(2048.328)
javascript:SetPosition(2048.328)
javascript:SetPosition(2048.328)
javascript:SetPosition(2048.328)
javascript:SetPosition(2049.963)
javascript:SetPosition(2049.963)
javascript:SetPosition(2049.963)
javascript:SetPosition(2049.963)
javascript:SetPosition(2062.541)
javascript:SetPosition(2062.541)
javascript:SetPosition(2062.541)
javascript:SetPosition(2062.541)
javascript:SetPosition(2063.042)
javascript:SetPosition(2063.042)
javascript:SetPosition(2063.042)
javascript:SetPosition(2063.042)
javascript:SetPosition(2068.181)
javascript:SetPosition(2068.181)
javascript:SetPosition(2068.181)
javascript:SetPosition(2068.181)
javascript:SetPosition(2070.717)
javascript:SetPosition(2070.717)
javascript:SetPosition(2070.717)
javascript:SetPosition(2070.717)
javascript:SetPosition(2078.757)
javascript:SetPosition(2078.757)
javascript:SetPosition(2078.757)
javascript:SetPosition(2078.757)
javascript:SetPosition(2078.757)
javascript:SetPosition(2078.757)
javascript:SetPosition(2078.757)
javascript:SetPosition(2078.757)
javascript:SetPosition(2079.391)
javascript:SetPosition(2079.391)
javascript:SetPosition(2079.391)
javascript:SetPosition(2079.391)
javascript:SetPosition(2082.195)
javascript:SetPosition(2082.195)
javascript:SetPosition(2082.195)
javascript:SetPosition(2082.195)
javascript:SetPosition(2083.896)
javascript:SetPosition(2083.896)
javascript:SetPosition(2083.896)
javascript:SetPosition(2083.896)
javascript:SetPosition(2087.066)
javascript:SetPosition(2087.066)
javascript:SetPosition(2087.066)
javascript:SetPosition(2087.066)
javascript:SetPosition(2088.267)
javascript:SetPosition(2088.267)
javascript:SetPosition(2088.267)
javascript:SetPosition(2088.267)
javascript:SetPosition(2088.267)
javascript:SetPosition(2088.267)
javascript:SetPosition(2088.267)
javascript:SetPosition(2088.267)
javascript:SetPosition(2093.005)
javascript:SetPosition(2093.005)
javascript:SetPosition(2093.005)
javascript:SetPosition(2093.005)
javascript:SetPosition(2095.107)
javascript:SetPosition(2095.107)
javascript:SetPosition(2095.107)
javascript:SetPosition(2095.107)
javascript:SetPosition(2098.043)
javascript:SetPosition(2098.043)
javascript:SetPosition(2098.043)
javascript:SetPosition(2098.043)
javascript:SetPosition(2099.278)
javascript:SetPosition(2099.278)
javascript:SetPosition(2099.278)
javascript:SetPosition(2099.278)
javascript:SetPosition(2101.814)
javascript:SetPosition(2101.814)
javascript:SetPosition(2101.814)
javascript:SetPosition(2101.814)
javascript:SetPosition(2101.814)
javascript:SetPosition(2101.814)
javascript:SetPosition(2101.814)
javascript:SetPosition(2101.814)
javascript:SetPosition(2102.915)
javascript:SetPosition(2102.915)
javascript:SetPosition(2102.915)
javascript:SetPosition(2102.915)
javascript:SetPosition(2106.385)
javascript:SetPosition(2106.385)
javascript:SetPosition(2106.385)
javascript:SetPosition(2106.385)
javascript:SetPosition(2108.020)
javascript:SetPosition(2108.020)
javascript:SetPosition(2108.020)
javascript:SetPosition(2108.020)
javascript:SetPosition(2113.458)
javascript:SetPosition(2113.458)
javascript:SetPosition(2113.458)
javascript:SetPosition(2113.458)
javascript:SetPosition(2114.326)
javascript:SetPosition(2114.326)
javascript:SetPosition(2114.326)
javascript:SetPosition(2114.326)
javascript:SetPosition(2115.393)
javascript:SetPosition(2115.393)
javascript:SetPosition(2115.393)
javascript:SetPosition(2115.393)
javascript:SetPosition(2115.393)
javascript:SetPosition(2115.393)
javascript:SetPosition(2115.393)
javascript:SetPosition(2115.393)
javascript:SetPosition(2116.896)
javascript:SetPosition(2116.896)
javascript:SetPosition(2116.896)
javascript:SetPosition(2116.896)
javascript:SetPosition(2118.731)
javascript:SetPosition(2118.731)
javascript:SetPosition(2118.731)
javascript:SetPosition(2118.731)
javascript:SetPosition(2119.031)
javascript:SetPosition(2119.031)
javascript:SetPosition(2119.031)
javascript:SetPosition(2119.031)
javascript:SetPosition(2119.698)
javascript:SetPosition(2119.698)
javascript:SetPosition(2119.698)
javascript:SetPosition(2119.698)
javascript:SetPosition(2121.299)
javascript:SetPosition(2121.299)
javascript:SetPosition(2121.299)
javascript:SetPosition(2121.299)
javascript:SetPosition(2123.702)
javascript:SetPosition(2123.702)
javascript:SetPosition(2123.702)
javascript:SetPosition(2123.702)
javascript:SetPosition(2124.870)
javascript:SetPosition(2124.870)
javascript:SetPosition(2124.870)
javascript:SetPosition(2124.870)
javascript:SetPosition(2125.904)
javascript:SetPosition(2125.904)
javascript:SetPosition(2125.904)
javascript:SetPosition(2125.904)
javascript:SetPosition(2125.904)
javascript:SetPosition(2125.904)
javascript:SetPosition(2125.904)
javascript:SetPosition(2125.904)
javascript:SetPosition(2128.040)
javascript:SetPosition(2128.040)
javascript:SetPosition(2128.040)
javascript:SetPosition(2128.040)
javascript:SetPosition(2129.007)
javascript:SetPosition(2129.007)
javascript:SetPosition(2129.007)
javascript:SetPosition(2129.007)


 
Christy Moffett:  For some programs.  
 
Koo-hyun Kim: Some programs. 
 
Christy Moffett:  Uh-huh. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: Okay, and total how much is it? 
 
Christy Moffett:   Sorry, one more time? 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: The total amount is how much? 
 
Christy Moffett:   And I’ll do that by program as well. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: You don’t know right now? 
 
Christy Moffett:  It varies by program. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: The money is coming from federal government or state government? 
 
Christy Moffett:  The federal government the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: Travis County's budget is even or red or what? 
 
Christy Moffett:  It's even. We can’t spend any more… 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: You know Texas governor Rick Perry all the time saying Texas for the business people. 
So many people come to Texas and especially Austin. Austin is crowded so many people, every day 
more people. How in the hell Texas have enough money, want to get some money from Federal 
government, 18 trillion-dollar government. 
 
Christy Moffett:  So I can…I can't speak to… 
 
Judge Biscoe: We share your concern, that has nothing to do with this program, though.  
 
Koo-hyun Kim: So Travis County is requested or government said voluntarily we donate this amount of 
money? 
 
Christy Moffett:  Allocated is a better word than donate. 
 
Koo-hyun Kim: Right. 
 
Christy Moffett:  The money is allocated nationwide based on our population and geographic area. 
This is our share. 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

javascript:SetPosition(2148.927)
javascript:SetPosition(2148.927)
javascript:SetPosition(2148.927)
javascript:SetPosition(2148.927)
javascript:SetPosition(2149.961)
javascript:SetPosition(2149.961)
javascript:SetPosition(2149.961)
javascript:SetPosition(2149.961)
javascript:SetPosition(2150.528)
javascript:SetPosition(2150.528)
javascript:SetPosition(2150.528)
javascript:SetPosition(2150.528)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2152.464)
javascript:SetPosition(2153.699)
javascript:SetPosition(2153.699)
javascript:SetPosition(2153.699)
javascript:SetPosition(2153.699)
javascript:SetPosition(2154.132)
javascript:SetPosition(2154.132)
javascript:SetPosition(2154.132)
javascript:SetPosition(2154.132)
javascript:SetPosition(2160.171)
javascript:SetPosition(2160.171)
javascript:SetPosition(2160.171)
javascript:SetPosition(2160.171)
javascript:SetPosition(2161.639)
javascript:SetPosition(2161.639)
javascript:SetPosition(2161.639)
javascript:SetPosition(2161.639)
javascript:SetPosition(2169.748)
javascript:SetPosition(2169.748)
javascript:SetPosition(2169.748)
javascript:SetPosition(2169.748)
javascript:SetPosition(2174.719)
javascript:SetPosition(2174.719)
javascript:SetPosition(2174.719)
javascript:SetPosition(2174.719)
javascript:SetPosition(2176.287)
javascript:SetPosition(2176.287)
javascript:SetPosition(2176.287)
javascript:SetPosition(2176.287)
javascript:SetPosition(2177.121)
javascript:SetPosition(2177.121)
javascript:SetPosition(2177.121)
javascript:SetPosition(2177.121)
javascript:SetPosition(2179.257)
javascript:SetPosition(2179.257)
javascript:SetPosition(2179.257)
javascript:SetPosition(2179.257)
javascript:SetPosition(2180.525)
javascript:SetPosition(2180.525)
javascript:SetPosition(2180.525)
javascript:SetPosition(2180.525)
javascript:SetPosition(2182.560)
javascript:SetPosition(2182.560)
javascript:SetPosition(2182.560)
javascript:SetPosition(2182.560)
javascript:SetPosition(2184.161)
javascript:SetPosition(2184.161)
javascript:SetPosition(2184.161)
javascript:SetPosition(2184.161)
javascript:SetPosition(2187.832)
javascript:SetPosition(2187.832)
javascript:SetPosition(2187.832)
javascript:SetPosition(2187.832)
javascript:SetPosition(2189.300)
javascript:SetPosition(2189.300)
javascript:SetPosition(2189.300)
javascript:SetPosition(2189.300)
javascript:SetPosition(2192.837)
javascript:SetPosition(2192.837)
javascript:SetPosition(2192.837)
javascript:SetPosition(2192.837)
javascript:SetPosition(2194.805)
javascript:SetPosition(2194.805)
javascript:SetPosition(2194.805)
javascript:SetPosition(2194.805)
javascript:SetPosition(2195.406)
javascript:SetPosition(2195.406)
javascript:SetPosition(2195.406)
javascript:SetPosition(2195.406)
javascript:SetPosition(2195.806)
javascript:SetPosition(2195.806)
javascript:SetPosition(2195.806)
javascript:SetPosition(2195.806)
javascript:SetPosition(2197.642)
javascript:SetPosition(2197.642)
javascript:SetPosition(2197.642)
javascript:SetPosition(2197.642)
javascript:SetPosition(2204.081)
javascript:SetPosition(2204.081)
javascript:SetPosition(2204.081)
javascript:SetPosition(2204.081)
javascript:SetPosition(2206.784)
javascript:SetPosition(2206.784)
javascript:SetPosition(2206.784)
javascript:SetPosition(2206.784)
javascript:SetPosition(2211.589)
javascript:SetPosition(2211.589)
javascript:SetPosition(2211.589)
javascript:SetPosition(2211.589)
javascript:SetPosition(2213.157)
javascript:SetPosition(2213.157)
javascript:SetPosition(2213.157)
javascript:SetPosition(2213.157)
javascript:SetPosition(2216.026)
javascript:SetPosition(2216.026)
javascript:SetPosition(2216.026)
javascript:SetPosition(2216.026)
javascript:SetPosition(2218.328)
javascript:SetPosition(2218.328)
javascript:SetPosition(2218.328)
javascript:SetPosition(2218.328)
javascript:SetPosition(2219.296)
javascript:SetPosition(2219.296)
javascript:SetPosition(2219.296)
javascript:SetPosition(2219.296)
javascript:SetPosition(2223.334)
javascript:SetPosition(2223.334)
javascript:SetPosition(2223.334)
javascript:SetPosition(2223.334)
javascript:SetPosition(2224.502)
javascript:SetPosition(2224.502)
javascript:SetPosition(2224.502)
javascript:SetPosition(2224.502)
javascript:SetPosition(2225.736)
javascript:SetPosition(2225.736)
javascript:SetPosition(2225.736)
javascript:SetPosition(2225.736)
javascript:SetPosition(2226.103)
javascript:SetPosition(2226.103)
javascript:SetPosition(2226.103)
javascript:SetPosition(2226.103)
javascript:SetPosition(2228.739)
javascript:SetPosition(2228.739)
javascript:SetPosition(2228.739)
javascript:SetPosition(2228.739)


Koo-hyun Kim: From American government right now I received a letter from the government that our 
government is broken and they know like state government, the children, the children they want to 
collect more money from bad parents like that. It's very dangerous. Especially Texas governor said hey, 
we pick the big business and still collect money from the federal government, 18 trillion-dollar deficit. 
 
Judge Biscoe: Okay, thank you, Dr. Kim. Anybody else? Last opportunity today. Move the public 
hearing be closed. 
 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

javascript:SetPosition(2230.541)
javascript:SetPosition(2230.541)
javascript:SetPosition(2230.541)
javascript:SetPosition(2230.541)
javascript:SetPosition(2231.442)
javascript:SetPosition(2231.442)
javascript:SetPosition(2231.442)
javascript:SetPosition(2231.442)
javascript:SetPosition(2236.079)
javascript:SetPosition(2236.079)
javascript:SetPosition(2236.079)
javascript:SetPosition(2236.079)
javascript:SetPosition(2237.180)
javascript:SetPosition(2237.180)
javascript:SetPosition(2237.180)
javascript:SetPosition(2237.180)
javascript:SetPosition(2237.180)
javascript:SetPosition(2237.180)
javascript:SetPosition(2237.180)
javascript:SetPosition(2237.180)
javascript:SetPosition(2241.886)
javascript:SetPosition(2241.886)
javascript:SetPosition(2241.886)
javascript:SetPosition(2241.886)
javascript:SetPosition(2243.087)
javascript:SetPosition(2243.087)
javascript:SetPosition(2243.087)
javascript:SetPosition(2243.087)
javascript:SetPosition(2244.088)
javascript:SetPosition(2244.088)
javascript:SetPosition(2244.088)
javascript:SetPosition(2244.088)
javascript:SetPosition(2246.423)
javascript:SetPosition(2246.423)
javascript:SetPosition(2246.423)
javascript:SetPosition(2246.423)
javascript:SetPosition(2246.423)
javascript:SetPosition(2246.423)
javascript:SetPosition(2246.423)
javascript:SetPosition(2246.423)
javascript:SetPosition(2249.426)
javascript:SetPosition(2249.426)
javascript:SetPosition(2249.426)
javascript:SetPosition(2249.426)
javascript:SetPosition(2253.530)
javascript:SetPosition(2253.530)
javascript:SetPosition(2253.530)
javascript:SetPosition(2253.530)
javascript:SetPosition(2254.431)
javascript:SetPosition(2254.431)
javascript:SetPosition(2254.431)
javascript:SetPosition(2254.431)
javascript:SetPosition(2256.400)
javascript:SetPosition(2256.400)
javascript:SetPosition(2256.400)
javascript:SetPosition(2256.400)
javascript:SetPosition(2256.400)
javascript:SetPosition(2256.400)
javascript:SetPosition(2256.400)
javascript:SetPosition(2256.400)
javascript:SetPosition(2257.368)
javascript:SetPosition(2257.368)
javascript:SetPosition(2257.368)
javascript:SetPosition(2257.368)
javascript:SetPosition(2261.471)
javascript:SetPosition(2261.471)
javascript:SetPosition(2261.471)
javascript:SetPosition(2261.471)
javascript:SetPosition(2261.939)
javascript:SetPosition(2261.939)
javascript:SetPosition(2261.939)
javascript:SetPosition(2261.939)
javascript:SetPosition(2264.708)
javascript:SetPosition(2264.708)
javascript:SetPosition(2264.708)
javascript:SetPosition(2264.708)
javascript:SetPosition(2267.643)
javascript:SetPosition(2267.643)
javascript:SetPosition(2267.643)
javascript:SetPosition(2267.643)
javascript:SetPosition(2271.281)
javascript:SetPosition(2271.281)
javascript:SetPosition(2271.281)
javascript:SetPosition(2271.281)
javascript:SetPosition(2272.181)
javascript:SetPosition(2272.181)
javascript:SetPosition(2272.181)
javascript:SetPosition(2272.181)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.249)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.249)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.249)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.249)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.249)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.249)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.249)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.249)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.649)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.649)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.649)
javascript:SetPosition(2273.649)


 

Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 
CDBG Program 
P.O. Box 1748 

Austin, Texas  78767 
PH (512) 854-4100  FAX (512) 854-4115 

www.co.travis.tx.us/cdbg 
 

 

 

July 28, 2014 

 

 

Dear Mr. Kim: 

 

This letter is in response to your request for information about eligibility requirements for 

programs funded by the Travis County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program, 

which you submitted during the public hearing at Travis County Commissioners Court on July 1, 

2014. Below you will find a chart detailing the current programs and eligibility requirements.  

 

If you have any questions you can contact me at 512-854-3460 or 

christy.moffett@co.travis.tx.us.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Christy Moffett, MSSW 

CDBG Planning Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
CDBG Program Requirements  

Project 

 
Program Description 

 

Eligibility 
 

Fair Housing Project 

Fair housing and tenant’s 
rights services including 

telephone counseling and in-
person mediation. 

Tenant must live in the unincorporated areas of 
Travis County or the Village of Webberville.  

Social Work Services  
Outreach and case 

management services. 

Clients must live in the unincorporated areas of 
Travis County or the Village of Webberville and 
earn less than 80% of Median Family Income (see 
attached chart.)  

Homeowner Rehabilitation 

Minor home repair services 
up to $24,999 per property 
under a deferred loan, 
forgivable after five (5) years.   

Participants must own their home, live in the 
unincorporated areas of Travis County or the 
Village of Webberville and earn less than 80% of 
Median Family Income (see attached chart.) 
Additionally, the property must qualify based on 
type of repair needed and environmental review.  

Land Acquisition for 
Affordable Housing 

Development 

CDBG acquired 31 lots for 
affordable housing 

development by Austin 
Habitat for Humanity. 

For 17 of the lots, homebuyer must earn between 
25%-50% of Median Family Income; for the 
remaining 14 lots homebuyer must earn below 
80% of Median Family Income (see attached 
chart.) Homebuyer must currently have a housing 
problem and must meet all of Austin Habitat for 
Humanity’s participation requirements. Note: 
eight homes have been completed with several 
lots currently under construction.   

Street Improvements 
Improvements to substandard 

roads. 

The neighborhood being served by the project 
must qualify as an eligible area, based on income 
levels of residents and must be located in the 
CDBG service area. 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  

Travis County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 
www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg 

  Revised January 2014 (Expanded Household Categories) 
 

 

 
 

Income Eligibility Limits 
 

 
To qualify to receive CDBG-funded services, the income of the household must not exceed the federal maximum income 
limits established by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The income limits for the Austin-
Round Rock Metropolitan Statistical Area (the area applicable for Travis County) are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year (FY) 2014  Median Family Income = $75,400 

ADJUSTED INCOME LIMITS (by Household size) 

 1 
Person 

2 
Persons 

3 
Persons 

4 
Persons 

5 
Persons 

6 
Persons 

7 
Persons 

8  
Persons 

9 
Persons 

10 
Persons 

11 
Persons 

12 
Persons 

Very Low 
Income 
(30 % 
Limits) 

$15,850 $18,100 $20,350 $22,600 $24,450 $26,250 $28,050 $29,850 $31,650 $33,450 $35,300 $37,100 

Low 
Income 
(50 % 
Limits) 

$26,400 $30,200 $33,950 $37,700 $40,750 $43,750 $46,750 $49,800 $52,800 $55,800 $58,850 $61,850 

Moderate 
Income 
(80 % 
Limits) 

$42,250 $48,250 $54,300 $60,300 $65,150 $69,950 $74,800 $79,600 $84,450 $89,250 $94,100 $98,900 

 
 

 
 

Effective December 18, 2013 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

 

 

 

Needs Assessment Survey (English) 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 1

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey

• Every year, Travis County receives approximately $909,925 in federal funds from a program called the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG). 
 
• The program must support housing, community development and public service projects and must benefit residents that 
live in the unincorporated areas of Travis County or the Village of Webberville.  
 
• In the first section of the survey, we would like you to have a voice in how these funds are spent for the next FIVE years 
(October 2014  September 2019) by filling out this survey and telling us where you see the greatest needs in your 
community. 
 
• In the second section of the survey, we would like you to have a voice in how these funds are spent for the NEXT 
program year (October 2014  September 2015) by filling out this survey and telling us where you see the greatest needs 
in your community and provide specific project ideas. 
 
• To learn more about CDBG, visit www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG 

1. Contact Information

2. Please check the category you represent

3. Would you like to receive emails or postal mail notifications about CDBG events?

 
1. Introduction & Contact Information

*
Name:

Company:

Address:

City/Town:

State: 6

ZIP/Postal Code:

Email Address:

Phone Number:

*

 

Resident
 

gfedc

Community Group
 

gfedc

ForProfit Business
 

gfedc

FaithBased Organization
 

gfedc

NonProfit Organization
 

gfedc

Travis County Department
 

gfedc

Email Notices
 

gfedc

Postal Mail Notices
 

gfedc

Not Interested
 

gfedc

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 2

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey

In this section, please think of the time period spannng from October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2019. Answer the 
questions with the unincorporated community needs in mind, and identify the categories that you think are important 
enough to be a priority for CDBG funds in the next five year period. 

The following six service categories are listed below: 1) Business & Jobs, 2) Community Services, 3) Housing, 4) 
Infrastructure Needs, 4) Public Buildings and Facilities, and 6) Populations with Specialized Needs/Services. Within each 
service category, tell us which one represents: 
 
 The Most Urgent Need (the most urgent area of investment needed in your community) 
 An Urgent Need (An urgent need but not necessarily the most urgent) 
 An Important Need (An important need but not as urgent).  
 
For categories with more than three needs listed, no more than three needs can be ranked. 

1. Business & Jobs

2. Section 1: Identifying Needs & Priorities for the Next Five Years

 
3. Ranking of Five Year Community Needs

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Commercial Exterior 
Repair

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Microenterprise Loans nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Small Business Loans nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 3

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey
2. Community Services

3. Housing

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Case Management & 
Outreach for Adults and 
Youth

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Homebuyer Assistance 
Counseling or Foreclosure 
Prevention Counseling

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Housing Discrimination 
Outreach, Education & 
Legal Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Interim Housing 
Assistance (3 month rental 
assistance  crisis related)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Job Training nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Literacy/Adult Basic 
Education and English 
Language Proficiency 
Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

g. Senior or Disabled 
Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

h. Transportation Services nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

i. Youth Supports or 
Programs

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Creation of New Rental 
Housing

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Creation of New Single 
Family Homes

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Homeownership 
Assistance (i.e. down 
payment assistance, etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Repair of Rental 
Housing

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Repair of Single Family 
Homes

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 4

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey
4. Infrastructure Needs

5. Public Buildings and Facilities

6. Populations with Specialized Needs/Services

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Drainage Improvements nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Other Infrastructure (e.g. 
sidewalks, curb and gutter, 
etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Slum/Blight Removal nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Street Improvements nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Water and Sewer 
Improvements

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Building Accessibility/ 
Architectural Barrier 
Removal

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Child Care Centers/Day 
Care Centers

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Health Clinics nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Homeless Facilities nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Neighborhood or 
Community Centers

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Parks nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

g. Recreational Facilities nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

a. Domestic Violence 
Supportive Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. HIV/AIDS Supportive 
Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Homeless Outreach and 
Supportive Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Mental Health 
Supportive Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Special Needs Housing 
(i.e. HIV, MHMR, substance 
Abuse, etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Substance Abuse 
Supportive Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 
4. Ranking of Five Year Priority Areas for Funding

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 5

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey
1. Using the numbers 16, please rank the following categories of services with 1 being the 
most important issue to address from October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2019, and 6 
being the least important.

In this section, please think of the time period spannng from October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015 (which 
corresponds to Program Year 2014). Answer the questions with the unincorporated community needs in mind, and 
identify the categories you think are important enough to be a priority for CDBG funds in the next year. 

1. For Program Year 2014, of the six listed funding areas, please rank the top three areas 
by letting us know which one represents: 
 
 The most urgent need (the most urgent area of investment in your community) 
 An urgent need (but not necessarily the most urgent) 
 An important need (but not as urgent) 
 
No more than three categories can be ranked. 
 

1 2 3 4 5 6

Business & Jobs nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Community Services nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Housing nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Infrastructure nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Public Building & Facilities nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Populations with 
Specialized Needs/Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 
5. 2014 Needs & Project Ideas

 
6. Identifying Needs for 2014

Most Urgent Need Urgent Need Important Need

Populations with 
Specialized 
Needs/Services

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Community Services nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Infrastructure nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Housing nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Public Buildings & 
Facilities

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Business & Jobs nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 6

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey

1. Please provide ideas for potential projects for Program Year 2014. Include the 
community need, the type of project and the location. 
 
For Example: 
Community Need: Poor roads 
Project Idea: Road Improvement Project 
Location: Hill Country Subdivision, 10041207 ABC Road, Austin, TX 78717 
 
Please note you may also provide a proposal for a specific project by filling out a Project 
Proposal Form available at the CDBG webpage at www.co.travis.tx.us/cdbg

 

2. For an additional comment or project idea, use the space below:

 

The next section is optional, but helpful to help the CDBG Office understand the extent to which housing discrimination 
may be occurring in the unincorporated areas. 

Housing discrimination based on your race, color, national origin, religion, sex, family status, or disability is illegal by 
federal law. Please answer the following questions about housing discrimination. Completion of this section is optional.  

1. Do you believe housing discrimination is an issue in your neighborhood?

2. Have you ever experienced discrimination in housing?

7. Identifying Projects for 2014

55

66

55

66

 
8. Optional Housing Discrimination Section

 
9. Housing Discrimination

Yes
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

Yes
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 7

Travis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs SurveyTravis County CDBG PY2014-19 Consolidated Plan Needs Survey
3. If so, who do you believe discriminated against you? Check all that apply.

4. On what basis do you believe you were discriminated against? Check all that apply.

5. If you believe you were discriminated against, did you report the incident?

6. If not, WHY? Check all that apply.

To find out more information about fair housing or how to report discriminating housing practices contact the CDBG program by calling 512854
3460 or visit http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/cdbg/fair_housing.asp 

Thank you for participating in this survey. Your assistance will help the County to plan for the future. If you have questions 
regarding this survey, please contact the Travis County CDBG Program at: (512) 8543460, email: cdbg@co.travis.tx.us 
or visit www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG 
 
If we mailed this survey to you, please return it to: CDBG Program, TCHHS/VS, P.O. Box 1748, Austin , TX 78767, 
postmarked no later than March 31, 2014. 

 
10. Thank You!

Landlord
 

gfedc

Mortgage Insurer
 

gfedc

Mortgage Lender
 

gfedc

Real State Agent
 

gfedc

Other
 

gfedc

Color
 

gfedc

Disability
 

gfedc

Family Status (single parent with children, family with children or expecting a child)
 

gfedc

Gender
 

gfedc

National Origin (country where you were born)
 

gfedc

Religion
 

gfedc

Race
 

gfedc

Yes
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

Don't know where to report
 

gfedc

Too much trouble
 

gfedc

Afraid of retaliation
 

gfedc

Don't believe it makes a difference
 

gfedc

Other
 

gfedc

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

 

 

 

Needs Assessment Survey (Spanish) 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 1

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19

§  Todos los años, el Condado de Travis recibe aproximadamente $909,925 en fondos federales que provienen de un 
programa llamado Subsidio Global para el Desarrollo Comunitario (CDBG).  
 
§  El programa debe ayudar a financiar proyectos de viviendas, desarrollo comunitario y servicios públicos y debe 
beneficiar a los residentes que viven en las áreas no incorporadas del Condado de Travis o en el Pueblo de Webberville.  
 
§  En la primera sección de esta encuesta, nos gustaría que usted exprese sus opiniones sobre cómo se deberían 
gastar estos fondos en los próximos cinco años del programa (octubre de 2014septiembre de 2019). Para esto, debe 
completar esta encuesta para indicar dónde cree que se encuentran las mayores necesidades en su comuni.  
 
§  En la segunda sección de la encuesta, nos gustaría que usted exprese sus opiniones sobre cómo se deberían gastar 
estos fondos durante el próximo año programático (octubre de 2014septiembre de 2015). Para esto, debe completar 
esta encuesta para indicar dónde cree que se encuentran las mayores necesidades en su comunidad y proveer ideas de 
proyectos específicos.  
 
Para obtener más información sobre el programa CDBG, visite www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG 

1. Información de contacto

2. Por favor, marque la categoría que representa

 
1. Introducción e información de contacto

*
Nombre: 

Empresa:

Domicilio:

Ciudad/pueblo: 

Estado: 6

Código Postal:

Dirección de correo 
electrónico:

Número de teléfono: 

*
Residente

 
gfedc

Grupo comunitario
 

gfedc

Empresa con fines de lucro
 

gfedc

Organización religiosa
 

gfedc

Organización sin fines de lucro
 

gfedc

Departamento del Condado de Travis
 

gfedc

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 2

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19
3. ¿Le gustaría recibir notificaciones sobre los eventos del programa CDBG por correo 
electrónico o por correo postal?

En esta sección, favor de pensar sobre el período desde el 1 de octubre de 2014 hasta el 30 de septiembre de 2019. 
Pensando en las necesidades de las comunidades en las áreas no incorporadas del Condado de Travis, conteste las 
siguientes preguntas e idenfique las categorías que usted piensa tienen suficiente importancia para ser una prioridad 
para los fondos de CDBG durante el período de los próximos cinco años. 

Las siguientes seis categorías están enumeradas: 1) Empresas y empleos, 2) Servicios comunitarios, 3) Vivienda, 4) 
Necesidades de infraestructura, 5) Edificios e instalaciones públicas, y 6) Necesidades especiales.  
 
Dentro de cada una de las categorías de servicio, díganos cuál representa: 
 
• La necesidad más urgente (el área de su comunidad que necesita inversión con más urgencia) 
• Una necesidad urgente (una necesidad urgente pero no necesariamente la más urgente) 
• Una necesidad importante (una necesidad importante pero no tan urgente) 
 
Dentro de cada categoría que tiene más de tres necesidades, sólo se pueden clasificar tres necesidades.  

1. Empresas y empleos

 
2. Seccion 1: Identificando necesidades y prioridades durante 20142019

 
3. Clasificación de las necesidades de la comunidad durante 20142019

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Reparación de fachadas 
comerciales

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Préstamos para micro
emprendimientos

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Préstamos para 
pequeñas empresas

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Notificaciones por correo electrónico
 

gfedc

Notificaciones por correo postal
 

gfedc

No estoy interesado
 

gfedc

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 3

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19
2. Servicios comunitarios

3. Vivienda

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Administración de casos 
y ayuda para adultos y 
jóvenes

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Asesoramiento y ayuda 
para compradores de casas 
o asesoramiento para la 
prevención de ejecución 
de hipoteca

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Ayuda para casos de 
discriminación de vivienda, 
educación y servicios 
legales

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Ayuda provisoria para 
vivienda (3 meses de 
ayuda con la renta en 
caso de crisis)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Capacitación laboral nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Servicios de 
alfabetización / educación 
básica para adultos y 
capacitación en idioma 
inglés

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

g. Servicios para ancianos 
o descapacitados

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

h. Servicios de transporte nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

i. Programas o servicios de 
apoyo para jóvenes

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Creación de nuevas 
viviendas para alquiler

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Creación de nuevas 
casas unifamiliares

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Ayuda para la compra 
de vivienda (p.ej. ayuda 
con el pago inicial, etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Reparación de viviendas 
para alquiler

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Reparación de casas 
unifamiliares

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 4

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19
4. Necesidades de infraestructura 

5. Edificios e instalaciones públicas 

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Mejoras en el drenaje nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Otra infraestructura (p.ej. 
veredas, cordones y 
alcantarillas, etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Remoción de 
vecindarios 
pobres/arruinados

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Mejoras de las calles nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Mejoras en el servicio de 
agua y cloacas

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Remoción de barreras 
arquitectónicas / acceso a 
edificios

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Centro de cuidado 
infantil / Centros de 
cuidado durante el día

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Clínicas de salud nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Instalaciones para 
personas sin hogar

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Centros comunitarios o 
de vecindarios

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Parques nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

g. Instalaciones recreativas nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 5

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19
6. Necesidades especiales  

1. Por favor, usando los números del 1 al 6 clasifique las siguientes categorías de 
servicios: use el 1 para los asuntos más importantes y el 6 los menos importantes que se 
deberían abordar desde el 1 de octubre de 2014 hasta el 30 de septiembre de 2019. 

Es esta sección, piense acerca del período desde el 1 de octubre de 2014 al 30 de septiembre de 2015 (el Año 
Programático 2014). Conteste las preguntas acerca de las necesidades de las comunidades en las áreas no 
incorporadas del Condado, e idenfique las categorías que usted piensa deben tener prioridad para los fondos del 
Programa CDBG durante el próximo año programático.  

*
Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

a. Servicios de apoyo para 
casos de violencia 
doméstica

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

b. Servicios de apoyo para 
enfermos de VIH/SIDA

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

c. Servicios de apoyo y de 
alcance para personas sin 
hogar

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

d. Servicios de apoyo para 
salud mental

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

e. Viviendas para personas 
con necesidades 
especiales (p.ej. VIH, salud 
mental  MHMR, abuso de 
sustancias, etc.)

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

f. Servicios de apoyo para 
personas que abusan de 
sustancias

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 
4. Clasificación de áreas para fondos durante 201419

*

1 2 3 4 5 6

Empresas y empleos nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Servicios comunitarios nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Vivienda nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Infraestructura nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Edificios e instalaciones 
públicas

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Población con necesidades 
especiales

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 
5. Necesidades e ideas para proyectos para el Año Programático 2014

 
6. Identificación de necesidades para el Año Programático 2014

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 6

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19

1. De las seis áreas o categorías disponibles, favor de clasificarlas dejándonos saber cuál 
representa: 
 
 La necesidad más urgente (El área de inversión más urgente en su comunidad.) 
 Una necesidad urgente (pero no necesariamente la más urgente) 
 Una necesidad importante (pero no urgente) 
 
Sólo se pueden clasificar o escoger tres de las seis áreas/categorías.

1. Favor de proveer ideas para proyectos posibles para el Año Programático 2014. Incluya 
la necesidad comunitaria, el tipo de proyecto, y la localización. 
 
Por ejemplo: 
Necesidad comunitaria: Carreteras en mal estado 
Idea de proyecto: Proyecto para mejorar las carreteras 
Localización: Hill Country Subdivision, 10041207 ABC Road, Austin, TX 78717 
 
Si usted tiene una idea para un proyecto específico, puede someterlo a través de un 
Formulario De Proyecto Propuesto disponsible en el sitio del web de CDBG: 
www.co.travis.tx.us/cdbg. 

 

2. Use este espacio para comentarios o ideas de proyectos adicionales.

 

Necesidad más urgente Necesidad urgente Necesidad importante

Población con 
necesidaded especiales

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Servicios de comunidad nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Infraestructura nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Viviendas nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Edificios y instalaciones 
públicas

nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

Negocios y empleos nmlkj nmlkj nmlkj

 
7. Identificación de proyectos para el Año Programático 2014

55

66

55

66

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 7

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19

Esta sección es opcional, pero ayuda a la oficina del programa de CDBG a entender cuán extensivo es la discriminación 
de vivienda en las áreas no incorporadas del Condado de Travis. 

Las leyes federales prohiben la discriminación en materia de vivienda basada en su raza, color, nacionalidad, religión, 
sexo, estado civil, o descapacidad. Por favor, responda las siguientes preguntas sobre la discriminación en materia de 
vivienda. Esta sección es opcional. 

1. ¿Usted cree que la discriminación en materia de vivienda es un problema en su 
vecindario ?

2. ¿Alguna vez ha sido víctima de discriminación en la vivienda?

3. De ser así, ¿quién cree usted que lo discriminó? Marque todos los cuadros que 
correspondan. 

8. Sección opcional acerca de discriminación de vivienda

 
9. Discriminación de vivienda

*

*

Sí
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

Sí
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

Dueño
 

gfedc

Asegurador hipotecario
 

gfedc

Proveedor del crédito hipotecario
 

gfedc

Agente de bienes raíces
 

gfedc

Otro
 

gfedc

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Page 8

Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19Encuesta del Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis 2014-19
4. ¿Por qué cree usted que fue discriminado? Marque todos los cuadros que 

correspondan. 

5. Si usted cree que fue discriminado, ¿denunció el incidente?

6. Si no, ¿por qué no lo hizo? Marque todos los cuadros que correspondan. 

Para obtener más información sobre vivienda justa o sobre cómo denunciar casos de discriminación en la vivienda, póngase en contacto con el 
programa CDBG llamando al 5128543460 o visite el sitio http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/cdbg/fair_housing.asp 
 

Gracias por participar en esta encuesta. Su asistencia ayudará al Condado en planificar para el futuro. Si tiene alguna 
pregunta en cuanto a esta encuesta, por favor póngase en contacto con el Programa CDBG del Condado de Travis por 
teléfono al (512) 8543460, por correo electrónico: cdbg@co.travis.tx.us, o visite el sitio web: www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG. 
 
Si le enviamos esta encuesta por correo, favor de devolverla a: CDBG Program, TCHHS/VS, P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX 
78767, con marca postal a no mós tarde del 31 de marzo de 2014. 

*

 
10. ¡Gracias!

Color
 

gfedc

Discapacidad
 

gfedc

Situación familiar (padre o madre solo con hijos, familia con hijos o esperando un hijo)
 

gfedc

Sexo
 

gfedc

Nacionalidad de origen (país de nacimiento)
 

gfedc

Religión
 

gfedc

Raza
 

gfedc

Sí
 

nmlkj

No
 

nmlkj

No sabe dónde deben realizarse las denuncias
 

gfedc

Es demasiado problema
 

gfedc

Teme ser víctima de represalias
 

gfedc

No cree que sirva de nada
 

gfedc

Otro
 

gfedc

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ADS 

(in English & Spanish): 

Forum to help identify community needs  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 
P.O. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767 

(512) 854-4100  Fax (512) 854-4115 

 

Help Identify Community Needs in Travis County 
During Public Meetings in February & March 2014 

 

Travis County invites the public to participate in community forums where residents will have an opportunity to 

present community needs and recommend projects for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds for 

usage in the unincorporated areas of Travis County. The information collected in the forums will guide the 

selection of CDBG projects for the Program Year 2014 (October 2014-September 2015) and help determine the 

priorities for the funding of the next five program years (October 2014 – September 2018). 

 

The CDBG program is funded by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to 

benefit Travis County low- to moderate-income residents who live in the Village of Webberville or outside any 

other city limit. The program supports community development activities aimed at revitalizing neighborhoods, 

improving affordable housing options, and providing improved community facilities and services. For the 

current program year, Travis County anticipates to receive an estimated $909,925. 

 

The forums will be held according to the following schedule: 
 

Tuesday, 

February 18, 2014 

at 9:00 am, and 

Tuesday,  

March 11, 2014 at 

9:00 am 

Wednesday, 

February 19, 2014 

at 6:30 pm 

Thursday, 

February 20, 2014 

at 6:30 pm 

Wednesday, 

March 5, 2014 

at 6:30 pm 

Thursday, 

March 6, 2014 

at 6:30 pm 

 

Travis County 

Commissioners 

Court 

700 Lavaca St. 

Austin, TX 78701 

 

Travis County 

Community Center 

at Manor 

600 W. Carrie Manor St. 

Manor, TX 78653 

 

 

Westside Meeting 

Hall 

(Austin) 

4501 FM 620 

Austin, TX 78732 

 

 

Travis County 

Community Center  

at Oak Hill 

8656-A Hwy 71W,  

Ste. 1000 

Austin, TX 78735 

 

Travis County 

Community Center 

at Del Valle 

3518 FM 973 

Del Valle, TX 78617 

 

 

Beginning February 18, 2014, if you cannot attend any of the forums, you can participate by filling out a 

Participation Form found at the Travis County Website at www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/, at one of the seven Travis 

County Community Centers or by requesting that it be mailed to you by calling 512-854-3460. 

 

For additional information, contact the CDBG office at cdbg@co.travis.tx.us or call 512-854-3460. To request 

that an American Sign Language or Spanish interpreter be present at any of the public hearings, please contact 

CDBG staff at least five business days in advance. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 
P.O. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767 

(512) 854-4100  Fax (512) 854-4115 

 

Solicitamos Su Ayuda Identificando  
Necesidades Comunitarias 

Durante Foros Públicos En Febrero Y Marzo de 2014 
 

El Condado de Travis invita al público a participar en foros comunitarios donde residentes tendrán la 

oportunidad de identificar necesidades comunitarias y de recomendar proyectos para el uso de los fondos del 

Programa de Subsidios Globales de Desarrollo Comunitario (CDBG) que se enfoca en las áreas no incorporadas 

del condado de Travis. La información recaudada en los foros guiará la selección de proyectos CDBG para el 

Año Programático 2014 (desde octubre de 2014 a septiembre de 2015) y ayudará determinar las prioridades de 

financiamiento para los próximos cinco años programáticos (desde octubre de 2014 a septiembre de 2018). 
 

El  Programa  de  CDBG  recibe  fondos  del  Departamento  de Vivienda y Desarrollo Urbano de los EE.UU. 

para beneficiar a residentes de bajo y medianos ingresos que viven en el Pueblo de Webberville o en las otras 

áreas no incorporadas del condado de Travis. El programa apoya actividades de desarrollo comunitarias que 

tienen como propósito revitalizar comunidades, mejorar opciones de viviendas, y proporcionar servicios e 

instalaciones comunitarias mejoradas. Para el Año Programático 2013, el Condado de Travis anticipa recibir un 

estimado de $909,925 en fondos CDBG. 
 

Los foros públicos se llevarán a cabo de acuerdo al siguiente horario: 
Martes, 

18 de febrero de 2014 

a las 9:00 am y 

martes, 11 de marzo 

de 2014 a las 9:00 am 

Miércoles, 

19 de febrero 

de 2014 

a las 6:30 pm 

Jueves, 

20 de febrero 

de 2014 

a las 6:30 pm 

Miércoles, 

5 de marzo 

de 2014 

a las 6:30 pm 

Jueves, 

6 de marzo 

de 2014 

a las 6:30 pm 

Travis County 

Commissioners 

Court 

700 Lavaca St. 

Austin, TX 78701 

Travis County 

Community Center 

at Manor 

600 W. Carrie Manor St. 

Manor, TX 78653 

Westside Meeting 

Hall 

(Austin) 

4501 FM 620 

Austin, TX 78732 

Travis County 

Community Center 

at Oak Hill 

8656-A Hwy 71W, 

Ste. 1000 

Austin, TX 78735 

Travis County 

Community Center 

at Del Valle 

3518 FM 973 

Del Valle, TX 78617 

 
 

Comenzando el 18 de febrero de 2014, si no puede asistir a los foros, usted puede participar llenando una 

Planilla de Participación ubicada en la página web www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/ o en uno de los siete Centros 

Comunitarios del Condado de Travis, o puede solicitar que se le envíe una planilla por correo llamando al 512-

854-3460. 
 

Para más información, comuníquese con la oficina de CDBG a través del correo electrónico al 

cdbg@co.travis.tx.us o llamando al 512-854-3460. Para solicitar que haya un intérprete en español o de 

lenguaje americano de señas en alguna de estas reuniones, por favor contacte al personal de CDBG por lo 

menos con cinco días hábiles de anterioridad. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG/
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


 

 

 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ADS 

(in English & Spanish): 

Invitation to comment on PY14-18 Consolidated 

Plan and PY14 Action Plan 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



          TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)  

 

Travis County is eligible to receive an estimated $997,649 in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to benefit Travis County low- 
to moderate-income residents who live in the unincorporated areas of the county or the Village of Webberville. 
The funds are for the program year 2014, which goes from October 1, 2014 to September 30, 2015. 
 
CDBG activities are aimed at revitalizing neighborhoods, improving affordable housing options, and 
providing improved community facilities and services. The County prepares a Consolidated Plans that includes 
data on community needs and strategic goals for the program.  The next Consolidated Plan will span 5 years, taking 
effect on October 1, 2014 and ending September 30, 2018. The Consolidated Plan includes an Action Plan for the next 
program year (PY14) that outlines the projects and goals for the program year. You can comment on the draft 
document by attending one of two public hearings or by sending your comments in writing via postal mail or 
e-mail. 
 

COMMENT PERIOD AND DRAFT DOCUMENT 

 

 

3518 FM 973, 
Del Valle 

 

15822 Foothills 
Farm Loop, 

Bldg. D, 
Pflugerville 

 

8656 
Hwy 71W, 
Bldg. A, 
Oak Hill 

 

18649 FM 1431, 
Jonestown 

 

600 W. Carrie 
Manor St., 

Manor 

 

100 N. IH-35, 
Suite 1000, 

Austin 

 
 

2201 Post Rd.,  
Suite 101, 

Austin 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

MAILING YOUR COMMENTS 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


          TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)  

 

 

PERÍODO DE COMENTARIO Y DOCUMENTO PRELIMINAR 

 

 

3518 FM 973, 
Del Valle 

 

15822 Foothills 
Farm Loop, 

Bldg. D, 
Pflugerville 

 

8656 
Hwy 71W, 
Bldg. A, 
Oak Hill 

 

18649 FM 1431, 
Jonestown 

 

600 W. Carrie 
Manor St., 

Manor 

 

100 N. IH-35, 
Suite 1000, 

Austin 

 

2201 Post Rd.,  
Suite 101, 

Austin 

AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA 

ENVÍO DE COMENTARIOS 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto::%20cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto::%20cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto::%20cdbg@co.travis.tx.us
mailto::%20cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


Maps

CDBG Service Area
Race/Ethnic Concentrations & LMI

Percent of African American Residents by Census Block Group
Percent of Asian Residents by Census Block Group

Percent of Hispanic Residents by Census Block Group
Percent of White Residents by Census Block Group

Affordable Housing Units
Regional Composite Opportunity Map

CDBG PY14 Projects & Alternate Projects

APPENDIX B
Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



VILLAGE OF WEBBERVILLE

IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Village of Webberville
Major county roads
Water Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014

Source: U.S. 2010 Census Data

CDBG Service Area:
Unincorporated Areas of Travis County, TX

and the Village of Webberville

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

Racial/Ethnic Concentrations (Census 2010)
where 10% or greater above County averages

Low-to-Moderate Income Percentages (Census 2000) 
by Census Block Groups

Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 SF-1 for Race and Ethnicity data, and

Low/Moderate Income Summary Data (LMISD) provided by U.S. HUD (based on the 2006-2010 American Community Survey data).

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate Income
0.00 - 49.35%
49.36 - 100.00%

Racial/Ethnic Concentration 10% or more above County average
African American
African American and Hispanic
Asian
Hispanic
White

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Percentage of African American Residents by Block Groups
0.00 - 5.70%
5.71 - 14.20%
14.21 - 30.10%
30.11 - 63.20%

Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 SF-1 for Race and Ethnicity data, and

Low/Moderate Income Summary Data (LMISD) provided by U.S. HUD (based on the 2006-2010 American Community Survey data).

Percent of African American Residents (Census 2010) by Census Block Group
Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate Income
0.00 - 49.35%
49.36 - 100.00%

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Percentage of Asian Residents by Block Groups
0.00 - 3.80%
3.81 - 9.30%
9.31 - 18.30%
18.31 - 49.50%

Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 SF-1 for Race and Ethnicity data, and

Low/Moderate Income Summary Data (LMISD) provided by U.S. HUD (based on the 2006-2010 American Community Survey data).

Percent of Asian Residents (Census 2010) by Census Block Group
Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate Income
0.00 - 49.35%
49.36 - 100.00%

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Percentage of Hispanic Residents by Block Groups
1.56 - 20.64%
20.65 - 40.18%
40.19 - 61.91%
61.92 - 90.52%

Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 SF-1 for Race and Ethnicity data, and

Low/Moderate Income Summary Data (LMISD) provided by U.S. HUD (based on the 2006-2010 American Community Survey data).

Percent of Hispanic Residents (Census 2010) by Census Block Group
Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate Income
0.00 - 49.35%
49.36 - 100.00%

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183
SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

±0 5 102.5
Miles

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Percentage of White Residents by Block Groups
22.90 - 46.60%
46.61 - 64.00%
64.01 - 80.90%
80.91 - 99.00%

Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 SF-1 for Race and Ethnicity data, and

Low/Moderate Income Summary Data (LMISD) provided by U.S. HUD (based on the 2006-2010 American Community Survey data).

Percent of White Residents (Census 2010) by Census Block Group
Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate Income
0.00 - 49.35%
49.36 - 100.00%

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



IH 
35

SH 130

US 183

SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C
US 290

SH 71

Placement of addresses is approximate.
Source of property addresses: TDHCA HTC Property Inventory, current as of April 10, 2014.
Source of GIS data: Zip code data from City of Austin GIS data set.
Map created by: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014

Affordable Housing Units within 
the Unincorporated areas of Travis County

 8405 Bee Cave Rd, Austin, TX 78746
 10910 RM-620, Austin, TX 78726
 14745 Merrilltown Dr, Austin, TX 78728
 9371 US-290 E, Austin, TX 78724
 8000 Decker Ln, Austin, TX 78724
 5412 Gilbert Rd, Austin, TX, 78724








Travis County

¯ 0 10 205
Miles

Unincorporated Travis County  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



IH
 35 SH 130

US 183

SH 71

US 290

MO-PA
C

FM 620

LO
OP

 36
0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

MO
PA

C

US 290

SH 45

SH 71

Regional Composite Opportunity Index
Very Low
Low
Moderate
High
Very High

Regional Composite Opportunity Map
Unincorporated Areas, Travis County, TX

0 5 102.5
Miles

Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014
Source of GIS data: Regional Composite Opportunity Index data from Kirwan Institute

for the Study of Race and Ethnicity, The Ohio State University, 2012

±

Incorporated Areas of Travis County
Water

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



IH
 3

5

SH
 130

U
S 183

SH 71

US 290

M
O-P

AC

FM 620

LO
O

P 
36

0

SH 45 s

BEN WHITE

SH 45

M
O

PA
C

US 290
SH 71

Created By: E. Rivera, Travis County HHS/VS, CDBG Office, 2014.  
Source: New Low/Moderate Income Summary Data (LMISD) provided by U.S. HUD (based on the 2006-2010 American Community Survey data).

Percent of Residents at Low-to-Moderate 
(LMI) Income

0.00-49.35%

49.36 - 100.00%

±0 6.5 133.25
Miles

Incorporated Areas, Travis County

Village of Webberville

Major county roads
Water

CDBG PY14 Proposed and Alternate Projects
Serving the Unincorporated Areas in Travis County

and the Village of Webberville

Note: Project locations are approximate.

*Final location to be determined by August 5, 2014.
**Location not mapped since not applicable or located throughout the 
CDBG service area.

P#1a: Land Acquisition for New Rental Housing - Option A
P#1b: Land Acquisition for New Rental Housing - Option B
P#2: Forest Bluff Street Improvements
P#3: Home Rehabilitation**
P#4: Social Work Services**
P#5: Tenants’ Rights & Fair Housing Counseling**
P#6: Administration & Planning**

AP#1: Home Rehabilitation**
AP#2: Sustainability Onsite at Las Lomitas
AP#3&4: Forest Bluff Phases 2&3
AP#5-12: Street Improvements - Various roads
AP#13&14: Street Improvements - Ross Rd
AP#15: Street Improvements - Shadowglen Trace

PROJECTS

ALTERNATE PROJECTS

P#1a P#1b
AP#2

AP#3-12

AP#13
AP#14

AP#15

P#2 and

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Appendix C:
Housing Inventory

Tax Credit Properties in Travis County 
 Travis County Housing Finance Corporation Properties 

Housing Authority of Travis County Properties
Emergency Shelter Beds, Austin/Travis County

Transitional Housing Beds, Austin/Travis County
Permanent Supportive Housing, Austin/Travis County

HUD Subsidized Multifamily Housing Units
Licensed Senior Housing in Travis County (Nursing Homes)
Licensed Senior Housing in Travis County (Assisted Living)

APPENDIX C
Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
 

 

HOUSING INVENTORY  
 

 

TAX CREDIT PROPERTIES IN TRAVIS COUNTY 

Program 
Type 

Year Development Name 
Zip 

Code 
Total 
Units 

LIHTC 
Units 

Population 
Served 

Disabled 
Units 

9%HTC 1990 Quail Park Village AKA French Embassy 78758 142 142 General 0 

9%HTC 1991 Scattered Coop Infill Housing 78702 26 26 General 0 

9%HTC 1992 Lindy's Landing          . 78704 52 52 General 8 

9%HTC 1994 Gateway Apartments 78752 10 10 General 0 

9%HTC 1994 Arrowhead Park Apartments 78753 290 290 General 4 

9%HTC 1994 Springhollow Apartments 78723 99 99 General 3 

9%HTC 1994 Paradise Oaks Apartments 78741 248 248 General 0 

9%HTC 1994 Country Club Creek 78741 212 212 General 11 

9%HTC 1995 Windcrest On Yager Lane 78753 160 160 General 18 

9%HTC 1995 Windcrest Parkside Apartments 78753 228 228 General 34 

9%HTC 1996 Gardens Of Decker Lake 78724 200 150 General 24 

9%HTC 1996 Timbers 78723 104 78 General 17 

9%HTC 1996 Rollins Martin 78721 16 15 General 3 

9%HTC 1997 Douglas Landings 78741 96 96 General 16 

9%HTC 1998 The Lodge at Merriltown 78728 204 204 Elderly 33 

9%HTC 1998 Trails at the Park 78748 200 148 General 12 

9%HTC 1998 St. John's Village 78752 156 117 General 25 

4%HTC 1999 Village at Collinwood 78753 174 174 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 1999 Spring Valley Townhomes 78744 230 173 General 23 

4% HTC 1999 Mountain Ranch Apartments 78741 196 196 General 30 

9% HTC 2000 
Heatherwilde Park Retirement 
Apartments 

78660 168 128 Elderly 17 

9% HTC 2000 Villas of Cordoba 78744 156 93 General 16 

4% HTC 2000 Fairway Village 78741 128 127 General 0 

4% HTC 2000 South Congress Apartments 78704 172 170 General 0 

4% HTC 2000 Springdale Apartments 78723 98 97 General 1 

4% HTC 2000 Santa Maria Village Apartments 78753 176 175 General 1 

4% HTC 2000 Southwest Trails 78735 160 160 General 12 

4% HTC 2000 Fort Branch Landing Apartments 78721 250 248 General 0 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Program 
Type 

Year Development Name 
Zip 

Code 
Total 
Units 

LIHTC 
Units 

Population 
Served 

Disabled 
Units 

4% HTC 2001 Primrose of Shadow Creek 78723 176 174 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 2001 Springdale Estates 78721 43 25 General 3 

4% HTC 2001 Blunn Creek Apartments 78704 280 280 General 28 

4% HTC 2001 Riverside Meadows 78741 248 248 General 25 

4% HTC 2001 Circle S Apartments 78745 200 200 General 0 

4% HTC 2001 Westchester Woods 78660 250 250 General 13 

9% HTC 2002 Rosemont at Williamson Creek 78744 163 130 General 12 

4% HTC 2002 Pleasant Valley Courtyards 78741 280 280 General 0 

4% HTC 2002 Eagle's Landing Apartments 78724 240 240 General 0 

4% HTC 2002 Town Vista Apartments 78741 280 280 General 0 

4% HTC 2002 Woodway Village Apartments 78744 160 160 General 16 

4% HTC 2002 Woodway Square Apartments 78744 240 240 General 0 

4% HTC 2002 Rosemont at Heather Bend 78660 256 256 General 13 

9% HTC 2003 Heritage Pointe 78721 240 192 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 2003 Grove Place Apartments 78741 184 146 General 18 

4% HTC 2003 
Park at Summer Grove FKA Century 
Park 

78727 240 240 General 0 

9% HTC 2004 King Fisher Creek 78744 35 35 General 4 

9% HTC 2004 Villas on Sixth Street 78702 160 136 General 12 

9% HTC 2004 Pleasant Hill Apartments 78741 100 100 General 0 

4% HTC 2004 Rosemont at Old Manor 78724 250 250 General 18 

9% HTC 2005 Parker Lane Seniors Apartments 78741 70 68 Elderly 5 

9% HTC 2005 Cambridge Villas 78660 208 200 Elderly 15 

4% HTC 2005 Harris Branch Apartments 78754 248 248 General 0 

9% HTC 2006 Picadilly Estates 78660 168 168 Elderly 12 

9% HTC 2006 La Vista de Guadalupe 78702 22 22 General 0 

9% HTC 2006 Skyline Terrace 78704 100 100 General 18 

4% HTC 2006 Southpark Apartments 78748 192 192 General 0 

4% HTC 2007 Park Place at Loyola 78723 252 252 General 25 

4% HTC 2007 Santora  Villas 78741 192 192 General 19 

4% HTC 2007 Runnymede Apartments 78758 252 252 General 13 

4% HTC 2007 The Residences at Onion Creek 78744 224 224 General 16 

9% HTC 2008 Parker Lane Seniors Apartments 78741 0 0 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 2008 Cambridge Villas 78660 0 0 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 2009 Malibu Apts 78753 476 428 General 0 

9% HTC 2009 M Station 78702 150 135 General 11 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Program 
Type 

Year Development Name 
Zip 

Code 
Total 
Units 

LIHTC 
Units 

Population 
Served 

Disabled 
Units 

9% HTC 2010 Wildflower Terrace 78723 200 170 Elderly 0 

9% HTC 2010 Shady Oaks 78745 238 238 General 17 

4% HTC 2010 Elm Ridge Apartments 78702 130 130 General 0 

9% HTC 2012 Capital Studios 78701 135 135 
Supportive 

Housing 
0 

4% HTC 2013 Paddock at Norwood 78753 228 228 General 0 

4% HTC 2013 Forest Park Apartments 78753 0 0 General 0 

4% HTC 2013 Silver Springs Apartments 78753 0 0 General 0 

4% HTC 2013 Parmer Place Apartments 78753 252 252 General 0 

9% HTC 2013 Windy Ridge Apartments 78726 120 120 General 0 

9% HTC 2013 Oak Creek Village 78704 173 173 General 0 

9% HTC 2013 Homestead Apartments 78748 140 126 General 7 

4% HTC 2013 William Cannon Apartments 78744 252 252 General 0 

4% HTC 2014 Villages of Ben White 78741 183 183 Elderly 0 

4% HTC 2014 The Point at Ben White 78741 250 250 General 0 

Current as of April 10, 2014 
 

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation Financed Properties 
with Affordable Units 

Development Name Address City 

Argosy at Crestview 1003 Justin Lane Austin 

Circle S Apartments 7201 S. Congress Drive Austin 

Village of Collinwood (Senior) 1001 Collinwood W. Drive Austin 

Eagles Landing 8000 Decker Lane Austin 

Fort Branch (at Truman’s) Landing 5800 Techni Center Drive Austin 

Rosemont at Heather Bend 16701 Heatherwilde Blvd. Pflugerville 

Metropolis Apartments 2200 S. Pleasant Valley Road Austin 

Park at Wells Branch 1915 Wells Branch Parkway Austin 

Rosemont at Hidden Creek 9371 US Highway 290 East Austin 

Towne Vista 2201 Montopolis Drive Austin 

Travis Station 6600 Ed Bluestein Boulevard Austin 

Westchester Woods 19600 N. Heatherwilde Blvd. Pflugerville 

Woodway Square 1700 Teri Road Austin 

Current as of February 19, 2014 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Housing Authority of Travis County Properties 
Development Name Number of Units 

Alexander Oaks 51 

Eastern Oaks 30 

Summit Oaks 24 

Carson Creek 8 

Manor Town 33 

Cambridge Villas 16 

Cityview at the Park Senior Apartments 70 

Southpark Apartments 192 

Current as of June 9, 2014 
 

Emergency Shelter Beds, Austin/Travis County 

Organization 
Name 

Program Name 

Beds 
Households 

with 
Children 

Beds 
Households 

without 
Children 

Beds 
Households 

only 
Children 

Year-
Round 
Beds 

Overflow 
Beds 

Total 
Beds 

A New Entry 
(HCHV/RT) 
Veterans Program 

0 12 0 12 0 12 

Casa 
Marianella 

Adult Shelter 0 28 0 28 9 37 

Casa 
Marianella 

Posada Esperanza 33 
 

0 33 0 33 

Foundation 
for the 
Homeless 

Interfaith 
Hospitality 
(Passages) 

28 0 0 28 0 28 

Front Steps 
Emergency Night 
Shelter 

0 100 0 100 115 215 

Front Steps Recuperative Care 0 4 0 4 0 4 

Life Works Youth Shelter 0 0 20 20 0 20 

McCabe 
Center 

(HCHV/RT) 
Medical Housing 
for Homeless Vet 

0 14 0 14 0 14 

Safe Place 
Family/ Women's 
Shelter 

96 10 0 106 0 106 

Salvation 
Army 

Austin Women's 
and Children 
Shelter 

54 6 0 60 0 60 

Salvation 
Army 

Salvation Army 
Downtown Shelter 

69 190 0 259 40 299 

Total 280 364 20 664 164 828 

Current as of January 2014 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Transitional Housing Beds, Austin/Travis County 

Organization 
Name 

Program Name 

Beds 
Households 

with 
Children 

Beds 
Households 

without 
Children 

Beds 
Households 

only 
Children 

Total 
Beds 

Blackland CDC Blackland Transitional 29 0 0 29 

Frontsteps Transitional Housing 0 5 0 5 

Green Doors (GPD) Veteran Housing Program 0 32 0 32 

LifeWorks SHP HUD 16 5 0 21 

LifeWorks SHP NON-HUD 11 0 0 11 

LifeWorks Transitional Living 0 0 16 16 

LifeWorks Young Moms and Babies 12 0 0 12 

Safe Place Supportive Housing 120 8 0 128 

Salvation Army Passages Rapid ReHousing Initiative 94 0 0 94 

Salvation Army Passages TBRA 122 8 0 130 

Total 404 58 16 478 

Current as of January 2014 
  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Permanent Supportive Housing, Austin/Travis County 

Organization Name Program Name 

Beds 
Households 

with 
Children 

Beds 
Households 

without 
Children 

Chronically 
Homeless 

Beds 

Year-
Round 
Beds 

ATCMHMR-Housing Authority 
City of Austin 

Shelter Plus Care Project #1 16 40 3 56 

ATCMHMR-Housing Authority 
City of Austin 

Shelter Plus Care Project #2 0 27 15 27 

ATCMHMR-Housing Authority 
of Travis County 

Shelter Plus Care SP1 22 84 3 106 

ATCMHMR-Housing Authority 
of Travis County 

Shelter Plus Care SP2 0 29 28 29 

Caritas of Austin Marshall Apartments 50 0 0 50 

Caritas of Austin My Home 0 32 0 32 

Caritas of Austin My Home Too 0 21 21 21 

Caritas of Austin Partnership Housing 0 20 20 20 

Caritas of Austin Spring Terrace 0 20 20 20 

Caritas of Austin Terraza PSH 0 27 25 27 

Caritas of Austin Terraza PSH 0 13 0 13 

Foundation Communities 
Children's HOME Initiative 
S+C 

30 0 0 30 

Foundation Communities Garden Terrace Mod Rehab 0 50 0 50 

Front Steps City of Austin PSH 0 18 0 18 

Front Steps First Steps 0 10 8 10 

Front Steps Homefront 0 6 6 6 

Front Steps Samaritan 0 20 20 20 

Green Doors Glen Oaks Corner 16 0 0 16 

Housing Authority City of 
Austin 

(VASH) Austin Veteran PSH 217 228 200 445 

Vin Care Services Saint Louise House 102 0 0 102 

Total 453 645 369 1098 

Current as of January 2014 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

HUD Subsidized Multifamily Housing Units 

Property Address Type 

Number of bedrooms 

1 2 3 4 5+ 

BENJAMIN TODD 
APTS. 

1507 West 39 1/2 St Austin, TX 78756-3800    x x      

CHARLES PLACE 
APTS 

1339 Lamar Square Dr  Austin, TX 78704-2209    x        

COBBLESTONE 2101 Davis Ln  Austin, TX 78745-7600  Elderly  x        

EAST 12TH STREET 
APARTMENTS 

3005 E 12th St  Austin, TX 78702-2590  Disabled x        

EASTER SEALS 
CENTRAL TEXAS 

3204 Manchaca Road  Austin, TX 78704     x x      

EBERTHART PLACE 808 Eberhart Ln  Austin, TX 78745-2993  Elderly x        

ELM RIDGE 
APARTMENTS 

1161 Harvey Ln  Austin, TX 78702-2516  Family x x x    

ESCT AUSTIN 
HOUSING 

1201 Grove Blvd Apt. 
504  

Austin, TX 78741-3474    x x      

ESCT AUSTIN 
HOUSING II 

7685 Northcross Dr Austin, TX 78757-1727    x        

ESCT AUSTIN 
HOUSING III, INC. 

3204 Manchaca Rd  Austin, TX 78704-8894    x x      

FAIRWAY VILLAGE 6118 Fairway St  Austin, TX 78741-5136  Family x x x x  

FOURTH STREET 
APARTMENTS 

2402 S Fourth St  Austin, TX 78720-0624  Disabled x        

FRANKLIN 
GARDENS 

3522 E Martin Luther 
King Jr Blvd 

Austin, TX 78721-1100  Elderly x        

FRENCH EMBASSY 
APARTMENTS 

9920 Quail Blvd Austin, TX 78758-5111  Family  x x x    

GUADALUPE I & II 7102 Guadalupe St Austin, TX 78752    x        

MANCHACA ROAD 
APTS 

3810 Manchaca Rd Austin, TX 78704-7560  Disabled  x        

MANOR HOUSE 5905 Manor Rd Austin, TX 78723-3607  Disabled  x        

MARSHALL 
APARTMENTS 

1157 Salina St Austin, TX 78702-2769  Family  x x x x  

MARY LEE 
FLAGSHIP 

1312 Lamar Square Austin, TX 78704    x   
     

MASON MANOR 1137 Gunter St Austin, TX 78721-1829  Family  x x x    

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

 
  

HUD Subsidized Multifamily Housing Units (continued) 

Property Address Type 

Number of bedrooms 

1 2 3 4 5+ 

MOSAIC HOUSING 
CORPORATION XI 

3015 Jubilee Trail  Austin, TX 78748-1203  Disabled  x        

MOSIAC HOUSING 
CORPORATION X 

9803 Willers Way Austin, TX 78748-5972  Disabled  x        

MOUNT CARMEL 
VILLAGE 

2504 New York Dr  Austin, TX 78702-2246  Family  x x x x  

NORTH PLAZA APTS 9125 N Plaza Austin, TX 78753-4565  Family  x x x    

OAK CREEK 
VILLAGE APTS 

2324 Wilson St  Austin, TX 78704-5527  Family  x x x x  

OAK SPRINGS 
VILLAS 

3001 Oak Springs Dr Austin, TX 78702-2593  Elderly  x        

PLEASANT HILL 2501 Anken Dr Austin, TX 78741-4566  Family  x x x    

REBEKAH BAINES 
JOHNSON 

21 Waller St Austin, TX 78702-5216  Elderly  x        

ROSEWOOD 
SENIOR GARDENS 

2720 Lyons Rd Austin, TX 78702-3660    x        

SANTA MARIA 
VILLAGE 

8071 N Lamar Blvd Austin, TX 78753-6200  Family  x x x    

ST GEORGE'S SR 
HOUSING, INC 

1443 Coronado Hills Dr  Austin, TX 78752-2965  Elderly  x x      

STASSNEY 
APARTMENTS 

5600 Nancy  Austin, TX 78745-3033  Disabled  x        

THE HEIGHTS ON 
CONGRESS/115-
N1001 

2707 S Congress Ave Austin, TX 78704-6404  Family  x x      

TRAVIS PARK APTS 1110 E Oltorf St Austin, TX 78704-5726  Family  x x x    

VILLAGE CHRISTIAN 
APTS 

7925 Rockwood Ln Austin, TX 78757-8150  Elderly  x x      

VOLUNTEERS OF 
AMERICA-AUSTIN 

2404 Roehampton Dr Austin, TX 78735-6904  Disabled  x        

WALNUT CREEK 
APTS/115-N1002 

6409 Springdale Rd Austin, TX 78723-3805  Family  x x x    

WESTERN TRAILS 
2422 Western Trails 
Blvd 

Austin, TX 78745-1683  Elderly x x      

Current as of January 14, 2010 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

 

Licensed Senior Housing in Travis County (Nursing Homes) 

Nursing Homes Total Licensed Beds 

Buckner Villa Siesta Home 76 

Cedar View Rehabilitation and Healthcare Center 124 

Emeritus at Spicewood Springs 46 

Govalle Care Center 83 

Gracy Woods II Living Center 110 

Gracy Woods Nursing Center 118 

Heartland Healthcare Center 120 

Heritage Rehabilitation and Nursing Center 203 

Longhorn Village 60 

Maggie Johnson Nursing Center 54 

Marbridge Villa 92 

Monte Siesta Nursing and Rehabilitation LP 126 

Oakcrest Manor Nursing Home 67 

Park Bend SN Health Center 124 

Pflugerville Care Center 111 

Pfugerville Nursing and Rehabilitation Center 120 

Querencia at Barton Creek 42 

Regency Village Care Center 118 

Retirement and Nursing Center Austin 157 

Riverside Rehabilitation and Health Care Center 122 

South Congress Care and Rehabilitation 170 

South Oaks Rehabilitation and Healthcare Center 120 

Southwood Care Center LP 118 

Stonebridge SN Health Center 120 

The Summit at Lakeway Healthcare Center 98 

The Summit at Westlake Hills 90 

Walnut Hills Convalescent Center Inc 120 

West Oaks Rehabilitation and Healthcare 125 

Westminster Health Care Center 90 

Windsor Nursing and Rehabilitation Center of Duval 162 

Total Beds 3,286 

Source: Texas Department of Aging and Human Services 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Licensed Senior Housing in Travis County (Assisted Living) 

Assisted Living Total Licensed Beds 

An Angel's Place 9 

Angels too Assisted Living 10 

Arden Courts of Austin 60 

Arveda Alzheimer's Family Care 22 

Austin North Assisted Living 15 

Austin Senior Care 7 

Barton Hills Assisted Living 35 

Barton Hills Guest House 9 

Barton Hills Lodge Assisted Living 16 

Brookside Farm 10 

Carestpne at Austin 133 

Collinfield 9205 LLC 7 

Colonial Gardens of Austin A-1 16 

Colonial Gardens of Austin A-2 16 

Elizabeth Tenorio - Euresti 4 

Emeritus at Beckett Meadows 95 

Emeritus at North Austin 112 

Emeritus at Spicewood Springs 109 

Glovers Foster Home 4 

Grace House of Lake Travis East 16 

Grace House of Lake Travis West 16 

Harper House Personal Care Facility 10 

Heartland Health Care Center Austin P C Unit 60 

Heatherwilde Assisted Living 20 

Heatherwilde Assisted Living 40 

Hycrest House 5 

Longhorn Village 16 

Longhorn Village 20 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas   

Licensed Senior Housing in Travis County (Assisted Living) (contined) 
Assisted Living Total Licensed Beds 

Mabee Village at Marbridge 84 

Marbridge Ranch 99 

Marilyn M Campbell Center 80 

Mary Lee Foundation Rehabilitation Center 16 

Merrill Gardens at Parmer Woods 112 

Merrill Gardens at Parmer Woods 36 

Onion Creek Plantation 4 

Parsons House Austin 120 

Querencia at Barton Creek 73 

Renaissance at Austin 44 

Ridge Oak 16 

Shady Hollow Assisted Living 6 

Shady Hollow II Assisted Living 6 

Shady Hollow III Assisted Living 6 

South Austin Assisted Living 6 

Southern Hospitality Home 15 

Texas Neuro Rehab Center 8 

Texas Residential and Vocational Services 16 

Texas Residential and Vocational Services 6 

The Heritage at Gaines Ranch 40 

The Pavilion at Great Hills 35 

The Pavilion at Great Hills 130 

The Summit at Lakeway 132 

The Summit at Lakeway 16 

The Summit at Northwest Hills 240 

The Summit at Westlake Hills 30 

Vista Oaks of Lakeway 75 

Total Beds 2,343 

Source: Texas Department of Aging and Human Services 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Additional Text For 
“Public Services” 

Under NA-50 Non-Housing Community 
Development Needs – 91.215 (F)

APPENDIX D

Basic Needs: With Emphasis on Access to Food
Public Health and Access to Healthcare

Behavioral Health
Child and Youth Development

Education
Workforce Development

Transportation

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

ADDITIONAL TEXT FOR  
“PUBLIC SERVICES”  

UNDER NA-50  
NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT NEEDS – 91.215 (F) 

NOTE: Due to character limitations within IDIS, this information is being provided as an 
appendix in addition to the text provided in section III.D. under “Describe the jurisdiction’s need 
for Public Services.” 

 

BASIC NEEDS: With Emphasis on Access to Food 

Programs and services within the basic needs issue area are intended to meet urgent, short-

term food, housing, clothing and transportation needs. The TCHHS/VS Department is the 

largest provider of basic needs assistance for individuals and families within Travis County.  

Income is the primary determinant of whether one can meet basic needs. Current minimum 

wage in Texas is $7.25 per hour. According to the Center for Public Policy Priorities Family 

Budget Estimator project, a single adult with employer-sponsored health insurance and no 

children must earn $10.81 per hour, almost one-and-a-half times the minimum wage, to live 

in the Austin-Round Rock MSA without relying on public assistance. For a two-parent, two-

child household without employer-sponsored health insurance, the required wage increases 

up to $31.51 per hour, more than four times the minimum wage.  

The cost of living also affects the ability to meet basic needs. According to the USDA’s Thrifty 

Food Plan, the cost of food increased by about 31% between 2003 and 2012. Additionally, 

while the overall cost of living has risen, household income has not. 

Food-related statistics show both an increased need for and use of safety net services. 

According to data from Feeding America, a leading domestic hunger-relief charity, Texas has 

the third highest household food insecurity rate among the ten states exhibiting statistically 

significant higher household food insecurity rates than the U.S. national average for 2000-

2012. Per the Feeding America’s Map the Meal Gap project, about 18% of households in 

Travis County and 27% of children are food insecure. And 64% of these children were income-

eligible for nutrition programs.  

Local data show significantly increased enrollment in the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 

Program (SNAP, formerly the Food Stamp Program), suggesting that more individuals and 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix D 204

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

families are seeking assistance to meet their food and nutrition needs. According to a 2012 

report issued by the Texas Health and Human Services Commission, about 9% of all Travis 

County residents receive SNAP benefits. 

According to a report by the Texas Health and Human Services Commission, calls to 211 Texas 

have increased every year since 2006, with a 31% increase from 2010 to 2011. Food was the 

top need communicated by callers in 2011 (35% of all calls). Utility payment assistance (26%) 

and rent payment assistance (13%) were second and third, respectively, among the “top 10 

caller needs in 2011.” 

Travis County residents unable to access or fully meet their needs through federally-funded 

assistance programs may rely on local social service programs to help meet their basic needs. 

Continuing effects of the economic recession may increase the need for these services.   

Public Health and Access to Healthcare 

Programs and services within public health and access to healthcare issue areas are primarily 

intended to improve the physical well-being of community members by encouraging healthy 

behaviors, preventing disease, increasing medical preparedness for emergencies, and 

increasing access to quality health care and counseling. Key health indicators, such as birth 

outcomes and chronic disease rates, can serve as proxy measures of community health. 

According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), women who begin 

prenatal care after the first trimester are at a higher risk for poor pregnancy outcomes, 

including premature births and low birth weight newborns. 2010 data from the Texas 

Department of State Health Services indicates that approximately 33% of all Travis County 

mothers began prenatal care after the first trimester or received no prenatal care. More than 

half of all teenage mothers, almost half of all Hispanic mothers, and more than 1/3 of all Black 

mothers had delayed or no prenatal care.   

Per estimates from the Center for Disease Control (CDC), one in four people in the U.S. have a 

sexually transmitted disease (STD) and of the estimated 19 million new cases each year, 

almost half are among young people age 15-24.  

The Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS) reports that some groups of individuals 

are impacted by STDs more than others. For example, the 2006 rates for chlamydia, which is 

the most commonly reported STD, were eight times higher among African Americans and 

three times higher among Hispanics compared to Whites. And the rate for gonorrhea is even 

higher for African Americans–18 times higher than for Whites. 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix D 205

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

According to data from the CDC, in 2012, half of all the primary and secondary (P&S) syphilis 

cases in the U.S. were concentrated in 26 counties and two cities, and Travis County was one 

of those counties. In 2012, Travis County placed 25th on the list of 70, compared to 34th in 

2011 and 39th in 2012. Between 2010 and 2012, syphilis cases in Travis County increased from 

8.1 cases to 12.9 cases per 100,000. 

Chronic health conditions, such as diabetes and cardiovascular disease, have both direct costs 

and indirect costs, such as absenteeism and missed work days. Further, there are widespread 

health disparities in the incidence and mortality rates of chronic conditions among racial and 

ethnic minorities.  

According to the CDC, diabetes is the sixth leading cause of death in Texas and the fourth 

leading cause of death among Hispanics and African-Americans. Current projections show a 

quadrupling of the number of adult Texans with diabetes–from approximately 2.2 million in 

2010 to almost 8 million in 2040. Travis County projections also indicate an increase in the 

percentage of the population with diabetes–from 10.3% in 2010 to over a quarter (25.2%) in 

2040.  

Cardiovascular disease (CVD) risk factors include diabetes, smoking, obesity, poor nutrition, 

high cholesterol, high blood pressure, and physical inactivity. Data from the Texas Department 

of State Health Services shows that, Austin-Round Rock MSA residents have a higher rate of 

CVD (7.2%) compared to Texas as a whole (6.5%). Health disparities exist across education and 

income levels, particularly in increased prevalence rates for individuals without a high school 

diploma and those with incomes less than $25,000. 

Underlying our community response to these health conditions is access to affordable, quality 

care. According to a Kaiser Family Foundation report, individuals without health insurance are 

more than twice as likely to delay or forgo needed care, compared to those with health 

insurance; delaying or forgoing care can lead to serious health problems and hospitalizations 

for avoidable conditions. 

In 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act was signed into law. The law requires 

most individuals to have health insurance beginning in 2014. However, in Texas where 

Medicaid was not expanded to 133% of the federal poverty level, those who make less than 

100% of the federal poverty level ($11,490 a year as a single person or about $23,550 for a 

family of 4) may not qualify for either Medicaid or reduced costs on a private insurance plan.  

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix D 206

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

Behavioral Health 

Programs and services within this issue area provide prevention, intervention, and treatment 

to adults and children who have been impacted by issues of mental illness, substance abuse, 

and developmental disabilities.  

According to the Kaiser Family Foundation, Texas has the most residents who are suffering 

from serious mental illness than any state in the nation except for California, yet ranks 49th in 

per capita mental health expenditures in the nation. Similarly, in Travis County the need for 

behavioral health services is greater than the existing capacity to deliver these services.  

Roughly 25% of Texas inmates have received some kind of state-funded mental health 

services, including diagnoses of severe mental illness, major depression, bipolar disorder, 

schizophrenia, or a developmental disability. According to a 2008 Travis County Inmate Profile 

report, local incarcerated populations show a larger alcohol and drug related offender 

population than the national average. 

It is estimated that only half of youth with mental health issues actually receive treatment, 

and 70% of youths in the juvenile justice system have at least one mental health disorder, 

with at least 20% experiencing significant functional impairment from a serious mental illness 

such as schizophrenia or bipolar disorder, indicating that lack of treatment may contribute to 

involvement in the juvenile justice system. 

Returning veterans often have a number of behavioral health issues. A report released by the 

Veterans Intervention Project, indicates that about 150 veterans are incarcerated in the Travis 

County jail at any given time. Of the charges filed against veterans, more than a quarter were 

felony charges, and more than one-third were related to drug and alcohol use. Most of the 

veterans described in the report had not obtained services of any kind. 

The Travis County public hospital system offers very limited, dedicated psychiatric services 

compared to Texas counties of similar population size, according to the Mental Health Task 

Force (MHTF; formerly the Mayor’s Mental Health Task Force Monitoring Committee). 

Unlike other urban counties in the state, Travis County has no psychiatric emergency room 

nor does it have any kind of crisis stabilization unit connected to any of the seven major 

hospital emergency departments in the area. Additionally, there is a shortage of public 

psychiatric beds as well as a shortage of mental health professionals practicing in Travis 

County. 

Substance abuse services in Travis County are also inadequate for the population. There are 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix D 207

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

no dedicated detoxification services in Travis County, and Travis County residential substance 

abuse treatment facilities operate with substantial waiting lists. 

Child and Youth Development  

Children and youth benefit greatly from healthy, stable relationships with adults, including 

familial relationships. 

As of 2012, there were approximately 260,108 children and youth under 18 in Travis County. 

Although this is 24% of the total population, the poverty rate among children under 18 (26%) 

is higher than the overall poverty rate (18%) for Travis County. Travis County has one of the 

nation’s fastest growing populations of young children, growing 31% between 2000 and 2010 

and at 1.5 times the state rate, according to a United Way report. 

While poverty status is the standard eligibility measure for many public assistance programs, 

it does not reflect true cost of living and families need to earn significantly more to meet basic 

needs. The most recent Center for Public Policy Priorities (CPPP) Family Budget Estimator 

Project calculated that Travis County families typically need incomes of at least double the 

poverty level to afford basic provisions. 

Research shows that high quality child care supports the successful cognitive, social, and 

emotional development of young children. Access to quality child care is a key component to 

successful child development. Child care can comprise a substantial portion of family 

expenses. At licensed centers as of March 2010, the average cost of child care ranged from 

$832/month for a newborn to 11-month-old to $269/month for afterschool care for a school-

aged child. 

Travis County is home to over 180,000 school age children and youth. Studies demonstrate 

that children, especially at-risk youth, who attend quality afterschool programming have 

better attendance, test scores, and grade retention. During this same time period, children 

are at greater risk of being victims of crime or of being involved in juvenile crime. A 2009 

study estimates that 26% of Texas school age children are responsible for caring for 

themselves during the afterschool hours and 15% participate in afterschool programs. 

According to a mapping study conducted by the Central Texas Afterschool Network, during 

2010-11 most students in low income areas of Travis County were not served by afterschool 

programs regularly enough to receive benefits of the program. According to results of the 

2011 Youth Risk Behavior Survey of high school students, Texas students may be at greater 

risk for poor outcomes in some areas compared to youth nationally, including unintentional 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix D 208

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

injuries (e.g., from not wearing a helmet or riding with a driver who had been drinking 

alcohol), tobacco use, illegal drug use, and sexual behavior. 

Education 

Programs and services within this issue area promote and support academic preparedness as 

well as educational attainment and success. Studies show that educational attainment greatly 

impacts earnings. In 2012, individuals in Travis County with a bachelor’s degree have median 

earnings 84% greater than high school graduates and 161% greater than individuals without a 

high school diploma or equivalent. 

Nativity influences educational attainment. Those who are native-born are more likely to have 

graduated from high school. Only 42% of foreign-born individuals residing in Travis County 

have attended or graduated from college, compared to 76% of the native-born Travis County 

population. 

Limited English Proficient (LEP), economically disadvantaged, and at-risk student populations 

have been growing steadily and at a faster rate than the overall student population in Texas 

schools over the last few years. Since 2005, the county’s total student population has 

increased by 10%; the economically disadvantaged student population increased by 19%; the 

at-risk student population by 15%; and the limited English proficient (LEP) population by 35% 

over the same 5-year period. These increases may lead to an increased demand for literacy-

based educational services.  

English proficiency and risk status correlate with both low TAKS scores and low high school 

graduation rates. The average graduation rate for all students, grades 9-12, is 84%. LEP 

student graduation rates are significantly lower at 50%, even less than the at-risk student 

graduation rate (77%). 

According to 2012 census data, almost a third (31%) of the Travis County population speaks a 

language other than English in the home, and 19% of individuals report that they speak 

English less than “very well.” Foreign-born individuals have greater difficulty with English. 

Close to three-quarters (73%) of foreign-born Spanish speakers and 40% of foreign-born 

speakers of other languages report that they speak English less than “very well.” These 

difficulties may lead to an increased demand for ESL classes. 

Workforce Development 

Programs and services within this issue area provide employment and training services to help 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix D 209

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

individuals improve workplace skills, obtain employment, succeed in the workplace, and help 

employers secure a skilled workforce.  

Unemployment rates in Travis County dropped from 5.2% in March 2013 to 4.3% in March 

2014. Historically, since at least 2004, the unemployment rates in Travis County have 

remained lower than the state rates (5.3% in March 2014). Average weekly wages when 

compared on an annual basis increased by $26.04 (3%) from 3rd quarter 2012 to 3rd quarter 

2013 (most recent data available).  

Federal, state, and local government together comprise the largest industry sector in Travis 

County, providing 20% of 634,831 total jobs in the 3rd quarter of 2013, according to the Texas 

Workforce Commission. Other leading industries include Professional and Business Services 

(18%) and Trade, Transportation, and Utilities (15%). 

A powerful correlation between educational attainment and earnings persists. Among Travis 

County residents 25 and over with earnings in 2012, those who graduated high school earn 

42% more per year than those who did not; those with some college or an associate’s degree 

earn 25% more than those whose formal education stopped after high school; those with a 

bachelor’s degree earned 47% more than those with some college or an associate’s degree; 

and those with a graduate or professional degree earn 39% more than those with a bachelor’s 

degree. Overall, those with a bachelor’s degree earned 84% more than those with only a high 

school degree. Among Travis County workers between the ages of 25 and 64, almost one-half 

(48%) have a bachelor’s degree or higher, and another one-quarter (25%) have some college 

or an associate’s degree. High school graduates comprise 16% of the labor force. 

For Travis County overall, 2012 median earnings were $36,029. However, median earnings for 

men ($40,767) were 30% higher than those for women ($31,432). 

Workforce trends generally predict that as education levels increase, unemployment rates 

decrease. In Travis County, those with the highest educational levels have the lowest 

unemployment (less than 4% unemployment for those with a bachelor’s degree or higher), 

and those with the lowest educational levels have the highest unemployment (about 12% for 

those with less than a high school degree). 

Transportation 

The Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Capital Metro) is the regional provider of 

transit services in Travis County. Most of the unincorporated areas of Travis County are low-

density, non-urban areas and are not served by Capital Metro, but are served by CARTS. 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix D 210

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 

 

CARTS coordinates public transit for rural communities within Travis, Williamson, and Hays 

counties, as well as Bastrop, Blanco, Burnet, Caldwell, Fayette and Lee counties.  

The City of Austin recently developed a new comprehensive plan entitled Imagine Austin 

which includes the City’s extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ). The first of the City’s eight priority 

programs under the new Imagine Austin plan is “Invest in a compact and connected Austin”, 

which includes improving public transportation options. However, since the focus is the core 

urban area of the City, it’s unlikely any public transportation improvements will directly 

benefit the outlying unincorporated areas. 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix D 211

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG PY14 Projects 
& Alternate Projects

APPENDIX E
Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG PY14 PROJECTS  

Project # 1: Acquisition of Land to Support New Rental Housing - $343,010 
Project Description: 

This project is a proposed 192-unit affordable multifamily housing development to be located at either 
12701 Lowden Lane or 727 FM 1626 in Manchaca or an alternate location to be determined. The 
apartments will feature well-appointed one-, two-, and three- bedroom apartment homes. The 10-
building community will feature many amenities including gated access, a community club house, pool 
and grille house, and walking trails.  
 

The project will serve low- to moderate-income individuals at or below 60% of Area Median Income, a 
population that will benefit as rental rates in the Austin/Round Rock MSA continue to increase. At time 
of lease-up, 100% of the units will be occupied by low- to moderate- income households. If CDBG funds 
are used for the project, 51% of the units will have an affordability period of 30 years.   
 

The project will leverage CDBG funds with additional financing through 4% Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credits and Bonds Issued through Strategic Housing Finance Corporation, which will also serve as the 
project's General Partner. The CDBG funds will be used to help fund land acquisition. If the project is 
located at an alternate site not yet determined that site will go through the required site approval and 
public comment processes.   
 

Figure 1: Project 1 - General Project Information 
CDBG Funding $343,010 

Leverage Funding TBD, 4% LIHTC  and bonds 

Program Delivery Strategic Housing Finance Corporation 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start / 
Completion Date 

Environmental Assessment:  Aug 2014 – October 2014 
Finalizing funding and provide notification to the County:  October  2014 
CDBG Contract in place:  November/December 2014 (dependent upon 
receipt of grant agreement from HUD) 
Acquisition of Land: January 20, 2015 
Anticipated date of billing of all CDBG funds:  January 2015 
Infrastructure construction: January to April 2015 
Completion of construction:  March 2016 
Complex opens: March 2016 

Location 
12701 Lowden Lane, Manchaca, TX;  or  
727 FM 1626, Manchaca, TX;  or  
a site to be determined 

 
 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 212

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
 

 

  

Figure 2: Project 1 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Rental Housing Project Multifamily Rental Housing 

Development 

Eligible Activity Land 
Acquisition Outcome Category Affordability 

Objective Category Provide Decent 
Housing Specific Objective 

Land acquisition to support a 
multi-family housing 
development to provide 
affordable, safe and decent 
housing. 

Citation Section 
105(a)(15) Accomplishment  192 units 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  1 Acquisition of Real Property 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 213

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Project # 2: Forest Bluff Street Improvements $125,000 
Project Description: 

Forest Bluff is located in eastern Travis County, Precinct 1. Most of the roads in the subdivision have 
been accepted by Travis County as maintained right-of-way. Several streets were not accepted by the 
County. Lack of regular maintenance has caused the roadway to deteriorate. This project would serve 
to bring the roadway up to Travis County standards and have it accepted for future maintenance as a 
Travis County roadway and make any necessary drainage improvements. 
 

The project will be broken up into three phases and will include improvement to sections of:  Arizona 
Oak Lane, Stave Oak Lane, Bigelow Drive, Catsby Court, English Avenue, and Delta Post Drive. The first 
phase of the project, funded with PY14 funds, will include: 1) design services; 2) land surveying 
services; 3) geo-technical services; 4) drainage design services; 5) utility location and relocation 
coordination services; 6) environmental review and related regulatory permits; and 7) project 
management time. Construction will be phased over two years.   
 

The improvements impact 564 persons (94 households), of which 94.1% are low-to-moderate income.  
 

Figure 3: Project 2 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding Phase 1: $125,000 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start/ 
Completion Date 

Phase 1: October 2014-September 2015 
Phase 2: October 2015-September 2016 
Phase 3: October 2016-September 2017 

Location Forest Bluff, Precinct 1 
 

Figure 4: Project 2 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 214

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE 

# TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 215

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas

Map 1 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Map 2 

 
  

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            216

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Project # 3: Home Rehabilitation $200,000 
Project Description: 

This project funds minor home repair services for low- and moderate-income homeowners in the 
unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of Webberville, to move homes towards Housing 
Quality Standards. The program seeks to improve the energy efficiency, physical living conditions, and 
safety in owner-occupied homes. A 0% interest, forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required 
annual or monthly payments is available. The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each year of 
home ownership. Examples of potential improvements include, but are not limited to: connections of 
houses to long-term viable sources of water (not part of a stand-alone infrastructure project), 
complementing weatherization services of other funding sources, septic tank repairs, and electrical and 
plumbing repairs. In the event that program income is created, it will be reinvested into the Home 
Rehabilitation project.  
 

These funds are targeted toward homeowners at or below 80% MFI in the CDBG service area. This 
project will be administered by Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. Some of the allocation will be used for 
project delivery costs of the project and some of the allocation may partially fund a CDBG Planner 
position to complete environmental paperwork, final inspections and sign off and any other needed 
project delivery related costs. 

 

Figure 5: Project 3 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $200,000 

Leverage Funding To be determined 

Program Delivery Meals on Wheels and More, Inc.  

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran 
Services 

Estimated Start/ Completion Date October 2014 –September 2015 

Location Eligible homes in the unincorporated areas of Travis County 
and the Village of Webberville 

 

Figure 6: Project 3 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category 

Owner Occupied 
Housing Project Rehabilitation of existing 

units 

Eligible Activity Rehabilitation Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective Improve the quality of 

owner housing 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 217

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Citation 570.202 Accomplishment  8 houses 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  14A, Rehabilitation, Single 
Unit Residential 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

 

  

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 217

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            218

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Project # 4: FSS Social Work Services Expansion Project - $80,110 
Project Description: 

This program is an internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service expansion of 
existing services. The program increases program capacity to provide case management, information 
and referral, non-clinical counseling, crisis intervention and outreach in all four precincts of the 
unincorporated areas. The project is targeted to individuals who are at 80% MFI or below. The project 
will fund the equivalent of one FTE social worker who works at a Travis County HHS&VS facility, 
however, to reduce transportation barriers; the social worker provides the majority of service provision 
through home visits. Additionally, part of the funds may be used for 9 Homeless Management 
Information System (HMIS) licenses to provide access for a new HUD requirement through the 
Continuum of Care called coordinated assessment, which evaluates the vulnerability of homeless or 
people at-risk of homelessness to more rapidly house them. Furthermore, operating expenses 
necessary to provide home based services, mileage, and training, among others may be funded.   

 

Figure 7: Project 4 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $80,110 

Leverage Funding TBD 

Program Delivery Family Support Services (FSS) Division of the  
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veteran Services  

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Services & Veteran Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date October 2014-September 2015 

Location Households in the unincorporated areas of Travis County and 
the Village of Webberville 

 

Figure 8: Project 4 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category 

Public Services, 
Other Project Social Work Services Program 

Eligible Activity Public Services Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve the availability of 
services for low/moderate 
income persons  

Citation 570.201 (e) Accomplishment  400 Individuals 

Eligibility LMC Matrix Code  05, Public Services (General) 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 219

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Project # 5: Tenant’s Rights and Fair Housing Counseling– $50,000 
Project Description: 

The funds are allocated for Tenant’s Rights and Fair Housing Counseling for residents of the 
unincorporated areas and the Village of Webberville. This program will expand existing services in the 
unincorporated areas of the County and the Village of Webberville, and proposes to serve 
approximately 68 people. Tenant’s Rights services include: telephone counseling and in-person 
mediation, as needed. Fair housing services include: fair housing counseling, fair housing complaint 
processing and testing in support of an individual complainant. Additionally, part of the funds will be 
used for allowable program delivery costs such as marketing materials and office supplies. At least 51% 
of the recipients will be at or below 80% of the Median Family Income (MFI). Because housing 
discrimination occurs at all income levels, the project will be allowed to service up to 33 households 
above 80% MFI. Austin Tenant’s Council, designated as a sub-recipient, will provide these services.   

 

Figure 9: Project 5 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $ 50,000 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable  

Program Delivery Austin Tenant’s Council or other designated sub-recipient 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

Expected Start /Completion Date October 2014 - September 2015 

Location CDBG Service Area 
 

Figure 10: Project 5 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category   

Public Services, 
Other          Project Fair Housing Counseling & 

Testing 

Eligible Activity Public Services Outcome Category Availability/Accessibility  

Objective Category Provide Decent 
Housing  Specific Objective  

Improve the availability of 
services for low/moderate 
income persons 

Citation 570.201 (e) Accomplishment  68 People 

Eligibility LMC Matrix Code  05J, Fair Housing Activities 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 220

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Project # 6: Administrative & Planning Expenses – $199,529 
Project Description: 

The funds allocated for administration will pay for the operating expenses associated with the grant 
including office supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, fair housing activities, membership, 
Action Plan, annual report, reporting and other business related expenses.  Additionally, the funds will 
pay for a portion (100% and 60%) of the salaries for the two CDBG Planners (one full time and one 3/4 
time), and a portion (25%) of the salary of a TNR Senior Engineer.  These positions are responsible for 
project development, action plan and annual report development, monitoring, and reporting and other 
tasks relating to administration and planning.  

 

Figure 11: Project 6 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $ 199,529 

Leverage Funding Travis County General Fund = estimated $120,000 

Program Delivery Travis County Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date October 2014-September 2015 

Location Not Applicable 
 

 
 
 

Figure 12: Project 6 - Priority and Performance Measurement Information  
(HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Not Applicable Project Program Administration 

Eligible Activity Administration 
and Planning Outcome Category Not Applicable 

Objective Category Not Applicable Specific Objective Not Applicable 

Citation 570.206 Accomplishment  
Other,  
Effective administration of the 
grant  

Eligibility Not Applicable Matrix Code  21A, General Program 
Administration 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan Not Applicable Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 221

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



ALTERNATE PROJECTS  

Alternate Project # 1: Home Rehabilitation – up to $500,000 
Project Description 

This project funds minor home repair services for low- and moderate-income homeowners in the 
unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of Webberville, to move homes towards Housing 
Quality Standards. The program seeks to improve the energy efficiency, physical living conditions, and 
safety in owner-occupied homes. A 0% interest, forgivable 5-year loan up to $24,999 with no required 
annual or monthly payments is available. The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each year of 
home ownership.Examples of potential improvements include connections of houses to long-term 
viable sources of water (not part of a stand-alone infrastructure project), complementing 
weatherization services of other funding sources, septic tank repairs, and electrical and plumbing 
repairs. In the event that program income is created, it will be reinvested into the Home Rehabilitation 
project.  
 

These funds are targeted to homeowners at or below 80% MFI in the CDBG service area. This project is 
currently being administered by Meals on Wheels and More, Inc.    

 

Figure 13: Alternate Project 1  - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding Up to $500,000 

Leverage Funding To be determined 

Program Delivery  Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran 
Services 

Estimated Start/ Completion Date To be determined 

Location Homes in the unincorporated areas of Travis County and the 
Village of Webberville 

 

Figure 14: Alternate Project 1- Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category 

Owner Occupied 
Housing Project Rehabilitation of existing 

units 

Eligible Activity Rehabilitation Outcome Category Availability/ Accessibility 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective Improve the quality of 

owner housing 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 222

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Citation 570.202 Accomplishment  TBD, dependent on funding 
level 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  14A, Rehabilitation, Single 
Unit Residential 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

 

Considerations: 

• Repair of aging and deteriorating houses in the unincorporated areas is the most frequently 
presented housing need reported by residents at the CDBG public hearings. It is also a need 
observed first hand by the CDBG social workers who provide service through home visits. 

• This project was funded in PY12 and PY13, and is currently being administered by Meals on 
Wheels and More. 

• As noted under Project #2 above, a total of 32 homes have been completed are currently under 
repair. 

• Repairs and improvements through continued funding of the Home Rehabilitation Program will 
continue to positively impact and improve the quality of life for residents. 

  

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 223

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas

Alternate Project # 2: Sustainability Onsite at Las Lomitas 
Project Description 

The Las Lomitas neighborhood is located in southeastern Travis County, in Precinct 4. The 
neighborhood lacks water lines and associated connections, and homeowners are currently purchasing 
water from a standpipe and transporting it to onsite tanks. The proposed project would fund 1) An 
assessment of existing conditions and a comprehensive comparison of the feasibility, costs, and 
benefits of sustainable alternative water and wastewater options versus conventional options; and 2)  
the implementation of sustainable water, wastewater, and climatic intervention infrastructure, per the 
outcomes of the study, for qualifying residents.  

 

Figure 15: Las Lomitas Project Location
 

 
 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            224

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Figure 16: Alternate Project 2 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding Up to $480,000 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Center for Maximum Potential Building Systems (CMPBS) 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran 
Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date To  Be Determined 

Location Las Lomitas Neighborhood, Precinct 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Figure 17: Alternate Project 2 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Feasibility study and pilot 

water project 

Eligible Activity TBD Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of public 
improvements for lower 
income persons 

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  TBD 

Eligibility LMA –Survey Matrix Code  TBD 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 225

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Figure 18: Las Lomitas Current Conditions 
 

 
                     Water being transported to a residence in the Las Lomitas Neighborhood 
 
 

 
              Water storage  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 226

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 3: Street Improvements, Forest Bluff Phase 2—$240,000 
Project Description 

Forest Bluff is located in eastern Travis County, Precinct 1.  Most of the roads in the subdivision have 
been accepted by Travis County as maintained right-of-way. Several streeets were not accepted by the 
County. Lack of regular maintenance has caused the roadway to deteriorate. This project would serve 
to bring the roadway up to Travis County standards and have it accepted for future maintenance as a 
Travis County roadway and make any necessary drainage improvements. 
 

The project will be broken up into three phases. The first phase of the project is proposed for PY14 and 
includes: design services and related services as well as the environmental review. The second phase of 
the project includes: construction for improvements on the following streets: Arizona Oak Ln, Stave 
Oak Ln and Bigelow Dr. The third phase would fund construction on the following streets: Catsby Ct., 
English Ave, Delta Post Dr. If the project moves faster than anticipated and funds are available, phases 
2 and 3 may be implemented early. 
 

The improvements impact 564 person (94 households), of which 94.1% are low-to-moderate income.  
 

Figure 19: Alternate Project 3 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding Phase 2: $240,000 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource 
Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date 
Phase 1: October 2014-September 2015 
Phase 2: October 2015-September 2016 
Phase 3: October 2016-September 2017 

Location Forest Bluff, Precinct 1 
 

Figure 20: Alternate Project 3 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 227

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 228

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 4: Street Improvements, Forest Bluff Phase 3—$235,000 
Project Description 

Forest Bluff is located in eastern Travis County, Precinct 1. Most of the roads in the subdivision have 
been accepted by Travis County as maintained right-of-way. Several streeets were not accepted by the 
County. Lack of regular maintenance has caused the roadway to deteriorate. This project would serve 
to bring the roadway up to Travis County standards and have it accepted for future maintenance as a 
Travis County roadway and make any necessary drainage improvements. 
 

The project will be broken up into three phases. The first phase of the project is proposed for PY14 and 
includes: design services and related services as well as the environmental review. The second phase of 
the project includes construction for improvements on the following streets: Arizona Oak Ln, Stave Oak 
Ln and Bigelow Dr. The third phase would fund construction on the following streets: Catsby Ct., 
English Ave, Delta Post Dr. If the project moves faster than anticipated and funds are available, phases 
2 and 3 may be implemented early. 
 

The improvements impact 564 persons (94 households), of which 94.1% are low-to-moderate income.  
 

Figure 21:Alternate Project 4  - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding Phase 3: $235,000 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource 
Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date 
Phase 1: October 2014-September 2015 
Phase 2: October 2015-September 2016 
Phase 3: October 2016-September 2017 

Location Forest Bluff, Precinct 1 
 

Figure 22: Alternate Project 4 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 229

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 230

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 5: Street Improvements, Chamberlain Court-$53,998 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 23: Alternate Project 5 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $53,998 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource 
Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start/Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 
  

Figure 24: Alternate Project 5 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 231

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas

Map 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Map 4 

 
 

  

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            232

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 6: Street Improvements, Mossycup Lane-$35,413 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 25: Alternate Project 6 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $35,413 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 26: Alternate Project 6 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 233

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 7: Street Improvements, Nuttall Drive- $50,619 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 27: Alternate Project 7 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $50,619 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 
  

Figure 28: Alternate Project 7 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 234

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 8: Street Improvements, Netleaf- $32,878 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 29: Alternate Project 8 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $32,878 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 
  

Figure 30: Alternate Project 8 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 235

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 9: Street Improvements, Mimebark Way- $55,688 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 31: Alternate Project 9 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $55,688 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 
  

Figure 32: Alternate Project 9 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 236

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 10: Street Improvements, Sabal Palm- $48,085 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 33: Alternate Project 10 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $48,085 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 
  

Figure 34: Alternate Project 10 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 237

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 11: Street Improvements, Bullace Street- $50,619 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 35: Alternate Project 11 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $50,619 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 

Figure 36: Alternate Project 11 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 238

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 12: Street Improvements, Vasey Blvd- $50,619 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 37: Alternate Project 12- General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $50,619 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 

  

Figure 38: Alternate Project 12 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  564 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 239

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 13: Street Improvements, Ross Road #1-$110,600 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 39: Alternate Project 13 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $110,600 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery  Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 4 
 

 
  

Figure 40: Alternate Project 13 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  4,414 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 240

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas

Map 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Map 6

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            241

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 14: Street Improvements, Ross Road #2- $201,680 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 41: Alternate Project  14- General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $201,680 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 4 
 

 

 

Figure 42: Alternate Project#14 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  4,414 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 242

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 15: Street Improvements, Shadowglen Trace- $172,640 
Project Description 

Excavate and remove structurally failed portions of pavement structure to full depth. Recycle rest of 
existing roadway material, profile roadway and add new base material as required. Apply new Hot Mix 
Asphalt material for a new travel surface. This project would be implemented by TNR staff.   

 

Figure 43: Alternate Project 15 - General Project Information 

CDBG Funding $172,640 

Leverage Funding Not Applicable 

Program Delivery Travis County Transportation and Natural Resource Department 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 
Expected Start/ 

Completion Date TBD 

Location Precinct 1 
 

 

  

Figure 44: Alternate Project 15- Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Infrastructure Project Street Improvements 

Eligible Activity Street 
Improvements Outcome Category Sustainability 

Objective Category Suitable Living 
Environment Specific Objective 

Improve quality of streets for 
low-to-moderate income 
persons  

Citation 570.201 (c)  Accomplishment  394 persons 

Eligibility LMA Matrix Code  03 K Street Improvements 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 243

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CDBG Program, Travis County, Texas

Map 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Map 8 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            244

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Alternate Project # 16: Acquisition of Land to Support New Rental Housing – up to 
$500,000 

Project Description: 

This project is a proposed 192-unit affordable multifamily housing development to be located at either 
12701 Lowden Lane or 727 FM 1626 in Manchaca or an alternate location to be determined. The 
apartments will feature well-appointed one-, two-, and three- bedroom apartment homes. The 10-
building community will feature many amenities including gated access, a community club house, pool 
and grille house, and walking trails.  
 

The project will serve low- to moderate-income individuals at or below 60% of Area Median Income, a 
population that will benefit as rental rates in the Austin/Round Rock MSA continue to increase. At time 
of lease-up, 100% of the units will be occupied by low- to moderate- income households. If CDBG funds 
are used for the project, 51% of the units will have an affordability period of 30 years.   
 

The project will leverage CDBG funds with additional financing through 4% Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credits and Bonds Issued through Strategic Housing Finance Corporation, which will also serve as the 
project's General Partner. The CDBG funds will be used to help fund land acquisition. If the project is 
located at an alternate site not yet determined that site will go through the required site approval and 
public comment processes. This alternate project would allow for additional funds to be added to the 
project in the event that a new site has higher costs associated with it or additional CDBG funds are 
available from other project savings.   
 

Figure 45: Alternate Project 16 - General Project Information 
CDBG Funding Up to $500,000 

Leverage Funding TBD, 4% LIHTC  and bonds 

Program Delivery Strategic Housing Finance Corporation 

Program Oversight Travis County Health and Human Service and Veteran Services 

Expected Start / 
Completion Date 

Environmental Assessment:  Aug 2014 – October 2014 
Finalizing funding and provide notification to the County:  October  2014 
CDBG Contract in place:  November/December 2014 (dependent upon 
receipt of grant agreement from HUD) 
Acquisition of Land: January 20, 2015 
Anticipated date of billing of all CDBG funds:  January 2015 
Infrastructure construction: January to April 2015 
Completion of construction:  March 2016 
Complex opens: March 2016 

Location 
12701 Lowden Lane, Manchaca, TX;  or  
727 FM 1626, Manchaca, TX;  or  
a site to be determined 

 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 245

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
 
 

 

 

Figure 46: Alternate Project 16 - Priority and Performance Measurement 
Information (HUD-prescribed) 

Priority Need 
Category Rental Housing Project Multifamily Rental Housing 

Development 

Eligible Activity Land 
Acquisition Outcome Category Affordability 

Objective Category Provide Decent 
Housing Specific Objective 

Land acquisition to support a 
multi-family housing 
development to provide 
affordable, safe and decent 
housing. 

Citation Section 
105(a)(15) Accomplishment  192 units 

Eligibility LMH Matrix Code  1 Acquisition of Real Property 

Priority in the 2014-
2018 Strategic Plan High Travis County HTE # TBD 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan Appendix E 246

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Key Findings 
From The 

Needs Assessment

APPENDIX F
Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Travis County, TX                    Page 1 of 6 
 

Housing 

Owner &
Rental Repair 

Land &
Infrastructure

Supports 

Financial 
Mechanisms
To Support
Affordability 

Summary of Key Findings from the Needs Analysis 

Strategic Area: Housing                   Priority: High  

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  3rd  
Social Service Agencies:  1st  

Data Summary: 
• Rapid population growth in the Austin area has resulted 

in an imbalance between supply and demand in the 
housing market, the most recent data shows a 
historically low housing inventory. 

• Housing prices and rents have been steadily increasing in 
Travis County, while median incomes have not increased 
at the same rate.  

• Cost burden (paying more than 30% of income towards 
housing costs) is the most prevalent housing problem 
facing Travis County residents.   

 
Owner-occupied housing: 
• In 2013 the Austin MSA had the highest average home price of any MSA in Texas.  
• In February 2014, Austin area home prices hit an all-time high according to a report released by the Austin 

Realtors Board, with a median price of $230, 530.  
• Residents of the unincorporated areas indicate that the most urgent need related to housing is repairs for 

owner occupied housing.   
Renter-occupied housing: 
• In 2013, the Austin area had the highest Fair Market Rent for apartments with one or more bedrooms, and 

the second highest Fair Market Rent for efficiency apartments of any MSA in Texas. 
• Housing in the unincorporated area is primarily comprised of single family structures, there is a scarcity of 

affordable rental units. 
Homelessness: 
• The 2014 Annual Homelessness Count provided a point-in-time snapshot of the Austin area homeless 

population, at a total of 1,987 homeless individuals.  
 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            247

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 
Travis County, TX                    
 

Infra-
structure 

Water 
&

Wastewater

Sidewalks
&

Drainage 

Street 
Improvements

Strategic Area: Infrastructure                               Priority: High  

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  1st  
Social Service Agencies:  5th   

Data Summary: 
• Residents of the unincorporated areas have indicated a 

need for water/wastewater systems and roads.  
• In particular, residents in economically disenfranchised 

areas lack access to running water and are without 
infrastructure or funding to access the area water utility.  

• Request for water and wastewater over the last five 
years totals an estimated $28 million. 

• Requests for street improvements over the last five years 
total an estimated $18 million. 

• Drainage improvements often are associated with other 
street improvement work. 

• Bike paths and sidewalks as an added benefit can provide more livable, sustainable neighborhoods. 
 
Water/Wastewater: 
• Precincts 1, 3, and 4, in particular, have a high need for water/wastewater improvements. And we recently 

received a request for wastewater improvements in Precinct 2. 
• Many residents of unincorporated areas rely on septic systems, many of which are in need of repair or 

replacement, which can be very costly. When multiple failures of septic systems occur within a subdivision, 
it can be more cost-effective to connect to a wastewater treatment plant.  

Roads: 
• There are approximately 400 miles of roadway in unincorporated areas that are not on the County 

maintained system. Unmaintained roads may make it difficult for property owners, school buses, mail 
service providers, and emergency service providers to have all-weather access to properties.  

• Neighborhoods may apply to the County’s Substandard Road Program for funds; however, the only option 
for low and moderate income neighborhoods may be through the CDBG program.  

Flood drainage: 
• Due to recent severe flood events, significant flood drainage improvements and/or repairs are needed, 

especially in the E/SE parts of the county. Of six damaged facilities, four are used by and/or benefit primarily 
low-to-moderate income households. Estimates for these repairs are over $1.5 million. 

 
  

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            248

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 
Travis County, TX                    
 

Community 
Services 

Youth & 
Elderly 

Services 

Case 
Management 

&
Referral 

Literacy
Job Skills
Education 

Strategic Area: Community Services                 Priority: High  

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  2nd    
Social Service Agencies:  2nd   

Data Summary: 
• Of the current social service contract investments made 

by the Department, approximately 5% of the services are 
being provided to persons living in the unincorporated 
areas, and another 25% to residents in areas that are 
mixed incorporated and unincorporated. 

• Approximately 18% of the total county population lives 
in the unincorporated areas of the county; therefore, it 
appears these areas are underserved with respect to 
social services. 

• Services need to expand outside the city limits in order 
to more adequately serve the needs of the residents in 
these areas. 

Youth: 
• Travis County is home to over 180,000 school-age children between the ages of 5 and 17. The poverty rate 

among children is higher than the overall poverty rate for all residents of Travis County. 
• Recent data shows that most students in low income areas of Travis County were not served by afterschool 

programs although: 
         - Research shows that afterschool and other youth programs have positive impacts on student behavior and     
           performance, and  
         - A 2011 survey of high school students points to a greater risk for poor outcomes among Texas students, compared to 
           youth nationally, due to greater risky behaviors that threaten the health and safety of youth.  
Elderly: 
• In 2012, there were 85,458 adults aged 65 and older living in Travis County, comprising 7.8% of the 

population. By 2020, that figure is expected to rise to 10.4% of the county population, and with it the need 
for services. 

 
  

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            249

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 
Travis County, TX                    
 

Public 
Facilities 

Community
Centers 

Recreation
Centers 

Parks 

Strategic Area: Public Facilities and Buildings                      Priority: Low  

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  6th   
Social Service Agencies:  6th    

Data Summary: 
• Residents, primarily from E/SE and W/SW Travis County, 

have requested the following types of public facilities: 
neighborhood parks (including playgrounds and walking 
trails), recreational centers, community centers, health 
facilities, and childcare centers.   Often times, the 
discussion around public facilities also centers around 
access to community services, which residents rank as a 
more pressing need. 

• Whereas some of these types of public facilities, in 
particular, parks and community centers, are available in 
the unincorporated areas, even these public facilities 
may not be accessible to residents without, or with limited, access to personal or public transportation.  

Parks: 
• Eastern Travis County currently has less park acreage than western parts of the county, and the need for 

additional recreational areas in the eastern parts of the county is likely to increase.  
• As development continues to push into eastern Travis County, agricultural and rural land is increasingly 

converted to developed land.  
• Additionally, the demographics of the eastern part of the county include higher concentrations of low 

income households who may rely on public facilities for recreational activities.  
• Finally, as the population of the county grows, it is likely that existing facilities will have to support increased 

usage. Taken together, these factors may indicate the need for expanded recreation areas or activities in 
eastern Travis County. 

Community Centers: 
• Community centers are important to the unincorporated community as they provide centralized locations—

five outside of the urban core—for residents to access social services and community meeting rooms. 
However, as the population continues to be pushed further out in the unincorporated area, even these 
public facilities may not be accessible to residents with limited transportation options. 

 
 
  

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            250

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 
Travis County, TX                    
 

Specialized 
Needs & 
Services 

HIV/AIDS 

Domestic
Violence 

Elderly
and/or 

Disabled 

Strategic Area: Populations with Special Needs/Services    Priority: High   

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  4th   
Social Service Agencies:  3rd   

Data Summary: 
• Approximately 5% of clients receiving services for the 

elderly, persons with disabilities, victims of domestic 
violence, or persons living with HIV/AIDS were from the 
unincorporated areas of the county.  Another 24% live in 
areas that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated. 
Currently, there is no housing in the unincorporated areas 
that is specifically for disabled persons. 

• Elderly renter households are more likely to have a 
housing problem than either owner-occupied households 
or non-elderly households. 

Elderly &/or Persons with Disabilities: 
• In 2012, about 8% of the Travis County population consisted of adults aged 65 and older, and close to a 

quarter of individuals aged 65 to 74 and over half of individuals 75 and older had a disability. Since the 
elderly population is expected to rise and the rate of disability is known to increase with age, the needs for 
services for the elderly and disabled is expected to grow as well. 

Victims of Domestic Violence: 
• Children who are abused or neglected also are more likely to have a higher tolerance for and use of violence 

in relationships and enter into violent relationships as teens and adults or abuse their own children. 
• Currently, there are no beds or housing available specifically for victims of domestic violence in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County.    
Persons Living with HIV/AIDS: 
• HIV/AIDS may have the additional challenge of choosing between dedicating money to basic living expenses 

such as housing or to medical care. 
• There is only one organization in the Austin area that provides HIV/AIDS specific housing. The same 

organization provides assistance to clients at three sites in the unincorporated areas; however, there is no 
dedicated HIV/AIDS housing in the unincorporated areas.  

 
  

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            251

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 

 
Travis County, TX                    
 

Business 
&

Jobs 

Small 
Business

Loans 

Commercial
Exterior
Repair 

Micro-
Enterprise

Loans 

Strategic Area: Business and Jobs                                 Priority: Low  

Public Engagement Ranking: 
Residents:  5th   
Social Service Agencies:  4th  

Data Summary: 
• According to the Texas Workforce Commission, in 2013, 

there was an increase in the number of jobs in every 
major industry in Texas.  

• And as of December 2013, the unemployment rate for 
Travis County (4.5%) has consistently remained lower 
than the state (5.6%) and national (6.5%) rates.  

• Approximately 7% of the services related to workforce 
development reach the residents of the unincorporated 
areas of the county, and another 30% reach residents in 
areas that are a mix of incorporated and unincorporated. 
This shows that residents throughout the unincorporated areas are in need of improved access to workforce 
development and jobs. 

• Programs and services within this issue area provide employment and training services to help individuals 
improve workplace skills, obtain employment, succeed in the workplace, and help employers secure a skilled 
workforce.  

Correlation between Education & Earning Potential 
• Current minimum wage in Texas is $7.25 per hour. According to the Center for Public Policy Priorities, a 

single adult with employer-sponsored health insurance and no children must earn $10.81 per hour, almost 
one-and-a-half times the minimum wage, to live in the Austin-Round Rock MSA without relying on public 
assistance. For a two-parent, two-child household without employer-sponsored health insurance, the 
required wage increases up to $31.51 per hour, more than four times the minimum wage. 

• Data continues to show that there is a powerful correlation between educational attainment and earnings.  
• This, coupled with the fact that the greatest job growth in Travis County has been for high-skilled workers, 

highlights the need for both short-term and long-term training, as well as efforts to increase enrollment in 
postsecondary education. 

 
 

Travis County PY2014-18 Consolidated Plan  Appendix E            252

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
 
Meeting Date: August 5, 2014   
Prepared By/Phone Number: Martin Zamzow/854-9386, Sara 
Krause/854-9230 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Commissioner Gerald Daugherty, 
Commissioner Bruce Todd 
Commissioners Court Sponsors: Commissioner Gerald Daugherty & 
Commissioner Bruce Todd 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Receive Final Report of a Travis County 
Organizational Review and Assessment for the Commissioners Court.  
(This item may be taken in Executive Session under Consultation with 
Attorney Exception) 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: On December 17, 2013 the 
Commissioners Court directed the Purchasing Agent to move forward with 
a professional services agreement with Robert A. Milne, Ph. D. for an 
independent review and study of Travis County’s organizational structure 
and processes and bring that back, along with a scope of work in that 
agreement, for the Court to approve.  On January 7, 2014 the 
Commissioners Court approved the scope of work, and the Professional 
Services Agreement/Contract was signed on January 14, 2014.  The Final 
Report of that review and study is ready for presentation.   
                                                                                                       
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Receive the Final Report. 
  
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  n/a 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS:  Final Report of Travis County Management 
Structure Review  

 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: n/a 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 16Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  

   

  

 

 

 

 

   

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  

   

  

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  

   

  

  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  

   

1 

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  

   

2 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Executive Summary 

   

 

3 

 

  

 

2. 
 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Executive Summary 

   

 

4 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Executive Summary 

   

 

5 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Executive Summary 

   

 

6 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Executive Summary 

   

 

7 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section One 

  Scope of Work 

 

8 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section One 

  Scope of Work 

 

9 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Two 

  Background 

 

10 

FISCAL YEARS 2013 - 2014 GENERAL FUND DEPARTMENTAL BUDGETS & FTE

Adopted Adopted Difference

FY 14 Budget Budget Adopted 14 %

Departmental Name FTEs FY 2013 FY 2014 Adopted 13 Change

County Judge 5 $454,781 $485,013 $30,232 6.65%
Commissioner, Precinct 1 4 $365,899 $380,120 $14,221 3.89%
Commissioner, Precinct 2 4 $364,831 $376,901 $12,070 3.31%
Commissioner, Precinct 3 4 $359,096 $380,108 $21,012 5.85%
Commissioner, Precinct 4 4 $352,920 $363,594 $10,674 3.02%
Planning and Budget 18 $2,099,092 $2,090,915 ($8,177) -0.39%
General Administration 2 $4,755,726 $4,462,603 ($293,123) -6.16%
Human Resource Mgmt 16 $12,984,047 $14,207,163 $1,223,116 9.42%
Information Technology Services 110 $22,325,266 $22,874,535 $549,269 2.46%
Facilities Management 136 $10,073,725 $10,624,849 $551,124 5.47%
Historical Commission 0 $9,442 $7,942 ($1,500) -15.89%
Medical Examiner 38 $4,407,871 $4,627,769 $219,898 4.99%
Counseling and Education Services 42 $3,546,333 $3,606,879 $60,546 1.71%
Juvenile Public Defender 14 $1,426,110 $1,504,440 $78,330 5.49%
Emergency Services 19 $4,781,918 $6,648,650 $1,866,732 39.04%
Transportation & Natural Resources 193 $32,096,244 $34,520,879 $2,424,635 7.55%
Criminal Justice Planning 44 $4,104,313 $4,372,421 $268,108 6.53%
Records Mgmt & Comm Resources 31 $5,103,818 $5,553,484 $449,666 8.81%
Health & Human Svcs & Veterans Svc 213 $32,293,147 $33,053,308 $760,161 2.35%
Emergency Medical Services 32 $19,407,179 $20,006,815 $599,636 3.09%
Centralized Rent & Utilities 0 $4,837,821 $4,537,130 ($300,691) -6.22%
Regular Allocated Reserves $6,920,945 $10,718,725 $3,797,780 54.87%
Unallocated Reserves $57,195,853 $68,085,598 $10,889,745 19.04%
Other Reserves $16,242,338 $24,134,322 $7,891,984 48.59%
Total 930 $174,685,518

*Travis County Planning & Budget

 FISCAL YEARS 2013 - 2014 GENERAL FUND DEPARTMENTAL BUDGETS & FTE* 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Two 

  Background 

 

11 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Two 

  Background 

 

12 

 
 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Two 

  Background 

 

13 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Two 

  Background 

 

14 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Two 

  Background 

 

15 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

16 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

17 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

18 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

19 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

20 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

21 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

22 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

23 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

24 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

25 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

26 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

27 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

28 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Section Three 

Administrative 

Issues  

 

29 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



    
   

  Section Four 

  Urban Texas Counties 

 

30 

http://www.dallascounty.org/department/comcrt/administrator.php

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

http://www.dallascounty.org/department/comcrt/administrator.php


    
   

  Section Four 

  Urban Texas Counties 

 

31 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



    
   

  Section Four 

  Urban Texas Counties 

 

32 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



    
   

  Section Four 

  Urban Texas Counties 

 

33 

‐ ‐

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



    
   

  Section Four 

  Urban Texas Counties 

 

34 

 

 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



    
   

  Section Four 

  Urban Texas Counties 

 

35 

‐ ‐

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



    
   

  Section Four 

  Urban Texas Counties 

 

36 

 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.theatlanticcities.com/technology/2013/06/could-bookless-libraries-revolutionize-

access-poor/5729/.  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

http://www.theatlanticcities.com/technology/2013/06/could-bookless-libraries-revolutionize-access-poor/5729/
http://www.theatlanticcities.com/technology/2013/06/could-bookless-libraries-revolutionize-access-poor/5729/


    
   

  Section Four 

  Urban Texas Counties 

 

37 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



    
   

  Section Four 

  Urban Texas Counties 

 

38 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Five 

      Legal  

  Foundation 

 

39 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Five 

      Legal  

  Foundation 

 

40 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Five 

      Legal  

  Foundation 

 

41 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Five 

      Legal  

  Foundation 

 

42 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Five 

      Legal  

  Foundation 

 

43 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Five 

      Legal  

  Foundation 

 

44 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Five 

      Legal  

  Foundation 

 

45 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Five 

      Legal  

  Foundation 

 

46 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Five 

      Legal  

  Foundation 

 

47 

David B. Brooks, Texas Practice Series: County and Special District Law Sec. 5.14 (2d ed. 2002)) 

(foot notes omitted)

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Six 

   Establishing the  

  Court’s Authority 

 

48 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Six 

   Establishing the  

  Court’s Authority 

 

49 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Six 

   Establishing the  

  Court’s Authority 

 

50 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Six 

   Establishing the  

  Court’s Authority 

 

51 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Six 

   Establishing the  

  Court’s Authority 

 

52 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Six 

   Establishing the  

  Court’s Authority 

 

53 

 

  

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Six 

   Establishing the  

  Court’s Authority 

 

54 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



      Section Six 

   Establishing the  

  Court’s Authority 

 

55 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



       Contacts 

 

 

56 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



         Appendix A 

 

57 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



         Appendix A 

 

58 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



         Appendix A 

 

59 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



         Appendix A 

 

60 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Appendix B 

 

61 

 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Appendix C 

 

62 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



        Appendix C 

 

63 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
 
Meeting Date: July 24, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Gloria Souhami, (512) 854-4229 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Commissioners Court Sponsor:    
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE UNDERAGE DRINKING 
PREVENTION PROGRAM INTERLOCAL WITH AUSTIN INDEPENDENT 
SCHOOL DISTRICT (AISD). 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 17Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Item 18Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
 
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tom Nuckols (4-9262) 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consult With County Attorney and Take 
Appropriate Action Regarding the Balcones Cayonlands Conservation 
Program. (Executive Session under Gov’t. Code Ann. §551.071, 
Consultation with Attorney.) 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 19Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


 
 
Meeting Date: August 5, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Sara Boltin, 854-9840 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David A. Escamilla 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Hon. Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Receive briefing from County Attorney regarding Steven Brand v. Travis County; Cause 
No. 1:14-cv-00658-LY, consider hiring outside counsel and take appropriate action. 
(Executive Session pursuant to GOV’T. CODE sec. 551.071, consultation with attorney). 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Sherine E. Thomas, County Attorney, 854-9431 
Leslie W. Dippel, County Attorney, 854-9841 
Rosemary Lehmberg, District Attorney, 854-9400 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 20Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
 
Meeting Date: August 5, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Sara Boltin, 854-9840 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David A. Escamilla 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Hon. Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: IN CONSULTATION WITH COUNTY ATTORNEY, 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION CONCERNING THE EXTENSION 
OF ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE WITH PAY FOR HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
AND VETERAN SERVICE EMPLOYEE, SLOT 30005479. (EXECUTIVE SESSION 
UNDER GOV’T. CODE ANN. §551.071, CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY, AND 
§551.074, PERSONNEL EXCEPTION) 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Leslie W. Dippel, County Attorney, 512-854-9841 
Laurie Eiserloh, County Attorney, 512-854-6906 
Sherri Fleming, HHS & VS, 512-854-7000 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 21Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 
 
Meeting Date: August 5, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the 
Voting Sessions of June 10, 17, and 24, July 1, 8, 15, 22 and 29, and the 
Employee Public Hearing of June 26, 2014. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item C3Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, June 10, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

June 10, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on June 10, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Absent 

 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
1. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on the regulation of fireworks in unincorporated Travis 

County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 10, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
3. Approve resolution recognizing the week of June 9 through 13, 2014 as “Take Heart Austin” 

Week. (Commissioner Daugherty) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Dr. Paul Hinchey, Medical Director, Austin/Travis County 

 
MOTION: Approve the Resolution in Item 3. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

 
4. Present recognition from Travis County Attorney’s Office Underage Drinking Prevention 

Program to law enforcement volunteers. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Gloria Souhami, Program Director, Travis County Underage Drinking Prevention Program 

Clerk's Note: The Court presented Certificates of Appreciation to Terry Wilt, Reserve Sergeant, 
Travis County Sheriff’s Office, and Carlos Lopez, Constable, Precinct 5. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
5. Consider and take appropriate action on two cash security agreements with Gehan Homes, 

Ltd., for sidewalk fiscal for Avalon Phase 7B:   
 

a. Lot 11, Block O - $2,890.44; and   
 
b. Lot 16, Block O - $720.00, in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with Gehan Homes, Ltd for 

sidewalk fiscal for Commons at Rowe Lane Phase 4A Lot 12, Block FF in Precinct One. 
(Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
7. Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with Highland Homes, Ltd-

Austin for sidewalk fiscal for West Cypress Hills Phase 1 Section 3B for Lot 47 Block B in 
Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 10, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

8. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to temporarily close Mowinkle Drive 
beginning June 11 and continuing through July 31, 2014 or until construction is completed in 
Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
9. Approve an order rejecting the dedication and abandoning the streets known as Lenape Trail, 

Lenape Cove, Superview Drive and Indian Scout Trail, all originally dedicated by the Overlook 
Estates, Phase 1 subdivision – a subdivision in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Consider and take appropriate action on the Travis Austin Recovery Group’s Flood Recovery 

Action Plan in response to the 2013 Onion Creek Halloween flood. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Erin Foster, Member Travis Austin Recovery Group (TARG) Board of Directors 
Pete Baldwin, Travis County Emergency Management Coordinator 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans 

Service (TCHHS&VS) 
Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Service 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a license agreement with Huns RFC Inc. for a 

rugby tournament at Northeast Metropolitan Park in Precinct Two. (Commissioner Todd) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Consider and take appropriate action on a request for a variance to Title 30-2-159 for private 

streets for the Tipco preliminary plan. (Commissioner Daugherty) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Anna Bowlin, Program Manager, Planning and Engineering, TNR 
Jubayer Ahmed, Travis County resident 
Joe Thrash, representing Davenport Ranch Neighborhood Association 
John Joseph, Travis County resident 

MOTION: Approve Item 12. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
13. Consider and take appropriate action regarding unclaimed capital credits (revenue) received 

from the State Comptroller’s Office. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 

MOTION: Divide the $106,122.80 received as follows: 50% to the Literacy Coalition 
and 50% to the Child Protective Services (CPS) Board for services and 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 10, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

programs related to foster care. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
14. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 
Rosemary Lehmberg, Travis County District Attorney 
David Escamilla, Travis County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Approve the Budget Amendments and Transfers, except Budget Item "Other 

01.” 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

MOTION: Approve Budget Item "Other 01.” 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret Gómez 

Clerk's Note: For this Item, "Other 01” is a reference to a numbered item in the supporting 
budget document. 

 
15. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related 

special budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. New application to the Texas Department of Agriculture to purchase equipment in support 
of the National School Lunch Program in the Juvenile Probation Department;   

 
b. Annual contract with the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs to receive 

FY 2014 U.S. Department of Health and Human services funds for the Low Income Home 
Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) in Health and Human Services and Veterans 
Service;   

 
c. Annual contract with the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs to receive 

FY 2014 U.S. Department of Energy Funds for the Weatherization Assistance Program in 
Health and Human and Services and Veterans Service; and   

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 10, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

d. Annual contract with the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs to receive 
FY 2015 U.S. Department of Energy Funds for the Weatherization Assistance Program in 
Health and Human and Services and Veterans Service. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$639,722.30 for the period of May 23 to May 29, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action to adopt the Travis County Title VI/Nondiscrimination 

Policy Statement. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action to adopt the US Department of Transportation Standard 

Title VI assurances to establish full and affirmative compliance with the Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 and other nondiscrimination authorities. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
20. Consider and take appropriate action on the following employee healthcare items for Fiscal 

Year 2015 Plan Year, effective October 1, 2014:   
 

a. Fiscal Year 2015 Health Benefit Plan design changes;   
 
b. Contribution levels for Travis County Employee Health Plan for Fiscal Year 2015;   
 
c. Funding of fully insured vision insurance for Fiscal Year 2015;   
 
d. Fiscal Year 2015 open enrollment dates as August 1 through August 30. 2014; and    
 
e. Default enrollment process for Fiscal Year 2015 to allow employees to continue with 

current benefit elections if no action is taken by the employees with the exception of two 
flexible spending accounts, employee only vision coverage and employee only PPO 
coverage. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
John Rabb, Benefits Manager, Human Resources Management Department (HRMD) 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
21. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. Contract award for Third Party Administration (TPA) services, Pharmacy Benefit 
Management (PBM) services, and fully insured vision coverage, RFP No. 1311-003-CW, to 
the highest ranked proposers:   

 
i. United Healthcare Services, Inc. for TPA services for group benefit plans;   
 
ii. Envision Pharmaceutical Services, LLC for PBM services; and   

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 10, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

 
iii. Davis Vision, Inc. for fully insured vision coverage; and   

 
b. The County Judge to sign group application for fully insured vision coverage with Davis 

Vision, Inc. for policy specimen and certificates. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Bonnie Floyd, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
John Rabb, Benefits Administrator, HRMD 
Todd Dorton, Gallagher Benefit Services 
Nancy Webster, Gallagher Benefit Services 
Matt Nolte, United Health Care 

 
MOTION: Approve Items 21.a and b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

 
22. Consider and take appropriate action on the following employee benefit items for Fiscal Year 

2015 Plan Year:   
 

a. Set employee public hearing on Thursday, June 26, 2014 at 4:30 p.m. in the 
Commissioners Courtroom; and   

 
b. Printing and release of information to employees and retirees regarding proposed benefit 

options and rates prior to employee public hearing. 
 
MOTION: Approve Item 22. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

 
23. Consider and take appropriate action on letter acknowledging National Instruments’ decision not 

to proceed with economic development incentive agreement. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
24. Approve contract award for solar screens, IFB No. 1402-003-RF, to sole bidder, Austin Custom 

Screens. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
25. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 263.152(A)(1), declare certain items 

surplus property and sell at public auction. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 10, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

26. Approve Modification No. 3 to Contract No. 4400001509, Patin Construction, for Northeast 
Metro Park BMX track amenities construction project. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
27. Consider the filing of a challenge petition with the Appraisal Review Board and/or take other 

appropriate action regarding the setting of commercial and industrial property values in Travis 
County by the Travis Central Appraisal District pursuant to the Texas Tax Code. (This item will 
be taken in Executive Session under the Consultation with Attorney exception) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leroy Nellis, Budget Director Succession, PBO 
Bud Wood, Travis County resident 
Bill Oakey, Travis County resident 
Frank Abernathy, Travis County resident 
Brigid Shea, Travis County resident 
Nancy McDonald, Government Affairs Director, Real Estate Council of Austin 
Kay Humphries, Travis County resident 
David King, Travis County resident 
Jennifer Burbis, Travis County resident 
Daryl Chalberg, Chair, Legislative Affairs Committee, Institute of Real Estate Management 

(IREM) 
Sheila McHargue, President, Building Owners and Managers Association (BOMA) 
Don Weekley; General Manager, Brandywine Realty Trust 
Vicki Totten, Travis County resident 
Tina Cannon, Travis County resident 
Mary Jo Hernandez, Travis County resident 
Minerva Camarena Skeith, Travis County resident 
Jacob Cortes, Lead Organizer, Austin Interfaith 
Christiane Caballero, Travis County resident 
Angela Garza, Travis County resident 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 27 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
MOTION: ○ Direct the Intergovernmental Relations Office (IGR) staff to work with the 

Auditor and PBO to bring together a working group comprised of all the 
major taxing units in Travis County as well as the business and real 
estate community to look for legislative and legal remedies for inequities 
in the property appraisal system. IGR should report back in not more 
than one month that a working group has been created. 

 
○ Direct County Purchasing staff to develop a professional services  

procurement, and solicit the services of a qualified professional to do an 
impartial analysis of the accuracy of commercial and industrial property 
appraisals in Travis County. The Planning and Budget Office is directed 
to identify funding for this procurement.  

 
○ Direct Intergovernmental Relations staff to work with our fellow  

urban counties, through the Conference of Urban Counties (CUC), to 
explore legislative and legal remedies for the inequities in the property 
appraisal system.  IGR should report back to the Court in not more than 
one month that a working group has been created.  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 10, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

FRIENDLY 
AMENDMENT: Have the County collaborate with other taxing entities in Travis County to 

solicit a partnership and funding for an appropriate study of this issue, for use 
either in the legislative session and/or later, as appropriate. 

MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
RESULT: FRIENDLY AMENDMENT ACCEPTED 
 
Clerk’s Note: A Vote on the Standing Motion was taken. 
 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

 
 
28. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the renewal of the interlocal agreement 

between Del Valle Independent School District and Travis County for services provided by the 
Travis County Underage Drinking Prevention Program. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
29. Consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Nikki C. Simms to the Child 

Protective Services Board effective immediately through May 31, 2017. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
30. Consider and take appropriate action on the appointment of Fred Hawkins to the Dispute 

Resolution Center Board effective immediately through December 31, 2017. (Judge Biscoe) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
31. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. Resolution approving issuance of Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds by Strategic 
Housing Finance Corporation for the Lowden Lane Apartments Project; and   

 
b. Resolution of No Objection to submission of housing tax credit application to TDHCA by 

Lowden Housing, LP. 
 
RESULT: PULLED 

 
32. Consider and take appropriate action on the potential projects to include in the Program Year 

2014 Action Plan public comment draft related to the Community Development Block Grant 
available through HUD. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Christy Moffett, Social Services Manager, TCHHS&VS 

 
MOTION: Approve staff recommendations to include the alternative real estate issue as 

a potential project and add alternate road projects, with the understanding 
that this issue will be addressed further, on or before August 5, 2014. 

RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 10, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
33. Consider and take appropriate action on the purchase of property in Precinct Four in connection 

with the with the buyout for the Halloween floods.
 2 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 33 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 

MOTION: Reject the counter-offer from the property owner. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

 
34. Receive briefing on potential variances to Chapter 64, Travis County Regulations for Floodplain 

Management, related to the 2013 Halloween floods.
 1
 (Commissioner Gómez) 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 34 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  

 
35. Consider and take appropriate action for economic development Incentive agreement with 

Project Blueland Prairie.
 5 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 35 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov't. Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations. 

MOTION: Authorize County staff to continue to negotiate with the business owner. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 10, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 10 
 

Consent Items 
 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C2 and Agenda Items, 5.a–b, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 
15.a–d, 16, 17, 18, 19, 23, 24, 25, 26, 28, 29, and 30. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, June 17, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

June 17, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

 Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on June 17, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Absent   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Absent 

 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Dr. John K. Kim, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
1. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on a proposed interlocal agreement with Pflugerville ISD 

to pay for half the cost of a traffic signal at the intersection of Gattis School Road and Priem 
Lane. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 17, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

3. Consider and take appropriate action on a request for a variance to County on-site sewage 
facility requirements to allow a second single-family residence to be placed on less than two 
acres at 12133 Fitzhugh Road in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on a request for a variance to County on-site sewage 

facility requirements to allow three single-family residences to be placed on less than three 
acres at 12908 Old Kimbro Road in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
5. Consider and take appropriate action to approve the agreement with City of Austin, Austin 

Energy for providing client intake for the Free Weatherization Program in FY14. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the interlocal agreement with the City of Austin 

for lead abatement services to Travis County residents. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
7. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related 

special budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. New application to Federal Emergency Management Agency, Department of Homeland 
Security through Texas Water Development Board for a Flood Mitigation Assistance 
Buyout Halloween 2013 Flood Grant; and   

 
b. Annual application to the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division, for the Travis 

County Sheriff’s Office to receive resources to assist in hosting the second annual Vision 
Summit Conference that will identify and bridge existing gaps in service that weaken an 
offender’s potential for successful reintegration into the community. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$1,337,350.68 for the period of May 30 to June 6, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 17, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

11. Consider and take appropriate action on request to approve the first amendment to the lease 
between Texas RioGrande Legal Aid, Inc. and Travis County for lease space at 4920 North IH-
35. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
12. Approve Modification No. 2, an assignment of Contract No. 4400001218 from Haynes & Boone 

to McGinnis Lochridge. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Approve Modification No. 16 to Interlocal Agreement No. 4400000372, Austin Travis County 

Integral Care and the City of Austin, for substance abuse services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
14. Approve Modification No. 3, an assignment of Contract No. 4400000946 from Move Solutions – 

Austin, Ltd., to Total Office Solutions, LLP. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Authorize Purchasing Agent to commence negotiations with the highest-ranked firm, 

Smithgroup JJR in association with Barnes Gromatzky Kosarek Architects, Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) No. Q1402-008-AG, new Medical Examiner's office. 
 
RESULT: APPROVED [2 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 

 
16. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 263.152(A) (1), declare certain items 

surplus property and sell at public auction. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Approve contract award for University Savings Building (USB) elevator refurbishment, IFB No. 

B1404-012-JT, to the low, responsive bidder, Ascensor, LLC. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action to oppose proposed Texas Department of Motor Vehicle 

Rule 217.116 that would establish a $5.00 capped fee for the issuance of vehicle titles. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Bruce Elfant, Travis County Tax Assessor/Collector 
Stan Wilson; Manager, Motor Vehicle Division, Travis County Tax Office 
Deece Eckstein, Intergovernmental Relations Officer, Intergovernmental Relations (IGR)  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 17, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

MOTION: Approve the letter opposing Rule 217.116, as prepared by staff, and 
authorize the County Judge to sign it on behalf of the Commissioners Court. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action to extend the deadline to file the Fiscal Year 2013 

Financial Services Audit Report by Emergency Services District Number Ten until July 1, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
20. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a request from Bluebonnet Electrical 

Cooperative, Inc. for the purchase of an approximately 4800 square foot underground electrical 
utility easement from Travis County to install, operate and maintain underground electrical 
service facilities within Ben Fisher Park located in Precinct One.

 1 and 2 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Consent Items 
 

C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the Voting Sessions of May 27 and June 3, 2014 

and the Special Voting Session of June 2, 2014. 
 
C4. Receive Fiscal Year 2013 Financial Audit Reports for Emergency Services Districts 2, 3 and 6. 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C4 and Agenda Items 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8.a–b, 9, 
10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17, and 19. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 17, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

Added Items 

 
A1. Approve proclamation recognizing the 25th annual employees’ "Juneteenth - Emancipation 

Day" celebration to be held on Thursday, June 19, 2014. (Judge Biscoe and Commissioner 
Davis) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Cheryl Brown, Executive Assistant, County Judge's Office 
Deone Wilhite, Executive Assistant, County Commissioner Precinct 1 Office 
Jacqueline McDowell, Case Worker, Travis County Health and Human Services & 

Veterans Service (TCHHS&VS) 
Juanita Jackson, Executive Assistant, TCHHS&VS 
Sue Spears, Executive Assistant, County Commissioner Precinct 1 Office 
Nyralin Kline, Project Manager I, Information Technology Services (ITS) 
A.L. Sneed II, Pastor, South Austin Community Church 

 
MOTION: Approve the proclamation in Item A1. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 

 
A2. Receive update from County Attorney in Travis County, Texas v. Michael Kimbro, Cause No. D-

1-GN-14-00189; in the 419th District Court, Travis County, Texas. (This item will be taken in 
Executive Session under the Consultation with Attorney exception) 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, June 24, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

June 24, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on June 24, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

Public Hearings 

 
1. Receive comments regarding a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate the 

five-foot wide public utility and drainage easements located along the common lot line of Lots 11 
and 12, Block 51 of Austin Lake Hills, Section One, and along the common lot line of Lot 11, 
Block 51 of Austin Lake Hills, Section One and Lot 14, Block 51 of Austin Lake Hills, Section 
Two in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) (Action Item #17) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Anna Bowlin, Program Manager, Planning and Engineering, Transportation and Natural 

Resources (TNR) 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Shannon Steele, Benefits Administrator, Human Resources Management Department 

(HRMD) 
Mike Marcellus, Pastor, First Independent Baptist Church 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 24, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Special Items 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
3. Approve resolution recognizing Major Russell “Rusty” Lincoln Allen, U.S. Air Force, Retired, for 

his service to the City of Lago Vista and Travis County. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
MOTION: Approve the resolution in Item 3. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
4. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 263.152(A)(1), declare certain items 

surplus property and authorize equipment to be disposed of through Dell, Inc. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
5. Approve Modification No. 2 to Contract No. 4400001364, Meals on Wheels and More, Inc., for 

owner occupied home rehabilitation program. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
6. Approve Contract No. 4400001995, KG Empowerment Group, LLC for job readiness and GED 

preparation training services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
7. Approve contract award for Richard Moya Park shelter and bathroom repairs, IFB No. B1404-

011-JW, to the low bidder, AG Construction Management. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Approve resolution directing the lease of oil and gas in Tract 53 of the Travis County school 

land in Throckmorton County and authorize Purchasing Agent to issue bid. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Marvin Brice, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Christopher Gilmore, Assistant County Attorney 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 24, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

MOTION: Approve Item 8. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
9. Approve Contract No. 4400001972, Talking Points Psychotherapy, to provide trauma focused 

therapy for youth referred from the COPE Mental Health Court and Crossover Unit. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Approve contract award for cafeteria and vending concession services, RFS No. S1312-003-

LD, to Accent Food Services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
11. Approve Contract award for grounds maintenance in Travis County Parks, IFB No. 1404-001-

LD, to the lowest responsive bidder, International Building Services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Approve Modification No. 30 to Contract No. 4400000562 (H.T.E. Contract No. MA960322), 

Easy Access, Inc., for Tax Office computer system. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Approve Modification No. 5 to Contract No. 4400000257 (H.T.E. Contract No. CM090255LC), 

SAP Public Sector, Inc., for BEFIT software and maintenance support. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Nicki Riley, Travis County Auditor 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 13. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
14. Consider and take appropriate action on the acceptance of the dedication of the public street 

and drainage facilities within:   
 

a. Sorento, Phase One; and   
 
b. Sorento, Phase Two – two subdivisions in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 24, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

15. Consider and take appropriate action on the acceptance of the dedication of the public street 
and drainage facilities within Presidential Meadows, Section Five – a subdivision in Precinct 
One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Revised language: Consider and take appropriate action on a request for a variance to Title 

30-3-191 which requires sidewalks to be installed when subdividing land. (Commissioner Todd) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to 

vacate the five-foot wide public utility and drainage easements located along the common lot 
line of Lots 11 and 12, Block 51 of Austin Lake Hills, Section One, and along the common lot 
line of Lot 11, Block 51 of Austin Lake Hills, Section One and Lot 14, Block 51 of Austin Lake 
Hills, Section Two in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on request to post for public comment the draft Program 

Year 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan and Program Year 2014 Action Plan for the use of 
Community Development Block Grant funds provided by HUD. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Christy Moffett, Social Services Manager, Travis County Health and Human Services 

(TCHHS) 
 

MOTION: Post the draft document for public comment. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 19. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 24, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

20. Review and approve request to continue the Travis County Capital Americorps Project and use 
the Health and Human Services and Veterans Service Department’s budget for related 
personnel expenses until the FY 2015 Grant Contract is executed. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
21. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
22. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$844,172.67 for the period of June 6 to June 12, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
23. Receive an update on the Fiscal Year 2015 budget development process. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Nicki Riley, Travis County Auditor 
Leroy Nellis, Budget Director Succession, PBO 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate action on assumptions for Travis County regarding the following:   
 

a. Property tax rate considerations; and   
 
b. Notice of effective tax rate. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Renea Deckard, Associate Deputy, Collections, Tax Assessor Collector's Office 
Christina Cerda, Tax Specialist III, Tax Assessor Collector’s Office 

 
MOTION: Approve tax rate considerations 1.A-E, as recommended by staff. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that, by taking this action, the Commissioners Court is 
carrying over last year's tax rate considerations to this year. 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 24, Tax Rate Consideration 1.F would be considered in 
Executive Session pursuant to Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Clerk's Note: For this Item, Tax rate considerations 1.A-F are references to numbered items in 
the supporting backup document.  

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 24, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

25. Consider and take appropriate action on property tax rate considerations for the Travis County 
Healthcare District dba Central Health. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Renea Deckard, Associate Deputy, Collections, Tax Assessor Collector's Office 
Christina Cerda, Tax Specialist III, Tax Assessor Collector’s Office 

 
MOTION: Approve the tax rate considerations as recommended by staff. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
26. Consider and take appropriate action regarding recommendations to name the new Travis 

County District Attorney Office Building located at 416 W. 11th Street. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Roger El Khoury, Director, Facilities Management Department (FMD) 
Ken Oden, Former Travis County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Approve the recommendation to name the new District Attorney's Office 

building, "Ronald Earle Building." 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
27. Consider and take appropriate action on a request from the District Attorney’s Office to use the 

Commissioners Courtroom at 700 Lavaca on Friday, June 27, 2014 from 1:00 to 5:00 p.m. to 
conduct continuing legal education. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Justice and Public Safety Items 

 
28. Consider and take appropriate action regarding an interlocal agreement between Travis County, 

the City of Austin and the City of Westlake Hills related to a pilot project for an early warning 
wildfire detection system. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Services 
Jim Linardos, Assistant Director, Wildfire Division, Austin Fire Department 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 28. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 24, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

29. Consider and take appropriate action to approve the contract extension between the Office of 
Attorney General and the Travis County Domestic Relations Office for the Child Support 
Community Supervision Services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
30. Consider and take appropriate action on a memorandum of understanding between the Travis 

County Juvenile Board, Travis County, and the following independent school districts: Austin, 
Del Valle, Eanes, Lake Travis, Lago Vista, Leander, Manor, Pflugerville, and Round Rock 
regarding the Travis County Juvenile Justice Alternative Education Program for the 2014-2015 
school year. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
31. Draw names from the grand jury pool for Elected Officials Salary Grievance Committee for 2014 

as required by Section 152.015 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Ronald S. Morgan, Jr., Division Manager, Civil/Probate Division, County Clerk's Office 

 
Clerk's Note: The members of the Commissioners Court chose the following names from the 
Grand Jury pool to be candidates for the Salary Grievance Committee for 2014: Eric Jason 
Peavler, Mario Gamboa, Frederick A. Scott, Neel Mehta, Michael Kincaid, Joan Christo, Kim D. 
Jackson, Gene Wills, Brandon Taylor, Bill Allen, Olumide Onanuga; Brenda Smith, Andreana 
Ledesma, Leslie Roberge, Eddie Pearl Rucker, Shirley Johnson, Terry Wolfe, John Guerrero, 
Dale H. Curry, Keith Maxie, Sandra J. Pruneda, Doyne Bailey, Katherine James, and Patsy 
Andersen. 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Daniel Bradford, Assistant County Attorney 
Barbara Wilson, Assistant County Attorney 

 
32. Consider and take appropriate action on the property management agreement with Sentinel 

Lavaca Management Corporation associated with the 700 Lavaca Building.
 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 32 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 24, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

MOTION: Let the current agreement expire, and not renew it. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
33. Revised language: Consider and take appropriate action on lease issues at 700 Lavaca with 

BullionDirect, Inc.
 1 and 2

 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 33 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney, Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real Property 
and Gov't. Code Ann. 551.076, Security. 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that the Commissioners Court has decided to let the current 
lease run its course and not renew it. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
34. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Ginger Gould.
 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 34 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Present a counter-offer to settle this matter in the amount of $2,000.00. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
35. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Idiris Hasan.
 1

 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 35 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Accept the settlement offer of $3,464.34. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
36. Consider and take appropriate action for economic development incentive agreement with 

Project Blueland Prairie.
 5
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 36 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov't. Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
37. Receive briefing and consultation with the County Attorney regarding protests filed with the 

Appraisal Review Board and/or the certification of commercial and industrial property values in 
Travis County by the Travis Central Appraisal District pursuant to the Texas Property Tax  
Code.

 1
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 24, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 37 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Consent Items 
 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C2 and Agenda Items 4, 5, 6, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 
14.a–b, 15, 16, 17, 20, 21, 22, 27, 29, and 30. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Added Items 

 
A1. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. Approve the use and allocation of investment income earned on 2001 Bond Proposition 
No. 1 proceeds are recommended to be allocated evenly by precinct or transfer the 
investment income to the Interest and Sinking Fund;   

 
b. Authorize TNR to begin submitting agenda requests to use $4,796,256 of investment 

income earned on 2001 Bond Proposition No. 1 proceeds for applicable projects;   
 
c. Authorize TNR to apply $59,082 from the remaining 201 Precinct One Road Bond Savings 

and $145,818 of Precinct One’s portion of the 2001 Proposition No. 1 investment income to 
the Decker Lane Sidewalk Project grant match; and   

 
d. Authorize TNR to apply $350,000 of Precinct One’s portion of the 2001 Proposition No. 1 

investment income toward a required grant match for the Braker Lane roadway extension 
project from Samsung Boulevard to Harris Branch Parkway. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carol Joseph, Assistant Director, TNR 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve staff's recommendation under Item A1.a, which is to allocate the 

money evenly, by precinct. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 
 
MOTION: Approve Item A1.b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 24, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 10 
 

 
MOTION: Approve Items A1.c and d. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
A2. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a request from the Joint Subcommittee for a 

joint resolution in support of and funding for the Family Resource Centers. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Mel Waxler, Chief of Staff, Austin Independent School District (AISD) 
Donna Hagey, Executive Director, The Austin Project (TAP) 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Approve the resolution in Item A2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Thursday, June 26, 2014  

 Employee Public Hearing 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

June 26, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Employee Public Hearing called to order on June 26, 2014, in the Travis County Administration 
Building, Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, 
County Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Agenda Items 

 
1. Travis County Employee Public Hearing on compensation and benefits (for both active and 

retired County employees) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Members of the Court heard from: 
John Rabb, Benefits Manager, Human Resources Management Department (HRMD) 
Shannon Steele, Benefits Administrator, HRMD 
Todd Osburn, Compensation Manager, HRMD 
Debbie Maynor, Director, HRMD 
Tina Salazar, Human Resources Manager, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Jayson Collins, Equipment Operator Senior, TNR 
Adrian Lorrain, Automotive Mechanic, TNR 
James Hays, Retiree 
Edgar Gonzalez, Parks Maintenance Worker, TNR 
Jeffrey Quimby, Equipment Operator, TNR 
Lloyd Rendon, Road Maintenance Supervisor, TNR 
Neelie Kildow, Park Tech I, TNR 
Maria Alvarez, Park Tech I, TNR 
Suzanne Garrett, Retiree 
Dennis Tague, Park Maintenance Worker, TNR 
Giovanni Mastromatteo, Retiree 
Brett Spicer, Senior Deputy, Law Enforcement, Travis County Sheriff's Office (TCSO) and 

President, Travis County Sheriff Law Enforcement Association (TCSLEA) 
Carol Guthrie, Business Manager, Local 1624, American Federation of State, County and 

Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 
Edgardo Garcia, Mechanic Supervisor, TNR 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



June 26, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Matthew Gibson, Equipment Operator Senior, TNR 
Johnny Salinas, Road Maintenance Worker, TNR 
Floyd Futschik, Equipment Operator, TNR 
Andrew Smith, Automotive Mechanic, TNR 
Ray Garza, Equipment Mechanic, TNR 
John Shepherd, Park Tech I, TNR 
Keith Pate, Automotive Mechanic, TNR 
Jennifer Johnson-Allcorn, Court Clerk II, Travis County Clerk's Office 
Barton James, Automotive Mechanic, TNR 
Judy Cortez, President, Local 1624, AFSCME 
Steven Broberg, Director, Records Management and Communication Resources (RMCR) 
Campbell White, Travis County Sheriff's Officers Association (TCSOA) 
Morgan Skidmore, Park Tech I, TNR 
Ronald Proctor, TNR 
Rogaciano Ramos, Equipment Mechanic, TNR 
Ivan Cortez Flores, Travis County employee 
Juliet Thomas, Road Maintenance Worker, TNR 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, July 1, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

July 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on July 1, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, Commissioners 
Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk, was 
represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Public Hearings 

 
1. Receive comments regarding a request for a total plat cancellation of the revised plat of Lot 1 

Block A, Angel Bay subdivision in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) (Action Item #9) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Anna Bowlin, Program Manager, Planning and Engineering, Transportation and Natural 

Resources (TNR) 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
2. Receive comments regarding the proposed Program Year 2014 to Program Year 2018 

Consolidated Plan and Program Year 2014 Action Plan including the proposed strategic goals 
and use of Community Development Block Grant funds available through HUD. 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Christy Moffett, Social Services Manager, Travis County Health and Human Services 

(TCHHS) 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted that those desiring more information on this topic may contact 
Christy Moffett at 512-854-3460. 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
3. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
4. Introduction of Kelli Forester, new Senior Warden of the Travis State Jail, to the Travis County 

Commissioners Court. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Kelli Forester, Senior Warden, Travis State Jail 
Kimberly Pierce, Planning Manager, Criminal Justice Planning (CJP) 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
5. Approve twelve-month extension (Modification No. 5) to Contract No. 4400000356, Austin State 

Hospital for environmental services for City offices. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
6. Approve Modification No. 2, an assignment of Contract No. 4400001546 from Sandy Martinez, 

dba Vega Septic and Environmental Services, to VSE Septic Services, LLC. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

7. Approve Modification No. 3 to Interlocal Agreement No. 4400001009, City of Austin, Summer 
Youth Employment Program. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Approve Modification No. 3 to Contract No. 4400001686, APAC of Texas, Inc. (Wheeler 

Companies) for Fiscal Year 2013 HMAC overlay program. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action on a request for a total plat cancellation of the revised plat 

of Lot 1 Block A, Angel Bay subdivision in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to use two cash security agreements for 

Avalon, Phase 9B in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to use multiple cash security agreements 

with Gehan Homes Ltd., for sidewalk fiscal for Commons at Rowe Lane, Phase 4A:   
 

a. Lot 11 Block FF- $698.55;  
 
b. Lot 21 Block FF - $937.65;  
 
 c. Lot 22 Block FF - $722.25;   
 
d. Lot 33 Block O - $1,212.30; and   
 
e. Lot 1 Block P - $4,026.90 in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to use alternative fiscal agreement for the 

Park at Blackhawk IV, Section 6A in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Receive update and take appropriate action regarding ongoing efforts in central Texas to 

organize an entity for the purpose of identifying needs and options for assuring adequate water 
service for the region in order to ensure the health of its citizens and the economic viability of 
the region. (Commissioner Gómez) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Pix Howell, President, Coalition of Central Texas Utilities Development Corporation (UDC) 

Board of Directors 
Jon White, Natural Resource Environmental Quality Division Director, TNR 
Tom Weber, Environmental Program Manager, TNR 

 
MOTION: Indicate the Commissioners Court's intention to continue participation in a 

regional collaboration, with Commissioner Gómez continuing as the Court’s 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

representative, and Commissioner Daugherty as alternate. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
14. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. Public review of draft land water and transportation plan; and   
 
b. Implementation of proposed public engagement plan. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Anna Bowlin, Program Manager, Planning and Engineering, TNR 
Randy Nicholson, Long Range Planning Manager, TNR 
Wendy Scaperotta, Planning Project Manager, TNR 
Charlie Watts, Senior Planner, TNR 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Melissa Zone, Senior Planner, TNR 

 
MOTION: Disseminate the draft document to the public for comment, incorporating the 

changes suggested by the Court, and approve the public engagement plan. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Margaret J. Gómez 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe requested staff to create a summary document that sets forth the 
essence of the plan, in Spanish and English. 

 
15. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a proposed motion authorizing the International 

Quidditch Association to charge an admission fee per person at Travis County's Northeast 
Metro Park soccer fields during the Quidditch World Cup April 4 and 5, 2015. 
 
RESULT: PULLED 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Anna Bowlin, Program Manager, Planning and Engineering, TNR 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 16. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

17. Review and approve annual application to the Texas Council for Developmental Disabilities to 
continue the implementation process of the Accessible Parking Public Awareness Campaign in 
the office of the Constable, Precinct Five. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos Lopez, Constable, Precinct 5 
Dorie Pickle, Director, Creative Pickle 
Leslie Pool, Executive Assistant, Constable Precinct 5 
 

MOTION: Approve Item 17. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
19. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$940,920.56 for the period of June 13 to June 19, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
20. Consider and take appropriate action on request for staffing of the 700 Lavaca Building. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Roger El Khoury, Director, Facilities Management Department (FMD) 
Leroy Nellis, Budget Director Succession, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 20. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Justice and Public Safety Items 

 
21. Receive update on status of the Conference of Urban Counties TechShare Courts Project. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Justice and Public Safety (JPS) 
Julie Kocurek, Judge, 390th District Court 
Tanya Acevedo, Chief Information Officer, Information Technology Services (ITS) 
David Lampl, Project Manager, ITS 
Janice Brown, Division Manager, Application Support, ITS 
Charles Gray, TechShare Program Director for Texas Conference of Urban Counties 

(CUC) 
John Hille, Assistant County Attorney 
Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County Clerk 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

22. Consider and take appropriate action on a report on the cost drivers of civil indigent defense 
expenditures. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive, JPS 
Darlene Byrne, Judge, 126

th
 District Court 

Leslie Hill, Managing Attorney, Office of Child Representation, CJP 
Laura Kennedy, Managing Attorney, Office of Parental Representation, CJP 
Mitchell Goertz, Financial Analyst, CJP 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
23. Consider and take appropriate action on request to hire retired Associate Judge William “Bill” 

King as Visiting Associate Judge for Juvenile Matters and Civil Courts. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate action regarding guidelines for internship agreement between 

Travis County and the Austin Community College Center for Public Policy and Political Studies. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Debbie Maynor, Director, Human Resources Management Department (HRMD) 
Peck Young, Director, Center for Public Policy and Political Studies, Austin Community 

College 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
25. Consider and take appropriate action for economic development incentive agreement with 

Project Blueland Prairie.
 5 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 25 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov't. Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations. 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 7/8/2014 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

26. Consider and take appropriate action regarding security issues at the 700 Lavaca Street 
Building.

 4
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 26 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.076, Security. 

MOTION: Authorize the Facilities Management Department (FMD) to manage the 
space after October 31, 2014. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
27. Receive briefing and consultation with the County Attorney in Travis County, et al v. Gilbert 

Castro, Jr. and Gilbert Castro, Sr. (Steven M. Gavenda resale deed) and take appropriate 
action.

 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 27 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Execute the proposed tax resale deed to Steven M. Gavenda, who has paid 
Travis County the sum of $40,000.00 in cash. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

MOTION: Authorize the County Judge to sign the proposed tax resale deeds in Items 
27-31 on behalf of the Commissioners Court. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
28. Receive briefing and consultation with the County Attorney in Travis County, et al v. Texas 

12405, LLC (Karen and Robert Wallace resale deed) and take appropriate action.
 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 28 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Execute the proposed tax resale deed to Karen and Robert Wallace, who 
have paid Travis County the sum of $1,250.00 in cash. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: The Court authorized the County Judge to sign the proposed tax resale deeds in 
Items 27-31 on behalf of the Commissioners Court. Please refer to Item 27 for the Court's 
Motion and Vote. 

 
29. Receive briefing and consultation with the County Attorney in Travis County, et al v. Mark Eaves 

(Stacey Schafer resale deed) and take appropriate action.
 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 29 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

MOTION: Execute two proposed tax resale deeds to Stacey Schafer, who has paid 
Travis County the sum of $2,950.00 in cash for the property at 11406 
Bertram Street, and $18,500.00 in cash for the property at 11404 Bertram 
Street. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: The Court authorized the County Judge to sign the proposed tax resale deeds in 
Items 27-31 on behalf of the Commissioners Court. Please refer to Item 27 for the Court's 
Motion and Vote. 

 
30. Receive briefing and consultation with the County Attorney in Travis County, et al v. Texas 

12405, LLC (Jessica Kristin May Garcia resale deed) and take appropriate action.
 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 30 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Execute the proposed tax resale deed to Jessica Kristin May Garcia, who 
has paid Travis County the sum of $1,060.00 in cash. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: The Court authorized the County Judge to sign the proposed tax resale deeds in 
Items 27-31 on behalf of the Commissioners Court. Please refer to Item 27 for the Court's 
Motion and Vote. 

 
31. Receive briefing and consultation with the County Attorney in Travis County, et al v. Leonora K. 

Monroe (Dean Carey Joseph Peer resale deed) and take appropriate action.
 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 31 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Execute the proposed tax resale deed to Dean Carey Joseph Peer, who has 
paid Travis County the sum of $3,000.00 in cash. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: The Court authorized the County Judge to sign the proposed tax resale deeds in 
Items 27-31 on behalf of the Commissioners Court. Please refer to Item 27 for the Court's 
Motion and Vote. 

Consent Items 
 

C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, August 5, 2014 to receive comments regarding a 

request for a partial plat cancellation of Sweetwater Ranch Section One Village I final plat in 
Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C3 and Agenda Items 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11.a–e, 
12, 18, 19, and 23. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Added Items 

 
A1. Consider and take appropriate action on the following employee related healthcare items for 

Fiscal Year 2015 Plan Year, effective October 1, 2014:   
 

a. FY2015 Health Benefit Plan design changes;   
 
b. Contribution levels for Travis County employee health plans for FY2015;   
 
c. Funding of fully insured vision insurance for FY2015;   
 
d. FY2015 open enrollment dates as August 1 through August 30, 2014; and   
 
e. Passive open enrollment process for FY2015, allowing employees to continue with current 

benefit elections if no action is taken by employee with the exception of two flexible 
spending accounts, employee only vision coverage and employee only PPO health 
coverage. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
John Rabb, Benefits Manager, Human Resources Management Department (HRMD) 
Shannon Steele, Benefits Administrator, HRMD 

 
MOTION: Approve Item A1.a. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 
 
MOTION: Approve Option I under Item A1.b, as recommended by staff. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 
 
MOTION: Approve Option I under Item A1.c, as recommended by staff. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 
 
MOTION: Approve Item A1.d. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 1, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 10 
 

MOTION: Approve Item A1.e. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
A2. Consider and take appropriate action on a request from the Austin Bar Association to lease 

space at 700 Lavaca. (This item will be taken in Executive Session under the Consultation 
with Attorney and Real Property exceptions) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Christopher J. Oddo, President, Austin Bar Association 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item A2 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, July 8, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

July 8, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on July 8, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, Commissioners 
Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk, was 
represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Absent   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Public Hearings 

 
1. Receive comments regarding the total plat cancellation of The Vistas at Pedernales Canyon 

Trail (11 lots – Pedernales Canyon Trail – water by rainwater harvesting and on site 
wastewater) in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) (Action Item #16) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Anna Bowlin, Program Manager, Planning and Engineering, Transportation and Natural 

Resources (TNR) 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

 
2. Receive comments regarding the proposed Program Year 2014 to Program Year 2018 

Consolidated Plan and Program Year 2014 Action Plan Including the proposed strategic goals 
and use of Community Development Block Grant funds available through HUD. 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 8, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Christy Moffett, Social Services Manager, Travis County Health and Human Services 

(TCHHS) 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted that those desiring more information or wishing to submit 
comments may contact Christy Moffett at 512-854-3460; e-mail at CDBG@co.travis.tx; or mail 
comments or questions to P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX 78767. 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
3. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
4. Announcement of Commissioners Court staff’s food drive during the month of July to benefit the 

Travis County Food Pantry at the Palm Square Emergency Assistance Center. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Madison Gessner, Executive Assistant, County Commissioner Precinct 3 Office 
David Salazar, Executive Assistant, County Judge's Office 
Deone Wilhite, Executive Assistant, County Commissioner Precinct 1 Office 
Joe Hon, Aide, County Commissioner Precinct 2 Office 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 8, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
5. Receive briefing on the 2013 CAN Community Dashboard Report. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Vanessa Sarria, Executive Director, Community Advancement Network (CAN) 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
6. Receive update from Austin/Travis County Health and Human Services Department on 

comprehensive public health planning. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos Rivera, Director, Austin-Travis County Health and Human Services (A-TCHHS) 
Shannon Jones, Deputy Director, A-TCHHS 
Dr. Philip Huang, Medical Director, A-TCHHS 
Veena Viswanathan, Program Manager, A-TCHHS 
Ana Almaguel, Planning Project Manager, TCHHS 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
7. Receive update on Austin/Travis County Animal Services Office. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Abigail Smith, Animal Services Officer, Austin/Travis County Animal Services Office 
Chris Noble, Deputy Chief Animal Services Officer, Austin/Travis County Animal Services 

Office 
Ana Almaguel, Planning Project Manager, TCHHS 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
8. Receive and discuss the Travis County Healthcare District d/b/a Central Health preliminary 

budget overview for Fiscal Year 2015. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Larry Wallace, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, Central Health 
John Stevens, Director, Financial Planning and Management, Central Health 
Jeff Knodel, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Central Health 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action on resolution from the Sustainable Food Policy Board 

requesting that Travis County provide support to non-profit agencies to assist residents with 
applications for SNAP benefits (food stamps). 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Kathy Green, Senior Director of Advocacy and Public Policy, Capital Area Food Bank, 

Member, Austin-Travis County Sustainable Food Policy Board 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 8, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
10. Authorize Purchasing Agent to commence negotiations with the most highly qualified firm, 

Freese and Nichols, Inc., for engineering services, request for qualifications (RFQ) No. Q1402-
005-AG, Blake Manor Road improvements design services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
11. Declare used computer network equipment as surplus and authorize trade-in for purchase of 

new equipment, pursuant to section 263.152(A)(2) of the Texas Local Government Code. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Approve Modification No. 6 to Contract No. 4400001068, ImageSoft Inc., for imaging and 

document management system and maintenance. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Approve Modification No. 9 to Contract No. 4400001633, Kiewit Building Group, for Executive 

Office Building (EOB) HVAC upgrades project. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
14. Approve modification No. 4 to Contract No. 4400000114, Klotz Associates, for Bee Creek road 

design project. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Consider and take appropriate action on requests to use space at 700 Lavaca with free parking 

as follows:    
 

a. National Economic Research Associates to host focus groups and stakeholder meetings 
between July 28 through September 4, 2014 for vendors participating in the County’s 
Disparity Study; and    

 
RESULT: PULLED 

 
b. Flintco Constructive Solutions, LLC to host a HUB networking mixer on Thursday, July 17, 

2014 for subcontracting opportunities related to the office building and parking structure at 
416 W. 11th Street. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action on the total plat cancellation of The Vistas at Pedernales 

Canyon Trail (11 lots – Pedernales Canyon Trail – water by rainwater harvesting and on site 
wastewater) in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 8, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

17. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. A variance to Chapter 82.202(B) Connections to Existing Subdivisions; and   
 
b. The amended Masonwood 71 and Terra Colinas preliminary plan (519 lots on 194.2 acres 

– Highway 71 – water and wastewater by Travis County MUD 18) in Precinct Three. 
(Commissioner Daugherty) 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. Staff recommended responses to Travis Austin Recovery Group’s “Flood Recovery in 
Action: Moving Toward a Safe and Healthy Future” dated May 2014; and   

 
b. Transportation and Natural Resources Department to continue buy-outs with available 

funds, seek grant funds and submit fund requests during periodic bond referendums for 
future purchases. 

 
Members of the Court heard from: 

Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Pete Baldwin, Travis County Emergency Management Coordinator 
Stacey Scheffel, Program Manager, On-site Sewage Facilities, TNR 
Laura Sovine, Case Management Coordinator, Family Support Services, HHS 
Melinda Mallia, Environmental Project Manager, TNR 

 
Clerk's Note: Item 18.a was discussed. 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 18.b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted that those requiring case management services may contact 
Laura Sovine at 512-854-2131. 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
20. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related 

special budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. New grant application to the March of Dimes to expand and enhance the Becoming a Mom 
Program for pregnant women incarcerated at the Travis County Correctional Complex in 
the Travis County Sheriff’s Office; and   

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 8, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

b. New advance funding agreement with Texas Department of Transportation and related 
interlocal with the City of Austin to receive resources for the Decker Lane sidewalk project 
to be managed by the Transportation and Natural Resources Department. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 20.b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

 
21. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
22. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$1,490,398.86 for the period of June 20 to June 26, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
23. a. Review and approve tuition reimbursements for employees who have completed classes in  

accordance with the Tuition Reimbursement Program Section 10.020 through 10.022; and   
   

b. Authorize the County Auditor and Treasurer’s Office to reimburse employees as listed. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate action regarding internship agreement between Travis County 

and the Austin Community College Center for Public Policy and Political Studies. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Executive Session Items 

 
25. Consider and take appropriate action for economic development incentive agreement with 

Project Blueland Prairie.
 5 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 25 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov't. Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe directed staff to continue with negotiations. 
 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 8, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

26. Consider and take appropriate action on a request from the Austin Bar Association to lease 
space and/or other County space at 700 Lavaca.

 1 and 2 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 26 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that, with the Court's consent, he will communicate with the 
representatives of the Austin Bar Association. 

 
27. Receive briefing and consultation with County Attorney regarding the Conference of Urban 

Counties TechShare Courts Project.
 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 27 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
28. Receive briefing regarding real estate transaction with Park Properties I for the Balcones 

Canyonlands Preserve.
 1 and 2 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 28 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that the Court discussed the need for title insurance on this 
item. This item will be reposted next week, July 15, 2014, as an appropriate action item, in order 
for the Court to ratify title insurance. 

Consent Items 
 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Receive revenue and expenditure reports, and other statutorily required reports, for the month 

of May, 2014 from the County Auditor’s Office. 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C3 and Agenda Items 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15.b, 
16, 17, 19, 20.a, 21, 22, 23.a–b, 24. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 8, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, July 15, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

July 15, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on July 15, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Absent   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
1. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
2. Approve resolution honoring James Michael Barr, AIA, on his retirement from the Travis County 

Facilities Management Department after over 18 years of service to Travis County residents. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jim Barr, Senior Project Manager, Facilities Management Department (FMD) 
Roger El-Khoury, Director, FMD 
Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Services 
Leroy Nellis, Budget Director Succession, PBO 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 15, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Ken Gaede, Senior Project Manager, FMD 
Leslie Stricklan, Travis County resident 

 
MOTION: Approve the resolution in Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

 
3. Approve proclamation recognizing July 13 through 19, 2014 as “Pretrial, Probation and Parole 

Supervision Week” in Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Charles Robinson, Director, Adult Probation, Community Supervision and Corrections 

Department (CSCD) 
Darryl Beatty, Chief Deputy, Juvenile Probation 
Britton Canary, Chief Deputy, Juvenile Probation 

 
MOTION: Approve the proclamation in Item 3. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
5. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related 

special budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. New application to the Capital Metropolitan Planning Organization for the allocation of 
future Surface Transportation Program Metropolitan Mobility Funds for years 2015 – 2019 
to be managed by the Transportation and Natural Resources Department;   

 
b. New advance funding agreement with Texas Department of Transportation to receive 

federal resources for the Braker Lane North Project to be managed by the Transportation 
and Natural Resources Department;   

 
c. Contract amendment with the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 

to extend the Day Enrichment Program in the Juvenile Treatment Drug Court in the 
Juvenile Probation Department; and   

 
d. Contract amendment with the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention to 

extend the Day Enrichment Program in the Juvenile Treatment Drug Court in the Juvenile 
Probation Department. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 15, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

6. Consider and take appropriate action on the following items from Human Resources 
Management Department:   

 
a. Proposed routine personnel amendments; and   
 

RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 
 
b. Non-routine POPS salary adjustment request from Constable Precinct Two for a variance 

to Travis County Code Section 10.0295, Peace Officer Pay Scale. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Todd Osburn, Compensation Manager, Human Resources Management Department 

(HRMD) 
Adan Ballasteros, Constable, Precinct 2 
Edward Howell, Office Supervisor, Constable Precinct 2 Office 

 
MOTION: Approve the request by Constable Precinct 2. 
MOVER: Margaret Gómez, Commissioner 
RESULT: DIED FOR LACK OF A SECOND 

 
7. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$1,043,035.09 for the period of June 27 to July 3, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action to relocate the two District Clerk I-Jury and Passport 

offices to vacant space on the second floor of 5501 Airport Boulevard Building and reallocate 
project savings to fund the construction and moves. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
9. Approve contract award for the Travis County Correctional Complex Building 130 – domestic 

hot water boiler replacement, IFB No. 1403-009-AG, to the low bidder, Commercial Plumbing 
Specialist, LLC. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Approve Contract No. 4400002103, Dr. Kimberly S. Harrison, for psychological and psychiatric 

services as requested by the courts. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on submittal of comments to the U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency and U.S. Department of Defense on a proposed rule defining "Waters of the 
United States" as that term applies under the Federal Clean Water Act. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Tom Weber, Environmental Program Manager, TNR 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 15, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 11 and authorize Judge Biscoe to sign on behalf of the 

Commissioners Court. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted that persons desiring more information on this topic may contact 
Tom Weber at 512-854-4629. 

 
12. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. Use of an alternative fiscal agreement for Avalon, Phase 6B; and   
 
b. Use of a cash security agreement for the fiscal posting for Avalon, Phase 6B – all within 

Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. Consider and take appropriate action on a plat for recording: Parke North final plat (final 
plat with approved preliminary plan – 4 lots – 47.92 acres – Ranch Road 620 North – City 
of Austin 2-mile ETJ);   

 
b. A Travis County subdivision construction agreement between Travis County and Nootsie, 

Ltd; and   
 
c. A reciprocal easement agreement between Travis County and Nootsie, Ltd, in Precinct 

Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
14. Approve purchase of title insurance for real estate transaction with Park Properties I for the 

Balcones Canyonlands Preserve. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the first amendment of a conservation 

easement between Concordia University and Travis County. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action on request to approve signature authority for Gloria 

Souhami, Director of the Travis County Underage Drinking Prevention Program, for letters of 
support for related community programs. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 15, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

17. Receive update and take appropriate action regarding STAR Vote™ and recent feature in 
Discover Magazine. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County Clerk 
Alan Miller, Senior Budget Analyst, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 
Walter Lagrone, Director, Information Technology Services (ITS) 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed new tax assessment and collection 

agreement with the Travis County Municipal Utility District Number 1. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on the reappointment of Carole Hurley to the Child 

Protective Services Board for a three-year term beginning immediately. (Commissioner Todd) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
20. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the potential purchase of real estate in south 

Austin.
 1 and 2 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 20 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 
 
MOTION: Authorize staff to conduct an appraisal of the property in question. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

 
21. Consider and take appropriate action regarding economic development incentive agreement 

with Project Blue Horseshoe.
 5 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 21 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov't. Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Katie Gipson, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 15, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

MOTION: Authorize a public hearing on the request for incentives, scheduled for July 
29, 2014 at 9:00 AM. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

Consent Items 
 

C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C2 and Agenda Items 4, 5.a–d, 6.a, 7, 8, 9, 10, 
12.a–b, 13.a–c, 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, and A1. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty 

Added Items 

 
A1. Receive the Fiscal Year 2013 compiled financial statements for Emergency Services District 13 

and Fiscal Year 2013 financial audit reports for Emergency Services Districts 1, 8, and 11. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, July 22, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

July 22, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on July 22, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
A1. Receive briefing and take appropriate action regarding local public and private efforts to provide 

clothing, food, personal necessities and other assistance to migrant minors in south Texas. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Reverend Lisa Saunders, Director, St. James Episcopal Church 
Naomi Friedman, Congregation Beth Israel 
Bob Batlan, Austin Interfaith 
Carlotta Garcia, Austin Interfaith 
Bill Beardall, Executive Director, Equal Justice Center 
Caitlin Boehne, Attorney, Equal Justice Center 
Jacob Cortes, Lead Organizer, Austin Interfaith 
Betsy Markman, Travis County resident 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item A1 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 22, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted that cash donations will also be accepted, with checks made out 
to St. James Church. The check's memo line should read "McAllen Outreach." St. James 
Episcopal Church is located at 1941 Webberville Road, Austin, TX 78721. Donations may also 
be brought to the Dell Jewish Community Center, 7300 Hart Ln., Austin, until 5:00 PM, Friday, 
July 25, 2014. The Catholic Diocese and Episcopal Diocese of Austin are also organizing foster 
care programs. Information is available on their websites. Legal service support is also 
requested. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
1. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
2. Receive update from County staff regarding July Food Drive benefiting the Food Pantry at 

Travis County’s Emergency Assistance Center at Palm Square. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Madison Gessner, Executive Assistant, County Commissioner Precinct 3 Office 
Deone Wilhite, Executive Assistant, County Commissioner Precinct 1 Office 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
3. Consider and take appropriate action regarding approval of agricultural leases on parks/open 

space tracts in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on an interlocal cooperation agreement with the Lower 

Colorado River Authority (LCRA) for cultural resources investigation services on LCRA owned 
lands leased to Travis County. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
5. Receive briefing from Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority regarding bus service it 

provides in Travis County. (Commissioner Davis and Commissioner Gómez) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Todd Hemingson, Vice President, Strategic Planning and Development, Capital 

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Cap Metro) 
David Marsh, General Manager, Capital Area Rural Transportation Service (CARTS) 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 22, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action on the following items related to the 2015-2017 Urban 

County Renewal Process for the Community Development Block Grant available through HUD:   
 

a. Update on interested municipalities joining the Urban County;   
 
b. Request to move forward with executing the amendment to the cooperation agreement 

with Village of Webberville; and   
 
c. Authorize submission to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, San 

Antonio Field Office, Region VI. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans 

Service (TCHHS&VS) 
 
MOTION: Approve Item 6. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
7. Consider and take appropriate action to approve the application to continue the Financial 

Support Plus 1 Program with the City of Austin, Austin Energy that provides utility assistance for 
Travis County low-income households that are customers of Austin Energy in FY14. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action to approve revenue contracts with Boys and Girls Clubs of 

the Austin Area and Cedars International Academy for after school enrichment services 
provided by Travis County through the Texas A&M Agrilife Extension Service. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related 

special budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. Amendment to the contract with the Corporation for National and Community Service for a 
one-time augmentation of the grant award for the Coming of Age Program in the Health 
and Human Services and Veterans Service Department; and    

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 22, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

b. Ratification of an amendment to the contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal 
Justice Division to deobligate unspent funds from the FY 2013 award for the Drug 
Diversion Court Program in the Pretrial Services Department. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on the following items from Human Resources 

Management Department:   
 

a. Proposed routine personnel amendments; and   
 
b. Non-routine salary adjustment request from Health and Human Services for a variance to 

Travis County Code Section 10.03002, Salary Adjustment Greater Than 10% Above 
Midpoint. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Consider and take appropriate action on request from the Fire Marshal’s Office to move six 

positions from the Classified Pay Scale to the Peace Officer Pay Scale. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Todd Osburn, Compensation Manager, Human Resources Management Department 

(HRMD) 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 
Debbie Maynor, Director, HRMD 
Tony Callaway, Assistant Travis County Fire Marshal 
Daniel Berger, Deputy Fire Marshal 
Greg Powell, Representative, Local 1624, American Federation of State, County and 

Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 
Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Services 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
13. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$1,669,083.12 for the period of July 4 to July 10, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
14. Approve twelve (12) month extension (Modification No. 3) for plumbing services, Contract No. 

4400001073, to Ben’s Sprinkler & Plumbing Service. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Approve contract award for Travis County Correctional Complex, paving & drainage repairs, IFB 

No. B1404-007-JE, to the low bidder, Green Constructors. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 22, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

16. Approve contract award for El Rey Sidewalk Improvements Project, IFB No. B1403-007-LP, to 
the lowest bidder, QA Construction Services, Inc. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. a.     Receive and consider bids for IFB1406-003-JW, Travis County School Land Oil and Gas  

 Lease; and   
 

b. Authorize staff to evaluate received bids. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Marvin Brice, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Dee Hertig, Land Manager, S B Street & Co. 

 
MOTION: Approve Items 17.a and b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on approval of Contract No. 4400002131, Access 

Empowerment for Parking Mobility Services. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Cyd Grimes, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
Mack Marsh, Project Director, Parking Mobility 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 18. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Gerald Daugherty 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
19. Revised language: Approve contract and order exempting the purchase of Noble Assessment 

Platform from Noble Software Group LLC from the competitive procurement process pursuant 
to Section 262.024 (A) (7) (A) of the County Purchasing Act. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
20. Declare listing of certain equipment as missing and authorize removal from the fixed asset 

inventory, pursuant to Section 3.10.4 of the Travis County Fixed Asset Policy and Procedures 
Manual and Travis County Code 33.037. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
21. Consider and take appropriate action to appoint Carla Jenkins to the Sustainable Food Policy 

Board to fill the unexpired term of Michelle Murphy-Smith effective immediately through 
February 28, 2015. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 22, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

22. Consider and take appropriate action to appoint Felipe Camacho to the Sustainable Food Policy 
Board to fill the unexpired term of Paula McDermott effective immediately through February 28, 
2015. (Commissioner Gómez) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
23. Consider and take appropriate action on 2014 Parcel Fee Rate. 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that the 2014 Parcel Rate is set at $1.27. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
24. Receive update and take appropriate action on working groups to explore legislative and legal 

remedies for alleged inequities in the property appraisal system. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Deece Eckstein, Intergovernmental Relations Officer, Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) 
James Collins, Senior Chief Deputy County Attorney 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 24 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
25. Discuss and take appropriate action on proposed revisions to the Travis County Code, Chapter 

15, Drug and Alcohol Policy.
 1 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carol Guthrie, Business Manager, Local 1624, AFSCME 
Caitlin Brown, Policy Director, Local 1624 AFSCME 
Bill Paterson, Risk Manager, HRMD 
Debbie Maynor, Director, HRMD 
John Brady, Senior Risk and Safety Specialist, HRMD 
Barbara Wilson, Assistant County Attorney 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 25 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 7/29/2014 

Clerk's Note: The Court directed staff to prepare additional information on this topic for the 
Court to consider. 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 22, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

26. Consider and take appropriate action on the TechShare Courts Project.
 1
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Justice and Public Safety (JPS) 
Tanya Acevedo, Chief Information Officer, Information Technology Services (ITS) 
Charles Gray, TechShare Program Director for Texas Conference of Urban Counties 

(CUC) 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 26 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
MOTION: Approve the following items from the list provided by the CUC: 

○ Item 2: Approve a contract with Headspring Systems for an independent 
review of the AMCAD source code, at a cost not to exceed $30,780.00. 
Travis County's share of that cost would be roughly 1/5.  

○ Item 5: Prepare an updated Project Addendum, including a revised 
schedule and confirmation of the approved budget, for consideration by 
the Stakeholder Committee. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 
 
Clerk's Note: Commissioner Davis noted that it is critical that all performance measures and 
timelines for this issue be met. 

 
27. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Ginger Gould.
 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 27 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Counter the counter-offer to settle in the amount of $1,700.00 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Margaret J. Gómez 

 
28. Consider and take appropriate action on an offer to sell an approximately 1.05 acre tract of land 

and an approximately 1.53 acre tract of land – for a combined total of 2.58 acres, along with 
associated improvements - located south of Onion Creek and west of U.S. Highway 183, for 
inclusion in the Eastern Creeks Open Space Project as part of the 2011 Bond Program, in 
Precinct Four. 

2
 (Commissioner Gómez) 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 28 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 7/29/2014 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 22, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

Consent Items 
 

C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and Authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 

 
RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, July 29, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

July 29, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on July 29, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Public Hearings 

 
1. Receive public comments on proposed economic development incentive agreement with 

Charles Schwab Corporation. 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Katie Gipson, Senior Budget Analyst, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney 
Kelli Keough, Senior Vice President; Client Experience, Charles Schwab 
David King, Travis County resident 
Pete Winsted, Vice Chair, Economic Development, Austin Chamber of Commerce 
Marina Bhargava, Executive Director, Austin Asian Chamber of Commerce 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 
Bart Matheney, Travis County resident 
Charisse Bodisch, Vice President, Economic Development, Greater Austin Chamber of 

Commerce 
Glenn Cooper, Senior Vice President, Corporate Real Estate, Charles Schwab 

 
MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 29, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Shannon Steele, Benefits Administrator, Human Resources Management Department 

(HRMD) 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Thomas Bryan, Travis County resident 
Gavino Fernandez, Director, District 12, League of United Latin American Citizens 

(LULAC) 
Julian Limon Fernandez, Travis County resident 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 
Jacob Cortes, Lead Organizer, Austin Interfaith 

Special Items 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
3. Approve Modification No. 3 to Contract No. 4400001386, Bug Master, for pest control services. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
4. Approve contract awards for geotechnical and construction testing services, RFQ # Q1403-003-

PS, and allow Purchasing Agent to assign resulting contracts to the following qualified firms:   
 

a. 4400002091, Mla Labs Inc.;   
 
b. 4400002093, Raba Kistner Consultants, Inc.;   
 
c. 4400002094, Alpha Testing, Inc.;   
 
d. 4400002095 Engineering Consulting Services, Ltd.;   
 
e. 4400002096, Holt Engineering, Inc.;   
 
f. 4400002097, HVJ Associates, Inc.;   
 
g. 4400002098, Terracon Consultants, Inc.;   
 
h. 4400002099, Fugro Consultants, LP;   
 
i. 4400002100, Kleinfelder, Inc.;   
 
j. 4400002101, Arias and Associates, Inc.;   
 
k. 4400002102, Professional Service Industries, Inc.; and   
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 29, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

l. 4400002111, Balcones Geotechnical, PLLC. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
5. Approve Modification No. 2 to Contract No. 4400001499, Stantec, for North East Metro Park 

BMX track design. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
6. Approve Modification No. 17 to Interlocal Agreement No. 4400000374, Austin Travis County 

Integral Care, for system of care services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
7. Approve contract award for EC hoist, boom and pendant, IFB No. 1406-006LD, to the low 

bidder, Resources Unlimited, Inc. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to use an alternative fiscal agreement for 

Avalon, Phase 5B in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with Gehan Homes Ltd., for 

sidewalk fiscal for Avalon Phase 7B for Lot 14 Block 0, in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with Gehan Homes, Ltd-

Austin, for sidewalk fiscal for Commons at Rowe Lane Phase 4A for Lot 35 Block 0, in Precinct 
One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with Gehan Homes, Ltd-

Austin, for sidewalk fiscal for Commons at Rowe Lane Phase 3B for Lot 13 Block M, in Precinct 
One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. A plat for recording: Sweetwater Ranch Section One Village J final plat (long form final plat 
– 49 total lots – Buchanan Draw Road – no ETJ); and    

 
b. A Travis County subdivision agreement between Travis County and WS-COS 

Development, LLC in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 29, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

13. Consider and take appropriate action on a plat for recording: Belvedere Phase VII-B final plat 
(long form final plat – 18 total lots – 29.22 acres – Flagler Lane – no ETJ) in Precinct Three. 
(Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
14. Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with Chesmar Homes 

Austin, Ltd., for sidewalk fiscal for Sweetwater Village H2 for Lot 9 Block A, in Precinct Three. 
(Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a request to cancel the existing Lower Colorado 

River Authority raw water contract at Southeast Metropolitan Park. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related 

special budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. Annual application to the Texas Veterans Commission to continue substance abuse 
treatment services offered by the Travis County Veterans Court Program in the Criminal 
Courts;   

  
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
b. New grant contract with the Texas Indigent Defense Commission to implement a new 

managed assigned counsel program in the Criminal Courts;   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Victoria Ramirez, Budget Analyst, PBO 
Ofelia Zapata, Austin Interfaith 
Debra Hale, Director, Criminal Courts Administration 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 17.b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd 

 
c. Revised application to the Automobile Burglary and Theft Prevention Authority for the 

Sheriff’s Combined Auto Theft Task Force Program in the Travis County Sheriff’s Office;   
  

RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 29, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

d. Ratification of an amendment to the contract with the United States Department of Health 
and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families for the Parenting in 
Recovery II Grant In The Health and Human Services and Veterans Service Department;   

  
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
e. Permission to continue the Drug Diversion Court Program in the Pretrial Services 

Department until a contract can be fully executed; and   
  

RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 
 
f. Status report on the Travis County Family Drug Treatment Court – the Children’s 

Continuum Grant with the U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and 
Delinquency Prevention, Family Drug Court Programs in the Health and Human Services 
and Veterans Service Department. 

  
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
19. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$710,444.24 for the period of July 11 to July 17, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
20. Consider and take appropriate action on request from the Fire Marshal’s Office to move six 

positions from the Classified Pay Scale to the Peace Officer Pay Scale. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Todd Osburn, Compensation Manager, HRMD 
Alan Miller, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 
Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Services 
Greg Powell, Representative, Local 1624, American Federation of State, County and 

Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 
 

MOTION: Approve staff's recommendations on Item 20. 
RESULT: APPROVED [2 TO 1] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd 

 
21. Receive briefing and update regarding employee and retiree compensation and benefits. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Debbie Maynor, Director, HRMD 
John Rabb, Benefits Manager, HRMD 
Diana Ramirez, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 
Bill Paterson, Risk Manager, HRMD 
Todd Osburn, Compensation Manager, HRMD 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 29, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Barbara Wilson, Assistant County Attorney 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
22. Discuss and take appropriate action on the proposed revisions to Travis County Code Chapter 

15, Drug & Alcohol Policy. (This item may be taken in Executive Session under 
Consultation with Attorney exception) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Bill Paterson, Risk Manager, HRMD 
John Brady, Senior Risk and Safety Specialist, HRMD 
Caitlin Brown, Policy Director, Local 1624, AFSCME 

 
MOTION: Approve staff's recommendations on Item 22. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd 

 
23. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to approve the addition of a catastrophic sick 

leave policy to the Travis County Code. (Commissioner Davis) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Debbie Maynor, Director, HRMD 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 23. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd 

Other Items 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the approval of the two-year term appointment 

of presiding election judges and alternate presiding election judges beginning August 1, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 29, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

25. Consider and take appropriate action on an offer to sell an approximately 1.05 acre tract of land 
and an approximately 1.53 acre tract of land – for a combined total of 2.58 acres, along with 
associated improvements - located south of Onion Creek and west of U.S. Highway 183, for 
inclusion in the Eastern Creeks Open Space Project as part of the 2011 Bond Program, in 
Precinct Four. 

2 
(Commissioner Gómez) 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 25 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real Property. 
 
MOTION: Counter the counter-offer, in the amount of $550,000.00. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd 

 
26. Consider and take appropriate action to acquire conservation easement in eastern Travis 

County as part of the 2011 Bond Program in Precinct One. 
1 and 2

 (Commissioner Davis) 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 26 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Greg Chico, Manager, Real Estate Division, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
 

MOTION: Authorize staff to negotiate with the Conservation District to get the appraisal 
done. If the District will advance the appraisal cost, Travis County will absorb 
the appraisal cost at closing, as part of the expense of the acquisition cost of 
the easement. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd 

 
27. Consider and take appropriate action on purchase of approximately 228 acres of land in 

connection with the Balcones Canyonlands Conservation Plan in Precinct Three. 
2
 

(Commissioner Daugherty) 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 27 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real Property. 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 8/5/2014 

 
28. Consultation with County Attorney and take appropriate action concerning the extension of 

administrative leave with pay for Juvenile Probation employee, Slot 134931. 
3
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 28 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.074, Personnel 
Matters. 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



July 29, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

MOTION: Authorize an additional 13 days of administrative leave with pay, to give 
Juvenile Probation an opportunity to complete its investigation. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd 

 
29. Receive briefing from County Attorney regarding Steven Brand v. Travis County; Cause No. 

1:14-CV-00658-LY, consider hiring outside counsel and take appropriate action. 
1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 29 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 8/5/2014 

 
30. Consultation with County Attorney regarding various immigration and refugee issues. 

1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 30 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Consent Items 
 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C2 and Agenda Items 3, 4.a–l, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 
11, 12.a–b, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17.a, c, d, e, f, 18, 19, 24. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Item C4Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@.co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 

 

 
 
 
Meeting Date: August 5, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Bee Cave Road District No. 1 
(Galleria) Minutes for the Voting Sessions of June 17 & 24 and July 29, 
2014. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 

BCRD Item 2Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  

June 17, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Travis County  
 Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) 
 Tuesday, June 17, 2014  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on June 17, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Absent 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Absent 

 
 

1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 

MOTION: Approve the claims in Item 1. 
RESULT: APPROVED [2 TO 0] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 

 
2. Approve the Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) Minutes for the Voting Session of May 27, 

2014. 

MOTION: Approve Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Bruce Todd 
ABSENT: Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  

June 24, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) Page 1 

 

 Minutes for the Travis County  
 Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) 
 Tuesday, June 24, 2014  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on June 24, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on property tax rate considerations for the Travis County 

Bee Cave Road District No. 1. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Renea Deckard, Associate Deputy, Collections, Tax Assessor Collector's Office 
Christina Cerda, Tax Specialist III, Tax Assessor Collector's Office 

 
MOTION: Approve property tax rate consideration D. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Clerk's Note: No action was necessary on property tax rate considerations A, B, C and E. 

Clerk's Note: For this Item, "Tax rate considerations A, B, C, D and E" are references to 
numbered items in the supporting backup document.  

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



  

July 29, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) Page 1 

 

 Minutes for the Travis County  
 Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) 
 Tuesday, July 29, 2014  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on July 29, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Absent 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Absent 

 
 

1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 
 

MOTION: Approve the investments in Item 1.  
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0]  
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 
ABSENT: Bruce Todd\ 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 
 

Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



CORP Item 1Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm



Created 07-31-14 at 3:30 pm


	Item 01
	Item 02
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	TCAD Budget Agenda Request 080514
	Item 08
	Memo from TCAD
	Statute on Disapproving Budget
	Title Page
	FY 2015 Proposed Budget- Section 1 (Intro & Overview)-1
	1- Divider Page (Introductory Section)
	FY 2015 Proposed Budget- Section 1 (Intro & Overview)-2
	2- Divider Page (Budget Overview)
	FY 2015 Proposed Budget- Section 1 (Intro & Overview)-3
	3- Divider Page (District Budget)
	FY 2015 Proposed Budget- Section 2 (District Budget)
	4- Divider Page (Revenue Budget)
	FY 2015 Proposed Budget- Section 3 (Revenue Budget)
	5- Divider Page (CIP)
	FY 2015 Proposed Budget- Section 4 (CIP)
	6- Divider Page (Dept Budgets)
	FY 2015 Proposed Budget- Section 5 (Department Budgets)
	7- Divider Page (Statistical Info)
	FY 2015 Proposed Budget- Section 6 (Statistical Section)
	8- Divider Page (Appendix)
	FY 2015 Proposed Budget- Section 7 (Appendix)
	9- Divider Page (Glossary)
	FY 2015 Proposed Budget- Section 8 (Glossary)


	Item 09
	10942 : 2014 Ind Audit Svcs RFQ 1403-006-ML
	executive summary
	BAFO from 3 proposers
	External Auditing Contract AA LLP and TC and CSCD and Juvenile w signatures FINAL


	Item 10
	11035 : 4400001067 Mentis Mod 2
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Mentis Mod 2 memo
	4400001067 Mentis Mod 2


	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Final Draft_Agenda Request
	Project
	Program Description

	Certifications_vfinal
	PY14-18ConPlanFINAL-COMPLETE
	Part1-TitlePages
	Part2-AcronymsTOC(FINAL)
	Part3-PY14-18ConPlan_final draft_072914
	Part4-AppendicesA-F
	Appendix A (with_page#s)
	survey and ads.pdf
	AcronymsTOCListFigures.pdf
	SECTION I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1
	SECTION II: THE PROCESS 5
	SECTION III: NEEDS ASSESSMENT 32
	APPENDICES

	PY14-18ConPlan_Public Comment Draft.pdf
	Executive Summary
	Executive Summary

	The Process
	Lead & Responsible Agencies
	Consultation
	Citizen Participation

	Needs Assessment
	Overview
	Housing Needs Assessment
	Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Problems
	Disproportionately Greater Need: Severe Housing Problems
	Disproportionately Greater Need: Housing Cost Burdens
	Disproportionately Greater Need: Discussion
	Public Housing
	Homeless Needs Assessment
	Non-Homeless Special Needs Assessment
	Non-Housing Community Development Needs

	Housing Market Analysis
	Overview
	Number of Housing Units
	Housing Market Analysis: Cost of Housing
	Housing Market Analysis: Condition of Housing
	Public and Assisted Housing
	Homeless Facilities and Services
	Special Needs Facilities and Services
	Barriers to Affordable Housing
	Non-Housing Community Development Assets
	Needs and Market Analysis Discussion

	Strategic Plan
	Overview
	Geographic Priorities
	Priority Needs
	Influence of Market Conditions
	Public Housing Accessibility and Involvement
	Barriers to affordable housing
	Homelessness Strategy
	Lead based paint Hazards
	Anti-Poverty Strategy
	Monitoring

	Annual Action Plan
	Expected Resources

	Annual Goals and Objectives
	Projects
	Projects
	AP-38 Project Summary
	Geographic Distribution

	Affordable Housing
	Affordable Housing
	Public Housing
	Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities
	Barriers to affordable housing
	Other Actions

	Program Specific Requirements

	Appendix E.pdf
	Appendix E title page
	PY14 Projects

	CDBGPresentationOfProjectsFullBackup052814_vfinal.pdf
	Agenda Request Form Projects_2014
	Meeting Date: June 3, 2014
	Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:
	Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
	AGENDA LANGUAGE:
	BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
	Hill Country News    Oak Hill Gazette    Austin Chronicle

	STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
	Housing and Community Development total (67 %):
	ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:

	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Travis County�Community Development Block Grant�(CDBG) Program
	Project Update 
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21

	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	1_PY14_Project_Selection_Process
	2_PY14 Projects recommended for funding
	3_PY13 Projects Selection Matrix_v52813

	Attachment F
	Attachment F_cover sheet
	Full matrix_all years
	1
	2
	3
	4
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document. If you need additional space to answer any section, attach additional sheets of paper.
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document.
	Travis County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
	Section 3 Overview
	Section 3 Overview
	Applicability
	Eligibility for Preference


	Certification for Resident Seeking Section 3 Preference in Training and Employment

	5
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document. If you need additional space to answer any section attach additional sheets of paper.
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document.

	6
	Lowden Lane Apartments 
	CDBG Project Proposal
	Section 3 Certification
	Conceptual Site Plan
	Site Location Map
	Development Pro Forma


	TCAD Property ID 576792
	Lowden Lane Area_H+T_Index
	Oakhill area_H+T_Index

	7
	8
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document. If you need additional space to answer any section attach additional sheets of paper.
	Please refer to the Instructions for the Project Proposal Form before filling out this document.



	AcronymsTOCListFigures.pdf
	SECTION I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1
	SECTION II: THE PROCESS 5
	SECTION III: NEEDS ASSESSMENT 32
	APPENDICES

	AcronymsTOCListFigures(DRAFT).pdf
	SECTION I: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1
	SECTION II: THE PROCESS 5
	SECTION III: NEEDS ASSESSMENT 32
	APPENDICES



	Appendix B (with page#s)
	01) Appendix B title page.pdf
	02) OverallTravisCountyMap
	03) LMI_RacialEthnic_070714
	04)Race_AfricAmConc+LMI-070714
	05)Race_AsianConc+LMI_070714
	06)Race_HispConc+LMI_070714
	07)Race_WhiteConc+LMI_070714
	08)AffordUnitsUnincorpTC
	09)OpportunityMap
	10)PY14ProjectsMap070714

	Appendix C (with page#s)
	Appendix D (with page#s)
	Appendix E (with page#s)
	Appendix E title page
	PY14 Projects

	Appendix F (with page#s)



	Item 16
	OTH Presentation of Final Report of County Org Review  Study
	OTH Travis County Mngt Review PSPC FINAL REPORT July 16 2014 rev

	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item C3
	CC0610,17,24,0701,08,15,22&29 & 0626 PH
	CC0610
	CC0617
	CC0624
	CC0626EmpPH
	CC0701
	CC0708
	CC0715
	CC0722
	CC0729

	Item C4
	BCRD Item 02
	BC0617 & 24 & 0729 AgRq
	BC0617
	BC0624
	BC0729

	CORP Item 01



